
  

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA            

April 20, 2010 
Regular Meeting 

 
6:30 PM BUSINESS MEETING 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call  
 
Electronic Attendance  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be 

enacted by one motion. No separate discussion of these items will occur unless a 

Council Member requests the item to be removed from the Consent Agenda. If an item 

is removed from the Consent Agenda, it will be considered elsewhere on the agenda for 

this meeting.  Prior to asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the mayor 

will ask if anyone desires to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for public 

discussion. 

 
Minutes of the Regular meeting April 6, 2010  
 
Fire report for the month of March, 2010 
 
Bills and Payroll first half of April, 2010 and HOME Rehab expenditures 
 
PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
This portion of the City Council meeting is reserved for persons who desire to address 

the Council. The Illinois Open Meetings Act mandates that the City Council may NOT 

take action on comments received on matters that have not been identified on this 

agenda, but the Council may direct staff to address the topic or refer the matter for 

action on the agenda for another meeting. Persons addressing the Council are 

requested to limit their presentations to three minutes and to avoid repetitious 

comments. 

 

• Presentations  
 

� Scott Claypool, President of MAC – Annual MAC Report 
� Doug McDermand, CCRP – HOME Rehab Grant 
 

PUBLIC HEARING:  



  

 

• Tentative budget for the fiscal year that begins May 1, 2010 and ends April 
30, 2011. 

 

• Public Comments/ Non-agenda items 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1) Motion –Adopt Ordinance 2010-5295: Annexing Lot One (1) in Country Club 

Trace, a subdivision in     Coles County, Illinois to the City of Mattoon.  
Eric L. & Juliette M. Haslett – Petitioners     (Gover) 

2)  Motion – Adopt Ordinance 2010-5296: Annexing Lot Two (2) in Country Club 
Trace, a subdivision in Coles County, Illinois to the City of Mattoon.  
David W. & Vicki Cline – Petitioners   (Gover) 

 
3) Motion – Adopt Ordinance 2010-5297: Annexing Lot Nine (9) in Rolling Green 

Subdivision, Phase 5, Coles County, Illinois to the City of Mattoon.  
Robert E. & Joy I. Koelling   (Cline) 

 
4) Motion –Adopt Ordinance 2010-5298: Annexing Lot Eleven (11) in Rolling Green 

Subdivision, Phase 5, Coles County, Illinois to the City of Mattoon.  Phillip 
M. & Jean A. Becker – Petitioners   (Cline) 

  
5) Motion –Adopt Ordinance 2010-5299: Annexing Lot One (1) in Block 2 in 

Country Manor Subdivision, Lafayette Township, Coles County, Illinois to 
the City of Mattoon.  Ryan R. & Victoria E. Molzen – Petitioners  (Cline) 

 
 6) Motion –Adopt Ordinance 2010-5300: Amending §50.096, User Charge; Debt 

Service Charge, and §51.098, Meter Charges and Rates for Water Service, 
of the municipal code to set water and sewer rates as recommended by the 
rate studies. (Rankin) 

 
7)  Motion –Adopt Special Ordinance 2010-1387: Adopting the budget for the fiscal 

year that begins May 1, 2010 and ends April 30, 2011.  (Gover) 
 
8)  Motion –Adopt Resolution 2010-2809: Accepting a $385,000 Capital Assistance 

Grant from the Illinois Department of Transportation to renovate the 
Depot platform for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA); and authorizing the Mayor to execute the State/Federal Capital 
Assistance Grant Agreement.  

 [Section 5311ARRA; State Grant #CAP-10-941-ARRA; Federal Grant # IL-86-X001; 

CFDA # 20.509]  (Ervin) 
 
9)  Motion –Adopt Resolution 2010-2810: Prescribing contributions required of 

Employees and Retirees  who elect to participate in the group health and 
life insurance plan of the municipality.  (Gover) 



  

 
10) Motion –Adopt Resolution 2010-2811: Accepting a two-year $337,000 Grant of 

HOME Single Family Housing Rehabilitation Funds; and authorizing the 
Mayor and City Clerk to sign all documents incidental to the grant 
program. (Gover) 

 
11) Motion –Approve Council Decision Request 2010-1074:  Approving the 

promotion of Kenny Coffey to Lead Maintenance Worker - Sewer 
Collection in the Public Works Department.  (Ervin) 

 
12) Motion –Approve Council Decision Request 2010-1075:  Approving a $3,000 

grant by the Tourism Advisory Committee from hotel/motel tax funds to 
Mattoon Area Family YMCA for hosting the YMCA Run for the Bagel 
2010 on July 17, 2010. (Hall) 

 
13) Motion –Approve Council Decision Request 2010-1076: Approving a contract in 

the amount of $7,200 with Don Hance for the design and architectural 
flooring services at the Depot; and authorizing the Mayor to sign the 
contract. (Rankin) 

 
14) Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2010-1077: Authorizing the Mayor 
to sign Change Orders: 

 #25 in the amount of $3,261.60 for replacement of the north doors;  
 #27 in the amount of 10,685.52 for new deck coating over the front concrete 

slab;  
 #29 in the amount of $1,567.08 for drywall to the north & east walls of gift 

shop;  
 #30 in the amount of $3,986.62 for soffit and mechanical systems in gift shop 
 with Grunloh Construction for the Depot Project. (Gover) 
 
Recess to closed session pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act the purpose of 
considering the price for sale or lease of property (5 ILCS 120(2)(c)(6)); and the 
employment, performance or dismissal of employees of the municipality (5 ILCS 
120(2)(c)(1)). 
 
Reconvene  
 
15) Motion – Approve Council Decision Request 2010-1078:  Approving the 

appointment of the Police Chief, effective April 24, 2010 and upon 
ratification of an employment contract, due to the retirement of Chief 
David Griffith.  (Cline)  

 
Adjourn 



  

UNAPPROVED MINUTES: 
 

April 6, 2010 (Regular) 
 
 The City Council of the City of Mattoon held a regular meeting in the City Hall 
Council Chambers on April 6, 2010.  
 
 Mayor Cline presided and called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 
 
 Mayor Cline led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 The following members of the Council answered roll call physically present: 
YEA Commissioner Randy Ervin, YEA Commissioner Tim Gover, YEA Commissioner 
Rick Hall, YEA Commissioner Chris Rankin, YEA Mayor David Cline. 
 
 Also physically present were City personnel:  City Administrator Sue 
McLaughlin, Acting Attorney Janett Winter-Black, Police Chief David Griffith, Public 
Works Director David Wortman, Water Treatment Plant Superintendent Jim Lang, Fire 
Chief Tony Nichols, Community Development Coordinator Kyle Gill, and City Clerk 
Susan O’Brien. 
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to approve the consent 
agenda consisting of minutes of the regular meeting March 16, 2010 and special meeting 
March 26, 2010, Fire & Police Pension reports, bills for last half of March and payroll 
last half of March and first of April, 2010. 
 

  
Bills for last of March and  
    

  
Payroll for the last of March and first of April, 2010 
 

  General Fund      

Payroll         $      476,490.22  

Bills         $        70,025.64  

      Total   $      546,515.86  

  Hotel Tax Fund      

Payroll         $         3,783.80  

Bills         $            179.31  

      Total   $         3,963.11  

  Festival Management     

Bills        $        20,258.35  

      Total  $        20,258.35  

  Broadway East Bus Dist     

Bills         $            428.00  

      Total  $            428.00  
 
  Capital Project Fund    



  

Bills         $        35,303.83  

      Total   $        35,303.83  

        

  Water Fund     

Payroll         $        57,704.72  

Bills         $        53,182.73  

      Total   $      110,887.45  

  Sewer Fund     

Payroll         $        69,209.42  

Bills         $        54,735.46  

      Total   $      123,944.88  

  Cemetery Fund      

Payroll         $         6,363.30  

Bills         $            339.48  

      

Total 
 
 

 $         6,702.78  
 
 

  

 
 
Health Insurance      

Bills         $      123,649.31  

      Total   $      123,649.31  

        

  
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments with no responders. 
  
 Mayor Cline declared the motion to approve the consent agenda carried by the 
following vote:  YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA 
Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Ervin recognized David Warrem for his more than 26 years of 
service with the City.  
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for public comments/presentations and non-agenda 
items.  Police Captain Greg Voudrie voiced his opinion on the termination of two patrol 
officers, explained the personal side of Council’s action, and urged the Council to 
reconsider the reinstatement of Ryan Koop.  Sgt. Ron Batman, union president, reviewed 
the Council’s reasons for cutting the officers, and expressed reasons for retaining the 
officers.  Mr. Steve Thomas, Shift Supervisor for Mitchell-Jerdan Ambulance Service, 
voiced his opinion against terminating the officers and requested the Council to 
reconsider.  Cinda Moran voiced her opinion against terminating the officers and urged 
Council to cut elsewhere. 
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Ordinance 
2010-5288, amending Section 34.52 of the Mattoon Code of Ordinances to reference fees 
contained in Section 35.01 “Fees and Charges”.   
 



  

 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5288 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 34.52 “FIRE PROTECTION  
SERVICES OUTSIDE CORPORATE LIMITS” 

 
WHEREAS, the Mattoon Fire Department desires to consolidate and raise various fees 
now contained in the Code of Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon 
as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  The following article of the City of Mattoon municipal code is amended as 
follows: 
 

§34.52 FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES OUTSIDE CORPORATE LIMITS. 

     (A)     All fire and rescue services provided by the Fire Department to or for the 

benefit of non-residents of the city shall be provided only upon the condition that 
reasonable fees for such services be assessed to such non-residents. 
     (B)     Charges for fire and rescue services shall be assessed at rates specified in 
Section 35.01 (D)(1). 
          (1)     $125 per hour for each Fire Department fire truck or rescue truck. 
          (2)     $35 per hour for each Fire Department employee dispatched for such 
services. 
          (3)     All hourly charges shall be rounded to the nearest ¼ hour with the time 
calculated from the time that the trucks and fire fighters are dispatched from the fire 
station until the trucks and fire fighters return to the fire station. 
          (4)     Minimum charges of $400 shall be assessed for all motor vehicle collisions. 
          (5)     Minimum of $250 is assessed for all motor vehicle fires not incidental to a 
motor vehicle collision. 
          (6)     All charges shall be due 30 days from the date of the statement, with 1½% 
per month late penalty to be charged and collected. 
     (C)     Billing procedures for fees to be assessed pursuant to this section shall be the 
responsibility of the office of the City Clerk. 
     (CD)     Statements for services assessed under this section shall be billed directly to 
the property owner, with a copy to any casualty or fire insurance company identified as 
providing appropriate coverage’s to the property owner. 
     (DE)     All funds collected pursuant to the provisions of this section shall be paid into 
the general fund of the city. 



  

Section 3. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 
approval by the City Council.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Hall, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 6th 
day of April, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 6th day of April, 2010. 
 
 /s/ David W. Cline 

David W. Cline, Mayor 
City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  

 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk            J. Preston Owen, City Attorney & 
Treasurer 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Gover moved to adopt Ordinance 
2010-5289, amending Section 34.55 of the Mattoon Code of Ordinances to reference fees 
contained in Section 35.01 “Fees and Charges”.  
 

 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5289 



  

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 34.55 “MUNICIPAL AMBULANCE; 

EMERGENCY RESCUE SERVICE CHARGES” 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon desires to consolidate the fees contained in the Code of 
Ordinance into one part of such code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon 
as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  The following article of the City of Mattoon municipal code is amended as 
follows: 
 

§ 34.55  MUNICIPAL AMBULANCE SERVICE; EMERGENCY RESCUE 
SERVICE CHARGES. 

     (A)     The management and administration of ambulance services is hereby assigned 
to the Fire Department. 

     (B)     The Fire Department, through appropriately trained personnel, is hereby 
authorized to operate and maintain an emergency vehicle for Emergency Basic Life 
Support Rescue Transport Services. 

     (C)     The Fire Department shall provide Emergency Basic Life Support Ambulance 
Rescue Services. 

     (D)     For Emergency Basic Life Support Rescue Transport Services, which consists 
of transport from the scene of an incident to Sarah Bush Lincoln Health Center 
Emergency Room, the following charges shall be paid by persons benefitting from those 
services. These charges shall be assessed at rates specified in Section 35.01(D)(2). 

          (1)     Residents of the city shall pay $230 plus $9.63 per mile from the scene to 
hospital emergency room. 

          (2)     Non-residents of the city shall pay $437 plus $9.63 per mile from the scene 
to hospital emergency room. 

          (3)     Disposable medical supplies used in patient treatment by the municipal 
ambulance service shall be charged to the patient(s) on a current cost basis as shall be 
determined by the Fire Chief. 



  

          (4)     The fee for non-emergency standby service to any commercial enterprise 
shall be $75 per hour with the exception of special events authorized by the City 
Administration or the Fire Department and Mattoon Community Unit #2 sporting events. 

          (5)     Ambulance fees shall be evaluated on an annual basis and adjusted if deemed 
necessary by the city. 

     (E)     The Fire Department, with the advice and consent of the City Treasurer, shall 
establish billing practices and procedures; develop appropriate internal forms for the 
administration of the billing system; maintain a system of accounts receivable; render 
statements for services provided; and, administer the collection of unpaid accounts. 

     (F)     It is the intention of the City Council that all of the services provided under the 
authority of this section be deemed "rescue" services as provided in ILCS Ch. 745, Act 
10, § 5-101, which states: "Neither a local public entity nor a public employee is liable 
for failure to establish a fire department or otherwise to provide fire protection, rescue or 
other emergency service." 

Section 3. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 
approval by the City Council.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Hall, seconded by Commissioner Gover, adopted this 6th 
day of April, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 6th day of April, 2010. 
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010. 



  

 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to adopt Ordinance 2010-
5290, amending Sections § 99.06, § 150.02, § 150.11, § 150.31, §152.06, 152.99, § 
156.12, § 156.13 and § 160.04 of the Mattoon Code of Ordinances to reference fees 
contained in Section 35.01 “Fees and Charges”.  

 

 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5290 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND § 99.06, § 150.02, § 150.11, § 150.31, §152.06, 
152.99, § 156.12, § 156.13 and § 160.04 CONSOLIDATING FEES IN § 35.01 (E) IN 

THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon desires to consolidate the fees contained in the Code of 
Ordinance into one part of such code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon 
as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this 
Ordinance. 
 

Section 2.  The following article of the City of Mattoon municipal code is amended as 
follows: 

 
§ 99.06  WORK PERFORMANCE IN STREETS AND CITY PROPERTY. 

     (A)     Insurance or bond. In order to protect public property and the city, the 
following shall be required for any permit issued by the city for the performance of any 
work in or involving public property: 

          (1)     The permit holder shall hold harmless the city and its duly authorized agents 
and employees in the amount up to $1,000,000 in the aggregate, and certificate of 



  

insurance shall be filed with the Building Inspector's Office as evidence thereof, or that 
acceptable surety bond therefore be filed with the Building Inspector's Office; and 

          (2)     The permit holder shall protect the city against loss or damage to public 
property by maintaining a performance bond at least equal to the value of the project as 
determined by the Public Works Director or his or her agent; proof of the bond shall be 
filed with the Building Inspector's Office. 

     (B)     Permit fees. Permit fees for the performance of work in, to, or involving public 
property within the city shall be in accordance with §35.01 (E) (1). as follows: 

          (1)     There shall be a general permit fee of $50. Additional fees will be added to 
the permit fee depending on the type of public property being removed for excavation, as 
follows: 

               (a)     Curb cut           $50 

               (b)     Sidewalk cut           $50 

               (c)     Alley cut          $50 

               (d)     Street cut          $200 

          (2)     Only the $50 general permit fee shall be assessed for any sidewalk, curbing, 
or driveway entrance that is to be replaced by the property owner. 

          (3)     The city will be responsible for replacing any sidewalk or curbing for which 
an additional fee is paid. 

     (C)     Preparation and backfill requirements. It shall be a condition of a permit that 
the holder will comply with all applicable rules, regulations and ordinances of the city or 
the duly authorized officer thereof. Including, but not limited to, the following: 

          (1)     All pavement/curbing/sidewalks must be saw cut in a uniform manner. 

          (2)     If water or sewer pipe is undercut it must have a granular backfill compacted 
beneath the pipe. 

          (3)     The existing pipe must be covered by at least six inches of granular backfill. 

          (4)     The remaining portion of the backfill procedure for areas in the roadway 
(street or alley) and two feet beyond the improved roadway shall use a non-air entrained 
controlled low strength material (commonly known as flowable fill). This material shall 
be brought up to the top of subgrade, that is, to the bottom of the existing street surface. 
The contractor shall not place the flowable fill until a representative of the city has 
inspected the trench. 



  

          (5)     The city will provide the contractor with a metal bridge plate to place over 
the excavation so traffic can pass over the excavation. 

          (6)     The contractor shall remove the metal bridge plate the next weekday 
(Monday through Friday) and fill the remaining portion of the excavation with CA6 
aggregate. 

          (7)     Sidewalk areas shall be backfilled with granular backfill up to six inches 
below existing grade. The remaining six inches shall be CA6 aggregate. 

          (8)     Any emergency excavation in any public right-of-way on days when city 
forces do not normally work can be reported to the city by calling the Water Treatment 
Plant at 234-2454. 

Section 3.  The following article of the City of Mattoon is amended as follows: 
 

§ 150.02  REVISIONS TO THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE. 

     The following sections of the International Building Code are hereby revised: 

     (A)     Section 101.1. Title.  Insert name of jurisdiction: City of Mattoon, Coles 
County, State of Illinois. 

     (B)     Section 105.2. Work exempt from permit.  Delete: Fences not over 6 feet (1829 
mm) high.  Insert: Siding and replacement windows with no structural changes. 

     (C)     Section 108.2. Schedule of permit fees.  Change: On buildings, structures, 
electrical, gas, mechanical and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a permit, a fee 
for each permit shall be paid as required in accordance with §35.01 (E) (1). a schedule as 
approved by a resolution of the City Council. 

     (D)     Delete Section 112. Board of Appeals. 

     (E)     Section 1612.3. Establishment of flood hazard areas.  Insert name of 
jurisdiction: City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois.  Insert date of issuance of flood 
insurance study: December 18, 1985. 

     (F)     Section 3410.2. Applicability of compliance alternatives.  Insert: Structures 
existing prior to January 1, 2005 in which there is work involving additions, alterations or 
changes of occupancy shall be made to conform to the requirements of this section or the 
provisions of Sections 3403 through 3407.  The provisions in Sections 3410.2.1 through 
3410.2.5 shall apply to existing occupancies that will continue to be, or are proposed to 
be, in Groups A, B, E, F, M, R, S and U.  These provisions shall not apply to buildings 
with occupancies in Group H or I. 

Section 4.  The following article of the City of Mattoon is amended as follows: 



  

 

§ 150.11  REVISIONS TO THE INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE FOR 
ONE- AND TWO-FAMILY DWELLINGS. 

     The following sections of the International Residential Code for one- and two-family 
dwellings are hereby revised: 

     (A)     Section R101.1. Title.  Insert name of jurisdiction: City of Mattoon, Coles 
County, State of Illinois. 

     (B)     Section R105.2. Work exempt from permit.  Change: One-story detached 
accessory structures used as tool and storage sheds, playhouses and similar uses, provided 
the floor area does not exceed 120 square feet (11.5 m).  Delete: Fences not over 6 feet 
(1829 mm) high.  Insert: Siding and replacement windows with no structural changes. 

     (C)     Section R108.2. Schedule of permit fees.  Change: On buildings, structures, 
electrical, gas, mechanical and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a permit, a fee 
for each permit shall be paid as required in accordance with §35.01 (E) (1). a schedule as 
approved by a resolution of the City Council. 

     (D)     Delete Section R112. Board of Appeals. 

     (E)     Insert: Table R301.2 (1). 

Table R301.2(1) Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria 

Ground 
snow load 

Wind speed 
(mph) 

Seismic 
design 
category 

Subject to 
damage from 
weathering 

Subject to 
damage from 
frost line 
depth 

Subject to 
damage from 
termite 

Subject to 
damage from 
decay 

20 lb/ft 90 C Severe 3 feet Moderate to 
heavy 

Slight to 
moderate 

Winter design 
temp 

Ice shield underlayment 
required 

Flood 
hazards 

Air freezing 
index 

Mean annual 
temp 

0F Yes 12/18/85 1,500 0F 

     (F)     Delete: Chapters 25 through 32. The Illinois Plumbing License Law (ILCS Ch. 
225, Act 320) promulgates the minimum plumbing code of standards applicable 
throughout the state of Illinois. 

     (G)     Delete: Chapters 33 through 42. The National Electric Code adopted at Chapter 
151 of the Mattoon Code of Ordinances establishes requirements applicable to electrical 
systems within the city. 



  

Section 5.  The following article of the City of Mattoon is amended as follows: 

§ 150.31  REVISIONS TO THE INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE. 

     The following sections of the International Mechanical Code are hereby revised. 

     (A)     Section 101.1. Title.  Insert name of jurisdiction: City of Mattoon, Coles 
County, State of Illinois. 

     (B)     Section 106.5.2. Fee schedule.  Change: On buildings, structures, electrical, gas, 
mechanical and plumbing systems or alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit 
shall be paid as required in accordance with §35.01 (E) (1). a schedule as approved by a 
resolution of the City Council. 

     (C)     Section 106.5.3. Fee refunds.  Insert: The code official shall authorize the 
refunding of fees as follows: 

          (1)     The full amount of any fee paid hereunder which was erroneously paid or 
collected. 

          (2)     Not more than 100% of the permit fee paid when no work has been done 
under a permit issued in accordance with this code. 

          (3)     Not more than 100% of the plan review fee paid when an application for a 
permit for which a plan review fee has been paid is withdrawn or canceled before any 
plan review effort has been expended. 

          (4)     The code official shall not authorize the refunding of any fee paid, except on 
written application filed by the original permittee not later than 180 days after the date of 
the fee payment. 

     (D)     Section 108.4. Violation penalties.  Change: Persons who shall violate a 
provision of this code or shall fail to comply with any of the requirements thereof or who 
shall erect, install, alter or repair mechanical work in violation of the approved 
construction documents or directive of the code official, or of a permit of certificate 
issued under the provisions of this code, shall be subject to penalties established at § 
10.99 of the Mattoon Code of Ordinances 

     (E)     Delete Section 109.2. Board of Appeals. 

Section 6. The following article of the City of Mattoon is amended as follows: 

 



  

§ 152.06  PERMIT REQUIRED. 

     (A)     It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, replace any 
fence regulated by this chapter without first obtaining a permit for each fence and a fee of 
$12.00 in accordance with § 35.01 (E) (1) been paid to the Building Inspections 
Community Development Office or other authorized municipal agency and approved by 
the Building Inspector Community Development Coordinator.  The Building Inspector 
Community Development Coordinator may revoke a permit or approval issued under the 
provisions of this section in case of any false statement or misrepresentation of fact in the 
application or on the plans on which the permit or approval was based. 

     (B)     Vegetation fences are exempt from obtaining a permit. 

§ 152.99  PENALTY. 

     Any person who shall erect, construct, enlarge, alter or replace any fence, without 
obtaining a permit before the commencement of work shall be in violation of this chapter, 
shall pay a permit fee of $36 and subject to penalties in accordance with § 10.99.could be 
fined not less than $10 nor more than $500, and shall be liable to further penalty of not 
less than $10 nor more than $500 for each day the same is suffered to remain after the 
first conviction of an offense hereunder. 

Section 7. The following article of the City of Mattoon is amended as follows: 

 

§ 156.12  PLUMBING PERMITS. 

     It shall be unlawful for any person to install, alter or change any plumbing in any 
building or structure within the corporate limits of the city without first procuring a 
permit for such installation, alteration, or change from the Sewer Department Community 
Development Office. The permit shall be issued only to a plumbing contractor, 
employing plumber, or self-employed journeyman plumber, registered and bonded under 
§ 156.11, or such other person as specified in § 14.17.1b of the Illinois State Plumbing 
Code. Applications for a permit shall be in accordance with § 14.17.2 of the Illinois State 
Plumbing Code. After the permit shall have been issued by the Sewer Department 
Community Development Office it shall be unlawful for any person to change or modify 
the plans or specifications unless such change or modification shall first have been 
submitted to the Sewer Department Community Development Office and approved. 

Penalty, see § 10.99 

§ 156.13  PERMIT FEES. 

     The Sewer Department Community Development Office shall collect a fee for each 
permit in accordance with §35.01 (E) (1) the following fees for permits issued, which 



  

said fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of the permit. The fee shall be the same in the 
case of alteration or change of existing plumbing or in the case of the installation of new 
plumbing. 

     Minimum permit fee  for 1 to 10 drains     $25.00 

     For each additional drain     4.00 

Section 8. The following article of the City of Mattoon is amended as follows: 

§ 160.04  SIGN PERMITS. 

     (A)     Permit required; conditions. Before a sign is erected, altered, or relocated, a 
permit must be obtained: 

          (1)     If it is a new sign. 

          (2)     If an existing sign is being moved to a new location. 

          (3)     If an existing sign is being enlarged in any manner. 

          (4)     If an existing sign is being replaced with a similar sign of a new material. 

          (5)     If structural modifications or changes are made other than routine 
maintenance work. 

     (B)     Responsibility to obtain permit. It is the responsibility of the owner of the sign 
directly, or through his or her agent or contractor, to secure the appropriate permit. 

     (C)     Display of permit. The permit shall be on display on the premises at the time of 
the beginning of erection and the next seven days. 

     (D)     Exemptions. The following signs need not secure a permit, but these signs must 
meet all other requirements of this chapter. 

          (1)     The maintenance of existing sign areas as defined in Section 12 of this 
chapter. 

          (2)     Construction sign (erected after construction has commenced) identifying the 
developer, builder, owner architect, source of financing and other similar information. 

          (3)     Window promotional signs. 

          (4)     Yard sale signs. 

          (5)     Signs permitted for single unit dwellings. 



  

          (6)     Signs for historic places and buildings. 

          (7)     Political signs. 

          (8)     Temporary real estate signs advertising real estate for sale, rent or lease.  

          (9)     Temporary signs, pennants, banners, and portable signs. 

     (E)     Permit fee. The applicant for a sign permit shall pay a fee to the city through the 
office of the Building Inspector Community Development Office. The fee assessed shall 
be related to the sign size in accordance § 35.01 (E) (3). with the following schedule: 

     Sign Size                     Fee 

     00-24 square feet                $12.00 

     25-48 square feet                $24.00 

     49-72 square feet                $36.00 

     73-96 square feet                $48.00 

     larger than 96 square feet           $60.00 

Section 9. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 
approval by the City Council.  
 
Section 10. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Mayor Cline , seconded by Commissioner Hall, adopted this  6th  day of  
April, 2010, by a roll call vote as follows: 
 
AYES (Names): Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names): None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 6th day of April, 2010. 

/s/ David W. Cline 
David W. Cline, Mayor 
City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  

 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien /s/ J Preston Owen 



  

Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Rankin seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt 
Ordinance 2010-5291, amending § 98.061, § 98.101, and § 91.27 of the Mattoon Code of 
Ordinances to reference fees contained in Section 35.01 “Fees and Charges”.   

 
________________________________________________________________________
____________________________ 

 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5291 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND § 98.061, § 98.101, AND § 91.27 AND 
CONSOLIDATE FEES IN § 35.01 IN THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon desires to consolidate the fees contained in the Code of 
Ordinance into one part of such code. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS:  
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  Amendments.  Section 98.061 (D) of Chapter 98 is enacted as follows: 

§ 98.061  BOAT REGISTRATION.      (D)     Fees. Annual boat registration fees are established by a resolution of the City Council. Fees are not pro rated for the fractional part of any calendar year. shown in §35.01 G (22) & §35.01 G (23). 
Section 3.  Amendments.  Section 98.101 of Chapter 98 is enacted as follows: 
 
§ 98.101  RENT. 



  

     Annual rental fees for use of campgrounds and docks are established by a resolution 
of the City Council. Fees may be changed by the City Council as deemed necessary at its 
sole discretion. shown in §35.01 H (1). 
 
Section 4.  Amendments.  Section 91.27 of Chapter 91 is enacted as follows: 
 
§ 91.27  SCHEDULE OF CEMETERY CHARGES. 

     The schedule of charges for Dodge Grove Cemetery is as follows: 

     (A)     Charges for sale of cemetery lots and mausoleum crypts shall be shown in 
§35.01 H (2): 

          (1)     Adult grave spaces, not otherwise specifically provided for     $495.00 

          (2)     Infant grave spaces     $250.00 

          (3)     Military veteran spaces in Section 7 - Division H     $250.00 

          (4)     North/South spaces in Section 15 - Division A (NW)     $425.00 

          (5)     Turf level spaces in Section 18 - Division E     $425.00 

          (6)     Pauper spaces in Section 8 - Division F     $175.00 

          (7)     Mausoleum crypt spaces, except top tier     $1,350.00 

          (8)     Top tier mausoleum crypt spaces     $1,150.00 

     (B)     Charges for opening graves shall be as follows: 

          (1)     Weekday grave openings     $675.00 

          (2)     Weekday grave openings for Paupers     $500.00 

          (3)     Grave openings on Saturdays     $950.00 

          (4)     Grave openings on Sundays and holidays     $1,100.00 

          (5)     Weekday openings for infants     $275.00 

          (6)     Weekday cremations     $400.00 

          (7)     Openings for infants and cremations on Saturdays     $550.00 

          (8)     Openings for infants and cremations on Sundays and holidays      $700.00 



  

     (C)     Charges for providing foundations for monuments and mausoleums are as 
follows: 

          (1)     1 to 1.9 lineal feet     $82.50 

          (2)     2.0 to 2.9 lineal feet     $120.00 

          (3)     3.0 to 3.9 lineal feet     $150.00 

          (4)     4.0 to 4.9 lineal feet     $207.00 

          (5)     5.0 to 5.9 lineal feet     $232.50 

          (6)     6.0 to 6.9 lineal feet     $270.00 

          (7)     7.0 to 7.9 lineal feet     $307.50 

          (8)     8.0 to 8.9 lineal feet     $352.50 

          (9)     20 foot sidewalk     $855.00 

          (10)     Above ground single mausoleum     $675.00 

          (11)     Above ground double mausoleum     $1,320.00 

     (D)     The charges for miscellaneous services provided by the cemetery staff are as 
follows: 

          (1)     Disinterments     $1,200.00 

          (2)     Trimming shrubs on grave sites     $20.00 minimum plus $30.00/hour 

          (3)     Dirt for landscaping grave sites     $25.00/C.Y. 

          (4)     Miscellaneous labor services (regular time)     $30.00/hour 

          (5)     Overtime labor services (weekdays)     $45.00/hour 

          (6)     Overtime labor services (weekends and holidays)     $60.00/ hour 

     (E)     Charge for purchase of and placing ashes into an opening in the cremation niche 
shall be $600. 
 
Section 5. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 

approval by the City Council.  



  

Section 6. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Rankin, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 
6th day of April, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):    Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):   None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 6th day of April, 2010. 
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Gover seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt 
Ordinance 2010-5292, amending Section 35.01 “Fees and Charges” of the City of 
Mattoon Code of Ordinances to set fees charged by the City.  
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5292 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO SET FEES CHARGED BY THE CITY OF MATTOON, 

ILLINOIS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon desires to consolidate various fees now contained in 
the Code of Ordinances. 
 



  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon 
as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  Chapter 35.01 of the Mattoon Code of Ordinances is amended by repealing all 
of said Chapter and adopting in lieu thereof a new Chapter 35.01 as shown in Attachment 
A.  The fees listed in Attachment A, if in conflict with the same fees now contained in the 
Mattoon Code of Ordinances, shall have precedence. 
 
Section 3.  All prior ordinances, resolutions and orders or parts of ordinances, resolutions 
and orders in conflict with this Resolution are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 
approval by the City Council.  
 
Section 5. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Gover, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 
6th day of April, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,     
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 6th day of April, 2010. 
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010. 
 
35.01  Fees and Charges 



  

The following lists fees and charges and other information related to permits and 
licenses required by the City. 

(A) Liquor Control [Reserved] 
(B) Police 

(1) Vehicle Impound Fee $250.00 (Driving with a suspended or revoked 
license, driving under the influence (DUI), or a vehicle used in a felony. 

(C) Public Works [Reserved] 
(D) Fire  

(1)  Fire Protection Services Outside Corporate Limits: 

(a)    $125 $250 per hour for each Fire Department vehicle 
involved in the incident. 

(b)    $35 $70 per hour for each Fire Department employee 
dispatched for such services. 

(c)    All hourly charges shall be rounded to the nearest ¼ hour 
with the time calculated from the time that the trucks and fire 
fighters are dispatched from the fire station until the trucks 
and fire fighters return to the fire station. 

(d)    Minimum charges of $400 $425.00 shall be assessed for all 
motor vehicle collisions. 

(e)    Minimum of $250 $275.00 is assessed for all motor vehicle 
fires not incidental to a motor vehicle collision. 

(f)    All charges shall be due 30 days from the date of the 
statement, with 1½% per month late penalty to be charged and 
collected. 

(g)   Billing procedures for fees to be assessed pursuant to this 
section shall be the responsibility of the office of the City 
Clerk. Fire Chief. 

(2)   Municipal Ambulance Service; Emergency Rescue Service Charges: 

(a)   Residents of the city shall pay $230 $425.00 plus $9.63 
$10.41 per mile from the scene to the hospital emergency 

room for BLS treatment “Basic Life Support”. 
                                      
(b)    Residents of the city shall pay $650 plus $10.41 per mile 

from the scene to the hospital emergency room for ALS “ 
Advanced Life Support” treatment, residents shall pay $800 
plus $10.41 per mile for ALS II treatment. 



  

 (c)   Non-residents of the city shall pay $437 $525.00 plus $9.63 
$10.41 per mile from the scene to the hospital emergency 
room for BLS treatment. 

 (d)   Non-residents of the city shall pay $775 plus $10.41 per mile 
from the scene to the hospital emergency room for ALS 
treatment, non-residents shall pay $950 plus $10.41 per mile 
for ALS II treatment.     

 (e)   Patients shall be charged for advanced life support non-
transport services rendered. Rates for this service shall be $75 
for residents and $125 for a non-resident. 

 (f)    Disposable medical supplies used in patient treatment by the 
municipal ambulance service shall be charged to the patient(s) 
on a current cost basis as shall be determined by the Fire 
Chief. 

 (g)   Treatments that will be charged for in addition to the base 
rate are listed below: Intraosseous (IO) is $75, Intravenous 
(IV) $75.   

(h)    The fee for non-emergency standby service to any 
commercial enterprise shall be $75 per hour with the 
exception of special events authorized by the City 
Administration or the Fire Department and Mattoon 
Community Unit #2 sporting events. 

 (I)    $500.00 charge shall be assessed for any vehicle accident that 
requires extrication for a non-resident.                                                                      

(J)     Ambulance fees shall be evaluated on an annual basis and 
adjusted if deemed necessary by the City. 

 

(E) Community Development  

  (1)  SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FEES 
   

Type of Construction Rate Computation Minimum Fee 

   



  

New Construction and Additions 
exclusive of gas, plumbing, mechanical, 

electrical and other fees presented on 

these schedules 

Gross Area x 
Square Foot 

Construction Cost 
Index x 0.004 

(a) 

$20.00 40.00 (b) 

   

Alterations and Remodeling Est. Construction 
Costs x 0.004 

$20.00 40.00 (b) 

   

Mechanical, HVAC Systems & Gas 
Systems 

Est. Construction 
Costs x 0.004 

$20.00 40.00 (b) 

   

Plumbing Systems 1-10 Fixtures 
Additional Fixtures 

$25.00 40.00 (b) 
$4.00 Each 

   

Water & Sewer Service Renewals Lump Sum $20.00 40.00 (b) 

   

Demolition Permits Lump Sum $12.00 (b) 

   
Fence Construction Permits Lump Sum $12.00 (c) 

   

Boulevard, Curb & Street Cut Permits: Lump Sum $50.00 (b) 

  Additional Fee By Type of Cut   

   Curb Cut Lump Sum $50.00 60.00 (b) 

   Sidewalk Cut Lump Sum $50.00 60.00 (b) 

   Alley Cut Lump Sum $50.00 60.00 (b) 

   Street Cut Lump Sum $200.00 250.00 
(b) 

Only the $50.00 minimum fee is 
assessed when areas cut are restored by 
the property owner, his or her 
contractor 

  

   

Electrical Systems See Exhibit B 
35.01 (E) 2 

See Exhibit B 
35.01 (E) 2 

 
Notes: 

(a) The International Code Council publishes the Construction Cost 
Index, which is usually updated every six months. It reflects average square foot 
construction costs based upon typical construction methods for each occupancy 
group and type of construction. Whether a specific project is bid at a cost above or 
below the index value does not affect the permit fee. This establishes a “level 
playing field” for all potential project bidders. 
 



  

 
 

(b) Mattoon has been using a 1997 Construction Cost Index to 
compute permit fees. Mattoon’s Permit Fee Multiplier has been reduced from 
0.0065 to 0.0040 to offset higher 2004 Construction Cost Index values and to 
maintain fees that are relatively equivalent to the schedule of fees in effect prior to 
January 1, 2005. Any person who commences work without obtaining a permit 
before the commencement shall be in violation of Chapter 150 and shall pay a 
permit fee twice the amount of the fee listed in this chapter and could be liable to 
further penalties.  (Emergency repairs shall be reported the next business day.)  

 
(c) Any person who shall erect, construct, enlarge, alter or replace any 

fence, without obtaining a permit before the commencement of work shall be in 
violation of this chapter, shall pay a permit fee of $36 and subject to penalties in 
accordance with § 10.99. 

 
 

  (2) SCHEDULE OF ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES 
 

(a) Fees for branch circuits shall not exceed the cost of new 
service fees for the locations at the rate of $22.50 per circuit. 



  

(b) For temporary electrical services, $25.00 residential, $50.00 
commercial 

(c) For extending or otherwise altering a circuit, $10.00 
(d) For hooking up a manufactured home or mobile home, $50.00 
(e) For work commencing before permit issuance except for 

emergency situations, Standard permit fee doubles 
(f) For existing services or residential rated electrical services as 

defined by C. 334.10 of the City of Mattoon Electrical Code:   
Service Ampere Rating Fee                                                                                               

 
100 ampere service       $50.00   
200 ampere service       $80.00  
400 ampere service             $200.00 
600 ampere service        $300.00 
800 ampere service     $400.00 
1,000 ampere service     $500.00 
1,200 ampere service     $600.00 
1,600 ampere service     $800.00 
2,000 ampere service                 $1000.00 
2,500 ampere service                 $1250.00 
3,000 ampere service                 $1500.00 
4,000 ampere service                  $2000.00 
5,000 ampere service                            $2500.00 
6,000 ampere service                            $3000.00 
 
(g) For branch service from existing panels:  
 
60 ampere or less     $30.00 
100 ampere      $40.00 
200 ampere      $80.00           
400 ampere                  $100.00 
600 ampere                                    $150.00 
800 ampere                               $300.00 
1,000 ampere                                $400.00 

 
(h) For service ratings other than those appearing above, the fee 

shall be that of the next largest size. All services larger than 
6,000 amps shall be computed at the rate of Ten dollars 
($10.00) per kW. 

 
(i) For new “commercial construction” or above as defined by C. 

334.10 (1) of the City of Mattoon Electrical Code, the fee will 
be calculated at $1.00 per amp. Services over 6000 amps shall 
be calculated per item 8.  

 
(j) The foregoing fees shall cover all wiring complete with 



  

fixtures, devices and all associated equipment installed by the 
permit holder for the wiring of the building, structure or 
premises except subsequently stand-by emergency generators, 
which require a separate permit.  

 
(k) For subsequently installed stand-by generators up to 50kW 

the fee shall be $100.00. This fee shall cover all wiring and 
equipment required for the stand-by generator. For generators 
larger than 50kW the fee will be calculated at .50 cents per 
kW. 

 
(l) When additional inspections are necessary, to remedy a 

reoccurring deficiency or error, due to inaccurate or incorrect 
information, failure to make necessary repairs, or faulty 
installations, a charge of $75.00 per hour shall be made for 
each such inspection.  

 
(m) All fees shall be made payable to the “City of Mattoon” and 

deposited with the Finance Department before a permit shall 
be issued. 

 

(3) SCHEDULE OF SIGN PERMIT FEES 
 

       Sign Size                            Fee 
  (a)   00-24 square feet                  $12.00 
  (b)  25-48 square feet                   $24.00 
  (c)    49-72 square feet                  $36.00 
  (d)  73-96 square feet                  $48.00 
  (e)   larger than 96 square feet     $60.00 

 
 

(F) Finance [Reserved] 

(G) Administration  

(1) Auctioneer: $2.50 per day or $7.50 per month or $15 for three months or 
$25 per year 

(2) Billiard or pool table: $5 per year for first table and $2 per year, each 
additional table 

 (3) Bowling alley: $10 per alley per month or $15 per alley per year 
(4) Handbill distributor: $2 per day 
(5) Itinerant merchant or transient vendor: $10 per day or $25 per week or $50 

per month or $75 for three months 
(6) Junk dealer: $50 per year 
(7) Pawnbroker: $10 per month or $120 per year 



  

(8) Peddler or hawker: on foot, $40 per year or with a vehicle, $75 per year 
and for each additional assistant or employee, $10 per year.  For assistants working less 
than one week, $5 per day for each assistant.  However, no license fee for any person 
selling or peddling goods grown or produced by himself. 

(9) Roller skating rink$25 per year. 
(10) Second-hand dealer$25 per year, excluding those dealing in household 

furniture only. 
(11) Shooting gallery: $5 per day or $15 per month or $35 per year 
(12) Shuffleboard: $25 per year for each shuffle board 
(13) Birth certificates fees are $14.00 for the first copy and $4.00 for each 

additional copy. 

(14) Death certificates fees are $16.00 for the first copy and $6.00 for each 
additional copy, including the $2.00 fee remitted to the Illinois Department of Vital 
Records as mandated by Public Act 92-0141.  External corrections of death certificates 
are assessed an additional $4.00 fee for the correction and reprinting purposes. 

(15) Standard copies are $0.25 per page for non-governmental agencies; 
however, FOIA fees effective January 1, 2010 are $0.15 per page, but only after the first 
50 pages. 

(16) Faxed copies are $2.00 for the first page and $1.00 for each additional 
page, to include FOIA. 

(17) Standard mailing fees apply for each request. 

(18) Notary service $1.00 for each signature; however, Mattoon residents are 
exempt. 

(19) Document Charges 

Strategic Plan $15.00 
Zoning Map $15.00 
Zoning Ordinance $15.00 
Sub-Division Ordinance 10.00 
Electrical Ordinance 7.50 
Comprehensive Plan 20.00 
General Plan update 15.00 
TIF I-57 26.25 
Audit Reports  10.00 
Other reports 0.15 per page 

(20) Garbage Hauler -- Collector License $100/year 

(21) Garbage Hauler Vehicles Class A & B-- $100/year/vehicle 
 

(22) Motorized Boats $40.00 $50.00  applies to all motorized boat or craft that 
may be lawfully kept or used at Lake Mattoon and Lake Paradise.   

(23) Non-motorized Boats $10.00 includes trolling motors. 

(24) Parking Spaces $10.00/month per space 



  

 Extra Hangtag $10.00 
 Extra Stickers $1.00 per sticker 

1. Space/Facility Rentals – May be reserved one year in 
advance 

 

DeMars Fee 

8am to 3:30pm $60.00  

4pm to 11pm 90.00  

8am to 11pm 150.00  

Damage Deposit 100.00  

Pavilion   

Reservation  (Per Section -3 Sections) 15.00  

Bandshell   

Reservation 25.00  

Damage Deposit  50.00  

Lawson   

No Reservations 0.00 

Burgess-Osborne  

8am to 3:30pm 50.00  

4pm to 11pm 75.00  

8am to 11pm 100.00  

Damage Deposit 50.00 

Cancellation fee - No refunds within 30 days of reservation date. 
Reservation must be paid within 14 days of reserving. 
 

(H) Recreation and Cemetery 

 (1)  Campgrounds 

Lake Mattoon Campground East 

Seasonal Rate $1,000.00 April 1 to October 1 

Electric Hookup $162.00 $13.50 each month for 12 months 

Water Hookup $90.00 $15.00 each month for 6 months.  

Monthly Rate $180.00 Plus electric and water. 

Daily Rate $20.00 Electric and water hookups not 
available for daily rate 
customers. 

Boat Docks $150.00 Yearly for one side or $300 for 
two sides.  

 
Lake Mattoon Campground West 



  

 

Seasonal Rate $1,090.00 April 15th to October 15th 

Monthly Rate $200.00  

Daily Rate $18.00  

Boat Docks $150.00 Yearly for one side or $300 for 
two sides.  

Daily Tent Rate  $8.00  

 

 (2)  Dodge Grove Cemetery 

   (a)     Charges for sale of cemetery lots and mausoleum crypts shall be as 
follows: 
          (1)     Adult grave spaces, not otherwise specifically provided for    
 $495.00 
          (2)     Infant grave spaces     $250.00 
          (3)     Military veteran spaces in Section 7 - Division H     $250.00 
          (4)     North/South spaces in Section 15 - Division A (NW)    
 $425.00 
          (5)     Turf level spaces in Section 18 - Division E     $425.00 
          (6)     Pauper spaces in Section 8 - Division F     $175.00 
          (7)     Mausoleum crypt spaces, except top tier     $1,350.00 
          (8)     Top tier mausoleum crypt spaces     $1,150.00 
     (b)   Charges for opening graves shall be as follows: 
          (1)     Weekday grave openings     $675.00 
          (2)     Weekday grave openings for Paupers     $500.00 
          (3)     Grave openings on Saturdays     $950.00 
          (4)     Grave openings on Sundays and holidays     $1,100.00 
          (5)     Weekday openings for infants     $275.00 
          (6)     Weekday cremations     $400.00 
          (7)     Openings for infants and cremations on Saturdays     $550.00 
          (8)     Openings for infants and cremations on Sundays and holidays 
     $700.00 
     (c)     Charges for providing foundations for monuments and 
mausoleums are as follows: 
          (1)     1 to 1.9 lineal feet     $82.50 
          (2)     2.0 to 2.9 lineal feet     $120.00 
          (3)     3.0 to 3.9 lineal feet     $150.00 
          (4)     4.0 to 4.9 lineal feet     $207.00 
          (5)     5.0 to 5.9 lineal feet     $232.50 
          (6)     6.0 to 6.9 lineal feet     $270.00 
          (7)     7.0 to 7.9 lineal feet     $307.50 
          (8)     8.0 to 8.9 lineal feet     $352.50 
          (9)     20 foot sidewalk     $855.00 
          (10)     Above ground single mausoleum     $675.00 
          (11)     Above ground double mausoleum     $1,320.00 



  

     (d)     The charges for miscellaneous services provided by the cemetery 
staff are as follows: 
          (1)     Disinterments     $1,200.00 
          (2)     Trimming shrubs on grave sites     $20.00 minimum plus 
$30.00/hour 
          (3)     Dirt for landscaping grave sites     $25.00/C.Y. 
          (4)     Miscellaneous labor services (regular time)     $30.00/hour 
          (5)     Overtime labor services (weekdays)     $45.00/hour 
          (6)     Overtime labor services (weekends and holidays)     $60.00/ 
hour 
     (e)     Charge for purchase of and placing ashes into an opening in the 
cremation niche shall be $600. 

 

(I) Tourism 

Bagelfest Fees per vendor -- includes a 10’x12’ a space and electricity. 

(1) Commercial vendors ..................$200.00 
(2) Craft Vendors (Private)..............$100.00 
(3) Food Vendors.............................$300.00 
(4) Not For Profit Vendors ................$25.00 
 
Fourth of July/Fireworks fees per vendor contract -- includes a 10’x12’ space 
and electricity 
(1) Food Vendors $100.00 

 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to adopt Ordinance 2010-
5293, updating the Electrical Code of the City of Mattoon for regulation of full cutoff 
lighting.  
________________________________________________________________________ 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5293 
 

AN ORDINANCE UPDATING THE CITY’S ELECTRICAL CODE, ADOPTING 
ARTICLE 80 OF THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE WITH LOCAL 

AMENDMENTS, PROVIDING FOR THE REGISTRATION OF ELECTRICAL 
CONTRACTORS AND ESTABLISHING FEES FOR ELECTRICAL PERMITS 

 



  

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon has previously acknowledged the need for and has 
adopted codes to regulate and control the design, construction, quality of materials, 
erection, installation, alteration, repair, location, relocation, replacement, addition to, use 
and maintenance of electrical systems in the City of Mattoon; and 
 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 99-5001, Mattoon adopted regulations for installation of 
electrical work, including the National Electrical Code® and provided for the registration 
of electrical contractors, the issuance of permits and fees therefore; and 
 
WHEREAS, the National Electrical Code® has become the most widely adopted code 
in the United States – it is the standard used in all 50 states and all U.S. territories; and 
 
WHEREAS, building code enforcement officials have long recognized a need for 
uniform code provisions for administration of the National Electrical Code® and other 
national standards applicable to electrical systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article 80 of the 2002 edition of the National Electrical Code® published 
by the National Fire Protection Association is designed to meet these needs through 
model code regulations.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF MATTOON DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The National Electrical Code® (NEC®), as it may be amended from time to 
time, is hereby adopted as the code of the City of Mattoon for regulating the design, 
construction, quality of materials, erection, installation, alternation, repair, location, 
relocation, replacement, addition to, use or maintenance of electrical systems in the City 
of Mattoon.  
 
Section 2. Premises Lighting  Any light used for illumination of buildings, signs, 
parking areas, security, or for any other purposes shall be arranged so as to contain direct 
lighting on the property on which the light source is located and away from nearby 
residential properties and the vision of motorist on adjacent streets. The cone of light 
from any light source other than a street light shall not extend onto adjacent residential 
property or pavement.     
 
 
A. Outdoor lighting design. 
 

(1) All commercial and industrial outdoor lighting shall be fully-shielded (full-
cutoff) as defined in this chapter. The City of Mattoon may waive this 
requirement to allow for appropriate historic or decorative lighting fixtures.  

 
(2) All outdoor lighting shall be so designed and placed as to limit light trespass 

onto adjacent lots. Light levels at lot lines, with the exception of ingress and 
egress points, shall be a maximum of one-half footcandles.  



  

 
(3) The average light level for all parking areas shall fall between one and two 

footcandles. Light levels shall not exceed a minimum to maximum ratio of 8:1, 
or an average to minimum ratio of 6:1. Variances for increased light levels for 
gas stations may be granted, but shall not exceed a maximum of thirty (30) 
footcandles or an average of twenty-five (25) footcandles.  

 
(4) The mounting height of outdoor lighting shall not exceed the average roof 

height of the principle building to which it relates or forty (40) feet, whichever 
is less. Unshielded residential and pedestrian fixtures shall not exceed ten (10) 
feet in height.  

 
(5) In all multi-lot developments, unified lighting standards, including mounting 

height and fixture style, shall be required. 
 
B. Exceptions. 
 

(1) Luminaries used for public-roadway illumination shall be exempt from the 
requirements of this chapter. 

 
(2) All temporary emergency lighting needed by the police or fire departments, public 

utilities, or other emergency services, as well as all vehicular luminaries, shall be 
exempt from the requirements of this chapter.  

 
(3) All hazard-warning luminaries required by Federal and State regulatory agencies 

are exempt from the requirements of this chapter. 
 

(4) Outdoor lighting for recreational facilities shall be exempt from footcandle 
standards set forth in Section 2A. However, lighting at these types of facilities 
shall not exceed IES (Illuminating Engineering Society) standards for the type of 
field and use. Recreational facilities shall otherwise adhere to the standards set 
forth in Section 2 A.  

 
 
Section 3.  The following sections of the 2008 NEC® are hereby superceded by local 
amendment. 

 
A. 110.12 Mechanical Execution of Work. Electrical equipment, as defined in the 
NEC, shall be installed in a neat and workmanlike manner.  

 
(1) Neat and workmanlike manner will be reasonably determined by the electrical 

inspector.       
(2) Neat and workmanlike includes but is not limited to; proper bends in conduit, 

proper support, and the elimination of exposed cable runs, field-bent, kinked, 
flattened, or poorly measured raceway, as well as cabinets, boxes, and enclosures 
not plumb or properly secured.      



  

 
 
 

B. C. 230.70(A)(1) Service Disconnect. The service disconnecting means 
shall be installed at a readily accessible location either outside of a building or structure 
or inside nearest the point of entrance of the service conductors. Except where an electric 
utility may prescribe more stringent requirements, in locations where the main panel is 
greater than 15-cable feet from the meter, a weatherproof protective disconnect shall be 
installed adjacent to the meter installation.  

 

B. C. 250.122 Size of Equipment Grounding Electrode Conductor. All new single 
phase wiring done will be four-wire with an equipment grounding conductor sized in 
accordance with table 250.122 in the 2008 NEC. All Three Phase WYE systems will 
have a separate grounding conductor sized as well. 

 
      (1) It will not be acceptable to use a metallic raceway for grounding      
           conductor purposes. 

 

D. 300.5(F) Backfill in Underground Installations. Backfill that 
contains large rocks, paving materials, cinders, large or sharply angular substances, or 
corrosive material shall not be placed in an excavation where materials may damage 
raceways, cable, or other substructures or prevent adequate compaction of fill or 
contribute to corrosion of raceway, cable, or other substructures. Where necessary to 
prevent physical damage to the raceway or cable, protection shall be provided in the form 
of granular or selected material, suitable running boards, suitable sleeves, or other 
approved means.  

 
(1) “Large rocks” are defined as particles incapable of passing through a ½” sieve 

with square openings.  
 

(2) Crushed gravel, as defined by the Illinois Department of Transportation’s 
Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction (adopted January 1, 
2002) shall not be allowed.  

 
E. 334.10 Nonmetallic-sheathed Cable Uses Permitted. Type NM, Type NMC and 
Type NMS nonmetallic-sheathed cable may ONLY be used in one and two-family 
dwellings and residential garages (residential installations for the purpose of this 
ordinance). Furthermore this cable shall be sized no smaller than #12, unless on a 
switched leg, or by special permission of the electrical inspector. 

 
(1) Unless special permission is granted, anything other than the installations 

mentioned above (commercial installations for the purpose of this ordinance) shall 
be installed in approved metallic raceway, no smaller than metric designator 16 
(trade size ½”).  

(2) Metallic sheathed cable of metric designator 12 (trade size 3/8”) may be used in 
no lengths greater than 6’, and where not exposed to physical damage, to facilitate 



  

the wiring of branch circuit receptacles, and lighting whip. Longer lengths may be 
permitted with special permission of the electrical inspector. 

 

F. 334.10 Nonmetallic-sheathed Cable Uses Permitted. Type NM, Type 
NMC and Type NMS nonmetallic-sheathed cable may ONLY be used in one and two-
family dwellings and residential garages.  

 
F. 406.12 Tamper-Resistant Receptacles other than Dwelling Units. 

Within the following areas all 125-volt, 15- and 20-ampere receptacles shall be listed 
tamper-resistant receptacles. 

       
(1) In all areas publicly accessible, this includes but is not limited to all dining areas, 

waiting areas and the like. 
(2) In all areas of transient occupancy such as hotel rooms, motel rooms, and 

extended stay suites.  
 

G. 550.32(A) Mobile Home Service Equipment.  
 
(1) Mobile homes shall have a minimum 1-1/2 inch conduit for service entrance 

conductors. This conduit shall be run from the service disconnect to at least one 
foot inside the outer wall line of the mobile home.  

(a) The conduit shall be run a minimum of 18 inches below grade from the 
service equipment to under the mobile home where it shall be brought up to 
a minimum of 6 inches above grade.  

(b) This conduit shall have a weatherproof junction box sized in accordance 
with the latest edition of the NEC® for terminating the conductors from the 
service disconnect to the mobile home.  

(2) The mobile home park owner, rather than a tenant, shall furnish and install the 
mobile home service equipment.  

(3) The owner of a mobile home must obtain a permit before connecting to the main 
power supply.  After the mobile home has been connected to the power supply, 
the owner or contractor who obtained the permit must call for a final inspection.  

 
Section 3.  Article 80 of the 2008 edition of the NEC®, a copy of which is attached 
hereto, marked as “Exhibit B A” and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby adopted 
to provide for the administration and enforcement of the NEC®, except as amended by 
Section 3 of this ordinance.  
 
Section 4.  The following sections of Article 80 of the 2008 edition of the NEC® are 
hereby changed or supplemented by local amendment. 
 

A. 80.9. Application.  
 

(A) New Installations. This Code applies to new installations. Buildings with 
construction permits dated after the effective date of this Code shall comply 
with its requirements.  

(B) Existing Installations. Existing electrical installations that do not comply 



  

with the provisions of this Code shall be permitted to continue in use unless 
the Electrical Inspector determines that the lack of conformity with this Code 
presents an imminent danger to occupants. Where changes are required for 
correction of hazards, a reasonable amount of time shall be given for 
compliance, depending on the degree of the hazard.  

 
(C) Additions, Alterations or Repairs. Additions, alterations or repairs to any 

building, structure or premises shall conform to that required of a new 
building without requiring the existing building to comply with all the 
requirements of this Code. Additions, alternations, installations or repairs shall 
not cause an existing building to become unsafe or to adversely affect the 
performance of the building as determined by the Electrical Inspector. 
Electrical wiring added to any existing service, feeder or branch circuit shall 
not result in an installation that violates the provisions of the Code in force at 
the time the additions are made.  

 
(D) Policy Regarding Existing Installations. Strict enforcement of updated 

versions of national codes could make continued use or reuse of existing 
buildings and structures technically unfeasible or impose disproportionate 
costs due to characteristics that may not be in compliance with updated 
versions of the national codes. The various national codes occasionally grant 
interpretative latitude and administrative discretion to the officials responsible 
for code enforcement. It is the policy of the City Council to encourage the 
continued use or reuse of existing buildings and structures throughout the City 
of Mattoon. The provisions of updated versions of national building, electrical 
and fire codes relating to the repair, alteration, restoration and change of 
occupancy shall not be mandatory for existing structures where such 
structures are judged to not constitute a distinct life safety hazard. Where the 
building code, electrical code, fire code and other development codes grant 
discretion and judgment in approving alternative materials, alternative 
structural or dimensional design features, alternative construction and/or 
operational features, officials responsible for code enforcement are directed to 
employ discretion and judgment in the most liberal manner possible provided 
public safety is not endangered thereby. 

 
(E) Appeals. A person, who perceives he has been adversely affected by 

determinations of the Electrical Inspector regarding imminent dangers, unsafe 
conditions, electrical system performance or compliance time may appeal to 
the Electrical Board. The Electrical Board may sustain, modify or reverse 
determinations of the Electrical Inspector pursuant to the foregoing policy and 
procedures provided at 80.15 (G) of this Article.  

 
B. 80.13 (13). Whenever any installation subject to inspection prior to use is covered 

or concealed without having first been inspected, the authority having jurisdiction 
shall be permitted to require that such work be exposed for inspection.  The 
authority having jurisdiction shall be notified when the installation is ready for 



  

inspection and shall conduct the inspection within 2 business days.  
 

C. 80.15(A). Creation of the Electrical Board. There is hereby created the 
Electrical Board of the City of Mattoon, hereinafter designated as the Board, 
consisting of five six (6) members, as follows: The Chief Electrical Inspector of 
the City in an advisory capacity; a registered professional engineer; an electrical 
contractor licensed within the City of Mattoon; Journeyman Wireman or 
equivalent as recognized by the Dept. Of Labor; current or acting Mattoon Fire 
Chief; and a representative of an electric supply utility serving the City of 
Mattoon.  

 
D. 80.15(C). Terms. Members shall be appointed by the Mayor, by and with the 

advice and consent of the Council. Of the members first appointed, one shall be 
appointed for a term of 1 year, one for a term of 2 years, one for a term of 3 years, 
and two for a term of 4 years, and thereafter Each appointment shall be for a term 
of 4 years or until a successor is appointed. The Chair of the Board shall be 
appointed for a term not to exceed 2 years.  

 
E. 80.15(D). Compensation. Each appointed member of the Board shall serve 

without compensation.  Subject to the prior approval of the Mayor, a member of 
the Board may be reimbursed for direct lodging, travel and meal expenses as 
covered by policies and procedures established by the City Council.   

 
F. 80.17 (F) (3). When any portion of the electrical installation within the 

jurisdiction of an Electrical Inspector is to be hidden from view by the permanent 
placement of parts of the building, the person, firm, or corporation installing the 
equipment shall notify the Electrical Inspector, and such equipment shall not be 
concealed until it has been approved by the Electrical Inspector or until 2 business 
days have elapsed from the time of such notification, provided that on large 
installations, where the concealment of equipment proceeds continuously, the 
person, firm, or corporation installing the equipment shall give the Electrical 
Inspector due notice in advance, and inspections shall be made periodically during 
the progress of the work.  

 
G. 80.19(E). Fees. An applicant for an electrical permit shall pay fees before the 

permit is issued.  The schedule of fees shall be found in section “35.01 (E) 2 
Exhibit A” and is attached hereto for reference.  

 
H. 80.21. Plans Review. Review of plans and specifications shall conform to 

80.21(A) through (C), and (1) through (2). 
 

(1) All “commercial installations” or above as determined by Section 334.10 of 
this ordinance shall be required to submit comprehensive electrical plans. 
These plans must include panel schedules and load calculations to determine 
service sizing.  except that one and two family residential structures, where the 
connected load does not exceed 400 amperes shall be exempt from 



  

requirements for plan review or submission of load calculations.  
(2) All “residential installations” as determined by section 334.10 of this ordinance 

which planned service size exceeds 400 Amperes shall be held to the same 
standards as (1) above.  

 
I. 80.23 Penalties. Any person who fails to comply with the provisions of this Code 

or who fails to carry out an order made pursuant to this Code or violates any 
condition attached to a permit, approval or certificate shall be subject to penalties 
established at §10.99 of the City of Mattoon Code of Ordinances.  

 
J. 80.25(C). Notification. If, within 2 business days, after the Electrical Inspector is 

notified of the completion of an installation of electric equipment, other than a 
temporary approval installation, the Electrical Inspector has neither authorized 
connection nor disapproved the installation, the supplier of electricity is 
authorized to make connections and supply electricity to such installation.  

 
K. 80.27 Appointment, Qualifications and Experience of Electrical Inspector.  

 
(A) Appointment. The Public Works Director with the advice of the Electrical 

Board and consent of the City Council shall appoint the Electrical Inspector 
and an Interim Electrical Inspector, who serves in the absence of the 
Electrical Inspector. The Public Works Director and the Electrical Board 
evaluate the performance of the Electrical Inspectors. A person appointed to 
an Electrical Inspector position shall be nominated solely on the basis of his 
or her qualifications and experience consistent with a job description adopted 
by the City Council. 

 
(B) Experience. A person appointed to an electrical inspector position must 

demonstrate the following experience:   
 

(1) Have a demonstrated knowledge of the standard materials and methods 
used in the installation of electric equipment. 

 
(2) Be well versed in the approved methods of construction for safety to 

persons and property. 
 

(3) Have a demonstrated knowledge of the statutes of the Illinois relating to 
electrical work and the National Electrical Code. 

 
(4) Have had at least 3 years’ experience as an Electrical Inspector or 5 years 

in the installation of electrical equipment. In lieu of such experience, the 
applicant shall be a graduate in electrical engineering or of a similar 
curriculum of a college or university considered by the Board as having 
suitable requirements for graduation and shall have had two years’ 
practical electrical experience. 

 



  

(C) Certificate. A nationally recognized inspector certification program accepted 
by the Board shall certify the Electrical Inspector within 6 months of 
appointment. The certification program shall specifically qualify the 
inspector in electrical inspections. No person shall be employed as an 
Electrical Inspector unless that person is the holder of an Electrical 
Inspector’s certificate of qualification issued by the Board.  A person 
appointed on an interim basis during the absence of the Electrical Inspector 
or the person serving as the Electrical Inspector on the date this ordinance 
goes into effect shall be issued a special certificate permitting him or her to 
continue to serve as the Electrical Inspector in the City of Mattoon.    

 
(D) Recertification. Electrical inspectors shall be recertified as established by the 

provisions of the applicable certification program.  
 

(E) Revocation and Suspension of Authority. The Public Works Director with 
the consent of the Electrical Board shall have the authority to revoke an 
inspector’s authority to conduct inspections within the City of Mattoon.  

 
L. 80.29. Liability for Damages. Article 80 shall not be construed to affect the 

responsibility or liability of any party owning, designing, operating, controlling or 
installing any electric equipment for damages to persons or property caused by a 
defect therein, nor shall the City of Mattoon or any of its officers or employees be 
held as assuming any such liability by reason of the inspection, re-inspection or 
other examination authorized.  

 
M. 80.35. Effective Date.  Article 80 shall take effect 30 days after its passage and 

publication.  
 

Section 5.  Certificate of Registration. It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in 
the business of "Electrical Contractor" or "Electrical Serviceperson", as herein defined, in 
Mattoon, Illinois, without a Certificate of Registration from the Electrical Board which 
may be obtained in the manner as hereinafter set forth.  No person, firm or corporation 
shall engage in business as an Electrical Contractor or an Electrical Serviceperson unless 
it’s supervising official shall be registered as herein above required. An Electrical 
Contractor or Electrical Serviceperson who has furnished proof of having paid a 
registration fee in any city or village within the State of Illinois having at least the 
minimum requirements including a comparable examination showing knowledge for 
qualification as required herein, must be registered, but shall not be required to pay a 
registration fee for such year in Mattoon, Illinois.   
 
A. Definitions.  Unless otherwise expressly stated the following words and terms shall, 

for the purposes of this code, have the following meanings: 
 

 
Direct light. Light emitted directly from the lamp, off of the reflector or reflector 
diffuser, or through the refractor or diffuser lens, of a luminary.  
 



  

Electrical Contractor. Any person engaged in the business of installing, altering, 
erecting, repairing, or contracting to install, alter, erect or repair electrical equipment 
or wiring to supply light, heat or power, not including radio apparatus or equipment 
for wireless reception of sound or signals, and not including apparatus, conductors 
and other equipment installed for or by public utilities, including common carriers 
that are under the jurisdiction of the Illinois Commerce Commission, for use in their 
operations as public utilities.  The term "Electrical Contractor" includes any person 
who supervises and is responsible for the electrical business. It does not include 
employees employed by such contractors. Nothing in this section shall preclude the 
principal owner of a single family residence from installing and erecting electrical 
equipment and wiring to supply light, heat and power in his personal place of 
residence. 
 
Electrical Board. An examination and registration authority of the City of Mattoon, 
created and established by Article 80.15 of the NEC® as supplemented by Section 3 
of this ordinance.  
 
Electrical Serviceperson. A person authorized by registration to perform or 
supervise limited installation, alteration or repair of electrical equipment or wiring 
for laundry washing and drying appliances, dishwashing appliances, refrigerators, 
freezers, ranges, furnaces, garbage and trash compacting appliances, garage door 
openers, air conditioning units, sump pumps, security, alarm and telecommunication 
systems. A registered electrical contractor shall be required when appliances require 
additional load capacity or new circuits.  
 
Fixture. The assembly that houses the lamp or lamps and can include all or some of 
the following parts: a housing, a mounting bracket or pole socket, a lamp holder, a 
ballast, a reflector or mirror, and/or a refractor or lens.  
 
Flood or spotlight. Any light fixture or lamp that incorporates a reflector or a 
refractor to concentrate the light output into a directed beam in a particular direction.  
 
Fully-shielded (full-cutoff) light. Outdoor light fixtures shielded or constructed so 
that no light rays are emitted by the installed fixture at angles above the horizontal 
plane as certified by a photometric test report.  
 
Glare. means light emitting from a luminary with an intensity great enough to 
reduce a viewer's ability to see, and in extreme cases causing momentary blindness.  
 
Grandfathered luminaries. Luminaries not conforming to this chapter that were in 
place at the time this chapter was voted into effect. When an ordinance 
"grandfathers" a luminary, it means that such already existing outdoor lighting does 
not need to be changed.  
 
Height of luminary. The height of a luminary shall be the vertical distance from the 
ground directly below the centerline of the luminary to the lowest direct-light-



  

emitting part of the luminary.  
 
Indirect light. Direct light that has been reflected or has scattered off of other 
surfaces.  
 
Lamp. The component of a luminary that produces the actual light.  
 
Light trespass. means the shining of light produced by a luminary beyond the 
boundaries of the property on which it is located.  
 
Luminary. This is a complete lighting system, and includes a lamp or lamps and a 
fixture.  
 
Mounting height. Includes the total height of any proposed base combined with the 
height of the light pole and fixture.  
 
Outdoor lighting. The nighttime illumination of an outside area or object by any 
man-made device located outdoors that produces light by any means.  
 
Temporary outdoor lighting. The specific illumination of an outside area of object 
by any man-made device located outdoors that produces light by any means for a 
period of less than seven days, with at least one hundred eighty (180) days passing 
before being used again. 
 

 
B. Examination and Registration Duties of the Electrical Board. The Electrical 

Board is charged with the duty of examining and providing Certificates of 
Registration of persons applying to engage in the business of "Electrical Contractor" 
or "Electrical Serviceperson", as herein defined, in Mattoon, Illinois. The Electrical 
Board shall meet at regular times at an established place not less than two (2) times a 
year, and more often as circumstances may require. Special meetings may be called 
by the Chair, or by any three members of the Board.  The Electrical Board shall 
establish its own rules, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, which 
shall be in printed form.  Forty-eight (48) hour advance notice shall be given to all 
members before a special meeting.  A majority shall constitute a quorum, and a 
majority of members present and voting shall be required to pass any proposition. 
 

C. Application for a Certificate of Registration; Fee. Any person desiring to engage 
in the business of Electrical Contractor or Electrical Serviceperson in the City of 
Mattoon shall make a written application for a certificate of registration on forms 
provided by the Electrical Board.  The application must contain a resume 
documenting the applicant’s work experience for the last five years, names, addresses 
and phone numbers of employers, their business, work performed and supervisors’ 
names. The application must contain a notarized affidavit statement indicating that 
the applicant has been doing electrical work (both installation and maintenance) for at 
least four (4) years. Said application shall be filed with the City Clerk together with 



  

the sum of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for Electrical Contractor Registration or 
fifty dollars ($50.00) for Electrical Serviceperson Registration. If the applicant 
thereafter is issued a Certificate of Registration, the fee paid shall be for the current 
year, and the Certificate shall expire December 31st of each year.  If an applicant is 
denied a certificate of registration, the fee shall be retained for the time and expense 
of reviewing the application and conducting the examination.   
 

D. Examination.  Before a Certificate of Registration shall be issued to an applicant by 
the Electrical Board, the applicant shall, following reasonable advance notice, present 
himself or herself for examination as instructed by the Electrical Board at a time and 
place set by it.  The Electrical Board shall examine such applicant as to his/her 
practical knowledge of the installation and alteration of electrical equipment as set 
forth in the rules and regulations of City’s Electrical Code.  Such examination shall 
be in whole or in part in writing and shall be of practical character, but sufficiently 
strict to thoroughly test the experience and qualifications of the applicant.  The 
applicant must receive a favorable evaluation from the Electrical Board before he or 
she may receive a Certificate of Registration. If the applicant fails the first test, he or 
she must wait 30 days before repeating the examination. If the applicant fails the 
second test, he or she must wait 60 days before repeating the examination.  

 
E. Bond and Liability Insurance Requirements. The Electrical Board shall issue a 

Certificate of Registration as an Electrical Contractor or as an Electrical Serviceman 
to any person who shall have filed a proper application, paid the required fee, 
satisfactorily passed the examination, filed proof of bonding and liability insurance. 
The bond shall be fifty ten thousand dollars ($510,000), issued by a bonding company 
authorized to do business in Illinois that will indemnify and save harmless the City of 
Mattoon from all liability arising out of any work done under or by virtue of any 
permit that may be issued to the registrant by the City.  A Certificate of Insurance 
shall be provided giving evidence that the registrant has insurance coverage in limits 
not less than $1 million per occurrence, covering both personal injury, death and 
property damage exposures.  
 

F. Registration Fee; Duration. The fee for registration as an Electrical Contractor shall 
be one hundred dollars ($100) per annum, or equivalent fee for registration as an 
Electrical Contractor in the Illinois city or village, where the contractor maintains a 
business address, whichever is greater, and shall permit an Electrical Contractor to do 
all phases of electrical wiring within the City of Mattoon.  The fee for registration as 
an Electrical Serviceperson shall be fifty dollars ($50) per annum and shall permit 
him or her to do only such wiring as is stated on his Registration Certificate.  The 
registration fee shall be paid to the Finance Department and deposited in the city’ 
treasury, in advance, with the application.  The Certificate of Registration issued shall 
expire on the 31st day of December of the year in which it is issued; provided that 
any business manager, building or plant engineer or electrician who shall engage in 
electrical installation work or repairs solely upon the premises of his employer shall 
secure a Certificate of Registration without charge, which Certificate shall, however, 
be confined to the premises of his employment and shall not permit engaging in such 



  

work in any place other than upon such premises. Electrical Contractors and 
Electrical Servicemen shall be issued a new Certificate of Registration for the ensuing 
year provided that they have paid the required fee not later than March 31st of the 
ensuing year; they had been issued valid Certificate of Registration for the previous 
calendar year and submit evidence of bonding and insurance.  All other applicants 
shall be examined as provided in Paragraph D hereof. 

 
G. Certificate of Registration Not Transferable or Assignable. A Certificate of 

Registration issued by the Electrical Board shall not be transferable or assignable.   
 
H. Suspension or Revocation. A Certificate of Registration may, after hearing, be 

suspended or revoked by the City Council upon the recommendation of the Electrical 
Board for failure or refusal to comply with this Ordinance or with the City’s 
Electrical Code. 

 
Section 6. Penalties. Any person, firm, or corporation that shall engage in the business of 
Electrical Contractor or Electrical Serviceperson without obtaining a Certificate of 
Registration as herein provided, or fails to comply with the provisions of this ordinance, 
or fails to carry out an order made pursuant to this ordinance, or violates any condition 
attached to a permit or approval or certificate shall be subject to penalties established at 
§10.99 of the City of Mattoon Code of Ordinances. 
 
Section 7.  Ordinance No. 99-5001 of the City of Mattoon entitled “AN ORDINANCE 
REGULATING THE INSTALLATION OF ALL ELECTRICAL WORK IN THE CITY 
OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS AND PROVIDING FOR THE REGISTRATION AND 
LICENSING OF ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS” and all other ordinances or parts of 
ordinance in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  
 
Section 8.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would 
have passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phrase thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clause and 
phrases may be declared unconstitutional.  
 
Section 9.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause this ordinance to be published in 
pamphlet form, to mail it to all electrical contractors and servicemen presently registered 
by the City of Mattoon and to make it available for public inspection in the Mattoon 
Public Library and at the Office of the City Clerk.  
 
Section 10.  This ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders 
and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and 
effect 30 days after its publication in pamphlet form as herein provided.  
 

 



  

Upon motion by Mayor Cline, seconded by Commissioner Hall, adopted this 6th day of 
April, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 6th day of April, 2010  /s/ David W. Cline    
                 David Cline, Mayor    
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien     /s/ J. Preston Owen  
Susan O’Brien, City Clerk                  J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010.  

 
 

Exhibit A 
35.01 (E) 2 

 

SCHEDULE OF ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES 
 
1. Fees for branch circuits shall not exceed the cost of new service fees for the 

locations at the rate of $22.50 per circuit. 
2. For temporary electrical services, $25.00 residential, $50.00 commercial 
3. For extending or otherwise altering a circuit, $10.00 
4. For hooking up a manufactured home or mobile home, $50.00 
5. For work commencing before permit issuance except for emergency situations, 

Standard permit fee doubles 
6. For existing services, or residential rated electrical services as defined by C. 334.10 

of the City of Mattoon Electrical Code:   
 

Service Ampere Rating          Fee                                                         
 
100 ampere service     $50.00   
200 ampere service     $80.00  
400 ampere service             $200.00 
600 ampere service            $300.00 
800 ampere service     $400.00 
1,000 ampere service     $500.00 
1,200 ampere service     $600.00 
1,600 ampere service     $800.00 



  

2,000 ampere service      $1000.00 
2,500 ampere service      $1250.00 
3,000 ampere service      $1500.00 
4,000 ampere service      $2000.00 
5,000 ampere service      $2500.00 
6,000 ampere service      $3000.00 

 
7. For branch service from existing panels:  

 

60 ampere or less      $30.00 
100 ampere      $40.00 
200 ampere      $80.00           
400 ampere      $100.00 
600 ampere      $150.00 
800 ampere      $300.00 
1,000 ampere      $400.00 
 

8. For service ratings other than those appearing above, the fee shall be that of the 
next largest size. All services larger than 6,000 amps shall be computed at the rate 
of Ten Dollars ($10.00) per kW. 

 
9. For new “commercial construction” or above as defined by C. 334.10 (1) of the 

City of Mattoon Electrical Code, the fee will be calculated at $1.00 per amp. 
Services over 6000 amps shall be calculated per item 8.  

 
10. The foregoing fees shall cover all wiring complete with fixtures, devices and all 

associated equipment installed by the permit holder for the wiring of the building, 
structure or premises except subsequently stand-by emergency generators, which 
require a separate permit.  

 
11. For subsequently installed stand-by generators up to 50kW the fee shall be 

$100.00. This fee shall cover all wiring and equipment required for the stand-by 
generator. For generators larger than 50kW the fee will be calculated at .50 cents 
per kW. 

 
12. When additional inspections are necessary, to remedy a reoccurring deficiency or 

error, due to inaccurate or incorrect information, failure to make necessary repairs, 
or faulty installations, a charge of $75.00 per hour shall be made for each such 
inspection.  

 
13. All fees shall be made payable to the “City of Mattoon” and deposited with the 

Finance Department before a permit shall be issued. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 



  

Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
  
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Ordinance 
2010-5294, regulating private medical transportation within the City of Mattoon.  
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council with 
no responders.  Mr. Dan Krchak of Thomas, Mamer & Haughey, LLP, representative of 
Mitchell-Jerdan, requested an amendment to the ordinance to include the transfer or sale 
of the current owners to their spouse, children and children’s spouses.  Council and 
Administrator McLaughlin discussed the request. 
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Gover moved to amend 
Ordinance 2010-5294 Section 4 to include “excluding transfers or sales to immediate 
family members of owners of existing services.  Immediately family is defined as spouse 
or children of owner(s) and their spouses”. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments with no responders. 

 Mayor Cline declared the motion to amend Ordinance 2010-5294 carried by the 
following vote:  YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA 
Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
  
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Ordinance 
2010-5294 as amended.  
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5294 
 

AN ORDINANCE CONTROLLING PRIVATE MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon currently has private ambulance services operating 
within the City; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Statutes (at 65 ILCS 5/11-5-7) specifically give Illinois 
corporate authorities the authority to regulate, license and establish standards for the 
operation of ambulances with the corporate limits; and,  
 
WHEREAS, for the safety of the residents, the efficient operation of the ambulance 
services and the integration of all emergency services within the City, it is in the best 
interest of the City of Mattoon to regulate ambulance services not owned by the City of 
Mattoon; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to regulate the private ambulance services within the City. 



  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon 
as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  Enactment.  Chapter 34 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mattoon is 
hereby enacted as follows: 
 

PRIVATE AMBULANCE SERVICE REGULATIONS 
 
§34.56  DEFINITIONS: As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires, 
the terms specified in this article shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this article. 

AMBULANCE: Any publicly or privately owned vehicle that is specifically 
designed, constructed or modified and equipped, and is intended to be used for, 
and is maintained or operated for the emergency transportation of persons who are 
sick, injured, wounded or otherwise incapacitated or helpless. 

AMBULANCE SERVICE: The operation of an enterprise which has one of its 
purposes the operation, or use on the streets, alleys, or any public way within the 
City of an ambulance which responds to emergency calls for the transportation of 
persons who are reported to be sick, injured, wounded, otherwise incapacitated or 
helpless. 

AMBULANCE SERVICE LOCATION: The location at which ambulances are 
stored, maintained or from which ambulances are dispatched by an ambulance 
service. 

CHANGE IN AMBULANCE: A change by either adding or removing from 
service an ambulance from the list of those previously approved by the Fire Chief. 

FIRE DEPARTMENT: The Fire Department of the City of Mattoon 

MATTOON FIRE DEPARTMENT STANDARDS: The written standards as 
promulgated by the Mattoon Fire Chief. 

POLICE DEPARTMENT: The Police Department of the City of Mattoon. 

§34.57  LICENSE REQUIRED 
 
No person, whether acting as owner, principal, officer, agent, employee, lessee or 
licensee, shall furnish, operate, control, conduct, advertise or otherwise engage in 
ambulance service in the City without a current ambulance service license issued 
pursuant to this Chapter or in violation of the terms and/or conditions of a license issued 
under this Chapter. 
 
§34.58  APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 



  

 
All applications for an ambulance service license shall be filed with the City Clerk on a 
form prescribed and furnished by the City. The following minimum information shall be 
required on the application prior to the issuance of a license: 
 

A.   The applicant shall provide the name and address of the applicant and the 
owner of all ambulances; 
 

B.   The applicant shall provide all names under which the applicant plans to 
conduct business; 
 

C.   The applicant shall provide records showing the training and experience of 
the applicant and that its employees are properly licensed by the State of Illinois; 
 

D.   The applicant shall provide a description of each ambulance to include: 
           

(1) Make; 
(2) Model; 
(3) Year of manufacture; 
(4) Motor and chassis number; 

 (5) Current state license number; 
(6) Length of time ambulance has been in use; 

 (7) Color scheme; 
(8) Insignia; 
(9) Name, monogram or other distinguishing features. 

 
E.   The applicant shall provide the ambulance service locations of any facilities 

which the applicant intends to use as part of its business operation; 
 

F.   The applicant must show proof of meeting the insurance requirements as set 
forth in Section 10. 
 

G.   The applicant must provide copies of all licenses/certifications required by 
the State of Illinois to operate an ambulance service; 
 

H.   The applicant must have sufficient equipment to provide a minimum of two 
ambulances in good operating condition 24 hours per day seven days per week  
 

I.   The applicant shall provide such other information that may be requested by 
the City. 
 

J.   The applicant shall pay a one time application fee of $125.00 
 
K.   At any time a change in the officers of the corporation which is a licensee 

under this division shall be made, such change of officers shall be reported to the City of 
Mattoon within five days after such change.  Any change in the ownership of a licensee 



  

shall be reported to the City at least 30 days prior to the change. The City shall deny the 
ownership change if the proposed owners do not meet the provisions of this Section, the 
provisions of any Ordinance of the City, State, or Federal Law.  A change in ownership 
shall mean the transfer of all or any part of an interest in a sole proprietorship or 
partnership or the transfer of more than five percent of the stock of a private corporation 
or twenty-five percent of the stock of a public corporation. 
 

L.   Each license shall be subject to renewal every April 30th by the City with a fee 
of $75.00. The suspension or revocation of the license shall only be made in accordance 
with the general provisions of Section 34.63 of this Chapter. 
 
§34.59  OPERATIONAL RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 
 A. The following operational rules and regulations shall apply to all licensees: 
 

(1) All ambulance services are required to work within the Sarah Bush 
Lincoln Health Center system and follow the protocols and rules of 
that system   

(2)  All ambulances licensed to operate within the City of Mattoon 
shall be equipped with radios that have ALL MABAS Channel in 
the units and IFERN1, IFERN2, and Interoperable 
Communications with other State and Local agencies.   

(3) All ambulances services must be accepted into the 911 rotation and 
follow the protocols and rules of Coles County 911.  

(4) No ambulance service may roll over more than 20% of 911 
emergency calls assigned to them. 

(5) All ambulances services must provide a well educated, 
professional service that is neat in appearance and attitude. 

(6) All ambulances services must cooperate with all Emergency 
Agencies in the area 

(7) All ambulances services must maintain all equipment to Mattoon 
Fire Department standards 

(8) All ambulance services must notify 911 of the status and location 
of all vehicles at all times. 

(9) All ambulance services must notify Coles County 911 and Mattoon 
Fire Department when the service is down to one rig available to 
respond within the city limits of Mattoon. 

(10) Wile in the normal rotation within Coles County 911, all 
ambulance services within the City of Mattoon are required to have 
two Advanced Life Support (ALS)  ambulances staffed at all 
times.  

(11)  When in use for emergency calls, each ambulance shall have as 
personnel in the ambulance two (2) EMT-P’s on all calls 

(12) An ambulance service licensed to operate within the city limits of 
the City of Mattoon must execute an Agreement for participation 
in the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS), a copy of said 



  

Agreement being supplied to the Fire Chief. 
 

 B. Failure to comply with these rules and regulations shall be considered a 
violation of this section and shall be punishable under Section 34.63. 
 
§34.60  TRAINING REGULATIONS 
 

A.  All ambulance personnel employed by a licensee shall have the following 
minimum training: 
 

(1) Hazardous Materials Operations 
  (2) Technical Rescue Awareness 

(3) Emergency Response to Terrorism; Basic Concepts 
(4) National Incident Management System compliant with certificates 

in IS 100, 200 & 700 
(5) All supervisors must be National Incident Management System 

compliant with certificates in IS 300 & 400 
(6) Driver Training Certification (Fire Service Vehicle Operation or 

Emergency Operators course) 
(7)  All EMS personal are required to have 12 hours annually of side 

by side training with the Mattoon Fire Dept. 
  
 B.  All licensees must certify the training of their personnel annually when 
renewing their license. All licensees must maintain adequate documentation of the above 
required training.  The Fire Chief or his designee, shall have the right to inspect the 
training records to ensure compliance with this section. 
 
§34.61  PROVISION OF SERVICES REGARDLESS OF ABILITY TO PAY OR 
LOCATION 
 

Each licensed ambulance service shall provide emergency service within the City 
without regard to a person's ability to pay for such service or the location of requested 
services. 
 
§34.62  IMMEDIATE EMERGENCY RESPONSE REQUIRED 
 
Each licensed ambulance service shall immediately respond to any emergency call for an 
ambulance directed to that ambulance service and originated by the Police or Fire 
Department or any such Department's official dispatching agency. If the licensed 
ambulance service is not able to immediately respond to the emergency or is not able to 
respond with an appropriate or requested level of service, the licensed ambulance service 
shall immediately report this situation to the agency and shall follow the directions of that 
agency regarding the response 
 
§34.63  REVOCATION OR SUSPENSION OF LICENSE, PENALTY FOR 
VIOLATION  



  

 
A.   Whenever it shall appear to the City of Mattoon that any licensee under the 

provisions of this article has failed to comply and maintain compliance with, or has 
violated any applicable provisions or requirement of this article or of regulations 
promulgated hereunder, the City of Mattoon shall cause a written notice to be served 
upon the licensee in person or by certified mail. Such notice shall inform the licensee that 
they will be given a hearing before the City Administrator within 30 days thereof, but not 
earlier than ten days thereof, at such time and place as it may designate, at which the 
licensee may appear in person or by attorney to participate in a hearing concerning the 
alleged violation and possible penalties therefore. The City Administrator shall have the 
power and authority to suspend for not more than 30 days or revoke such license issued 
under this article, upon evidence of a violation presented at a public hearing as set forth 
in this section. Within three working days after such hearing, the City Administrator shall 
issue a written decision, which shall be promptly transmitted in writing to the licensee to 
whom it refers. 
 
 B.   Upon suspension, revocation or termination of a vehicle licensed hereunder, 
operations as such shall cease with such vehicle, and no person shall permit continued 
operation of such vehicle. Upon suspension, revocation, or termination of an attendant-
driver's license hereunder, such attendant or driver shall cease to drive or attend a vehicle 
and no person shall employ or permit such individual to drive or attend a vehicle. Any 
violation of this article or any other applicable provision of this article shall be punishable 
upon conviction as provided in Section 34.63 of this Chapter. 
 
 C.  Any person violating or failing to comply with the provisions of this Section 
shall be fined not less than $250.00, nor more than $750.00 for each offense. Each day 
that any violation of, or failure to comply with this article is committed or permitted to 
continue shall constitute a separate and distinct offense. 
 
§34.64  FAILURE TO COOPERATE; FALSIFICATION 
 

A.   Failure or refusal of an applicant or licensee to timely deliver any books, 
records or documents, or to give any information relevant to an inspection or 
investigation into an application, or his refusal to appear at any reasonable time and place 
for an inspection, shall constitute grounds for the denial or suspension/revocation of all 
licenses applied for or issued, as the case may be. 
 

B.   No licensee, his agent, officer or employee shall falsify any report required by 
this article or the rules promulgated by the director of health, or remove required 
equipment or supplies from one licensed vehicle which is on a ready-for-service basis to 
another vehicle for the purpose of having the latter pass a required inspection. Such 
actions shall constitute grounds for suspension or revocation of all licenses held by the 
licensee under this article. 
 
§34.65  INSURANCE POLICY PREREQUISITE TO ISSUANCE 
 



  

A.   No license shall be issued under this division nor shall such license be valid 
after issuance, nor shall any vehicle be operated in the city unless there is at all times in 
force and effect insurance coverage, issued by an insurance company licensed to do 
business in the state, for each and every vehicle owned or operated by or for the applicant 
or licensee, providing for injury to or death of individuals in accidents resulting from any 
cause for which the owner of such vehicle would be liable on account of liability imposed 
on them by law, regardless of whether the vehicle was being driven by the owner or his 
agent, with minimum limits of $1,000,000.00 for injury or death per occurrence, and 
against damages to any property of another, under like circumstances, with minimum 
limits of $1,000,000.00 for property damage in any one accident. 
 

B.   Insurance policies required by subsection A. of this section shall be submitted 
to the City of Mattoon for approval prior to the issuance of each license. Satisfactory 
evidence that such insurance is at all times in force and effect shall be furnished to the 
City of Mattoon, in such form as he may specify, by all licensees required to provide such 
insurance under the provisions of this division. 
 

C.   Every insurance policy required under this section shall contain a provision 
for a continuing liability thereunder to the full amount thereof, notwithstanding any 
recovery thereon, that the liability of the insurer shall not be affected by the insolvency or 
the bankruptcy of the insured, and that until the policy is revoked, the insurance company 
will not be relieved from liability on account of non-payment of premium, failure to 
renew license at the end of the year, or any act or omission of the named assured. 
 

D.   Every insurance policy required under this section shall extend for the period 
to be covered by the license applied for and the insurer shall be obliged to give not less 
than ten days' written notice to the City of Mattoon and to the insured before any 
cancellation or termination of the policy earlier than its expiration date. The cancellation 
or other termination of any such policy shall automatically revoke and terminate the 
licenses issued for the vehicles covered by such policy, unless another insurance policy 
complying with the provisions of this section shall be provided and be in effect at the 
time of such cancellation or termination. 
 
§34.66  APPROVAL OF NEW AMBULANCE 
 
Any licensee may request to place a new ambulance in service. Prior to placing the 
ambulance in service, a request shall be submitted to the Fire Chief requesting permission 
to place the ambulance in service. The Fire Chief shall provide the form necessary for the 
request. If the new vehicle is replacing an existing vehicle, then the request shall show 
that the vehicle previously used has become obsolete or has been destroyed, sold or 
traded, and that such vehicle is no longer to be used for the purpose contemplated by this 
division. The vehicle to be placed in service shall conform with all the requirements of 
this article as upon original licensing. 
 
§34.67  MAINTENANCE AND CONTENTS OF RECORDS, RIGHT TO INSPECT 
OPERATIONAL LOCATIONS AND AMBULANCES 



  

 
A.   Each ambulance company that receives licensee shall maintain accurate 

records for all calls received through the central medical emergency dispatch system. 
Such records shall include calls for service received from within the city, the number of 
canceled calls, the identification number of the ambulance and names of the attendants 
responding and the response time from when the call is received by the permit tee until 
the arrival at the scene, as well as the time of departure from the scene and arrival at a 
hospital or other destination, and whether or not emergency warning devices were used. 
Records shall also be maintained concerning the availability for each ambulance for 
service. 
 

B.   The City of Mattoon shall have the right to inspect at any time during normal 
business hours records of a ambulance company which relate to the operation of the 
company within the city or a fire protection district serviced by the Mattoon Fire 
Department however, that the Fire Chief shall not be allowed to inspect those portion of 
records which are prohibited from inspection by Federal or State law. Should the 
ambulance service refuse to allow inspection of a portion of a record due to a Federal or 
State law, the Fire Chief may require that the ambulance service specify the particular 
law which restricts inspection and shall be allowed to inspect those portions of the 
records that are not prohibited by law from disclosure. 

C.  The Fire Chief shall have the right to inspect all operational locations and 
ambulances proposed to be used or used by a licensed ambulance service at any 
reasonable time. 

 
§34.68 OBEDIENCE TO TRAFFIC LAWS; EXCEPTION 
 

A.   No person shall operate an ambulance in a manner not conforming to the 
provisions of the motor vehicle laws and regulations of the State of Illinois or of the City 
as such provisions apply to motor vehicles in general, except as hereinafter set forth; and, 
unless the person operating the ambulance shall be either responding to a bona fide 
emergency call or specifically directed by a licensed physician to disregard traffic laws in 
operating the ambulance during and for the purpose of a specific trip or journey that is 
involved. 
 

B.   Subject to the provisions of subsection (a) above the driver of an ambulance 
may: 
 

(1)   Park or stand, irrespective of the otherwise applicable provisions of 
law, ordinance, or regulation; 

 
(2)   Proceeds past a red or stop signal or stop sign, but only after slowing 
down as may be necessary for safe operation; 

 
(3)   Exceed the maximum speed limits permitted by law, ordinance, or 
regulation so long as he does not endanger life or property; and 



  

 
(4)   Disregard laws, ordinances, or regulations governing direction or 
movement or turning in specified directions. 

 
C.   The exemptions herein granted shall apply only when such ambulance is 

making use of audible and visual signals meeting the requirements of law, ordinance, or 
regulation. 
 

D.  The foregoing provisions shall not relieve the driver of an ambulance from the 
duty to drive with due regard for the safety of all persons, nor shall such provisions 
protect the driver from the consequences of his reckless disregard for the safety of others. 
 
§34.69  MONITORING EMERGENCY DISPATCH CALLS 

It shall be unlawful for any ambulance service to respond in or through the City to a call 
for an ambulance made by an organized Police or Fire Department or any such 
Department’s official dispatching agency unless a specific request is directed to the 
ambulance service by the organized Police or Fire Department or any such Department’s 
official dispatching agency. 

Section 3.  This ordinance shall be effective upon the day of its adoption and approval by 
the City Council. The Clerk is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet 
form. 
 
Section 4.  All ambulances services operating within the city limits of Mattoon and 
having a ambulance service location within the city limits of Mattoon (hereinafter 
existing services) as of the date of the passage of this ordinance are exempt from these 
regulations so long as their ownership does not change. Any change in ownership of the 
existing services after the approval of this ordinance will trigger the requirement of full 
compliance with all of these regulations, excluding transfers or sales to immediate family 
members of owners of existing services.  Immediate family is defined as spouse or 
children of owner(s) and their spouses.  
 
Section 5.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Hall, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 6th 
day of April, 2010 by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this  6th day of  April, 2010. 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 



  

      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on  April 7, 2010. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments with no responders.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline. 
 
 Commissioner Gover moved to adopt Ordinance 2010-5295, annexing Lot One 
(1) in Country Club Trace, a subdivision in Coles County, Illinois to the City of Mattoon.  
Eric L. & Juliette M. Haslett – Petitioners   
 
 Ordinance 2010-5295 died for lack of second.  
 
 Commissioner Gover moved to adopt Ordinance 2010-5296, annexing Lot Two 
(2) in Country Club Trace, a subdivision in Coles County, Illinois to the City of Mattoon.  
David W. & Vicki Cline – Petitioners   
 
 Ordinance 2010-5296 died for lack of second.  
 
 Mayor Cline moved to adopt Ordinance 2010-5297, annexing Lot Nine (9) in 
Rolling Green Subdivision, Phase 5, Coles County, Illinois to the City of Mattoon.  
Robert E. & Joy I. Koelling - Petitioners    
 
 Ordinance 2010-5297 died for lack of second.  
 
 Mayor Cline moved to adopt Ordinance 2010-5298, annexing Lot Eleven (11) in 
Rolling Green Subdivision, Phase 5, Coles County, Illinois to the City of Mattoon.  
Phillip M. & Jean A. Becker – Petitioners    
 
 Ordinance 2010-5298 died for lack of second.  
 
 Mayor Cline moved to adopt Ordinance 2010-5299, annexing Lot One (1) in 
Block 2 in Country Manor Subdivision, Lafayette Township, Coles County, Illinois to the 
City of Mattoon.  Ryan R. & Victoria E. Molzen – Petitioners  
  
 Ordinance 2010-5299 died for lack of second.  
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Special Ordinance 



  

2010-1384, approving the rezoning of 1600 Piatt Avenue; 1604 Piatt Avenue; 1612 Piatt 
Avenue; 817 N. 16th Street; Mattoon, Illinois from R-1 (Single  Family Residence) to 
C-4 (General Commercial District). James A. & Shirley Campbell; Michael & Tammy 
Frost; and Amos Pedigo – Petitioners  [Planning Commission – disapproved; ZBA – 
approved] 
 
  Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public.  Administrator McLaughlin expressed concerns of the rezoning and lack of 
discussion by the Zoning Board of Appeals.  Council and Coordinator Gill discussed the 
future of the properties.  Mr. Jim Campbell proposed to upgrade the road. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion denied by the following vote:  NAY 
Commissioner Ervin, NAY Commissioner Gover, NAY Commissioner Hall, NAY 
Commissioner Rankin, NAY Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Rankin seconded by Commissioner Gover moved to adopt Special 
Ordinance 2010-1385, declaring two pavilions at Lake Paradise as surplus and no longer 
necessary for the use of the municipality; and authorizing the management staff to 
negotiate their removal by Wabash Fire District.  
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2010-1385 
 

A SPECIAL ORDINANCE DECLARING TWO PAVILIONS AT LAKE 
PARADISE AS NO LONGER NECESSARY OR REQUIRED FOR USE OF THE 

MUNICIPALITY AND AUTHORIZING THE MANAGEMENT STAFF TO 
NEGOTIATE THEIR REMOVAL 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon has removed the restrooms and park areas at Lake 
Paradise; and 
 
WHEREAS, the pavilions remain in an area that is no longer designed for their use; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Wabash Fire Protection District has petitioned the City for permission 
to remove the east structure. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Pursuant to procedures prescribed by state statute (65 ILCS 5/11-76-4.1), a 
finding is hereby made by the City Council that the pavilions at Lake Paradise are no 
longer necessary or required for the use of the municipality.  
 
Section 2. The management staff of the municipality is hereby authorized to negotiate for 
the removal of said property. 



  

  
Section 3. The city clerk is directed to publish a copy of this ordinance at the first 
opportunity following its adoption and approval by the City Council.  
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Rankin, seconded by Commissioner Gover, adopted this 
_6th day of April call vote, as follows: 
 
NAYS (Names):  Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,  
   Mayor Cline 
AYES (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None. 
 
Approved this  6th day of April 2010.  
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor   
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments and questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to adopt Special Ordinance 
2010-1386, authorizing the sale of surplus real estate owned by the municipality adjacent 
to the Water Treatment Plant to Land Trust #2600-9381-323 on behalf of William 
Whitworth in the amount of $35,212.50; and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign all documents necessary to execute the sale.   
 

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2010-1386 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS REAL ESTATE 
OWNED BY THE MUNICIPALITY ADJACENT TO THE WATER 



  

TREATMENT PLANT 
 

WHEREAS, state statute (65 ILCS 5/11-76-4.1) enables the corporate authorities to 
accept any contract proposal determined by them to be in the best interest of the 
municipality by a vote of two-thirds of the corporate authorities then holding office, but 
in no event at a price less than 80% of the appraised value; and 
 
WHEREAS, by Resolution 2010 - 2804, adopted March 2, 2010, the City Council made 
a finding that the real estate owned by the municipality that is the subject of this 
ordinance is no longer necessary or required for the use of the municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. William Whitworth on behalf of Land Trust #2600-9381-323 has made 
an offer to purchase the property for $7,500 per acre for a total purchase price of 
$35,212.50; and 
 
WHEREAS, Land Trust #2600-9381-323 owns property adjacent to property being sold; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, Stanley Gordon of Gordon Appraisal Service Inc. determined $5,963.79 per 
acre or $28,000.00 for the entire parcel was the fair market value of the real estate as of 
March 4, 2010.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The City Attorney is authorized to prepare closing documents and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are authorized to sign documents conveying a warranty deed to the real 
estate described in Section 2 of this ordinance to Land Trust #2600-9381-323, subject to 
a payment of $35,212.50. The purchase price will be due at closing. The City of Mattoon 
shall assume financial responsibility for the costs of a $35,212.50 title insurance policy 
issued by Crites Title Company that will insure Buyer that the municipality has sufficient 
title to sell this real property;  
 
Section 2. The real estate to be conveyed pursuant to this ordinance is legally described 
as: 
 

A part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 8, Township 11 North, Range 7 
East of the Third Principal Meridian more particularly described as 
follows: 
 
Commencing at an iron pin marking the southeast corner of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section 8, Township 11 North, Range 7 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian (recorded as Monument Record Book 1, Page 77), 
Coles County, Illinois; thence azimuth 269 degrees 30 minutes 06 seconds 
(all azimuths are referenced to the Illinois State Plane Coordinate System 
East Zone Datum of 1983), along the south line of said Northeast Quarter, 



  

854.01 feet to an iron pin; thence azimuth 00 degrees 46 minutes 21 
seconds, 285.71 feet to an existing fence post being the Point of 
Beginning; thence continue azimuth 00 degrees 46 minutes 21 seconds, 
821.74 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140; thence azimuth 89 degrees 36 
minutes 37 seconds, 248.53 feet to an iron pin 
with cap #3140; thence azimuth 180 degrees 46 minutes 21 seconds, 
824.40 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140; thence azimuth 270 degrees 13 
minutes 26 seconds, 248.49 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 
4.695 acres, more or less, all situated in Paradise Township, Coles County, 
Illinois. 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 
approval by the City Council.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Mayor Cline, seconded by Commissioner Ervin, adopted this 6th day of 
April, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin, 
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 6th day of April, 2010.  
 
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor   
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 



  

 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Gover moved to adopt Resolution 2010-
2807, opposing reduction of local government distributive fund (LGDF).  
 

 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-2807 
 

A RESOLUTION OPPOSING 
REDUCTION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT DISTRIBUTIVE FUND 

 
 

WHEREAS, Illinois municipalities are currently experiencing a tremendous 
decline in revenues during this great recession; and 

 
WHEREAS, municipalities are in fiscal turmoil and unable to provide vital 

services to citizens including police, fire, streets, sewers and water; and to fill the 
potholes left by winter; and 

 
WHEREAS, Illinois taxpayers live in municipalities throughout the state and 

contribute income tax of which 90% goes to the state and 10% goes to municipal 
services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Governor Quinn proposed in his March 10, 2010 budget address to 

withhold 30% of this shared revenue keeping $300 million of that for the state budget; 
and 

  
WHEREAS, this proposed withholding of municipal revenue will cost each 

municipality $23.10 per resident, which could be used to provide services the local 
taxpayer needs; and  

 
WHEREAS, this reduction compounds on the state’s late payments of Local 

Government Distributive Fund amounts to municipalities by four months causing 
shortfalls in meeting municipal bills; and 

 
WHEREAS, local taxpayers deserve to have these tax dollars returned to their 

communities to pay for local community employees, to provide local community services 
and to not see local tax increases; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF MATTOON, 

ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1:  The City of Mattoon, Illinois strongly opposes any reduction of the Local 
Government Distributive Fund due municipalities and demands the 10% be kept whole. 
 



  

SECTION 2:  The City of Mattoon, Illinois requests every Senator and Representative to 
reject this diminution of desperately needed revenue due municipalities. 
 
SECTION 3:  The City of Mattoon, Illinois will be financially impacted $422,522.10 
and will be forced to make local budget cuts and reductions of services. 
 
SECTION 4:  The Clerk is hereby directed to send copies of this Resolution to Governor 
Quinn, the legislative leaders of both chambers of the Illinois General Assembly and 
members representing this municipality. 
 
Upon motion by Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Gover, adopted this 6th day of 
April, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,  
   Mayor Cline 
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 6th day of April, 2010.  
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the council and 
Public with no responders. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Gover moved to adopt Resolution 2010-
2808, accepting the bid from Gary Kuhns and Jason Taylor in the amount of $404,190 for 
the purchase of a certain parcel of agricultural land located south of the City Water 
Treatment Plant, and authorizing the Mayor to sign all documents necessary to execute 
the sale.  (former proposed  public golf course area) 
 



  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-2808 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SALE OF A CERTAIN PARCEL OF 
AGRICULTURAL LAND LOCATED SOUTH OF THE CITY 

 
WHEREAS, in the 1960’s the City of Mattoon purchased agricultural land south of the 
Water Treatment Plant at Lake Paradise; and, 
 
WHEREAS, since the 1960’s the City has not used this ground for anything other than 
agricultural purposes; and, 
 
WHEREAS, by Resolution 2010 – 2804 passed on a March 2, 2010 the City Council 
declared this parcel as surplus and directed a public auction be held; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on March 31, 2010 a public auction was held; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the highest and best bid was submitted by Gary Kuhns & Jason Taylor in 
the amount of $4,500.00 per acre for a total sale price of $ 404,190; and, 
 
WHEREAS, an appraisal has been performed by Stanley Gordon of Gordon Appraisal 
Service, Inc. and he has determined $4,226 is his opinion of the fair market value of the 
real estate. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The City Attorney is authorized to prepare closing documents and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are authorized to sign documents conveying a warranty deed to the real 
estate described in Section 2 of this ordinance to Gary Kuhns and Jason Taylor, subject to 
a payment of $ 404,190, less normal and customary prorations and closing costs. The 
purchase price will be due at closing. The City of Mattoon shall assume financial 
responsibility for the costs of a $404,190 title insurance policy issued by Crites Title 
Company that will insure Buyer that the municipality has sufficient title to sell this real 
property; 
 
Section 2. The real estate to be conveyed pursuant to this ordinance is legally described 
as: 
 

A part of Section 8 and a part of Section 9 all in Township 11 North, 
Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian more particularly described 
as follows: 
 
Commencing at a PK nail marking the northeast corner of the Northwest 



  

Quarter of Section 9, Township 11 North, Range 7 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian (recorded as Monument Record Book 1, Page 282), 
Coles County, Illinois; thence azimuth 179 degrees 58 minutes 20 seconds 
(all azimuths are referenced to the Illinois State Plane Coordinate System 
East Zone Datum of 1983), along the east line of said Northwest Quarter, 
975.37 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence continue azimuth 179 
degrees 58 minutes 20 seconds, 883.16 feet along said east line to an iron 
pin with cap #3140; thence azimuth 270 degrees 00 minutes 12 seconds, 
1998.96 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140; thence azimuth 180 degrees 02 
minutes 12 seconds, 402.81 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140; thence 
azimuth 270 degrees 00 minutes 12 seconds, 146.25 feet to an iron pin 
with cap #3140; thence azimuth 180 degrees 42 minutes 32 seconds, 
127.05 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140; thence azimuth 270 degrees 13 
minutes 26 seconds, 1120.70 feet along the established line to an iron pin 
with cap #3140; thence azimuth 00 degrees 46 minutes 21 seconds, 824.40 
feet to an iron pin with cap #3140; thence azimuth 01 degree 05 minutes 
11 seconds, 163.53 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140 marking the 
southeast corner of Lot 99 of Lake Paradise Subdivision as recorded 
August 19, 2005 in Plat Book 5, Page 204, as Document Number 0683152 
at the Coles County Clerk and Recorder's Office; thence azimuth 91 
degrees 05 minutes 11 seconds, 30.00 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140 
marking the southwest corner of Lot 98 of said Lake Paradise Subdivision; 
thence azimuth 85 degrees 40 minutes 01 second, 213.79 feet to an iron 
pin with cap #3140 marking the southeast corner of Lot 98 of said Lake 
Paradise Subdivision; thence azimuth 358 degrees 11 minutes 54 seconds, 
20.34 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140 marking the southwest corner of 
Outlot 4 of said Lake Paradise Subdivision; thence azimuth 89 degrees 36 
minutes 38 seconds, 346.23 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140 marking the 
southeast corner of Outlot 4 of said Lake Paradise Subdivision; thence 
azimuth 00 degrees 03 minutes 30 seconds, 535.18 feet along the east line 
of said Outlot 4 to an iron pin with cap #3140 in the south line of Lot 81 of 
said Lake Paradise Subdivision; thence azimuth 82 degrees 35 minutes 25 
seconds, 55.37 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140 marking the southeast 
corner of Lot 81 of said Lake Paradise Subdivision; thence azimuth 354 
degrees 44 minutes 43 seconds, 308.77 feet along the east line of said Lot 
81 to an iron pin with cap #3140 in the southerly right-of-way line of East 
Lake Paradise Road; thence easterly 105.62 feet along said southerly 
right-of-way line being a nontangential curve to the right, having a radius 
of 370.00 feet, chord azimuth 82 degrees 11 minutes 43 seconds, 105.26 
feet to an iron pin with cap #3140; thence easterly 275.28 feet along said 
southerly right-of-way line being a tangential curve to the left, having a 
radius of 1430.00 feet, chord azimuth 84 degrees 51 minutes 29 seconds, 
274.86 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140 in the west line of Lot 80 of said 
Lake Paradise Subdivision; thence azimuth 179 degrees 03 minutes 40 
seconds, 50.00 feet along said west line to an iron pin with cap #3140 
marking the southwest corner of said Lot 80; thence azimuth 97 degrees 



  

45 minutes 29 seconds, 130.51 feet along the south line of said Lot 80 to 
an iron pin with cap #3140; thence azimuth 88 degrees 06 minutes 18 
seconds, 153.00 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140 marking the southeast 
corner of Lot 79 of said Lake Paradise Subdivision; thence azimuth 80 
degrees 21 minutes 24 seconds, 216.00 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140 
marking the southeast corner of Lot 76 of said Lake Paradise Subdivision; 
thence azimuth 89 degrees 02 minutes 04 seconds, 431.33 feet to an iron 
pin with cap #3140 marking the southeast corner of Lot 73 of said Lake 
Paradise Subdivision; thence azimuth 180 degrees 00 minutes 53 seconds, 
493.09 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140; thence azimuth 88 degrees 49 
minutes 44 seconds, 923.65 feet to an iron pin with cap #3140; thence 
azimuth 91 degrees 49 minutes 15 seconds,  
 
 
408.74 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 89.820 acres, more or 
less, all situated in Paradise Township, Coles County, Illinois. 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 
approval by the City Council.  
 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by Mayor Cline, seconded by Commissioner Gover, adopted this 6th day of 
April, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   Commissioner Ervin, Commissioner Gover,  
   Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Rankin,     
   Mayor Cline       
NAYS (Names):  None 
ABSENT (Names): None 
 
Approved this 6th day of April, 2010.  
 
      /s/ David W. Cline 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
/s/ Susan J. O’Brien    /s/ J. Preston Owen 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on April 7, 2010. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders. 



  

 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Rankin seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to approve 
Council Decision Request 2010-1069, awarding the 2010 Water Treatment Plant 
chemical bids as shown:   
              
  General Chemical  Alum   $36,352.00; 
  Ethanol Products  CO2   $9,200.00; 
  Hawkins Chemical  Carbon   $24,988.00; 
  SNF Polydyne, Inc.  Polymer  $18,200.00; 
  Brenntag   Chlorine  $5,655.00; 
  Alexander Chemical   Fluoride  $4,899.00; 
  GAC Chemical Corp.   Ammonia  $16,000.00; 
  Shannon Chemical  Polyphosphate blend $16,525.00. 
 
 Commissioner Rankin seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to amend the 
2010 Water Treatment Plant chemical bid for Fluoride to Hawkins Chemical in the 
amount of $12,900. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion to amend the 2010 Water Treatment Plant 
chemical bid for Fluoride to Hawkins Chemical in the amount of $12,900 carried by the 
following vote:  YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA 
Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Rankin seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to approve the 
amended CDR 2010-1069 awarding the 2010 Water Treatment Plant chemical bids as 
amended:   
              
  General Chemical  Alum    $36,352.00; 
  Ethanol Products  CO2    $9,200.00; 
  Hawkins Chemical  Carbon    $18,200.00; 
  Brenntag   Chlorine   $5,655.00; 

 Hawkins Chemical   Fluoride   $12,900.00; 
  GAC Chemical Corp.   Ammonia   $16,000.00; 
  Shannon Chemical  Polyphosphate blend  $16,525.00. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion to approve CDR 2010-1069 as amended carried 
by the following vote:  YEA Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA 
Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
  
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to approve Council 
Decision Request 2010-1070, authorizing the Mattoon Fire Department to upgrade their 
level of Emergency Medical Care to Advanced Life Support (ALS). This change will 



  

take affect pending the completion of the proper paperwork and inspections.  
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public.  Mr. Dave Krchak reviewed the background of the City’s ambulance purchase 
two years ago, and insisted the City’s ambulance would be in competition with Mitchell-
Jerdan.  Mr. Fred Reynolds stated the City was not previously reducing personnel, and 
voiced his opinion in favor of the City’s ambulance service.  Mr. Michael Smith, Mr. 
Robby Ashley, Mr. Dustin Rhoads, Ms. Casey Schmidt voiced their opinions against the 
Fire Department’s ALS, stating private service personnel would be reduced.    
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Ervin seconded by Commissioner Rankin moved to approve 
Council Decision Request 2010-1071, authorizing the promotion of Tim Daily to the 
Public Works Superintendent position effective upon the retirement of Chris Hartbank.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Rankin seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to approve 
Council Decision Request 2010-1072, authorizing the promotion of David Basham to the 
Water Treatment Plant Superintendent position effective upon the retirement of Jim 
Lang.  
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders.  
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Commissioner Rankin seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to approve 
Council Decision Request 2010-1073, authorizing the promotion of Glen Sloan to the 
Waste Water Treatment Plant Superintendent position effective upon the retirement of 
Rick Pinnell. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments or questions from the Council and 
Public with no responders. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 



  

 Mayor Cline seconded by Commissioner Ervin moved to recess to closed session 
at 7:28 p.m. pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act the purpose of considering 
collective negotiating matters (5 ILCS 120(2)(c)(2)). 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
 Council reconvened at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Gover moved to adjourned at 
7:40 p.m. 
 
 Mayor Cline opened the floor for comments with no responders. 
 
 Mayor Cline declared the motion carried by the following vote:  YEA 
Commissioner Ervin, YEA Commissioner Gover, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA 
Commissioner Rankin, YEA Mayor Cline.  
 
      
         /s/ Susan J. O’Brien  
         City Clerk  
      
 
  
 



  

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE 



Alarm Date Between {03/01/2010} And 
{03/31/2010} 

City of Mattoon

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

1 Fire
100 Fire, Other 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
1110 Fire in structure, structure not involved 2 0.82% $0   0.00%
1111 Structure Fire 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
118 Trash or rubbish fire, contained 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
1430 Burning Leaves 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
150 Outside rubbish fire, Other 2 0.82% $0   0.00%
154 Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire 1 0.41% $0   0.00%

9 3.69% $0 0.00%

3 Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident
300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 6 2.46% $0   0.00%
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 61 25.00% $0   0.00%
3110 Assist EMS crew, other 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
321 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury114 46.72% $0   0.00%
3210 Lifeline call, waver of service signed 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
3211 Motor Vehicle Collision 2 0.82% $0   0.00%
3220 Vehicle accident, waivers signed 4 1.64% $0   0.00%
323 Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 2 0.82% $0   0.00%
381 Rescue or EMS standby 1 0.41% $0   0.00%

192 78.69% $0 0.00%

4 Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
411 Gasoline or other flammable liquid spill 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
412 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 2 0.82% $0   0.00%
424 Carbon monoxide incident 7 2.87% $0   0.00%

10 4.10% $0 0.00%

5 Service Call
522 Water or steam leak 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
5310 Smoke or odor investigation, no problem found 4 1.64% $0   0.00%
5311 Smoke or odor investigation 2 0.82% $0   0.00%
553 Public service 2 0.82% $0   0.00%
5531 Inspection Detail 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
5532 Public Education Detail 4 1.64% $0   0.00%
5533 Residential Alarm Check 2 0.82% $0   0.00%

16 6.56% $0 0.00%

6 Good Intent Call
04/01/2010 10:44 1Page



Alarm Date Between {03/01/2010} And 
{03/31/2010} 

City of Mattoon

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

6 Good Intent Call
6002 Smoke from fireplace mistaken for structure fire1 0.41% $0   0.00%
611 Dispatched & cancelled en route 2 0.82% $0   0.00%
622 No Incident found on arrival at dispatch address 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
652 Steam, vapor, fog or dust thought to be smoke 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
661 EMS call, party transported by non-fire agency 1 0.41% $0   0.00%

8 3.28% $0 0.00%

7 False Alarm & False Call
700 False alarm or false call, Other 2 0.82% $0   0.00%
710 Malicious, mischievous false call, Other 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 3 1.23% $0   0.00%
744 Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.41% $0   0.00%
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 2 0.82% $0   0.00%

9 3.69% $0 0.00%

Total Incident Count: 244 Total Est Loss: $0

04/01/2010 10:44 2Page



  

BILLS & PAYROLL: 
 
BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE 



CITY OF MATTOON

4-16-10 PAYROLL

3-27-10/4-9-10

G/L ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME AMOUNT

CITY COUNCIL 110 5110-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,476.91$        

CITY CLERK 110 5120-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,961.62$        

110 5120-113 OVERTIME 28.98$             

110 5120-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 270.26$           

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 110 5130-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,828.84$        

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 110 5150-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 781.91$           

110 5150-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 432.54$           

LEGAL SERVICES 110 5160-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 600.78$           

110 5160-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 734.30$           

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS 110 5170-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,455.46$        

110 5170-114 COMPENSATED ABSCENSES 1,468.92$        

PLANNING & ZONING 110 5180-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 931.53$           

110 5180-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 96.90$             

POLICE ADMINISTRATION 110 5211-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,870.70$      

110 5211-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 16,007.83$      

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 110 5212-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 8,245.82$        

110 5212-113 OVERTIME 980.52$           

PATROL 110 5213-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 77,930.14$      

110 5213-113 OVERTIME 4,147.13$        

110 5213-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 11,298.03$      

K-9 SERVICE 110 5214-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,195.05$        

POLICE RECORDS 110 5216-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 6,169.46$        

TRAFFIC CONTROL 110 5220-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 128.00$           

SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM 110 5227-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,053.47$        

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN 110 5241-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 69,804.20$      

110 5241-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 5,668.08$        

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN 110 5261-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,912.56$        

110 5261-113 OVERTIME 28.99$             

110 5261-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 401.29$           

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN 110 5310-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,727.54$        

110 5310-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 391.57$           

STREETS 110 5320-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 12,991.31$      

110 5320-113 OVERTIME 385.71$           

110 5320-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 5,592.15$        

YARD WASTE COLLECTION 110 5335-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,537.83$        

110 5335-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 448.00$           

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 110 5370-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,062.18$        

110 5370-112 SALARIES OF TEMP. EMPLOYEES 1,346.24$        

110 5370-113 OVERTIME 25.24$             

110 5370-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 52.88$             

CUSTODIAL SERVICES 110 5381-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,227.90$        

110 5381-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 216.69$           

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 110 5390-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,290.01$        

110 5390-113 OVERTIME 147.96$           

110 5390-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 197.28$           

PARK ADMINISTRATION 110 5511-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 7,407.46$        

110 5511-113 OVERTIME 97.98$             



CITY OF MATTOON

4-16-10 PAYROLL

3-27-10/4-9-10
LAKE ADMINISTRATION 110 5512-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,022.34$        

110 5512-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 926.50$           

110 5512-113 OVERTIME 164.03$           

*** FUND 110 TOTALS *** 282,169.02$    

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION 122 5653-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 1,624.98$        

122 5653-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 93.50$             

122 5653-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 41.67$             

*** FUND 122 TOTALS *** 1,760.15$        

WATER TREATMENT PLANT 211 5353-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,710.30$      

211 5353-113 OVERTIME 601.14$           

211 5353-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,740.37$        

WATER DISTRIBUTION 211 5354-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 7,827.46$        

211 5354-113 OVERTIME 279.73$           

211 5354-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,865.35$        

WATER DISTRIBUTION 211 5355-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 3,770.11$        

211 5355-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 551.45$           

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 211 5356-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,644.66$        

211 5356-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 281.15$           

*** FUND 211 TOTALS *** 31,271.72$      

SANITARY SWR MTCE & CLEAN 212 5342-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,667.14$        

212 5342-113 OVERTIME 104.71$           

212 5342-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 4,355.51$        

WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT 212 5344-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 11,855.95$      

212 5344-113 OVERTIME 326.35$           

212 5344-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,404.92$        

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION 212 5345-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 4,033.34$        

212 5345-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 551.47$           

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 212 5346-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,644.65$        

212 5346-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 281.15$           

*** FUND 212 TOTALS *** 30,225.19$      

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS 213 5361-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES 2,563.06$        

213 5361-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES 176.00$           

213 5361-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 218.12$           

*** FUND 213 TOTALS *** 2,957.18$        

*** GRAND TOTALS *** 348,383.26$    



CITY OF MATTOON

4-16-10 PAYROLL

3-27-10/4-9-10

*** PAY CODE TOTALS ***

PAY CODE NO OF TIMES              HOURS AMOUNT

REGULAR PAY 30 1,537.00 31,591.08$      

HOL PAY-REG 63 550.4 12,514.76$      

VACATION PAY 32 513.5 13,267.83$      

SALARY PAY 132 10,423.66 237,482.09$    

VACATION PAY 4 144 3,220.21$        

SHIFT PAY 4 160 112.00$           

HOL PAY-OT 3 26 919.51$           

PEHP 34 34 425.00$           

SICK PAY-AFS 10 68 1,483.10$        

OVERTIME PAY 28 188 7,096.47$        

SHIFT PAY 4 241 144.60$           

COMP EARNED 1 3 -$                 

SICK-NON UNI 7 44.25 962.29$           

COMP PAID 4 34.5 790.61$           

SICK PAY OUT 1 480 12,034.08$      

VAC PAY OUT 7 363.25 8,805.65$        

STR OT POLIC 2 9 222.00$           

SEVERANCE 2 2 16,182.36$      

PER PAY OUT 6 42 991.16$           

VEHICLE EXP 1 1 138.46$           



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 110  CITY COUNCIL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000871 RANDY ERVIN            I-201004142907       110 5110-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL CELL REIMB     102112          50.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000871  TOTALS             50.00

 

01-002244 CHRIS RANKIN           I-201004142909       110 5110-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL CELL REIMB     102168          50.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002244  TOTALS             50.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 110   CITY COUNCIL             TOTAL:         100.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-010900 D TO Z SPORTS          I-18392              110 5120-519        OTHER PROFESS: RETIREMENT CLOCK-WAR 102101          60.00

01-010900 D TO Z SPORTS          I-18411              110 5120-519        OTHER PROFESS: RETIREMENT CLOCK-ODE 102101          60.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-010900  TOTALS            120.00

 

01-021348 HERALD & REVIEW        I-20296897           110 5120-540        ADVERTISING  : SALE OF AGRICULTURAL 102128         340.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021348  TOTALS            340.50

 

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-201003312811       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: 3-23/29 CITY CLERK H 000000          29.00

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-201004142900       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: 4-2/12 CITY CLERK HU 000000         101.25

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-201004142924       110 5120-802        HUNTING/FISHI: 3-30/4-5 CITY CLERK  000000         173.75

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-024060  TOTALS            304.00

 

01-024075 IL DEPT OF PUBLIC HEAL I-201004122883       110 5120-801        VITAL RECORDS: MARCH VR FEES        102046         594.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-024075  TOTALS            594.00

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-047016261          110 5120-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER URR-895482    102194         323.98

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-049003  TOTALS            323.98

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 120   CITY CLERK               TOTAL:       1,682.48

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002412 SPRINT                 I-201004092881       110 5130-565        CELLULAR PHON: 630-885-2716         102042         181.75

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002412  TOTALS            181.75

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 130  CITY ADMINISTRATOR

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-B572280001         110 5130-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: PW ADMIN SUPPLIES    102179          50.28

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043522  TOTALS             50.28

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 130   CITY ADMINISTRATOR       TOTAL:         232.03

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-105107             110 5150-576        SECURITY SERV: SECURITY             102104         300.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012025  TOTALS            300.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:         300.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-037951 J. PRESTON OWEN        I-201004142908       110 5160-565        CELLULAR TELE: APRIL CELL REIMB     102160         100.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037951  TOTALS            100.00

 

01-047000 WEST PAYMENT CENTER    I-820304274          110 5160-340        BOOKS & PERIO: ON LINE RESEARCH 3/1 102192         453.73

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-047000  TOTALS            453.73

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 160   LEGAL SERVICES           TOTAL:         553.73

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142952       110 5170-854        WIDE AREA NET: 101-5520             102095          88.08

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142953       110 5170-854        WIDE AREA NET: 101-0937             102095          88.08

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            176.16

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 170   COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS    TOTAL:         176.16

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000143 COLES CO 911           I-10-3110-15         110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: 2010 ANNUAL DISPATCH 102089       1,620.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000143  TOTALS          1,620.00

 

01-005600 CATER-VEND             I-204694             110 5211-579        MISC OTHER PU: COFFEE,SUGAR,CREAMER 102082         120.79

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-005600  TOTALS            120.79

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     3

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 211  POLICE ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-020800 HAROLD'S CLEANERS      I-165030             110 5211-573        LAUNDRY SERVI: CLEAN BLANKETS       102125          24.00

01-020800 HAROLD'S CLEANERS      I-166126             110 5211-573        LAUNDRY SERVI: CLEAN SHIRT,SOCKS,BL 102125          11.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-020800  TOTALS             35.00

 

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-1003850-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: CLIP ON BADGE HOLDER 102169          19.03

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-1006675-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BADGE CASE           102169          26.61

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-1006803-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BADGES               102169         178.87

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-1006944-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BADGES               102169          96.09

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-1006945-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BADGES               102169         193.34

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-1007508-IN         110 5211-315        UNIFORMS & CL: BADGES               102169          96.09

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037800  TOTALS            610.03

 

01-047000 WEST PAYMENT CENTER    I-820404324          110 5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS: IL CRIMINAL LAW & PR 102192         588.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-047000  TOTALS            588.00

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-047016239          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER LBP-255479    102194         105.57

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-047016240          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER LBP-255481    102194         115.96

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-047016241          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER LBP-255476    102194         154.00

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-047016242          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER GBP-234813    102194         362.02

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-047016277          110 5211-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER YHT-189182    102194          27.11

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-049003  TOTALS            764.66

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 211   POLICE ADMINISTRATION    TOTAL:       3,738.48

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000610 LEXISNEXIS RISK & INFO I-1299801-20100331   110 5212-579        MISC OTHER PU: 3/10 SEARCHES        102142          50.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000610  TOTALS             50.00

 

01-037800 RAY O'HERRON CO        I-1006147-IN         110 5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS: RAY O'HERRON CO      102169         176.43

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037800  TOTALS            176.43

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 212   CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION   TOTAL:         226.43

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     4

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 213  PATROL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-030021 L & S SAFETY           I-2010-1286          110 5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS: GLOVES               102141          43.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030021  TOTALS             43.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 213   PATROL                   TOTAL:          43.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-004400 BURGER KING            I-201004152970       110 5217-330        FOOD         : PRISONER MEALS 3/10  102079          12.76

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-004400  TOTALS             12.76

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 217   CUSTODY OF PRISONERS     TOTAL:          12.76

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092840       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-2677             102037       1,682.31

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142891       110 5222-532        TELEPHONE    : 101-0983             102095         345.48

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS          2,027.79

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 222   COMMUNICATION SERVICES   TOTAL:       2,027.79

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000779 GRAPHIC IMAGINATION, I I-30118              110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SQUAD REPAIRS        102123         188.25

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000779  TOTALS            188.25

 

01-000932 BRAD POEHLER           I-201004142888       110 5223-326        FUEL         : MILEAGE 4/5/10       102167          12.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000932  TOTALS             12.00

 

01-001389 AMERICAN TOWING        I-201004152969       110 5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TOW 2L14             102067          83.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001389  TOTALS             83.00

 

01-001487 AUTOZONE, INC.         I-0637575093         110 5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS: WIPER BLADES         102070           6.60

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001487  TOTALS              6.60

 

01-002019 BARBECK COMMUNICATIONS I-337961-48          110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPAIR 2L16          102071          95.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002019  TOTALS             95.00

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     5

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 223  AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-201004152961       110 5223-326        FUEL         : FUEL 3/1-31 POLICE D 102100       6,227.79

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009075  TOTALS          6,227.79

 

01-039600 BEN TIRE AUTO SERVICE  I-201004142887       110 5223-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SQUAD REPAIRS        102076       2,016.33

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039600  TOTALS          2,016.33

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 223   AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES      TOTAL:       8,628.97

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092841       110 5224-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1321 RICHMOND        102031          51.82

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092842       110 5224-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1700 WABASH          102031       3,414.43

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS          3,466.25

 

01-001408 INDUSTRIAL MECHANICAL  I-4583               110 5224-439        OTHER REPAIR : INDUSTRIAL MECHANICA 102134          90.00

01-001408 INDUSTRIAL MECHANICAL  I-4584               110 5224-439        OTHER REPAIR : INDUSTRIAL MECHANICA 102134          90.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001408  TOTALS            180.00

 

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-92089              110 5224-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: EXTINGUISHER MNTCE   102115         121.75

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017000  TOTALS            121.75

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-238329             110 5224-312        CLEANING SUPP: TISSUE,LINERS,SOAP,C 102143       1,554.36

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031000  TOTALS          1,554.36

 

01-035600 KONE INC               I-220346762          110 5224-435        ELEVATOR SERV: ELEV MNTCE 4/10      102139         610.46

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035600  TOTALS            610.46

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-8-53528            110 5224-432        REPAIR OF BUI: SERVICE CALL         102165         230.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-038300  TOTALS            230.00

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S2882442.001       110 5224-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: BULBS                102178         120.36

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043371  TOTALS            120.36

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 224   POLICE BUILDINGS         TOTAL:       6,283.18

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     6

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092838       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        102031         114.32

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092882       110 5241-321        NATURAL GAS &: 2700 MARSHALL STA 3  102034          14.68

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            129.00

 

01-001984 BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LL I-87141561           110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: ALS START UP         102078         571.86

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001984  TOTALS            571.86

 

01-002413 EA MEDICAL             I-47780              110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: ALS START UP         102109         560.95

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002413  TOTALS            560.95

 

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-P13994             110 5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS: AERIAL VALVE         102077           3.60

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS              3.60

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-201004142927       110 5241-326        FUEL         : FUEL 3/1-31 FIRE DEP 102100       1,240.05

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009075  TOTALS          1,240.05

 

01-009093 CONNOR CO              I-S4312448.001       110 5241-432        REPAIR OF BUI: STA 3 SUPPLIES       102094           7.92

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009093  TOTALS              7.92

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092843       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0931             102037          42.18

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092844       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2442             102037          47.84

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092858       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 235-0933             102037          37.62

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142922       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 101-0987             102095          88.08

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142925       110 5241-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2448             102095          38.64

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            254.36

 

01-025600 ILMO PRODUCTS COMPANY  I-201004142895       110 5241-313        MEDICAL & SAF: OXYGEN,CYLINDER RENT 102132          80.58

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025600  TOTALS             80.58

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142923       110 5241-432        REPAIR OF BUI: BOLTS,SCREWS         102140           2.16



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     7

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 241  FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142923       110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: BOLTS,SCREWS         102140           4.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS              6.66

 

01-032980 FRED THROM             I-8149               110 5241-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIR SAW           102147          71.55

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-032980  TOTALS             71.55

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201003302778       110 5241-410        UTILITY SERVI: HWY 16 STA 2         000000          22.96

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201003302793       110 5241-410        UTILITY SERVI: 2700 MARSHALL        000000          62.62

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201003312807       110 5241-410        UTILITY SERVI: 1801 PRAIRIE         000000          11.61

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS             97.19

 

01-037010 TONY NICHOLS           I-201004142904       110 5241-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL CELL REIMB     102156         100.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037010  TOTALS            100.00

 

01-040451 S & S SERVICE CO       I-45000              110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SERVICE TRUCK        102171       1,957.69

01-040451 S & S SERVICE CO       I-47498              110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: BRAKE REPAIRS        102171         720.09

01-040451 S & S SERVICE CO       I-47532              110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SERVICE TRUCK        102171       1,149.40

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040451  TOTALS          3,827.18

 

01-040476 SCHAEFFER MFG CO       I-BP1180-INV1        110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: OIL                  102174         864.05

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040476  TOTALS            864.05

 

01-044200 KC SUMMERS BUICK       I-BUCS431832         110 5241-434        REPAIR OF VEH: OIL CHANGE #27       102137          78.24

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-044200  TOTALS             78.24

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-047016203          110 5241-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER YHT-189240    102194          41.56

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-049003  TOTALS             41.56

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 241   FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.   TOTAL:       7,934.75

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     8

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 261  CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001381 MATT FREDERICK         I-201004142905       110 5261-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL CELL REIMB     102117          43.29

01-001381 MATT FREDERICK         I-201004142912       110 5261-564        PRIVATE VEHIC: MILEAGE 3/1-31       102117         110.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001381  TOTALS            153.29

 

01-018700 KYLE GILL              I-201004142902       110 5261-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL CELL REIMB     102122          50.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-018700  TOTALS             50.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 261   CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN   TOTAL:         203.29

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001293 BRAD STROHL            I-201004142949       110 5310-564        PRIVATE VEHIC: MILEAGE 3/2-31       102180           5.25

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001293  TOTALS              5.25

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-047016252          110 5310-814        PRINT/COPY MA: COPIER GBP-243598    102194         281.31

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-049003  TOTALS            281.31

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 310   PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN       TOTAL:         286.56

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092838       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        102031         120.64

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092855       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 212 N 12TH           102031          19.46

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092856       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 221 N 12TH           102031       1,036.94

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092857       110 5320-321        NATURAL GAS &: 212 N 12TH           102032         400.59

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS          1,577.63

 

01-002250 COMMERCIAL REFRIGERATI I-16056              110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: FORM CUSTOMERS MATER 102093          20.75

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002250  TOTALS             20.75

 

01-002800 MATTOON CHAMBER OF COM I-100                110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WILDFLOWER MNTCE     102146         867.50

01-002800 MATTOON CHAMBER OF COM I-127                110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WILDFLOWER MNTCE     102146         479.40

01-002800 MATTOON CHAMBER OF COM I-50                 110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WILDFLOWER MNTCE     102146         650.00

01-002800 MATTOON CHAMBER OF COM I-56                 110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: WILDFLOWER MNTCE     102146         480.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002800  TOTALS          2,476.90

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     9

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-003095 CARQUEST OF MATTOON    I-201004142926       110 5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: PARTS, TRAINING      102081          48.00

01-003095 CARQUEST OF MATTOON    I-201004142926       110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: PARTS, TRAINING      102081         339.07

01-003095 CARQUEST OF MATTOON    I-201004142926       110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: PARTS, TRAINING      102081          24.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003095  TOTALS            411.27

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-201004142941       110 5320-433        REPAIR OF MAC: CP TESTING           102100         512.00

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-201004142954       110 5320-326        FUEL         : FUEL 3/1-31 PUBLIC W 102100       2,998.01

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009075  TOTALS          3,510.01

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-83220              110 5320-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          102097          19.86

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009870  TOTALS             19.86

 

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  C-AI05618            110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: RETURNS              102110         161.31-

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI02452            110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: ELEMENT,GLASS        102110          17.13

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI02460            110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: ELEMENT,GLASS        102110          28.22

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI04342            110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SEAL                 102110         107.24

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI05315            110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: CYLINDER,HARDWARE    102110         189.62

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-014405  TOTALS            180.90

 

01-016000 FARM PLAN              I-3702408            110 5320-312        CLEANING SUPP: TOWELS,COFFEE,PLEDGE 102038          41.34

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016000  TOTALS             41.34

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT81418         110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FASTENAL COMPANY     102114          45.91

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT81464         110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FASTENAL COMPANY     102114           5.52

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016140  TOTALS             51.43

 

01-018100 GANO WELDING SUPPLIES  I-846102             110 5320-440        RENTALS      : WELDING SUPPLIES     102120          48.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-018100  TOTALS             48.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092860       110 5320-532        TELEPHONE    : 101-0873             102037          88.08

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS             88.08

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    10

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 320  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-025600 ILMO PRODUCTS COMPANY  I-201004142892       110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: WELDING SUPPLIES     102132          42.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025600  TOTALS             42.50

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142898       110 5320-316        TOOLS AND EQU: TORCH,SUBFLOOR,NAILS 102140          27.99

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142898       110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TORCH,SUBFLOOR,NAILS 102140         127.91

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS            155.90

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-96924              110 5320-359        OTHER STREET : 1712 SHELBY          102150         245.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035154  TOTALS            245.00

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-53629              110 5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS: KEYS                 102165           9.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-038300  TOTALS              9.50

 

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-134768             110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SWITCH ASSEMBLY      102102          31.71

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-134806             110 5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SENSOR               102102          39.39

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-038375  TOTALS             71.10

 

01-039200 ILLINOIS BRICK CO.     I-94163349           110 5320-313        MEDICAL & SAF: KNEE PADS            102131          32.15

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039200  TOTALS             32.15

 

01-040467 SAFETY COMPLIANCE      I-17322              110 5320-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES,SAFETY GLASSE 102172         171.82

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040467  TOTALS            171.82

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 320   STREETS                  TOTAL:       9,154.14

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-201004152968       110 5323-730        IMPROVEMENTS : GAINES APT GUTTER    102066       5,029.93

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045850  TOTALS          5,029.93

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 323   SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS   TOTAL:       5,029.93

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    11

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 326  STREET LIGHTING

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092838       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        102031         359.35

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152973       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 6TH & CHARLESTON     102047          21.03

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152976       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 16TH ST              102047          17.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152977       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1721 B'DWAY          102047          33.08

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152980       110 5326-321        NATURAL GAS &: STREET LIGHTING      102048      26,402.23

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS         26,833.58

 

01-014430 EGIZII ELECTRIC, INC.  I-113767             110 5326-432        REPAIR OF BUI: 6TH & WABASH, 3RD &  102111       1,905.15

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-014430  TOTALS          1,905.15

 

01-041820 SHOWALTER ELECTRIC     I-2944               110 5326-432        REPAIR OF BUI: STOP LIGHT REPAIRS   102175         116.30

01-041820 SHOWALTER ELECTRIC     I-2957               110 5326-432        REPAIR OF BUI: INSTALL NEW SERVICE  102175         420.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-041820  TOTALS            536.30

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 326   STREET LIGHTING          TOTAL:      29,275.03

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-048642 WOODY'S MUNICIPAL SUPP I-30806              110 5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SWEEPER PARTS        102193       1,445.94

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-048642  TOTALS          1,445.94

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 331   STREET CLEANING          TOTAL:       1,445.94

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-045523 VERMEER SALES & SERVIC I-P12488             110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: FILTER,FUEL SENDER   102188         168.58

01-045523 VERMEER SALES & SERVIC I-S05955             110 5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS: TUB GRINDER REPAIRS  102188         370.46

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045523  TOTALS            539.04

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 335   YARD WASTE COLLECTION    TOTAL:         539.04

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-039210 VEOLIA ES SOLID WASTE  I-F50000197200       110 5338-421        DISPOSAL SERV: CITY TRASH           102050         877.43

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039210  TOTALS            877.43

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 338   REFUSE COLLECT & DISPOSALTOTAL:         877.43

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    12

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 370  CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142956       110 5370-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: BATTERIES            102140          17.96

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS             17.96

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 370   CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION  TOTAL:          17.96

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092838       110 5381-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        102031         304.40

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            304.40

 

01-003200 FRED BIGGS ELECTRIC SU I-038639             110 5381-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FRED BIGGS ELECTRIC  102116         180.82

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003200  TOTALS            180.82

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142942       110 5381-435        ELEVATOR SERV: 234-7376             102095          37.35

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS             37.35

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142947       110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: DRANO                102140          17.98

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS             17.98

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-234493             110 5381-312        CLEANING SUPP: TOWELS,DISINFECTANT, 102143         787.07

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031000  TOTALS            787.07

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201004142950       110 5381-410        UTILITY SERVI: 208 N 19TH           000000         221.87

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS            221.87

 

01-035600 KONE INC               I-220344615          110 5381-435        ELEVATOR SERV: ELEV MNTCE 4/10      102139         179.62

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035600  TOTALS            179.62

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 381   CUSTODIAL SERVICES       TOTAL:       1,729.11

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    13

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 383  BURGESS OSBORNE

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092838       110 5383-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        102031          49.19

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152972       110 5383-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1701 WABASH          102047         434.23

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            483.42

 

01-017000 FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE I-92068              110 5383-460        OTHER PROP MA: FIRE EXTINGUISHER SE 102115          32.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017000  TOTALS             32.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 383   BURGESS OSBORNE          TOTAL:         515.42

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152974       110 5384-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1718 B'DWAY UNIT C   102047          21.37

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152975       110 5384-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1718 B'DWAY UNIT B   102047          62.98

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS             84.35

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-53442              110 5384-319        MISCELLANEOUS: KEYS                 102165          12.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-038300  TOTALS             12.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 384   RAILROAD DEPOT           TOTAL:          96.35

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152971       110 5388-321        NATURAL GAS &: 316 S 32ND           102047          43.77

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS             43.77

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 388   GARMENT FACTORY          TOTAL:          43.77

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001125 DEBBIE CREAN           I-201004142948       110 5511-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: MILEAGE 3/11/10      102099          99.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001125  TOTALS             99.50

 

01-001135 BEACON ATHLETICS       I-0401227-IN         110 5511-825        TOURISM GRANT: PITCHING MACHINE     102074       2,980.00

01-001135 BEACON ATHLETICS       I-0401372-IN         110 5511-825        TOURISM GRANT: RUBBER MATS,FENCE GU 102074       2,907.30

01-001135 BEACON ATHLETICS       I-0401385-IN         110 5511-825        TOURISM GRANT: STORAGE SHELF BENCH  102074       3,092.06

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001135  TOTALS          8,979.36

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    14

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 511  PARK ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-003206 BIRKEYS                I-W02134             110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: JACOBSEN REPAIRS     102077       1,548.81

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003206  TOTALS          1,548.81

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-201004142943       110 5511-326        FUEL         : FUEL 3/1-31 PARK     102100       1,206.65

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009075  TOTALS          1,206.65

 

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT81518         110 5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: CONCRETE SAW BLADE   102114          84.80

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016140  TOTALS             84.80

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092853       110 5511-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-3611             102037          68.44

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS             68.44

 

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-29068              110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: MOWER REPAIR         102158          51.00

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-29115              110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: REPAIR TWO FRONT TIR 102158         140.88

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-29364              110 5511-433        REPAIR OF MAC: MOWER BLADES         102158         244.59

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037050  TOTALS            436.47

 

01-044200 KC SUMMERS BUICK       I-BUCS431606         110 5511-434        REPAIR OF VEH: REPLACE FUEL PUMP    102137         719.61

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-044200  TOTALS            719.61

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 511   PARK ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:      13,143.64

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-201003312834       110 5512-802        HUNTING/FISHI: 3-23/29 LAKE HUNTING 000000         364.25

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-201004142894       110 5512-802        HUNTING/FISHI: 3-30/4-5 LAKE HUNT/F 000000       1,624.75

01-024060 IL DEPT OF NATURAL RES I-201004152985       110 5512-802        HUNTING/FISHI: 4-6/12 LAKE HUNT/FIS 000000       1,225.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-024060  TOTALS          3,214.00

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142940       110 5512-433        REPAIR OF MAC: FILTERS,PLYWOOD,DOOR 102140          27.40

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS             27.40

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    15

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 512  LAKE ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-037050 NIEMEYER REPAIR SERVIC I-28937              110 5512-433        REPAIR OF MAC: INSTALL STRUTS       102158       1,000.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037050  TOTALS          1,000.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 512   LAKE ADMINISTRATION      TOTAL:       4,241.40

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142940       110 5521-432        REPAIR OF BUI: FILTERS,PLYWOOD,DOOR 102140          15.48

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS             15.48

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 521   DEMARS CENTER            TOTAL:          15.48

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092838       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        102031          43.04

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092867       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           102033         430.02

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092868       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           102033         241.28

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092869       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           102033          38.08

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092870       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           102033         218.12

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092871       110 5541-321        NATURAL GAS &: 500 B'DWAY           102033          19.88

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            990.42

 

01-002056 NICK & STACEY'S HOUSE  I-6693               110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: GRIMES CONCESSION    102157          53.00

01-002056 NICK & STACEY'S HOUSE  I-6737               110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: GRIMES CONCESSION    102157         140.16

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002056  TOTALS            193.16

 

01-002408 KIEFFER LANDSCAPING LL I-8223               110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: KIEFFER LANDSCAPING  102138         422.37

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002408  TOTALS            422.37

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142940       110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: FILTERS,PLYWOOD,DOOR 102140         955.95

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS            955.95

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-239041             110 5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TOWELS               102143          85.84

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031000  TOTALS             85.84

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    16

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 541  PETERSON PARK

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-046740 WEBB ELECTRIC CO       I-20196              110 5541-432        REPAIR OF BUI: INSTALL LIGHTING FOR 102190       1,700.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-046740  TOTALS          1,700.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 541   PETERSON PARK            TOTAL:       4,347.74

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092872       110 5542-321        NATURAL GAS &: 632 S 14TH           102033          19.51

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS             19.51

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142940       110 5542-432        REPAIR OF BUI: FILTERS,PLYWOOD,DOOR 102140          67.29

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS             67.29

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 542   LAWSON PARK              TOTAL:          86.80

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000576 JOHN DEERE LANDSCAPES  I-53877631           110 5551-319        MISCELLANEOUS: VALVE BOX            102135          83.71

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000576  TOTALS             83.71

 

01-002056 NICK & STACEY'S HOUSE  I-6715               110 5551-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FIELD MARKING PAINT  102157          38.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002056  TOTALS             38.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 551   BOYS COMPLEX             TOTAL:         121.71

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002056 NICK & STACEY'S HOUSE  I-6828               110 5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS: FIELD MARKING PAINT  102157          43.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002056  TOTALS             43.00

 

01-002416 ANDERSON'S OUTDOOR SPO I-1051               110 5552-424        LAWN CARE    : CLAY                 102068       1,550.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002416  TOTALS          1,550.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 552   GIRLS COMPLEX            TOTAL:       1,593.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    17

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 554  LITTLE KINZEL PARK

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152978       110 5554-321        NATURAL GAS &: S 22ND               102048         106.06

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152984       110 5554-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1 S 22ND             102049          18.47

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            124.53

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 554   LITTLE KINZEL PARK       TOTAL:         124.53

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-030065 LAKE MATTOON PUBLIC WA I-201004092878       110 5561-410        UTILITY SERVI: CAMPGROUND EAST      102039          13.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030065  TOTALS             13.20

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-238827             110 5561-312        CLEANING SUPP: TISSUE,LINERS,TOWELS 102143         315.83

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031000  TOTALS            315.83

 

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-201004092848       110 5561-322        ELECTRICITY  : HUFFMANS             102041         359.63

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-041755  TOTALS            359.63

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 561   EAST CAMPGROUND          TOTAL:         688.66

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-030065 LAKE MATTOON PUBLIC WA I-201004092877       110 5562-410        UTILITY SERVI: CAMPGROUND WEST      102039          13.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030065  TOTALS             13.20

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 562   WEST CAMPGROUND          TOTAL:          13.20

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000481 PANA BAIT CO           I-2562797            110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          102162         411.55

01-000481 PANA BAIT CO           I-2563119            110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          102162         675.25

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000481  TOTALS          1,086.80

 

01-002360 E-K PETROLEUM          I-38157              110 5563-327        FUEL - RESALE: FUEL                 102108       1,432.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002360  TOTALS          1,432.50

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    18

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 563  MARINA AREA

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-006256 COCA-COLA ENTERPRISES  I-5198044213         110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          102087         289.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-006256  TOTALS            289.20

 

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-105016             110 5563-532        TELEPHONE    : MARINA SECURITY      102104          45.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012025  TOTALS             45.00

 

01-017780 FRITO-LAY INC          I-40536533           110 5563-317        CONCESSION & : CONCESSIONS          102118         160.32

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-017780  TOTALS            160.32

 

01-030065 LAKE MATTOON PUBLIC WA I-201004092879       110 5563-410        UTILITY SERVI: MARINA               102039          13.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030065  TOTALS             13.20

 

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-201004092849       110 5563-322        ELECTRICITY  : CAMPGROUND           102041         133.00

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-201004092850       110 5563-322        ELECTRICITY  : MARINA               102041         200.54

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-201004092851       110 5563-322        ELECTRICITY  : RESTROOMS            102041          64.54

01-041755 SHELBY ELECTRIC COOPER I-201004092852       110 5563-322        ELECTRICITY  : CAUSEWAY             102041          48.70

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-041755  TOTALS            446.78

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 563   MARINA AREA              TOTAL:       3,473.80

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-030065 LAKE MATTOON PUBLIC WA I-201004092880       110 5564-410        UTILITY SERVI: BEACH                102039          13.20

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030065  TOTALS             13.20

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 564   BEACH AREA               TOTAL:          13.20

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-008801 COLES TOGETHER         I-201004142910       110 5651-571        DUES & MEMBER: MAY 10 PLEDGE        102091       5,000.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008801  TOTALS          5,000.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 651   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT     TOTAL:       5,000.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    19

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 110  GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT: 752  KAL KAN WTR/SWR EXT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-032205 MATT ECON DEV RECAPTUR I-201004142901       110 5752-817        DEBT SERVICES: MAY 10 RLF PYMT #152 102145       1,288.89

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-032205  TOTALS          1,288.89

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 752   KAL KAN WTR/SWR EXT      TOTAL:       1,288.89

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 110   GENERAL FUND             TOTAL:     115,305.78



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    20

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 122  HOTEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 653  HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000247 ATPI                   I-201004142935       122 5653-571        DUES & MEMBER: 2010 DUES            102069          50.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000247  TOTALS             50.00

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092874       122 5653-322        ELECTRICITY (: MARSHALL AVE SIGN    102034          17.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092875       122 5653-322        ELECTRICITY (: DEWITT WELCOME SIGN  102034          18.05

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS             35.94

 

01-001235 ANGELIA D BURGETT      I-201004142903       122 5653-533        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL CELL REIMB     102080          43.29

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001235  TOTALS             43.29

 

01-002057 PAAP PRINTING          I-22272              122 5653-550        PRINTING & BI: ENVELOPES            102161         477.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002057  TOTALS            477.00

 

01-006720 CITDO                  I-201004092854       122 5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: CITDO CONSTITUENT ME 102035          15.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-006720  TOTALS             15.00

 

01-008600 COLES MOULTRIE ELECTRI I-201004092839       122 5653-322        ELECTRICITY (: WELCOME SIGN         102036          32.23

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008600  TOTALS             32.23

 

01-012540 DISCOVER MAGAZINE      I-201004142936       122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : ADVERTISING          102105         900.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012540  TOTALS            900.00

 

01-021348 HERALD & REVIEW        I-201004142937       122 5653-540        ADVERTISING  : ADVERTISING          102128       1,820.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021348  TOTALS          1,820.00

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092873       122 5653-532        TELEPHONE    : 800-500-6286         102037           3.13

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142893       122 5653-532        TELEPHONE    : 258-6286             102095         490.22

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            493.35

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 653   HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:       3,866.81

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 122   HOTEL TAX FUND           TOTAL:       3,866.81



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    21

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 123  FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 584  BAGELFEST

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000868 CHAMPAIGN COUNTY TENT  I-201004152965       123 5584-832        BEER TENT    : TENT,TABLE & CHAIR R 102084       3,561.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000868  TOTALS          3,561.00

 

01-045510 VARIETY ATTRACTIONS IN I-201004092876       123 5584-834        ENTERTAINMENT: BAGELFEST ENTERTAINM 102043       4,500.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045510  TOTALS          4,500.00

 

01-048900 YMCA                   I-201004152966       123 5584-579        MISC OTHER PU: GRANT                102195       3,000.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-048900  TOTALS          3,000.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 584   BAGELFEST                TOTAL:      11,061.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 123   FESTIVAL MGMT FUND       TOTAL:      11,061.00



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    22

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 125  INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT

DEPARTMENT: 150  FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002415 TRAVELERS              I-201004142913       125 5150-527        SELF INSURED : DEDUCTIBLE           102182       1,283.70

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002415  TOTALS          1,283.70

 

01-012500 IL DIR OF EMPLOYMENT S I-201004152962       125 5150-240        UNEMPLOYMENT : UNEMPLOY TAX 1ST QTR 102129      18,003.09

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012500  TOTALS         18,003.09

 

01-040463 SARAH BUSH LINCOLN HEA I-201004142959       125 5150-519        OTHER PROFESS: DRUG SCREENS         102173         884.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040463  TOTALS            884.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 150   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION TOTAL:      20,170.79

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 125   INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT  TOTAL:      20,170.79



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    23

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 128  MIDTOWN TIF FUND

DEPARTMENT: 604  MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-004800 TOM BUSHUR CONCRETE CO I-201004142955       128 5604-901        STREETS      : REPLACE CITY APPROAC 102181       3,900.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-004800  TOTALS          3,900.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 604   MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT     TOTAL:       3,900.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 128   MIDTOWN TIF FUND         TOTAL:       3,900.00



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    24

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 130  CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 321  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000742 BARTELS CONSTRUCTION,  I-201004152967       130 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : SIDEWALKS            102072       3,008.84

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000742  TOTALS          3,008.84

 

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266134             130 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON SE 102083         206.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002414  TOTALS            206.00

 

01-002417 RICHARD A PEACOCK      I-201004152960       130 5321-720        PUBLIC WORKS : ARCHITECTURAL SERVIC 102164         300.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002417  TOTALS            300.00

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142898       130 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : TORCH,SUBFLOOR,NAILS 102140          43.27

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS             43.27

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-96773              130 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 21ST & WESTERN       102150       1,410.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-96788              130 5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 21ST & WESTERN       102150         164.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035154  TOTALS          1,574.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:       5,132.61

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000117 FULLER-WENTE INC       I-4864               130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 26TH & CHARLESTON SE 102119       1,101.79

01-000117 FULLER-WENTE INC       I-4876               130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 26TH & CHARLESTON SE 102119         616.50

01-000117 FULLER-WENTE INC       I-4887               130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 26TH & CHARLESTON SE 102119         974.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000117  TOTALS          2,692.29

 

01-001537 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS,  I-1061749            130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON SE 102127       7,734.93

          PROJ: 183-300           Storm Sewer 27th Chrston       Supplies

01-001537 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS,  I-1063006            130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON SE 102127         842.52

          PROJ: 183-300           Storm Sewer 27th Chrston       Supplies

01-001537 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS,  I-1063047            130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : PVC SEWER PIPE       102127       2,750.72

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001537  TOTALS         11,328.17

 

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266088             130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON SE 102083       1,012.00



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    25

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 130  CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 328  STORM DRAINAGE

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266139             130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON SE 102083       1,056.00

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266147             130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON SE 102083         440.00

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266169             130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 26TH & CHARLESTON SE 102083         217.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002414  TOTALS          2,725.50

 

01-021402 CHARLES HEUERMAN TRUCK I-16554              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : FILL SAND            102085       1,238.43

01-021402 CHARLES HEUERMAN TRUCK I-16665              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : WHITE ROCK           102085         387.09

01-021402 CHARLES HEUERMAN TRUCK I-16666              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : WHITE ROCK           102085         396.93

01-021402 CHARLES HEUERMAN TRUCK I-16769              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : FILL SAND            102085         812.42

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021402  TOTALS          2,834.87

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1383               130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON SE 102133       4,211.77

          PROJ: 183-300           Storm Sewer 27th Chrston       Supplies

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025682  TOTALS          4,211.77

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-96923              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON    102150         356.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-97097              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON    102150       2,931.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-97396              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON    102150         418.50

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-97397              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 27TH & CHARLESTON    102150         222.50

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-97399              130 5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS : 26TH & CHARLESTON SE 102151       1,220.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035154  TOTALS          5,148.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 328   STORM DRAINAGE           TOTAL:      28,940.60

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-002400 DONALD D HANCE, AIA    I-201004142958       130 5384-720        IC DEPOT REST: DEPOT ARCHITECTURAL  102106       5,040.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002400  TOTALS          5,040.00

 

01-012025 DETECTION SECURITY CO  I-105107             130 5384-720        IC DEPOT REST: SECURITY             102104         384.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012025  TOTALS            384.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 384   RAILROAD DEPOT           TOTAL:       5,424.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    26

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 130  CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DEPARTMENT: 608  YMCA LAND ACQUISITION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-040253 RENTAL CENTER USA      I-320667             130 5608-577        YMCA LAND ACQ: BIT & DRILL RENTAL   102170         145.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040253  TOTALS            145.00

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 608   YMCA LAND ACQUISITION    TOTAL:         145.00

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 130   CAPITAL PROJECT FUND     TOTAL:      39,642.21



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    27

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 351  RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092845       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2 WATER DEPT       102031         120.17

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092846       211 5351-321        NATURAL GAS &: RR2 SHED             102031          21.68

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            141.85

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 351   RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES TOTAL:         141.85

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152979       211 5353-321        NATURAL GAS &: LAKE MATTOON PUMP    102048         301.96

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152979       211 5353-321        NATURAL GAS &: WATER TREATMENT PLAN 102048         321.27

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            623.23

 

01-001824 BEELMAN LOGISTICS LLC  I-159902             211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : LIME                 102075         820.27

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001824  TOTALS            820.27

 

01-010000 CRAWFORD MURPHY & TILL I-84579              211 5353-730        IMPROVEMENTS : REHAB L PARADISE 1/3 102098         561.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-010000  TOTALS            561.00

 

01-012925 MICKEY'S LINEN         I-201004142929       211 5353-460        OTHER PROPERT: CLEANING             102149          87.32

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012925  TOTALS             87.32

 

01-021348 HERALD & REVIEW        I-20297298           211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : WATER CHEMICAL BID N 102128          41.68

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021348  TOTALS             41.68

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092847       211 5353-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2454             102037         212.35

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            212.35

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-576064             211 5353-379        OTHER WATER M: MESH SCREEN,BUSHING  102144          91.92

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031402  TOTALS             91.92

 

01-035365 MISSISSIPPI LIME COMPA I-895127             211 5353-314        CHEMICALS    : LIME                 102154       3,356.25

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035365  TOTALS          3,356.25

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    28

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 353  WATER TREATMENT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-035600 KONE INC               I-220346892          211 5353-435        ELEVATOR SERV: ELEV MNTCE 4/10      102139         221.97

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035600  TOTALS            221.97

 

01-037936 ONE STOP COPY SHOP     I-15511              211 5353-379        OTHER WATER M: COPIES               102159          36.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037936  TOTALS             36.00

 

01-037976 PDC LABORATORIES       I-659965S            211 5353-519        OTHER PROFESS: PDC LABORATORIES     102163          44.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037976  TOTALS             44.00

 

01-041806 SIDENER                I-300792             211 5353-377        PLANT EQUIPME: PUMP                 102176         566.18

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-041806  TOTALS            566.18

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S2888748.001       211 5353-377        PLANT EQUIPME: 3 WAY VALVE          102178          80.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043371  TOTALS             80.00

 

01-045155 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE  I-8Y610140           211 5353-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             102184          18.46

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045155  TOTALS             18.46

 

01-049003 XEROX CORPORATION      I-047016276          211 5353-814        PRINTING & CO: COPIER YHT-189369    102194          29.77

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-049003  TOTALS             29.77

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 353   WATER TREATMENT PLANT    TOTAL:       6,790.40

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092838       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: ADD'L CURRENT        102031          44.09

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152979       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST POWER        102048          85.48

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152979       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: W 121 WATER TOWER    102048          19.74

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152979       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: EAST WATER TOWER     102048          19.25

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152979       211 5354-321        NATURAL GAS &: 12TH ST STORAGE      102048          30.84

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            199.40

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    29

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 354  WATER DISTRIBUTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-003095 CARQUEST OF MATTOON    I-201004142926       211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: PARTS, TRAINING      102081          54.97

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003095  TOTALS             54.97

 

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI02452            211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: ELEMENT,GLASS        102110          17.13

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI02460            211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: ELEMENT,GLASS        102110          28.22

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-014405  TOTALS             45.35

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-842387        211 5354-379        OTHER WATER M: MOTION INDUSTRIES    102155          59.65

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023500  TOTALS             59.65

 

01-025682 IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY    I-1026777-00         211 5354-379        OTHER WATER M: IMCO UTILITY SUPPLY  102133         507.95

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025682  TOTALS            507.95

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-97398              211 5354-363        BACKFILL & SU: 2605 RICHMOND        102151         534.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035154  TOTALS            534.00

 

01-038300 PERRY'S LOCKSMITH      I-53648              211 5354-319        MISCELLANEOUS: KEYS                 102165           8.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-038300  TOTALS              8.00

 

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-134768             211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SWITCH ASSEMBLY      102102          31.71

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-134806             211 5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SENSOR               102102          39.39

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-038375  TOTALS             71.10

 

01-040467 SAFETY COMPLIANCE      I-17322              211 5354-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES,SAFETY GLASSE 102172         171.82

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040467  TOTALS            171.82

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 354   WATER DISTRIBUTION       TOTAL:       1,652.24

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001657 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES     I-162532             211 5355-516        TECHNOLOGY SU: ANNUAL SOFTWARE MNTC 102183       1,541.08

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001657  TOTALS          1,541.08

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    30

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 355  ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-003095 CARQUEST OF MATTOON    I-201004142926       211 5355-318        VEHICLE PARTS: PARTS, TRAINING      102081         122.18

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003095  TOTALS            122.18

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-201004142954       211 5355-326        FUEL         : FUEL 3/1-31 PUBLIC W 102100       2,998.01

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009075  TOTALS          2,998.01

 

01-033000 UNITED STATES POSTAL S I-201004142897       211 5355-531        POSTAGE      : WATER BILL POSTAGE   102185       2,584.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033000  TOTALS          2,584.00

 

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-0015515-IN         211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : METER LIDS           102153          36.00

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-0015657-IN         211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : ORION PIT DATA ROUTE 102153       3,336.25

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-0016039-IN         211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : ORION PIT DATA ROUTE 102153       3,336.25

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-0016040-IN         211 5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS : ORION PIT DATA ROUTE 102153       4,317.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035266  TOTALS         11,026.00

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-B599981001         211 5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: FAX TONER            102179          33.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043522  TOTALS             33.50

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 355   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:      18,304.77

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152981       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 1201 MARSHALL        102048         736.00

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152982       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 620 S 12TH           102048          34.40

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004152983       211 5356-321        NATURAL GAS &: 621 S 12TH           102048          19.66

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            790.06

 

01-003095 CARQUEST OF MATTOON    I-201004142926       211 5356-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: PARTS, TRAINING      102081          48.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003095  TOTALS             48.00

 

01-020830 CHRIS HARTBANK         I-201004142906       211 5356-565        CELLULAR PHON: APRIL 10 REIMB       102126          50.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-020830  TOTALS             50.00

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    31

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 211  WATER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 356  ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-037936 ONE STOP COPY SHOP     I-15483              211 5356-511        PLANNING & DE: COPIES               102159          44.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-037936  TOTALS             44.00

 

01-045400 UPCHURCH GROUP INC     I-10799              211 5356-511        PLANNING & DE: OLD STATE RD EASEMEN 102186         641.61

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045400  TOTALS            641.61

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 356   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:       1,573.67

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 211   WATER FUND               TOTAL:      28,462.93



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    32

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 342  SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266036             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 700 S 16TH           102083         588.00

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266078             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 2516 RICHMOND        102083         264.00

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266080             212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 2516 RICHMOND        102083         264.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002414  TOTALS          1,116.00

 

01-003095 CARQUEST OF MATTOON    I-201004142926       212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: PARTS, TRAINING      102081          54.98

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003095  TOTALS             54.98

 

01-007820 COE EQUIPMENT INC      I-48034              212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: RELAY,VALVE COVER AS 102088         295.87

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-007820  TOTALS            295.87

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-83221              212 5342-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          102097          23.75

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-83269              212 5342-434        REPAIR OF VEH: SAFETY TEST          102097          18.35

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009870  TOTALS             42.10

 

01-011550 DEAN DRAINAGE          I-4947               212 5342-439        OTHER REPAIR : SEWER IN MATHENY FIE 102103       1,648.88

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-011550  TOTALS          1,648.88

 

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI02452            212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: ELEMENT,GLASS        102110          17.13

01-014405 EFFINGHAM TRUCK SALES  I-AI02460            212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: ELEMENT,GLASS        102110          28.21

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-014405  TOTALS             45.34

 

01-024960 IL PLUMBING & HEATING  I-0038855-IN         212 5342-364        SEWER LINE RE: 26TH & RICHMOND SEWE 102130          14.40

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-024960  TOTALS             14.40

 

01-030000 KULL LUMBER CO         I-201004142898       212 5342-319        MISCELLANEOUS: TORCH,SUBFLOOR,NAILS 102140          87.47

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-030000  TOTALS             87.47

 

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-96789              212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 16TH & WALNUT        102150         595.50

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-96790              212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 16TH & WALNUT        102150         432.00



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    33

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 342  SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-96791              212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 712 S 16TH           102150         119.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-96925              212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 2500 BLOCK OF RICHMO 102150         648.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-97098              212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 2500 BLOCK OF RICHMO 102150         432.00

01-035154 MID-ILLINOIS CONCRETE  I-97099              212 5342-363        BACKFILL & SU: 2500 BLOCK OF RICHMO 102150         432.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035154  TOTALS          2,658.50

 

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-134768             212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SWITCH ASSEMBLY      102102          31.70

01-038375 DAN PILSON AUTO CENTER I-134806             212 5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS: SENSOR               102102          39.38

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-038375  TOTALS             71.08

 

01-040467 SAFETY COMPLIANCE      I-17322              212 5342-313        MEDICAL & SAF: GLOVES,SAFETY GLASSE 102172         171.81

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-040467  TOTALS            171.81

 

01-045850 AJ WALKER CONST CO     I-201004142957       212 5342-439        OTHER REPAIR : 21ST & RAILROAD CURB 102066       3,783.91

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045850  TOTALS          3,783.91

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 342   SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM  TOTAL:       9,990.34

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000273 CONTROLS CONSULTING IN I-201004142946       212 5343-433        REPAIR OF MAC: PLANT CONTROL SYSTEM 102096       1,794.70

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000273  TOTALS          1,794.70

 

01-000832 SODEMANN & ASSOCIATES, I-11549              212 5343-730        IMPROVEMENTS : LLC PUMP STA REPLACE 102177       2,181.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000832  TOTALS          2,181.50

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092862       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: DEWITT LIFT STA      102032          24.89

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: N 45 LIFT STA        102032          58.44

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: RILEY CREEK SEWER    102032         322.21

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: LOGAN/SHELBY SEWER   102032          43.74

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: WILLOWSHIRE SEWER    102032          28.92

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: 28TH LIFT STA        102032          40.35

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: FAIRFIELD LIFT STA   102032          22.04

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5343-321        NATURAL GAS &: N 19TH LIFT STA      102032          25.10

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS            565.69

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 343   SEWER LIFT STATIONS      TOTAL:       4,541.89

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    34

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 344  WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001043 MIDWEST GAS INSTRUMENT I-20720              212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : IMPACT SENSOR CARTRI 102152         266.50

01-001043 MIDWEST GAS INSTRUMENT I-20739              212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : CALIBRATE IMPACT     102152         180.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001043  TOTALS            446.50

 

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092861       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: 820 S 5TH            102032         268.82

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092863       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: 820 S 5TH            102032         770.96

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092864       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: 820 S 5TH PLACE      102032         165.52

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: WASTE WATER TREAMENT 102032       4,421.61

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: SAND FILTER BLDG     102032         208.36

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: SEWER PLANT OFC/LAB  102032         585.17

01-001070 AMERENCIPS             I-201004092865       212 5344-321        NATURAL GAS &: SEWER PLANT SHOP     102032         478.61

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001070  TOTALS          6,899.05

 

01-001620 VERIZON WIRELESS       I-2377766623         212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : MOBILES              102045         147.58

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001620  TOTALS            147.58

 

01-002089 GELMAN SCIENCES INC.   I-528154             212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: GELMAN SCIENCES INC. 102121         285.02

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002089  TOTALS            285.02

 

01-006780 CLARK DIETZ INC        I-406055             212 5344-511        PLANNING & DE: CSO LONG TERM CNTRL  102086         454.87

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-006780  TOTALS            454.87

 

01-009000 COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC    I-24510001           212 5344-433        REPAIR OF MAC: WET WELL CONTROLLER  102092         187.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009000  TOTALS            187.50

 

01-012925 MICKEY'S LINEN         I-201004142918       212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: CLEANING             102149          64.12

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-012925  TOTALS             64.12

 

01-014115 DUNN'S I-57 MARATHON   I-60186              212 5344-434        REPAIR OF VEH: FLATBED              102107          55.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-014115  TOTALS             55.00

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    35

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 344  WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT81411         212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : FASTENAL COMPANY     102114          32.96

01-016140 FASTENAL COMPANY       I-ILMAT81635         212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : FASTENAL COMPANY     102114          62.07

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-016140  TOTALS             95.03

 

01-020540 HACH COMPANY           I-6678011            212 5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS: HACH COMPANY         102124          79.57

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-020540  TOTALS             79.57

 

01-021348 HERALD & REVIEW        I-20295421           212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : NOTICE OF NON COMPLI 102128         178.36

01-021348 HERALD & REVIEW        I-20295432           212 5344-439        OTHER REPAIR : NOTICE OF NON COMPLI 102128         190.42

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-021348  TOTALS            368.78

 

01-023500 MOTION INDUSTRIES      I-IL64-843099        212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : BALL BEARINGS        102040          41.01

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023500  TOTALS             41.01

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092866       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-3016             102037          90.21

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142919       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 101-0939             102095          88.08

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142944       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2737             102095          38.40

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004142945       212 5344-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-6828             102095          65.46

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            282.15

 

01-025600 ILMO PRODUCTS COMPANY  I-201004142920       212 5344-440        RENTALS      : CYLINDER RENTAL      102132          31.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-025600  TOTALS             31.50

 

01-031000 LORENZ SUPPLY CO.      I-239335             212 5344-312        CLEANING SUPP: CUPS,TOWELS          102143          82.28

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031000  TOTALS             82.28

 

01-031402 M & M PUMP SUPPLY INC  I-574810             212 5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIP: HOSE CLAMP           102144          22.77

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-031402  TOTALS             22.77

 

01-034250 MCFARLAND STEEL SUPPLY I-201004142921       212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : MCFARLAND STEEL SUPP 102148          19.80

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-034250  TOTALS             19.80

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    36

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 344  WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-039210 VEOLIA ES SOLID WASTE  I-F50000197865       212 5344-460        OTHER PROPERT: SLUDGE DISPOSAL      102044         248.46

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039210  TOTALS            248.46

 

01-043371 SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC   I-S2888756.001       212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : PHASE MONITOR        102178         393.19

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043371  TOTALS            393.19

 

01-045171 USA BLUEBOOK           I-122631             212 5344-366        PLANT MTCE & : USA BLUEBOOK         102187       1,053.43

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-045171  TOTALS          1,053.43

 

01-046615 WATTS COPY SYSTEMS     I-158440             212 5344-814        COPY MACHINE : COPIER 3/8/10-4/7/10 102189           1.09

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-046615  TOTALS              1.09

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 344   WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANTTOTAL:      11,258.70

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-001657 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES     I-162532             212 5345-516        TECHNOLOGY SU: ANNUAL SOFTWARE MNTC 102183       1,541.07

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001657  TOTALS          1,541.07

 

01-003095 CARQUEST OF MATTOON    I-201004142926       212 5345-318        VEHICLE PARTS: PARTS, TRAINING      102081         122.15

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003095  TOTALS            122.15

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-201004142954       212 5345-326        FUEL         : FUEL 3/1-31 PUBLIC W 102100       2,998.02

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009075  TOTALS          2,998.02

 

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-65614              212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             102113          11.25

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-65757              212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             102113          11.25

01-015410 EZ PARCEL & BUSINESS S I-65820              212 5345-531        POSTAGE      : SHIPPING             102113          11.25

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-015410  TOTALS             33.75

 

01-019900 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL  I-200638011-0410     212 5345-815        POSTAGE METER: POSTAGE METER LEASE  102191         369.99

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-019900  TOTALS            369.99

 



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    37

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 212  SEWER FUND

DEPARTMENT: 345  ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-0015515-IN         212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : METER LIDS           102153          36.00

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-0015657-IN         212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : ORION PIT DATA ROUTE 102153       3,336.25

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-0016039-IN         212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : ORION PIT DATA ROUTE 102153       3,336.25

01-035266 MIDWEST METER INC      I-0016040-IN         212 5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS : ORION PIT DATA ROUTE 102153       4,317.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-035266  TOTALS         11,026.00

 

01-043522 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN    I-B599981001         212 5345-311        OFFICE SUPPLI: FAX TONER            102179          33.49

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-043522  TOTALS             33.49

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 345   ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION  TOTAL:      16,124.47

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-003095 CARQUEST OF MATTOON    I-201004142926       212 5346-562        TRAVEL & TRAI: PARTS, TRAINING      102081          48.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-003095  TOTALS             48.00

 

01-008200 COLES CO REGIONAL PLAN I-4408               212 5346-511        PLANNING & DE: JAN 10 GIS BILLING   102090          92.00

01-008200 COLES CO REGIONAL PLAN I-4428               212 5346-511        PLANNING & DE: FEB 10 GIS BILLING   102090       1,407.50

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-008200  TOTALS          1,499.50

 

01-028977 JULIE INC              I-03-10-0982         212 5346-579        MISC OTHER PU: 3/10 MESSAGES        102136         193.75

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-028977  TOTALS            193.75

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 346   ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL TOTAL:       1,741.25

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 212   SEWER FUND               TOTAL:      43,656.65



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    38

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: APBNK

FUND      : 213  CEMETERY FUND

DEPARTMENT: 361  MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-001388 PETTY CASH-DODGE GROVE I-201004152964       213 5361-319        MISCELLANEOUS: REPLENISH PETTY CASH 102166          41.72

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-001388  TOTALS             41.72

 

01-002958 BATTERY SPECIALISTS, I I-85751              213 5361-433        REPAIR OF MAC: BATTERY              102073          54.95

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002958  TOTALS             54.95

 

01-009075 CUSD #2 TRANSPORTATION I-201004152963       213 5361-326        FUEL         : FUEL 3/1-31 CEMETERY 102100         198.16

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009075  TOTALS            198.16

 

01-009870 COX MOTORS             I-83307              213 5361-433        REPAIR OF MAC: SAFETY TEST          102097          18.35

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-009870  TOTALS             18.35

 

01-023800 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICA I-201004092859       213 5361-532        TELEPHONE    : 234-2055             102037         120.73

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-023800  TOTALS            120.73

 

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201003312803       213 5361-410        UTILITY SERVI: N 19TH               000000           5.67

01-033800 MATTOON WATER DEPT     I-201003312804       213 5361-410        UTILITY SERVI: 917 N 22ND           000000          87.70

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-033800  TOTALS             93.37

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 361   MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS TOTAL:         527.28

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 213   CEMETERY FUND            TOTAL:         527.28

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:     266,593.45



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    39

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2009-2010 110-5110-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    100.00       3,000       1,800.00

          110-5120-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        120.00       8,000         940.47

          110-5120-540        ADVERTISING                       340.50       2,500          38.66

          110-5120-801        VITAL RECORDS FEE REMITTAN        594.00       7,500       1,246.00

          110-5120-802        HUNTING/FISHING LIC. FEE R        304.00       1,000         260.75

          110-5120-814        PRINT/COPY MACH. LEASE & M        323.98       4,100         336.67

          110-5130-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    50.28           0         327.63-  Y

          110-5130-565        CELLULAR PHONE EXP REIMB          181.75       1,100           3.19-  Y

          110-5150-576        SECURITY SERVICES                 300.00           0         300.00-  Y

          110-5160-340        BOOKS & PERIODICALS               453.73       4,600         424.54-  Y

          110-5160-565        CELLULAR TELEPHONE REIMBUR        100.00       1,200           0.00

          110-5170-854        WIDE AREA NETWORK WIRING A        176.16       2,200          86.18

          110-5211-315        UNIFORMS & CLOTHING               610.03       1,500         357.33

          110-5211-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            588.00       2,000         187.60-  Y

          110-5211-573        LAUNDRY SERVICE                    35.00         250          89.00-  Y

          110-5211-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI      1,740.79       4,000       2,187.39-  Y

          110-5211-814        PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA        764.66       7,000          83.68

          110-5212-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            176.43       4,000       1,337.15

          110-5212-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI         50.00       1,300         355.68-  Y

          110-5213-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             43.00       6,000       2,819.10

          110-5217-330        FOOD                               12.76         400         183.08

          110-5222-532        TELEPHONE                       2,027.79      26,000       1,535.24

          110-5223-318        VEHICLE PARTS                       6.60       4,000       2,191.81

          110-5223-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             83.00       2,000         836.50

          110-5223-326        FUEL                            6,239.79      70,000      10,584.49

          110-5223-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES              2,299.58      35,000       7,067.99-  Y

          110-5224-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES               1,554.36       3,500       1,395.22-  Y

          110-5224-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 242.11       1,000         576.75

          110-5224-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI      3,466.25      65,000      22,560.89-  Y

          110-5224-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               230.00      15,000          25.42-  Y

          110-5224-435        ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMEN         610.46       7,300         796.10-  Y

          110-5224-439        OTHER REPAIR & MAINT SRVCS        180.00       5,000       2,577.13-  Y

          110-5241-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES       1,213.39       6,000       1,002.32-  Y

          110-5241-318        VEHICLE PARTS                       3.60       6,000       3,376.12

          110-5241-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            129.00      10,700       2,488.60

          110-5241-326        FUEL                            1,240.05      22,000       9,269.05

          110-5241-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   97.19       1,000         193.04-  Y

          110-5241-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                10.08      10,000       6,425.54

          110-5241-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                71.55       9,000       3,651.23

          110-5241-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES              4,773.97      21,000       5,024.41

          110-5241-532        TELEPHONE                         254.36       5,950       1,372.40

          110-5241-533        CELLULAR PHONE                    100.00       1,500         400.00

          110-5241-814        PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA         41.56       1,000         777.02

          110-5261-533        CELLULAR PHONE                     93.29         600         469.48-  Y

          110-5261-564        PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB         110.00       2,000         788.10

          110-5310-564        PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB           5.25         500         343.42

          110-5310-814        PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA        281.31       2,500          30.69



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    40

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5320-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                  41.34       1,200         123.37

          110-5320-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         203.97       1,200         639.81-  Y

          110-5320-316        TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT                91.24       3,000       1,982.18-  Y

          110-5320-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     636.98      15,000       5,019.38-  Y

          110-5320-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          2,644.03       3,500       7,218.68-  Y

          110-5320-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          1,577.63      20,000       2,560.65

          110-5320-326        FUEL                            2,998.01      45,000      16,816.46

          110-5320-359        OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE        245.00      45,000      23,415.48

          110-5320-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               512.00      20,000      13,455.10

          110-5320-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 19.86       7,000       4,305.79

          110-5320-440        RENTALS                            48.00       7,000       4,915.39

          110-5320-532        TELEPHONE                          88.08       6,000         636.40

          110-5320-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  48.00       1,500         344.75

          110-5323-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      5,029.93           0       5,029.93-  Y

          110-5326-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI     26,833.58     165,000      13,133.53

          110-5326-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             2,441.45      16,000       7,206.12-  Y

          110-5331-318        VEHICLE PARTS                   1,445.94      10,000       4,901.51

          110-5335-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     539.04       5,000       9,069.04-  Y

          110-5338-421        DISPOSAL SERVICES                 877.43      18,000       6,524.14

          110-5370-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  17.96       2,000         990.13

          110-5381-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 805.05       2,700         683.85-  Y

          110-5381-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            180.82       1,000         603.15

          110-5381-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            304.40      32,000         980.37-  Y

          110-5381-410        UTILITY SERVICES                  221.87       2,500         112.57

          110-5381-435        ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMEN         216.97       2,600          16.72-  Y

          110-5383-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            483.42       7,000         600.72

          110-5383-460        OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES          32.00         500         273.00

          110-5384-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             12.00       1,500         882.64

          110-5384-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC             84.35           0       2,716.49-  Y

          110-5388-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC             43.77         300          82.43

          110-5511-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  84.80       8,000       2,570.49

          110-5511-326        FUEL                            1,206.65      12,500       2,130.32

          110-5511-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,985.28       6,000      12,690.23-  Y

          110-5511-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                719.61       5,000       1,628.56

          110-5511-532        TELEPHONE                          68.44       1,000         169.99

          110-5511-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  99.50         400         285.50

          110-5511-825        TOURISM GRANT EXPENDITURES      8,979.36           0       9,539.32-  Y

          110-5512-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,027.40       2,000       1,980.13-  Y

          110-5512-802        HUNTING/FISHING REMITTANCE      3,214.00       8,000       2,366.75-  Y

          110-5521-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                15.48       1,000         512.02

          110-5541-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            279.00       8,000       6,306.94-  Y

          110-5541-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            990.42      16,000       1,452.27

          110-5541-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             3,078.32       7,500       1,320.15-  Y

          110-5542-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI         19.51       4,000       1,119.54

          110-5542-432        REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                67.29         500         303.53

          110-5551-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            121.71       2,500          48.39-  Y

          110-5552-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             43.00       2,500         430.04-  Y

          110-5552-424        LAWN CARE                       1,550.00       2,500         310.58-  Y



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    41

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          110-5554-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        124.53         500         301.68

          110-5561-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                 315.83         500          26.56

          110-5561-322        ELECTRICITY                       359.63       9,000       1,895.54-  Y

          110-5561-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   13.20       4,000       1,840.80

          110-5562-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   13.20       3,500       1,550.45

          110-5563-317        CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP      1,536.32      25,000         266.66-  Y

          110-5563-322        ELECTRICITY                       446.78       4,000         791.75-  Y

          110-5563-327        FUEL - RESALE                   1,432.50      20,000       7,782.31

          110-5563-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   13.20       1,500         828.70

          110-5563-532        TELEPHONE                          45.00         800           8.46

          110-5564-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   13.20         200          66.80

          110-5651-571        DUES & MEMBERSHIPS              5,000.00      60,000           0.00

          110-5752-817        DEBT SERVICES                   1,288.89      15,467           0.32

          122-5653-322        ELECTRICITY (COLES MOULTRI         68.17         500          31.28-  Y

          122-5653-532        TELEPHONE                         493.35       2,500         702.51-  Y

          122-5653-533        CELLULAR PHONE                     43.29         750         230.52

          122-5653-540        ADVERTISING                     2,720.00      15,000       2,450.48

          122-5653-550        PRINTING & BINDING                477.00       3,000       2,523.00

          122-5653-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  15.00       5,000         450.02

          122-5653-571        DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                 50.00       1,750          55.00

          123-5584-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI      3,000.00      15,000       2,167.28

          123-5584-832        BEER TENT                       3,561.00      12,000       7,576.00-  Y

          123-5584-834        ENTERTAINMENT                   4,500.00      30,000       6,911.95-  Y

          125-5150-240        UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.             18,003.09      14,297       5,797.08-  Y

          125-5150-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        884.00       5,000       3,898.75-  Y

          125-5150-527        SELF INSURED RETENTION/DED      1,283.70      20,000       7,448.47

          128-5604-901        STREETS                         3,900.00           0       3,900.00-  Y

          130-5321-720        PUBLIC WORKS BUILDINGS            300.00   3,000,000   2,974,655.88

          130-5321-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      4,832.61     500,000     244,452.13

          130-5328-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     28,940.60   2,250,000   2,144,859.43

          130-5384-720        IC DEPOT RESTORATION            5,424.00   2,730,000     611,573.04

          130-5608-577        YMCA LAND ACQUISITION             145.00     500,000     498,826.62

          211-5351-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            141.85       3,500       1,941.28

          211-5353-314        CHEMICALS                       4,218.20     300,000      74,309.98

          211-5353-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            623.23      56,000       7,762.83

          211-5353-377        PLANT EQUIPMENT                   646.18       9,000         170.11

          211-5353-379        OTHER WATER MNTCE MATERIAL        127.92         500          62.88

          211-5353-435        ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMENT        221.97       3,100         531.40

          211-5353-460        OTHER PROPERTY MAINT. SERV         87.32       3,000       1,647.41

          211-5353-519        OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE         44.00      18,000       5,478.61

          211-5353-531        POSTAGE                            18.46         600         204.83

          211-5353-532        TELEPHONE                         212.35       2,500         201.77

          211-5353-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL        561.00     400,000     367,586.44

          211-5353-814        PRINTING & COPY MACHINE LE         29.77         500         157.25

          211-5354-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         171.82       1,000         154.58-  Y

          211-5354-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     171.42       8,000         260.45-  Y

          211-5354-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              8.00       1,500         354.45

          211-5354-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            199.40      30,000      15,020.99



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    42

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          211-5354-363        BACKFILL & SURFACE MATERIA        534.00      10,000       5,448.29-  Y

          211-5354-379        OTHER WATER MAINT. MATERIA        567.60      15,000       8,258.40-  Y

          211-5355-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    33.50       5,000       1,951.46

          211-5355-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     122.18         600         477.82

          211-5355-326        FUEL                            2,998.01      48,000      19,949.96

          211-5355-516        TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE      1,541.08      11,300       2,231.45-  Y

          211-5355-531        POSTAGE                         2,584.00      15,000       1,805.56

          211-5355-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     11,026.00      75,000      40,249.00

          211-5356-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            790.06      20,000       7,833.91

          211-5356-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES        685.61      15,000       5,860.82

          211-5356-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  48.00       1,000         196.90

          211-5356-565        CELLULAR PHONE EXPENSE REI         50.00         600           0.00

          212-5342-313        MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         171.81       1,000         214.45-  Y

          212-5342-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     467.27      10,000       5,848.84-  Y

          212-5342-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             87.47           0       4,044.97-  Y

          212-5342-363        BACKFILL & SURFACE MATERIA      3,774.50      20,000       2,225.48

          212-5342-364        SEWER LINE REPAIR MATERIAL         14.40       2,000         295.39-  Y

          212-5342-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 42.10       2,000         851.55-  Y

          212-5342-439        OTHER REPAIR & MTCE SERVIC      5,432.79       3,000      21,471.63-  Y

          212-5343-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (AM        565.69      23,000       5,108.58-  Y

          212-5343-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,794.70       7,000       6,086.20-  Y

          212-5343-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      2,181.50     190,000     155,576.50

          212-5344-312        CLEANING SUPPLIES                  82.28       2,000         833.36

          212-5344-316        TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  22.77      35,000      33,050.71

          212-5344-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            364.59      19,500      12,398.97

          212-5344-321        NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (AM      6,899.05     275,000      14,196.27-  Y

          212-5344-366        PLANT MTCE & REPAIR MATERI      1,602.46      53,500      20,257.09

          212-5344-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY               187.50      85,000      47,929.05

          212-5344-434        REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 55.00       5,000       3,492.57

          212-5344-439        OTHER REPAIR & MNTCE SERVI        815.28      12,500      20,351.00-  Y

          212-5344-440        RENTALS                            31.50       2,000       1,750.00

          212-5344-460        OTHER PROPERTY MTCE SERVIC        312.58      25,000       5,891.28-  Y

          212-5344-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES        454.87       2,000       8,829.09-  Y

          212-5344-532        TELEPHONE                         429.73       6,000         532.16

          212-5344-814        COPY MACHINE                        1.09       1,000           3.06-  Y

          212-5345-311        OFFICE SUPPLIES                    33.49       5,000         526.42

          212-5345-318        VEHICLE PARTS                     122.15         700         577.85

          212-5345-326        FUEL                            2,998.02      40,000      14,233.10

          212-5345-516        TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE      1,541.07      14,300       2,231.45-  Y

          212-5345-531        POSTAGE                            33.75      15,000         701.66

          212-5345-730        IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     11,026.00      75,000      40,249.00

          212-5345-815        POSTAGE METER LEASE & MTCE        369.99       1,500         382.02

          212-5346-511        PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES      1,499.50      10,000       8,104.55

          212-5346-562        TRAVEL & TRAINING                  48.00       2,000       1,508.00

          212-5346-579        MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        193.75       1,000         354.00

          213-5361-319        MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             41.72       2,500       1,934.67

          213-5361-326        FUEL                              198.16       4,500       2,466.33-  Y

          213-5361-410        UTILITY SERVICES                   93.37       1,000           9.79-  Y



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    43

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

          213-5361-433        REPAIR OF MACHINERY                73.30       2,000       3,132.91-  Y

          213-5361-532        TELEPHONE                         120.73       2,500          76.62

                                TOTAL:                      266,593.45

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-110                 CITY COUNCIL                                        100.00

                    110-120                 CITY CLERK                                        1,682.48

                    110-130                 CITY ADMINISTRATOR                                  232.03

                    110-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                            300.00

                    110-160                 LEGAL SERVICES                                      553.73

                    110-170                 COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS                               176.16

                    110-211                 POLICE ADMINISTRATION                             3,738.48

                    110-212                 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION                              226.43

                    110-213                 PATROL                                               43.00

                    110-217                 CUSTODY OF PRISONERS                                 12.76

                    110-222                 COMMUNICATION SERVICES                            2,027.79

                    110-223                 AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES                               8,628.97

                    110-224                 POLICE BUILDINGS                                  6,283.18

                    110-241                 FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.                            7,934.75

                    110-261                 CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN                              203.29

                    110-310                 PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN                                  286.56

                    110-320                 STREETS                                           9,154.14

                    110-323                 SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS                            5,029.93

                    110-326                 STREET LIGHTING                                  29,275.03

                    110-331                 STREET CLEANING                                   1,445.94

                    110-335                 YARD WASTE COLLECTION                               539.04

                    110-338                 REFUSE COLLECT & DISPOSAL                           877.43

                    110-370                 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION                              17.96

                    110-381                 CUSTODIAL SERVICES                                1,729.11

                    110-383                 BURGESS OSBORNE                                     515.42

                    110-384                 RAILROAD DEPOT                                       96.35

                    110-388                 GARMENT FACTORY                                      43.77

                    110-511                 PARK ADMINISTRATION                              13,143.64

                    110-512                 LAKE ADMINISTRATION                               4,241.40

                    110-521                 DEMARS CENTER                                        15.48

                    110-541                 PETERSON PARK                                     4,347.74

                    110-542                 LAWSON PARK                                          86.80

                    110-551                 BOYS COMPLEX                                        121.71

                    110-552                 GIRLS COMPLEX                                     1,593.00

                    110-554                 LITTLE KINZEL PARK                                  124.53

                    110-561                 EAST CAMPGROUND                                     688.66



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    44

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    110-562                 WEST CAMPGROUND                                      13.20

                    110-563                 MARINA AREA                                       3,473.80

                    110-564                 BEACH AREA                                           13.20

                    110-651                 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT                              5,000.00

                    110-752                 KAL KAN WTR/SWR EXT                               1,288.89

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    110  TOTAL              GENERAL FUND                                    115,305.78

                    122-653                 HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION                          3,866.81

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    122  TOTAL              HOTEL TAX FUND                                    3,866.81

                    123-584                 BAGELFEST                                        11,061.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    123  TOTAL              FESTIVAL MGMT FUND                               11,061.00

                    125-150                 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION                         20,170.79

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    125  TOTAL              INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT                          20,170.79

                    128-604                 MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT                              3,900.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    128  TOTAL              MIDTOWN TIF FUND                                  3,900.00

                    130-321                 STREETS                                           5,132.61

                    130-328                 STORM DRAINAGE                                   28,940.60

                    130-384                 RAILROAD DEPOT                                    5,424.00

                    130-608                 YMCA LAND ACQUISITION                               145.00

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    130  TOTAL              CAPITAL PROJECT FUND                             39,642.21

                    211-351                 RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES                            141.85

                    211-353                 WATER TREATMENT PLANT                             6,790.40

                    211-354                 WATER DISTRIBUTION                                1,652.24

                    211-355                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                          18,304.77

                    211-356                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                          1,573.67

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    211  TOTAL              WATER FUND                                       28,462.93

                    212-342                 SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM                           9,990.34

                    212-343                 SEWER LIFT STATIONS                               4,541.89

                    212-344                 WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT                        11,258.70

                    212-345                 ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION                          16,124.47

                    212-346                 ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL                          1,741.25

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    212  TOTAL              SEWER FUND                                       43,656.65

                    213-361                 MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS                            527.28

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    213  TOTAL              CEMETERY FUND                                       527.28

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                     266,593.45



 4/16/2010 10:46 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:    45

 

                                                           *** PROJECT TOTALS ***

               PROJECT                              LINE ITEM                                           AMOUNT

 

               183 Storm Sewer 27th Chrston         300      Supplies                                12,789.22

                                                                     ** PROJECT 183 TOTAL **         12,789.22

 

    NO ERRORS



 4-15-2010  3:27 PM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet: 17331 - Refunds From Zone zz                                                                 G/L POSTING DATE:  4/15/2010

 

                                                                                        ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- -CK #- ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-18710-15     MANUEL, NICKOLAS D          4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102053        37.35CR  100 34823          60.00CR

05-12200-10     ELLIS, HAROLD               4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102054        44.60CR  100 34468          60.00CR

11-06100-06     MILLER, LEVI J              4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102055         9.72CR  100 34359          60.00CR

13-06120-12     PRAHL, CHERI                4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102056        56.04CR  100 35456          60.00CR

15-09450-03     FRANTZ, MARTIN R            4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102057        41.47CR  100 34294          60.00CR

20-22700-03     CHILDERS, STEPHEN R         4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102058        50.21CR  100 33339          60.00CR

21-04510-09     BONNETT, CHRISTINA S        4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102059        25.68CR  100 33913          60.00CR

22-10410-13     PEDIGO, DEBRA S             4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102060        19.52CR  100 34961          60.00CR

29-02050-08     EASTON, MICHAEL R           4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102061        32.88CR  100 33759          60.00CR

30-12350-04     CHRISTMAN, JESSICA L        4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102062        38.12CR  100 32589          60.00CR

32-13800-08     APRICOT LANE                4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102063        82.19CR  100 31389         100.00CR

34-16110-06     SWEET, DAVID S              4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102064        50.91CR  100 35380          60.00CR

35-12900-03     BROWN, CEDRIC MAURICE       4/15/10 FINAL BILL    102065        47.29CR  100 34667          60.00CR



 4-15-2010  3:25 PM                               REFUND CHECK REGISTER                                                  PAGE:    1

Packet: 17322 - Refunds                                                                              G/L POSTING DATE:  4/15/2010

 

                                                                                        ----------DEPOSIT----------

---ACCOUNT---- ------------NAME----------- --DATE-- ----TYPE----- -CK #- ----AMOUNT---- CODE -RECEIPT-- --AMOUNT--- ----MESSAGE-----

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

16-02700-02     CORWIN, JULIA               4/15/10 DEMAND RETURN 102051        14.00CR  000                 0.00

23-04110-09     SMYSER, ROBERT F            4/15/10 DEMAND RETURN 102052        50.03CR  000                 0.00



 4/16/2010 10:53 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: MFTBK

FUND      : 121  MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

DEPARTMENT: 321  STREETS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266022             121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : 25TH & CHAMPAIGN     102197         572.00

01-002414 CCI REDIMIX            I-266033             121 5321-351        CONCRETE     : 25TH & CHAMPAIGN     102197         220.00

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-002414  TOTALS            792.00

 

01-039200 ILLINOIS BRICK CO.     I-94157160           121 5321-359        OTHER STREET : CONCRETE FINISH BROO 102198          26.40

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-039200  TOTALS             26.40

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 321   STREETS                  TOTAL:         818.40

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 121   MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND      TOTAL:         818.40

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:         818.40



 4/16/2010 10:53 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2009-2010 121-5321-351        CONCRETE                          792.00      17,280       3,034.40

          121-5321-359        OTHER STREET MTCE SUPPLIES         26.40       3,000       2,625.24

                                TOTAL:                          818.40

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    121-321                 STREETS                                             818.40

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    121  TOTAL              MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND                                 818.40

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                         818.40

    NO ERRORS



 4/16/2010 10:52 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: EHBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 412  HEALTH PLAN ADMIN

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000222 CERIDIAN               I-331715723          221 5412-211        HEALTH PLAN A: CERIDIAN             102196          42.86

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000222  TOTALS             42.86

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 412   HEALTH PLAN ADMIN        TOTAL:          42.86

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-201004142899       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PERSONAL CARE        000000      21,782.85

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-201004142939       221 5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIM: PERSONAL CARE        000000      23,242.23

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000236  TOTALS         45,025.08

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 413   MEDICAL CLAIMS           TOTAL:      45,025.08

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-201004142899       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : PERSONAL CARE        000000       8,168.30

01-000236 PERSONAL CARE          I-201004142939       221 5414-211        RX CLAIMS    : PERSONAL CARE        000000       9,547.48

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000236  TOTALS         17,715.78

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 414   RX CLAIMS                TOTAL:      17,715.78

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:      62,783.72

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:      62,783.72



 4/16/2010 10:52 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2009-2010 221-5412-211        HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION         42.86     145,000      23,580.47

          221-5413-211        MEDICAL CLAIMS                 45,025.08   1,632,604     405,545.64

          221-5414-211        RX CLAIMS                      17,715.78     497,000      22,501.45

                                TOTAL:                       62,783.72

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-412                 HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                                    42.86

                    221-413                 MEDICAL CLAIMS                                   45,025.08

                    221-414                 RX CLAIMS                                        17,715.78

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                            62,783.72

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                      62,783.72

    NO ERRORS



 4/16/2010 10:51 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     1

VENDOR SET: 01   CITY OF MATTOON                                                                                        BANK: DDBNK

FUND      : 221  HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DEPARTMENT: 415  DENTAL CLAIMS

INVOICE DATE RANGE:  1/01/1998 THRU 99/99/9999

PAY DATE RANGE:      4/01/2010 THRU  4/15/2010

BUDGET TO USE:      CB-CURRENT BUDGET

VENDOR    NAME                   ITEM #               G/L ACCOUNT         NAME           DESCRIPTION          CHECK #        AMOUNT

====================================================================================================================================

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-201004142911       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000       1,852.80

01-000276 DELTA DENTAL           I-201004142928       221 5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS: DELTA DENTAL         000000       1,721.21

                                                                                                                    _______________

                                                                                         VENDOR 01-000276  TOTALS          3,574.01

 

                                                                    DEPARTMENT 415   DENTAL CLAIMS            TOTAL:       3,574.01

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                    VENDOR SET 221   HEALTH INSURANCE FUND    TOTAL:       3,574.01

                                                                                                 REPORT GRAND TOTAL:       3,574.01



 4/16/2010 10:51 AM                               REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT REPORT                                     PAGE:     2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  G/L ACCOUNT TOTALS  **

                                                                          =========LINE ITEM=========  =======GROUP BUDGET=======

                                                                           ANNUAL        BUDGET  OVER    ANNUAL       BUDGET OVER

YEAR      ACCOUNT             NAME                             AMOUNT      BUDGET      AVAILABLE BUDG    BUDGET    AVAILABLE BUDG

 

2009-2010 221-5415-211        DENTAL CLAIMS                   3,574.01     100,000      13,535.02

                                TOTAL:                        3,574.01

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     **  DEPARTMENT TOTALS  **

                      ACCT                  NAME                                                AMOUNT

 

                    221-415                 DENTAL CLAIMS                                     3,574.01

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                    221  TOTAL              HEALTH INSURANCE FUND                             3,574.01

                    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                            ** TOTAL **                       3,574.01

    NO ERRORS





  

NEW BUSINESS: 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5295  

 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING LOT ONE (1) IN COUNTRY CLUB 
TRACE, A SUBDIVISION IN COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS TO 

THE CITY OF MATTOON 
 
 WHEREAS, a written petition, signed by all legal owners of record of all land 
within the territory hereinafter described, has been filed with the Mattoon City Clerk, 
Coles County, Illinois, requesting that said territory be annexed to the City of Mattoon, 
and,  
 
 WHEREAS, more than 51% of the electors residing on or within the boundaries 
have signed this petition; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the said territory is not within the corporate limits of any 
municipality but is contiguous to the City of Mattoon; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, legal notices regarding the intention of the City to annex said 
territory have been sent to all public bodies required to receive such notice by state 
statute; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, copies of such notices required to be recorded, if any, have been 
recorded in the office of the Recorder of Coles County; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, all petitions, documents, and other necessary legal requirements are 
in full compliance with the statutes of the State of Illinois, specifically Section 7-1-8 of 
the Illinois Municipal Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Mattoon that the territory be 
annexed thereto. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That the territory described as Lot One (1) in Country Club Trace, a 
Subdivision in Coles County, Illinois being indicated on an accurate map of the annexed 
territory (which is appended to and made a part of this Ordinance), is hereby annexed to 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 
 
 Section 2:  That the City Clerk is hereby directed to record with the Recorder and 
to file with the County Clerk a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the 
accurate map of the territory annexed appended to the Ordinance. 
 



  

 Section 3:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
 
Upon motion by     , seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of ___________________, 2010, by a roll call vote, as 
follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of     , 2010. 
 
 
            
      Tim Gover, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2010. 
 



OD
D 

FE
LL

OW
 R

D.

COUNTRY CLUB RD.

--- Haslett Property to be annexed

--- Corporate Boundary



  

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5296  

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING LOT TWO (2) IN COUNTRY CLUB 

TRACE, A SUBDIVISION IN COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS TO 
THE CITY OF MATTOON 

 
 WHEREAS, a written petition, signed by all legal owners of record of all land 
within the territory hereinafter described, has been filed with the Mattoon City Clerk, 
Coles County, Illinois, requesting that said territory be annexed to the City of Mattoon, 
and,  
 
 WHEREAS, there are no electors within said territory; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the said territory is not within the corporate limits of any 
municipality but is contiguous to the City of Mattoon; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, legal notices regarding the intention of the City to annex said 
territory have been sent to all public bodies required to receive such notice by state 
statute; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, copies of such notices required to be recorded, if any, have been 
recorded in the office of the Recorder of Coles County; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, all petitions, documents, and other necessary legal requirements are 
in full compliance with the statutes of the State of Illinois, specifically Section 7-1-8 of 
the Illinois Municipal Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Mattoon that the territory be 
annexed thereto. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That the territory described as Lot Two (2) in Country Club Trace, a 
Subdivision in Coles County, Illinois being indicated on an accurate map of the annexed 
territory (which is appended to and made a part of this Ordinance), is hereby annexed to 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 
 
 Section 2:  That the City Clerk is hereby directed to record with the Recorder and 
to file with the County Clerk a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the 
accurate map of the territory annexed appended to the Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 



  

passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, adopted 
this ___ day of ___________________, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this ____ day of _________, 2010. 
 
 
             
       Tim Gover, Mayor Pro-Tem 
       City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________    _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk     J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2010. 

 



OD
D 

FE
LL

OW
 R

D.

COUNTRY CLUB RD.

--- Corporate Boundary
--- Cline Property to be

Annexed



  

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5297  

 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING LOT NINE (9) IN ROLLING 
GREEN SUBDIVISION, PHASE 5 COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS TO 

THE CITY OF MATTOON 
 
 WHEREAS, a written petition, signed by all legal owners of record of all land 
within the territory hereinafter described, has been filed with the Mattoon City Clerk, 
Coles County, Illinois, requesting that said territory be annexed to the City of Mattoon, 
and,  
 
 WHEREAS, there are no electors within said territory; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the said territory is not within the corporate limits of any 
municipality but is contiguous to the City of Mattoon; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, legal notices regarding the intention of the City to annex said 
territory have been sent to all public bodies required to receive such notice by state 
statute; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, copies of such notices required to be recorded, if any, have been 
recorded in the office of the Recorder of Coles County; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, all petitions, documents, and other necessary legal requirements are 
in full compliance with the statutes of the State of Illinois, specifically Section 7-1-8 of 
the Illinois Municipal Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Mattoon that the territory be 
annexed thereto, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That the territory described as Lot Nine (9) in Rolling Green 
Subdivision, Phase 5 Coles County, Illinois being indicated on an accurate map of the 
annexed territory (which is appended to and made a part of this Ordinance), is hereby 
annexed to the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 
 
 Section 2:  That the City Clerk is hereby directed to record with the Recorder and 
to file with the County Clerk a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the 
accurate map of the territory annexed appended to the Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 



  

 
 
Upon motion by     , seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of    , 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of     , 2010. 
 
 
 
            
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2010. 
 



COUNTRY CLUB RD. S.

MEDINAH CT.

--- Corporate Boundary
--- Koelling Property to be

Annexed



  

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5298  

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING LOT ELEVEN (11) IN ROLLING GREEN 

SUBDIVISION, PHASE 5 COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS TO THE CITY OF 
MATTOON 

 
 WHEREAS, a written petition, signed by all legal owners of record of all land 
within the territory hereinafter described, has been filed with the Mattoon City Clerk, 
Coles County, Illinois, requesting that said territory be annexed to the City of Mattoon, 
and,  
 
 WHEREAS, more than 51% of the electors residing on or within the boundaries 
have signed this petition; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the said territory is not within the corporate limits of any 
municipality but is contiguous to the City of Mattoon; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, legal notices regarding the intention of the City to annex said 
territory have been sent to all public bodies required to receive such notice by state 
statute; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, copies of such notices required to be recorded, if any, have been 
recorded in the office of the Recorder of Coles County; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, all petitions, documents, and other necessary legal requirements are 
in full compliance with the statutes of the State of Illinois, specifically Section 7-1-8 of 
the Illinois Municipal Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Mattoon that the territory be 
annexed thereto. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That the territory described as Lot Eleven (11) in Rolling Green 
Subdivision, Phase 5 Coles County, Illinois being indicated on an accurate map of the 
annexed territory (which is appended to and made a part of this Ordinance), is hereby 
annexed to the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 
 
 Section 2:  That the City Clerk is hereby directed to record with the Recorder and 
to file with the County Clerk a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the 
accurate map of the territory annexed appended to the Ordinance. 
 



  

 Section 3:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of    , 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of    , 2010. 
 
 
 
            
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2010. 
 



COUNTRY CLUB RD. S.

MEDINAH CT.

--- Corporate Boundary
--- Becker Property to be

Annexed



  

 
CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5299  

 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING LOT 1 IN BLOCK 2 IN COUNTRY 
MANOR SUBDIVISION, LAFAYETTE TOWNSHIP, COLES 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS TO THE CITY OF MATTOON 
 
 WHEREAS, a written petition, signed by all legal owners of record of all land 
within the territory hereinafter described, has been filed with the Mattoon City Clerk, 
Coles County, Illinois, requesting that said territory be annexed to the City of Mattoon, 
and,  
 
 WHEREAS, more than 51% of the electors residing on or within the boundaries 
have signed this petition; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the said territory is not within the corporate limits of any 
municipality but is contiguous to the City of Mattoon; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, legal notices regarding the intention of the City to annex said 
territory have been sent to all public bodies required to receive such notice by state 
statute; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, copies of such notices required to be recorded, if any, have been 
recorded in the office of the Recorder of Coles County; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, all petitions, documents, and other necessary legal requirements are 
in full compliance with the statutes of the State of Illinois, specifically Section 7-1-8 of 
the Illinois Municipal Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Mattoon that the territory be 
annexed thereto. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of 
the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That the territory described as Lot 1 in Block 2 in Country Manor 
Subdivision, Lafayette Township, Coles County, Illinois being indicated on an accurate 
map of the annexed territory (which is appended to and made a part of this Ordinance), is 
hereby annexed to the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois. 
 
 Section 2:  That the City Clerk is hereby directed to record with the Recorder and 
to file with the County Clerk a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the 
accurate map of the territory annexed appended to the Ordinance. 
 



  

 Section 3:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of    , 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of     , 2010. 
 
 
 
            
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2010. 
 



COUNTRY CLUB RD.

CO
UN

TR
Y L

N.

--- Corporate Boundary
--- Molzen Property to be

Annexed







  

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-5300  
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE RATES FOR WATER AND SEWER 
SERVICE FOR CUSTOMERS ON THE MATTOON WATER AND SEWER 

SYSTEMS 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon accounts for operations of the Mattoon water system 
operations and Mattoon sewer system operations in separate enterprise funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon completed rate studies for the water and sewer funds 
with recommendations for rate requirements from 2010 through 2015 to keep the funds 
solvent; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Advisory Board at its regular meeting held March 30, 
2010 recommended unanimously to accept the rate study upon which the rates in this 
ordinance are based. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Section § 51.098 of Chapter 51 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Mattoon: 
 
§ 51.098  METER CHARGES AND RATES FOR WATER SERVICE. 
 

(A) Effective May 1, 2010, the user charge shall be levied according to the following 

elements, or unit charges:   

   (1)     There shall be assessed monthly meter charge according to the size of the 

meter installed for each customer's service, as follows: 

       (a)     Residential: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $1.74 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $5.89 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $8.83 

      (b)     Commercial-Industrial: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $5.89 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $8.83 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $11.77 

4. For 1-1/2-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $17.66 



  

5. For two-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $23.54 

6. For three-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $46.98 

7. For four-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $71.41 

8. For six-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $93.96. 

9. For eight-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $117.72. 

          (2)     Where there is more than one meter installation for any customer, the 

minimum shall apply to each such meter. 

         (3)     In addition to the meter charge, the following schedule of rates shall be used 

to calculate the monthly billing for each customer: 

             (a)     For treated water usage inside city limits for billing period: 

1. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $3.23 per 100 cubic feet 

2. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $2.57 per 100 cubic feet 

3. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $2.04 per 100 cubic feet 

             (b)     For treated water usage outside city limits for each billing period: 

1. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $4.99 per 100 cubic feet 

2. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $3.92 per 100 cubic feet 

3. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $3.16 per 100 cubic feet 

 
(B) Effective May 1, 2011, the user charge shall be levied according to the following 

elements, or unit charges:   

   (1)     There shall be assessed monthly meter charge according to the size of the 

meter installed for each customer's service, as follows: 

       (a)     Residential: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $1.83 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $6.18 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $9.27 

      (b)     Commercial-Industrial: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $6.18 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $9.27 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $12.36 

4. For 1-1/2-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $18.54 



  

5. For two-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $24.72 

6. For three-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $49.33 

7. For four-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $73.93 

8. For six-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $98.66. 

9. For eight-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $123.61. 

          (2)     Where there is more than one meter installation for any customer, the 

minimum shall apply to each such meter. 

         (3)     In addition to the meter charge, the following schedule of rates shall be used 

to calculate the monthly billing for each customer: 

             (a)     For treated water usage inside city limits for billing period: 

4. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $3.39 per 100 cubic feet 

5. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $2.70 per 100 cubic feet 

6. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $2.14 per 100 cubic feet 

             (b)     For treated water usage outside city limits for each billing period: 

4. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $5.24 per 100 cubic feet 

5. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $4.12 per 100 cubic feet 

6. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $3.32 per 100 cubic feet 

 

(C) Effective May 1, 2012, the user charge shall be levied according to the following 

elements, or unit charges:   

   (1)     There shall be assessed monthly meter charge according to the size of the 

meter installed for each customer's service, as follows: 

       (a)     Residential: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $1.92 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $6.49 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $9.37 

      (b)     Commercial-Industrial: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $6.49 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $9.37 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $12.98 

4. For 1-1/2-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $19.47 



  

5. For two-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $25.96 

6. For three-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $51.79 

7. For four-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $77.63 

8. For six-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $103.59. 

9. For eight-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $129.79. 

          (2)     Where there is more than one meter installation for any customer, the 

minimum shall apply to each such meter. 

         (3)     In addition to the meter charge, the following schedule of rates shall be used 

to calculate the monthly billing for each customer: 

             (a)     For treated water usage inside city limits for billing period: 

7. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $3.56 per 100 cubic feet 

8. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $2.84 per 100 cubic feet 

9. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $2.25 per 100 cubic feet 

             (b)     For treated water usage outside city limits for each billing period: 

7. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $5.50 per 100 cubic feet 

8. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $4.33 per 100 cubic feet 

9. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $3.49 per 100 cubic feet 

 

(D) Effective May 1, 2013, the user charge shall be levied according to the following 

elements, or unit charges:   

   (1)     There shall be assessed monthly meter charge according to the size of the 

meter installed for each customer's service, as follows: 

       (a)     Residential: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $1.98 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $6.68 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $10.03 

      (b)     Commercial-Industrial: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $6.68 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $10.03 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $13.37 

4. For 1-1/2-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $20.05 



  

5. For two-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $26.74 

6. For three-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $53.35 

7. For four-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $79.96 

8. For six-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $106.70. 

9. For eight-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $133.68. 

          (2)     Where there is more than one meter installation for any customer, the 

minimum shall apply to each such meter. 

         (3)     In addition to the meter charge, the following schedule of rates shall be used 

to calculate the monthly billing for each customer: 

             (a)     For treated water usage inside city limits for billing period: 

1. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $3.66 per 100 cubic feet 

2. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $2.92 per 100 cubic feet 

3. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $2.31 per 100 cubic feet 

             (b)     For treated water usage outside city limits for each billing period: 

1. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $5.67 per 100 cubic feet 

2. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $4.46 per 100 cubic feet 

3. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $3.59 per 100 cubic feet 

 
(E) Effective May 1, 2014, the user charge shall be levied according to the following 

elements, or unit charges:   

   (1)     There shall be assessed monthly meter charge according to the size of the 

meter installed for each customer's service, as follows: 

       (a)     Residential: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $2.04 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $6.88 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $10.33 

      (b)     Commercial-Industrial: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $6.88 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $10.33 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $13.77 

4. For 1-1/2-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $20.65 



  

5. For two-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $27.54 

6. For three-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $54.95 

7. For four-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $82.36 

8. For six-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $109.90. 

9. For eight-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $137.69. 

          (2)     Where there is more than one meter installation for any customer, the 

minimum shall apply to each such meter. 

         (3)     In addition to the meter charge, the following schedule of rates shall be used 

to calculate the monthly billing for each customer: 

             (a)     For treated water usage inside city limits for billing period: 

1. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $3.77 per 100 cubic feet 

2. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $3.01 per 100 cubic feet 

3. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $2.38 per 100 cubic feet 

             (b)     For treated water usage outside city limits for each billing period: 

1. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $5.84 per 100 cubic feet 

2. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $4.59 per 100 cubic feet 

3. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $3.70 per 100 cubic feet 

 
(F) Effective May 1, 2015, the user charge shall be levied according to the following 

elements, or unit charges:   

   (1)     There shall be assessed monthly meter charge according to the size of the 

meter installed for each customer's service, as follows: 

       (a)     Residential: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $2.10 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $7.09 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $10.64 

      (b)     Commercial-Industrial: 

1. For 5/8-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $7.09 

2. For 3/4-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $10.64 

3. For one-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $14.18 

4. For 1-1/2-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $21.27 



  

5. For two-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $28.36 

6. For three-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $56.60 

7. For four-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $84.83 

8. For six-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $113.19. 

9. For eight-inch meter, the minimum bill shall be $141.82. 

          (2)     Where there is more than one meter installation for any customer, the 

minimum shall apply to each such meter. 

         (3)     In addition to the meter charge, the following schedule of rates shall be used 

to calculate the monthly billing for each customer: 

             (a)     For treated water usage inside city limits for billing period: 

1. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $3.89 per 100 cubic feet 

2. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $3.10 per 100 cubic feet 

3. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $2.46 per 100 cubic feet 

             (b)     For treated water usage outside city limits for each billing period: 

1. First 2,000 cubic feet or less, $6.01 per 100 cubic feet 

2. Next 298,000 cubic feet, $4.73 per 100 cubic feet 

3. All usage over 300,000 cubic feet, $3.81 per 100 cubic feet 

 
Section 2. Section §50.096 of Chapter 50 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Mattoon: 
 
  § 50.096 USER CHARGE; DEBT SERVICE CHARGE. 
 
      (A)     Effective May 1, 2010, the user charge shall be levied according to the 

following elements, or unit charges: 

          (1)     Inside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $3.19. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.43. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.66. 

               (d)     For debt service, $1.56. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in § 50.002 

as any other user. 



  

               (f)     A basic charge of $4.75 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.30 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

          (2)     Outside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $3.19. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.43. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.66. 

               (d)     For debt service, $3.65. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in Section 

50.002 as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $6.85 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.30 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

 

           (B)     Effective May 1, 2011, the user charge shall be levied according to the 

following elements, or unit charges: 

          (1)     Inside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $3.43. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.46. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.71. 

               (d)     For debt service, $1.57. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in § 50.002 

as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $5.00 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 



  

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.40 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

          (2)     Outside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $3.43. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.46. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.71. 

               (d)     For debt service, $3.67. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in Section 

50.002 as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $7.10 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.40 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

 

           (C)     Effective May 1, 2012, the user charge shall be levied according to the 

following elements, or unit charges: 

          (1)     Inside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $3.58. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.48. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.74. 

               (d)     For debt service, $1.58. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in § 50.002 

as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $5.16 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.46 per bill shall be charged for 



  

each bill rendered. 

          (2)     Outside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $3.58. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.48. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.74. 

               (d)     For debt service, $3.69. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in Section 

50.002 as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $7.27 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.46 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

 

           (D)     Effective May 1, 2013, the user charge shall be levied according to the 

following elements, or unit charges: 

          (1)     Inside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $3.73. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.50. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.77. 

               (d)     For debt service, $1.59. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in § 50.002 

as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $5.32 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.52 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

          (2)     Outside user charge. 



  

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $3.73. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.50. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.77. 

               (d)     For debt service, $3.71. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in Section 

50.002 as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $7.44 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.52 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

 

           (E)     Effective May 1, 2014, the user charge shall be levied according to the 

following elements, or unit charges: 

          (1)     Inside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $4.01. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.54. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.83. 

               (d)     For debt service, $1.48. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in § 50.002 

as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $5.49 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.63 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

          (2)     Outside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $4.01. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.54. 



  

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.83. 

               (d)     For debt service, $3.47. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in Section 

50.002 as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $7.48 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.63 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

 

           (F)     Effective May 1, 2015, the user charge shall be levied according to the 

following elements, or unit charges: 

          (1)     Inside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $4.17. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.56. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.86. 

               (d)     For debt service, $1.49. 

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in § 50.002 

as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $5.66 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.70 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

          (2)     Outside user charge. 

               (a)     Per 100 cubic feet of flow, $4.17. 

               (b)     Per pound of BOD, $0.56. 

               (c)     Per pound of Suspended Solids, $0.86. 

               (d)     For debt service, $3.48. 



  

               (e)     A surcharge of the same unit charges as enumerated above shall be levied 

on all strengths (#BOD and #SS) of waste above domestic sewage as defined in Section 

50.002 as any other user. 

               (f)     A basic charge of $7.66 per 100 cubic feet shall be billed as the minimum 

residential bill, which includes the domestic level waste in terms of the pounds charged in 

divisions (2) and (3) of this section. 

  (g)     A billing and collection charge of $1.70 per bill shall be charged for 

each bill rendered. 

Section 3.  This ordinance shall be effective upon approval as provided by law.  

Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this     day of ____________, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of    , 2010. 

 
      ______________________________ 
      David Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2010. 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF MATTOON 
Water Rate Study  

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Written and submitted by: 
David Wortman 

Public Works Director 
 
 

March 2010 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

i 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
  
Section 1 Executive Summary………………………………………………...  2 

Section 2 Background ………………………………………………………...  3 

  2.1 Changes in Water Department……………………...…………..  3 

  2.2 Water Usage and Sales……………………………...…………..  6 

Section 3 Revenue Requirements……………………………………………..  7 

  3.1 Operating Expenses ……………………………………………  7 

3.2 Debt Service Payments………………….…………………...…  9 

3.3 Capital Expenditures/Depreciation……………………………... 9 

3.4 Total Revenue Requirements……………………………………11  

Section 4 Rate Calculation………………………………………………….… 11 

 

APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A Statement of Revenues and Expenses (FY04 through FY15)………13 

Appendix B Water Usage and Sales……………………………………....……....15 

Appendix C Current and Proposed Water Rates………………………………….16 

Appendix D Water Fund Categorized Operating Expenses……………………... 23 

Appendix E Raw Water Draws and Contracts…………………………………... 24 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

2 

SECTION 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Water rates for the City of Mattoon have not been raised since May 2002. Since that time 

there has been a decrease in volume of water sold which has reduced revenues. Water 

sales revenue declined from 3.1 million in FY03/04 to 2.8 million in FY08/09. Over the 

same period inflation has gone up 17 percent (Chicago CPI; 181.4 in May 2002 to 212.2 

in November 2009). Inflation and the decrease in sales, taken together, are equivalent to a 

decline of 25 percent in purchasing power from our revenues since May of 2002.  

 

Water revenues are currently only covering operating costs and debt service with capital 

expenditures being funded from cash balance that existed in 2002. The water fund has 

remained solvent over that time due to cost cutting measures. We have controlled the 

increase of operating expenses by reducing staff via the early retirement incentive offered 

in 2002. The trend of reducing costs by reducing employees has continued through the 

years. In FY01/02 the total employee costs equaled 1.2 million dollars by FY08/09 that 

had reduced to 1.07 million dollars; an 11 percent reduction in employee costs over a 

seven-year period. 

 

This study details the revenues and expenses for the water fund since FY04/05 and 

projects expenses through FY15/16. Those projected expenses (operating, capital, and 

debt service) are used to define the revenue requirements needed to place the fund on 

firm financial footing for the next six years. 

 

This process reveals a need to raise water rates for next fiscal year, followed by 

scheduled rate increases each May as shown below. The full rate tables are shown in 

Appendix C. 

Table 1.1 – Proposed Base Water Rate through FY15/16 
($/100 ft^3) 

Current 

Rate

10/11 

Rate

11/12 

Rate

12/13 

Rate

13/14 

Rate

14/15 

Rate

15/16 

Rate

Inside City 2.96 3.23 3.39 3.56 3.66 3.77 3.89

Outside City 4.58 4.99 5.24 5.50 5.67 5.84 6.01
 

 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

3 

 
 

This water rate study is being accompanied by a sewer rate study. Shown below is the 

effect the proposed changes in the two rates will have on a monthly city utility bill. 

Table 1.2 – Change to Average Household City Utility Bill 
 

Current 

Rates
FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Water Bill for Average house (461 cuft) 15.25       16.61       17.45       18.32       18.87       19.44       20.02       

Sewer Bill for Average house (461 cuft) 22.20       23.65       24.94       25.73       26.54       27.50       28.37       

Utility Tax for Average house (461 cuft) 0.76         0.83         0.87         0.92         0.94         0.97         1.00         

Total Bill for Average house (461 cuft) 38.21       41.09       43.27       44.97       46.36       47.91       49.39       

7.6% 5.3% 3.9% 3.1% 3.3% 3.1%  
 

With an assumed usage of 461 ft^3 per month, which was the average household usage in 

2009, the average home in Mattoon will see a monthly increase of $2.88 for their city 

utility bill, an increase of 7.6 percent. 

 

SECTION 2: BACKGROUND 
 

The City of Mattoon last completed a Water Rate Study in April 2002. Crawford, 

Murphy & Tilly, Inc. conducted that study. The City Council acted on the 

recommendation of that study and raised the water rates by thirteen percent on June 1, 

2002. Water rates have not been raised since that increase.  

 

2.1 CHANGES IN WATER DEPARTMENT 

There have been many changes to the water department since 2002, some have reduced 

costs others have meant greater expenditures. The following is a list of significant 

changes in the department since the 2002 rate study. 

 

Revenue Positive Changes: 

1) the Water Department was combined with the Sewer Department and Street 

Department to become the Public Works Department; and 

2) in 2002 the City offered an early retirement incentive program and did not replace 

retired water employees; and  



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

4 

3) historically low interest rates allowed for the refinancing of outstanding debt 

yielding a lower annual debt service; and 

4) new water sales contracts with R. R. Donnelley and the Village of Humboldt were 

signed which made their rates equal to other extraterritorial users; and 

5) the City changed the policy for granting adjustments for leaks making it more 

difficult to reduce payment and intensified collection of unpaid bills; and 

6) the City sold the Doran’s farm land which generated a one-time cash gain of over 

$400,000; and 

7) the City has sold the majority of the residential rental lots at Lake Paradise to the 

leaseholders and paid a one-time fee to Paradise Township to take over the 

maintenance of East Lake Paradise Road, this has added much more non-

operating revenue than the city will see in future years; and  

8) in 2009 the City again offered an early retirement incentive program and does not 

plan to replace some retired water employees; and 

9) the city has entered into a water sales agreement with Moultrie County Rural 

Public Water District to provide them with 100,000 gallons of water each day. 

 

Revenue Negative Changes: 

10) there have been several major capital projects; the Home Depot Stand Pipe, the 

carbon permanganate system for taste and odor control, the repainting of the three 

existing water towers, the Lake Paradise Clean Lakes Project and the renovation 

of the Lake Paradise raw water pumping station; and 

11) the City has undertaken a major initiative to replace or retrofit all of the meters in 

the system and has implemented new billing software; and 

12) the annual payment for the water fund retirees health insurance cost is now paid 

from the water fund, in the past those payments had been from the general fund, 

in FY09/10 the payment was $90,000; and 

13) annual water sales have decreased from 681 million gallons sold in 2002 to 588 

million gallons sold in 2009, a thirteen percent decrease. 

 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

5 

The cost cutting measures implemented since 2002 have succeeded in controlling the 

operating expenses in the water fund. Since FY02 operating expenses have increased 10 

percent, which well below inflation. However, over the past eight years total revenues 

have not covered our total expenses. In 2002 the water fund had a cash balance of four 

million dollars, which is a high fund balance if there is no long-term plan for the money. 

Thus over the past seven years we have funded capital projects from our fund balance. As 

shown in Chart 2.1 in years with low expenditures on capital projects we have had 

revenues exceed expenses but in most years we have run a deficit. Since 2002 the balance 

has decreased 4.0 million dollars to its current value of 1.33 million. 

 

Chart 2.1 – Historic Revenues and Expenses FY04 through FY10 

-

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,500,000 

2,000,000 

2,500,000 

3,000,000 

3,500,000 

4,000,000 

4,500,000 

5,000,000 

2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010

- Operating Revenue

- Non-operating Revenue
Capital Expense -

Debt Service -

Operating Expense -

 
(For data see Appendix A.) 

 

 

 

 

2.2 WATER USAGE AND SALES 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

6 

 
To correctly assign rates the total water treated and billed must be accurately known. 

Employees at the water treatment plant maintain a daily log recording the amount of raw 

water drawn from Lake Paradise and Lake Mattoon and the amount of treated water that 

is pumped to town. The total volume billed is taken from the city water billing system. 

Chart 2.2 shows the water usage and sales for the past ten years. 

 

Chart 2.2 – Mattoon Water Usage and Sales (Calendar 2000 - 2009) 
(million gallons per day) 

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Raw

Finished

Billed

(Data for this graph is contained in Appendix B.) 
 

The graph shows that there has been a decrease in water sales from 1.95 million gallons 

per day in 2000 to 1.61 million gallons per day for 2009. The one-year increase in 2003 

was related to sales to Embarrass Rural Water District before they began purchasing their 

water from Illinois American Water Company. The cause for the decrease in water sales 

is not entirely known. We know that some of our large industrial customers have made 

changes to their plant to reduce their water usage but a significant portion decline remains 

unexplained. There is some good news; from 2008 to 2009 billed water sales increase 2 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

7 

percent. The revenue projections in this report assume no further increase or decrease in 

water sales for the next five years but this is an assumption that will need to be 

monitored. 

 

Another interesting trend shown in Chart 2.2 is the large decrease in water pumped from 

our lakes. Before our new water treatment plant brought online in 1999 all of the water 

that was pumped from the lakes ended up in town and eventually in Kickapoo Creek. 

Now, with the new plant sitting on Lake Paradise, the majority of the water used to treat 

our water, that is the difference between the blue line on the graph and the pink line, is 

emptied back into Lake Paradise. Thus in 2000 almost 2.9 million gallons of water each 

day was pumped out of our lakes, today we are removing less than two million gallons 

each day from our lake system. We are leaving 900,000 gallons more water each day in 

our lakes than ten years ago. This is water that is now available as a resource for future 

growth. 

 

SECTION 3: REVENUE REQUIREMENTS 

In this section expenses are projected for the next five years. The expenses include three 

components; operating expenses, debt service, and capital expenditures/depreciation. The 

operating expenses are projected from past years with increases for inflation. The debt 

service is a known number set by our past loans and bonds. In Section 2 the actual capital 

projects for past years were shown; in this section the projected expenses are the planned 

projects form the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan. The projected expenses are added 

together to define the future revenue requirements for the water fund. 

  

3.1 OPERATING EXPENSES 

The operating expenses of the past six years have varied between 1.75 million dollars a 

year to as high as 2.25 million. The spike in FY03 was due to payments from the water 

fund to the city’s general fund for work performed by the city’s engineering forces, 

included in Chart 3.1 as “Other Objects” and the FY05 spike was the repair and 

repainting of the filters at the water treatment plant, included as “Property Maintenance.”  

 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

8 

Chart 3.1 – Annual Operating Expenses (2004 through 2015) 

0

250,000

500,000

750,000

1,000,000

1,250,000

1,500,000

1,750,000

2,000,000

2,250,000

2,500,000

FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 B FY10 P FY11 P FY12 P FY13 P FY14 P FY15 P

Other Objects

Other Purchased Services

Property Maintenance Services

Supplies

Salaries and Benefits

 (Data for this graph is contained in Appendix D) 

 

The two most significant trends in the operating expenses have been the decrease in 

Personnel Services and Benefits over the last five years and the increase in Supplies. The 

Salaries and Benefits have gone down due to steady staff reductions. That process has 

now fully played itself out and no further reductions are expected. The increases in 

Supplies are due to increased cost for water treatment chemicals and higher electricity 

costs. The projections are based on the average past values increasing at an annual 

inflation rate 2.5 percent. The projected operating expenses are shown in Table 3.1. 

 

Table 3.1 – Projected Operating Expenses (FY10 through FY15) 
 

Category FY10 P FY11 P FY12 P FY13 P FY14 P FY15 P

Salaries and Benefits 1,029,324 1,065,350 1,102,638 1,141,230 1,181,173 1,222,514

Supplies 657,267 673,699 690,541 707,805 725,500 743,637

Property Maintenance Services 106,585 109,249 111,981 114,780 117,650 120,591

Other Purchased Services 157,557 161,496 165,533 169,672 173,913 178,261

Other Objects 84,565 86,679 88,846 91,067 93,344 95,677

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 2,035,297 2,096,473 2,159,538 2,224,553 2,291,579 2,360,681  



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

9 

 

3.2 DEBT SERVICE 

The debt service payments are fixed values set by previous council action. Chart 3.2 

gives past and future debt payments. 

 

Table 3.2 – Debt Service Payments Schedule 
 

Loan Debt

Water Series 

2003 G.O. 

Bonds

ERI Series 

2003A G.O. 

Bonds (Water 

Portion)

Bond Total
 IEPA - 

Water Loan

2004/2005 583,655       48,291         631,946       522,429       1,154,376    

2005/2006 586,355       48,078         634,433       522,429       1,156,862    

2006/2007 588,605       47,811         636,416       522,429       1,158,846    

2007/2008 590,405       47,492         637,897       522,429       1,160,326    

2008/2009 596,755       47,119         643,874       522,429       1,166,303    

2009/2010 597,505       47,915         645,420       522,429       1,167,850    

2010/2011 607,505       48,606         656,111       522,429       1,178,540    

2011/2012 611,840       47,967         659,807       522,429       1,182,236    

2012/2013 619,720       48,498         668,218       522,429       1,190,647    

2013/2014 626,240       626,240       522,429       1,148,669    

2014/2015 631,350       631,350       522,429       1,153,779    

2015/2016 522,429       522,429       

2016/2017 522,429       522,429       

2017/2018 522,429       522,429       

2018/2019 522,429       522,429       

2019/2020 522,429       522,429       

2020/2023* 522,429       522,429       

Total     Debt 

Service

Bond Debt

 

 

3.3 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES/DEPRECIATION 

The expenditures for capital projects vary greatly from year to year as shown in Chart 

3.3.  Since the last rate increase there have been four major capital projects; the Home 

Depot Stand Pipe, the carbon permanganate system, the repainting of the three existing 

water towers, and the Lake Paradise Clean Lakes Project.  

 

 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

10 

Table 3.3 – Historic Capital Expenditures 
 

Year Capital Expenses

FY04 1,174,310

FY05 795,845

FY06 943,637

FY07 540,543

FY08 99,054

5-year 

Average
710,678

 

 

To estimate future capital expenditures the water treatment plant superintendant, public 

works superintendent, and the public works direct have prepared a multi-year capital 

improvement plan, shown in Table 3.4.  

 

Table 3.4 – Water Capital Improvement Plan 
 

Project 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16

Paradise Pumphouse 400,000  

Altitude Valve on West Tower 40,000    

Radio Read Water Meters 75,000    75,000    75,000    

Charleston Avenue Bridge 54,500    

Repairs to Lake Paradise Dam 400,000  

2nd Stage Lagoon at WTP 50,000    

Repainting SBL Tank 300,000  

System-wide Hydrant Upgrade 100,000  

System-wide Water Model 50,000    

Water Looping Projects 300,000  300,000  

New Clearwell at WTP 75,000    425,000  

Annual Total 569,500  475,000  525,000  350,000  375,000  425,000   

 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

11 

 

3.4 TOTAL REVENUE REQUIREMENTS 

The total revenue requirement for the next six years is the sum or the operating expenses, 

debt payments, and capital projects. The values are shown in Table 3.5. 

 

Table 3.5 – Projected Revenue Requirements (FY10 through FY15) 
 

Operating 

Expenses
Debt Service

Capital 

Projects

Total 

Expenses

FY10 P 2,035,297     1,260,788     569,500        3,865,585     

FY11 P 2,096,473     1,274,735     475,000        3,846,209     

FY12 P 2,159,538     1,281,809     525,000        3,966,347     

FY13 P 2,224,553     1,293,709     350,000        3,868,263     

FY14 P 2,291,579     1,255,561     375,000        3,922,140     

FY15 P 2,360,681     1,264,412     425,000        4,050,093      

 

SECTION 4: RATE CALCULATION 

The last step in this study is to determine the necessary water rates which must be 

charged for future revenues to equal the future expenses. To do this the projected total 

expenses are used to define the total required revenues. A simplifying assumption will be 

made at this point; the rate increase will be equal for all rate groups and total revenues 

will be assumed to increase at that rate, i.e. total sales volume will remain unchanged. 

 

Given those assumptions the water rate base water rate for the next six years are 

suggested to be as shown in Table 4.1, beginning with a proposed increase of 9 percent 

on May 1, 2010. The full tables for the proposed rates are shown in Appendix C. 

Table 4.1 – Proposed Base Water Rate through FY2015 
($/100 ft^3) 

 

Base Rate Current FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Inside City 2.96      3.23      3.39      3.56      3.66      3.77      3.89      

Outside City 4.58      4.99      5.24      5.50      5.67      5.84      6.01      

Percent Increase - 9% 5% 5% 3% 3% 3%  

 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

12 

Implementing these proposed rate increases will not immediately balance the water fund 

budget. Over the next three years the fund will reach the point when are all expenses are 

funded, as shown in Table 4.2 and Chart 4.1on the next page. In FY13 the water fund will 

begin to see annual surpluses. 

 

Table 4.2 – Water Fund Projected Revenues and Projected Expenses  
Under the Proposed Rate Schedule 

 

Projectes 

Expenses

Projected 

Revenues
Annual Net

FY10 P 3,865,585        3,424,421        (441,165)         

FY11 P 3,846,209        3,655,497        (190,712)         

FY12 P 3,966,347        3,817,897        (148,450)         

FY13 P 3,868,263        3,916,509        48,246             

FY14 P 3,922,140        4,023,379        101,239           

FY15 P 4,050,093        4,133,605        83,513              
 

Chart 4.1 – Water Fund Required Revenues and Total Projected 
Expenses under the Proposed Rate Schedule 

 

-

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,500,000 

2,000,000 

2,500,000 

3,000,000 

3,500,000 

4,000,000 

4,500,000 

5,000,000 

2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016

- Operating Revenue

- Non-operating Revenue
Capital Expense -

Debt Service -

Operating Expense -



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

13 

APPENDIX A – STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES (FY04 through FY15) 
 

Water Fund Revenues and Expenses – Historic – FY04 through FY09 

2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget

Water Sales 2,746,264 2,967,455 2,861,362 2,873,951 2,764,152 3,000,000

Utility Taxes 105,724 108,502 99,666 100,317 95,381 100,000

Reliant Energy Sales 61,500 65,573 63,341 76,807 76,368 75,000

Farm Income 17,480 17,480 17,600 22,043 19,433 5,000

Leases & Rentals 50,289 30,247 25,136 18,672 18,980 17,500

Permits & Tapping Fees 8,585 4,140 9,010 11,208 3,883 7,500

Misc. & Sundry Revenues 18,245 16,656 18,324 33,984 58,002 20,000

Operating Revenues 3,008,086 3,091,551 3,092,670 3,036,665 3,036,199 3,225,000

Interest Earnings 29,951 50,104 51,153 48,222 35,954 27,500

Sale of Capital Assets 13,200 77,512 518,491 93,133 430,275 150,000

State Capital Grants 76,000 0 276,033 199,725 0 18,000

Contributed Capital 0 0 0 38,015 1,053 0

Non-operating Revenues 119,151 127,616 845,677 379,095 467,282 195,500

TOTAL REVENUES 3,127,239 3,219,155 3,938,347 3,415,760 3,503,481 3,420,500

Total Operating Expenses 1,919,670 1,747,406 1,770,631 1,880,524 2,040,449 2,087,865

Total Capital Expenses 1,174,310 795,845 943,637 540,543 99,054 743,782

Total Debt Service 1,145,585 1,155,179 1,157,144 1,159,771 1,161,230 1,258,095

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,239,566 3,698,430 3,871,411 3,580,838 3,300,732 4,089,742

Annual Deficit -1,112,328 -479,275 66,936 -165,078 202,749 -669,242  



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

14 

APPENDIX A – STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES (FY04 through FY15) 
 

Water Fund Revenues and Expenses – Projected – FY10 through FY15 

2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Water Sales 3,098,474 3,331,398 3,497,968 3,602,907 3,710,994 3,822,324

Utility Taxes 108,447 116,599 122,429 126,102 129,885 133,781

Reliant Energy Sales 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000

Farm Income 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

Leases & Rentals 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500

Permits & Tapping Fees 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500

Misc. & Sundry Revenues 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500

Operating Revenues 3,334,421 3,575,497 3,747,897 3,856,509 3,968,379 4,083,605

Interest Earnings 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000

Sale of Capital Assets 50,000 40,000 30,000 20,000 15,000 10,000

State Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contributed Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0

Non-operating Revenues 90,000 80,000 70,000 60,000 55,000 50,000

TOTAL REVENUES 3,424,421 3,655,497 3,817,897 3,916,509 4,023,379 4,133,605

Total Operating Expenses 2,035,297 2,096,473 2,159,538 2,224,553 2,291,579 2,360,681

Total Capital Expenses 569,500 475,000 525,000 350,000 375,000 425,000

Total Debt Service 1,260,788 1,274,735 1,281,809 1,293,709 1,255,561 1,264,412

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,865,585 3,846,209 3,966,347 3,868,263 3,922,140 4,050,093

Annual Deficit -441,165 -190,712 -148,450 48,246 101,239 83,513



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

15 

APPENDIX B – WATER USAGE AND SALES 
 

Table B.1 – Raw Water Usage and Treated Water Sales (Calendar 2000 - 2009) 
(million of gallons per day) 

 

Year

Raw Water 

Pumped from 

Lake

Finished Water 

Pumped to 

Town

Billed Water 

Total

2000 2.92 2.76 1.95

2001 2.55 2.46 1.98

2002 2.34 2.22 1.86

2003 2.55 2.33 1.93

2004 2.39 2.16 1.74

2005 2.36 2.15 1.75

2006 2.35 2.14 1.72

2007 2.38 2.10 1.73

2008 2.20 1.96 1.58

2009 2.17 1.96 1.61  

 
Table B.2 – Water Volume Billed (2009) 

(million of gallons per day) 
 Inside Outside TOTAL 

0.734 0.058 0.793 
Residential 

  49 % 

0.503 0.325 0.829 
Commercial 

  51 % 

1.238 0.384 1.621 TOTAL 
76 % 24 %  

 
 

Table B.3 – Water Customers by Group (2009) 
(number of users) 

 Inside Outside TOTAL 
6,480 415 6,894 

Residential 
  87 % 

987 49 1,035 
Commercial 

  13 % 

7,466 464 7,929 TOTAL 
94 % 6 %  



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

16 

 
APPENDIX C – CURRENT AND PROPOSED WATER RATES 

 

Table C.1 – Current Mattoon Water Rates 
 

Monthly 0 cuft 2,000 cuft Greater

Service Service Base to to than

Code Group Charge 2,000 cuft 300,000 cuft 300,000 cuft

($) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft)

GAL Gallon Meters 5.40        

W01 Residential 5/8" - Inside 1.60        

W02 Residential 3/4" - Inside 5.40        

W03 Residential 1" - Inside 8.10        

W04 Residential 1 1/2" - Inside 16.20      

W05 Residential 2" - Inside 21.60      

W20 Commercial 5/8" - Inside 5.40        

W21 Commercial 3/4" - Inside 8.10        

W22 Commercial 1" - Inside 10.80      

W23 Commercial 1 1/2" - Inside 16.20      

W24 Commercial 2" - Inside 21.60      

W25 Commercial 3" - Inside 43.10      

W26 Commercial 4" - Inside 64.60      

W27 Commercial 6" - Inside 86.20      

W28 Commercial 8" - Inside 108.00    

W11 Residential 5/8" - Outside 1.60        

W12 Residential 3/4" - Outside 5.40        

W13 Residential 1" - Outside 8.10        

W14 Residential 1 1/2" - Outside 16.20      

W15 Residential 2" - Outside 21.60      

W30 Commercial 5/8" - Outside 8.10        

W31 Commercial 3/4" - Outside 8.10        

W32 Commercial 1" - Outside 10.80      

W33 Commercial 1 1/2" - Outside 16.20      

W34 Commercial 2" - Outside 21.60      

W35 Commercial 3" - Outside 43.10      

W38 Commercial 4" - Outside 64.60      

W36 Commercial 6" - Outside 86.20      

W37 Commercial 8" - Outside 108.00    

W42 Humboldt 64.60      

W44 Clearwater (Treated water) 156.00    

2.36 1.87

4.58 3.60 2.90

2.96



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

17 

 
APPENDIX C – CURRENT AND PROPOSED WATER RATES 

 

Table C.2 – Proposed Mattoon Water Rates (May 2010 through April 2011) 

Monthly 0 cuft 2,000 cuft Greater

Service Service Base to to than

Code Group Charge 2,000 cuft 300,000 cuft 300,000 cuft

($) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft)

GAL Gallon Meters 5.89        

W01 Residential 5/8" - Inside 1.74        

W02 Residential 3/4" - Inside 5.89        

W03 Residential 1" - Inside 8.83        

W04 Residential 1 1/2" - Inside 17.66      

W05 Residential 2" - Inside 23.54      

W20 Commercial 5/8" - Inside 5.89        

W21 Commercial 3/4" - Inside 8.83        

W22 Commercial 1" - Inside 11.77      

W23 Commercial 1 1/2" - Inside 17.66      

W24 Commercial 2" - Inside 23.54      

W25 Commercial 3" - Inside 46.98      

W26 Commercial 4" - Inside 70.41      

W27 Commercial 6" - Inside 93.96      

W28 Commercial 8" - Inside 117.72    

W11 Residential 5/8" - Outside 1.74        

W12 Residential 3/4" - Outside 5.89        

W13 Residential 1" - Outside 8.83        

W14 Residential 1 1/2" - Outside 17.66      

W15 Residential 2" - Outside 23.54      

W30 Commercial 5/8" - Outside 8.83        

W31 Commercial 3/4" - Outside 8.83        

W32 Commercial 1" - Outside 11.77      

W33 Commercial 1 1/2" - Outside 17.66      

W34 Commercial 2" - Outside 23.54      

W35 Commercial 3" - Outside 46.98      

W38 Commercial 4" - Outside 70.41      

W36 Commercial 6" - Outside 93.96      

W37 Commercial 8" - Outside 117.72    

W42 Humboldt 70.41      

W44 Clearwater (Treated water) 170.04    

2.57 2.04

4.99 3.92 3.16

3.23



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

18 

 
APPENDIX C – CURRENT AND PROPOSED WATER RATES 

 

Table C.3 – Proposed Mattoon Water Rates (May 2011 through April 2012) 

 

Monthly 0 cuft 2,000 cuft Greater

Service Service Base to to than

Code Group Charge 2,000 cuft 300,000 cuft 300,000 cuft

($) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft)

GAL Gallon Meters 6.18        

W01 Residential 5/8" - Inside 1.83        

W02 Residential 3/4" - Inside 6.18        

W03 Residential 1" - Inside 9.27        

W04 Residential 1 1/2" - Inside 18.54      

W05 Residential 2" - Inside 24.72      

W20 Commercial 5/8" - Inside 6.18        

W21 Commercial 3/4" - Inside 9.27        

W22 Commercial 1" - Inside 12.36      

W23 Commercial 1 1/2" - Inside 18.54      

W24 Commercial 2" - Inside 24.72      

W25 Commercial 3" - Inside 49.33      

W26 Commercial 4" - Inside 73.93      

W27 Commercial 6" - Inside 98.66      

W28 Commercial 8" - Inside 123.61    

W11 Residential 5/8" - Outside 1.83        

W12 Residential 3/4" - Outside 6.18        

W13 Residential 1" - Outside 9.27        

W14 Residential 1 1/2" - Outside 18.54      

W15 Residential 2" - Outside 24.72      

W30 Commercial 5/8" - Outside 9.27        

W31 Commercial 3/4" - Outside 9.27        

W32 Commercial 1" - Outside 12.36      

W33 Commercial 1 1/2" - Outside 18.54      

W34 Commercial 2" - Outside 24.72      

W35 Commercial 3" - Outside 49.33      

W38 Commercial 4" - Outside 73.93      

W36 Commercial 6" - Outside 98.66      

W37 Commercial 8" - Outside 123.61    

W42 Humboldt 73.93      

W44 Clearwater (Treated water) 178.54    

2.70 2.14

5.24 4.12 3.32

3.39



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

19 

 
APPENDIX C – CURRENT AND PROPOSED WATER RATES 

 

Table C.4 – Proposed Mattoon Water Rates (May 2012 through April 2013) 

 

Monthly 0 cuft 2,000 cuft Greater

Service Service Base to to than

Code Group Charge 2,000 cuft 300,000 cuft 300,000 cuft

($) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft)

GAL Gallon Meters 6.49        

W01 Residential 5/8" - Inside 1.92        

W02 Residential 3/4" - Inside 6.49        

W03 Residential 1" - Inside 9.73        

W04 Residential 1 1/2" - Inside 19.47      

W05 Residential 2" - Inside 25.96      

W20 Commercial 5/8" - Inside 6.49        

W21 Commercial 3/4" - Inside 9.73        

W22 Commercial 1" - Inside 12.98      

W23 Commercial 1 1/2" - Inside 19.47      

W24 Commercial 2" - Inside 25.96      

W25 Commercial 3" - Inside 51.79      

W26 Commercial 4" - Inside 77.63      

W27 Commercial 6" - Inside 103.59    

W28 Commercial 8" - Inside 129.79    

W11 Residential 5/8" - Outside 1.92        

W12 Residential 3/4" - Outside 6.49        

W13 Residential 1" - Outside 9.73        

W14 Residential 1 1/2" - Outside 19.47      

W15 Residential 2" - Outside 25.96      

W30 Commercial 5/8" - Outside 9.73        

W31 Commercial 3/4" - Outside 9.73        

W32 Commercial 1" - Outside 12.98      

W33 Commercial 1 1/2" - Outside 19.47      

W34 Commercial 2" - Outside 25.96      

W35 Commercial 3" - Outside 51.79      

W38 Commercial 4" - Outside 77.63      

W36 Commercial 6" - Outside 103.59    

W37 Commercial 8" - Outside 129.79    

W42 Humboldt 77.63      

W44 Clearwater (Treated water) 187.47    

2.84 2.25

5.50 4.33 3.49

3.56



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

20 

 
APPENDIX C – CURRENT AND PROPOSED WATER RATES 

 

Table C.5 – Proposed Mattoon Water Rates (May 2013 through April 2014) 

 

Monthly 0 cuft 2,000 cuft Greater

Service Service Base to to than

Code Group Charge 2,000 cuft 300,000 cuft 300,000 cuft

($) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft)

GAL Gallon Meters 6.68        

W01 Residential 5/8" - Inside 1.98        

W02 Residential 3/4" - Inside 6.68        

W03 Residential 1" - Inside 10.03      

W04 Residential 1 1/2" - Inside 20.05      

W05 Residential 2" - Inside 26.74      

W20 Commercial 5/8" - Inside 6.68        

W21 Commercial 3/4" - Inside 10.03      

W22 Commercial 1" - Inside 13.37      

W23 Commercial 1 1/2" - Inside 20.05      

W24 Commercial 2" - Inside 26.74      

W25 Commercial 3" - Inside 53.35      

W26 Commercial 4" - Inside 79.96      

W27 Commercial 6" - Inside 106.70    

W28 Commercial 8" - Inside 133.68    

W11 Residential 5/8" - Outside 1.98        

W12 Residential 3/4" - Outside 6.68        

W13 Residential 1" - Outside 10.03      

W14 Residential 1 1/2" - Outside 20.05      

W15 Residential 2" - Outside 26.74      

W30 Commercial 5/8" - Outside 10.03      

W31 Commercial 3/4" - Outside 10.03      

W32 Commercial 1" - Outside 13.37      

W33 Commercial 1 1/2" - Outside 20.05      

W34 Commercial 2" - Outside 26.74      

W35 Commercial 3" - Outside 53.35      

W38 Commercial 4" - Outside 79.96      

W36 Commercial 6" - Outside 106.70    

W37 Commercial 8" - Outside 133.68    

W42 Humboldt 79.96      

W44 Clearwater (Treated water) 193.09    

2.92 2.31

5.67 4.46 3.59

3.66



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

21 

 
APPENDIX C – CURRENT AND PROPOSED WATER RATES 

 

Table C.6 – Proposed Mattoon Water Rates (May 2014 through April 2015) 

 
Monthly 0 cuft 2,000 cuft Greater

Service Service Base to to than

Code Group Charge 2,000 cuft 300,000 cuft 300,000 cuft

($) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft)

GAL Gallon Meters 6.88        

W01 Residential 5/8" - Inside 2.04        

W02 Residential 3/4" - Inside 6.88        

W03 Residential 1" - Inside 10.33      

W04 Residential 1 1/2" - Inside 20.65      

W05 Residential 2" - Inside 27.54      

W20 Commercial 5/8" - Inside 6.88        

W21 Commercial 3/4" - Inside 10.33      

W22 Commercial 1" - Inside 13.77      

W23 Commercial 1 1/2" - Inside 20.65      

W24 Commercial 2" - Inside 27.54      

W25 Commercial 3" - Inside 54.95      

W26 Commercial 4" - Inside 82.36      

W27 Commercial 6" - Inside 109.90    

W28 Commercial 8" - Inside 137.69    

W11 Residential 5/8" - Outside 2.04        

W12 Residential 3/4" - Outside 6.88        

W13 Residential 1" - Outside 10.33      

W14 Residential 1 1/2" - Outside 20.65      

W15 Residential 2" - Outside 27.54      

W30 Commercial 5/8" - Outside 10.33      

W31 Commercial 3/4" - Outside 10.33      

W32 Commercial 1" - Outside 13.77      

W33 Commercial 1 1/2" - Outside 20.65      

W34 Commercial 2" - Outside 27.54      

W35 Commercial 3" - Outside 54.95      

W38 Commercial 4" - Outside 82.36      

W36 Commercial 6" - Outside 109.90    

W37 Commercial 8" - Outside 137.69    

W42 Humboldt 82.36      

W44 Clearwater (Treated water) 198.89    

3.01 2.38

5.84 4.59 3.70

3.77



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

22 

 
APPENDIX C – CURRENT AND PROPOSED WATER RATES 

 

Table C.7 – Proposed Mattoon Water Rates (May 2015 through April 2016) 

Monthly 0 cuft 2,000 cuft Greater

Service Service Base to to than

Code Group Charge 2,000 cuft 300,000 cuft 300,000 cuft

($) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft) ($/100 cuft)

GAL Gallon Meters 7.09        

W01 Residential 5/8" - Inside 2.10        

W02 Residential 3/4" - Inside 7.09        

W03 Residential 1" - Inside 10.64      

W04 Residential 1 1/2" - Inside 21.27      

W05 Residential 2" - Inside 28.36      

W20 Commercial 5/8" - Inside 7.09        

W21 Commercial 3/4" - Inside 10.64      

W22 Commercial 1" - Inside 14.18      

W23 Commercial 1 1/2" - Inside 21.27      

W24 Commercial 2" - Inside 28.36      

W25 Commercial 3" - Inside 56.60      

W26 Commercial 4" - Inside 84.83      

W27 Commercial 6" - Inside 113.19    

W28 Commercial 8" - Inside 141.82    

W11 Residential 5/8" - Outside 2.10        

W12 Residential 3/4" - Outside 7.09        

W13 Residential 1" - Outside 10.64      

W14 Residential 1 1/2" - Outside 21.27      

W15 Residential 2" - Outside 28.36      

W30 Commercial 5/8" - Outside 10.64      

W31 Commercial 3/4" - Outside 10.64      

W32 Commercial 1" - Outside 14.18      

W33 Commercial 1 1/2" - Outside 21.27      

W34 Commercial 2" - Outside 28.36      

W35 Commercial 3" - Outside 56.60      

W38 Commercial 4" - Outside 84.83      

W36 Commercial 6" - Outside 113.19    

W37 Commercial 8" - Outside 141.82    

W42 Humboldt 84.83      

W44 Clearwater (Treated water) 204.85    

3.10 2.46

6.01 4.73 3.81

3.89

 



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

23 

APPENDIX D – WATER FUND CATEGORIZED OPERATING EXPENSES – FY 04 THROUGH FY15 
 

Category FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 B

Salaries and Benefits 1,185,984 1,094,207 1,036,872 1,099,821 1,072,286 1,078,264

Supplies 371,557 394,382 412,933 515,727 579,960 622,800

Property Maintenance Services 58,779 88,438 65,848 105,412 103,200 141,480

Other Purchased Services 190,145 158,423 147,033 151,357 175,145 141,321

Other Objects 113,205 11,955 107,944 8,207 109,858 104,000

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,919,670 1,747,406 1,770,631 1,880,524 2,040,449 2,087,865

Category FY10 P FY11 P FY12 P FY13 P FY14 P FY15 P

Salaries and Benefits 1,029,324 1,065,350 1,102,638 1,141,230 1,181,173 1,222,514

Supplies 657,267 673,699 690,541 707,805 725,500 743,637

Property Maintenance Services 106,585 109,249 111,981 114,780 117,650 120,591

Other Purchased Services 157,557 161,496 165,533 169,672 173,913 178,261

Other Objects 84,565 86,679 88,846 91,067 93,344 95,677

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 2,035,297 2,096,473 2,159,538 2,224,553 2,291,579 2,360,681  



Water Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

24 

APPENDIX E – RAW WATER DRAWS AND CONTRACTS 
 

Table E.1 – Raw Water Draws on Mattoon’s Lakes System 
(gallons per day) 

 

 2006 2009 

City of Mattoon 
(finished) 

2,140,000  1,960,000  

Clearwater  159,000  213,000 

City of Neoga  142,000 127,000 

Reliant Energy  18,000  3,000 

TOTAL 2,459,000 2,303,000 

 

 
Table E.2 – Contracts for Raw Water Sales 

 
Organization Clear Water Neoga Reliant

Type of Water Raw Water Raw Water Raw Water

City Number Res. 75-1162 Res. 99-2251

Date Contract Signed

July 1, 1975                                             

Ammended June 21, 1977                       

Ammended August 15, 1980 February 1, 1996 December 16, 1999

Contract Began July 1, 1975 February 1, 1996 April 1, 2000

Contract Ends December 31, 2019 February 1, 2015 March 31, 2019

Monthly Base Rate (Contract) None None $5,000.00

Usage Rate Set (Contract) $0.10/1,000 gallons $0.2784/1,000 gallons $0.60/1,000 gallons

Rate Set to Increase Yes Yes Yes

Frequency of Increase July of odd years Feb. of even years May 1, annually

Method of Increase Chicago CPI Chicago CPI Chicago CPI

Chicago CPI Base Value (June 1977)   58.6 (Feb. 1996)   155.2 (April 2000)   171.9

Chicago CPI Current (July 2007)   205.6 (Feb. 2006)   197.2 (April 2007)   204.0

Monthly Base Rate (billing system) $0.00 $60.00 $5,872.74

Current Rate (billing system) $0.0003509 $0.0003537 $0.0007120

Monthly Base Rate $0.00 $60.00 $5,933.68

Current Rate $0.0003509 $0.0003537 $0.0007120

Meter Reading In Gallons Gallons Gallons

Taxed No No No

Special Notes
Minimum annual payment of 

$730.00

The water rate increases 

ten fold if usage 

exceeds set levels  



 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF MATTOON 
Wastewater Rate Study 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Written and submitted by: 
David Wortman 

Public Works Director 
 
 

March 2010



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
  
Section 1 Executive Summary………………………………………………...  1 

Section 2 Background ………………………………………………………...  2 

  2.1 Changes in Water Department……………………...…………..  2 

  2.2 Water Usage and Sales……………………………...…………..  4 

Section 3 Revenue Requirements……………………………………………..  5 

  3.1 Operating Expenses ……………………………………………  5 

3.2 Debt Service Payments………………….…………………...…  7 

3.3 Capital Expenditures/Depreciation……………………………... 8 

3.4 Total Revenue Requirements……………………………………9  

Section 4 Rate Calculation………………………………………………….… 9 

 

 

APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A Statement of Revenues and Expenses (FY04 through FY15)………12 

Appendix B Sewer Billed Quantities by Group   ………………………………...14 

Appendix C Current and Proposed Sewer Rates………………………………….15 

Appendix D Sewer Fund Categorized Operating Expenses ...…………………... 16 

 

 

 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

ii 

 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

1 

SECTION 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Wastewater rates for the City of Mattoon have not been raised since May 2006. Since that 

time there has been a decrease in volume of water sold which has in turn reduced 

wastewater revenues as the billing volumes for wastewater are derived from volume of 

water billed. Wastewater sales revenue declined from 3.4 million in FY06/07 to 3.2 

million in FY08/09. Over the same period inflation has gone up 7 percent (Chicago CPI; 

198.4 in May 2006 to 212.2 in November 2009). Inflation and the decrease in sales, taken 

together, are equivalent to a decline of 13 percent in our revenue’s purchasing power 

since May of 2006. 

 

Wastewater revenues are currently only not covering all of the costs to run the system. 

Since FY06 there has been 1.2 million dollars decrease in our cash balance as we have 

completed capital project from reserves. Over the last five years we have controlled costs 

in the fund by downsizing the labor force and by the completing the automation project at 

the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). In FY04/05 the total employee costs in the 

fund equaled 1.2 million dollars by FY09/10 that had reduced to 1.08 million dollars; a 

10 percent reduction in employee costs over a five-year period. 

 

This study details the revenues and expenses for the wastewater fund since FY04/05 and 

projects expenses through FY15/16. Those projected expenses (operating, capital, and 

debt service) are used to define the revenue requirements needed to place the fund on 

firm financial footing for the next six years. In the last study of Mattoon wastewater rates 

in 2002 Clark-Dietz completed a detailed study to assign a breakdown of costs between 

flow, biological oxygen demand (BOD) and suspended solids (SS). The findings in 2002 

Clark-Dietz rate study will be used as the base for this study, the cost breakdowns arrived 

at in that study are assumed to still be valid. 

 

This process reveals there is a need to raise water rates for next fiscal year, followed by 

scheduled rate increases each May as shown on the next page. The full rate tables are 

shown in Appendix C. 

 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

2 

Table 1.1 – Proposed Base Sewer Rate through FY15/16 
($/100 ft^3) 

Current 

Rates
FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Monthly Billing Charge 1.36       1.34       1.44       1.50       1.56       1.68       1.74       

Per 100 cubic feet of flow 3.34       3.28       3.53       3.68       3.83       4.12       4.28       

For debt service - inside 1.18       1.56       1.57       1.58       1.59       1.48       1.49       

For debt service - outside 2.76       3.65       3.67       3.69       3.71       3.47       3.48        
 

This sewer rate study is being accompanied by a water rate study. Shown below is the 

effect the proposed changes in the two rates will have on a monthly city utility bill. 

Table 1.2 – Change to Average Household City Utility Bill 

Water Bill for Average house (461 cuft) 15.25       16.61       17.45       18.32       18.87       19.44       20.02       

Sewer Bill for Average house (461 cuft) 22.20       23.65       24.94       25.73       26.54       27.50       28.37       

Utility Tax for Average house (461 cuft) 0.76         0.83         0.87         0.92         0.94         0.97         1.00         

Total Bill for Average house (461 cuft) 38.21       41.09       43.27       44.97       46.36       47.91       49.39       

7.6% 5.3% 3.9% 3.1% 3.3% 3.1%  
 

With an assumed usage of 461 ft^3 per month, which was the average household usage in 

2009, the average home in Mattoon will see a monthly increase of $2.88 for their city 

utility bill, an increase of 7.6 percent. 

 

SECTION 2: BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 CHANGES IN SEWER DEPARTMENT 

The City of Mattoon last completed a Wastewater User Rate Study in February 2002. 

Clark-Dietz conducted that study. Since that time there have been several significant 

changes in Mattoon’s Sewer Department.  

 

1) the 2002 rate study the assumed billed flow would remain at 77 million cubic feet 

but the actual flow in 2009 was 67 million cubic feet, which translates into 

thirteen percent less revenue than projected; 

2) in 2002 the Sewer Department was combined with the Water Department and 

Street Department to become the Public Works Department, this has reduced the 

sewer collection labor salaries from $370,000 in 2003 to $248,000 today; 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

3 

3) in 2003 the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) underwent a large upgrade 

which increased its permitted volume from 4.5 MGD to 5.3 MGD and enabled the 

plant labor to be reduced and for more efficient operations by reducing the 

amount of sludge; 

4) in 2003 the sewer fund began paying the full costs of accounting and billing 

adding over $150,000 of expenses each year; 

5) in 2005 low interest rates allowed for the refinancing sewer debt lowering annual 

debt service; 

6) several of our large industrial users have upgraded their pre-treatment systems 

and now have effluent that does not exceed our biochemical oxygen demand 

(BOD) or suspended solids (SS) limits, thus BOD and SS payment have gone for 

over $200,000 to less than $40,000; 

7) in 2007 the WWTP automation project lowered the plant’s operating annual 

expenses by $114,000 in labor and $150,000 in electricity; 

8) in 2009 the sewer fund began paying the retirement health care expenses for 

retired sewer fund employees at $110,000 each year; 

 

The City Council used the Clark-Dietz rate study of 2002 as the basis for setting 

wastewater rates in Ordinance 2002-5110. The Ordinance called for annual rate increases 

from 2002 through 2006. This study uses the 2002 study as a base and compares the 

revenues and expenses assumed in that study to the actual revenues and expenses the 

Sewer Department has experienced. Generally speaking the both the revenues and 

expenses assumed in the 2002 study were greater than what actually occurred. The 

revenues did not meet expectations primarily because usage has been lower than 

assumed; the study predicted 77 million cubic feet billed annually while only 67 million 

cubic feet are currently billed. The expenses were lower than predicted due to savings in 

labor costs from the early retirement incentive program and from a reduction in operating 

expenses at the wastewater treatment plant.  

The overall effect has been that over the last four years the sewer fund has operated under 

deficits. Since 2002 the sewer fund balance has decreased 2.5 million dollars to its 

current value of 1.78 million. 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

4 

Chart 2.1 – Historic Revenues and Expenses FY04 through FY10 

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000

2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010

- Operating Revenue

- Non-operating Revenue
Capital Expense -

Debt Service -

Operating Expense -

 
(For data see Appendix A.) 

 

2.2 SEWER TREATED AND BILLED 
 
To correctly assign rates the total sewage treated and billed must be accurately known. 

To calculate the amount treated employees at the waste water treatment plant maintain a 

daily log recording the flow into the plant each day. The amount treated each day is much 

higher than the amount billed do to the storm water inflow from the areas of our sewer 

system that carried combined flow. Chart 2.2 on the next page shows the sewage billed 

and sewage treated for each of the past seven years. The billed quantity for sewage 

parallels the amount billed for water at about 85 percent of the volume. The quantity 

billed for waste water is less than the water billed due to two causes: 1) some properties 

are connected to our water system but are not connected to our sewer system and 2) 

several of our largest water users have metered sewer which is lower in volume than their 

water use due to diverted flow. 

 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

5 

Chart 2.2 – Mattoon Sewer Billed and Treated (Calendar 2003 - 2009) 
(million gallons per day) 

 

-

1.00 

2.00 

3.00 

4.00 

5.00 

6.00 

7.00 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Daily Sewage Treated

Daily Water Billed

Daily Sewage Billed

 

 
This graph clearly shows that our rates, which are based on potable water usage, also 

fund a great deal of storm water treatment, which is not related to one’s potable water 

usage. Another point concerning this graph, a portion of the expenses at the waste water 

treatment plant are related to the volume of water treated at the plant which is largely a 

function of the annual rainfall received.  



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

6 

 

SECTION 3: REVENUE REQUIREMENTS 
 

In this section expenses are projected for the next five years. The expenses include three 

components; operating expenses, debt service, and capital expenditures/depreciation. The 

operating expenses are projected from past years with increases for inflation. The debt 

service is a known number set by our past loans and bonds. In Section 2 the actual capital 

projects for past years were shown; in this section the projected expenses are the planned 

projects form the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan. The projected expenses are added 

together to define the future revenue requirements for the sewer fund. 

 

3.1 HISTORIC AND PROJECTED O&M EXPENSES 

The operating expenses of the past six years have decreased from 2.14 million dollars in 

2004 to less than 2.0 million for this fiscal year. The most significant trend in the sewer 

operating expenses over the last five years has been the decrease in Salaries and Benefits. 

 

Chart 3.1 – Annual Operating Expenses (2004 through 2015) 
 

0

250,000

500,000

750,000

1,000,000

1,250,000

1,500,000

1,750,000

2,000,000

2,250,000

2,500,000

FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09 B FY10 P FY11 P FY12 P FY13 P FY14 P FY15 P

Other Purchased Services

Property Maintenance Services

Supplies

Salaries and Benefits

 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

7 

(Data for this graph is contained in Appendix D) 

The Salaries and Benefits have gone from 1.2 million in 2004 to 1.08 million this year 

due to steady staff reductions. That process has now fully played itself out and no further 

reductions are expected. The labor cost projections are based on the 2009 values 

increasing at an annual rate of 3.5 percent. The non-labor projections are based on the 

average past values increasing at an annual inflation rate 2.5 percent. The projected 

operating expenses are shown in Table 3.1. 

Table 3.1 – Projected Operating Expenses (FY10 through FY15) 

Category FY10 P FY11 P FY12 P FY13 P FY14 P FY15 P

Salaries and Benefits 1,115,074 1,154,101 1,194,495 1,236,302 1,279,573 1,324,358

Supplies 543,298 556,880 570,802 585,072 599,699 614,692

Property Maintenance Services 170,392 174,652 179,018 183,494 188,081 192,783

Other Purchased Services 196,709 201,627 206,668 211,835 217,130 222,559

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 2,025,473 2,087,261 2,150,983 2,216,703 2,284,483 2,354,391  
 

3.2 DEBT SERVICE 

The debt service payments are fixed values set by previous council action. Chart 3.2 

gives past and future debt payments. 

 

Table 3.2 – Debt Service Payments Schedule 
 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

8 

Loan Debt

Sewer Series 

2005(A) G.O. 

Refunding 

Bonds

ERI Series 

2003A G.O. 

Bonds (Sewer 

Portion)

Bond Total
IEPA Loan 

Total

2005/2006 411,281        90,524            501,805    638,700     1,140,505 

2006/2007 404,656        90,124            494,780    638,700     1,133,480 

2007/2008 407,369        89,624            496,993    638,700     1,135,693 

2008/2009 409,119        89,025            498,144    638,700     1,136,843 

2009/2010 405,141        88,326            493,467    638,700     1,132,166 

2010/2011 410,716        89,819            500,535    638,700     1,139,235 

2011/2012 410,041        91,113            501,155    638,700     1,139,854 

2012/2013 413,623        89,916            503,538    638,700     1,142,238 

2013/2014 416,248        90,911            507,158    638,700     1,145,858 

2014/2015 419,000        419,000    638,700     1,057,700 

2015/2016 420,860        420,860    638,700     1,059,560 

2016/2017 421,610        421,610    638,700     1,060,310 

2017/2018 426,400        426,400    638,700     1,065,100 

2018/2019 426,400        426,400    621,078     1,047,478 

2019/2023 603,456     603,456    

Bond Debt

Total Debt 

Service

 

3.3 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES/DEPRECIATION 

The expenditures for capital projects vary greatly from year to year as shown in Chart 

3.3.   

Table 3.3 – Historic Capital Expenditures 
 

Year Capital Expenses

FY04 264,420                  

FY05 507,931                  

FY06 715,636                  

FY07 846,517                  

FY08 710,980                  

FY09 465,722                  

5-year 

Average 585,201                  

 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

9 

To estimate future capital expenditures the sewer treatment plant superintendant, public 

works superintendent, and the public works direct have prepared a multi-year capital 

improvement plan, shown in Table 3.4.  

Table 3.4 – Sewer Capital Improvement Plan 
 

Project 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16

Lake Land Lift Station 200,000  

Clarifier Hardware and Drives 40,000    40,000       40,000       40,000       40,000    40,000    

Radio Read Water Meters 75,000    75,000       75,000       

CSO LTCP 300,000  310,000     310,000     310,000     310,000  310,000  

New Compactor 110,000  

Basin Aeration Replacement 150,000  

Filter Replacement 700,000     800,000     

Willowshire Lift Station 225,000     

N. 28th Street Lift Station 250,000  

Digester/Gas Collection Roof 250,000  

Annual Total 875,000  1,125,000  1,225,000  575,000     600,000  600,000   

 

 

 

 

3.4 TOTAL REVENUE REQUIREMENTS 

The total revenue requirement for the next six years is the sum or the operating expenses, 

debt payments, and capital projects. The values are shown in Table 3.5. 

 

Table 3.5 – Projected Revenue Requirements (FY10 through FY15) 
 

Operating 

Expenses

Capital 

Projects
Debt Service

Total 

Expenses

FY10 P 2,025,473       875,000          1,253,085       4,153,558       

FY11 P 2,087,261       1,125,000       1,257,689       4,469,950       

FY12 P 2,150,983       1,225,000       1,264,197       4,640,180       

FY13 P 2,216,703       575,000          1,272,085       4,063,788       

FY14 P 2,284,483       600,000          1,188,345       4,072,828       

FY15 P 2,354,391       600,000          1,194,778       4,149,169        

 

SECTION 4: RATE CALCULATION 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

10 

The last step in this study is to determine the necessary sewer rates which must be 

charged for future revenues to equal the future expenses. To do this the projected total 

expenses are used to define the total required revenues. Historically for the sewer rates 

the rates have been broken into two categories, Operating and Capital portion of the rate 

and the Debt Repayment portion of the rate. The Operating and Capital portion of the rate 

is equal for all customers of the system. The Debt Repayment portion of the rate is higher 

for customers outside the city. This is reasonable due to the City’s General Fund revenue 

securing the debt of the sewer fund thus lower the interest rate on the bonding and 

assuming additional risk for the citizen’s of Mattoon. This rate difference will be 

continued in this rate study.  

 

Given those assumptions the sewer rate base water rate for the next six years are 

suggested to be as shown in Table 4.1, beginning with a proposed increase of 7.2 percent 

for customers inside the city beginning on May 1, 2010. The full calculation of the rates 

is shown in Appendix C. 

 

Table 4.1 – Proposed Sewer Rate through FY2015 
 

Current 

Rates
FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Monthly Billing Charge 1.36       1.34       1.44       1.50       1.56       1.68       1.74       

Per 100 cubic feet of flow 3.34       3.28       3.53       3.68       3.83       4.12       4.28       

For debt service - inside 1.18       1.56       1.57       1.58       1.59       1.48       1.49       

For debt service - outside 2.76       3.65       3.67       3.69       3.71       3.47       3.48       

Inside Base Rate Change 7.2% 5.2% 3.1% 3.1% 3.4% 3.1%

Outside Base Rate Change 13.8% 3.7% 2.3% 2.4% 0.6% 2.4%  
 

Implementing these proposed rate increases will not immediately balance the sewer fund 

budget. Over the next three years the fund will reach the point when are all expenses are 

funded, as shown in Table 4.2 and Chart 4.1on the next page. In FY13 the water fund will 

begin to see annual surpluses. 

Table 4.2 – Sewer Fund Projected Revenues and Projected Expenses  
Under the Proposed Rate Schedule 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

11 

Projected 

Revenues

Projected 

Expenses
Annual Net

FY10 P 3,769,639    4,153,558    (383,919)     

FY11 P 3,948,971    4,469,950    (520,979)     

FY12 P 4,061,950    4,640,180    (578,230)     

FY13 P 4,178,319    4,063,788    114,531       

FY14 P 4,298,178    4,072,828    225,350       

FY15 P 4,421,634    4,149,169    272,465        



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

12 

 

Chart 4.1 – Water Fund Required Revenues and Total Projected 
Expenses under the Proposed Rate Schedule 

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000

2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016

- Operating Revenue

- Non-operating Revenue
Capital Expense -

Debt Service -

Operating Expense -

 

 
 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

13 

APPENDIX A – STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES (FY04 through FY15) 
 

Sewer Fund Revenues and Expenses – Historic – FY04 through FY09 
 

2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget

   Sewer User Charges 3,272,779 3,402,327 3,381,505 3,310,850 3,237,349 3,400,000

   Sewer Charge Penalties 81,443 11,840 53,561 48,296 51,646 53,000

   BOD Surcharges 21,301 22,844 37,026 33,293 26,462 36,000

   Suspended Solids Surcharges 36,598 74,581 12,392 10,129 5,543 12,500

   Permits & Tapping Fees 1,226 2,835 2,383 3,745 2,120 4,500

   Landfill Leachate Treatment Fees 19,952 20,418 22,852 19,720 20,648 20,000

   Misc. & Sundry Sewer Charges 11,155 10,088 11,888 21,422 21,423 25,000

Operating Revenues 3,444,454 3,544,932 3,521,607 3,447,455 3,365,191 3,551,000

Interest Earnings 39,683 87,508 122,948 92,762 50,812 45,000

Sale of Capital Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contributed Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0

Non-operating Revenues 39,683 87,508 122,948 92,762 50,812 45,000

TOTAL REVENUES 3,484,138 3,632,440 3,644,555 3,540,217 3,416,003 3,596,000

Total Operating Expenses 2,141,799 2,012,027 1,879,802 2,045,764 2,071,526 1,999,820

Total Capital Expenses 264,420 507,931 715,636 846,517 710,980 465,722

Total Debt Service 1,146,147 1,140,667 1,134,059 1,136,045 1,137,192 1,243,666

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,552,366 3,660,625 3,729,497 4,028,325 3,919,698 3,709,208

Annual Defecit -68,228 -28,185 -84,942 -488,108 -503,695 -113,208  



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

14 

APPENDIX A – STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES (FY04 through FY15) 
 

Sewer Fund Revenues and Expenses – Projected – FY10 through FY15 

2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

   Sewer User Charges 3,586,639 3,765,971 3,878,950 3,995,319 4,115,178 4,238,634

   Sewer Charge Penalties 52,000 52,000 52,000 52,000 52,000 52,000

   BOD Surcharges 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000

   Suspended Solids Surcharges 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

   Permits & Tapping Fees 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

   Landfill Leachate Treatment Fees 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000

   Misc. & Sundry Sewer Charges 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000

Operating Revenues 3,724,639 3,903,971 4,016,950 4,133,319 4,253,178 4,376,634

Interest Earnings 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000

Sale of Capital Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Capital Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contributed Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0

Non-operating Revenues 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000

TOTAL REVENUES 3,769,639 3,948,971 4,061,950 4,178,319 4,298,178 4,421,634

Total Operating Expenses 2,025,473 2,087,261 2,150,983 2,216,703 2,284,483 2,354,391

Total Capital Expenses 875,000 1,125,000 1,225,000 575,000 600,000 600,000

Total Debt Service 1,253,085 1,257,689 1,264,197 1,272,085 1,188,345 1,194,778

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,153,558 4,469,950 4,640,180 4,063,788 4,072,828 4,149,169

Annual Defecit -383,919 -520,979 -578,230 114,531 225,350 272,465



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

15 

APPENDIX B – SEWER BILLED QUANTITIES 
 

Inside Outside TOTAL

34,817,709 903,640 35,721,349
53%

22,690,720 8,735,459 31,426,179
47%

57,508,429 9,639,098 67,147,528
86% 14%

Table B.1 - Sewer Volume Billed by Group (2009)
(cubic feet per year)

Residential

Commercial

TOTAL
 

 
 

Inside Outside TOTAL

1,677,855 57,438 1,735,293

52%

1,040,712 533,271 1,573,984

48%

2,718,567 590,710 3,309,277

82% 18%

Table B.2 - Sewer Billed by Group (2009)
($ per year)

Residential

Commercial

TOTAL

 
 
 

Inside Outside TOTAL

6,379 142 6,521

87%

925 25 950

13%

7,304 167 7,471

98% 2%

Table B.3 - Sewer Customers by Group (2009)

Residential

Commercial

TOTAL

 
 



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

16 

APPENDIX D – CURRENT AND PROPOSED SEWER RATES 
 

SEWER RATES

\

Current 

Rates
FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Monthly Billing Charge 1.36          1.34           1.44           1.50           1.56           1.68           1.74           

Base Flow Charge (per 100 cuft) 3.34          3.28           3.53           3.68           3.83           4.12           4.28           

BOD (per pound) 0.45          0.44           0.48           0.50           0.52           0.56           0.58           

Suspended Solids (per pound) 0.69          0.68           0.73           0.76           0.79           0.85           0.89           

Debt service - inside (per 100 cuft) 1.18          1.56           1.57           1.58           1.59           1.48           1.49           

Debt service - outside (per 100 cuft) 2.76          3.65           3.67           3.69           3.71           3.47           3.48            



  Wastewater Rate Study – March 2010 
 

 
 

17 

APPENDIX E – SEWER FUND CATEGORIZED OPERATING EXPENSES – FY 04 THROUGH FY15 
 

Category FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09

Salaries and Benefits 1,213,936 1,070,707 1,008,728 1,053,075 1,108,757 1,077,366

Supplies 166,015 248,939 203,919 218,475 247,259 268,250

Chemicals 31,538 30,014 29,268 8,779 10,492 10,000

Electricity 400,343 334,090 304,973 379,739 328,491 275,000

Property Maintenance Services 58,913.72 85,146.87 100,495.70 127,785.00 159,265.00 152,500.00

Other Purchased Services 263,934 239,993 217,339 248,969 202,032 206,704

Retiree Health Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 110,000

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 2,134,678 2,008,890 1,864,723 2,036,822 2,056,296 2,099,820

Category FY10 P FY11 P FY12 P FY13 P FY14 P FY15 P

Salaries and Benefits 1,115,074 1,154,101 1,194,495 1,236,302 1,279,573 1,324,358

Supplies 243,270 249,351 255,585 261,975 268,524 275,237

Chemicals 18,153 18,607 19,072 19,549 20,038 20,539

Electricity 281,875 288,922 296,145 303,549 311,137 318,916

Property Maintenance Services 128,164.48 131,368.59 134,652.80 138,019.12 141,469.60 145,006.34

Other Purchased Services 228,197 233,902 239,750 245,744 251,887 258,184

Retiree Health Insurance 113,850 117,835 121,959 126,228 130,645 135,218

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 2,128,584 2,194,087 2,261,659 2,331,365 2,403,274 2,477,458  



  

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE NO. 2010-1387 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
 YEAR THAT BEGINS MAY 1, 2010 AND ENDS APRIL 30, 2011 

 FOR THE CITY OF MATTOON 
 
WHEREAS, Sections § 35.50 through § 35.59 of the Mattoon Code of Ordinances 
approved by the City Council on February 19, 2002 adopted enabling state statutes for an 
annual budget in lieu of an appropriation ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed budget was filed with the City Clerk and available for public 
inspection on April 1, 2010 and  
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing to consider review comments on the proposed 
budget was published in the Mattoon Journal Gazette; and  

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 20, 2010 at which hearing any taxpayer 
was given an opportunity to appear and be heard in favor of or against any of the 
proposed revenues and expenditures assumed in the tentative budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, after the public hearing the City Council adopted changes to the tentative 
budget as outlined in the final budget which is attached to this ordinance and marked as 
“Final Budget – April 20, 2010”; and,   

 
WHEREAS, the process and procedures for the annual budget have been completed in 
accordance with provisions of Illinois Statutes 65 ILCS 5/8-2-9.1 through 65 ILCS 5/8-2-
9.10 and Ordinance 2002-5101. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Estimates of revenues and expenditures shown in the attached budget, as 
amended, are hereby adopted as the budget for the City of Mattoon’s for the fiscal year 
that begins May 1, 2010 and ends April 30, 2011.  
 
Section 2.  The budget as it has been adopted is attached and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall be deemed published as of the day of its adoption and 
approval by the City Council. 
 
Section 4.  This ordinance shall be effective upon its approval as provided by law.  
 



  

Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by _______________________, 
adopted this ______ day of ___________________, 2010. 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this                day of    , 2010. 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
 
ATTEST:              APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________ _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk  J. Preston Owen, City Attorney & Treasurer 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2010.  

 
 



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:  1

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 LIMITED RATE PROP TAXES

 110-4111-010 GENERAL CORPORATE PROPERTY    426,361        411,872       528,001       456,918       456,460       455,762       466,084       466,084

 110-4113-010 POLICE PROTECTION PROPERTY    249,775        237,190       263,890       274,151       273,876       273,457       220,000       220,000

 110-4114-010 FIRE PROTECTION PROPERTY T    249,775        237,190       263,890       274,151       273,876       273,457       220,000       220,000

 110-4116-010 STREET LIGHTING PROPERTY T          0              0             0        91,274        91,182        91,043             0             0

 110-4117-010 PARKS PROPERTY TAX            106,750        104,061       134,345       137,075       136,938       136,729       140,000       140,000

 110-4118-010 LIBRARY PROPERTY TAX          384,995        402,746       404,631       420,364       419,943       419,301       429,610       429,610

  TOTAL LIMITED RATE PROP TAXES           1,417,656      1,393,059     1,594,758     1,653,932     1,652,275     1,649,748     1,475,694     1,475,694

 UNLIMITED RATE PROP TAX

 110-4123-010 INS & TORT JDGMNTS PROPERT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4124-010 FIREFIGHTERS PENSION          877,800        892,487       947,584     1,009,733     1,008,722     1,007,179     1,164,414     1,164,414

 110-4125-010 POLICE PENSION                737,940        778,650       840,430       828,318       827,489       826,223       962,841       962,841

  TOTAL UNLIMITED RATE PROP TAX           1,615,740      1,671,137     1,788,013     1,838,052     1,836,210     1,833,402     2,127,255     2,127,255

 TOWNSHIP ROAD & BRIDGE

 110-4141-010 MATTOON TWP RD & BRIDGE TA     74,772         80,167       105,677       105,000       101,877       100,688       100,688       100,688

 110-4142-010 LAFAYETTE TWP RD & BRDGE T     39,361         41,995        43,627        43,000        47,164        47,084        47,084        47,084

 110-4143-010 PARADISE TWP RD & BRIDGE T      2,897          2,452         3,211         3,000         3,471         3,465         3,465         3,465

  TOTAL TOWNSHIP ROAD & BRIDGE              117,030        124,614       152,515       151,000       152,512       151,237       151,237       151,237

 UTILITY TAX

 110-4160-010 UTILITY TAX                 1,274,704      1,322,050     1,284,807     1,325,000       861,974     1,150,000     1,150,000     1,150,000

  TOTAL UTILITY TAX                       1,274,704      1,322,050     1,284,807     1,325,000       861,974     1,150,000     1,150,000     1,150,000

 CABLE TV FRANCHISE TAX

 110-4180-010 CABLE TV FRANCHISE TAX        173,744        171,529       177,798       175,000       186,928       186,928       186,928       186,928

  TOTAL CABLE TV FRANCHISE TAX              173,744        171,529       177,798       175,000       186,928       186,928       186,928       186,928

 TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS

 110-4190-010 GAS & ELECTRIC FRANCHISE            0              0        63,968        95,000        95,721        95,721        95,721        95,721

  TOTAL TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS                       0              0        63,968        95,000        95,721        95,721        95,721        95,721

    TOTAL TAXES                           4,598,875      4,682,389     5,061,858     5,237,984     4,785,620     5,067,035     5,186,835     5,186,835

LICENSES & PERMITS

 BUSINESS LIC & PERMITS

 110-4211-010 LIQUOR LICENSES                56,418         61,733        53,555        57,500        53,138        53,000        53,000        53,000

 110-4213-010 POLICE & PROTECTIVE LICENS      3,251          2,918         2,405         3,000           106           250           250           250

 110-4216-010 PROFESSIONAL/OCCUPATIONAL       9,285         10,362         9,667         8,000        10,473        10,500        10,500        10,500

 110-4217-010 AMUSEMENT LICENSES                 72             60             0            75            25            25            25            25

  TOTAL BUSINESS LIC & PERMITS               69,026         75,072        65,627        68,575        63,742        63,775        63,775        63,775



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:  2

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 NONBUSINESS LIC & PERMIT

 110-4221-010 BUILDING PERMITS               22,479         54,428        22,107        40,000        22,435        25,000        31,000        31,000

 110-4222-010 ELECTRICAL PERMITS              8,587         14,144        16,613        12,000        12,824        14,000        15,000        15,000

 110-4223-010 HVAC PERMITS                      858          1,892           410         1,500           770         1,000         1,000         1,000

 110-4224-010 PLUMBING PERMITS                1,825          4,204         1,631         3,500           957         1,000         1,500         1,500

 110-4225-010 HUNTING & FISHING LICENSES      1,006          3,891         1,633         3,000         1,730         2,000         2,000         2,000

 110-4226-010 BOAT REGISTRATION FEES         50,290         45,310        54,950        53,000        43,815        53,000        57,000        57,000

 110-4227-010 HUNTING & FISHING LIC-LAKE     40,636          6,767         9,974         8,000         6,278         8,500         9,500         9,500

  TOTAL NONBUSINESS LIC & PERMIT            125,680        130,635       107,316       121,000        88,809       104,500       117,000       117,000

    TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS                194,705        205,708       172,944       189,575       152,550       168,275       180,775       180,775

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

 FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS

 110-4311-022 FED OPERATING CATEGORIE GR    119,982        161,568       128,688       200,000        81,402       130,000       130,000       130,000

 110-4312-010 FED OPERAT NON-CATEGORICAL     22,648         26,268        27,172             0           963           926           926           926

 110-4313-023 FEDERAL CAPITAL GRANTS         50,540          7,109        32,500             0        70,300        97,297             0             0

 110-4314-022 OPERATING GRANT -PUBLIC SA          0            626             0             0           716         1,000         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS                 193,170        195,570       188,361       200,000       153,380       229,223       131,926       131,926

 STATE GOVT GRANTS

 110-4321-022 STATE OPERAT CATEGORICAL G     31,574         47,343         7,653        28,000        11,820        21,998        21,998        21,998

 110-4322-022 ST OPERAT NON-CATEGORICAL           0         12,222         1,020             0         9,945         2,950         2,950         2,950

 110-4323-023 STATE CAPITAL GRANTS           32,169         11,126             0             0             0             0             0        13,300

  TOTAL STATE GOVT GRANTS                    63,744         70,691         8,673        28,000        21,765        24,948        24,948        38,248

 STATE GOVT SHARED REV

 110-4331-010 INCOME TAX                  1,577,607      1,723,311     1,388,029     1,650,000       871,033     1,375,000     1,375,000     1,375,000

 110-4333-010 USE TAX                       253,738        256,459       259,622       265,000       120,647       215,000       201,000       201,000

 110-4334-010 SALES TAX                   5,435,250      5,620,051     5,688,098     5,700,000     4,211,498     5,450,000     5,450,000     5,425,000

 110-4335-010 FOREIGN FIRE INS PREMIUM T     24,914         28,736        30,564        29,000        31,369        31,400        31,400        31,400

 110-4336-010 SIMPLIFIED TELECOM TAX        853,925        833,533       897,259       900,000       686,040       930,000       930,000       920,000

 110-4337-010 PERSONAL PROP REPLACEMENT     235,986        605,496       530,810       525,000       289,607       425,000       385,000       407,000

 110-4339-010 PULL TABS AND JAR GAMES TA      4,991          5,011         4,862         5,000         4,499         4,499         4,499         4,499

  TOTAL STATE GOVT SHARED REV             8,386,410      9,072,598     8,799,243     9,074,000     6,214,693     8,430,899     8,376,899     8,363,899

    TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV           8,643,324      9,338,859     8,996,276     9,302,000     6,389,838     8,685,070     8,533,773     8,534,073

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

 GENERAL GOVT CHARGES

 110-4411-010 BIRTH & DEATH CERTIFICATES     28,122         26,707        27,375        29,000        31,679        31,000        35,000        35,000

 110-4412-010 VITAL RECORDS FEES              7,526          6,900         8,134         7,500         6,254         6,500         6,500         6,500

 110-4413-010 FOIA PRINT & DUPLICATING F        192             65            83           250           231           230           230           230

 110-4415-010 DEMOLITION ESCROW FEES         80,000   (     80,000)            0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4417-010 INTERFUND CHG - ERI DEBT S    152,200        151,434       150,517       149,164       135,809       149,447       151,685       151,685



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:  3

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 110-4418-010 INTERFUND CHG - TECHNOLOGY     31,983          9,462        16,823        28,912        33,619        37,338        37,338        37,338

 110-4419-010 OTHER MISC GEN GOV CHARGES          0   (         42) (        173)            0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL GENERAL GOVT CHARGES                300,023        114,526       202,760       214,826       207,592       224,515       230,753       230,753

 POLICE DEPT CHARGES

 110-4421-010 COURT COSTS, FEES & CHARGE      1,699          2,625        13,479         2,000           915         1,500         1,500         1,500

 110-4422-010 ACCIDENT REPORTS                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4423-010 BONDING FEES                    3,490          3,820         3,959         3,250         4,910         5,200         5,200         5,200

 110-4425-010 FAXES COPIES PHOTOS & VHS       2,673          3,972         4,805         3,000         8,849         8,500         8,500         8,500

 110-4426-010 SEX OFFENDER REGISTRATION          35             80            95           100           130           125           125           125

 110-4427-010 SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD & OF          0         27,468        35,037        35,000         1,793        37,000        37,000        37,000

 110-4429-010 OTHER POLICE DEPT CHARGES      30,429          1,923         2,056        15,000        11,072        15,000        15,000        15,000

  TOTAL POLICE DEPT CHARGES                  38,327         39,888        59,431        58,350        27,669        67,325        67,325        67,325

 FIRE DEPT CHARGES

 110-4432-010 AMBULANCE ASSIST                5,699          7,708             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4433-010 INDUSTRIAL SERVICE FEES        17,699         14,865        19,223        19,000        18,759        19,000        19,000        19,000

 110-4434-010 HAZARD MATERIAL SPILL RESP      7,012          5,006         5,071         8,000         1,331         2,000         2,000         2,000

 110-4435-010 NONRESIDENT FIRE DEPT CHAR      8,343          6,900         5,609        10,000         4,288         4,000         5,000         5,000

 110-4436-010 AMBULANCE BILLING                   0              0           546             0         1,954         2,000        27,500        27,500

 110-4439-010 OTHER FIRE DEPT CHARGES         3,696          2,766           489         3,000         1,344         2,000         2,000         2,000

  TOTAL FIRE DEPT CHARGES                    42,449         37,245        30,938        40,000        27,676        29,000        55,500        55,500

 PUBLIC WORKS DEPT CHRGS

 110-4442-010 STREET CUT PERMITS-STREET       6,175          8,320         7,410         7,000         8,180         8,000         8,000         8,000

 110-4444-010 IDOT TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINT       4,362         32,344        22,446        12,000        13,041        15,000        15,000        15,000

 110-4445-010 TOWNSHIP ROAD MAINT CHARGE     23,862         26,302             0        22,000             0             0             0             0

 110-4447-010 YARD WASTE FEES                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4449-010 OTHER PUBLIC WORKS DEPT CH     46,580          9,398        29,333        10,000         5,486         5,000         5,000         5,000

  TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS DEPT CHRGS              80,979         76,365        59,189        51,000        26,707        28,000        28,000        28,000

 LAKE & PARK REC CHARGES

 110-4481-010 LAKE FISH RESTOCKING FEES           0            300             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4482-010 MARINA CONCESSION SALES        34,670         35,107        37,240        40,000        33,878        39,000        39,000        39,000

 110-4483-010 MARINA FUEL SALES              19,863         20,078        19,758        22,500        16,240        18,000        18,000        18,000

 110-4484-010 MARINA SALES TAX                2,340          2,255         2,511         2,500         2,296         2,500         2,500         2,500

 110-4485-010 CAMPING FEES-EAST CAMPGROU     68,236         79,147        73,786        75,000        45,815        75,000        77,500        77,500

 110-4486-010 CAMPING FEES-WEST CAMPGROU     44,327         48,253        47,065        45,000        40,538        45,000        47,500        47,500

 110-4489-010 MISC LAKE & PARK CHARGES            0          3,118         3,200         4,000           500         1,000         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL LAKE & PARK REC CHARGES             169,437        188,258       183,560       189,000       139,266       180,500       185,500       185,500

 CEMETERY DEPT CHRGS

 110-4491-010 SALE OF CEMETERY LOTS               0              0             0             0             0             0        25,000        25,000

 110-4492-010 CEMETERY GRAVE OPENING              0              0             0             0             0             0        65,000        65,000

 110-4493-010 CEMETERY MONUMENT PREP              0              0             0             0             0             0         8,000         8,000

 110-4494-010 CEMETERY FARM INCOME                0              0             0             0             0             0         1,500         1,500

 110-4495-010 PERPETUAL CARE REV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4496-010 MISC & SUNDRY CEMETERY CHR          0              0             0             0             0             0         1,200         1,200

  TOTAL CEMETERY DEPT CHRGS                       0              0             0             0             0             0       100,700       100,700

    TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES              631,214        456,282       535,878       553,176       428,910       529,340       667,778       667,778



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:  4

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

FINES & FORFEITURES

 COURT FINES

 110-4511-010 CIRCUIT COURT FINES           128,574        138,010       124,643       125,000       113,262       123,000       123,000       123,000

 110-4512-010 ILLLEGAL PARKING FINES            560            380           490         1,000           570           750           750           750

 110-4513-010 DUI EQUIPMENT FINES             9,837          8,458        18,145        15,000        11,900        10,500        10,500        10,500

  TOTAL COURT FINES                         138,971        146,848       143,278       141,000       125,731       134,250       134,250       134,250

 OTHER FINES

 110-4520-010 OTHER FINES-ADMINISTRATIVE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINES                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 FORFEITURES

 110-4530-010 FORFEITS-CONFISCATION OF D          0          2,156             0             0        83,077        83,077             0             0

  TOTAL FORFEITURES                               0          2,156             0             0        83,077        83,077             0             0

    TOTAL FINES & FORFEITURES               138,971        149,005       143,278       141,000       208,808       217,327       134,250       134,250

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 110-4610-010 INTEREST EARNINGS             170,179        100,864        36,014        35,000         6,669         8,000        13,000        13,000

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                   170,179        100,864        36,014        35,000         6,669         8,000        13,000        13,000

 NET INCREASE(DECREASE)

 110-4640-010 NET INCREASE INVESTMENT VA          0              0             0             0           116             0             0             0

  TOTAL NET INCREASE(DECREASE)                    0              0             0             0           116             0             0             0

 RENTS & ROYALTIES

 110-4650-010 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF INVES          0             19             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4651-010 RENT-BURGESS AUDITORIUM        18,490         15,995        17,485        17,500         9,118         4,000         4,000         4,000

 110-4652-010 RENT-CAB COMPANY                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4653-010 RENT-CELLULAR TOWER            20,950         28,350        23,590        25,000        21,617        23,000        23,000        23,000

 110-4654-010 RENT-FARMS                     12,668         16,277        46,620        40,000             0        46,000             0             0

 110-4655-010 RENT-DEMARS CENTER              4,492          4,220         3,360         5,000         3,050         4,000         4,000         4,000

 110-4656-010 RENT-PARKING LOTS               4,550          3,180         1,860         4,000         2,025         2,025         2,025         2,025

 110-4657-010 RENT-PETERSON PARK PAVILLI      2,040          1,670         1,525         2,000         1,854         2,000         2,000         2,000

 110-4658-010 RENT-AMTRAK                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4659-010 OTHER RENTAL INCOME                 0          1,250         1,700             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL RENTS & ROYALTIES                    63,190         70,961        96,140        93,500        37,664        81,025        35,025        35,025

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS               233,368        171,825       132,154       128,500        44,449        89,025        48,025        48,025



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:  5

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 110-4801-010 POLICE DEPT CONTRIBUTIONS      10,483              0         8,053        10,000         8,251         8,251         8,251         8,251

 110-4803-010 ARTS COUNCIL CONTRIBUTIONS      4,607          3,930         2,340         7,500           886         3,000         3,000         3,000

 110-4804-010 FINANCE DEPT-MISC REVENUE      48,463         55,426        63,324        60,000        49,541        55,000        55,000        55,000

 110-4805-010 OTHER MISC REVENUES           114,631         43,732       147,320       100,000       319,308       681,000       100,000       100,000

 110-4806-010 FUTUREGEN CONTRIBUTIONS             0              0       500,000             0       465,885       467,400             0             0

 110-4807-010 TOURISM GRANTS FOR PARK &           0              0             0             0             0             0        20,000        20,000

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV            178,184        103,088       721,037       177,500       843,870     1,214,651       186,251       186,251

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 110-4813-010 DOJ - FEDERAL SHARING RECE     51,979         12,599        55,259         2,500           289           300           300           300

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV             51,979         12,599        55,259         2,500           289           300           300           300

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV          230,164        115,687       776,296       180,000       844,159     1,214,951       186,551       186,551

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                           14,670,620     15,119,755    15,818,684    15,732,235    12,854,334    15,971,023    14,937,987    14,938,287



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:  6

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CITY COUNCIL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5110-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      38,716         38,019        38,600        38,400        33,495        38,400        38,400        38,400

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   38,716         38,019        38,600        38,400        33,495        38,400        38,400        38,400

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   38,716         38,019        38,600        38,400        33,495        38,400        38,400        38,400

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5110-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          7,541          3,689         3,232         7,828             5             5             0             0

 110-5110-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              552            720           720           720           660           720           720           720

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     8,093          4,409         3,952         8,548           665           725           720           720

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5110-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              2,301          2,235         2,345         2,381         2,213         2,381         2,381         2,381

 110-5110-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS            538            523           549           557           518           557           557           557

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             2,839          2,758         2,893         2,938         2,731         2,938         2,938         2,938

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5110-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              1,604          1,750         2,953         3,120         3,052         3,120         5,030         5,030

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            1,604          1,750         2,953         3,120         3,052         3,120         5,030         5,030

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5110-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5110-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             121            101           112           104            95           104           104           104

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 121            101           112           104            95           104           104           104

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   12,658          9,017         9,911        14,710         6,543         6,887         8,792         8,792

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5110-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5110-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            341          1,077           136         1,000           603           750             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      341          1,077           136         1,000           603           750             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                341          1,077           136         1,000           603           750             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:  7

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CITY COUNCIL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5110-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        825              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                 825              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5110-532 TELEPHONE                         568            612           517           600           482           600           600           600

 110-5110-533 CELLULAR PHONE                  2,400          3,412         2,702         3,000         1,100         1,200         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       2,968          4,024         3,220         3,600         1,582         1,800         1,800         1,800

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5110-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE        1,082          1,116           254         1,000         1,202         1,100         1,100         1,100

 110-5110-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               1,027          5,009         4,952         5,000         3,816         4,150         4,150         1,000

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               2,109          6,126         5,206         6,000         5,018         5,250         5,250         2,100

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5110-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS              1,823          1,953         1,645         2,000         2,403         2,000         2,000         2,000

 110-5110-572 COMM PROMOTIONS & RELATION      3,873          5,210         3,939         4,000         1,175         1,300         1,300         1,300

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            5,696          7,163         5,584         6,000         3,578         3,300         3,300         3,300

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             11,598         17,313        14,010        15,600        10,178        10,350        10,350         7,200

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CITY COUNCIL                          63,312         65,425        62,657        69,710        50,819        56,387        57,542        54,392



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:  8

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CITY CLERK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5120-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     113,462        117,926       122,801       136,436       110,486       136,436       136,835       136,835

 110-5120-113 OVERTIME                          532            525           454           535           284           535           535           535

 110-5120-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            7,661          8,354         9,013             0         7,520             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  121,656        126,805       132,268       136,971       118,290       136,971       137,370       137,370

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  121,656        126,805       132,268       136,971       118,290       136,971       137,370       137,370

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5120-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         18,562         16,663        18,035        21,079        20,013        21,079        21,079        23,631

 110-5120-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              331            432           432           432           396           432           432           432

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    18,893         17,095        18,467        21,511        20,409        21,511        21,511        24,063

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5120-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              7,198          7,574         7,919         8,492         7,473         8,492         8,517         8,517

 110-5120-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,684          1,772         1,852         1,986         1,748         1,986         1,992         1,992

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             8,882          9,346         9,771        10,478         9,221        10,478        10,509        10,509

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5120-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             13,695         13,047        12,780        14,839        12,857        14,839        17,995        17,995

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           13,695         13,047        12,780        14,839        12,857        14,839        17,995        17,995

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5120-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                561            531           401           258           237           258           394           394

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              561            531           401           258           237           258           394           394

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5120-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             360            400           402           370           339           370           371           371

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 360            400           402           370           339           370           371           371

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   42,391         40,418        41,822        47,456        43,063        47,456        50,780        53,332

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5120-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 1,683          1,880         2,728         3,000         1,388         2,000         2,120         2,120

 110-5120-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0            110            44           500             0           250           800           800

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    1,683          1,990         2,771         3,500         1,388         2,250         2,920         2,920



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:  9

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CITY CLERK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 110-5120-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS               416            395           702           500           823           900           700           500

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                   416            395           702           500           823           900           700           500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              2,098          2,385         3,474         4,000         2,211         3,150         3,620         3,420

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5120-431 REPAIR OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5120-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      7,893          3,760         6,951         8,000         6,940         8,750        11,060        10,000

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               7,893          3,760         6,951         8,000         6,940         8,750        11,060        10,000

 INSURANCE

 110-5120-521 PUBLIC OFFICAL BONDING FEE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5120-522 NOTARY FEES                        30            150             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INSURANCE                              30            150             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5120-531 POSTAGE                         1,992          2,134         1,615         2,250           809         1,250         2,250         2,250

 110-5120-532 TELEPHONE                       2,859          2,636         2,640         2,800         2,413         2,800         2,800         2,800

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       4,851          4,770         4,254         5,050         3,221         4,050         5,050         5,050

 ADVERTISING

 110-5120-540 ADVERTISING                     1,946          2,777         2,608         2,500         2,121         2,500         3,170         3,170

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                         1,946          2,777         2,608         2,500         2,121         2,500         3,170         3,170

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5120-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                 859            175         1,435         2,000             0             0         1,750         1,750

 110-5120-564 PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB           0             52             0             0            22             0           200             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                 859            227         1,435         2,000            22             0         1,950         1,750

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             15,579         11,684        15,247        17,550        12,304        15,300        21,230        19,970

 OTHER OBJECTS



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 10

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CITY CLERK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 CITY CLERK DEPT OBJECTS

 110-5120-801 VITAL RECORDS FEE REMITTAN      6,886          7,538         8,134         7,500         5,660         7,000         6,500         6,500

 110-5120-802 HUNTING/FISHING LIC. FEE R        955            997           867         1,000           464           800         1,750         1,750

    TOTAL CITY CLERK DEPT OBJECTS             7,841          8,535         9,001         8,500         6,124         7,800         8,250         8,250

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5120-814 PRINT/COPY MACH. LEASE & M      3,127          4,014         3,795         4,100         3,439         4,100         4,200         4,925

 110-5120-815 POSTAGE METER LEASE & MAIN          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             3,127          4,014         3,795         4,100         3,439         4,100         4,200         4,925

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5120-841 WIDE AREA NETWORK SOFTWARE     10,000              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT           10,000              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5120-863 COMPUTERS                           0          1,501             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0          1,501             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        20,968         14,050        12,796        12,600         9,564        11,900        12,450        13,175

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CITY CLERK                           202,692        195,342       205,608       218,577       185,431       214,777       225,450       227,267



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 11

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CITY ADMINISTRATOR

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5130-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      76,470         82,292        76,244        87,418        20,755        35,155        99,550        99,550

 110-5130-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            6,220          9,296         8,884             0         5,643         2,500             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   82,690         91,589        85,128        87,418        26,398        37,655        99,550        99,550

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   82,690         91,589        85,128        87,418        26,398        37,655        99,550        99,550

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5130-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          6,529          5,927         6,568         7,828         2,283         3,300         7,828         8,606

 110-5130-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              110            144           144           144           132           144           144           144

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     6,639          6,071         6,712         7,972         2,415         3,444         7,972         8,750

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5130-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              5,000          5,594         5,231         5,420         1,900         2,300         6,172         6,172

 110-5130-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,169          1,308         1,223         1,268           444           525         1,443         1,443

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             6,170          6,902         6,455         6,688         2,344         2,825         7,615         7,615

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5130-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              9,315          8,674         8,449         9,470         3,357         5,400        13,041        13,041

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            9,315          8,674         8,449         9,470         3,357         5,400        13,041        13,041

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5130-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                187            177           134            86            79            86           131           131

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              187            177           134            86            79            86           131           131

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5130-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             254            261           248           236           216           236           269           269

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 254            261           248           236           216           236           269           269

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   22,565         22,086        21,997        24,452         8,411        11,991        29,028        29,806

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5130-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                   206              3             0             0           277           600             0             0

 110-5130-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                  20              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      226              3             0             0           277           600             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                226              3             0             0           277           600             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 12

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CITY ADMINISTRATOR

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5130-431 REPAIR OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 ADVERTISING

 110-5130-540 ADVERTISING                         0              0             0             0           580           600             0             0

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                             0              0             0             0           580           600             0             0

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 110-5130-550 PRINTING & BINDING                 25            159             0           250           374           310           250           250

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                    25            159             0           250           374           310           250           250

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5130-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE        1,156            833           662         1,000           626           500         1,000         1,000

 110-5130-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               2,744          2,520         3,585         2,500         4,065         9,000         2,500         2,500

 110-5130-564 PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB         174            373           393           750             0             0             0             0

 110-5130-565 CELLULAR PHONE EXP REIMB          937          1,173         1,037         1,100           921           925         1,100             0

 110-5130-569 DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               5,011          4,900         5,677         5,350         5,612        10,425         4,600         3,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5130-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                205            614           587         1,000           790         1,000         1,000         1,000

 110-5130-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI          0              0             0             0        47,400        47,400             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              205            614           587         1,000        48,190        48,400         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              5,241          5,673         6,264         6,600        54,756        59,735         5,850         4,750

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5130-863 DESKTOP WORK STATION                0              0           189             0           198             0             0         1,200

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0           189             0           198             0             0         1,200

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0           189             0           198             0             0         1,200

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CITY ADMINISTRATOR                   110,721        119,350       113,578       118,470        90,039       109,981       134,428       135,306



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 13

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5150-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      29,949         27,213        28,361        33,179        24,635        33,179        31,535        31,535

 110-5150-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLPYEES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5150-113 OVERTIME                          101             55             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5150-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            2,451          2,693         2,491             0         2,784             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   32,500         29,962        30,852        33,179        27,418        33,179        31,535        31,535

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   32,500         29,962        30,852        33,179        27,418        33,179        31,535        31,535

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5150-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          4,230          3,213         3,560         5,218         3,889         4,175         4,175         4,647

 110-5150-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE               75             98            98            98            90            98            98            98

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     4,305          3,311         3,658         5,316         3,979         4,273         4,273         4,745

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5150-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              1,983          1,741         1,820         2,057         1,726         1,955         1,955         1,955

 110-5150-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS            464            407           426           481           404           457           457           457

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             2,446          2,148         2,246         2,538         2,129         2,412         2,412         2,412

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5150-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              3,792          2,999         2,900         3,594         3,858         4,131         4,131         4,131

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            3,792          2,999         2,900         3,594         3,858         4,131         4,131         4,131

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5150-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                191            121            91            58            53            89            89            89

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              191            121            91            58            53            89            89            89

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5150-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             135            101            94            90            83            90            85            85

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 135            101            94            90            83            90            85            85

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   10,869          8,679         8,989        11,596        10,102        10,995        10,990        11,462

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5150-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 2,794          1,737         1,988         2,000         2,321         2,000         2,000         2,000

 110-5150-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,233            201            12           250             0             0           200           200

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    4,027          1,939         2,000         2,250         2,321         2,000         2,200         2,200

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              4,027          1,939         2,000         2,250         2,321         2,000         2,200         2,200



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 14

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5150-513 AUDITING & ACCOUNTING SERV     15,775         14,300        14,500        14,500        19,500        19,500        17,000        17,000

 110-5150-516 TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVIC       9,443          9,899        10,072        11,300        10,596        10,600        11,000        11,000

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              25,218         24,199        24,572        25,800        30,096        30,100        28,000        28,000

 INSURANCE

 110-5150-521 PUBLIC OFFICAL BONDING FEE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INSURANCE                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5150-531 POSTAGE                            21              0             0             0             0             1             0             0

 110-5150-532 TELEPHONE                         998          1,137         1,127         1,000         1,005         1,150         1,100         1,100

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       1,019          1,137         1,127         1,000         1,005         1,151         1,100         1,100

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5150-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               1,862             83           197           500            89           100         2,860         2,860

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               1,862             83           197           500            89           100         2,860         2,860

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5150-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIP                   0              0             0             0           200           200           825           825

 110-5150-576 SECURITY SERVICES                 300            300           300             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              300            300           300             0           200           200           825           825

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             28,399         25,719        26,197        27,300        31,391        31,551        32,785        32,785

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5150-811 BANK SERVICE CHARGES            8,321          9,252         9,749         9,000        15,299        14,000        17,400        11,400

 110-5150-813 OTHER REFUNDS            (      3,928)             0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5150-816 FARM EXPENSES                   1,774            587         2,879         2,000             0         2,500             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             6,166          9,839        12,627        11,000        15,299        16,500        17,400        11,400

 SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS

 110-5150-830 BAD DEBT EXPENSE                  420            230         3,214             0            53            55             0             0

    TOTAL SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS                 420            230         3,214             0            53            55             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         6,587         10,069        15,841        11,000        15,352        16,555        17,400        11,400

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION              82,382         76,368        83,879        85,325        86,583        94,280        94,910        89,382



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 15

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

LEGAL SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5160-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      55,002         55,112        51,374        30,000        27,268        34,215        34,215        34,215

 110-5160-113 OVERTIME                           60            113           175             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5160-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            5,050          6,577         5,401             0         2,866             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   60,111         61,802        56,950        30,000        30,134        34,215        34,215        34,215

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   60,111         61,802        56,950        30,000        30,134        34,215        34,215        34,215

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5160-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          7,129          6,094         4,955             0         2,912         3,131         3,131         3,443

 110-5160-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              110            144           144             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     7,239          6,238         5,099             0         2,912         3,131         3,131         3,443

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5160-221 FICA                            3,455          3,579         3,470         1,860         1,885         2,121         2,121         2,121

 110-5160-222 MEDICARE                          808            837           811           435           441           496           496           496

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             4,263          4,417         4,281         2,295         2,326         2,617         2,617         2,617

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5160-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              6,575          6,165         5,624         3,250         3,078         4,482         4,482         4,482

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            6,575          6,165         5,624         3,250         3,078         4,482         4,482         4,482

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5160-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                187            177           134             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              187            177           134             0             0             0             0             0

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5160-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             182            183           176            81            74            81            92            92

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 182            183           176            81            74            81            92            92

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   18,446         17,180        15,313         5,626         8,390        10,311        10,322        10,634

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5160-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 1,728          2,023         1,210         1,250           165           250           250           250

 110-5160-319 MISC. SUPPLIES (NUISANCE E      1,251          1,930            20             0           100             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    2,980          3,953         1,230         1,250           265           250           250           250



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 16

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

LEGAL SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 110-5160-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS             4,352          5,226         5,331         4,600         4,571         4,800         5,500         5,500

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                 4,352          5,226         5,331         4,600         4,571         4,800         5,500         5,500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              7,331          9,179         6,561         5,850         4,835         5,050         5,750         5,750

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5160-514 CITY ATTORNEY RETAINER, FE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5160-515 LABOR RELATIONS COUNSEL         1,850            349             0         1,000           385         1,000         2,000        15,000

 110-5160-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      8,164            442             5         1,000           231           250             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              10,014            791             5         2,000           616         1,250         2,000        15,000

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5160-531 POSTAGE                             0              0             0             0             0             0         1,500             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0         1,500             0

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5160-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                 569          1,565         2,000         2,000           290           500         2,100         2,100

 110-5160-565 CELLULAR TELEPHONE REIMBUR        700          1,200         1,200         1,200         1,100         1,200         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               1,269          2,765         3,200         3,200         1,390         1,700         3,300         3,300

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5160-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS              1,520          1,289         1,357         1,500         1,294         1,300           759           759

 110-5160-579 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES        8,118          9,340         9,535        11,000         2,827         4,000             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            9,638         10,629        10,892        12,500         4,121         5,300           759           759

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             20,920         14,184        14,097        17,700         6,126         8,250         7,559        19,059

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5160-863 COMPUTERS                           0          1,259             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0          1,259             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0          1,259             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL LEGAL SERVICES                       106,809        103,603        92,922        59,176        49,486        57,826        57,846        69,658



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 17

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5170-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      71,995         89,755        92,744       102,034        81,870       102,034       102,801       102,801

 110-5170-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5170-113 OVERTIME                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5170-114 COMPENSATED ABSCENSES           3,920          7,104         6,616             0         6,758             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   75,915         96,859        99,360       102,034        88,628       102,034       102,801       102,801

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   75,915         96,859        99,360       102,034        88,628       102,034       102,801       102,801

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5170-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          5,895          5,927         6,568         7,828         7,176         7,828         7,828         8,606

 110-5170-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              221            288           288           288           264           288           288           288

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     6,116          6,215         6,856         8,116         7,440         8,116         8,116         8,894

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5170-221 FICA                            4,575          5,922         6,135         6,326         5,825         6,326         6,374         6,374

 110-5170-222 MEDICARE                        1,070          1,385         1,435         1,479         1,362         1,479         1,491         1,491

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             5,645          7,308         7,570         7,805         7,188         7,805         7,865         7,865

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5170-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              8,687         10,203         9,906        11,054         9,910        11,054        13,467        13,467

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            8,687         10,203         9,906        11,054         9,910        11,054        13,467        13,467

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5170-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                374            354           267           172           158           172           145           145

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              374            354           267           172           158           172           145           145

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5170-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             250            303           291           275           252           229           278           278

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 250            303           291           275           252           229           278           278

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   21,071         24,383        24,890        27,422        24,947        27,376        29,871        30,649

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5170-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                    93             40           361           200           183           200           350           350

 110-5170-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                   0              0             0           200            11           100             0             0

 110-5170-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               4,178          1,382         1,206         2,000           410           500         1,500         1,500

 110-5170-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            397          1,013           928         1,000           118           250           600           600

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    4,669          2,435         2,495         3,400           722         1,050         2,450         2,450



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 18

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 110-5170-325 SOFTWARE                          988            784           145         2,000           913         2,000         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                                988            784           145         2,000           913         2,000         2,000         2,000

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 110-5170-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS               198            212            20           250            35           250           135           135

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                   198            212            20           250            35           250           135           135

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              5,855          3,431         2,660         5,650         1,670         3,300         4,585         4,585

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5170-516 TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVIC      14,700          7,977         7,870        10,000        12,713        13,000        10,100        10,100

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              14,700          7,977         7,870        10,000        12,713        13,000        10,100        10,100

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5170-533 CELLULAR PHONE                  1,068          2,056           945         1,200           816         1,200         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       1,068          2,056           945         1,200           816         1,200         1,200         1,200

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5170-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               2,463          3,546         3,913         6,000         1,955         2,500         4,000         4,000

 110-5170-564 PRIVATE VEHICLE REIMBURSEM          0              0            28           250             0             0           100           100

 110-5170-565 CELLULAR PHONE REIMBURSEME          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               2,463          3,546         3,941         6,250         1,955         2,500         4,100         4,100

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5170-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                349            349           350           500           478           700           500           500

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              349            349           350           500           478           700           500           500

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             18,580         13,928        13,106        17,950        15,962        17,400        15,900        15,900

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5170-841 WIDE AREA NETWORK SOFTWARE      1,072          2,974           426         3,000           396         2,100         8,170         8,170

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT            1,072          2,974           426         3,000           396         2,100         8,170         8,170

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5170-851 WIDE AREA NETWORK SERVERS      12,888         17,785         1,171         5,000         5,915         6,500         3,600         3,600

 110-5170-852 NETWORK SECURITY SYSTEMS        4,145          3,300           952         5,000         3,610         4,000         4,300         4,300

 110-5170-854 WIDE AREA NETWORK WIRING A      2,025          5,897         2,114         2,200         1,938         2,200         2,200         2,200

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT           19,058         26,983         4,236        12,200        11,463        12,700        10,100        10,100



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 19

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5170-863 COMPUTERS                           0          2,478           547         2,500           573           750         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0          2,478           547         2,500           573           750         2,000         2,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        20,130         32,435         5,209        17,700        12,432        15,550        20,270        20,270

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS                141,552        171,036       145,225       170,756       143,639       165,660       173,427       174,205



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 20

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PLANNING & ZONING

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5180-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      32,787         41,013        24,082        26,739        22,028        26,739        26,739        26,739

 110-5180-113 OVERTIME                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5180-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            2,072          2,854         1,726             0         1,198             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   34,859         43,866        25,808        26,739        23,225        26,739        26,739        26,739

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   34,859         43,866        25,808        26,739        23,225        26,739        26,739        26,739

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5180-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          4,660          4,808         4,092         3,914         3,588         3,914         3,914         4,303

 110-5180-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE               55             72            72            72            66            72            72            72

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     4,715          4,880         4,164         3,986         3,654         3,986         3,986         4,375

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5180-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              2,077          2,661         2,261         1,658         1,528         1,658         1,658         1,658

 110-5180-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS            486            622           529           388           357           388           388           388

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             2,563          3,284         2,790         2,046         1,886         2,046         2,046         2,046

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5180-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              3,743          4,418         3,515         2,729         2,352         2,729         3,300         3,300

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            3,743          4,418         3,515         2,729         2,352         2,729         3,300         3,300

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5180-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                170             97            84            54            50            54           148           148

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              170             97            84            54            50            54           148           148

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5180-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             866            897         1,062         1,025           940         1,025         1,138         1,138

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 866            897         1,062         1,025           940         1,025         1,138         1,138

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   12,057         13,576        11,615         9,840         8,881         9,840        10,618        11,007

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5180-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                   933             10             3           100             0             0           100           100

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      933             10             3           100             0             0           100           100



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 21

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PLANNING & ZONING

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 110-5180-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                933             10             3           100             0             0           100           100

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5180-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES     14,881         30,633         8,209        20,000         1,487         2,500         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              14,881         30,633         8,209        20,000         1,487         2,500         2,500         2,500

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5180-531 POSTAGE                            76            109            98           100           105           125           150           150

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                          76            109            98           100           105           125           150           150

 ADVERTISING

 110-5180-540 ADVERTISING                     1,506          1,506             0         1,750         1,335         2,500             0             0

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                         1,506          1,506             0         1,750         1,335         2,500             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5180-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI          0            805             0             0           162           165             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0            805             0             0           162           165             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             16,462         33,053         8,308        21,850         3,089         5,290         2,650         2,650

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PLANNING & ZONING                     64,311         90,506        45,734        58,529        35,195        41,869        40,107        40,496



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 22

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

COUNCIL CONTINGENCY

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5190-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            410              0             0             0         3,678         3,750         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      410              0             0             0         3,678         3,750         4,000         4,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                410              0             0             0         3,678         3,750         4,000         4,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5190-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI     10,925         12,641         9,875        12,500         7,079         7,500         7,500         7,500

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES           10,925         12,641         9,875        12,500         7,079         7,500         7,500         7,500

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             10,925         12,641         9,875        12,500         7,079         7,500         7,500         7,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL COUNCIL CONTINGENCY                   11,335         12,641         9,875        12,500        10,757        11,250        11,500        11,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 23

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

POLICE ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5211-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     245,588        285,301       324,340       310,812       290,407       336,886       284,627       215,408

 110-5211-113 OVERTIME                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5211-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES                0         55,271             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  245,588        340,572       324,340       310,812       290,407       336,886       284,627       215,408

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  245,588        340,572       324,340       310,812       290,407       336,886       284,627       215,408

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5211-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         23,753         22,674        22,833        26,971        26,797        29,234        24,708        17,069

 110-5211-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              552            720           864           792           726           792           720           576

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    24,305         23,394        23,697        27,763        27,523        30,026        25,428        17,645

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5211-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              6,788          7,036         7,283         6,224         6,960         7,841         4,601         4,601

 110-5211-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,587          2,632         3,608         3,444         3,437         3,822         3,064         3,123

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             8,375          9,668        10,890         9,668        10,398        11,663         7,665         7,724

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5211-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             12,917         12,123        11,760        10,876        11,860        13,701         9,722         9,722

 110-5211-232 POLICE PENSION CONTRIBUTIO    737,940        915,337       992,277     1,079,066       876,353     1,145,967     1,145,967     1,145,967

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS          750,857        927,460     1,004,037     1,089,942       888,213     1,159,668     1,155,689     1,155,689

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5211-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                935            885           802           516           473           516           657           526

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              935            885           802           516           473           516           657           526

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5211-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           4,310          6,356         5,680         5,069         4,647         5,069         5,082         3,476

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               4,310          6,356         5,680         5,069         4,647         5,069         5,082         3,476

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  788,781        967,761     1,045,106     1,132,958       931,253     1,206,942     1,194,521     1,185,060

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5211-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 3,371          2,769         4,189         5,500         5,334         5,500         5,000         4,000

 110-5211-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         233            160           204           500             8            25           200           200

 110-5211-315 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING             2,180          3,906           597         1,500           533           750           750           750

 110-5211-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               1,410            900         1,069         1,800           745         1,000             0             0

 110-5211-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,615          2,780         2,163         2,000         1,600         1,750         1,250         1,250

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    8,809         10,515         8,222        11,300         8,219         9,025         7,200         6,200

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              8,809         10,515         8,222        11,300         8,219         9,025         7,200         6,200



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 24

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

POLICE ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5211-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      5,412          3,723         6,999         7,000         2,374         2,500             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               5,412          3,723         6,999         7,000         2,374         2,500             0             0

 INSURANCE

 110-5211-522 NOTARY FEES                       167            459           255           500            30           100           200           200

    TOTAL INSURANCE                             167            459           255           500            30           100           200           200

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5211-531 POSTAGE                         1,993          2,128         2,139         2,500         2,657         3,000         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       1,993          2,128         2,139         2,500         2,657         3,000         2,500         2,500

 ADVERTISING

 110-5211-540 ADVERTISING                       862            185         1,799           700             0             0           500           500

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                           862            185         1,799           700             0             0           500           500

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 110-5211-550 PRINTING & BINDING              1,180          1,632         2,038         1,800         1,351         1,800         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                 1,180          1,632         2,038         1,800         1,351         1,800         1,500         1,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5211-571 DUE & MEMBERSHIPS               1,402          1,411         1,416         1,200         1,702         2,000         1,000         1,000

 110-5211-573 LAUNDRY SERVICE                    92            133           346           250           304           400           350           350

 110-5211-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI      4,271          5,249         2,544         4,000         4,447         3,000             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            5,764          6,792         4,305         5,450         6,452         5,400         1,350         1,350

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             15,378         14,919        17,535        17,950        12,864        12,800         6,050         6,050

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5211-814 PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA      6,755          7,177         7,755         7,000         6,152         7,000         7,000         7,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             6,755          7,177         7,755         7,000         6,152         7,000         7,000         7,000

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5211-863 DESKTOP COMPUTERS                   0          1,041             0             0         1,599         1,600             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0          1,041             0             0         1,599         1,600             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         6,755          8,218         7,755         7,000         7,751         8,600         7,000         7,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL POLICE ADMINISTRATION              1,065,311      1,341,984     1,402,958     1,480,020     1,250,495     1,574,253     1,499,398     1,419,718



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 25

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5212-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     168,628        187,323       265,885       231,060       199,835       231,060       232,341       232,341

 110-5212-113 OVERTIME                        9,843         14,073        13,440        12,999        10,795        12,999        12,999        12,999

 110-5212-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            3,706          4,679         9,022             0         7,465             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  182,178        206,075       288,347       244,059       218,096       244,059       245,340       245,340

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  182,178        206,075       288,347       244,059       218,096       244,059       245,340       245,340

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5212-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         13,318         12,333        19,327        16,880        22,398        16,880        16,880        17,069

 110-5212-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              442            720           576           576           528           576           576           576

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    13,760         13,053        19,903        17,456        22,926        17,456        17,456        17,645

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5212-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS                383              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5212-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          2,535          2,889         4,081         3,539         3,318         3,539         3,557         3,557

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             2,919          2,889         4,081         3,539         3,318         3,539         3,557         3,557

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5212-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                748            885           535           344           315           344           526           526

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              748            885           535           344           315           344           526           526

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5212-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           6,621         13,195         6,045         5,565         5,101         5,565         5,692         5,692

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               6,621         13,195         6,045         5,565         5,101         5,565         5,692         5,692

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   24,047         30,021        30,563        26,904        31,660        26,904        27,231        27,420

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5212-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          2,504          3,184         4,192         4,000         2,486         3,000         3,000         2,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    2,504          3,184         4,192         4,000         2,486         3,000         3,000         2,500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              2,504          3,184         4,192         4,000         2,486         3,000         3,000         2,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 26

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5212-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        779          1,436         1,177         1,300         1,606         1,750         1,400         1,400

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              779          1,436         1,177         1,300         1,606         1,750         1,400         1,400

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                779          1,436         1,177         1,300         1,606         1,750         1,400         1,400

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5212-863 COMPUTERS                           0          3,107             0         1,500         1,697         1,700         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0          3,107             0         1,500         1,697         1,700         1,200         1,200

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0          3,107             0         1,500         1,697         1,700         1,200         1,200

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION               209,507        243,823       324,278       277,763       255,545       277,413       278,171       277,860



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 27

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PATROL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5213-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES   1,680,392      1,718,061     1,629,290     1,793,650     1,510,882     1,787,315     1,622,842     1,622,842

 110-5213-113 OVERTIME                       51,915         51,051        76,149        67,000        51,273        67,000        62,872        62,872

 110-5213-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES           41,217         38,454        55,267             0       116,045             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                1,773,523      1,807,566     1,760,706     1,860,650     1,678,200     1,854,315     1,685,714     1,685,714

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                1,773,523      1,807,566     1,760,706     1,860,650     1,678,200     1,854,315     1,685,714     1,685,714

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5213-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE        186,273        184,187       188,675       236,064       210,873       237,395       215,882       236,600

 110-5213-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE            3,864          4,752         4,608         4,464         4,092         4,464         4,032         4,032

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                   190,137        188,939       193,283       240,528       214,965       241,859       219,914       240,632

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5213-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              3,654              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5213-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS         20,382         21,324        20,168        23,149        20,657        23,149        21,524        21,524

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB            24,036         21,324        20,168        23,149        20,657        23,149        21,524        21,524

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5213-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.              6,545          5,838         4,280         2,666         2,444         2,666         3,681         3,681

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION            6,545          5,838         4,280         2,666         2,444         2,666         3,681         3,681

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5213-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION          57,173         81,800        46,798        42,423        38,888        42,423        39,109        39,109

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION              57,173         81,800        46,798        42,423        38,888        42,423        39,109        39,109

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  277,891        297,900       264,528       308,766       276,954       310,097       284,228       304,946

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5213-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          7,510         11,917         7,572         6,000         3,138         4,000         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    7,510         11,917         7,572         6,000         3,138         4,000         4,000         4,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              7,510         11,917         7,572         6,000         3,138         4,000         4,000         4,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 28

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PATROL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5213-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI      2,200          8,559        19,546        13,695        23,682        17,000        26,000        24,000

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            2,200          8,559        19,546        13,695        23,682        17,000        26,000        24,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              2,200          8,559        19,546        13,695        23,682        17,000        26,000        24,000

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5213-863 DESKTOP COMPUTERS                   0              0             0         5,000        20,665        21,000         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0         5,000        20,665        21,000         1,200         1,200

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0         5,000        20,665        21,000         1,200         1,200

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PATROL                             2,061,124      2,125,942     2,052,352     2,194,111     2,002,639     2,206,412     2,001,142     2,019,860



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 29

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

K-9 SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5214-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      53,334         53,823        56,177        59,661        50,198        59,661        59,783        59,783

 110-5214-113 OVERTIME                          390            593         1,110         1,100             0         1,100         1,100         1,100

 110-5214-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            1,189          1,224         1,908             0         1,964             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   54,914         55,640        59,195        60,761        52,162        60,761        60,883        60,883

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   54,914         55,640        59,195        60,761        52,162        60,761        60,883        60,883

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5214-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          6,529          5,927         6,568         7,828         7,176         7,828         7,828         7,828

 110-5214-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              110            144           144           144           132           144           144           144

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     6,639          6,071         6,712         7,972         7,308         7,972         7,972         7,972

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5214-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5214-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS            762            788           833           881           778           881           883           883

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB               762            788           833           881           778           881           883           883

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5214-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                231            177           134            86            79            86           131           131

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              231            177           134            86            79            86           131           131

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5214-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           1,692          2,545         1,489         1,385         1,270         1,385         1,412         1,412

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               1,692          2,545         1,489         1,385         1,270         1,385         1,412         1,412

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                    9,324          9,581         9,168        10,324         9,434        10,324        10,398        10,398

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5214-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0             93         5,907           500           387           500           200           200

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0             93         5,907           500           387           500           200           200

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0             93         5,907           500           387           500           200           200

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 30

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

K-9 SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5214-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI      1,646            747           607         1,500         1,126         1,500           600           600

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            1,646            747           607         1,500         1,126         1,500           600           600

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              1,646            747           607         1,500         1,126         1,500           600           600

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL K-9 SERVICE                           65,884         66,061        74,877        73,085        63,109        73,085        72,081        72,081



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 31

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

POLICE RECORDS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5216-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      91,318        104,211       151,057       161,279       136,462       161,279        82,108        82,108

 110-5216-113 OVERTIME                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5216-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   91,318        104,211       151,057       161,279       136,462       161,279        82,108        82,108

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   91,318        104,211       151,057       161,279       136,462       161,279        82,108        82,108

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5216-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         19,586         16,794        13,135        23,848        14,351        23,848         7,828         8,606

 110-5216-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              331            432           576           576           528           576           288           288

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    19,917         17,226        13,711        24,424        14,879        24,424         8,116         8,894

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5216-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              5,390          6,121         9,084         9,999         8,817         9,999         5,091         5,091

 110-5216-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,261          1,432         2,125         2,339         2,062         2,339         1,191         1,191

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             6,650          7,553        11,209        12,338        10,880        12,338         6,282         6,282

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5216-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             10,250         10,538        14,666        17,472        15,030        17,472        10,756        10,756

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           10,250         10,538        14,666        17,472        15,030        17,472        10,756        10,756

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5216-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                561            531           535           344           315           344           263           263

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              561            531           535           344           315           344           263           263

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5216-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             290            325           443           435           399           435           222           222

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 290            325           443           435           399           435           222           222

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   37,668         36,173        40,564        55,013        41,503        55,013        25,639        26,417

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5216-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,852            139        32,667           500             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    1,852            139        32,667           500             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              1,852            139        32,667           500             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 32

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

POLICE RECORDS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5216-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI     14,383         10,920         7,899        12,700         6,538         7,000         9,300         9,300

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES           14,383         10,920         7,899        12,700         6,538         7,000         9,300         9,300

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             14,383         10,920         7,899        12,700         6,538         7,000         9,300         9,300

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5216-817 DEBT SERVICE                        0          9,218             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0          9,218             0             0             0             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5216-826 SEX OFFENDER REGIST FEE RE          0              0             0             0           343             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0           343             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0          9,218             0             0           343             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL POLICE RECORDS                       145,221        160,661       232,187       229,492       184,845       223,292       117,047       117,825



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 33

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CUSTODY OF PRISONERS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5217-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              3             0           100             0             0           100           100

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              3             0           100             0             0           100           100

 FOOD

 110-5217-330 FOOD                              265             74           145           400           204           250           250           250

    TOTAL FOOD                                  265             74           145           400           204           250           250           250

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                265             77           145           500           204           250           350           350

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CUSTODY OF PRISONERS                     265             77           145           500           204           250           350           350



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 34

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

TRAFFIC CONTROL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5220-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES       7,656          7,550         7,757         8,200         6,869         8,200         8,200         8,200

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                    7,656          7,550         7,757         8,200         6,869         8,200         8,200         8,200

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                    7,656          7,550         7,757         8,200         6,869         8,200         8,200         8,200

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5220-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS                469            463           481           508           465           508           508           508

 110-5220-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS            110            108           113           119           109           119           119           119

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB               579            571           594           627           574           627           627           627

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5220-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                139            126            91            57            52            57            86            86

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              139            126            91            57            52            57            86            86

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5220-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             433            374           441           187           171           187           190           190

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 433            374           441           187           171           187           190           190

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                    1,151          1,071         1,126           871           797           871           903           903

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5220-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI          0             30             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0             30             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0             30             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL TRAFFIC CONTROL                        8,807          8,651         8,883         9,071         7,666         9,071         9,103         9,103



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 35

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

POLICE TRAINING

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5221-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               3,361          8,003         5,764        10,695         9,904        10,000         7,500         7,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,361          8,003         5,764        10,695         9,904        10,000         7,500         7,500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              3,361          8,003         5,764        10,695         9,904        10,000         7,500         7,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5221-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING              19,721         26,421        18,992        22,200        16,581        19,000        18,000        10,000

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP              19,721         26,421        18,992        22,200        16,581        19,000        18,000        10,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5221-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI         50              0         1,206         3,000             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES               50              0         1,206         3,000             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             19,771         26,421        20,199        25,200        16,581        19,000        18,000        10,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL POLICE TRAINING                       23,132         34,423        25,962        35,895        26,485        29,000        25,500        17,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 36

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

COMMUNICATION SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5222-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     203,152        204,914        78,201             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5222-113 OVERTIME                        4,038          2,014         9,142             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5222-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES                0              0         6,034             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  207,190        206,929        93,377             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  207,190        206,929        93,377             0             0             0             0             0

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5222-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         31,871         25,380         9,531             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5222-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              773          1,008           864             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    32,644         26,388        10,395             0             0             0             0             0

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5222-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS             12,065         12,668         6,285             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5222-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          2,822          2,963         1,470             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB            14,887         15,630         7,755             0             0             0             0             0

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5222-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             22,993         21,828        10,289             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           22,993         21,828        10,289             0             0             0             0             0

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5222-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.              1,309          1,238           802             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION            1,309          1,238           802             0             0             0             0             0

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5222-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             692            658           561             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 692            658           561             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   72,525         65,742        29,803             0             0             0             0             0

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5222-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 1,094          1,129         1,500             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5222-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               1,858         50,539         1,174         1,000           130           250           250           250

 110-5222-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             98            133           123           100             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,050         51,801         2,797         1,100           130           250           250           250

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              3,050         51,801         2,797         1,100           130           250           250           250



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 37

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

COMMUNICATION SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5222-532 TELEPHONE                      22,833         24,410        24,516        26,000        22,437        26,000        26,000        26,000

 110-5222-533 CELLULAR PHONE                  6,762         10,020         9,893        11,000        11,127        11,000        11,000        11,000

 110-5222-534 PAGERS                          1,513          1,032             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5222-535 RADIOS                          5,398          5,650         5,526         6,000         4,865         6,000         6,000         6,000

 110-5222-536 LEADS ACCESS CHARGE             1,316          1,316             0         1,453         1,316         1,453         1,400         1,400

 110-5222-537 I-WIN ACCESS CHARGE             8,104          6,285        10,053        10,000         7,244         9,000         9,000         9,000

 110-5222-538 INTERNET ACCESS CHARGE              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5222-539 MISC COMMUNICATION CHGS            43            104             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                      45,968         48,816        49,988        54,453        46,989        53,453        53,400        53,400

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5222-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        163              0       111,774       187,548       184,014       185,000       187,550       187,550

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              163              0       111,774       187,548       184,014       185,000       187,550       187,550

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             46,130         48,816       161,762       242,001       231,004       238,453       240,950       240,950

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5222-863 DESKTOP COMPUTERS               5,873              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT            5,873              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         5,873              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL COMMUNICATION SERVICES               334,769        373,288       287,740       243,101       231,134       238,703       241,200       241,200



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 38

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5223-316 TOOL & EQUIPMENT                  550            588           264           500           441           200           250           250

 110-5223-318 VEHICLE PARTS                   5,067          4,350         4,026         4,000         1,802         2,500         2,500         2,500

 110-5223-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,461          1,404         1,375         2,000         1,081         1,000         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    7,078          6,342         5,666         6,500         3,323         3,700         4,250         4,250

 ENERGY

 110-5223-326 FUEL                           61,845         72,554        65,502        70,000        53,176        65,000        70,000        70,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                             61,845         72,554        65,502        70,000        53,176        65,000        70,000        70,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             68,923         78,896        71,168        76,500        56,499        68,700        74,250        74,250

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5223-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES             30,153         34,923        36,809        35,000        39,768        40,000        33,000        30,000

 110-5223-439 OTHER REPAIR & MAINT SRVCS      2,913          1,963         2,542             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            33,065         36,886        39,351        35,000        39,768        40,000        33,000        30,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             33,065         36,886        39,351        35,000        39,768        40,000        33,000        30,000

 PROPERTY

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 110-5223-742 VEHICLES                      111,058         97,403        81,587        15,652        15,652        82,000        15,652        15,652

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT             111,058         97,403        81,587        15,652        15,652        82,000        15,652        15,652

  TOTAL PROPERTY                            111,058         97,403        81,587        15,652        15,652        82,000        15,652        15,652

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES                  213,046        213,185       192,106       127,152       111,919       190,700       122,902       119,902



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 39

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

POLICE BUILDINGS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5224-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES               3,121          3,081         3,964         3,500         3,341         3,500         3,500         3,500

 110-5224-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               1,159            571           947         1,000           181           500           500           500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    4,281          3,651         4,911         4,500         3,522         4,000         4,000         4,000

 ENERGY

 110-5224-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI     46,513         58,297        78,167        65,000        84,095        95,000        70,000        90,000

 110-5224-322 ELECTRICITY                     1,027          1,656         2,134         1,500         1,985         1,500         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL ENERGY                             47,540         59,953        80,301        66,500        86,080        96,500        71,500        91,500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             51,820         63,604        85,212        71,000        89,602       100,500        75,500        95,500

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5224-410 UTILITY SERVICES                1,853          2,235         2,203         2,300         1,704         2,000         2,200         2,200

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    1,853          2,235         2,203         2,300         1,704         2,000         2,200         2,200

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5224-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS            19,319         14,345         5,672        15,000        14,795        17,500        15,000        15,000

 110-5224-435 ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMEN       5,964          7,080         7,491         7,300         7,486         8,000         8,000         8,000

 110-5224-439 OTHER REPAIR & MAINT SRVCS      5,444          7,806        18,585         5,000         7,397         9,000         5,000         5,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            30,727         29,230        31,749        27,300        29,678        34,500        28,000        28,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             32,580         31,465        33,952        29,600        31,382        36,500        30,200        30,200

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5224-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                  18             18            18             0            18            20             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                18             18            18             0            18            20             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                            18             18            18             0            18            20             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL POLICE BUILDINGS                      84,419         95,088       119,183       100,600       121,002       137,020       105,700       125,700



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 40

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5227-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      53,906         51,900        51,854        55,852        46,804        55,852        55,552        55,552

 110-5227-113 OVERTIME                          357          1,236         6,926         7,500         3,389         7,500         7,500         7,500

 110-5227-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            1,201          1,127         1,766             0         1,837             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   55,463         54,263        60,547        63,352        52,030        63,352        63,052        63,052

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   55,463         54,263        60,547        63,352        52,030        63,352        63,052        63,052

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5227-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          4,480          4,808         6,568         7,828         7,176         7,828         7,828         8,606

 110-5227-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              110            144           144           144           132           144           144           144

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     4,590          4,952         6,712         7,972         7,308         7,972         7,972         8,750

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5227-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5227-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS            774            768           839           919           773           919           914           914

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB               774            768           839           919           773           919           914           914

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5227-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                187            177           134            86         1,403            86           131           131

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              187            177           134            86         1,403            86           131           131

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5227-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           1,709          2,584         1,409         1,444             0         1,444         1,463         1,463

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               1,709          2,584         1,409         1,444             0         1,444         1,463         1,463

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                    7,260          8,482         9,093        10,421         9,483        10,421        10,480        11,258

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SCHOOL RESOURCE PROGRAM               62,723         62,744        69,641        73,773        61,513        73,773        73,532        74,310



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 41

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

TEEN COURT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5228-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            105             16           583           500           345           500           350           350

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      105             16           583           500           345           500           350           350

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                105             16           583           500           345           500           350           350

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL TEEN COURT                               105             16           583           500           345           500           350           350



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 42

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

AREA CRIME TASK FORCE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5229-821 INTERGOVERNMENTAL EXPENDIT    119,982        161,568       127,751       200,000        81,402       130,000       130,000       130,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS           119,982        161,568       127,751       200,000        81,402       130,000       130,000       130,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                       119,982        161,568       127,751       200,000        81,402       130,000       130,000       130,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL AREA CRIME TASK FORCE                119,982        161,568       127,751       200,000        81,402       130,000       130,000       130,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 43

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

DRUG TRAFFIC PREVENTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5232-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          3,000              0           518           500             0             0           500           500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,000              0           518           500             0             0           500           500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              3,000              0           518           500             0             0           500           500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DRUG TRAFFIC PREVENTION                3,000              0           518           500             0             0           500           500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 44

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

DUI ASSESSMENT EXPENDS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5233-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             21          7,446        10,084        15,000        12,911        15,000        15,000        15,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                       21          7,446        10,084        15,000        12,911        15,000        15,000        15,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                 21          7,446        10,084        15,000        12,911        15,000        15,000        15,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DUI ASSESSMENT EXPENDS                    21          7,446        10,084        15,000        12,911        15,000        15,000        15,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 45

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

SEIZURES/FOREFIETURE EXP

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5234-826 DOJ - FEDERAL SHARING EXPE    294,159        101,258       250,530             0        62,024             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS           294,159        101,258       250,530             0        62,024             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                       294,159        101,258       250,530             0        62,024             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SEIZURES/FOREFIETURE EXP             294,159        101,258       250,530             0        62,024             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 46

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5241-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES   1,993,823      1,816,426     1,896,658     2,050,657     1,579,751     2,043,154     1,973,368     1,973,368

 110-5241-113 OVERTIME                      120,259         73,922        73,447        72,818        65,069        73,220        69,959        69,959

 110-5241-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES          174,013        235,704       258,658             0       312,676             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                2,288,095      2,126,052     2,228,764     2,123,475     1,957,495     2,116,374     2,043,327     2,043,327

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                2,288,095      2,126,052     2,228,764     2,123,475     1,957,495     2,116,374     2,043,327     2,043,327

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5241-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE        226,574        204,400       223,132       256,858       229,934       253,015       235,371       262,276

 110-5241-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE            4,195          5,472         5,472         5,112         4,686         5,112         4,656         4,752

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                   230,769        209,872       228,604       261,970       234,620       258,127       240,027       267,028

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5241-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              1,476              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5241-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS         26,900         28,103        28,469        29,031        26,351        29,233        28,574        28,574

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB            28,375         28,103        28,469        29,031        26,351        29,233        28,574        28,574

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5241-233 FIREFIGHTERS PENSION CONTR    877,800      1,046,651     1,134,259     1,327,952     1,057,586     1,385,894     1,385,894     1,385,894

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS          877,800      1,046,651     1,134,259     1,327,952     1,057,586     1,385,894     1,385,894     1,385,894

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5241-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.              7,106          6,722         5,082         3,268         2,996         3,268         4,207         4,338

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION            7,106          6,722         5,082         3,268         2,996         3,268         4,207         4,338

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5241-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION         248,562        246,637       230,084       240,590       220,541       240,590       269,924       269,924

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION             248,562        246,637       230,084       240,590       220,541       240,590       269,924       269,924

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                1,392,613      1,537,985     1,626,497     1,862,811     1,542,092     1,917,112     1,928,626     1,955,758

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5241-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 2,494          2,289         1,868         2,500         1,326         1,750         2,400         2,400

 110-5241-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES               3,818          3,969         4,593         4,300         2,588         3,500         4,000         4,000

 110-5241-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES       5,221          4,835         6,119         6,000         5,789         6,000         8,000         8,000

 110-5241-314 CHEMICALS                           0              0            35             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5241-315 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING            13,131         14,661         7,512        15,000         5,332         7,500        11,450         5,050

 110-5241-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               8,928          5,891        12,145         7,000         2,716         5,000         9,200        18,300

 110-5241-318 VEHICLE PARTS                   3,281          3,051         3,479         6,000         2,620         1,500         7,200         7,200



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 47

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 110-5241-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          8,314          4,922         2,994         7,500         4,957         6,000         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   45,188         39,620        38,746        48,300        25,329        31,250        46,250        48,950

 ENERGY

 110-5241-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC         12,644         16,353        15,689        10,700         8,082         9,000        10,000        10,000

 110-5241-326 FUEL                           16,320         22,281        21,417        22,000        11,491        15,000        17,500        17,500

    TOTAL ENERGY                             28,964         38,634        37,106        32,700        19,573        24,000        27,500        27,500

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 110-5241-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS             1,080              0           716         2,000           925         1,500         1,420         1,420

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                 1,080              0           716         2,000           925         1,500         1,420         1,420

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             75,232         78,254        76,567        83,000        45,828        56,750        75,170        77,870

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5241-410 UTILITY SERVICES                1,817          1,897         1,964         1,000         1,193         1,200         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    1,817          1,897         1,964         1,000         1,193         1,200         1,200         1,200

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5241-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             1,056          9,320         1,523        10,000         3,564         5,000         8,800         8,800

 110-5241-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY             5,195          2,783         6,073         9,000         5,277         7,000        11,300        11,300

 110-5241-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES              9,031         15,327        21,092        21,000        11,202        15,000        15,555        15,555

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            15,283         27,429        28,688        40,000        20,043        27,000        35,655        35,655

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5241-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES           1,900              0             3             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES               1,900              0             3             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5241-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES       1,923          6,126         5,061         7,000         3,433         5,000             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE            1,923          6,126         5,061         7,000         3,433         5,000             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             20,923         35,452        35,716        48,000        24,669        33,200        36,855        36,855

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5241-531 POSTAGE                            84            575           460           500           135           250           500           500

 110-5241-532 TELEPHONE                       5,184          6,052         5,862         5,950         4,323         5,500         4,280         4,280

 110-5241-533 CELLULAR PHONE                  2,732          2,065         1,200         1,500         1,000         1,500         1,200         1,200

 110-5241-534 PAGERS                              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5241-535 RADIOS                          2,724          5,413         1,612        10,000         3,078         5,000         5,500        53,500

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                      10,725         14,105         9,134        17,950         8,537        12,250        11,480        59,480



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 48

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ADVERTISING

 110-5241-541 SOFTWARE                            0         12,265         1,235         2,000             0             0         4,000         5,240

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                             0         12,265         1,235         2,000             0             0         4,000         5,240

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5241-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING              25,509         20,076        11,211        20,000         9,623        15,000        23,175        23,175

 110-5241-568 PHYSICALS                       1,500              0             0         1,500            20           100             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP              27,009         20,076        11,211        21,500         9,643        15,100        23,175        23,175

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5241-571 DUE & MEMBERSHIPS               1,399          1,495         1,207         1,500         1,450         1,500           850           850

 110-5241-573 LAUNDRY SERVICES                  915            490           452         3,000           212           500         1,000         1,000

 110-5241-574 SPECIAL EVENT SERVICES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5241-578 AMBULANCE BILLING EXPENSES          0              0           930             0           175           175         1,200         1,200

 110-5241-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI      3,536          6,584           206         4,000         2,940         4,000         4,500         4,500

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            5,849          8,569         2,795         8,500         4,777         6,175         7,550         7,550

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             43,583         55,014        24,376        49,950        22,957        33,525        46,205        95,445

 PROPERTY

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 110-5241-741 MACHINERY                       5,591          1,312             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5241-742 VEHICLES                            0        185,774        85,929        85,930        85,929        85,930        85,929        85,929

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT               5,591        187,087        85,929        85,930        85,929        85,930        85,929        85,929

  TOTAL PROPERTY                              5,591        187,087        85,929        85,930        85,929        85,930        85,929        85,929

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5241-814 PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA        368          1,296           278         1,000           181           500           500           500

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               368          1,296           278         1,000           181           500           500           500

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5241-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   2              2             2            10             2             3             3             3

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 2              2             2            10             2             3             3             3

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5241-854 WIDE AREA NETWORK WIRING A        440              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT              440              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 49

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5241-863 DESKTOP PC WORKSTATIONS         2,541          1,046             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT            2,541          1,046             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         3,351          2,344           280         1,010           184           503           503           503

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FIRE PROTECTION ADMIN.             3,829,387      4,022,188     4,078,130     4,254,176     3,679,154     4,243,394     4,216,615     4,295,687



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 50

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FIRE PREVENTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5243-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               4,425         20,173         3,875             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5243-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             36            100           110         2,000         1,543         2,000         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    4,461         20,273         3,985         2,000         1,543         2,000         2,000         2,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              4,461         20,273         3,985         2,000         1,543         2,000         2,000         2,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FIRE PREVENTION                        4,461         20,273         3,985         2,000         1,543         2,000         2,000         2,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 51

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FIRE INSURANCE TAX EXP.

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5250-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI     22,130         27,183        24,585        29,000           763        31,400        31,400        31,400

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES           22,130         27,183        24,585        29,000           763        31,400        31,400        31,400

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             22,130         27,183        24,585        29,000           763        31,400        31,400        31,400

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FIRE INSURANCE TAX EXP.               22,130         27,183        24,585        29,000           763        31,400        31,400        31,400



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 52

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FEMA GRANT EXPENDITURES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5251-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT              50,540             59             0             0        74,000        74,000             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   50,540             59             0             0        74,000        74,000             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             50,540             59             0             0        74,000        74,000             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FEMA GRANT EXPENDITURES               50,540             59             0             0        74,000        74,000             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 53

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5261-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      78,531         81,574       107,169       115,665        75,302        92,558        86,637        86,637

 110-5261-113 OVERTIME                          215            294            96             0           284             0             0             0

 110-5261-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            4,611          7,795         5,541             0        15,221             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   83,357         89,663       112,806       115,665        90,806        92,558        86,637        86,637

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   83,357         89,663       112,806       115,665        90,806        92,558        86,637        86,637

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5261-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         13,429         12,580        15,560        21,833        14,142        16,614        14,005        15,025

 110-5261-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              331            432           432           432           396           432           288           288

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    13,760         13,012        15,992        22,265        14,538        17,046        14,293        15,313

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5261-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              5,092          5,447         6,223         7,171         5,912         5,739         5,371         5,371

 110-5261-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,191          1,274         1,455         1,677         1,382         1,342         1,256         1,256

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             6,282          6,721         7,678         8,848         7,294         7,081         6,627         6,627

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5261-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              9,684          9,383        10,033        12,530         9,931        10,027        11,349        11,349

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            9,684          9,383        10,033        12,530         9,931        10,027        11,349        11,349

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5261-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                611            516           401           258           237           258           263           263

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              611            516           401           258           237           258           263           263

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5261-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           3,030          3,829         4,063         3,919         3,592         2,983         3,049         3,049

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               3,030          3,829         4,063         3,919         3,592         2,983         3,049         3,049

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   33,367         33,460        38,166        47,820        35,592        37,395        35,581        36,601

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5261-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 1,504            406           359           600           223           500         1,640           920

 110-5261-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             45            286            22           300            25           100           300           300

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    1,549            692           380           900           248           600         1,940         1,220



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 54

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 110-5261-326 FUEL                               30              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                                 30              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 110-5261-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS                 0            171             0           400             0             0         1,085         1,085

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                     0            171             0           400             0             0         1,085         1,085

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              1,579            863           380         1,300           248           600         3,025         2,305

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5261-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES                180              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES               180              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                180              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5261-531 POSTAGE                           161            253           337           400           196           300           400           400

 110-5261-532 TELEPHONE                       2,574          2,883         2,882         2,750         2,675         2,900         3,000         3,000

 110-5261-533 CELLULAR PHONE                    318            519           519           600           976         1,100         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       3,053          3,655         3,738         3,750         3,847         4,300         4,600         4,600

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 110-5261-550 PRINTING & BINDING                172              0            97           200           130           200           200           200

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                   172              0            97           200           130           200           200           200

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5261-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               1,084          1,130           377         2,000           170           200         2,000         2,000

 110-5261-563 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT              40            120           136             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5261-564 PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB       1,773          3,738         2,732         2,000         1,102         1,500         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               2,897          4,988         3,245         4,000         1,272         1,700         4,000         4,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5261-571 DUE & MEMBERSHIPS                 470            480           290           400           202           400           492           492

 110-5261-577 DEMOLITION SERVICES            16,130         16,983           308             0         6,301         6,301             0        15,000

 110-5261-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        386            141             0             0           203           300             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES           16,986         17,603           598           400         6,706         7,001           492        15,492

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             23,108         26,246         7,678         8,350        11,954        13,201         9,292        24,292



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 55

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5261-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   1              1             1             0             1             0             0             0

 110-5261-829 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   3              3             3             0             3             5             5             5

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 4              4             4             0             4             5             5             5

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5261-863 DESKTOP PC WORKSTATION              0            871           159             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5261-865 PRINTERS                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0            871           159             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             4            875           164             0             4             5             5             5

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN               141,595        151,108       159,194       173,135       138,605       143,759       134,540       149,840



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 56

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

EMERGENCY PLANNING

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5270-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES(      1,153)             0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5270-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES              229   (        229)            0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES             (        924)  (        229)            0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES             (        924)  (        229)            0             0             0             0             0             0

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5270-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          2,744              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     2,744              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                    2,744              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5270-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            856              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      856              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                856              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL EMERGENCY PLANNING                     2,676   (        229)            0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 57

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

ANIMAL CONTROL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5280-512 ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES        18,291         13,718        23,626        27,437        20,577        27,437        27,437        27,437

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              18,291         13,718        23,626        27,437        20,577        27,437        27,437        27,437

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             18,291         13,718        23,626        27,437        20,577        27,437        27,437        27,437

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ANIMAL CONTROL                        18,291         13,718        23,626        27,437        20,577        27,437        27,437        27,437



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 58

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5310-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     111,395        111,142       113,957       116,602       106,807       116,602       106,878        93,400

 110-5310-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5310-113 OVERTIME                          942            941           194           197           179           197           197           197

 110-5310-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            4,515          9,012        10,246             0         8,489             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  116,852        121,095       124,397       116,799       115,475       116,799       107,075        93,597

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  116,852        121,095       124,397       116,799       115,475       116,799       107,075        93,597

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5310-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         10,906         11,631        12,033         9,744        14,727         9,744        11,295        11,705

 110-5310-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              223            340           340           291           267           291           269           245

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    11,129         11,971        12,373        10,035        14,994        10,035        11,564        11,950

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5310-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              5,395          7,284         7,518         7,242         7,395         7,242         6,639         5,815

 110-5310-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,262          1,704         1,758         1,694         1,730         1,694         1,553         1,360

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             6,657          8,988         9,276         8,936         9,125         8,936         8,192         7,175

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5310-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             10,170         12,551        12,103        12,653        13,169        12,653        14,027        12,286

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           10,170         12,551        12,103        12,653        13,169        12,653        14,027        12,286

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5310-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                378            417           316           173           159           173           397           397

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              378            417           316           173           159           173           397           397

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5310-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           3,162          3,800         3,371         2,524         2,314         2,524         3,080         2,600

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               3,162          3,800         3,371         2,524         2,314         2,524         3,080         2,600

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   31,496         37,727        37,439        34,321        39,759        34,321        37,260        34,408

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5310-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 1,964          1,597           517         1,000           521           600           600           600

 110-5310-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 928            304             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5310-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            437             67           232           500             3            10           100           100

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,329          1,968           748         1,500           524           610           700           700



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 59

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 110-5310-326 FUEL                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 110-5310-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS               205            309             0           200             0             0           100           100

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                   205            309             0           200             0             0           100           100

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              3,533          2,277           748         1,700           524           610           800           800

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5310-431 REPAIR OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT        240              0             0           400             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES               240              0             0           400             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                240              0             0           400             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5310-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      2,721          3,338           678         2,500           616         1,000         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               2,721          3,338           678         2,500           616         1,000         1,500         1,500

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5310-532 TELEPHONE                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5310-533 CELLULAR PHONE                  2,313          2,476           127         1,100         1,844         1,900         1,100         1,100

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       2,313          2,476           127         1,100         1,844         1,900         1,100         1,100

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5310-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE          645            200           327           500           128           200           200           200

 110-5310-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                 437            598           762         1,000           720           750         1,500         1,500

 110-5310-564 PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB         208            701           283           500           151           200           300           300

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               1,290          1,499         1,372         2,000         1,000         1,150         2,000         2,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5310-571 DUE & MEMBERSHIPS                 275            437           143           500           376           500           500           500

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              275            437           143           500           376           500           500           500

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              6,599          7,751         2,320         6,100         3,836         4,550         5,100         5,100

 OTHER OBJECTS



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 60

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5310-814 PRINT/COPY MACH LEASE & MA      2,571          2,270         2,459         2,500         2,188         2,500         3,250         3,250

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             2,571          2,270         2,459         2,500         2,188         2,500         3,250         3,250

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5310-863 DESKTOP PC WORK STATIONS            0            455             0         1,000             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0            455             0         1,000             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         2,571          2,725         2,459         3,500         2,188         2,500         3,250         3,250

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN                   161,291        171,575       167,365       162,820       161,783       158,780       153,485       137,155



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 61

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

STREETS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5320-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     589,921        539,055       482,931       559,994       406,826       590,832       550,683       540,107

 110-5320-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES     12,123          7,291        14,066        16,510        14,720        16,510        25,000        25,000

 110-5320-113 OVERTIME                       21,759         23,454        15,547        17,387        14,713        17,633        16,996        16,226

 110-5320-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES          150,654         55,328        69,099             0        68,972             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  774,458        625,128       581,643       593,891       505,230       624,975       592,679       581,333

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  774,458        625,128       581,643       593,891       505,230       624,975       592,679       581,333

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5320-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         91,212         82,438        65,554        79,290        72,515        79,969        81,785        87,451

 110-5320-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE            1,347          1,878         2,051         1,653         1,515         1,653         1,789         1,763

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    92,559         84,316        67,605        80,943        74,030        81,622        83,574        89,214

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5320-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS             45,651         45,146        35,357        36,863        33,011        38,791        36,788        36,085

 110-5320-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS         10,677         10,558         8,269         8,621         7,721         9,072         8,604         8,439

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB            56,328         55,704        43,626        45,484        40,731        47,863        45,392        44,524

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5320-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             85,548         77,418        55,262        62,550        56,638        66,032        77,641        76,155

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           85,548         77,418        55,262        62,550        56,638        66,032        77,641        76,155

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5320-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.              2,485          2,565         2,088         1,244         1,140         1,244         1,753         1,753

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION            2,485          2,565         2,088         1,244         1,140         1,244         1,753         1,753

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5320-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION          64,032         70,884        84,242        74,252        68,064        74,252        77,198        75,687

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION              64,032         70,884        84,242        74,252        68,064        74,252        77,198        75,687

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  300,951        290,886       252,823       264,473       240,605       271,013       285,558       287,333

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5320-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 2,261          1,481           917         1,000           717         1,000         1,000         1,000

 110-5320-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES               3,151          2,223         1,226         1,200         1,035         1,000         1,200         1,000

 110-5320-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES       2,420          3,393           867         1,200         1,636         1,750         1,750         1,750

 110-5320-314 CHEMICALS                         130              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5320-316 TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT                 0          6,313         3,046         3,000         4,891         4,000         4,000         4,000

 110-5320-318 VEHICLE PARTS                  31,398         16,956        21,147        15,000        19,382        16,000        15,000        15,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 62

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

STREETS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 110-5320-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES         16,185         23,267         2,954         3,500         8,075         9,000         3,500         3,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   55,546         53,634        30,158        24,900        35,736        32,750        26,450        26,250

 ENERGY

 110-5320-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          6,326         21,216        23,466        20,000        15,862        19,000        19,000        19,000

 110-5320-326 FUEL                           36,137         40,846        43,714        45,000        25,186        37,500        38,000        38,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                             42,463         62,062        67,180        65,000        41,047        56,500        57,000        57,000

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 110-5320-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5320-351 CONCRETE                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5320-357 CATCH BASIN                     1,744              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5320-358 PIPE                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5320-359 OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE     76,091         48,296        39,150        45,000        21,340        45,000        30,000        30,000

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES              77,835         48,296        39,150        45,000        21,340        45,000        30,000        30,000

 SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5320-363 BACKFILL AND SURFACE MATER          0          9,169         3,830         4,000         6,563         8,000         8,000         8,000

    TOTAL SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES                0          9,169         3,830         4,000         6,563         8,000         8,000         8,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                            175,844        173,160       140,317       138,900       104,686       142,250       121,450       121,250

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5320-410 UTILITY SERVICES                  981          1,022           754         1,000           588           800           800           800

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                      981          1,022           754         1,000           588           800           800           800

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5320-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS            22,629          4,386         7,025         5,000         2,182         4,000         2,000         2,000

 110-5320-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY            19,584         22,762        19,001        20,000         6,033        10,000        20,000        15,000

 110-5320-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES              8,548          8,621         4,829         7,000         2,674         5,000         7,000         7,000

 110-5320-436 PEST CONTROL SERVICES               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            50,760         35,769        30,855        32,000        10,890        19,000        29,000        24,000

 RENTALS

 110-5320-440 RENTALS                         4,462          8,621         4,097         7,000         2,037         3,500         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL RENTALS                             4,462          8,621         4,097         7,000         2,037         3,500         4,000         4,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             56,204         45,412        35,706        40,000        13,514        23,300        33,800        28,800



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 63

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

STREETS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5320-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          8              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5320-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      5,450          3,453         2,865         4,000           628           500         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               5,458          3,453         2,865         4,000           628           500         1,000         1,000

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5320-531 POSTAGE                           309            184           215           300           170           300           300           300

 110-5320-532 TELEPHONE                       5,377          5,809         5,727         6,000         5,276         6,000         5,000         5,000

 110-5320-533 CELLULAR PHONE                      0          1,804         1,851         2,000           853         2,000         2,000         2,000

 110-5320-534 PAGERS                              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5320-535 RADIOS                            174              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       5,860          7,798         7,793         8,300         6,299         8,300         7,300         7,300

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5320-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               2,994          2,334         1,019         1,500         1,107         1,500         1,700         1,700

 110-5320-569 DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING            553            893           468           800             0           800           500           500

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               3,546          3,227         1,486         2,300         1,107         2,300         2,200         2,200

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5320-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                  0              0            56           150           141           150           150           150

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0            56           150           141           150           150           150

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             14,865         14,477        12,199        14,750         8,175        11,250        10,650        10,650

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 110-5320-730 IMPROVEMENTS(43RD ST N SR1          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 110-5320-741 MACHINERY                      39,876        138,969        21,202        21,202        21,202        21,202        21,202        21,202

 110-5320-742 VEHICLES                       77,037         44,241        22,020        22,020        22,020        22,020        22,020        22,020

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT             116,913        183,211        43,223        43,223        43,223        43,223        43,223        43,223

  TOTAL PROPERTY                            116,913        183,211        43,223        43,223        43,223        43,223        43,223        43,223

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5320-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                  13             13            13            30            13            13             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                13             13            13            30            13            13             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                            13             13            13            30            13            13             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STREETS                            1,439,248      1,332,287     1,065,923     1,095,267       915,446     1,116,024     1,087,360     1,072,589



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 64

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5323-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5323-113 OVERTIME                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5323-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5323-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5323-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5323-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5323-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5323-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5323-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5323-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 SUPPLIES

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5323-351 CONCRETE                       17,604         17,941        18,186        20,000        11,271        15,000        15,000        15,000

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES              17,604         17,941        18,186        20,000        11,271        15,000        15,000        15,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             17,604         17,941        18,186        20,000        11,271        15,000        15,000        15,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 65

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5323-459 OTHER CONSTRUCTION COSTS            0              0           152             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                   0              0           152             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0           152             0             0             0             0             0

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 110-5323-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5323-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   2              2            20             0            91            95           100           100

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 2              2            20             0            91            95           100           100

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             2              2            20             0            91            95           100           100

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS                17,606         17,943        18,358        20,000        11,362        15,095        15,100        15,100



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 66

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

STREET LIGHTING

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 ENERGY

 110-5326-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI    137,944        185,758       172,493       165,000       125,033       165,000             0             0

 110-5326-322 ELECTRIC                        4,207          3,446         3,447         4,000         2,362         4,000             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                            142,151        189,204       175,940       169,000       127,395       169,000             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                            142,151        189,204       175,940       169,000       127,395       169,000             0             0

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5326-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS            18,519         26,103        29,135        16,000        20,765        25,000             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            18,519         26,103        29,135        16,000        20,765        25,000             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             18,519         26,103        29,135        16,000        20,765        25,000             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STREET LIGHTING                      160,671        215,307       205,075       185,000       148,159       194,000             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 67

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5327-356 STREET SIGNS             (      1,895)             0         2,914             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5327-359 OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE        150          1,557             0         1,000             0         1,000         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES        (      1,746)         1,557         2,914         1,000             0         1,000         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                       (      1,746)         1,557         2,914         1,000             0         1,000         1,000         1,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5327-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             8,892          6,177         7,745        15,000         9,657        15,000        15,000        15,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             8,892          6,177         7,745        15,000         9,657        15,000        15,000        15,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              8,892          6,177         7,745        15,000         9,657        15,000        15,000        15,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5327-579 MISC. PURCHASED SERVICES            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 110-5327-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5327-846 STREET DEPT SOFTWARE & LIC          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5327-864 LAPTOP COMPUTER                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES                7,147          7,734        10,659        16,000         9,657        16,000        16,000        16,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 68

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

STORM DRAINAGE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5328-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   7              7             7             0             7             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 7              7             7             0             7             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             7              7             7             0             7             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STORM DRAINAGE                             7              7             7             0             7             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 69

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

STREET CLEANING

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5331-318 VEHICLE PARTS                   6,753          9,359        10,417        10,000         3,653         7,000        10,000         5,000

 110-5331-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    6,753          9,359        10,417        10,000         3,653         7,000        10,000         5,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              6,753          9,359        10,417        10,000         3,653         7,000        10,000         5,000

 PROPERTY

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 110-5331-742 VEHICLES                            0         31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0         31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0         31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247        31,247

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STREET CLEANING                        6,753         40,607        41,665        41,247        34,900        38,247        41,247        36,247



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 70

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

MOSQUITO ABATEMENT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5332-314 CHEMICALS                       3,235         10,132         2,865         6,000         6,106         6,106         6,000         6,000

 110-5332-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              0             0             0            15            15             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,235         10,132         2,865         6,000         6,120         6,121         6,000         6,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              3,235         10,132         2,865         6,000         6,120         6,121         6,000         6,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5332-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL MOSQUITO ABATEMENT                     3,235         10,132         2,865         6,000         6,120         6,121         6,000         6,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 71

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

WEED CONTROL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5334-314 CHEMICALS                       2,301          2,675         1,118         2,000         2,807         2,000         2,000         2,000

 110-5334-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            980              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,281          2,675         1,118         2,000         2,807         2,000         2,000         2,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              3,281          2,675         1,118         2,000         2,807         2,000         2,000         2,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5334-579 MISC PURCHASED SERVICES           200              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              200              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                200              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WEED CONTROL                           3,481          2,675         1,118         2,000         2,807         2,000         2,000         2,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 72

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

YARD WASTE COLLECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5335-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      47,305         47,314        61,506             0        47,322             0             0             0

 110-5335-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES     20,540         17,461        15,938             0         8,607        10,000        10,000        10,000

 110-5335-113 OVERTIME                        3,701          2,668         3,086             0         4,155             0             0             0

 110-5335-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES              137              0            64             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   71,684         67,442        80,593             0        60,084        10,000        10,000        10,000

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   71,684         67,442        80,593             0        60,084        10,000        10,000        10,000

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5335-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          5,909          6,388         8,510             0         7,717             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     5,909          6,388         8,510             0         7,717             0             0             0

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5335-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              4,196          4,263         5,021             0         3,793           620           620           620

 110-5335-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS            981            997         1,174             0           887           145           145           145

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             5,178          5,260         6,196             0         4,680           765           765           765

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5335-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              5,401          5,427         6,485             0         5,404             0             0             0

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            5,401          5,427         6,485             0         5,404             0             0             0

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5335-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                412            373           271             0             0             0           105           105

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              412            373           271             0             0             0           105           105

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5335-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             914            921           930             0             0             0           450           450

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 914            921           930             0             0             0           450           450

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   17,814         18,369        22,391             0        17,802           765         1,320         1,320

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5335-318 VEHICLE PARTS                  16,997            257        19,922         5,000        13,530        11,000        10,000        10,000

 110-5335-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            562          1,040            35           500            49            50           100           100

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   17,559          1,297        19,958         5,500        13,579        11,050        10,100        10,100



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 73

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

YARD WASTE COLLECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 110-5335-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             17,559          1,297        19,958         5,500        13,579        11,050        10,100        10,100

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5335-410 UTILITY SERVICES                  331            372           396           300         1,989         2,100           300           300

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                      331            372           396           300         1,989         2,100           300           300

 CLEANING SERVICES

 110-5335-421 DISPOSAL SERVICES              44,299         48,333           148             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                  44,299         48,333           148             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             44,630         48,706           544           300         1,989         2,100           300           300

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5335-532 TELEPHONE                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PROPERTY

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 110-5335-741 MACHINERY                           0         41,015        41,015        41,050        41,040        41,040        41,015        41,015

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0         41,015        41,015        41,050        41,040        41,040        41,015        41,015

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0         41,015        41,015        41,050        41,040        41,040        41,015        41,015

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL YARD WASTE COLLECTION                151,687        176,828       164,502        46,850       134,493        64,955        62,735        62,735



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 74

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

REFUSE COLLECT & DISPOSAL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 CLEANING SERVICES

 110-5338-421 DISPOSAL SERVICES              24,313         17,004        23,404        18,000        10,598        15,000             0             0

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                  24,313         17,004        23,404        18,000        10,598        15,000             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             24,313         17,004        23,404        18,000        10,598        15,000             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5338-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI      1,808         12,873        14,600         8,000         8,006         8,006         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            1,808         12,873        14,600         8,000         8,006         8,006         2,500         2,500

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              1,808         12,873        14,600         8,000         8,006         8,006         2,500         2,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL REFUSE COLLECT & DISPOSAL             26,120         29,877        38,003        26,000        18,605        23,006         2,500         2,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 75

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5370-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      57,961         78,186        59,059        90,543        45,525        90,543        90,452        90,452

 110-5370-112 SALARIES OF TEMP. EMPLOYEE     13,915         15,348        16,571             0        32,118             0             0             0

 110-5370-113 OVERTIME                        2,038          2,539         1,003         2,000        12,206        15,000         2,000         2,000

 110-5370-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            5,688          5,232         3,493             0         4,733             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   79,603        101,306        80,126        92,543        94,581       105,543        92,452        92,452

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   79,603        101,306        80,126        92,543        94,581       105,543        92,452        92,452

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5370-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          8,561          7,377         5,657         9,052         8,297         9,052         9,052         8,463

 110-5370-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              110            288           288           288           264           288           288           288

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     8,671          7,665         5,945         9,340         8,561         9,340         9,340         8,751

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5370-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              6,443          6,261         4,909         5,738         6,145         5,738         5,732         5,732

 110-5370-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,507          1,464         1,148         1,342         1,437         1,342         1,341         1,341

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             7,949          7,726         6,057         7,080         7,582         7,080         7,073         7,073

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5370-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             10,561          8,988         7,917        10,025        10,094        10,025        12,111        12,111

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           10,561          8,988         7,917        10,025        10,094        10,025        12,111        12,111

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5370-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                374            531           267           172           158           172           263           263

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              374            531           267           172           158           172           263           263

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5370-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           3,205          3,041         6,523           898           823           898        10,447        10,447

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               3,205          3,041         6,523           898           823           898        10,447        10,447

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   30,760         27,951        26,709        27,515        27,218        27,515        39,234        38,645

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5370-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               2,685          2,374           390         2,000           992         2,000         1,500         1,000

 110-5370-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          2,571          1,206           427         2,000           620         1,000         1,500         1,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    5,256          3,580           817         4,000         1,612         3,000         3,000         2,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 76

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 110-5370-326 FUEL                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              5,256          3,580           817         4,000         1,612         3,000         3,000         2,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5370-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          0              0             0             0            11            11             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0             0            11            11             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5370-533 CELLULAR PHONE                    918            918            65         1,100           753           753         1,100         1,100

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         918            918            65         1,100           753           753         1,100         1,100

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                918            918            65         1,100           764           764         1,100         1,100

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 110-5370-863 DESKTOP PC WORK STATIONS        1,053              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT            1,053              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         1,053              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION              117,589        133,755       107,717       125,158       124,175       136,822       135,786       134,197



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 77

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CUSTODIAL SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5381-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      51,710         60,206        58,626        71,391        48,279        71,391        37,559        37,559

 110-5381-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5381-113 OVERTIME                          632          1,231           188           366             0           366             0             0

 110-5381-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES           10,926          5,430         5,474             0         4,065             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   63,267         66,867        64,288        71,757        52,344        71,757        37,559        37,559

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   63,267         66,867        64,288        71,757        52,344        71,757        37,559        37,559

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5381-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         13,409         12,265        13,149        15,656        12,745        15,656         7,828         8,606

 110-5381-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              221            288           288           288           264           288           144           144

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    13,630         12,553        13,437        15,944        13,009        15,944         7,972         8,750

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5381-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              3,750          3,979         3,816         4,449         3,329         4,449         2,329         2,329

 110-5381-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS            877            931           892         1,040           779         1,040           545           545

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             4,627          4,910         4,708         5,489         4,107         5,489         2,874         2,874

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5381-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              7,111          6,849         6,162         7,774         5,491         7,774         4,920         4,920

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            7,111          6,849         6,162         7,774         5,491         7,774         4,920         4,920

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5381-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                374            354           267           172           158           172           131           131

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              374            354           267           172           158           172           131           131

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5381-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           2,218          2,847         2,262         2,318         2,125         2,318         1,416         1,416

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               2,218          2,847         2,262         2,318         2,125         2,318         1,416         1,416

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   27,960         27,513        26,836        31,697        24,890        31,697        17,313        18,091

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5381-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES               3,153          2,784         3,366         2,700         2,579         2,700         2,000         2,000

 110-5381-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 179             28            77           500            58           100           200           200

 110-5381-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            964            972           306         1,000           216           500           300           300

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    4,296          3,784         3,749         4,200         2,853         3,300         2,500         2,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 78

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CUSTODIAL SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 110-5381-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC         11,715         28,765        40,254        32,000        32,676        32,000        35,000        35,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                             11,715         28,765        40,254        32,000        32,676        32,000        35,000        35,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             16,011         32,549        44,003        36,200        35,529        35,300        37,500        37,500

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5381-410 UTILITY SERVICES                2,837          2,383         2,324         2,500         2,166         2,500         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    2,837          2,383         2,324         2,500         2,166         2,500         2,500         2,500

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5381-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             1,122            856         1,439         2,000         9,082        12,000         2,500         2,500

 110-5381-435 ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMEN       2,348          2,803         3,488         2,600         2,400         2,750         2,500         2,500

 110-5381-436 PEST CONTROL SERVICES               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5381-437 UST MONITORING SERVICES             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             3,470          3,658         4,927         4,600        11,481        14,750         5,000         5,000

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5381-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES         307            275           100        16,000         1,120         1,120         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE              307            275           100        16,000         1,120         1,120         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              6,614          6,316         7,351        23,100        14,766        18,370         8,500         8,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5381-532 TELEPHONE                           0             11            37             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5381-534 PAGERS                            136            118           159           150            77           125             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         136            129           196           150            77           125             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                136            129           196           150            77           125             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CUSTODIAL SERVICES                   113,988        133,374       142,674       162,904       127,606       157,249       100,872       101,650



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 79

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

BURGESS OSBORNE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5383-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,081          1,997         2,175         1,500         1,096         1,250         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    1,081          1,997         2,175         1,500         1,096         1,250         1,500         1,500

 ENERGY

 110-5383-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          6,677          6,141         8,824         7,000         5,916         7,000         7,000         7,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                              6,677          6,141         8,824         7,000         5,916         7,000         7,000         7,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              7,759          8,138        10,999         8,500         7,012         8,250         8,500         8,500

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5383-410 UTILITY SERVICES                  395            417           372           500           248           300           400           400

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                      395            417           372           500           248           300           400           400

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5383-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             2,167            648           859           500           263           350           500           500

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             2,167            648           859           500           263           350           500           500

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5383-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES           0            361           182           500           195           200           200           200

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE                0            361           182           500           195           200           200           200

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              2,562          1,426         1,413         1,500           706           850         1,100         1,100

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5383-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   9              9             9             0             9             9             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 9              9             9             0             9             9             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             9              9             9             0             9             9             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BURGESS OSBORNE                       10,330          9,573        12,421        10,000         7,727         9,109         9,600         9,600



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 80

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

RAILROAD DEPOT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5384-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,595          1,666         1,819         1,500           605         1,000             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    1,595          1,666         1,819         1,500           605         1,000             0             0

 ENERGY

 110-5384-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC              0            287             4             0         2,632         2,500             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0            287             4             0         2,632         2,500             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              1,595          1,953         1,822         1,500         3,238         3,500             0             0

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5384-410 UTILITY SERVICES                   24            277             0           500             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                       24            277             0           500             0             0             0             0

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5384-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             1,247          2,030         3,459         2,000           744         2,000             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             1,247          2,030         3,459         2,000           744         2,000             0             0

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5384-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES         480          3,586           291         2,000           916         1,000             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE              480          3,586           291         2,000           916         1,000             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              1,752          5,893         3,750         4,500         1,661         3,000             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5384-576 SECURITY SERVICES                 432            162           525             0           152           500             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              432            162           525             0           152           500             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                432            162           525             0           152           500             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RAILROAD DEPOT                         3,779          8,007         6,097         6,000         5,050         7,000             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 81

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PARKING LOTS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5385-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             35             19             0           500             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                       35             19             0           500             0             0             0             0

 ENERGY

 110-5385-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                 35             19             0           500             0             0             0             0

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5385-439 OTHER REPAIR & MAINT SRVCS          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5385-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                 124             40            40            50         1,432         1,433           100           100

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               124             40            40            50         1,432         1,433           100           100

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           124             40            40            50         1,432         1,433           100           100

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PARKING LOTS                             159             59            40           550         1,432         1,433           100           100



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 82

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

TREE MAINTENANCE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5386-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5386-359 OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5386-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES      17,467         18,041         1,000             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE           17,467         18,041         1,000             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             17,467         18,041         1,000             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL TREE MAINTENANCE                      17,467         18,041         1,000             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 83

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

GARMENT FACTORY

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5388-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             10              0            14             0            27           100             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                       10              0            14             0            27           100             0             0

 ENERGY

 110-5388-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC             69            192           216           300           174           300           300           300

    TOTAL ENERGY                                 69            192           216           300           174           300           300           300

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                 79            192           230           300           201           400           300           300

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5388-410 UTILITY SERVICES                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5388-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS                37              0            20           200             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                37              0            20           200             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5388-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES           0              0             0             0           280           300             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE                0              0             0             0           280           300             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                 37              0            20           200           280           300             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5388-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   9              9             9            10             9             9             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 9              9             9            10             9             9             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             9              9             9            10             9             9             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL GARMENT FACTORY                          125            201           258           510           489           709           300           300



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 84

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5390-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      68,270         69,488        38,072             0        29,518             0             0             0

 110-5390-113 OVERTIME                        3,529          4,771         1,409             0         1,058             0             0             0

 110-5390-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES              939          8,336         7,903             0         5,525             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   72,738         82,595        47,383             0        36,102             0             0             0

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   72,738         82,595        47,383             0        36,102             0             0             0

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5390-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          6,578          4,384         2,791             0         2,072             0             0             0

 110-5390-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE               75              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     6,653          4,384         2,791             0         2,072             0             0             0

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5390-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              4,573          4,540         2,913             0         2,322             0             0             0

 110-5390-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,070          1,062           681             0           543             0             0             0

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             5,642          5,602         3,594             0         2,864             0             0             0

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5390-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              8,531          7,737         4,661             0         3,841             0             0             0

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            8,531          7,737         4,661             0         3,841             0             0             0

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5390-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                128              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              128              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5390-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           3,416             59             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               3,416             59             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   24,370         17,782        11,046             0         8,777             0             0             0

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5390-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5390-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5390-314 CHEMICALS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5390-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5390-318 VEHICLE PARTS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5390-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 85

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 110-5390-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5390-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5390-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 RENTALS

 110-5390-440 RENTALS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL RENTALS                                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5390-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5390-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE                 97,108        100,378        58,428             0        44,878             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 86

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

COUNCIL ON AGING

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 FOOD

 110-5421-330 FOOD                            2,433          4,205         4,838         4,500         4,928         5,000         4,500         4,500

    TOTAL FOOD                                2,433          4,205         4,838         4,500         4,928         5,000         4,500         4,500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              2,433          4,205         4,838         4,500         4,928         5,000         4,500         4,500

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5421-825 GRANTS                         16,500         49,500        33,000        33,000        33,000        33,000        33,000        33,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            16,500         49,500        33,000        33,000        33,000        33,000        33,000        33,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        16,500         49,500        33,000        33,000        33,000        33,000        33,000        33,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL COUNCIL ON AGING                      18,933         53,705        37,838        37,500        37,928        38,000        37,500        37,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 87

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

ACADEMIC & VOC SCHOLARSHP

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5423-825 GRANTS                          2,250              0         1,500         3,000             0         3,000         3,000         1,500

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             2,250              0         1,500         3,000             0         3,000         3,000         1,500

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         2,250              0         1,500         3,000             0         3,000         3,000         1,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ACADEMIC & VOC SCHOLARSHP              2,250              0         1,500         3,000             0         3,000         3,000         1,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 88

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

RETIREE BENEFITS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5424-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE        652,984        673,421       896,029       800,000       579,630       650,000       650,000       650,000

 110-5424-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                   652,984        673,421       896,029       800,000       579,630       650,000       650,000       650,000

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  652,984        673,421       896,029       800,000       579,630       650,000       650,000       650,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RETIREE BENEFITS                     652,984        673,421       896,029       800,000       579,630       650,000       650,000       650,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 89

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PROPERTY & CASUALTY INS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 INSURANCE

 110-5430-523 PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INS           0          3,563  (      3,583)            0             0             0       150,325       150,325

    TOTAL INSURANCE                               0          3,563  (      3,583)            0             0             0       150,325       150,325

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0          3,563  (      3,583)            0             0             0       150,325       150,325

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PROPERTY & CASUALTY INS                    0          3,563  (      3,583)            0             0             0       150,325       150,325



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 90

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

ARTS COUNCIL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5505-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          3,632              0             0         1,000             0         1,000             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,632              0             0         1,000             0         1,000             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              3,632              0             0         1,000             0         1,000             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5505-531 POSTAGE                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5505-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI      4,141          6,404         6,702         4,000         3,201         4,000             0         5,000

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            4,141          6,404         6,702         4,000         3,201         4,000             0         5,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              4,141          6,404         6,702         4,000         3,201         4,000             0         5,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ARTS COUNCIL                           7,773          6,404         6,702         5,000         3,201         5,000             0         5,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 91

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PARK ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5511-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     169,791        171,214       178,287       192,595       154,917       192,595       192,620       192,620

 110-5511-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES     23,729         31,291        21,826        30,000        22,370        30,000        30,000        25,000

 110-5511-113 OVERTIME                       22,735         19,439        13,171        20,000         7,755        10,000        20,000         5,000

 110-5511-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            6,472          9,582         7,829             0        11,651             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  222,727        231,526       221,113       242,595       196,693       232,595       242,620       222,620

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  222,727        231,526       221,113       242,595       196,693       232,595       242,620       222,620

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5511-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         13,422         14,388        15,054        18,616        17,065        18,616        18,616        19,723

 110-5511-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              420            547           547           547           501           547           547           547

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    13,842         14,935        15,601        19,163        17,566        19,163        19,163        20,270

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5511-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS             13,538         14,022        13,537        15,041        12,620        15,041        15,042        14,112

 110-5511-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          3,166          3,279         3,166         3,518         2,951         3,518         3,518         3,300

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB            16,704         17,301        16,703        18,559        15,571        18,559        18,560        17,412

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5511-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             22,904         20,796        19,549        23,031        19,040        23,031        27,853        25,888

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           22,904         20,796        19,549        23,031        19,040        23,031        27,853        25,888

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5511-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.              1,187          1,159           843           537           492           537           815           815

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION            1,187          1,159           843           537           492           537           815           815

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5511-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           7,953          7,738         7,721         7,326         6,716         7,326         7,909         7,420

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               7,953          7,738         7,721         7,326         6,716         7,326         7,909         7,420

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   62,591         61,928        60,418        68,616        59,385        68,616        74,300        71,805

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5511-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                   0              0            15             0            13            15             0             0

 110-5511-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         524            428           201           500           439           500           500           500

 110-5511-315 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5511-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               8,911          9,121         6,303         8,000         5,345         8,000         8,000         6,000

 110-5511-318 VEHICLE PARTS                   1,921            100         1,904         2,000            73         1,000         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   11,356          9,648         8,423        10,500         5,869         9,515         9,500         7,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 92

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PARK ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 110-5511-326 FUEL                           10,095         15,393        13,996        12,500         9,163        12,500        13,000        13,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                             10,095         15,393        13,996        12,500         9,163        12,500        13,000        13,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             21,451         25,042        22,419        23,000        15,032        22,015        22,500        20,500

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5511-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY             6,554          6,182         9,086         6,000        16,705        18,000        15,000        10,000

 110-5511-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES              2,449          8,565         1,534         5,000         2,652         3,000         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             9,004         14,746        10,621        11,000        19,357        21,000        19,000        14,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              9,004         14,746        10,621        11,000        19,357        21,000        19,000        14,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5511-531 POSTAGE                            22              1            32             0             7             8            10            10

 110-5511-532 TELEPHONE                         907            850           828         1,000           762         1,000         1,000         1,000

 110-5511-533 CELLULAR PHONE                    973              0         1,020         1,100           929         1,745         1,100         1,100

 110-5511-535 RADIOS                              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       1,902            851         1,880         2,100         1,697         2,753         2,110         2,110

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 110-5511-550 PRINTING & BINDING                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 110-5511-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5511-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                 364            549           284           400            15            25           400           400

 110-5511-564 PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP REIMB           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5511-565 CELLULAR PHONE EXP REIMB            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5511-567 EMPLOYEE RECRUITMENT EXP            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5511-569 MISC EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP          0             85             0           300           849           850           200           200

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                 364            634           284           700           864           875           600           600

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              2,266          1,485         2,164         2,800         2,561         3,628         2,710         2,710

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 110-5511-730 OTHER IMPROVEMENTS                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 93

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PARK ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 110-5511-741 MACHINERY                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5511-742 VEHICLES                       22,358          4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT              22,358          4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679

  TOTAL PROPERTY                             22,358          4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679         4,679

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5511-814 PRINTING & COPY MACHINE LE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5511-825 TOURISM GRANT EXPENDITURES          0              0         3,894             0           560           600             0             0

 110-5511-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0         3,894             0           560           600             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0         3,894             0           560           600             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PARK ADMINISTRATION                  340,396        339,406       325,307       352,690       298,267       353,133       365,809       336,314



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 94

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

LAKE ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5512-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      46,033         45,119        47,388        52,581        43,962        52,581        52,581        52,581

 110-5512-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES     34,869         31,870        32,283        30,000        23,104        30,000        30,000        25,000

 110-5512-113 OVERTIME                        6,732          8,173         7,527         9,000         7,280         9,000         9,000         7,500

 110-5512-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            1,686          2,756         3,441             0         1,640             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   89,320         87,918        90,639        91,581        75,986        91,581        91,581        85,081

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   89,320         87,918        90,639        91,581        75,986        91,581        91,581        85,081

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5512-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          5,006          4,098         3,889         5,309         4,866         5,309         5,309         5,092

 110-5512-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              121            158           158           158           145           158           158           158

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     5,127          4,256         4,047         5,467         5,011         5,467         5,467         5,250

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5512-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              5,480          5,416         5,630         5,678         4,986         5,678         5,678         5,275

 110-5512-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,281          1,267         1,317         1,328         1,166         1,328         1,328         1,234

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             6,761          6,683         6,947         7,006         6,152         7,006         7,006         6,509

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5512-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              6,287          5,934         5,822         6,671         5,771         6,671         8,067         7,871

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            6,287          5,934         5,822         6,671         5,771         6,671         8,067         7,871

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5512-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                872            648           481           322           295           322           460           407

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              872            648           481           322           295           322           460           407

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5512-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           3,463          3,009         3,040         2,766         2,536         2,766         2,986         2,774

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               3,463          3,009         3,040         2,766         2,536         2,766         2,986         2,774

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   22,509         20,531        20,337        22,232        19,765        22,232        23,986        22,811

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5512-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                   387            823           286           500           479           600           500           500

 110-5512-315 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5512-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            170            258         1,163           500           475           600           500           500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      557          1,081         1,449         1,000           954         1,200         1,000         1,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 95

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

LAKE ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 110-5512-326 FUEL                            1,297          2,377         2,058         2,500           638             0         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                              1,297          2,377         2,058         2,500           638             0         2,000         2,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              1,854          3,458         3,507         3,500         1,592         1,200         3,000         3,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5512-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY             1,002          1,348         1,911         2,000         2,953         2,000         2,500         2,500

 110-5512-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES              2,207          2,236         2,821         3,000         3,295         3,750         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             3,208          3,585         4,732         5,000         6,248         5,750         6,500         6,500

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              3,208          3,585         4,732         5,000         6,248         5,750         6,500         6,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5512-531 POSTAGE                             0            107            34           100            21            50            50            50

 110-5512-533 CELLULAR PHONE                    956              0           991         1,100             0         1,100         1,100         1,100

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         956            107         1,025         1,200            21         1,150         1,150         1,150

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                956            107         1,025         1,200            21         1,150         1,150         1,150

 OTHER OBJECTS

 CITY CLERK DEPT OBJECTS

 110-5512-802 HUNTING/FISHING REMITTANCE      9,014          9,357        10,275         8,000         7,517         8,000         9,000         9,000

 110-5512-803 SALES TAX REMITTANCE            3,398          3,279         3,348         2,500         2,818         3,000         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL CITY CLERK DEPT OBJECTS            12,412         12,636        13,623        10,500        10,335        11,000        12,000        12,000

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5512-825 TOURISM GRANT EXPENDITURES          0              0             0             0           560           600        20,000        20,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0           560           600        20,000        20,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        12,412         12,636        13,623        10,500        10,895        11,600        32,000        32,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL LAKE ADMINISTRATION                  130,259        128,234       133,863       134,013       114,507       133,513       158,217       150,542



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 96

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

DEMARS CENTER

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5521-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                 360          1,949           879         1,000           590         1,000         1,000         1,000

 110-5521-314 CHEMICALS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      360          1,949           879         1,000           590         1,000         1,000         1,000

 ENERGY

 110-5521-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC             34            282           118           600           153           500           200           200

    TOTAL ENERGY                                 34            282           118           600           153           500           200           200

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                394          2,232           997         1,600           743         1,500         1,200         1,200

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5521-410 UTILITY SERVICES                  586            574           483           800           384           600           500           500

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                      586            574           483           800           384           600           500           500

 CLEANING SERVICES

 110-5521-423 CUSTODIAL SERVICES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5521-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               258            904         1,953         1,000           473           750         1,000         1,000

 110-5521-436 PEST CONTROL SERVICES             200            200           210           300           165           250           300           300

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES               458          1,104         2,163         1,300           638         1,000         1,300         1,300

 RENTALS

 110-5521-440 RENTALS                             0              0            50             0            55             0             0             0

    TOTAL RENTALS                                 0              0            50             0            55             0             0             0

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5521-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              1,044          1,678         2,695         2,100         1,076         1,600         1,800         1,800

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEMARS CENTER                          1,438          3,909         3,692         3,700         1,819         3,100         3,000         3,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 97

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PETERSON PARK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5541-314 CHEMICALS                          88          1,140            25           500            72           200           200           200

 110-5541-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES         32,265         22,302         9,154         8,000        14,028        15,000        10,000        10,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   32,353         23,441         9,178         8,500        14,100        15,200        10,200        10,200

 ENERGY

 110-5541-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC         15,545         18,832        26,472        16,000        13,557        16,000        15,000        15,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                             15,545         18,832        26,472        16,000        13,557        16,000        15,000        15,000

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5541-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT            949              0             0             0           158           160           200           200

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                 949              0             0             0           158           160           200           200

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             48,846         42,273        35,650        24,500        27,815        31,360        25,400        25,400

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5541-410 UTILITY SERVICES                5,471         11,194         5,309         8,000         6,526         8,000         8,000         8,000

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    5,471         11,194         5,309         8,000         6,526         8,000         8,000         8,000

 CLEANING SERVICES

 110-5541-424 LAWN CARE                       2,609          6,306         3,056         2,500         3,806         4,500         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                   2,609          6,306         3,056         2,500         3,806         4,500         2,500         2,500

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5541-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             9,501          8,760        19,580         7,500         5,742        12,500         7,500         7,500

 110-5541-436 PEST CONTROL SERVICES             200            200           167           300           165           250           250           250

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             9,701          8,960        19,748         7,800         5,907        12,750         7,750         7,750

 RENTALS

 110-5541-440 RENTALS                           420          2,290         1,225         1,100           858         1,100         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL RENTALS                               420          2,290         1,225         1,100           858         1,100         1,000         1,000

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5541-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES           4,080          3,319        26,211         3,000         4,619         2,000        12,000        12,000

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES               4,080          3,319        26,211         3,000         4,619         2,000        12,000        12,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             22,280         32,069        55,549        22,400        21,715        28,350        31,250        31,250



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 98

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

PETERSON PARK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5541-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                 190            190           190           200           190           190           190           190

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               190            190           190           200           190           190           190           190

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           190            190           190           200           190           190           190           190

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PETERSON PARK                         71,317         74,532        91,389        47,100        49,720        59,900        56,840        56,840



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE: 99

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

LAWSON PARK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5542-314 CHEMICALS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5542-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          4,345          7,309         6,992         2,500         2,232         2,500         3,000         2,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    4,345          7,309         6,992         2,500         2,232         2,500         3,000         2,500

 ENERGY

 110-5542-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI      4,473          2,672         2,286         4,000         2,861         4,000         3,500         3,500

    TOTAL ENERGY                              4,473          2,672         2,286         4,000         2,861         4,000         3,500         3,500

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5542-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5542-356 STREET SIGNS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              8,818          9,981         9,277         6,500         5,093         6,500         6,500         6,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5542-410 UTILITY SERVICES                    0          2,294         3,312         3,000           789         1,000         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                        0          2,294         3,312         3,000           789         1,000         2,000         2,000

 CLEANING SERVICES

 110-5542-424 LAWN CARE                       1,494          2,234         4,028         3,000         2,215         3,000         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                   1,494          2,234         4,028         3,000         2,215         3,000         2,000         2,000

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5542-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               155          1,106         1,545           500           129           300           500           500

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES               155          1,106         1,545           500           129           300           500           500

 RENTALS

 110-5542-440 RENTALS                           560            613         1,275           900           315           315           500           500

    TOTAL RENTALS                               560            613         1,275           900           315           315           500           500

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5542-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES           4,000            542         1,000         6,000           450           450         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES               4,000            542         1,000         6,000           450           450         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              6,209          6,789        11,160        13,400         3,898         5,065         6,000         6,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:100

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

LAWSON PARK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5542-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                 117            117           117           200           117           117           150           150

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               117            117           117           200           117           117           150           150

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           117            117           117           200           117           117           150           150

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL LAWSON PARK                           15,144         16,887        20,555        20,100         9,108        11,682        12,650        12,150



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:101

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

VANLANINGHAM PARK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5543-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5543-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0            972             0           500             0             0           500           500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0            972             0           500             0             0           500           500

 ENERGY

 110-5543-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5543-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0            972             0           500             0             0           500           500

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5543-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL VANLANINGHAM PARK                          0            972             0           500             0             0           500           500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:102

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

CUNNINGHAM PARK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5544-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5544-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 ENERGY

 110-5544-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        430            461           483           500           477           500           500           500

    TOTAL ENERGY                                430            461           483           500           477           500           500           500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                430            461           483           500           477           500           500           500

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5544-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CUNNINGHAM PARK                          430            461           483           500           477           500           500           500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:103

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

BOYS COMPLEX

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5551-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5551-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          9,274          4,321         2,714         2,500         2,427         3,000         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    9,274          4,321         2,714         2,500         2,427         3,000         2,500         2,500

 ENERGY

 110-5551-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI      3,105          2,716         3,024         4,000         3,139         4,000         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                              3,105          2,716         3,024         4,000         3,139         4,000         4,000         4,000

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5551-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT              0          1,555             0             0         1,238           654         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                   0          1,555             0             0         1,238           654         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             12,379          8,591         5,739         6,500         6,803         7,654         7,500         7,500

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5551-410 UTILITY SERVICES         (         25)           917         7,857         2,500         3,465         4,000         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES             (         25)           917         7,857         2,500         3,465         4,000         3,000         3,000

 CLEANING SERVICES

 110-5551-424 LAWN CARE                       6,156          1,679         1,768         3,000         1,484         1,000         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                   6,156          1,679         1,768         3,000         1,484         1,000         1,500         1,500

 RENTALS

 110-5551-440 RENTALS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL RENTALS                                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5551-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES               0             94             0           100         6,097         6,097         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                   0             94             0           100         6,097         6,097         4,000         4,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              6,131          2,690         9,625         5,600        11,045        11,097         8,500         8,500

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5551-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                 116            116           152           150           152           152           150           150

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               116            116           152           150           152           152           150           150

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           116            116           152           150           152           152           150           150

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BOYS COMPLEX                          18,625         11,397        15,516        12,250        18,001        18,903        16,150        16,150



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:104

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

GIRLS COMPLEX

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5552-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5552-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES         12,074          6,524         2,747         2,500         2,887         3,250         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   12,074          6,524         2,747         2,500         2,887         3,250         3,000         3,000

 ENERGY

 110-5552-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI      4,744          3,706         3,926         4,000         3,402         4,000         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                              4,744          3,706         3,926         4,000         3,402         4,000         4,000         4,000

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5552-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT              0          1,884         1,553         1,000           931           647         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                   0          1,884         1,553         1,000           931           647         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             16,818         12,114         8,226         7,500         7,220         7,897         8,000         8,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5552-410 UTILITY SERVICES                3,853          4,972         2,507         5,000         1,958         2,500         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    3,853          4,972         2,507         5,000         1,958         2,500         2,500         2,500

 CLEANING SERVICES

 110-5552-424 LAWN CARE                       2,942          1,746         3,018         2,500         1,261           565         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                   2,942          1,746         3,018         2,500         1,261           565         1,500         1,500

 RENTALS

 110-5552-440 RENTALS                           150            150           465           200           270             0           200           200

    TOTAL RENTALS                               150            150           465           200           270             0           200           200

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5552-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES               0            293           413         2,000           393            27         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                   0            293           413         2,000           393            27         2,000         2,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              6,945          7,161         6,403         9,700         3,881         3,092         6,200         6,200

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL GIRLS COMPLEX                         23,763         19,275        14,628        17,200        11,101        10,989        14,200        14,200



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:105

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5553-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5553-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 120          3,753           889           500             0             0             0             0

 110-5553-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES         10,204          6,716         5,878         2,500         3,851         4,500         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   10,324         10,469         6,767         3,000         3,851         4,500         3,000         3,000

 ENERGY

 110-5553-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI      1,741          1,097         2,076         2,500         3,552         3,500         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                              1,741          1,097         2,076         2,500         3,552         3,500         3,000         3,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             12,065         11,566         8,843         5,500         7,403         8,000         6,000         6,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5553-410 UTILITY SERVICES                2,820          5,952         3,632         5,000         4,335         5,000         5,000         5,000

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    2,820          5,952         3,632         5,000         4,335         5,000         5,000         5,000

 CLEANING SERVICES

 110-5553-424 LAWN CARE                       2,982          4,474         2,344         3,000         1,609         2,500         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                   2,982          4,474         2,344         3,000         1,609         2,500         3,000         3,000

 RENTALS

 110-5553-440 RENTALS                           350            893         1,000         1,500           420           500           500           500

    TOTAL RENTALS                               350            893         1,000         1,500           420           500           500           500

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              6,153         11,319         6,976         9,500         6,364         8,000         8,500         8,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL JR FOOTBALL COMPLEX                   18,217         22,886        15,819        15,000        13,767        16,000        14,500        14,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:106

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

LITTLE KINZEL PARK

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5554-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT              10,617             11             0           200             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   10,617             11             0           200             0             0             0             0

 ENERGY

 110-5554-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        197            374           339           500            74           300           200           200

    TOTAL ENERGY                                197            374           339           500            74           300           200           200

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             10,814            385           339           700            74           300           200           200

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5554-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES                0            799             0           300            33            50           200           200

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0            799             0           300            33            50           200           200

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5554-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES           0              0            50             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE                0              0            50             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0            799            50           300            33            50           200           200

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL LITTLE KINZEL PARK                    10,814          1,184           389         1,000           107           350           400           400



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:107

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

KINZEL FIELD

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5555-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               3,380              0             0             0           420           420             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,380              0             0             0           420           420             0             0

 ENERGY

 110-5555-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI        465            692         1,094           750           985         1,000         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                                465            692         1,094           750           985         1,000         1,000         1,000

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5555-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT          6,938              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES               6,938              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             10,783            692         1,094           750         1,404         1,420         1,000         1,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5555-410 UTILITY SERVICES                    0              0            17             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                        0              0            17             0             0             0             0             0

 RENTALS

 110-5555-440 RENTALS                           455            368           158             0           228           228             0             0

    TOTAL RENTALS                               455            368           158             0           228           228             0             0

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 110-5555-460 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICES         530            294             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE              530            294             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                985            662           174             0           228           228             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5555-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   6              6             6             0             6             7             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 6              6             6             0             6             7             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             6              6             6             0             6             7             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL KINZEL FIELD                          11,775          1,360         1,274           750         1,638         1,655         1,000         1,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:108

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

T-BALL COMPLEX

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5556-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5556-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES         10,403          6,135           529         1,000         1,122         1,250         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   10,403          6,135           529         1,000         1,122         1,250         1,000         1,000

 ENERGY

 110-5556-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC            779          2,511         1,367         1,500           954         1,250         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                                779          2,511         1,367         1,500           954         1,250         1,000         1,000

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5556-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT          5,976              0         1,232             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5556-356 STREET SIGNS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES               5,976              0         1,232             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             17,158          8,646         3,127         2,500         2,076         2,500         2,000         2,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5556-410 UTILITY SERVICES                    0              0             0         1,000             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                        0              0             0         1,000             0             0             0             0

 CLEANING SERVICES

 110-5556-424 LAWN CARE                       1,093             94         1,431           500           323           400           500           500

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                   1,093             94         1,431           500           323           400           500           500

 RENTALS

 110-5556-440 RENTALS                             0              0           424           500           360           400           500           500

    TOTAL RENTALS                                 0              0           424           500           360           400           500           500

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5556-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES           4,000          8,646             0         1,000             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES               4,000          8,646             0         1,000             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              5,093          8,740         1,855         3,000           683           800         1,000         1,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL T-BALL COMPLEX                        22,251         17,386         4,983         5,500         2,759         3,300         3,000         3,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:109

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

EAST CAMPGROUND

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5561-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                 370            336           343           500           158           300             0             0

 110-5561-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          96             88             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5561-314 CHEMICALS                         276            159             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5561-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 116            667           153         1,500             0             0         1,500           750

 110-5561-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,857          2,460         1,733         3,000           869         1,000         3,000         1,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    2,714          3,710         2,229         5,000         1,027         1,300         4,500         1,750

 ENERGY

 110-5561-322 ELECTRICITY                     7,049         11,859         7,878         9,000        10,536        12,000        12,000        12,000

 110-5561-323 BOTTLED GAS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                              7,049         11,859         7,878         9,000        10,536        12,000        12,000        12,000

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5561-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT              0              0           900         1,000         2,265         1,084         1,000         1,000

 110-5561-356 STREET SIGNS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                   0              0           900         1,000         2,265         1,084         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              9,764         15,570        11,008        15,000        13,828        14,384        17,500        14,750

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5561-410 UTILITY SERVICES                2,762          3,763         3,993         4,000         2,146         2,750         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    2,762          3,763         3,993         4,000         2,146         2,750         2,500         2,500

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5561-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             2,348          1,032         1,059         1,500         2,501         3,000         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             2,348          1,032         1,059         1,500         2,501         3,000         1,500         1,500

 RENTALS

 110-5561-440 RENTALS                             0              0           335           400             0             0           400           400

    TOTAL RENTALS                                 0              0           335           400             0             0           400           400

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5561-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES           1,585          4,380         2,981         4,000           886           200         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES               1,585          4,380         2,981         4,000           886           200         4,000         4,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              6,694          9,175         8,369         9,900         5,532         5,950         8,400         8,400



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:110

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

EAST CAMPGROUND

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5561-532 TELEPHONE                         356            303           278           500           194            40           300           300

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         356            303           278           500           194            40           300           300

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                356            303           278           500           194            40           300           300

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5561-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                 287          1,635         1,421           500         1,444         1,444         1,400         1,400

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               287          1,635         1,421           500         1,444         1,444         1,400         1,400

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           287          1,635         1,421           500         1,444         1,444         1,400         1,400

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL EAST CAMPGROUND                       17,101         26,682        21,075        25,900        20,998        21,819        27,600        24,850



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:111

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

WEST CAMPGROUND

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5562-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                 170            480             0           400           108           200           400           400

 110-5562-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         112             88           165           100            91           100           100           100

 110-5562-314 CHEMICALS                           0             32             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5562-315 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5562-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               1,128            640         3,019         2,500           657         1,000         2,000         1,000

 110-5562-318 VEHICLE PARTS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5562-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          2,543          1,616           955         2,000           528         1,000         2,000         1,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,953          2,856         4,139         5,000         1,384         2,300         4,500         2,500

 ENERGY

 110-5562-322 ELECTRICITY                    11,006          7,990         9,552        11,500        11,931        13,000        13,000        13,000

 110-5562-323 BOTTLED GAS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5562-326 FUEL                            2,149          1,699         1,281         3,500         2,729             0         3,500         3,500

    TOTAL ENERGY                             13,155          9,689        10,833        15,000        14,660        13,000        16,500        16,500

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5562-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT          1,365              0         1,556         1,000           982         1,000         1,000         1,000

 110-5562-356 STREET SIGNS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES               1,365              0         1,556         1,000           982         1,000         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             18,473         12,545        16,527        21,000        17,027        16,300        22,000        20,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5562-410 UTILITY SERVICES                3,072          3,040         1,642         3,500         1,936         3,250         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    3,072          3,040         1,642         3,500         1,936         3,250         2,000         2,000

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5562-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS             3,121          2,205           902         2,500           212           500         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             3,121          2,205           902         2,500           212           500         2,000         2,000

 RENTALS

 110-5562-440 RENTALS                             0            566           350         1,500           439           500         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL RENTALS                                 0            566           350         1,500           439           500         1,000         1,000

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5562-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES             552          2,568             0         3,000             0             0         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                 552          2,568             0         3,000             0             0         3,000         3,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              6,745          8,379         2,894        10,500         2,587         4,250         8,000         8,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:112

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

WEST CAMPGROUND

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5562-532 TELEPHONE                         307            306           287           500           199           400           300           300

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         307            306           287           500           199           400           300           300

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                307            306           287           500           199           400           300           300

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WEST CAMPGROUND                       25,525         21,230        19,708        32,000        19,813        20,950        30,300        28,300



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:113

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

MARINA AREA

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5563-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                     0            111             0           300           102           200           200           200

 110-5563-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                 285            210             0           200           129           200           200           200

 110-5563-314 CHEMICALS                         128             85             0           100             0             0             0             0

 110-5563-315 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5563-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 144             48           172           200           116           200           200           200

 110-5563-317 CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP     26,511         26,248        26,591        25,000        23,730        27,500        25,000        25,000

 110-5563-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          6,932          7,985         3,862        10,000         5,973         7,500         8,000         7,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   34,000         34,686        30,625        35,800        30,050        35,600        33,600        33,100

 ENERGY

 110-5563-322 ELECTRICITY                     3,371          3,633         3,884         4,000         4,345         4,000         4,000         4,000

 110-5563-323 BOTTLED GAS                         0          2,586             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5563-327 FUEL - RESALE                  17,383         17,578        17,893        20,000        10,785        16,000        17,000        17,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                             20,754         23,796        21,777        24,000        15,130        20,000        21,000        21,000

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5563-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT              0              0           781         1,000           915           470           500           500

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                   0              0           781         1,000           915           470           500           500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             54,753         58,483        53,182        60,800        46,096        56,070        55,100        54,600

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5563-410 UTILITY SERVICES                3,458            510           950         1,500           658           646         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    3,458            510           950         1,500           658           646         1,000         1,000

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5563-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS            18,242          1,515         9,787         3,000           434           500         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            18,242          1,515         9,787         3,000           434           500         3,000         3,000

 RENTALS

 110-5563-440 RENTALS                           687          1,158           420           750           193           250           750           750

    TOTAL RENTALS                               687          1,158           420           750           193           250           750           750

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             22,388          3,183        11,157         5,250         1,285         1,396         4,750         4,750

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:114

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

MARINA AREA

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5563-532 TELEPHONE                         668            576           735           800           747           800           800           800

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         668            576           735           800           747           800           800           800

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5563-576 SECURITY SERVICES                 540            598           540           800           495           700           800           800

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              540            598           540           800           495           700           800           800

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              1,208          1,174         1,275         1,600         1,242         1,500         1,600         1,600

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL MARINA AREA                           78,349         62,839        65,614        67,650        48,622        58,966        61,450        60,950



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:115

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

BEACH AREA

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5564-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            489          2,393         3,724         2,000           784         1,000         2,000         1,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      489          2,393         3,724         2,000           784         1,000         2,000         1,000

 ENERGY

 110-5564-322 ELECTRICITY                       636            733           544         1,000           669         1,000         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                                636            733           544         1,000           669         1,000         1,000         1,000

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 110-5564-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT              0            140           744         1,500           293           500         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                   0            140           744         1,500           293           500         1,500         1,500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              1,125          3,266         5,012         4,500         1,746         2,500         4,500         3,500

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 110-5564-410 UTILITY SERVICES                  117            139           146           200           120           200           200           200

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                      117            139           146           200           120           200           200           200

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5564-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS               410              0           410         1,000             0             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES               410              0           410         1,000             0             0         1,000         1,000

 RENTALS

 110-5564-440 RENTALS                           420            980           280         1,000           473           750         1,000           750

    TOTAL RENTALS                               420            980           280         1,000           473           750         1,000           750

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 110-5564-450 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES               0          3,285         4,181         4,000         3,445         4,000         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                   0          3,285         4,181         4,000         3,445         4,000         4,000         4,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                946          4,404         5,016         6,200         4,038         4,950         6,200         5,950

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 COMMUNICATION

 110-5564-532 TELEPHONE                         183            126           174           500           165             0           500           500

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         183            126           174           500           165             0           500           500

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                183            126           174           500           165             0           500           500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BEACH AREA                             2,255          7,795        10,203        11,200         5,949         7,450        11,200         9,950



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:116

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

DODGE GROVE CEMETERY

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 110-5570-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES           0              0             0             0             0             0        73,115        73,115

 110-5570-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES          0              0             0             0             0             0        30,000        30,000

 110-5570-113 OVERTIME                            0              0             0             0             0             0         1,388         1,388

 110-5570-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                        0              0             0             0             0             0       104,503       104,503

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                        0              0             0             0             0             0       104,503       104,503

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 110-5570-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE              0              0             0             0             0             0        12,525        13,770

 110-5570-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE                0              0             0             0             0             0           230           230

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                         0              0             0             0             0             0        12,755        14,000

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 110-5570-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS                  0              0             0             0             0             0         6,479         6,479

 110-5570-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS              0              0             0             0             0             0         1,515         1,515

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB                 0              0             0             0             0             0         7,994         7,994

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 110-5570-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS                  0              0             0             0             0             0         9,654         9,654

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS                0              0             0             0             0             0         9,654         9,654

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 110-5570-240 UNEMPLOYMENT                        0              0             0             0             0             0           525           525

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION                0              0             0             0             0             0           525           525

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 110-5570-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION               0              0             0             0             0             0         5,641         5,641

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                   0              0             0             0             0             0         5,641         5,641

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                        0              0             0             0             0             0        36,569        37,814

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 110-5570-311 SUPPLIES                            0              0             0             0             0             0         1,000         1,000

 110-5570-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0         2,000         1,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              0             0             0             0             0         3,000         2,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:117

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

DODGE GROVE CEMETERY

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 110-5570-321 UTILITIES                           0              0             0             0             0             0         6,000         6,000

 110-5570-326 FUEL                                0              0             0             0             0             0         4,500         4,500

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0        10,500        10,500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0              0             0             0             0             0        13,500        13,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 110-5570-432 REPAIR OF BUILDINGS/STRUCT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5570-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY                 0              0             0             0             0             0         4,500         4,500

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0         4,500         4,500

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0         4,500         4,500

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 110-5570-720 BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 110-5570-730 IMPROVMENTS OTHER THAN BLD          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 110-5570-740 MACHINERY                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5570-816 FARM EXPENSES                       0              0             0             0             0             0           200           200

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0           200           200

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5570-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   0              0             0             0             0             0         1,400         1,400

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0         1,400         1,400

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0         1,600         1,600

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DODGE GROVE CEMETERY                       0              0             0             0             0             0       160,672       161,417



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:118

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5651-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      1,720         39,909        53,532        37,000        13,660        15,000             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               1,720         39,909        53,532        37,000        13,660        15,000             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 110-5651-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS             60,000         60,000        60,000        60,000        55,000        60,000        60,000        60,000

 110-5651-579 FUTUREGEN ECONOMIC DEVELOP          0              0       500,000             0       465,885       467,400             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES           60,000         60,000       560,000        60,000       520,885       527,400        60,000        60,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             61,720         99,909       613,532        97,000       534,545       542,400        60,000        60,000

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 110-5651-730 IMPROV OTHER THAN BUILDING     28,594              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS            28,594              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                             28,594              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT                  90,314         99,909       613,532        97,000       534,545       542,400        60,000        60,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:119

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DIST

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 110-5652-511 SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DISTRI     24,178         90,208           352             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              24,178         90,208           352             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             24,178         90,208           352             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SOUTH RT45 BUSINESS DIST              24,178         90,208           352             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:120

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

2003 LIBRARY REF GO BOND

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5716-817 SERIES 2003 LIBRARY REFUND     81,150         81,910        78,445        78,050        78,852        78,852        78,486        78,486

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            81,150         81,910        78,445        78,050        78,852        78,852        78,486        78,486

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        81,150         81,910        78,445        78,050        78,852        78,852        78,486        78,486

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL 2003 LIBRARY REF GO BOND              81,150         81,910        78,445        78,050        78,852        78,852        78,486        78,486



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:121

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

2003A ERI GO BONDS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5717-817 2003A PENSION BENEFIT GO B    196,550        195,460       194,153       192,628       192,628       192,628       195,885       195,885

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS           196,550        195,460       194,153       192,628       192,628       192,628       195,885       195,885

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                       196,550        195,460       194,153       192,628       192,628       192,628       195,885       195,885

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL 2003A ERI GO BONDS                   196,550        195,460       194,153       192,628       192,628       192,628       195,885       195,885



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:122

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

2005B REF GO BONDS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5719-817 2005B REFUNDING BONDS         201,028        197,453       198,553       198,553       199,300       199,300       194,750       194,750

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS           201,028        197,453       198,553       198,553       199,300       199,300       194,750       194,750

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                       201,028        197,453       198,553       198,553       199,300       199,300       194,750       194,750

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL 2005B REF GO BONDS                   201,028        197,453       198,553       198,553       199,300       199,300       194,750       194,750



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:123

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

STREET DEPT EQPT LEASE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5742-817 DEBT SERVICES                  31,247              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            31,247              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        31,247              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STREET DEPT EQPT LEASE                31,247              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:124

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

YARD WASTE EQPT LEASE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5745-817 DEBT SERVICES                  41,040              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            41,040              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        41,040              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL YARD WASTE EQPT LEASE                 41,040              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:125

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

RURAL KING WTR/SWR EXT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5751-817 DEBT SERVICES                  49,500         49,500        49,500        49,500        49,513        49,513             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            49,500         49,500        49,500        49,500        49,513        49,513             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        49,500         49,500        49,500        49,500        49,513        49,513             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RURAL KING WTR/SWR EXT                49,500         49,500        49,500        49,500        49,513        49,513             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:126

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

KAL KAN WTR/SWR EXT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5752-817 DEBT SERVICES                       0              0             0        15,467        14,178        15,467        15,467        15,467

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0        15,467        14,178        15,467        15,467        15,467

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0        15,467        14,178        15,467        15,467        15,467

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL KAL KAN WTR/SWR EXT                        0              0             0        15,467        14,178        15,467        15,467        15,467



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:127

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

HOME DEPOT INFRASTRUCTURE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5753-817 DEBT SERVICES-HOME DEPOT I     80,590         82,711             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            80,590         82,711             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        80,590         82,711             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL HOME DEPOT INFRASTRUCTURE             80,590         82,711             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:128

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

FISCAL AGENT FEES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5760-817 FISCAL AGENT'S FEE                808            648           634         1,500           659         1,500             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               808            648           634         1,500           659         1,500             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           808            648           634         1,500           659         1,500             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FISCAL AGENT FEES                        808            648           634         1,500           659         1,500             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:129

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

110-GENERAL FUND

INTEREST EXPENSE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 110-5795-817 INTEREST EXPENSE                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                       14,147,463     14,764,476    15,091,105    14,470,910    13,101,612    14,896,912    13,855,663    13,829,477

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES           523,157        355,279       727,579     1,261,324  (    247,278)    1,074,111     1,082,324     1,108,810

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 110-4902-010 TRFR FROM MOTOR FUEL TAX            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4911-010 TRFR FROM WATER FUND                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4912-010 TRFR FROM SEWER FUND                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4918-010 INTERFUND CHRG - CAPITAL P          0              0             0        70,000             0        70,000        70,000        70,000

 110-4948-010 PROCEEDS FROM REVOLV LOAN           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-4949-010 VEHICLE LOAN PROCEEDS         106,640        265,969             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES             106,640        265,969             0        70,000             0        70,000        70,000        70,000

 OTHER FINANCING (USES)                 ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________  ____________  ____________  ____________

 110-5902-822 TRANSFER TO MOTOR FUEL TAX          0              0        58,404             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5904-822 TRANSFER TO FESTIVAL MANA.          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5912-822 TRANSFER TO LIBRARY FUND      384,995        403,858       405,548       420,364       419,943       419,301       429,610       429,610

 110-5915-822 TRANSFER TO INS & TORT JUD          0        158,054       142,892       132,392             0             0             0             0

 110-5922-817 DEBT SERVICES                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 110-5922-822 TRANSFER TO LIBRARY FUND            0         45,412        39,811        37,650        22,934        32,000        30,000        30,000

 110-5933-822 TRANSFERS TO CEMETERY FUND     51,938         47,000        43,295        52,196             0        52,196             0             0

 110-5945-822 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL IMPROV    616,857        693,089       621,985       720,000       571,270       700,000       700,000       700,000

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)            1,053,789      1,347,413     1,311,934     1,362,602     1,014,147     1,203,497     1,159,610     1,159,610

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)   (    947,150)  (  1,081,444) (  1,311,934) (  1,292,602) (  1,014,147) (  1,133,497) (  1,089,610) (  1,089,610)

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)    (    423,993)  (    726,165) (    584,355) (     31,278) (  1,261,425) (     59,386) (      7,286)       19,200

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:130

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

LICENSES & PERMITS

 BUSINESS LIC & PERMITS

 121-4215-023 PUBLIC UTILITY LICENSE              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL BUSINESS LIC & PERMITS                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

 FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS

 121-4313-023 FEDERAL CAPITAL GRANTS              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 STATE GOVT GRANTS

 121-4323-023 STATE CAPITAL GRANTS                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL STATE GOVT GRANTS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 STATE GOVT SHARED REV

 121-4332-010 MOTOR FUEL TAX                572,633        510,643       477,309       480,000       384,421             0       468,250       468,250

  TOTAL STATE GOVT SHARED REV               572,633        510,643       477,309       480,000       384,421             0       468,250       468,250

 COUNTY GRANTS

 121-4340-023 COUNTY CAPITAL GRANTS               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL COUNTY GRANTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 SCHOOL DISTRICT GRANTS

 121-4360-023 SCHOOL DISTRICT GRANTS              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SCHOOL DISTRICT GRANTS                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV             572,633        510,643       477,309       480,000       384,421             0       468,250       468,250

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 121-4610-010 INTEREST EARNINGS              56,504         32,024        11,549        15,000         1,601             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                    56,504         32,024        11,549        15,000         1,601             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                56,504         32,024        11,549        15,000         1,601             0             0             0

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:131

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 121-4800-010 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER MISC          0              0        69,523             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0        69,523             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0        69,523             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                              629,137        542,668       558,381       495,000       386,022             0       468,250       468,250



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:132

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

STREETS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 121-5321-351 CONCRETE                        9,499         14,566        14,655        17,280        13,454             0        22,000        22,000

 121-5321-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT              0          3,927        17,969        12,000             0             0        20,000        20,000

 121-5321-353 BITUMINOUS PATCHING            22,430         19,072         5,790        39,300        24,585             0        66,000        66,000

 121-5321-355 CRACK SEALER                   28,214          6,435        15,000        19,600        19,443             0        21,000        21,000

 121-5321-356 STREET SIGNS                    2,060          1,180         1,095        15,000         5,387             0         2,200         2,200

 121-5321-359 OTHER STREET MTCE SUPPLIES          0            166             0         3,000           348             0         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES              62,204         45,345        54,509       106,180        63,217             0       132,400       132,400

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             62,204         45,345        54,509       106,180        63,217             0       132,400       132,400

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 RENTALS

 121-5321-440 RENTALS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL RENTALS                                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 121-5321-451 SEAL COAT                      98,030        114,199             0       107,250             0             0       237,000       237,000

 121-5321-452 AGGREGATE SURFACE COAT         71,187         41,593        75,192        32,700             0             0        77,000        77,000

 121-5321-453 BITUMINOUS PATCHING                 0   (        533)        6,682             0             0             0             0             0

 121-5321-454 ROTO-TILLING                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 121-5321-455 BRICK STREET MAINTENANCE            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 121-5321-459 OTHER CONSTRUCTION SERVICE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES             169,216        155,259        81,873       139,950             0             0       314,000       314,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV            169,216        155,259        81,873       139,950             0             0       314,000       314,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 121-5321-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 121-5321-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE         85              0             0             0            55             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                  85              0             0             0            55             0             0             0

 ADVERTISING

 121-5321-540 ADVERTISING                       117             70            34         1,000           144             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                           117             70            34         1,000           144             0         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                202             70            34         1,000           199             0         1,000         1,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:133

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

STREETS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 121-5321-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL    372,368        110,655       313,469             0        70,421             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS           372,368        110,655       313,469             0        70,421             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                            372,368        110,655       313,469             0        70,421             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 121-5321-821 INTERGOVERNMENTAL EXPENDIT      1,000          1,000         1,000         1,000             0             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             1,000          1,000         1,000         1,000             0             0         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         1,000          1,000         1,000         1,000             0             0         1,000         1,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STREETS                              604,991        312,329       450,885       248,130       133,837             0       448,400       448,400



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:134

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 121-5323-351 CONCRETE                        9,179              0         1,456             0             0             0         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES               9,179              0         1,456             0             0             0         1,200         1,200

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              9,179              0         1,456             0             0             0         1,200         1,200

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 121-5323-459 OTHER CONSTRUCTION COST             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS                 9,179              0         1,456             0             0             0         1,200         1,200



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:135

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

BRIDGES, VIADUCTS & GRADE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 121-5324-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL    128,304              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS           128,304              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                            128,304              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BRIDGES, VIADUCTS & GRADE            128,304              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:136

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

SNOW & ICE REMOVAL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 121-5325-354 ICE REMOVAL CHEMICALS          13,730         14,774        24,807        45,000        21,145             0        26,000        26,000

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES              13,730         14,774        24,807        45,000        21,145             0        26,000        26,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             13,730         14,774        24,807        45,000        21,145             0        26,000        26,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SNOW & ICE REMOVAL                    13,730         14,774        24,807        45,000        21,145             0        26,000        26,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:137

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

STREET LIGHTING

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 ENERGY

 121-5326-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC              0              0             0             0             0             0       165,000       165,000

 121-5326-322 ELECTRIC (COLES MOULTRIE)           0              0             0             0             0             0         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0       169,000       169,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0              0             0             0             0             0       169,000       169,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 121-5326-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES                0              0             0             0             0             0        25,000        25,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0        25,000        25,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0        25,000        25,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STREET LIGHTING                            0              0             0             0             0             0       194,000       194,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:138

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 121-5327-356 STREET SIGNS                   44,714          5,421         8,867             0           323             0             0             0

 121-5327-359 OTHER STREET MAINT SUPPLIE      2,487          3,544         4,518         5,000         1,438             0         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES              47,201          8,965        13,385         5,000         1,761             0         4,000         4,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             47,201          8,965        13,385         5,000         1,761             0         4,000         4,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 121-5327-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURE               505              0             0        10,000         4,667             0        19,000        19,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES               505              0             0        10,000         4,667             0        19,000        19,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                505              0             0        10,000         4,667             0        19,000        19,000

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 121-5327-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      1,566              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS             1,566              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                              1,566              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES               49,272          8,965        13,385        15,000         6,429             0        23,000        23,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:139

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

121-MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

STORM DRAINAGE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 121-5328-357 CATCH BASINS                      510          3,531         6,677         7,000         3,534             0         8,000         8,000

 121-5328-358 PIPE                            2,430          2,163        10,010         5,000         2,929             0         6,000         6,000

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES               2,940          5,694        16,687        12,000         6,463             0        14,000        14,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              2,940          5,694        16,687        12,000         6,463             0        14,000        14,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 121-5328-459 OTHER CONSTRUCTION SERVICE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STORM DRAINAGE                         2,940          5,694        16,687        12,000         6,463             0        14,000        14,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                          808,416        341,761       507,220       320,130       167,875             0       706,600       706,600

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES      (    179,279)       200,907        51,161       174,870       218,148             0  (    238,350) (    238,350)

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 121-4941-023 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND          0              0        58,404             0             0             0             0             0

 121-4948-023 FROM REVOLVING LOAN FUND            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 121-4955-023 DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0        58,404             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER FINANCING (USES)                 ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________  ____________  ____________  ____________

 121-5901-100 TRFR TO GENERAL FUND                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 121-5935-822 TRNFS TO GENERAL FUND               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0              0        58,404             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)    (    179,279)       200,907       109,566       174,870       218,148             0  (    238,350) (    238,350)

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:140

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

122-HOTEL TAX FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 HOTEL & MOTEL TAX

 122-4170-100 HOTEL & MOTEL TAXES           227,872        228,956       259,715       253,017       169,906       251,000       275,000       275,000

  TOTAL HOTEL & MOTEL TAX                   227,872        228,956       259,715       253,017       169,906       251,000       275,000       275,000

    TOTAL TAXES                             227,872        228,956       259,715       253,017       169,906       251,000       275,000       275,000

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

 GENERAL GOVT CHARGES

 122-4419-100 OTHER MISC GENERAL GOVT CH         98             37        24,762             0        34,544        34,544        11,250        11,250

  TOTAL GENERAL GOVT CHARGES                     98             37        24,762             0        34,544        34,544        11,250        11,250

    TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES                   98             37        24,762             0        34,544        34,544        11,250        11,250

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 122-4610-100 INTEREST EARNINGS                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 122-4800-100 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER MISC          0              0         1,500             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0         1,500             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0         1,500             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                              227,969        228,993       285,977       253,017       204,451       285,544       286,250       286,250



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:141

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

122-HOTEL TAX FUND

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 122-5653-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      43,206         43,981        39,628        44,199        35,617        44,199        43,333        43,333

 122-5653-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES      4,460          5,075         6,326        19,000         6,183        10,000        10,000        10,000

 122-5653-113 OVERTIME                            0              0             0           270             0             0             0             0

 122-5653-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES              277          2,229         2,569             0         2,038             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   47,943         51,285        48,523        63,469        43,838        54,199        53,333        53,333

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   47,943         51,285        48,523        63,469        43,838        54,199        53,333        53,333

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 122-5653-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          6,529          5,927         6,568         7,828         7,176         7,828         7,828         8,606

 122-5653-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              110            144           144           144           132           144           144           144

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     6,639          6,071         6,712         7,972         7,308         7,972         7,972         8,750

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 122-5653-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              2,845          3,088         2,928         3,918         2,776         3,360         3,307         3,307

 122-5653-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS            665            722           685           916           649           786           773           773

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             3,511          3,811         3,612         4,834         3,425         4,146         4,080         4,080

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 122-5653-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              4,043          4,230         4,080         4,788         4,045         4,788         5,677         5,677

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            4,043          4,230         4,080         4,788         4,045         4,788         5,677         5,677

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 122-5653-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                458            450           349           219           201           219           236           236

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              458            450           349           219           201           219           236           236

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 122-5653-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION             304            174           180           171           157           171           144           144

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                 304            174           180           171           157           171           144           144

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   14,954         14,736        14,933        17,984        15,135        17,296        18,109        18,887

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 122-5653-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 3,369          1,102         1,051           700         2,016         2,250         1,000         1,000

 122-5653-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               1,278              0             0             0         1,600         1,600             0             0

 122-5653-317 CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP      1,960              0         1,232         2,000             0             0         2,000         2,000

 122-5653-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             21            672           740             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    6,628          1,774         3,023         2,700         3,616         3,850         3,000         3,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:142

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

122-HOTEL TAX FUND

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 122-5653-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (CI      1,806          1,272         1,170           850           313           750           850           850

 122-5653-322 ELECTRICITY (COLES MOULTRI        310            256           179           500           463           500           500           500

    TOTAL ENERGY                              2,116          1,528         1,350         1,350           776         1,250         1,350         1,350

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              8,744          3,302         4,373         4,050         4,392         5,100         4,350         4,350

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 122-5653-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 122-5653-436 PEST CONTROL SERVICES               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 122-5653-513 AUDITING SERVICES               1,000          1,000         1,100         1,100         1,100         1,100         1,100         1,100

 122-5653-516 TECHNOLOGY SERVICES             2,518              0             0         2,964         2,717         2,964         2,964         2,964

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               3,518          1,000         1,100         4,064         3,817         4,064         4,064         4,064

 COMMUNICATION

 122-5653-531 POSTAGE                           305            441           142           700           121           300           500           500

 122-5653-532 TELEPHONE                       2,859          2,677         2,538         2,500         2,709         3,250         3,000         3,000

 122-5653-533 CELLULAR PHONE                    545            519           766           750           476           600           700           700

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       3,709          3,638         3,445         3,950         3,307         4,150         4,200         4,200

 ADVERTISING

 122-5653-540 ADVERTISING                    19,093         25,339         8,949        15,000         9,830        12,000        15,000        15,000

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                        19,093         25,339         8,949        15,000         9,830        12,000        15,000        15,000

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 122-5653-550 PRINTING & BINDING              1,675          1,438         2,206         3,000             0             0         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                 1,675          1,438         2,206         3,000             0             0         3,000         3,000

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 122-5653-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE        1,691          1,957         1,813         3,000         1,638         2,000         3,000         3,000

 122-5653-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               2,965          4,077         2,489         5,000         4,535         5,000         8,500         8,500

 122-5653-564 PRIVATE VEHICLE EXPENSE RE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               4,656          6,033         4,302         8,000         6,173         7,000        11,500        11,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:143

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

122-HOTEL TAX FUND

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 122-5653-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                485          1,725         1,550         1,750         1,645         1,750         1,750         1,750

 122-5653-572 COMMUNITY PROMOTION & RELA        722          5,654        28,079         3,000        24,805        26,000        14,250        14,250

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            1,207          7,378        29,629         4,750        26,450        27,750        16,000        16,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             33,857         44,826        49,632        38,764        49,575        54,964        53,764        53,764

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 122-5653-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL          0              0             0             0             0             0             0        10,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0        10,000

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 122-5653-743 FURNITURE & FIXTURES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0        10,000

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 122-5653-814 PRINTING & COPY MACHINE MA         10              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                10              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 122-5653-825 TOURISM GRANTS                 71,350         83,922        74,050        80,000        79,571        80,000        85,000        85,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            71,350         83,922        74,050        80,000        79,571        80,000        85,000        85,000

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 122-5653-863 COMPUTERS                           0              0            19             0             0             0         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0            19             0             0             0         1,200         1,200

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        71,360         83,922        74,069        80,000        79,571        80,000        86,200        86,200

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION             176,858        198,071       191,528       204,267       192,511       211,559       215,756       226,534

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                          176,858        198,071       191,528       204,267       192,511       211,559       215,756       226,534

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES            51,111         30,922        94,448        48,750        11,940        73,985        70,494        59,716



 

 4-16-2010 12:07 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:144

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

122-HOTEL TAX FUND

HOTEL TAX ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER FINANCING (USES)                 ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________  ____________  ____________  ____________

 122-5904-822 TRFR TO FESTIVAL MANAGEMEN     60,000         60,000        60,000        48,750             0        48,750        40,313        40,313

 122-5909-822 TRFR TO CAPITAL PROJECT FU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)               60,000         60,000        60,000        48,750             0        48,750        40,313        40,313

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)   (     60,000)  (     60,000) (     60,000) (     48,750)            0  (     48,750) (     40,313) (     40,313)

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)    (      8,889)  (     29,078)       34,448             0        11,940        25,235        30,181        19,403

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:145

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

123-FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

 CEMETERY DEPT CHRGS

 123-4491-010 CONTRIBUTIONS FOR FIREWORK     13,167         13,544        13,250        13,500        12,437        12,437        12,500        12,500

 123-4492-010 CONTRIBUTIONS F OR LIGHTWO     32,770         31,989        31,203        32,250        34,193        34,193        32,600        32,600

 123-4493-010 CONTRIBS FOR WATER SPORTS           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-4494-010 CONTRIBUTIONS FOR BAGELFES     64,204         73,096        63,178        60,000        88,533        88,533       115,850       115,850

 123-4495-010 CONTRIBUTION FOR FALL FEST          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-4496-010 CONTRIBUTIONS FOR SESQUICE         63              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-4499-010 OTHER UNDESIGNATD CONTRIBU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CEMETERY DEPT CHRGS                 110,204        118,630       107,631       105,750       135,164       135,163       160,950       160,950

    TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES              110,204        118,630       107,631       105,750       135,164       135,163       160,950       160,950

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 123-4800-010 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER MISC          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                              110,204        118,630       107,631       105,750       135,164       135,163       160,950       160,950



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:146

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

123-FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

FESTIVAL ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 123-5581-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                   122              3             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-5581-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             15              0             0           500             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      137              3             0           500             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                137              3             0           500             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 123-5581-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 123-5581-531 POSTAGE                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 123-5581-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE           45            124           107           500           183           200             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                  45            124           107           500           183           200             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 123-5581-579 MISC. OTHER PURCHASED SERV          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                 45            124           107           500           183           200             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS

 123-5581-831 PARADES                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FESTIVAL ADMINISTRATION                  182            126           107         1,000           183           200             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:147

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

123-FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

JULY 4TH FIREWORKS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 123-5582-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             68            633            63         1,000            38            38           100           100

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                       68            633            63         1,000            38            38           100           100

 ENERGY

 123-5582-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 FOOD

 123-5582-330 FOOD                              216             70            70           700             0             0           100           100

    TOTAL FOOD                                  216             70            70           700             0             0           100           100

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                284            703           133         1,700            38            38           200           200

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 RENTALS

 123-5582-440 RENTALS                         1,700              0         2,265         2,000         2,250         2,250         2,250         2,250

    TOTAL RENTALS                             1,700              0         2,265         2,000         2,250         2,250         2,250         2,250

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              1,700              0         2,265         2,000         2,250         2,250         2,250         2,250

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 123-5582-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      3,655          4,415         5,168         3,500         4,340         4,340         4,335         4,335

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               3,655          4,415         5,168         3,500         4,340         4,340         4,335         4,335

 COMMUNICATION

 123-5582-531 POSTAGE                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 ADVERTISING

 123-5582-540 ADVERTISING                     2,295          1,555         1,825         3,500         1,825         1,825         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                         2,295          1,555         1,825         3,500         1,825         1,825         2,000         2,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 123-5582-574 SPECIAL EVENT SERVICES            600              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-5582-579 MISC. OTHER PURCHASED SERV        578            450           269         1,000           168           168           320           320

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            1,178            450           269         1,000           168           168           320           320

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              7,128          6,420         7,262         8,000         6,333         6,333         6,655         6,655



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:148

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

123-FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

JULY 4TH FIREWORKS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER OBJECTS

 SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS

 123-5582-831 PARADES                         1,397            610           610         3,000           910           910             0             0

 123-5582-834 ENTERTAINMENT                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-5582-835 FIREWORKS                      10,000         11,700        10,000        10,500        15,000        15,000        15,000        15,000

    TOTAL SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS              11,397         12,310        10,610        13,500        15,910        15,910        15,000        15,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        11,397         12,310        10,610        13,500        15,910        15,910        15,000        15,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL JULY 4TH FIREWORKS                    20,510         19,433        20,269        25,200        24,531        24,531        24,105        24,105



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:149

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

123-FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

BAGELFEST

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 123-5584-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                    31             33            11           100           460           227           200           200

 123-5584-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-5584-317 CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP      2,949          1,736            46         3,500           932           932         1,500         1,500

 123-5584-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            122            170         1,572         1,000           320           320           300           300

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    3,102          1,938         1,628         4,600         1,712         1,479         2,000         2,000

 ENERGY

 123-5584-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC              0              0           124             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0           124             0             0             0             0             0

 FOOD

 123-5584-330 FOOD                              209            409            90           200           166           166           150           150

    TOTAL FOOD                                  209            409            90           200           166           166           150           150

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              3,312          2,347         1,841         4,800         1,879         1,645         2,150         2,150

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 RENTALS

 123-5584-440 RENTALS                        17,467         13,150        15,800        19,000        16,464        16,464        16,500        16,500

    TOTAL RENTALS                            17,467         13,150        15,800        19,000        16,464        16,464        16,500        16,500

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             17,467         13,150        15,800        19,000        16,464        16,464        16,500        16,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 INSURANCE

 123-5584-525 SPECIAL EVENT INSURANCE         5,760          4,880         3,200         6,500         1,950         1,950         4,000         4,000

    TOTAL INSURANCE                           5,760          4,880         3,200         6,500         1,950         1,950         4,000         4,000

 COMMUNICATION

 123-5584-531 POSTAGE                           368            320           352         1,000           253           253           500           500

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         368            320           352         1,000           253           253           500           500

 ADVERTISING

 123-5584-540 ADVERTISING                    10,492         12,855        10,505        10,000         8,547         8,547        10,000        10,000

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                        10,492         12,855        10,505        10,000         8,547         8,547        10,000        10,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:150

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

123-FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

BAGELFEST

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 123-5584-550 PRINTING & BINDING                  0          1,355         2,538         2,000         1,507         1,507         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                     0          1,355         2,538         2,000         1,507         1,507         1,500         1,500

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 123-5584-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE          135            354         1,837           300           663           663           300           300

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                 135            354         1,837           300           663           663           300           300

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 123-5584-574 SPECIAL EVENT SERVICES          1,010            180           230         1,000             0             0             0             0

 123-5584-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI     13,319          8,500        15,474        15,000         9,833         9,833        10,000        10,000

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES           14,329          8,680        15,704        16,000         9,833         9,833        10,000        10,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             31,084         28,443        34,135        35,800        22,752        22,753        26,300        26,300

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 123-5584-813 OTHER REFUND                      655              0           750           500             0             0           750           750

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               655              0           750           500             0             0           750           750

 SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS

 123-5584-831 PARADES                         1,250            750           400         1,200           444           444           500           500

 123-5584-832 BEER TENT                      11,580         15,462        13,608        12,000        16,015        15,990        13,000        13,000

 123-5584-833 QUEEN PAGEANT                   1,080            257           445         1,000           640           640           500           500

 123-5584-834 ENTERTAINMENT                  40,737         41,295        29,359        30,000        32,412        12,412        43,000        43,000

    TOTAL SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS              54,646         57,763        43,812        44,200        49,511        29,486        57,000        57,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        55,301         57,763        44,562        44,700        49,511        29,486        57,750        57,750

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BAGELFEST                            107,164        101,703        96,339       104,300        90,605        70,348       102,700       102,700



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:151

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

123-FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

LIGHTWORKS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 123-5586-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 707          1,018           215         3,375           902           902           500           500

 123-5586-317 CONCESSION & SOUVENIR SUPP         13              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-5586-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,325          1,719         1,145         3,400         2,213         2,055         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    2,046          2,736         1,360         6,775         3,115         2,957         1,500         1,500

 ENERGY

 123-5586-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          1,158            608           708         2,750         1,524         1,524         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL ENERGY                              1,158            608           708         2,750         1,524         1,524         1,500         1,500

 FOOD

 123-5586-330 FOOD                            2,098          1,803         2,041         2,000         2,339         2,339         2,400         2,400

    TOTAL FOOD                                2,098          1,803         2,041         2,000         2,339         2,339         2,400         2,400

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              5,301          5,147         4,108        11,525         6,979         6,820         5,400         5,400

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 123-5586-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES           14,230          9,657         4,255         3,375         5,105         5,105         5,000         5,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            14,230          9,657         4,255         3,375         5,105         5,105         5,000         5,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             14,230          9,657         4,255         3,375         5,105         5,105         5,000         5,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 123-5586-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES        10,197          4,956            25         1,000             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              10,197          4,956            25         1,000             0             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 123-5586-531 POSTAGE                             0              0            26             0            88            88           150           150

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0            26             0            88            88           150           150

 ADVERTISING

 123-5586-540 ADVERTISING                     2,674          6,245         5,344         3,000         4,597         4,597         4,655         4,655

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                         2,674          6,245         5,344         3,000         4,597         4,597         4,655         4,655

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 123-5586-550 PRINTING & BINDING              3,227          2,880         3,335         3,000         2,380         2,380         2,400         2,400

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                 3,227          2,880         3,335         3,000         2,380         2,380         2,400         2,400



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:152

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

123-FESTIVAL MGMT FUND

LIGHTWORKS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 123-5586-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                  0              0             0             0             0           600             0             0

 123-5586-574 SPECIAL EVENT SERVICES              0              0             0             0           600             0           600           600

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0           600           600           600           600

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             16,097         14,081         8,730         7,000         7,665         7,665         7,805         7,805

 OTHER OBJECTS

 SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS

 123-5586-831 PARADES                           842            400           442         2,000         1,578         1,578         1,640         1,640

    TOTAL SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS                 842            400           442         2,000         1,578         1,578         1,640         1,640

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           842            400           442         2,000         1,578         1,578         1,640         1,640

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL LIGHTWORKS                            36,470         29,285        17,536        23,900        21,326        21,168        19,845        19,845

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                          164,326        150,548       134,251       154,400       136,645       116,247       146,650       146,650

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES      (     54,122)  (     31,918) (     26,620) (     48,650) (      1,481)       18,916        14,300        14,300

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 123-4901-016 TRFR FRM GEN. FUND - SESQU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-4903-011 TRFR FRM H&M TAX-FIREWORKS     15,000         15,000        15,000        15,000             0        15,000        15,000        15,000

 123-4903-012 TRFR FRM H&M TAX-LIGHTWORK      5,000          5,000         5,000         3,750             0         3,750         2,813         2,813

 123-4903-013 TRFR FRM H&M TAX-WATER SPO          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-4903-014 TRFR FRM H&M TAX-BAGELFEST     40,000         40,000        40,000        30,000             0        30,000        22,500        22,500

 123-4903-015 TRFR FRM H&M FALL FESTIVAL          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 123-4903-016 TRFR FRM H&M UNDESIGNATD G          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES              60,000         60,000        60,000        48,750             0        48,750        40,313        40,313

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)         60,000         60,000        60,000        48,750             0        48,750        40,313        40,313

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)           5,878         28,082        33,380           100  (      1,481)       67,666        54,613        54,613

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:153

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

125-INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 UNLIMITED RATE PROP TAX

 125-4123-010 PROPERTY TAXES                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL UNLIMITED RATE PROP TAX                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 125-4610-010 INTEREST EARNINGS                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 125-4807-010 MISC. FINANCE DEPT REVENUE     19,870          2,677        12,756        25,000        47,594             0        37,500        37,500

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV             19,870          2,677        12,756        25,000        47,594             0        37,500        37,500

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV           19,870          2,677        12,756        25,000        47,594             0        37,500        37,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                               19,870          2,677        12,756        25,000        47,594             0        37,500        37,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:154

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

125-INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 125-5150-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.             33,720         26,110        16,387        14,297         2,091             0        20,000        20,000

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION           33,720         26,110        16,387        14,297         2,091             0        20,000        20,000

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 125-5150-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION         555,264        587,681       513,030       509,037       606,986             0       537,570       537,570

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION             555,264        587,681       513,030       509,037       606,986             0       537,570       537,570

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  588,984        613,791       529,417       523,334       609,077             0       557,570       557,570

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 125-5150-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      1,914          6,942        17,547         5,000         8,015             0        36,250        36,250

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               1,914          6,942        17,547         5,000         8,015             0        36,250        36,250

 INSURANCE

 125-5150-523 PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURA    283,263        263,421       230,914       240,713       240,565             0       217,193       217,193

 125-5150-526 BOILER & MACHINERY INSURAN          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 125-5150-527 SELF INSURED RETENTION/DED     42,999         16,433        41,940        20,000        11,268             0        20,000        20,000

 125-5150-528 UNINSURED JUDGEMENTS              235              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INSURANCE                         326,497        279,853       272,854       260,713       251,833             0       237,193       237,193

 COMMUNICATION

 125-5150-531 POSTAGE                            58             23             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                          58             23             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            328,470        286,818       290,402       265,713       259,848             0       273,443       273,443

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION             917,453        900,609       819,819       789,047       868,925             0       831,013       831,013

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                          917,453        900,609       819,819       789,047       868,925             0       831,013       831,013

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES      (    897,584)  (    897,932) (    807,063) (    764,047) (    821,331)            0  (    793,513) (    793,513)

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 125-4901-010 INTERFUND XFRS FROM GEN FU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 125-4901-021 INTERFUND CHG - GENERAL FU    441,295        626,541       565,237       566,604       370,476             0       600,339       600,339

 125-4903-010 INTERFUND XFR-HOTEL MOTEL           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 125-4903-021 INTERFUND CHG - HOTEL TAX         762            619           529           390           358             0           380           380

 125-4911-010 INTERFUND XFRS FROM WATER           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 125-4911-021 INTERFUND CHG - WATER FUND    118,076        113,838       108,625        83,295        73,997             0        78,435        78,435



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:155

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

125-INSURANCE & TORT JDGMNT

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 125-4912-010 INTERFUND XFRS FROM SEWER           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 125-4912-021 INTERFUND CHG - SEWER FUND    137,663        135,655       112,314        96,511        85,630             0       103,829       103,829

 125-4913-010 INTERFUND XFRS - CEMETERY           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 125-4913-021 INTERFUND CHG - CEMETERY F      6,367          8,067         7,306         6,925         6,983             0             0             0

 125-4917-010 INTERFUND XFRS - LIBRARY F          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 125-4917-021 INTERFUND CHG - LIBRARY FU      8,118         13,213        13,051         9,629        10,768             0        10,543        10,543

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES             712,281        897,932       807,063       763,354       548,212             0       793,526       793,526

 OTHER FINANCING (USES)                 ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________  ____________  ____________  ____________

 125-5944-822 INTRFD TRNFRS - CAPITAL PR          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)        712,281        897,932       807,063       763,354       548,212             0       793,526       793,526

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)    (    185,303)             0             0  (        693) (    273,119)            0            13            13

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:156

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

126-HOME REHAB GRANT FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

 FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS

 126-4311-023 FED'L OPER. CATEGORICAL GR    209,144        197,013       210,000       210,000       172,972             0       168,500       168,500

 126-4313-023 FEDERAL CAPITAL GRANTS              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS                 209,144        197,013       210,000       210,000       172,972             0       168,500       168,500

 STATE GOVT GRANTS

 126-4323-023 STATE CAPITAL GRANTS                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL STATE GOVT GRANTS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV             209,144        197,013       210,000       210,000       172,972             0       168,500       168,500

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 126-4800-023 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER MISC          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                              209,144        197,013       210,000       210,000       172,972             0       168,500       168,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:157

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

126-HOME REHAB GRANT FUND

CDAP HOME REHABILITATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 126-5601-459 OTHER CONSTRUCTION SVCS       178,573        166,060       174,485       180,000       136,936             0       143,225       143,225

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES             178,573        166,060       174,485       180,000       136,936             0       143,225       143,225

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV            178,573        166,060       174,485       180,000       136,936             0       143,225       143,225

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 126-5601-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE     30,571         30,953        35,520        30,000        20,025             0        25,275        25,275

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              30,571         30,953        35,520        30,000        20,025             0        25,275        25,275

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             30,571         30,953        35,520        30,000        20,025             0        25,275        25,275

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CDAP HOME REHABILITATION             209,144        197,013       210,005       210,000       156,961             0       168,500       168,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                          209,144        197,013       210,005       210,000       156,961             0       168,500       168,500

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0              0  (          5)            0        16,011             0             0             0

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:158

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

127-REVOLVING LOAN FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 127-4610-022 INTEREST EARNINGS              24,668         24,545        24,304           500           702             0           750           750

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                    24,668         24,545        24,304           500           702             0           750           750

 REVOLVING LOAN FUND

 127-4630-022 REVOLVING LOAN FUND REPAYM          0              0             0       135,000       144,944             0       144,000       144,000

  TOTAL REVOLVING LOAN FUND                       0              0             0       135,000       144,944             0       144,000       144,000

 NET INCREASE(DECREASE)

 127-4640-022 NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN          1              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL NET INCREASE(DECREASE)                    1              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 RENTS & ROYALTIES

 127-4650-022 GAIN(LOSS) ON SALE OF INVE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL RENTS & ROYALTIES                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                24,669         24,545        24,304       135,500       145,646             0       144,750       144,750

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                               24,669         24,545        24,304       135,500       145,646             0       144,750       144,750



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:159

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

127-REVOLVING LOAN FUND

REVOLVING LOANS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 127-5652-513 AUDITING SERVICES               1,000          1,000         1,100         1,100         1,100             0         1,100         1,100

 127-5652-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      2,432            676         1,627         4,400           810             0         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               3,432          1,676         2,727         5,500         1,910             0         3,100         3,100

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              3,432          1,676         2,727         5,500         1,910             0         3,100         3,100

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 127-5652-826 SPECIAL ITEMS                       0              0             0       130,000        56,975             0       150,000       150,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0       130,000        56,975             0       150,000       150,000

 SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS

 127-5652-830 BAD DEBT EXPENSE               13,728              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS              13,728              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        13,728              0             0       130,000        56,975             0       150,000       150,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL REVOLVING LOANS                       17,160          1,676         2,727       135,500        58,885             0       153,100       153,100

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                           17,160          1,676         2,727       135,500        58,885             0       153,100       153,100

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES             7,509         22,869        21,577             0        86,761             0  (      8,350) (      8,350)

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 127-4901-022 INTERFUND XFRS FROM GEN. F          0              0             0             0        14,178             0        15,467        15,467

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0             0             0        14,178             0        15,467        15,467

 OTHER FINANCING (USES)                 ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________  ____________  ____________  ____________

 127-5935-822 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0              0             0             0        14,178             0        15,467        15,467

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)           7,509         22,869        21,577             0       100,938             0         7,117         7,117

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:160

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

128-MIDTOWN TIF FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS

 128-4192-023 PROPERTY TAX RECEIPTS         150,208        127,077       147,144       150,000       186,401             0       200,000       200,000

  TOTAL TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS                 150,208        127,077       147,144       150,000       186,401             0       200,000       200,000

    TOTAL TAXES                             150,208        127,077       147,144       150,000       186,401             0       200,000       200,000

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 128-4610-023 INTEREST EARNINGS               3,982          2,714         2,550         2,500         1,588             0         1,750         1,750

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                     3,982          2,714         2,550         2,500         1,588             0         1,750         1,750

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                 3,982          2,714         2,550         2,500         1,588             0         1,750         1,750

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 128-4805-023 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER MISC          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                              154,191        129,792       149,694       152,500       187,989             0       201,750       201,750



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:161

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

128-MIDTOWN TIF FUND

PURCHASED SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 128-5604-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES         10,612              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   10,612              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             10,612              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 128-5604-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          0            140             0        20,000             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-513 AUDITING SERVICES               1,000          1,000         1,100         1,100         1,100             0         1,100         1,100

 128-5604-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      1,200            375             0         2,000             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               2,200          1,515         1,100        23,100         1,100             0         1,100         1,100

 COMMUNICATION

 128-5604-531 POSTAGE                           117             28             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         117             28             0             0             0             0             0             0

 ADVERTISING

 128-5604-540 ADVERTISING                         0             95             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                             0             95             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 128-5604-550 PRINTING AND BINDING               20              0           138           500             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                    20              0           138           500             0             0             0             0

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 128-5604-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE          295            768         1,367           750             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                 295            768         1,367           750             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 128-5604-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                375            375           375           375           375             0             0             0

 128-5604-577 DEMOLITION SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              375            375           375           375           375             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              3,006          2,780         2,980        24,725         1,475             0         1,100         1,100

 OTHER OBJECTS



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:162

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

128-MIDTOWN TIF FUND

PURCHASED SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 128-5604-817 TIF ALTERNATE SOURCE GO BO          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-818 OTHER TIF DEBT INSTRUMENTS          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 128-5604-821 SHARED INCREMENT (20%)         31,642         25,414        29,497        30,000             0             0        40,000        40,000

 128-5604-825 TIF GRANTS                     14,298         49,786        69,054        97,687        84,938             0       100,000       100,000

 128-5604-826 TIF LOANS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-827 JOB TRAINING                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            45,939         75,199        98,551       127,687        84,938             0       140,000       140,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        45,939         75,199        98,551       127,687        84,938             0       140,000       140,000

 CAPITAL PROJECTS

 CAPITAL PROJECTS

 128-5604-900 PARKS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-901 STREETS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-902 SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-903 STREET LIGHTING                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-904 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-905 STORM DRAINAGE                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-906 SANITARY SEWER                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-907 WATER DISTRIBUTION                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-5604-908 PARKING LOTS                        0              0         7,704             0             0             0             0       200,000

 128-5604-909 PUBLIC BUILDINGS                    0              0        26,732             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS                        0              0        34,436             0             0             0             0       200,000

  TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS                          0              0        34,436             0             0             0             0       200,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES                    59,558         77,979       135,966       152,412        86,413             0       141,100       341,100

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                           59,558         77,979       135,966       152,412        86,413             0       141,100       341,100

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES            94,633         51,812        13,728            88       101,576             0        60,650  (    139,350)

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 128-4909-023 TRANS FROM CAPITAL IMPROV           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-4931-023 LAND / BUILDING SALE PROCE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 128-4949-023 LONG TERM DEBT PROCEEDS             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)          94,633         51,812        13,728            88       101,576             0        60,650  (    139,350)

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:163

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS

 130-4191-010 I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4192-010 MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

 FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS

 130-4313-023 FEDERAL CAPITAL GRANTS              0              0             0     2,537,600     1,995,665             0       600,000       600,000

 130-4319-022 FED CAPITAL GRANT - ECON D          0         43,500             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS                       0         43,500             0     2,537,600     1,995,665             0       600,000       600,000

 STATE GOVT GRANTS

 130-4323-023 STATE CAPITAL GRANTS          469,400              0             0       450,000             0             0     1,400,000     1,400,000

  TOTAL STATE GOVT GRANTS                   469,400              0             0       450,000             0             0     1,400,000     1,400,000

 SCHOOL DISTRICT GRANTS

 130-4360-023 SCHOOL DISTRICT GRANTS              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SCHOOL DISTRICT GRANTS                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV             469,400         43,500             0     2,987,600     1,995,665             0     2,000,000     2,000,000

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

 GENERAL GOVT CHARGES

 130-4416-021 DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL GENERAL GOVT CHARGES                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PUBLIC WORKS DEPT CHRGS

 130-4441-021 PLAN REVIEW FEES                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS DEPT CHRGS                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 130-4610-010 INTEREST EARNINGS              28,851         23,732         5,815         5,000        11,118             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                    28,851         23,732         5,815         5,000        11,118             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:164

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 DIVIDEND EARNINGS

 130-4620-010 DIVIDEND EARNINGS                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL DIVIDEND EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 RENTS & ROYALTIES

 130-4650-010 FARM INCOME                         0              0         9,307             0         7,045             0             0             0

  TOTAL RENTS & ROYALTIES                         0              0         9,307             0         7,045             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                28,851         23,732        15,122         5,000        18,164             0             0             0

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 130-4805-023 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER MISC    126,474              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4808-023 GRT. AMER. STATION GRANT            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4809-023 TOURISM GRANT-DEPOT RESTOR          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV            126,474              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 130-4810-023 HIST. SOCIETY GRANT-DEPOT           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4811-023 HIST. SOC. GRANT-DEPOT RES     84,001         52,819             0       170,000        42,628             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV             84,001         52,819             0       170,000        42,628             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV          210,475         52,819             0       170,000        42,628             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                              708,727        120,051        15,122     3,162,600     2,056,457             0     2,000,000     2,000,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:165

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 130-5150-513 AUDITING SERVICES               1,000          1,000         1,100         1,100         1,100             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               1,000          1,000         1,100         1,100         1,100             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              1,000          1,000         1,100         1,100         1,100             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 130-5150-811 BANK SERVICE CHARGES                0              0             0             0           225             0             0             0

 130-5150-816 FARM EXPENSES                       0              0             0             0         4,963             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0         5,188             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0         5,188             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION               1,000          1,000         1,100         1,100         6,288             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:166

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 130-5170-516 TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 130-5170-841 W.A.N. SFTWRE, LIC., SVC A          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-842 G/L SOFTWARE, LIC., SVC AG          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-843 UTILITY SFTWR, LIC, SVC AG          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-844 POLICE SFTWR, LIC, SVC AGR          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-845 FIRE SFTWARE, LIC & SVC AG          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-846 STREET SFTWRE, LIC & SVC A          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 130-5170-851 W.A.N. SERVERS/INFRASTRUCT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-852 INTERNET FILTERS/ANTI-VIRU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-853 L.A.N. SERVERS/INFRASTRUCT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-854 WIDE AREA NETWORK WIRING            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 130-5170-861 PC WORK STATION UPGRADES            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-862 PC WORK STATION UPGRADES-F          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-863 NEW DESKTOP PC WORK STATIO          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-864 LAPTOP, NOTEBOOK ,DOCK STA          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5170-865 PRINTERS                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYSTEMS                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:167

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

PATROL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 130-5213-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PATROL                                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:168

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 130-5223-742 VEHICLES                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:169

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

1700 WABASH RENOVATIONS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 130-5224-720 1700 WABASH RENOVATIONS             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL 1700 WABASH RENOVATIONS                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:170

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

FIRE ADMINISTRATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 130-5241-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 130-5241-740 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5241-741 MACHINERY                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5241-742 VEHICLES                      748,078              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT             748,078              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                            748,078              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FIRE ADMINISTRATION                  748,078              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:171

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

STREETS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 130-5321-720 PUBLIC WORKS BUILDINGS              0              0             0     3,000,000        25,044             0     3,000,000     3,000,000

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0     3,000,000        25,044             0     3,000,000     3,000,000

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 130-5321-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL        600        241,185        57,236       500,000       250,715             0     2,250,000     2,250,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS               600        241,185        57,236       500,000       250,715             0     2,250,000     2,250,000

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                600        241,185        57,236     3,500,000       275,759             0     5,250,000     5,250,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STREETS                                  600        241,185        57,236     3,500,000       275,759             0     5,250,000     5,250,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:172

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

STORM DRAINAGE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 130-5328-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      1,516          6,234     1,150,400     2,250,000        76,200             0     1,750,000     1,750,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS             1,516          6,234     1,150,400     2,250,000        76,200             0     1,750,000     1,750,000

  TOTAL PROPERTY                              1,516          6,234     1,150,400     2,250,000        76,200             0     1,750,000     1,750,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STORM DRAINAGE                         1,516          6,234     1,150,400     2,250,000        76,200             0     1,750,000     1,750,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:173

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SANITATION - VEHICLE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 130-5331-742 VEHICLES                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SANITATION - VEHICLE                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:174

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SANITATION - CONTAINERS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 130-5333-743 FIXTURES                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SANITATION - CONTAINERS                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:175

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 130-5370-742 VEHICLES                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:176

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

CITY HALL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 130-5382-720 BUILDINGS                      59,627              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5382-721 CAPITAL IMPROV TO CITY HAL          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                          59,627              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                             59,627              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CITY HALL                             59,627              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:177

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

BURGESS AUDITORIUM

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 130-5383-720 BURGESS AUDITORIUM                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BURGESS AUDITORIUM                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:178

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

RAILROAD

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 130-5384-720 IC DEPOT RESTORATION          158,086         52,819             0     2,730,000     2,113,003             0       600,000       600,000

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                         158,086         52,819             0     2,730,000     2,113,003             0       600,000       600,000

  TOTAL PROPERTY                            158,086         52,819             0     2,730,000     2,113,003             0       600,000       600,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RAILROAD                             158,086         52,819             0     2,730,000     2,113,003             0       600,000       600,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:179

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

CULTURE AND RECREATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 130-5385-720 CULTURE AND RECREATION        179,977         31,153         4,075       800,000       721,597             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                         179,977         31,153         4,075       800,000       721,597             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                            179,977         31,153         4,075       800,000       721,597             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION               179,977         31,153         4,075       800,000       721,597             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:180

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 130-5603-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES     71,220            729            87             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              71,220            729            87             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             71,220            729            87             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT                71,220            729            87             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:181

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 130-5604-511 PLANING & DESIGN SERVICES           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL MIDTOWN TIF DISTRICT                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:182

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

CONDEMNATIONS/DEMOLITIONS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 130-5606-577 DEMOLITION SERVICES                 0              0         1,541             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0         1,541             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0         1,541             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL CONDEMNATIONS/DEMOLITIONS                  0              0         1,541             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:183

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SOUTH 45 TIF DISTRICT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 130-5607-511 SOUTH 45 TIF DISCTIRCT         44,403            350             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              44,403            350             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 130-5607-577 CLUB ILLINI/TONY EATON REN     50,000              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES           50,000              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             94,403            350             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SOUTH 45 TIF DISTRICT                 94,403            350             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:184

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

YMCA LAND ACQUISITION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 130-5608-577 YMCA LAND ACQUISITION          93,804         84,295       167,508       500,000         1,028             0       500,000       500,000

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES           93,804         84,295       167,508       500,000         1,028             0       500,000       500,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             93,804         84,295       167,508       500,000         1,028             0       500,000       500,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL YMCA LAND ACQUISITION                 93,804         84,295       167,508       500,000         1,028             0       500,000       500,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:185

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

JUSTRITE CDAP EXPENSES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 130-5609-577 JUSTRITE CDAP EXPENSES        465,313         43,500             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES          465,313         43,500             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            465,313         43,500             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL JUSTRITE CDAP EXPENSES               465,313         43,500             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:186

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

130-CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

RETAIL DEVELOPMENT MRTNG

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 130-5651-519 RETAIL DEVELOPMENT MARKETI     12,192              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              12,192              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 130-5651-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             12,192              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RETAIL DEVELOPMENT MRTNG              12,192              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                        1,885,814        461,266     1,381,946     9,781,100     3,193,876             0     8,100,000     8,100,000

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES      (  1,177,088)  (    341,214) (  1,366,824) (  6,618,500) (  1,137,419)            0  (  6,100,000) (  6,100,000)

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 130-4901-010 INTERFUND XFRS FROM GEN. F    616,857        693,089       621,985       720,000       571,270             0       700,000       700,000

 130-4906-010 INTRFD TRNFRS IN - INS & T          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4911-010 INTERFUND XFRS FROM WATER           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4912-010 INTERFUND XFRS FROM SEWER           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4931-010 SALE OF GENERAL CAPITAL AS          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4941-023 PROCEEDS - GEN. OBLIGATION          0              0     6,000,000             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4941-024 PROCEEDS - GO BOND 2009A P          0              0        50,118             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4944-023 PROCEEDS - OTHER BONDS ISS          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4947-023 PROCEEDS - CAPITAL LEASES     661,203              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4948-023 PROCEEDS - REVOLVING LOAN           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-4949-023 OTHER LONG TERM DEBT ISSUE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES           1,278,060        693,089     6,672,103       720,000       571,270             0       700,000       700,000

 OTHER FINANCING (USES)                 ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________  ____________  ____________  ____________

 130-5937-822 TRANSFER TO MIDTOWN TIF FU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 130-5938-822 TRANSFERS TO GENERAL FUND           0              0             0        70,000             0             0             0             0

 130-5948-822 TRANSFERS TO CEMETERY FUND          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)                    0              0             0        70,000             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)      1,278,060        693,089     6,672,103       650,000       571,270             0       700,000       700,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)         100,972        351,874     5,305,278  (  5,968,500) (    566,149)            0  (  5,400,000) (  5,400,000)

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:187

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS

 150-4192-023 PROPERTY TAX RECEIPTS               0            887           959         1,000           974             0         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS                       0            887           959         1,000           974             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0            887           959         1,000           974             0         1,000         1,000

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 150-4610-023 INTEREST EARNINGS                   0              3             3             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              3             3             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              3             3             0             0             0             0             0

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 150-4805-023 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER MISC          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                                    0            890           962         1,000           975             0         1,000         1,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:188

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 150-5327-730 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:189

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

STORM DRAINAGE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 150-5328-730 STORM DRAINAGE                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STORM DRAINAGE                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:190

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

SANITARY SEWER

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 150-5341-730 SANITARY SEWER                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SANITARY SEWER                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:191

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

WATER DISTRIBUTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 150-5354-730 WATER DISTRIBUTION                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WATER DISTRIBUTION                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:192

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

PARKING LOTS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 150-5385-730 PARKING LOTS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PARKING LOTS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:193

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

PUBLIC BUILDINGS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 150-5389-720 PUBLIC BUILDINGS                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PUBLIC BUILDINGS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:194

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

PARKS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 150-5511-730 PARKS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PARKS                                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:195

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

PURCHASED SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 150-5604-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 150-5604-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 150-5604-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 150-5604-513 AUDITING SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 150-5604-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE          0              0           909             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0           909             0             0             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 150-5604-531 POSTAGE                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 ADVERTISING

 150-5604-540 ADVERTISING                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 150-5604-550 PRINTING AND BINDING                0              0            83             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                     0              0            83             0             0             0             0             0

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 150-5604-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 150-5604-571 DUE & MEMBERSHIP                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 150-5604-577 DEMOLITION SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0           991             0             0             0             0             0

 CAPITAL PROJECTS



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:196

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

PURCHASED SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 CAPITAL PROJECTS

 150-5604-901 STREETS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 150-5604-902 SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 150-5604-903 STREET LIGHTING                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS                          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES                         0              0           991             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:197

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

TIF GRANTS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 150-5654-825 TIF GRANTS                          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL TIF GRANTS                                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:198

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

TIF LOANS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 150-5655-826 TIF LOANS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL TIF LOANS                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:199

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

TIF ALT REV GO BONDS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 150-5719-817 TIF ALTERNATE SOURCE GO BO          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL TIF ALT REV GO BONDS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:200

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

OTHER DEBT SERVICES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 150-5756-817 OTHER TIF DEBT INSTRUMENTS          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL OTHER DEBT SERVICES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:201

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

150-I-57 EAST TIF DISTRICT

INTERGOVERNMENTAL EXP

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 150-5800-817 DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 150-5800-821 SHARED INCREMENT (20%)              0            178           192           200             0             0           200           200

 150-5800-822 PROPERTY TAX REIMBURSEMENT          0             97           577           200           581             0           600           600

 150-5800-826 JOB TRAINING                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0            275           769           400           581             0           800           800

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0            275           769           400           581             0           800           800

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL EXP                      0            275           769           400           581             0           800           800

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                0            275         1,760           400           581             0           800           800

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0            614  (        798)          600           394             0           200           200

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 150-4909-023 TRANS FROM CAPITAL IMPROV           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 150-4949-023 LONG TERM DEBT PROCEEDS             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)               0            614  (        798)          600           394             0           200           200

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:202

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

151-SOUTH RT 45 TIF DISTRICT

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS

 151-4192-023 PROPERTY TAX RECEIPTS               0              0             0             0         1,185             0         1,200         1,200

  TOTAL TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS                       0              0             0             0         1,185             0         1,200         1,200

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0              0             0             0         1,185             0         1,200         1,200

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 151-4610-023 INVESTMENT EARNINGS                 0              0             0             0             1             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             1             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0             0             0             1             0             0             0

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 151-4805-023 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER REVE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                                    0              0             0             0         1,186             0         1,200         1,200



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:203

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

151-SOUTH RT 45 TIF DISTRICT

SOUTH RT 45 TIF DISTRICT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 151-5604-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 151-5604-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-513 AUDITING SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 151-5604-531 POSTAGE                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 ADVERTISING

 151-5604-540 ADVERTISING                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 151-5604-550 PRINTING AND BINDING                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 151-5604-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 151-5604-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIP                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-577 DEMOLITION EXPENSES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:204

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

151-SOUTH RT 45 TIF DISTRICT

SOUTH RT 45 TIF DISTRICT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 151-5604-817 TIF ALTERNATE SOURCE GO BO          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-818 OTHER TIF DEBT INSTRUMENTS          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-819 DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 151-5604-821 SHARED INCREMENT (20%)              0              0             0             0             0             0           240           240

 151-5604-822 PROPERTY TAX REIMBURSEMENT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-825 TIF GRANTS                          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-826 TIF LOANS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-827 JOB TRAINING                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0           240           240

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0           240           240

 CAPITAL PROJECTS

 CAPITAL PROJECTS

 151-5604-900 PARKS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-901 STREETS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-902 SIDEWALKS & CROSSWALKS              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-903 STREET LIGHTING                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-904 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-905 STORM DRAINAGE                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-906 SANITARY SEWER                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-907 WATER DISTRIBUTION                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-908 PARKING LOTS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 151-5604-909 PUBLIC BUILDINGS                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS                          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SOUTH RT 45 TIF DISTRICT                   0              0             0             0             0             0           240           240

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                0              0             0             0             0             0           240           240

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0              0             0             0         1,186             0           960           960

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 151-4949-023 LONG TERM DEBT PROCEEDS             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)               0              0             0             0         1,186             0           960           960

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:205

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

152-SOUTH RT 45 BUSINESS DIST

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS

 152-4193-023 SALES TAX RECEIPTS                  0          8,492        35,434        35,000        29,220             0        35,000        35,000

 152-4194-023 HOTEL/MOTEL TAX RECEIPTS            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS                       0          8,492        35,434        35,000        29,220             0        35,000        35,000

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0          8,492        35,434        35,000        29,220             0        35,000        35,000

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 152-4610-023 INVESTMENT INCOME                   0              0             0             0           115             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0           115             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0             0             0           115             0             0             0

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 152-4805-023 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER INCO          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                                    0          8,492        35,434        35,000        29,335             0        35,000        35,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:206

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

152-SOUTH RT 45 BUSINESS DIST

SOUTH RT 45 BUSINESS DIS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 152-5604-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 152-5604-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 152-5604-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 152-5604-513 AUDITING SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 152-5604-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 152-5604-531 POSTAGE                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 ADVERTISING

 152-5604-540 ADVERTISING                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 152-5604-550 PRINTING & BINDING                  0              0            83             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                     0              0            83             0             0             0             0             0

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 152-5604-561 BUSINESS MEETING EXPENSE            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 152-5604-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 152-5604-577 DEMOLITION EXPENSES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0            83             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:207

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

152-SOUTH RT 45 BUSINESS DIST

SOUTH RT 45 BUSINESS DIS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 152-5604-817 BD ALTERNATE SOURCE GO BON          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 152-5604-818 OTHER BD DEBT INSTRUMENTS           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 152-5604-819 DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 152-5604-825 BD GRANTS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 152-5604-826 BD LOANS                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 CAPITAL PROJECTS

 CAPITAL PROJECTS

 152-5604-900 PARKS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 152-5604-901 STREETS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS                          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SOUTH RT 45 BUSINESS DIS                   0              0            83             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                0              0            83             0             0             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0          8,492        35,351        35,000        29,335             0        35,000        35,000

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:208

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

153-BROADWAY EAST TIF DIST

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS

 153-4192-023 PROPERTY TAX RECEIPTS               0              0             1             0         4,485             0         5,000         5,000

  TOTAL TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS                       0              0             1             0         4,485             0         5,000         5,000

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0              0             1             0         4,485             0         5,000         5,000

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 153-4610-023 INVESTMENT INCOME                   0              0             0             0             2             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             2             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0             0             0             2             0             0             0

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 153-4805-023 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER INCO          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                                    0              0             1             0         4,487             0         5,000         5,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:209

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

153-BROADWAY EAST TIF DIST

BROADWAY EAST TIF DIST

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 153-5604-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          0              0           508             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0           508             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0           508             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BROADWAY EAST TIF DIST                     0              0           508             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                0              0           508             0             0             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0              0  (        507)            0         4,487             0         5,000         5,000

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:210

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

154-BROADWAY EAST BUS DIST

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS

 154-4193-023 SALES TAX RECEIPTS                  0              0       274,873       360,000       271,698             0       340,000       340,000

 154-4194-023 HOTEL/MOTEL TAX RECEIPTS            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS                       0              0       274,873       360,000       271,698             0       340,000       340,000

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0              0       274,873       360,000       271,698             0       340,000       340,000

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 154-4610-023 INVESTMENT INCOME                   0              0            49         1,000        11,907             0         2,500         2,500

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0            49         1,000        11,907             0         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0            49         1,000        11,907             0         2,500         2,500

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 154-4805-023 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER INCO          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                                    0              0       274,922       361,000       283,605             0       342,500       342,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:211

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

154-BROADWAY EAST BUS DIST

BROADWAY EAST BUSINESS D

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 154-5604-511 PLANNING AND DESIGN SERVIC          0              0           330             0             0             0             0             0

 154-5604-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE          0              0        14,000             0        13,028             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0        14,330             0        13,028             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 154-5604-531 POSTAGE                             0              0            40             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0            40             0             0             0             0             0

 PRINTING & BUILDING

 154-5604-550 PRINTING & BINDING                  0              0            83             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PRINTING & BUILDING                     0              0            83             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0        14,452             0        13,028             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 154-5604-811 BANK SERVICE CHARGES                0              0            15             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0            15             0             0             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 154-5604-825 BUSINESS DISTRICT GRANTS            0              0             0             0       300,842             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0       300,842             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0            15             0       300,842             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BROADWAY EAST BUSINESS D                   0              0        14,467             0       313,871             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:212

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

154-BROADWAY EAST BUS DIST

BROADWAY EAST BUSINESS D

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 154-5719-817 BD ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURC          0              0        21,002             0             0             0       322,809       322,809

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0        21,002             0             0             0       322,809       322,809

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0        21,002             0             0             0       322,809       322,809

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BROADWAY EAST BUSINESS D                   0              0        21,002             0             0             0       322,809       322,809



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:213

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

154-BROADWAY EAST BUS DIST

BROADWAY EAST BUSINESS D

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 154-5800-817 DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS                 0              0        67,174             0        21,106             0           500           500

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0        67,174             0        21,106             0           500           500

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0        67,174             0        21,106             0           500           500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BROADWAY EAST BUSINESS D                   0              0        67,174             0        21,106             0           500           500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                0              0       102,644             0       334,977             0       323,309       323,309

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0              0       172,279       361,000  (     51,372)            0        19,191        19,191

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 154-4941-023 GO BOND PROCEEDS                    0              0     4,000,000             0             0             0             0             0

 154-4941-024 PROCEEDS - GO BOND 2009B P          0              0        43,437             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0     4,043,437             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0              0     4,043,437             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)               0              0     4,215,716       361,000  (     51,372)            0        19,191        19,191

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:214

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

155-I-57 EAST BUSINESS DIST

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS

 155-4193-023 SALES TAX RECEIPTS                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 155-4194-023 HOTEL/MOTEL TAX RECEIPTS            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL TIF/BD TAX RECEIPTS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 155-4610-023 INVESTMENT INCOME                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 155-4805-023 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER INCO          0              0        20,000             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0        20,000             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0        20,000             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                                    0              0        20,000             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:215

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

155-I-57 EAST BUSINESS DIST

I-57 EAST BUSINESS DIST

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 155-5604-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          0              0        21,269             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0        21,269             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0        21,269             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL I-57 EAST BUSINESS DIST                    0              0        21,269             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                0              0        21,269             0             0             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0              0  (      1,269)            0             0             0             0             0

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:216

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

171-MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 LIMITED RATE PROP TAXES

 171-4118-010 PROPERTY TAXES                      0              0             0       402,000             0             0       429,610       429,610

  TOTAL LIMITED RATE PROP TAXES                   0              0             0       402,000             0             0       429,610       429,610

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0              0             0       402,000             0             0       429,610       429,610

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

 STATE GOVT GRANTS

 171-4321-022 STATE OPERATING (LSTA) GRA          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 171-4322-022 STATE OPERATING (PER CAPIT          0              0             0        22,000             0             0        12,000        12,000

 171-4323-023 STATE CAPITAL (LSCA) GRANT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL STATE GOVT GRANTS                         0              0             0        22,000             0             0        12,000        12,000

    TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV                   0              0             0        22,000             0             0        12,000        12,000

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

 GENERAL GOVT CHARGES

 171-4419-010 MISC. CHARGES                       0              0             0         4,000             0             0         3,500         3,500

  TOTAL GENERAL GOVT CHARGES                      0              0             0         4,000             0             0         3,500         3,500

    TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES                    0              0             0         4,000             0             0         3,500         3,500

FINES & FORFEITURES

 OTHER FINES

 171-4520-010 FINES & FORFEITS                    0              0             0        11,000             0             0        14,000        14,000

  TOTAL OTHER FINES                               0              0             0        11,000             0             0        14,000        14,000

    TOTAL FINES & FORFEITURES                     0              0             0        11,000             0             0        14,000        14,000

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 171-4610-010 INTEREST EARNINGS                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:217

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

171-MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 171-4805-010 CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER MISC          0              0             0        11,500             0             0         8,000         8,000

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV                  0              0             0        11,500             0             0         8,000         8,000

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV                0              0             0        11,500             0             0         8,000         8,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                                    0              0             0       450,500             0             0       467,110       467,110



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:218

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

171-MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 171-5507-111 SALARIES OF REGULAR EMPLOY          0              0             0       218,870             0             0       206,000       206,000

 171-5507-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 171-5507-113 OVERTIME                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 171-5507-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                        0              0             0       218,870             0             0       206,000       206,000

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                        0              0             0       218,870             0             0       206,000       206,000

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 171-5507-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE              0              0             0        45,000             0             0        50,000        50,000

 171-5507-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE                0              0             0         1,045             0             0         1,045         1,045

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                         0              0             0        46,045             0             0        51,045        51,045

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 171-5507-221 FICA                                0              0             0        14,117             0             0        10,000        10,000

 171-5507-222 MEDICARE                            0              0             0         2,626             0             0         5,500         5,500

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB                 0              0             0        16,743             0             0        15,500        15,500

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 171-5507-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS                  0              0             0        25,120             0             0        31,000        31,000

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS                0              0             0        25,120             0             0        31,000        31,000

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 171-5507-240 UNEMPLOYMENT CONTRIBUTIONS          0              0             0         1,400             0             0         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION                0              0             0         1,400             0             0         2,000         2,000

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 171-5507-250 WORKER'S COMPENSATION               0              0             0         1,000             0             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION                   0              0             0         1,000             0             0         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                        0              0             0        90,308             0             0       100,545       100,545

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 171-5507-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                     0              0             0         5,000             0             0         5,000         5,000

 171-5507-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                   0              0             0         2,500             0             0         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                        0              0             0         7,500             0             0         7,500         7,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:219

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

171-MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 171-5507-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRICITY           0              0             0        44,000             0             0        35,000        35,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                                  0              0             0        44,000             0             0        35,000        35,000

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 171-5507-340 BOOKS                               0              0             0        35,000             0             0        35,000        35,000

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                     0              0             0        35,000             0             0        35,000        35,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                  0              0             0        86,500             0             0        77,500        77,500

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 171-5507-410 WATER & SEWER                       0              0             0         2,000             0             0         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                        0              0             0         2,000             0             0         2,000         2,000

 CLEANING SERVICES

 171-5507-424 LAWN CARE                           0              0             0             0             0             0         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL CLEANING SERVICES                       0              0             0             0             0             0         2,000         2,000

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 171-5507-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES                0              0             0         8,000             0             0         6,000         6,000

 171-5507-435 ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMENT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 171-5507-436 PEST CONTROL SERVICES               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 171-5507-437 SECURITY MONITORING SERVIC          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0         8,000             0             0         6,000         6,000

 RENTALS

 171-5507-440 EQUIPMENT RENTAL                    0              0             0         4,500             0             0        11,500        11,500

    TOTAL RENTALS                                 0              0             0         4,500             0             0        11,500        11,500

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0        14,500             0             0        21,500        21,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 171-5507-513 AUDITING                            0              0             0         1,250             0             0         1,000         1,000

 171-5507-516 TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE          0              0             0         8,000             0             0         7,000         7,000

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0         9,250             0             0         8,000         8,000

 INSURANCE

 171-5507-521 PUBLIC OFFICIAL BONDS               0              0             0         1,025             0             0         1,025         1,025

 171-5507-523 PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURA          0              0             0         9,629             0             0        10,000        10,000

    TOTAL INSURANCE                               0              0             0        10,654             0             0        11,025        11,025



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:220

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

171-MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 COMMUNICATION

 171-5507-531 POSTAGE                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 171-5507-532 TELEPHONE                           0              0             0        12,000             0             0        12,000        12,000

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0        12,000             0             0        12,000        12,000

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 171-5507-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                   0              0             0         2,150             0             0             0             0

 171-5507-563 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT               0              0             0             0             0             0         1,260         1,260

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                   0              0             0         2,150             0             0         1,260         1,260

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 171-5507-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                  0              0             0             0             0             0         5,250         5,250

 171-5507-572 COMMUNITY PROMOTIONS                0              0             0         2,500             0             0             0             0

 171-5507-579 MISCELLANEOUS PURCHASED SE          0              0             0        24,646             0             0        20,790        20,790

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0        27,146             0             0        26,040        26,040

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0             0        61,200             0             0        58,325        58,325

 PROPERTY

 LAND

 171-5507-710 LAND                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL LAND                                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 BUILDINGS

 171-5507-720 BUILDINGS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 171-5507-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 171-5507-740 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 171-5507-825 PER CAPITA GRANT EXPENDITU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 171-5507-826 LSTA GRANT EXPENDITURES             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:221

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

171-MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 171-5507-841 WIDE AREA NETWORK SOFTWARE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 171-5507-863 COMPUTERS                           0              0             0         3,000             0             0         8,000         8,000

 171-5507-865 PRINTERS                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0         3,000             0             0         8,000         8,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0         3,000             0             0         8,000         8,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY                     0              0             0       474,378             0             0       471,870       471,870



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:222

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

171-MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

DEBT SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 171-5717-817 TRANS TO GENERAL FD PENSIO          0              0             0        13,927             0             0        14,162        14,162

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0        13,927             0             0        14,162        14,162

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0        13,927             0             0        14,162        14,162

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE                               0              0             0        13,927             0             0        14,162        14,162



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:223

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

171-MATTOON PUBLIC LIBRARY

INTEREST EXPENSE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 171-5790-817 INTEREST EXPENSE                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                0              0             0       488,305             0             0       486,032       486,032

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0              0             0  (     37,805)            0             0  (     18,922) (     18,922)

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 171-4901-010 TRANSFER OF REPLACEMENT TA          0              0             0        38,000             0             0        30,000        30,000

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0             0        38,000             0             0        30,000        30,000

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0              0             0        38,000             0             0        30,000        30,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)               0              0             0           195             0             0        11,078        11,078

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:224

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

 FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS

 211-4313-023 FEDERAL CAPITAL GRANT          47,810        195,115         7,075             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS                  47,810        195,115         7,075             0             0             0             0             0

 STATE GOVT GRANTS

 211-4323-023 STATE CAPITAL GRANTS          228,223          4,610        33,510        18,000        33,788             0             0             0

  TOTAL STATE GOVT GRANTS                   228,223          4,610        33,510        18,000        33,788             0             0             0

    TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV             276,033        199,725        40,585        18,000        33,788             0             0             0

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

 WTR FD REVENUES & OTHER

 211-4461-021 WATER SALES                 2,861,362      2,873,951     2,720,275     3,000,000     2,547,484             0     3,025,000     3,025,000

 211-4462-021 UTILITY TAX                    97,897              0             0       100,000        88,912             0        97,000        97,000

 211-4463-021 RELIANT ENERGY SALES           63,341         76,807        76,368        75,000        67,556             0        72,500        72,500

 211-4464-021 FARM INCOME                    17,600         22,043        19,433         5,000             0             0        11,220        11,220

 211-4465-021 LEASES & RENTALS               25,136         18,672        18,980        17,500        17,000             0        16,000        16,000

 211-4466-021 PERMITS & TAPPING FEES          9,010         11,208         3,883         7,500         6,135             0         7,000         7,000

 211-4469-021 MISC. & SUNDRY SEWER CHARG     18,324         33,984        30,066        20,000        51,152             0             0             0

  TOTAL WTR FD REVENUES & OTHER           3,092,670      3,036,666     2,869,006     3,225,000     2,778,239             0     3,228,720     3,228,720

    TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES            3,092,670      3,036,666     2,869,006     3,225,000     2,778,239             0     3,228,720     3,228,720

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 211-4610-021 INTEREST EARNINGS              51,153         48,222        35,954        27,500        13,981             0        17,500        17,500

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                    51,153         48,222        35,954        27,500        13,981             0        17,500        17,500

 NET INCREASE(DECREASE)

 211-4640-021 NET INCREASE/DECREASE               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL NET INCREASE(DECREASE)                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 RENTS & ROYALTIES

 211-4650-021 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF INVES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL RENTS & ROYALTIES                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                51,153         48,222        35,954        27,500        13,981             0        17,500        17,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                            3,419,856      3,284,613     2,945,545     3,270,500     2,826,008             0     3,246,220     3,246,220



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:225

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 211-5351-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES       6,807          8,615        19,947             0        21,605             0             0             0

 211-5351-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES        186              0           373             0           784             0             0             0

 211-5351-113 OVERTIME                           32             38            99             0           404             0             0             0

 211-5351-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES     (      4,914)             0            40             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                    2,111          8,653        20,459             0        22,793             0             0             0

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                    2,111          8,653        20,459             0        22,793             0             0             0

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 211-5351-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE            749            976         2,450             0         3,548             0             0             0

 211-5351-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE               33             43            43             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                       782          1,019         2,493             0         3,548             0             0             0

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 211-5351-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS                383            603         1,250             0         1,399             0             0             0

 211-5351-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS             90            141           292             0           327             0             0             0

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB               472            744         1,543             0         1,727             0             0             0

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 211-5351-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS                722          1,061         2,005             0         2,165             0             0             0

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS              722          1,061         2,005             0         2,165             0             0             0

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 211-5351-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                 56             53           375             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION               56             53           375             0             0             0             0             0

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 211-5351-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           1,696          1,795         1,941             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               1,696          1,795         1,941             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                    3,729          4,673         8,356             0         7,440             0             0             0

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 211-5351-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5351-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5351-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5351-318 VEHICLE PARTS                     356            188           522             0           382             0           400           400

 211-5351-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            180            376             0           200           748             0           400           400

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      537            564           522           200         1,130             0           800           800



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:226

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 211-5351-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          2,641         30,153        16,247         3,500         1,417             0         3,500         3,500

 211-5351-322 ELECTRICITY                        54             46            34           100            72             0           100           100

 211-5351-326 FUEL                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                              2,695         30,199        16,281         3,600         1,489             0         3,600         3,600

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                              3,232         30,763        16,803         3,800         2,619             0         4,400         4,400

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 211-5351-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES            1,640            754         2,251         2,000         2,159             0         2,000         2,000

 211-5351-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY                 0          1,342             0           500         3,043             0         1,000         1,000

 211-5351-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES                 18              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5351-439 OTHER REPAIR & MAINTENANCE          0              0             0           100             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             1,657          2,095         2,251         2,600         5,202             0         3,000         3,000

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 211-5351-460 OTHER PROPERTY MAINT. SVCS        261          2,250        25,178        44,000        26,800             0        25,000        25,000

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE              261          2,250        25,178        44,000        26,800             0        25,000        25,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV              1,918          4,345        27,428        46,600        32,003             0        28,000        28,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 211-5351-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS         4,167              0         2,525         3,000         3,600             0         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               4,167              0         2,525         3,000         3,600             0         3,000         3,000

 INSURANCE

 211-5351-524 WATER RESERVOIR DAM INSURA      3,568          3,425         6,850         3,500             0             0         3,500         3,500

    TOTAL INSURANCE                           3,568          3,425         6,850         3,500             0             0         3,500         3,500

 COMMUNICATION

 211-5351-532 TELEPHONE                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 211-5351-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI          0            113             0             0           400             0         5,000         5,000

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0            113             0             0           400             0         5,000         5,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              7,735          3,538         9,375         6,500         4,000             0        11,500        11,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:227

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 PROPERTY

 LAND

 211-5351-710 LAND                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL LAND                                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 BUILDINGS

 211-5351-720 BUILDINGS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 211-5351-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL    330,336            891             0        50,000         1,600             0        80,000        80,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS           330,336            891             0        50,000         1,600             0        80,000        80,000

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 211-5351-740 MACHINNERY & EQUIPMENT              0          5,683             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0          5,683             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                            330,336          6,574             0        50,000         1,600             0        80,000        80,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RESERVOIRS & WTR SOURCES             349,061         58,546        82,422       106,900        70,454             0       123,900       123,900



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:228

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 LAND

 211-5352-710 LAND                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL LAND                                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 BUILDINGS

 211-5352-720 BUILDINGS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 211-5352-730 IMPROVEMNTS OTHER THAN BUI      3,266         82,820             0        77,800        40,153             0         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS             3,266         82,820             0        77,800        40,153             0         3,000         3,000

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 211-5352-740 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                              3,266         82,820             0        77,800        40,153             0         3,000         3,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RESTRICTED RELIANT EXPS                3,266         82,820             0        77,800        40,153             0         3,000         3,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:229

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

WATER TREATMENT PLANT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 211-5353-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     269,936        269,253       286,138       319,640       261,622             0       272,118       274,618

 211-5353-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES          0         10,610             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5353-113 OVERTIME                       27,288         27,469        18,798        22,500        17,903             0        27,668        27,668

 211-5353-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES           47,865         47,652        53,374             0        31,080             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  345,089        354,984       358,309       342,140       310,605             0       299,786       302,286

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  345,089        354,984       358,309       342,140       310,605             0       299,786       302,286

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 211-5353-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         31,852         30,626        32,736        35,838        36,999             0        37,143        41,525

 211-5353-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              663            864           864           864           792             0           768           768

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    32,515         31,490        33,600        36,702        37,791             0        37,911        42,293

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 211-5353-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS             20,149         21,500        20,893        21,213        19,941             0        18,587        18,742

 211-5353-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          4,712          5,028         4,886         4,961         4,664             0         4,347         4,383

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB            24,861         26,528        25,780        26,174        24,605             0        22,934        23,125

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 211-5353-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             38,306         35,922        33,743        37,065        33,996             0        39,272        39,599

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           38,306         35,922        33,743        37,065        33,996             0        39,272        39,599

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 211-5353-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.              1,309          1,061           802           516           473             0           657           657

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION            1,309          1,061           802           516           473             0           657           657

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 211-5353-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION          28,709         25,347        24,905        20,494        18,786             0        18,017        18,167

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION              28,709         25,347        24,905        20,494        18,786             0        18,017        18,167

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  125,699        120,349       118,829       120,951       115,652             0       118,791       123,841

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 211-5353-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 1,502            677         1,633           800           282             0           600           600

 211-5353-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES                 298          1,008           339           500           395             0           500           500

 211-5353-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES          17              5            72           300            67             0           100           100

 211-5353-314 CHEMICALS                     143,530        219,842       248,324       300,000       221,472             0       250,000       250,000

 211-5353-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 857            961           475         1,000         1,029             0         1,000         1,000

 211-5353-318 VEHICLE PARTS                     105            451           111           500             0             0           200           200



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:230

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

WATER TREATMENT PLANT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 211-5353-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES         12,020         16,565        13,491        15,000        14,430             0        15,000        15,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                  158,329        239,509       264,446       318,100       237,674             0       267,400       267,400

 ENERGY

 211-5353-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC         19,777         17,242        24,209        56,000        47,614             0        45,000        45,000

 211-5353-322 ELECTRICITY                    48,931         48,610        56,083        60,000        56,025             0        60,000        60,000

 211-5353-326 FUEL                            1,409            998         3,206         2,500             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                             70,117         66,850        83,498       118,500       103,639             0       105,000       105,000

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 211-5353-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 WTR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES

 211-5353-377 PLANT EQUIPMENT                 5,277          7,429         7,798         9,000         8,184             0         9,000         9,000

 211-5353-378 PLANT MTCE & REPAIR             3,476          2,262         1,833         2,500           687             0         2,000         2,000

 211-5353-379 OTHER WATER MNTCE MATERIAL        171            668           614           500           309             0           500           500

    TOTAL WTR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES            8,924         10,358        10,245        12,000         9,179             0        11,500        11,500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                            237,370        316,717       358,190       448,600       350,493             0       383,900       383,900

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 211-5353-431 REPAIR OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5353-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES           18,573         42,367        35,486        43,000        29,145             0        40,000        40,000

 211-5353-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY             4,784         22,074         4,920         6,000         3,790             0         5,000         5,000

 211-5353-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES                384            846           194           250           273             0           500           500

 211-5353-435 ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMENT      2,169          2,283         2,712         3,100         2,347             0         2,700         2,700

 211-5353-439 OTHER REPAIR & MAINT. SERV      3,874          3,204         3,962         9,000         6,611             0         5,000         5,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            29,783         70,774        47,274        61,350        42,167             0        53,200        53,200

 RENTALS

 211-5353-440 RENTALS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL RENTALS                                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 211-5353-459 OTHER CONSTRUCTION SERVICE          0              0           500         5,000             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                   0              0           500         5,000             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 211-5353-460 OTHER PROPERTY MAINT. SERV      2,523          1,472         2,132         3,000         1,265             0         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE            2,523          1,472         2,132         3,000         1,265             0         1,500         1,500

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             32,306         72,246        49,906        69,350        43,432             0        54,700        54,700



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:231

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

WATER TREATMENT PLANT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 211-5353-516 TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE          0              0             0             0             0             0        20,000        20,000

 211-5353-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE      4,457          3,904        16,820        18,000        12,477             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES               4,457          3,904        16,820        18,000        12,477             0        20,000        20,000

 COMMUNICATION

 211-5353-531 POSTAGE                           471            499           567           600           377             0           600           600

 211-5353-532 TELEPHONE                       2,721          2,487         2,742         2,500         2,086             0         2,500         2,500

 211-5353-533 CELLULAR PHONE                      0            100         1,050         1,100         1,091             0         1,100         1,100

 211-5353-538 INTERNET ACCESS CHARGE              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       3,191          3,086         4,359         4,200         3,553             0         4,200         4,200

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 211-5353-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        923          1,030           633         1,200           500             0           500           500

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              923          1,030           633         1,200           500             0           500           500

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              8,572          8,021        21,812        23,400        16,531             0        24,700        24,700

 PROPERTY

 LAND

 211-5353-710 LAND                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL LAND                                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 BUILDINGS

 211-5353-720 BUILDINGS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 211-5353-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     11,969              0             0       400,000        31,853             0       400,000       400,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS            11,969              0             0       400,000        31,853             0       400,000       400,000

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 211-5353-740 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5353-742 VEHICLES                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                             11,969              0             0       400,000        31,853             0       400,000       400,000

 OTHER OBJECTS



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:232

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

WATER TREATMENT PLANT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5353-814 PRINTING & COPY MACHINE LE        527            752           356           500           313             0           500           500

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               527            752           356           500           313             0           500           500

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 211-5353-847 WATER DEPT SOFTWARE                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 211-5353-863 COMPUTERS                           0          8,126           154             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0          8,126           154             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           527          8,878           510           500           313             0           500           500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT PLANT                761,532        881,194       907,556     1,404,941       868,878             0     1,282,377     1,289,927



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:233

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

WATER DISTRIBUTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 211-5354-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     147,034        163,306       200,121       239,015       140,924             0       229,450       225,614

 211-5354-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES          0            213           430             0           180             0             0             0

 211-5354-113 OVERTIME                       10,453          7,339         9,185         9,437         6,231             0         9,452         8,974

 211-5354-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES           21,744         75,107        55,821             0        36,973             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  179,231        245,965       265,558       248,452       184,307             0       238,902       234,588

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  179,231        245,965       265,558       248,452       184,307             0       238,902       234,588

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 211-5354-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         22,141         20,100        29,409        33,083        28,823             0        33,454        35,775

 211-5354-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              581            739           825           690           633             0           930           919

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    22,722         20,839        30,234        33,773        29,456             0        34,384        36,694

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 211-5354-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS             10,618         10,824        15,973        15,404        12,285             0        14,818        14,544

 211-5354-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          2,483          2,531         3,736         3,603         2,873             0         3,464         3,402

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB            13,102         13,355        19,709        19,007        15,158             0        18,282        17,946

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 211-5354-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             20,227         18,537        25,759        26,916        19,941             0        31,296        30,731

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           20,227         18,537        25,759        26,916        19,941             0        31,296        30,731

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 211-5354-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                985            909           766           415           380             0           635           635

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              985            909           766           415           380             0           635           635

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 211-5354-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION          26,722         26,849        32,843        14,548        13,336             0        20,204        19,825

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION              26,722         26,849        32,843        14,548        13,336             0        20,204        19,825

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   83,758         80,489       109,310        94,659        78,271             0       104,801       105,831

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 211-5354-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES       1,815          1,401           592         1,000           983             0         1,000         1,000

 211-5354-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               3,925          4,232         1,930         2,000         1,752             0         2,000         2,000

 211-5354-318 VEHICLE PARTS                   4,654          3,610         8,150         8,000         8,089             0         8,000         8,000

 211-5354-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES          1,749          2,395         1,215         1,500         1,138             0         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   12,143         11,637        11,887        12,500        11,962             0        12,500        12,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:234

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

WATER DISTRIBUTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 211-5354-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC         41,421         45,706        38,886        30,000        14,780             0        20,000        20,000

 211-5354-322 ELECTRICITY                     1,662            214           903         2,000         1,713             0         2,000         2,000

 211-5354-323 BOTTLED GAS                     2,049          2,860         3,519         1,000         2,432             0         2,500         2,500

 211-5354-326 FUEL                            3,321              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                             48,452         48,779        43,309        33,000        18,925             0        24,500        24,500

 SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES

 211-5354-363 BACKFILL & SURFACE MATERIA          0          8,765         7,055        10,000        14,914             0        20,000        20,000

    TOTAL SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES                0          8,765         7,055        10,000        14,914             0        20,000        20,000

 WTR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES

 211-5354-371 WATER PIPE                      5,310          2,182        16,107         5,000         8,376             0        10,000        10,000

 211-5354-374 SERVICE LINE MATERIALS         12,480          9,377        11,140        12,000         6,811             0        10,000        10,000

 211-5354-375 LEAK REPAIR MATERIALS           8,722          1,802         7,570         6,000         1,346             0         5,000         5,000

 211-5354-376 BACKFILL & SURFACE MATERIA     10,282            785             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5354-379 OTHER WATER MAINT. MATERIA     11,844         17,175        30,790        15,000        22,691             0        25,000        25,000

    TOTAL WTR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES           48,638         31,321        65,606        38,000        39,224             0        50,000        50,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                            109,233        100,504       127,857        93,500        85,024             0       107,000       107,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 211-5354-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES            3,261          2,610           858         1,500         1,383             0         1,500         1,500

 211-5354-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY            12,006            990        12,411        10,000         5,504             0        10,000        10,000

 211-5354-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES              3,385          7,127         1,252         3,000         1,478             0         5,000         5,000

 211-5354-439 OTHER REPAIR & MAINT. SERV      9,347         13,274         8,655         6,000        15,743             0        10,000        10,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            27,999         24,001        23,176        20,500        24,107             0        26,500        26,500

 RENTALS

 211-5354-440 RENTALS                           281          3,185         1,382         2,000         2,060             0         2,000         2,000

    TOTAL RENTALS                               281          3,185         1,382         2,000         2,060             0         2,000         2,000

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 211-5354-460 OTHER PROPERTY MAINT. SERV      3,325          1,617         1,290         3,000         5,649             0         3,000         3,000

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE            3,325          1,617         1,290         3,000         5,649             0         3,000         3,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             31,605         28,802        25,847        25,500        31,816             0        31,500        31,500

 PROPERTY



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:235

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

WATER DISTRIBUTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 LAND

 211-5354-710 LAND                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL LAND                                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 BUILDINGS

 211-5354-720 BUILDINGS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 211-5354-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      1,650         27,260             0       125,000       159,291             0       234,500       234,500

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS             1,650         27,260             0       125,000       159,291             0       234,500       234,500

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 211-5354-740 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT           4,391              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5354-742 VEHICLES                            0              0             0        15,982        15,982             0        65,482        65,482

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT               4,391              0             0        15,982        15,982             0        65,482        65,482

  TOTAL PROPERTY                              6,041         27,260             0       140,982       175,272             0       299,982       299,982

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5354-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                  17             17            17            30            17             0            20            20

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                17             17            17            30            17             0            20            20

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 211-5354-863 DESKTOP PC WORK STATIONS            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                            17             17            17            30            17             0            20            20

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WATER DISTRIBUTION                   409,885        483,036       528,589       603,123       554,708             0       782,205       778,921



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:236

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 211-5355-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     102,925         94,539        97,301        92,270        95,550             0       109,222       109,222

 211-5355-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES      2,091          2,111             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5355-113 OVERTIME                          471            298           139           192           319             0           192           192

 211-5355-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            8,185          8,263         9,302             0         9,059             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  113,672        105,211       106,743        92,462       104,929             0       109,414       109,414

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  113,672        105,211       106,743        92,462       104,929             0       109,414       109,414

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 211-5355-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         17,653         14,388        15,053        17,266        17,709             0        19,223        20,705

 211-5355-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              294            383           383           348           319             0           383           383

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    17,947         14,771        15,436        17,614        18,028             0        19,606        21,088

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 211-5355-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              6,615          6,458         6,242         5,732         6,651             0         6,784         6,784

 211-5355-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,547          1,510         1,460         1,341         1,555             0         1,587         1,587

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             8,162          7,968         7,702         7,073         8,206             0         8,371         8,371

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 211-5355-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             11,977         10,696        10,087        10,016        10,843             0        14,333        14,333

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           11,977         10,696        10,087        10,016        10,843             0        14,333        14,333

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 211-5355-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                559            470           356           208           191             0           350           350

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              559            470           356           208           191             0           350           350

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 211-5355-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           2,642          2,913         1,082         1,165         1,068             0         2,404         2,404

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               2,642          2,913         1,082         1,165         1,068             0         2,404         2,404

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   41,287         36,818        34,663        36,076        38,336             0        45,064        46,546

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 211-5355-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 6,410          5,964         5,729         5,000         3,015             0         5,000         5,000

 211-5355-318 VEHICLE PARTS                     147            605           784           600             0             0         5,000         5,000

 211-5355-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            819          1,099           132           300           278             0           300           300

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    7,376          7,667         6,645         5,900         3,293             0        10,300        10,300



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:237

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 211-5355-326 FUEL                           30,902         40,757        44,065        48,000        25,052             0        35,000        35,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                             30,902         40,757        44,065        48,000        25,052             0        35,000        35,000

 WTR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES

 211-5355-372 METER TILES, RIMS & LIDS        2,957          5,556         3,000         3,000         1,446             0         3,000         3,000

 211-5355-373 WATER METERS                        0              0         9,015             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL WTR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES            2,957          5,556        12,015         3,000         1,446             0         3,000         3,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             41,236         53,980        62,725        56,900        29,791             0        48,300        48,300

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 211-5355-431 REPAIR OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5355-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5355-439 OTHER REPAIR & MAINT. SERV          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 211-5355-516 TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE     11,437          4,879        12,452        11,300        11,049             0        11,300        11,300

 211-5355-518 ACCOUNTING SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5355-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        434              0            50             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              11,872          4,879        12,502        11,300        11,049             0        11,300        11,300

 COMMUNICATION

 211-5355-531 POSTAGE                        11,926         15,318        13,585        15,000        10,610             0        15,000        15,000

 211-5355-532 TELEPHONE                         980          1,676         1,417         1,400         1,191             0        14,000        14,000

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                      12,907         16,994        15,002        16,400        11,802             0        29,000        29,000

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 211-5355-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               1,862              0             0         1,000            38             0           500           500

 211-5355-569 MISC. EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EX          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               1,862              0             0         1,000            38             0           500           500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 211-5355-579 COLLECTION FEES                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             26,640         21,873        27,504        28,700        22,888             0        40,800        40,800



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:238

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 211-5355-720 BUILDINGS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 211-5355-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      3,399         19,764         1,083        75,000        23,725             0        75,000        75,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS             3,399         19,764         1,083        75,000        23,725             0        75,000        75,000

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 211-5355-740 MACHINERY &  EQUIPMENT              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                              3,399         19,764         1,083        75,000        23,725             0        75,000        75,000

 OTHER OBJECTS

 CITY CLERK DEPT OBJECTS

 211-5355-804 UTILITY TAX REMITTANCE         97,897              0             0       100,000             0             0        97,000        97,000

    TOTAL CITY CLERK DEPT OBJECTS            97,897              0             0       100,000             0             0        97,000        97,000

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5355-811 BANK SERVICE CHARGES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5355-812 METER DEPOSIT REFUNDS               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5355-813 OTHER REFUNDS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5355-814 PRINTING/COPY MACH LEASE/M      1,295          2,065         1,424         1,500           313             0             0             0

 211-5355-815 POSTAGE METER LEASE & MAIN      1,090          1,280         1,288         1,500         1,118             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             2,385          3,346         2,712         3,000         1,431             0             0             0

 SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS

 211-5355-830 BAD DEBT EXPENSE                4,639          2,027            84             0           288             0             0             0

    TOTAL SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS               4,639          2,027            84             0           288             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                       104,921          5,372         2,796       103,000         1,720             0        97,000        97,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION              331,154        243,018       235,513       392,138       221,388             0       415,578       417,060



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:239

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 211-5356-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      94,140         96,266        92,566       108,739        64,808             0       119,449       119,449

 211-5356-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES      1,790              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-113 OVERTIME                          915            914           196           191           174             0           191           191

 211-5356-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES           10,978         11,936        13,502             0        12,152             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  107,823        109,115       106,265       108,930        77,134             0       119,640       119,640

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  107,823        109,115       106,265       108,930        77,134             0       119,640       119,640

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 211-5356-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          8,683          7,883         8,745        11,741         6,771             0        14,951        16,381

 211-5356-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              164            262           262           262           240             0           297           297

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     8,847          8,145         9,007        12,003         7,011             0        15,248        16,678

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 211-5356-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              6,320          6,436         6,556         6,754         5,070             0         7,418         7,418

 211-5356-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,478          1,505         1,533         1,579         1,186             0         1,735         1,735

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             7,798          7,941         8,089         8,333         6,256             0         9,153         9,153

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 211-5356-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             11,818         11,090        10,604        11,801         8,225             0        15,673        15,673

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           11,818         11,090        10,604        11,801         8,225             0        15,673        15,673

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 211-5356-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                279            322           243           159           146             0           327           327

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              279            322           243           159           146             0           327           327

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 211-5356-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           5,728          6,067         2,249         2,298         2,107             0         3,556         3,556

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               5,728          6,067         2,249         2,298         2,107             0         3,556         3,556

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   34,471         33,565        30,193        34,594        23,744             0        43,957        45,387

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 211-5356-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                   142             35             0             0            99             0             0             0

 211-5356-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLEIES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-318 VEHICLE PARTS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                      142             35             0             0            99             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:240

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 211-5356-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC         21,646         13,726        14,390        20,000        11,376             0        15,000        15,000

 211-5356-326 FUEL                                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                             21,646         13,726        14,390        20,000        11,376             0        15,000        15,000

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 211-5356-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS                75              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                    75              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             21,862         13,761        14,390        20,000        11,475             0        15,000        15,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 211-5356-431 REPAIR OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-439 OTHER REPAIR & MAINT. SERV          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 211-5356-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES     31,815         30,389        26,808        15,000         8,454             0        40,000        40,000

 211-5356-513 AUDITING SERVICES              15,300         14,300        14,500        14,500        14,500             0        14,500        14,500

 211-5356-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        419              0           512           500             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              47,534         44,689        41,820        30,000        22,954             0        54,500        54,500

 INSURANCE

 211-5356-523 PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURA     49,591         49,954        43,264        40,921        37,711             0        31,974        31,974

    TOTAL INSURANCE                          49,591         49,954        43,264        40,921        37,711             0        31,974        31,974

 COMMUNICATION

 211-5356-531 POSTAGE                             0              0             0           500            19             0             0             0

 211-5356-532 TELEPHONE                          78              0             0           600             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-533 CELLULAR PHONE                    643              0           940         1,100             0             0         1,100         1,100

 211-5356-534 PAGERS                              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-535 RADIOS                              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                         721              0           940         2,200            19             0         1,100         1,100

 ADVERTISING

 211-5356-540 ADVERTISING                         0              0            43             0           270             0           500           500

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                             0              0            43             0           270             0           500           500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:241

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 211-5356-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               2,185          1,582           873         1,000           755             0           800           800

 211-5356-563 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT               0              0             0             0           100             0             0             0

 211-5356-564 PRIVATE VEHICLE EXP. REIMB         55              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-565 CELLULAR PHONE EXPENSE REI        148            600           600           600           550             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               2,389          2,182         1,473         1,600         1,405             0           800           800

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 211-5356-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS              2,656          1,700         1,840         2,000         1,794             0         2,000         2,000

 211-5356-572 COMMUNITY PROMOTION & RELA          0          9,996         8,420         5,000             0             0         6,000         6,000

 211-5356-579 MISC. OTHER PURCHASED SERV        670            524           717           500         1,511             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            3,326         12,220        10,977         7,500         3,305             0         9,000         9,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            103,560        109,045        98,516        82,221        65,664             0        97,874        97,874

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5356-816 FARM EXPENSES                   2,794          2,752        11,618             0           142             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             2,794          2,752        11,618             0           142             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5356-826 SPECIAL ITEMS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-827 EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                 229             83            63           500           393             0           500           500

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               229             83            63           500           393             0           500           500

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 211-5356-841 W.A.N. SOFTWARE,LIC,SVC AG          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-842 GENERAL LEDGER SOFTWARE             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-843 UTILITY SOFTWARE,LIC,SVC A          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 211-5356-853 LOCAL AREA NETWORK                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 211-5356-863 NEW DESKTOP PC WORK STATIO          0              0             0           500           503             0             0             0

 211-5356-864 LAPTOP NOTEBOOK & DOCKING           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5356-865 PRINTERS                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0           500           503             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         3,023          2,835        11,681         1,000         1,039             0           500           500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL             270,739        268,321       261,045       246,745       179,056             0       276,971       278,401



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:242

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

DEPRECIATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5357-826 SPECIAL ITEMS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-5357-829 SUBTOTAL DEPRECIATION         592,099        602,233       602,232       600,000             0             0       620,000       620,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS           592,099        602,233       602,232       600,000             0             0       620,000       620,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                       592,099        602,233       602,232       600,000             0             0       620,000       620,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEPRECIATION                         592,099        602,233       602,232       600,000             0             0       620,000       620,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:243

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

2003 REFUNDING GO BONDS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5714-817 2003 WATERWORKS REFUNDING           0              0             0       596,755       596,755             0       597,505       597,505

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0       596,755       596,755             0       597,505       597,505

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0       596,755       596,755             0       597,505       597,505

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL 2003 REFUNDING GO BONDS                    0              0             0       596,755       596,755             0       597,505       597,505



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:244

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

2003A ERI GO BONDS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5717-817 2003A PENSION BENEFIT GO B     47,866              0        47,282        46,911        43,002             0        47,704        47,704

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            47,866              0        47,282        46,911        43,002             0        47,704        47,704

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        47,866              0        47,282        46,911        43,002             0        47,704        47,704

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL 2003A ERI GO BONDS                    47,866              0        47,282        46,911        43,002             0        47,704        47,704



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:245

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

1998 IEPA NOTE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5731-817 DEBT SERVICES                       0              0             0       522,429       522,429             0       522,429       522,429

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0       522,429       522,429             0       522,429       522,429

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0       522,429       522,429             0       522,429       522,429

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL 1998 IEPA NOTE                             0              0             0       522,429       522,429             0       522,429       522,429



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:246

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

FISCAL AGENT FEES

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5760-817 DEBT SERVICES                     494          1,137           614         1,500           654             0         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               494          1,137           614         1,500           654             0         1,500         1,500

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           494          1,137           614         1,500           654             0         1,500         1,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FISCAL AGENT FEES                        494          1,137           614         1,500           654             0         1,500         1,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:247

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

211-WATER FUND

INTEREST EXPENSE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 211-5795-817 INTEREST EXPENSE              333,236        320,486       297,429             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS           333,236        320,486       297,429             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                       333,236        320,486       297,429             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE                     333,236        320,486       297,429             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                        3,099,333      2,940,791     2,962,682     4,599,242     3,097,477             0     4,673,169     4,680,347

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES           320,523        343,822  (     17,137) (  1,328,742) (    271,470)            0  (  1,426,949) (  1,434,127)

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 211-4905-021 INTERFUND XFR-IMRF FUND             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-4910-021 INTERFUND XFR-DEBT SVC FUN          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-4931-021 SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS        518,491         93,133       430,275       150,000        63,142             0        50,000        50,000

 211-4945-021 REFUNDING BONDS ISSUED              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-4946-021 PREMIUMS ON BONDS SOLD              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-4947-021 VEHICLE LOAN PROCEEDS               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-4955-021 DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 211-4956-021 OTHER CONTRIBUTION CAPITAL          0         38,015         1,053             0             0             0             0             0

 211-4990-023 LAKE LEASE PROCEEDS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES             518,491        131,149       431,327       150,000        63,142             0        50,000        50,000

 OTHER FINANCING (USES)                 ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________  ____________  ____________  ____________

 211-5936-822 INTERFUND TRANSFERS                 0         47,600             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)                    0         47,600             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)        518,491         83,549       431,327       150,000        63,142             0        50,000        50,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)         839,014        427,371       414,191  (  1,178,742) (    208,328)            0  (  1,376,949) (  1,384,127)

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:248

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

 FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS

 212-4313-023 FEDERAL CAPITAL GRANTS              0              0             0             0        14,890             0             0             0

  TOTAL FEDERAL GOVT GRANTS                       0              0             0             0        14,890             0             0             0

    TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV                   0              0             0             0        14,890             0             0             0

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

 SWR FD REVENUES & OTHER

 212-4451-021 SEWER USE CHARGES           3,381,505      3,310,850     3,205,705     3,400,000     2,992,615             0     3,525,000     3,525,000

 212-4452-021 SEWER CHARGE PENALTIES         53,561         48,296        51,646        53,000        46,038             0        52,500        52,500

 212-4453-021 BOD SURCHARGES                 37,026         33,293        26,462        36,000        29,140             0        33,000        33,000

 212-4454-021 SUSPENDED SOLIDS SURCHARGE     12,392         10,129         5,543        12,500        10,933             0        12,000        12,000

 212-4455-021 PERMITS & TAPPING FEES          2,383          3,745         2,120         4,500         1,145             0         2,000         2,000

 212-4456-021 ERC LECHATE CHARGES            22,852         19,720        20,648        20,000        23,496             0        25,000        25,000

 212-4459-021 MISC & SUNDRY SEWER CHARGE     11,888         21,422        21,423        25,000        10,006             0        12,000        12,000

  TOTAL SWR FD REVENUES & OTHER           3,521,608      3,447,455     3,333,547     3,551,000     3,113,374             0     3,661,500     3,661,500

    TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES            3,521,608      3,447,455     3,333,547     3,551,000     3,113,374             0     3,661,500     3,661,500

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 212-4610-021 INTEREST EARNINGS             122,948         92,762        50,812        45,000        20,618             0        25,000        25,000

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                   122,948         92,762        50,812        45,000        20,618             0        25,000        25,000

 NET INCREASE(DECREASE)

 212-4640-021 NET INCREASE IN VALUE OF I          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL NET INCREASE(DECREASE)                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS               122,948         92,762        50,812        45,000        20,618             0        25,000        25,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                            3,644,556      3,540,217     3,384,359     3,596,000     3,148,882             0     3,686,500     3,686,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:249

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 212-5342-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     136,296        173,514       197,450       239,015       162,085             0       229,450       225,614

 212-5342-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES      2,091          2,106           817             0           588             0             0             0

 212-5342-113 OVERTIME                        5,985          5,623         6,056         9,437         5,389             0         9,452         8,974

 212-5342-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES           20,514         56,955        62,775             0        47,803             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  164,885        238,198       267,098       248,452       215,864             0       238,902       234,588

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  164,885        238,198       267,098       248,452       215,864             0       238,902       234,588

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 212-5342-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         22,206         23,080        30,207        33,083        30,946             0        33,454        35,775

 212-5342-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              835          1,084           825           706           647             0           930           919

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    23,041         24,164        31,032        33,789        31,593             0        34,384        36,694

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 212-5342-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS             10,166         11,639        16,604        15,404        13,863             0        14,812        14,544

 212-5342-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          2,377          2,722         3,883         3,603         3,242             0         3,464         3,402

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB            12,544         14,361        20,487        19,007        17,105             0        18,276        17,946

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 212-5342-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             19,063         19,580        26,779        26,916        23,034             0        31,296        30,731

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           19,063         19,580        26,779        26,916        23,034             0        31,296        30,731

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 212-5342-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.              1,415          1,333           766           415           380             0           635           635

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION            1,415          1,333           766           415           380             0           635           635

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 212-5342-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION          38,424         39,347        32,845        18,258        16,737             0        33,426        32,789

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION              38,424         39,347        32,845        18,258        16,737             0        33,426        32,789

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   94,486         98,786       111,910        98,385        88,849             0       118,017       118,795

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 212-5342-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES       1,242          1,903           605         1,000         1,043             0         1,200         1,200

 212-5342-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               3,615          3,600         2,024         1,500         1,383             0         1,500         1,500

 212-5342-318 VEHICLE PARTS                  10,444          6,778        12,460        10,000        15,382             0        15,000        15,000

 212-5342-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES              0          1,498  (         98)            0         3,958             0         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   15,301         13,779        14,991        12,500        21,764             0        19,200        19,200



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:250

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 212-5342-326 FUEL                            3,321              0         2,766             0         2,283             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                              3,321              0         2,766             0         2,283             0             0             0

 SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES

 212-5342-361 SEWER PIPE                      4,322            999         4,005         3,000         1,918             0         3,000         3,000

 212-5342-362 MANHOLES CASINGS & LIDS         4,401          5,043         5,067         3,000         1,135             0         3,000         3,000

 212-5342-363 BACKFILL & SURFACE MATERIA     17,829         23,198        24,484        20,000        14,000             0        20,000        20,000

 212-5342-364 SEWER LINE REPAIR MATERIAL      2,840          3,832           350         2,000         2,281             0         3,000         3,000

 212-5342-369 OTHER SEWER MTCE SUPPLIES       3,054          8,711         8,992         7,000         7,266             0         9,000         9,000

    TOTAL SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES           32,446         41,783        42,898        35,000        26,600             0        38,000        38,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             51,068         55,562        60,655        47,500        50,647             0        57,200        57,200

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 212-5342-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY             4,963          2,938        13,575        15,000         3,592             0         5,000         5,000

 212-5342-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES              2,632          1,334           712         2,000         2,809             0         2,500         2,500

 212-5342-439 OTHER REPAIR & MTCE SERVIC     15,577          3,055        17,048         3,000        19,039             0        15,000        15,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            23,171          7,326        31,334        20,000        25,441             0        22,500        22,500

 RENTALS

 212-5342-440 RENTALS                           309          2,950         2,182         2,000           868             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL RENTALS                               309          2,950         2,182         2,000           868             0         1,000         1,000

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 212-5342-454 ROTO-TILLING                      121              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                 121              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 212-5342-460 OTHER PROPERTY MTCE SERVIC         50         66,374        41,487         1,000            29             0         5,000         5,000

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE               50         66,374        41,487         1,000            29             0         5,000         5,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             23,650         76,650        75,002        23,000        26,338             0        28,500        28,500

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 212-5342-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL     12,842              0  (      3,198)            0        52,150             0       300,000       300,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS            12,842              0  (      3,198)            0        52,150             0       300,000       300,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:251

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 212-5342-740 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT             108              0  (     56,492)       12,722        12,722             0        62,222        62,222

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                 108              0  (     56,492)       12,722        12,722             0        62,222        62,222

  TOTAL PROPERTY                             12,950              0  (     59,690)       12,722        64,871             0       362,222       362,222

 OTHER OBJECTS

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 212-5342-863 DESKTOP PC WORK STATIONS            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM              347,039        469,196       454,975       430,059       446,569             0       804,841       801,305



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:252

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

SEWER LIFT STATIONS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 212-5343-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT                 950          1,036         4,249         4,000         4,883             0         4,000         4,000

 212-5343-318 VEHICLE PARTS                      91              0            10             0            11             0             0             0

 212-5343-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            151             13             8           500           121             0           500           500

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    1,193          1,049         4,266         4,500         5,015             0         4,500         4,500

 ENERGY

 212-5343-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (AM     19,748         22,130        31,036        23,000        27,543             0        36,000        36,000

 212-5343-322 ELECTRICITY (COLES-MOULTRI      4,742          5,770         7,210         6,000         5,403             0         7,000         7,000

 212-5343-323 BOTTLED GAS                       331              0           364           600             0             0             0             0

 212-5343-326 FUEL                                0            651             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                             24,820         28,550        38,610        29,600        32,946             0        43,000        43,000

 SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES

 212-5343-365 LIFT STATION REPAIR MATERI     14,345          7,085         8,002        20,000         9,335             0        10,000        10,000

 212-5343-369 OTHER SEWER MTCE SUPPLIES           0             70            13           500           191             0           500           500

    TOTAL SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES           14,345          7,155         8,016        20,500         9,527             0        10,500        10,500

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             40,357         36,754        50,892        54,600        47,487             0        58,000        58,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 212-5343-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES            6,841              0             0         1,000             0             0             0             0

 212-5343-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY             8,232          1,740         4,141         7,000        11,292             0         8,000         8,000

 212-5343-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES                  0              0           124             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5343-435 ELEVATOR SERVICE AGREEMENT          0              0             0         2,000           873             0         1,000         1,000

 212-5343-439 OTHER REPAIR & MTCE SERVIC          0          7,195        10,941             0         8,673             0        10,000        10,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            15,073          8,935        15,207        10,000        20,838             0        19,000        19,000

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 212-5343-454 ROTO-TILLING                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             15,073          8,935        15,207        10,000        20,838             0        19,000        19,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 212-5343-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:253

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

SEWER LIFT STATIONS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 COMMUNICATION

 212-5343-533 CELLULAR PHONE                      0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 212-5343-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 212-5343-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL          0              0             0       190,000        32,242             0       200,000       200,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0       190,000        32,242             0       200,000       200,000

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 212-5343-741 MACHINERY                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0       190,000        32,242             0       200,000       200,000

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5343-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                   7              7            24             0            24             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 7              7            24             0            24             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             7              7            24             0            24             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SEWER LIFT STATIONS                   55,437         45,695        66,122       254,600       100,591             0       277,000       277,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:254

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 212-5344-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES     320,551        293,343       303,984       332,906       274,732             0       349,142       348,142

 212-5344-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES         44          2,566             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5344-113 OVERTIME                        3,671          4,695         5,036         6,000         2,194             0         7,172         7,172

 212-5344-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES           24,350         26,004        30,847             0        22,311             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  348,615        326,609       339,868       338,906       299,237             0       356,314       355,314

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  348,615        326,609       339,868       338,906       299,237             0       356,314       355,314

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 212-5344-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         39,001         31,125        32,736        40,364        36,999             0        41,669        44,322

 212-5344-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              883          1,152         1,008         1,008           924             0         1,032         1,032

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    39,884         32,277        33,744        41,372        37,923             0        42,701        45,354

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 212-5344-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS             21,082         20,318        20,124        21,012        19,393             0        22,091        22,029

 212-5344-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          4,930          4,752         4,707         4,914         4,536             0         5,167         5,152

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB            26,012         25,069        24,831        25,926        23,928             0        27,258        27,181

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 212-5344-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             40,184         34,177        32,074        36,715        33,067             0        46,677        46,546

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           40,184         34,177        32,074        36,715        33,067             0        46,677        46,546

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 212-5344-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.              1,496          1,415           936           602           552             0           920           920

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION            1,496          1,415           936           602           552             0           920           920

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 212-5344-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION          21,240         18,030        15,580        14,946        13,701             0        16,533        16,487

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION              21,240         18,030        15,580        14,946        13,701             0        16,533        16,487

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  128,816        110,968       107,165       119,561       109,170             0       134,089       136,488

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 212-5344-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 2,553          2,699         1,323         2,500         2,537             0         2,500         2,500

 212-5344-312 CLEANING SUPPLIES               4,101          1,442           956         2,000         1,084             0         1,500         1,500

 212-5344-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES       1,926          1,003         1,482         1,500         2,183             0         2,500         2,500

 212-5344-314 CHEMICALS                      29,268          8,779        10,492        10,000        13,673             0        13,000        13,000

 212-5344-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               7,554          7,882         5,313        35,000         1,927             0         7,000         7,000

 212-5344-318 VEHICLE PARTS                   1,463            846         1,868         1,500         1,106             0         1,500         1,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:255

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 212-5344-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES         10,637         17,482         9,698        19,500         6,736             0        10,000        10,000

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   57,502         40,133        31,132        72,000        29,247             0        38,000        38,000

 ENERGY

 212-5344-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC (AM    304,973        379,739       328,491       275,000       282,297             0       320,000       320,000

 212-5344-323 BOTTLED GAS                         0              0            71             0           457             0           500           500

 212-5344-326 FUEL                            1,332              0             0             0            27             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                            306,306        379,739       328,563       275,000       282,780             0       320,500       320,500

 BOOKS & PERIODICALS

 212-5344-340 BOOKS & PERIODICALS               441            512            97           700           390             0           500           500

    TOTAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS                   441            512            97           700           390             0           500           500

 SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES

 212-5344-366 PLANT MTCE & REPAIR MATERI     40,632         42,252        42,164        53,500        31,640             0        40,000        40,000

    TOTAL SWR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES           40,632         42,252        42,164        53,500        31,640             0        40,000        40,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                            404,881        462,635       401,956       401,200       344,057             0       399,000       399,000

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 212-5344-431 REPAIR OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5344-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES           21,379          5,851        14,536        25,000         1,194             0        20,000        20,000

 212-5344-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY            29,531         16,747        35,095        85,000        36,883             0        40,000        40,000

 212-5344-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES              5,565          2,763         6,971         5,000         1,452             0         5,000         5,000

 212-5344-436 PEST CONTROL SERVICES               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5344-439 OTHER REPAIR & MNTCE SERVI     19,569         25,456        26,368        12,500        32,036             0        25,000        25,000

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES            76,044         50,817        82,969       127,500        71,566             0        90,000        90,000

 RENTALS

 212-5344-440 RENTALS                           801            317         1,291         2,000           219             0         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL RENTALS                               801            317         1,291         2,000           219             0         1,500         1,500

 OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE

 212-5344-460 OTHER PROPERTY MTCE SERVIC     21,265         35,159        33,370        25,000        30,579             0        30,000        30,000

    TOTAL OTHER PROP MAINT SERVICE           21,265         35,159        33,370        25,000        30,579             0        30,000        30,000

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             98,109         86,293       117,630       154,500       102,363             0       121,500       121,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 212-5344-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES        539         44,642        10,635         2,000        10,374             0         2,000         2,000

 212-5344-516 TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                 539         44,642        10,635         2,000        10,374             0         2,000         2,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:256

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 COMMUNICATION

 212-5344-532 TELEPHONE                       5,563          6,060         5,500         6,000         5,038             0         6,000         6,000

 212-5344-533 CELLULAR PHONE           (         56)             0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5344-538 INTERNET ACCESS CHARGE            176              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       5,684          6,060         5,500         6,000         5,038             0         6,000         6,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 212-5344-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI     50,954         38,000        37,083        40,000        38,030             0        38,000        38,000

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES           50,954         38,000        37,083        40,000        38,030             0        38,000        38,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             57,177         88,702        53,218        48,000        53,442             0        46,000        46,000

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 212-5344-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL          0              0        11,037       188,000        28,892             0       300,000       300,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0        11,037       188,000        28,892             0       300,000       300,000

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 212-5344-740 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0        11,037       188,000        28,892             0       300,000       300,000

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5344-814 COPY MACHINE                      729            948           856         1,000         1,002             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               729            948           856         1,000         1,002             0         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           729            948           856         1,000         1,002             0         1,000         1,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WASTEWATER TREATMNT PLANT          1,038,327      1,076,156     1,031,730     1,251,167       938,164             0     1,357,903     1,359,302



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:257

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 212-5345-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      85,360         91,638        96,912       108,152        94,801             0       109,222       109,222

 212-5345-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES          0              5             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5345-113 OVERTIME                          407            295           155           192           343             0           192           192

 212-5345-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            8,185          8,263         9,302             0         9,060             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                   93,952        100,201       106,370       108,344       104,204             0       109,414       109,414

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                   93,952        100,201       106,370       108,344       104,204             0       109,414       109,414

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 212-5345-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         15,210         13,930        14,947        19,223        17,678             0        19,223        20,705

 212-5345-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              294            383           383           383           351             0           383           383

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    15,504         14,313        15,330        19,606        18,029             0        19,606        21,088

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 212-5345-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              5,598          6,132         6,189         6,717         6,635             0         6,784         6,784

 212-5345-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,309          1,434         1,447         1,571         1,552             0         1,587         1,587

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             6,907          7,566         7,636         8,288         8,187             0         8,371         8,371

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 212-5345-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             10,068         10,362        10,001        11,737        10,819             0        14,333        14,333

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           10,068         10,362        10,001        11,737        10,819             0        14,333        14,333

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 212-5345-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                559            470           356           230           211             0           350           350

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              559            470           356           230           211             0           350           350

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 212-5345-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           2,642          2,921         1,082         1,708         1,566             0         3,884         3,884

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               2,642          2,921         1,082         1,708         1,566             0         3,884         3,884

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   35,681         35,632        34,405        41,569        38,812             0        46,544        48,026

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 212-5345-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 6,651          4,463         3,671         5,000         4,440             0         5,000         5,000

 212-5345-318 VEHICLE PARTS                     227            635           824           700             0             0           500           500

 212-5345-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES            516            982            40           250            33             0           250           250

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                    7,393          6,080         4,535         5,950         4,473             0         5,750         5,750



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:258

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 212-5345-326 FUEL                           30,902         40,757        42,653        40,000        22,769             0        35,000        35,000

    TOTAL ENERGY                             30,902         40,757        42,653        40,000        22,769             0        35,000        35,000

 WTR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES

 212-5345-372 METER TILES RIMS & LIDS         2,957          5,150         2,503         4,000         1,446             0         4,000         4,000

 212-5345-373 WATER METERS                        0              0         9,015             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL WTR SYSTM MAINT SUPPLIES            2,957          5,150        11,518         4,000         1,446             0         4,000         4,000

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             41,252         51,986        58,706        49,950        28,688             0        44,750        44,750

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 212-5345-431 REPAIR OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5345-434 REPAIR OF VEHICLES                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5345-439 OTHER REPAIR & MTCE SERVIC          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 212-5345-516 TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE     13,955          3,296         4,374        14,300        13,799             0        14,300        14,300

 212-5345-518 ACCOUNTING SERVICES                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5345-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        434              0            50             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              14,389          3,296         4,424        14,300        13,799             0        14,300        14,300

 COMMUNICATION

 212-5345-531 POSTAGE                        14,999         15,699        14,121        15,000        14,265             0        16,000        16,000

 212-5345-532 TELEPHONE                       1,386          1,108         1,432         1,500         1,421             0         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                      16,385         16,807        15,552        16,500        15,686             0        17,500        17,500

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 212-5345-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING               2,718              0             0         1,000           806             0         1,000         1,000

 212-5345-569 MISC. EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EX          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP               2,718              0             0         1,000           806             0         1,000         1,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 212-5345-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             33,493         20,103        19,976        31,800        30,290             0        32,800        32,800



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:259

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 PROPERTY

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 212-5345-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL      5,499         19,764         1,083        75,000        23,725             0        75,000        75,000

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS             5,499         19,764         1,083        75,000        23,725             0        75,000        75,000

  TOTAL PROPERTY                              5,499         19,764         1,083        75,000        23,725             0        75,000        75,000

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5345-811 BANK SERVICE CHARGES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5345-814 PRINT COPY MACHINE LEASE &      1,537          1,530         1,870         2,000         2,187             0         2,500         2,500

 212-5345-815 POSTAGE METER LEASE & MTCE      1,090          1,280         1,327         1,500           748             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             2,627          2,811         3,197         3,500         2,935             0         3,500         3,500

 SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS

 212-5345-830 BAD DEBT EXPENSE                6,850          2,814             0             0           378             0             0             0

    TOTAL SPECIAL EVENT OBJECTS               6,850          2,814             0             0           378             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         9,477          5,625         3,197         3,500         3,313             0         3,500         3,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ACCOUNTING & COLLECTION              219,354        233,311       223,736       310,163       229,032             0       312,008       313,490



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:260

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 212-5346-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      94,140         96,266        92,505        92,857        64,808             0       119,449       119,449

 212-5346-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES      1,790              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-113 OVERTIME                          915            914           188           191           174             0           191           191

 212-5346-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES           10,978         11,936        13,503             0        12,152             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  107,823        109,115       106,196        93,048        77,134             0       119,640       119,640

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  107,823        109,115       106,196        93,048        77,134             0       119,640       119,640

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 212-5346-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE          8,683          7,884         8,735         9,784         6,771             0        14,951        16,387

 212-5346-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              164            262           262           227           208             0           297           297

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                     8,847          8,146         8,997        10,011         6,979             0        15,248        16,684

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 212-5346-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              6,320          6,436         6,552         5,769         5,070             0         7,418         7,418

 212-5346-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,478          1,505         1,532         1,349         1,186             0         1,735         1,735

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             7,798          7,941         8,084         7,118         6,256             0         9,153         9,153

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 212-5346-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS             11,818         11,090        10,597        10,080         8,225             0        15,673        15,673

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS           11,818         11,090        10,597        10,080         8,225             0        15,673        15,673

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 212-5346-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                279            322           243           137           126             0           327           327

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              279            322           243           137           126             0           327           327

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 212-5346-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           5,728          6,067         2,249         1,755         1,609             0         3,556         3,556

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               5,728          6,067         2,249         1,755         1,609             0         3,556         3,556

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   34,470         33,565        30,171        29,101        23,195             0        43,957        45,393

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 212-5346-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                     4             35             0             0            99             0             0             0

 212-5346-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES             47              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                       51             35             0             0            99             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                                 51             35             0             0            99             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:261

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 212-5346-511 PLANNING & DESIGN SERVICES      2,863          2,281         1,279        10,000           396             0        10,000        10,000

 212-5346-513 AUDITING SERVICES              15,300         14,300        14,500        14,500        14,500             0        14,500        14,500

 212-5346-519 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICE        394              7             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              18,557         16,588        15,779        24,500        14,896             0        24,500        24,500

 INSURANCE

 212-5346-523 PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURA     72,845         75,354        66,496        63,604        59,985             0        48,661        48,661

    TOTAL INSURANCE                          72,845         75,354        66,496        63,604        59,985             0        48,661        48,661

 COMMUNICATION

 212-5346-531 POSTAGE                             0              0            12           300             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-532 TELEPHONE                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-533 CELLULAR PHONE                  1,949          2,837         2,961         3,300         1,928             0         1,100         1,100

 212-5346-535 RADIOS                              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       1,949          2,837         2,973         3,600         1,928             0         1,100         1,100

 ADVERTISING

 212-5346-540 ADVERTISING                         0            414           199           200           270             0           300           300

    TOTAL ADVERTISING                             0            414           199           200           270             0           300           300

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 212-5346-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                  50            582         1,667         2,000           444             0         1,500         1,500

 212-5346-563 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-564 PRIVATE VEHICLE REIMBURSEM         55              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-565 CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT          148              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                 253            582         1,667         2,000           444             0         1,500         1,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 212-5346-571 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS                887          1,116         1,201         2,000             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-572 COMMUNITY PROMOTION & RELA          0            949             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI        709            593           683         1,000           452             0         1,000         1,000

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES            1,596          2,658         1,884         3,000           452             0         1,000         1,000

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES             95,199         98,432        88,999        96,904        77,975             0        77,061        77,061

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5346-826 SPECIAL ITEMS                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-827 EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:262

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 212-5346-841 WIDE AREA NETWORK                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-842 GENERAL LEDGER SOFTWARE             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5346-843 UTILITY BILLING SOFTWARE            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT

 212-5346-863 NEW DESKTOP PC WORKSTATION          0              0             0           500           503             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMPUTER INFO SYS OBJECT                0              0             0           500           503             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0           500           503             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL             237,543        241,147       225,366       219,553       178,905             0       240,658       242,094



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:263

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

DEPRECIATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5347-829 DEPRECIATION                  891,511        915,876       917,966       915,000             0             0       900,000       900,000

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS           891,511        915,876       917,966       915,000             0             0       900,000       900,000

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                       891,511        915,876       917,966       915,000             0             0       900,000       900,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEPRECIATION                         891,511        915,876       917,966       915,000             0             0       900,000       900,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:264

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

DEBT SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 212-5348-720 BUILDINGS                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 212-5348-730 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BL          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 212-5348-741 MACHINERY                           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5348-742 VEHICLES                            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-5348-743 FURNITURE & FIXTURES                0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                                  0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:265

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

RETIREE HEALTH INSRUANCE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 212-5710-211 RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE            0              0       244,021       110,000        78,848             0        89,375        89,375

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                         0              0       244,021       110,000        78,848             0        89,375        89,375

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                        0              0       244,021       110,000        78,848             0        89,375        89,375

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RETIREE HEALTH INSRUANCE                   0              0       244,021       110,000        78,848             0        89,375        89,375



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:266

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

DEBT SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5715-817 DEBT SERVICE                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:267

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

DEBT SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5717-817 2003A PENSION BENEFIT GO B     90,124              0        89,025        88,326        80,966             0        89,819        89,819

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            90,124              0        89,025        88,326        80,966             0        89,819        89,819

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        90,124              0        89,025        88,326        80,966             0        89,819        89,819

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE                          90,124              0        89,025        88,326        80,966             0        89,819        89,819



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:268

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

DEBT SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5719-817 2005A REFUNDING G.O. BONDS          0              0             0       409,119       405,141             0       410,716       410,716

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0       409,119       405,141             0       410,716       410,716

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0       409,119       405,141             0       410,716       410,716

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE                               0              0             0       409,119       405,141             0       410,716       410,716



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:269

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

1997 SEWR PLANT IEPA NOTE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5732-817 DEBT SERVICE                   35,243              0             0        35,243        35,243             0        35,243        35,243

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS            35,243              0             0        35,243        35,243             0        35,243        35,243

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                        35,243              0             0        35,243        35,243             0        35,243        35,243

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL 1997 SEWR PLANT IEPA NOTE             35,243              0             0        35,243        35,243             0        35,243        35,243



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:270

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

IEPA INSTALLMENT LOANS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5733-817 DEBT SERVICE             (     35,243)             0             0       603,456       603,456             0       603,456       603,456

 212-5733-819 DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS             5,792          5,792         5,792             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS      (     29,451)         5,792         5,792       603,456       603,456             0       603,456       603,456

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                  (     29,451)         5,792         5,792       603,456       603,456             0       603,456       603,456

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL IEPA INSTALLMENT LOANS          (     29,451)         5,792         5,792       603,456       603,456             0       603,456       603,456



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:271

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

FISCAL AGENTS FEE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5760-817 DEBT SERVICES                     579            352           349         1,500           355             0         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               579            352           349         1,500           355             0         1,500         1,500

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           579            352           349         1,500           355             0         1,500         1,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FISCAL AGENTS FEE                        579            352           349         1,500           355             0         1,500         1,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:272

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

DEBT SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5770-817 DEBT SERVICE                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:273

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

DEBT SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5780-817 ADVANCE REFUNDING ESCROW            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE                               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:274

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

DEBT SERVICE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5795-817 INTEREST EXPENSE              375,844        358,204       338,959             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS           375,844        358,204       338,959             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                       375,844        358,204       338,959             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE                         375,844        358,204       338,959             0             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:275

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

212-SEWER FUND

INTERFUND TRANSFER

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 212-5936-822 INTERFUND TRANSFER                  0         89,624             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0         89,624             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0         89,624             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFER                         0         89,624             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                        3,261,550      3,435,354     3,598,041     4,628,186     3,097,271             0     5,122,519     5,123,300

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES           383,006        104,863  (    213,681) (  1,032,186)       51,611             0  (  1,436,019) (  1,436,800)

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 212-4905-021 INTERFUND TRFR FROM IMRF F          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-4909-021 INTERFUND TRFR-CAPITAL PRO          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-4910-021 INTERFUND TRFR-DEBT SERVIC          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-4931-021 SALE OF GENERAL CAPITAL AS          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-4932-021 COMP FOR LOSS OF GEN CAP A          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-4945-010 REFUNDING BONDS ISSUED              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-4947-021 VEHICLE LOAN PROCEEDS               0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-4949-021 OTHER LONG TERM DEBT ISSUE          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-4955-021 DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 212-4956-021 OTHER CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER FINANCING (USES)                 ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________  ____________  ____________  ____________

 212-5936-822 INTERFUND TRANSFER                  0         89,624             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)                    0         89,624             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0   (     89,624)            0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)         383,006         15,239  (    213,681) (  1,032,186)       51,611             0  (  1,436,019) (  1,436,800)

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:276

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

213-CEMETERY FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

 CEMETERY FD REV & OTHER

 213-4471-021 SALE OF LOTS                   29,241         24,444        27,716        27,500        23,994             0             0             0

 213-4472-021 OPENING GRAVES                 65,924         76,523        73,872        70,000        61,058             0             0             0

 213-4473-021 MONUMNT FOUNDATION PREPARA      7,962          9,161         9,479         9,500         2,933             0             0             0

 213-4474-021 CEMETERY FARM INCOME            1,436          1,019         1,430         1,750             0             0             0             0

 213-4475-021 PERPETUAL CARE REVENUE              0          2,716             0             0             0             0             0             0

 213-4479-021 MISC & SUNDRY CEMETERY CHA      1,317            800         1,478         1,000         1,200             0             0             0

  TOTAL CEMETERY FD REV & OTHER             105,880        114,662       113,974       109,750        89,184             0             0             0

    TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES              105,880        114,662       113,974       109,750        89,184             0             0             0

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 213-4610-021 INTEREST EARNINGS              13,007          7,245         6,887         7,500         4,815             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                    13,007          7,245         6,887         7,500         4,815             0             0             0

 OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME

 213-4690-021 OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 213-4690-022 GAIN/LOSS ON INVESTMENTS            0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                13,007          7,245         6,887         7,500         4,815             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                              118,887        121,907       120,861       117,250        93,999             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:277

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

213-CEMETERY FUND

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 213-5361-111 SALARIES OF REG EMPLOYEES      77,670         65,768        69,165        72,322        62,587             0             0             0

 213-5361-112 SALARIES OF TEMP EMPLOYEES     28,313         37,300        38,667        30,000        19,801             0             0             0

 213-5361-113 OVERTIME                          257          1,421           782         1,388           216             0             0             0

 213-5361-114 COMPENSATED ABSENCES            2,684          7,475         2,518             0         1,238             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                  108,924        111,963       111,133       103,710        83,842             0             0             0

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                  108,924        111,963       111,133       103,710        83,842             0             0             0

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 213-5361-211 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE         10,495          9,637        10,564        12,525        11,481             0             0             0

 213-5361-212 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE              177            230           230           230           211             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    10,672          9,867        10,794        12,755        11,692             0             0             0

 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB

 213-5361-221 FICA CONTRIBUTIONS              6,590          6,608         6,824         6,430         5,528             0             0             0

 213-5361-222 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS          1,541          1,545         1,596         1,504         1,293             0             0             0

    TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIB             8,131          8,154         8,419         7,934         6,821             0             0             0

 RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS

 213-5361-231 IMRF CONTRIBUTIONS              7,454          7,282         7,118         7,897         6,994             0             0             0

    TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBTUIONS            7,454          7,282         7,118         7,897         6,994             0             0             0

 UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION

 213-5361-240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.                486            460           548           348           319             0             0             0

    TOTAL UNEMPLOYMNT COMPENSATION              486            460           548           348           319             0             0             0

 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

 213-5361-250 WORKERS' COMPENSATION           3,895          4,837         4,225         4,863         4,458             0             0             0

    TOTAL WORKER'S COMPENSATION               3,895          4,837         4,225         4,863         4,458             0             0             0

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   30,639         30,600        31,105        33,797        30,283             0             0             0

 SUPPLIES

 GENERAL SUPPLIES

 213-5361-311 OFFICE SUPPLIES                 6,187            701           300           500           268             0             0             0

 213-5361-313 MEDICAL & SAFETY SUPPLIES         341            110             0             0           174             0             0             0

 213-5361-316 TOOLS & EQUIPMENT               1,584          1,625         1,757             0         2,161             0             0             0

 213-5361-319 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES         16,813          2,201         1,616         2,500           524             0             0             0

    TOTAL GENERAL SUPPLIES                   24,925          4,638         3,673         3,000         3,127             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:278

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

213-CEMETERY FUND

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 ENERGY

 213-5361-321 NATURAL GAS & ELECTRIC          2,113          2,429         2,824         2,750         2,228             0             0             0

 213-5361-326 FUEL                            3,002          3,069         3,983         4,500         6,768             0             0             0

    TOTAL ENERGY                              5,115          5,498         6,807         7,250         8,996             0             0             0

 STREET MAINT SUPPLIES

 213-5361-352 AGGREGATE SURFACE COURSE            0              0             0             0           455             0             0             0

    TOTAL STREET MAINT SUPPLIES                   0              0             0             0           455             0             0             0

  TOTAL SUPPLIES                             30,040         10,136        10,480        10,250        12,577             0             0             0

 PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV

 UTILITY SERVICES

 213-5361-410 UTILITY SERVICES                1,215            846           915         1,000         1,010             0             0             0

    TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES                    1,215            846           915         1,000         1,010             0             0             0

 REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES

 213-5361-432 REPAIR OF STRUCTURES              405             72            25           500             0             0             0             0

 213-5361-433 REPAIR OF MACHINERY             4,064          3,752         4,495         2,000         5,060             0             0             0

    TOTAL REPAIR & MAINT SERVICES             4,468          3,824         4,520         2,500         5,060             0             0             0

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

 213-5361-452 AGGREGATE SURFACE COURSE       20,936              0             0             0            13             0             0             0

    TOTAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES              20,936              0             0             0            13             0             0             0

  TOTAL PURCHASED PROP MAINT SRV             26,619          4,670         5,435         3,500         6,082             0             0             0

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 213-5361-516 TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICE        559              0         1,454         1,482         1,359             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                 559              0         1,454         1,482         1,359             0             0             0

 INSURANCE

 213-5361-523 PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURA      1,986          2,939         2,533         2,407         2,206             0             0             0

    TOTAL INSURANCE                           1,986          2,939         2,533         2,407         2,206             0             0             0

 COMMUNICATION

 213-5361-531 POSTAGE                            31             34            48           100             3             0             0             0

 213-5361-532 TELEPHONE                       2,133          2,388         1,710         2,500         2,303             0             0             0

    TOTAL COMMUNICATION                       2,164          2,422         1,758         2,600         2,306             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:279

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

213-CEMETERY FUND

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 213-5361-579 MISC OTHER PURCHASED SERVI          0            220           425         1,000             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0            220           425         1,000             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES              4,710          5,581         6,170         7,489         5,871             0             0             0

 PROPERTY

 BUILDINGS

 213-5361-720 BUILDINGS                       5,584              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL BUILDINGS                           5,584              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS

 213-5361-730 IMPROVEMENTRS OTHER THAN B          0         20,446             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL IMPROVEMENTS-NOT BLDNGS                 0         20,446             0             0             0             0             0             0

 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

 213-5361-740 MACHINERY                           0          7,250             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                   0          7,250             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL PROPERTY                              5,584         27,696             0             0             0             0             0             0

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 213-5361-816 FARM EXPENSES                      88            178            87           200             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                88            178            87           200             0             0             0             0

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 213-5361-827 EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 213-5361-828 REAL ESTATE TAXES                 303          2,168         2,412           500         1,381             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS               303          2,168         2,412           500         1,381             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                           391          2,346         2,498           700         1,381             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS             206,907        192,992       166,820       159,446       140,036             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:280

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

213-CEMETERY FUND

DEPRECIATION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 213-5362-829 DEPRECIATION                    9,925         10,301        12,365        10,000             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS             9,925         10,301        12,365        10,000             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                         9,925         10,301        12,365        10,000             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEPRECIATION                           9,925         10,301        12,365        10,000             0             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:281

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

213-CEMETERY FUND

DEBT SERVICE ON CAP LEAS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 213-5746-817 DEBT SERVICES                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE ON CAP LEAS                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                          216,831        203,293       179,185       169,446       140,036             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES      (     97,944)  (     81,386) (     58,324) (     52,196) (     46,037)            0             0             0

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 213-4901-021 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND     51,938         47,000        43,295        52,196             0             0             0             0

 213-4903-021 TRANSFER FROM HOTEL TAX FD          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 213-4909-021 TRANSFERS FROM CAP PROJ FU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 213-4931-021 SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS              0          5,750             0             0             0             0             0             0

 213-4951-021 CONTRIBUTIONS FOR PET. CAR          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 213-4956-021 OTHER CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL           0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES              51,938         52,750        43,295        52,196             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)         51,938         52,750        43,295        52,196             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)    (     46,006)  (     28,636) (     15,029)            0  (     46,037)            0             0             0

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:282

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 221-4610-021 INTEREST EARNINGS                  60             62            49            50            46             0            50            50

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                        60             62            49            50            46             0            50            50

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                    60             62            49            50            46             0            50            50

EMP CONTRIB FOR BENEFITS

 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS

 221-4701-021 EMPLOYEE CONTRIB TO HEALTH    153,646        158,999       157,737       189,298       169,115             0       165,370       178,934

  TOTAL EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS              153,646        158,999       157,737       189,298       169,115             0       165,370       178,934

 LIBRARY EMPLOYEE CONTRIB

 221-4711-021 LIBRARY EMPLOYEE CONTRIBS       5,540          6,333         5,340         7,339         4,729             0             0             0

  TOTAL LIBRARY EMPLOYEE CONTRIB              5,540          6,333         5,340         7,339         4,729             0             0             0

 RETIREE CONTRIBUTIONS

 221-4721-021 RETIREE CONTRIBS TO HEALTH    144,636        168,933       190,044       233,276       233,073             0       293,182       311,577

  TOTAL RETIREE CONTRIBUTIONS               144,636        168,933       190,044       233,276       233,073             0       293,182       311,577

    TOTAL EMP CONTRIB FOR BENEFITS          303,821        334,265       353,120       429,913       406,917             0       458,552       490,512

CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV

 CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV

 221-4804-021 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE         630,921         21,572     1,148,303     1,000,000       748,220             0       812,500       812,500

 221-4807-021 INS RELATED RECOVERY REVEN      8,422         12,083        39,875         9,000        21,430             0        20,000         7,500

  TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS & MISC REV            639,344         33,655     1,188,178     1,009,000       769,649             0       832,500       820,000

    TOTAL CONTRIB & OTHER MISC REV          639,344         33,655     1,188,178     1,009,000       769,649             0       832,500       820,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                              943,224        367,982     1,541,347     1,438,963     1,176,612             0     1,291,102     1,310,562



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:283

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 221-5411-211 STOP LOSS INSURANCE           137,751        117,948       131,996       127,500       142,021             0       155,000       160,000

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                   137,751        117,948       131,996       127,500       142,021             0       155,000       160,000

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  137,751        117,948       131,996       127,500       142,021             0       155,000       160,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL STOP LOSS INS COVERAGE               137,751        117,948       131,996       127,500       142,021             0       155,000       160,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:284

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

HEALTH PLAN ADMIN

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 221-5412-211 HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION    159,134        138,951       136,290       145,000       121,377             0       140,000       145,000

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                   159,134        138,951       136,290       145,000       121,377             0       140,000       145,000

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  159,134        138,951       136,290       145,000       121,377             0       140,000       145,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL HEALTH PLAN ADMIN                    159,134        138,951       136,290       145,000       121,377             0       140,000       145,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:285

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

MEDICAL CLAIMS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 221-5413-211 MEDICAL CLAIMS              1,098,419      1,110,183     1,603,586     1,632,605     1,182,034             0     1,355,530     1,407,140

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                 1,098,419      1,110,183     1,603,586     1,632,605     1,182,034             0     1,355,530     1,407,140

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                1,098,419      1,110,183     1,603,586     1,632,605     1,182,034             0     1,355,530     1,407,140

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL MEDICAL CLAIMS                     1,098,419      1,110,183     1,603,586     1,632,605     1,182,034             0     1,355,530     1,407,140



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:286

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

RX CLAIMS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 221-5414-211 RX CLAIMS                     445,199        461,241       454,508       497,000       456,783             0       495,000       525,000

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                   445,199        461,241       454,508       497,000       456,783             0       495,000       525,000

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                  445,199        461,241       454,508       497,000       456,783             0       495,000       525,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RX CLAIMS                            445,199        461,241       454,508       497,000       456,783             0       495,000       525,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:287

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

DENTAL CLAIMS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 221-5415-211 DENTAL CLAIMS                  81,104         85,539        93,042       100,000        82,891             0        90,000       100,000

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    81,104         85,539        93,042       100,000        82,891             0        90,000       100,000

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   81,104         85,539        93,042       100,000        82,891             0        90,000       100,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DENTAL CLAIMS                         81,104         85,539        93,042       100,000        82,891             0        90,000       100,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:288

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

REFUNDS REIMB & MISC EXPS

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 221-5416-211 REFUNDS REIMBURSEMENTS & M          0              0             0             0            58             0             0             0

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                         0              0             0             0            58             0             0             0

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                        0              0             0             0            58             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL REFUNDS REIMB & MISC EXPS                  0              0             0             0            58             0             0             0



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:289

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

LIFE INSURANCE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 221-5417-212 LIFE INSURANCE                 30,474         30,602        26,895        32,500        27,908             0        32,500        32,500

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                    30,474         30,602        26,895        32,500        27,908             0        32,500        32,500

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                   30,474         30,602        26,895        32,500        27,908             0        32,500        32,500

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL LIFE INSURANCE                        30,474         30,602        26,895        32,500        27,908             0        32,500        32,500



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:290

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

SECTION 125 PLAN

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 221-5418-212 SECTION 125 BENEFIT PLAN A        694            271           782         1,200           288             0         1,200         2,000

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE                       694            271           782         1,200           288             0         1,200         2,000

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS                      694            271           782         1,200           288             0         1,200         2,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SECTION 125 PLAN                         694            271           782         1,200           288             0         1,200         2,000



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:291

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

221-HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

MISCELLEANOUS EXPENSE

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS

 GROUP INSURANCE

 221-5419-211 MISC EXPENSES            (      3,308)            75           125         1,000           288             0         1,000         4,603

    TOTAL GROUP INSURANCE              (      3,308)            75           125         1,000           288             0         1,000         4,603

  TOTAL EMPOLOYEE BENEFITS             (      3,308)            75           125         1,000           288             0         1,000         4,603

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL MISCELLEANOUS EXPENSE           (      3,308)            75           125         1,000           288             0         1,000         4,603

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                        1,949,467      1,944,809     2,447,222     2,536,805     2,013,647             0     2,270,230     2,376,243

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES      (  1,006,243)  (  1,576,827) (    905,876) (  1,097,842) (    837,035)            0  (    979,128) (  1,065,681)

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 221-4901-021 TRFR FROM GENERAL FUND        875,458      1,469,032       679,637       824,195       712,989             0       724,696       791,217

 221-4903-021 TRFR FROM HOTEL MOTEL TAX       6,639          6,071         6,712         7,828         7,176             0         7,828         8,606

 221-4911-021 TRFR FROM WATER FUND           35,666         30,057        88,803       103,590        93,850             0       104,771       114,386

 221-4912-021 TRFR FROM SEWER FUND           43,124         31,045        86,699       108,116        92,394             0       109,297       117,190

 221-4913-021 TRFR FROM CEMETERY FUND         6,873          5,913        10,752        12,525        11,481             0             0             0

 221-4917-021 TRFR FROM LIBRARY FUND         38,483         34,711        33,273        41,588        27,667             0        32,536        34,282

 221-4990-021 EXP FOR RETIREES FM GEN FU          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES           1,006,243      1,576,829       905,876     1,097,842       945,557             0       979,128     1,065,681

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)      1,006,243      1,576,829       905,876     1,097,842       945,557             0       979,128     1,065,681

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)               0              2             0             0       108,522             0             0             0

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:292

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

311-FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FD

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 UNLIMITED RATE PROP TAX

 311-4124-024 PROPERTY TAX RECEIPTS               0              0             0             0     1,008,722             0     1,164,414     1,164,414

  TOTAL UNLIMITED RATE PROP TAX                   0              0             0             0     1,008,722             0     1,164,414     1,164,414

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0              0             0             0     1,008,722             0     1,164,414     1,164,414

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

 STATE GOVT SHARED REV

 311-4337-024 PERS PROP REPLACEMENT TAXE          0              0             0             0        48,864             0       221,480       221,480

  TOTAL STATE GOVT SHARED REV                     0              0             0             0        48,864             0       221,480       221,480

    TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV                   0              0             0             0        48,864             0       221,480       221,480

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 311-4610-024 INTEREST INCOME                     0              0             0             0           417             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0           417             0             0             0

 DIVIDEND EARNINGS

 311-4620-024 DIVIDEND INCOME                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL DIVIDEND EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 NET INCREASE(DECREASE)

 311-4640-024 NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 311-4641-024 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF INVES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL NET INCREASE(DECREASE)                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0             0             0           417             0             0             0

EMP CONTRIB FOR BENEFITS

 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS

 311-4706-024 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS              0              0             0             0       185,379             0       180,000       180,000

 311-4707-024 MILITARY TIME CONTRIBUTION          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 311-4708-024 4-109.3 (h) PENSION CONTRI          0              0             0             0         5,932             0             0             0

  TOTAL EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS                    0              0             0             0       191,311             0       180,000       180,000

    TOTAL EMP CONTRIB FOR BENEFITS                0              0             0             0       191,311             0       180,000       180,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                                    0              0             0             0     1,249,313             0     1,565,894     1,565,894



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:293

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

311-FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FD

FIRE PENSION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 311-5252-115 SERVICE PENSION                     0              0             0             0     1,265,871             0     1,370,000     1,370,000

 311-5252-116 DISABILITY PENSION                  0              0             0             0       280,386             0       310,000       310,000

 311-5252-117 WIDOW'S PENSION                     0              0             0             0       138,728             0       152,000       152,000

 311-5252-118 CHILD'S PENSION                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                        0              0             0             0     1,684,985             0     1,832,000     1,832,000

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                        0              0             0             0     1,684,985             0     1,832,000     1,832,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 311-5252-513 AUDIT EXPENSE                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 311-5252-517 TRUSTEE FEES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 311-5252-518 DEPT OF INSURANCE FEES              0              0             0             0             0             0         3,500         3,500

 311-5252-519 MEDICAL EXPENSE                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0             0             0             0         3,500         3,500

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 311-5252-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                   0              0             0             0           808             0         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                   0              0             0             0           808             0         2,500         2,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 311-5252-579 MISCELLEANOUS                       0              0           332             0         7,012             0           500           500

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0           332             0         7,012             0           500           500

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0           332             0         7,819             0         6,500         6,500

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 311-5252-811 BANK CHARGES                        0              0             0             0            10             0            50            50

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0            10             0            50            50

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0            10             0            50            50

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FIRE PENSION                               0              0           332             0     1,692,815             0     1,838,550     1,838,550

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                0              0           332             0     1,692,815             0     1,838,550     1,838,550

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0              0  (        332)            0  (    443,502)            0  (    272,656) (    272,656)



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:294

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

311-FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FD

FIRE PENSION

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 311-4901-024 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)               0              0  (        332)            0  (    443,502)            0  (    272,656) (    272,656)

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:295

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

312-POLICE PENSION FUND

 

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

REVENUES                                                                               BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TAXES

 UNLIMITED RATE PROP TAX

 312-4125-024 PROPERTY TAX RECEIPTS               0              0             0             0       827,489             0       962,841       962,841

  TOTAL UNLIMITED RATE PROP TAX                   0              0             0             0       827,489             0       962,841       962,841

    TOTAL TAXES                                   0              0             0             0       827,489             0       962,841       962,841

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV

 STATE GOVT SHARED REV

 312-4337-024 PERS PROP REPLACEMENT TAXE          0              0             0             0        48,864             0       183,126       183,126

  TOTAL STATE GOVT SHARED REV                     0              0             0             0        48,864             0       183,126       183,126

    TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV                   0              0             0             0        48,864             0       183,126       183,126

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

 INTEREST EARNINGS

 312-4610-024 INTEREST INCOME                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL INTEREST EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 DIVIDEND EARNINGS

 312-4620-024 DIVIDEND INCOME                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL DIVIDEND EARNINGS                         0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 NET INCREASE(DECREASE)

 312-4640-024 NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 312-4641-024 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF INVES          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL NET INCREASE(DECREASE)                    0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

    TOTAL INVESTMENT EARNINGS                     0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

EMP CONTRIB FOR BENEFITS

 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS

 312-4706-024 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS              0              0             0             0       211,775             0       207,000       207,000

 312-4707-024 MILITARY TIME CONTRIBUTION          0              0             0             0         4,153             0             0             0

  TOTAL EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS                    0              0             0             0       215,928             0       207,000       207,000

    TOTAL EMP CONTRIB FOR BENEFITS                0              0             0             0       215,928             0       207,000       207,000

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUES                                    0              0             0             0     1,092,281             0     1,352,967     1,352,967



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:296

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

312-POLICE PENSION FUND

POLICE PENSION FUND

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

 PERSONNEL SERVICES

 SALARIES & WAGES

 312-5234-115 SERVICE PENSION                     0              0             0             0       931,888             0     1,060,000     1,060,000

 312-5234-116 DISABILITY PENSION                  0              0             0             0       167,067             0       227,000       227,000

 312-5234-117 WIDOW'S PENSION                     0              0             0             0       159,897             0       175,000       175,000

 312-5234-118 CHILD'S PENSION                     0              0             0             0         5,733             0             0             0

    TOTAL SALARIES & WAGES                        0              0             0             0     1,264,585             0     1,462,000     1,462,000

  TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES                        0              0             0             0     1,264,585             0     1,462,000     1,462,000

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

 312-5234-513 AUDIT EXPENSE                       0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 312-5234-517 TRUSTEE FEES                        0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

 312-5234-518 DEPT OF INSURANCE FEES              0              0             0             0         2,888             0         3,000         3,000

 312-5234-519 MEDICAL EXPENSE                     0              0             0             0           200             0           500           500

    TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   0              0             0             0         3,088             0         3,500         3,500

 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP

 312-5234-562 TRAVEL & TRAINING                   0              0             0             0           692             0         2,500         2,500

    TOTAL EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXP                   0              0             0             0           692             0         2,500         2,500

 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

 312-5234-579 MISCELLEANOUS                       0              0           332             0         1,116             0         1,500         1,500

    TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                0              0           332             0         1,116             0         1,500         1,500

  TOTAL OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                  0              0           332             0         4,896             0         7,500         7,500

 OTHER OBJECTS

 FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS

 312-5234-811 BANK CHARGES                        0              0             0             0             5             0            50            50

    TOTAL FINANCIAL TRANS OBJECTS                 0              0             0             0             5             0            50            50

  TOTAL OTHER OBJECTS                             0              0             0             0             5             0            50            50

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL POLICE PENSION FUND                        0              0           332             0     1,269,486             0     1,469,550     1,469,550

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                0              0           332             0     1,269,486             0     1,469,550     1,469,550

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                 0              0  (        332)            0  (    177,205)            0  (    116,583) (    116,583)



 

 4-16-2010 12:08 PM                                                CITY   OF   MATTOON                                                        PAGE:297

                                                                     APPROVED BUDGET

                                                                  AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2010

312-POLICE PENSION FUND

POLICE PENSION FUND

                                                                                 (-------------- 2009-2010 ---------------)(------- 2010-2011 --------)

                                         2006-2007      2007-2008      2008-2009      CURRENT        Y-T-D      PROJECTED     REQUESTED      APPROVED

EXPENDITURES                                                                           BUDGET       ACTUAL       YEAR END       BUDGET        BUDGET

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

 312-4901-024 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND          0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                   0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)              0              0             0             0             0             0             0             0

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER/

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER (USES)               0              0  (        332)            0  (    177,205)            0  (    116,583) (    116,583)

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***

                                                    *** END OF REPORT ***



  

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION 2010-2809 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A SECTION 
5311 (AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA)) 

STATE/FEDERAL CAPITAL ASSISTANCE GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $385,000 FOR THE RENOVATION OF MATTOON’S 
AMTRAK DEPOT PLATFORM TO COMPLY WITH THE AMERICANS WITH 

DISABILITIES ACT 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is committed to renovation and redevelopment of the 
community’s intermodal transportation sector, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has previously engaged the services of the engineering consulting 
firm of The Upchurch Group, Inc. to develop plans and specifications for renovation of 
the Mattoon Amtrak Depot Platform, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has submitted those plans along with an application to the Illinois 
Department of Transportation for grant funding for the upgrade of the Mattoon Amtrak 
Depot Platform, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Department of Transportation has notified the City that 
Mattoon’s application for grant funding for the upgrade of the Amtrak Depot Platform 
has been approved. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS: 
  
The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the State/Federal Capital Assistance Grant 
Agreement, Contract No. 3936, State Grant No. CAP-10-941-ARRA, Federal Grant No. 
IL-86-X001, CFDA No. 20.509 with the Illinois Department of Transportation. 

 
Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, 
adopted this    day of ___________________, 2010, by a roll call vote, as 
follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
 
Approved this    day of     , 2010.  
 



  

 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2010. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND INTERMODALTRANSPORTATION 
 

AND 
 
 

CITY OF MATTOON 
 
 
 

STATE/FEDERAL CAPITAL ASSISTANCE GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 3936 
 

STATE GRANT NO. CAP-10-941-ARRA 
 

FEDERAL GRANT NO. IL-86-X001 
 

CFDA NO. 20.509 
 

FEDERAL PROGRAM:  Section 5311 
(American Recovery and Reinvestment (ARRA)) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved as to Form 
by Chief Counsel’s Office: 
REV: 03/30/10 

STATEFED (DOL) 

REVISED



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ITEM 1 - DEFINITIONS ..................................................................................................................................................4 

ITEM 2 - THE PROJECT ................................................................................................................................................5 

ITEM 3 - AMOUNT OF GRANT ....................................................................................................................................5 

ITEM 4 - THE PROJECT BUDGET ..............................................................................................................................5 

ITEM 5 - DOCUMENTS FORMING THIS AGREEMENT ........................................................................................6 

ITEM 6 – REVERSION OF GRANT FUNDS ................................................................................................................6 

ITEM 7 - ACCOMPLISHMENT OF THE PROJECT .................................................................................................6 

ITEM 8 - CONTINUANCE OF SERVICE .....................................................................................................................7 

ITEM 9 – REAL PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES ..................................................................................8 

ITEM 10 - ETHICS ......................................................................................................................................................... 11 

ITEM 11 – ACCOUNTING, RECORDS, AND ACCESS ........................................................................................... 12 

ITEM 12 - REQUISITIONS AND PAYMENTS .......................................................................................................... 15 

ITEM 13 - RIGHT OF DEPARTMENT TO TERMINATE ....................................................................................... 17 

ITEM 14 - PROJECT SETTLEMENT AND CLOSE-OUT ....................................................................................... 18 

ITEM 15 - GRANTEE'S WARRANTIES ..................................................................................................................... 18 

ITEM 16 - CONTRACTS OF THE GRANTEE ........................................................................................................... 18 

ITEM 17 - PROCUREMENT ......................................................................................................................................... 19 

ITEM 18 - THIRD PARTY CONTRACT CHANGES ................................................................................................ 20 

ITEM 19 - PRE-BID REVIEW ...................................................................................................................................... 20 

ITEM 20 - PRE-AWARD REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CONTRACTS AND APPROVAL OF 

EMINENT DOMAIN PROCEEDINGS ........................................................................................................................ 21 

ITEM 21 - POST-AWARD REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................... 21 

ITEM 22 - ASSIGNMENT ............................................................................................................................................. 21 

ITEM 23 - BONDING REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................................... 21 

ITEM 24 - COOPERATION IN CONNECTION WITH INSPECTION .................................................................. 21 

ITEM 25 - INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE ................................................................................................ 22 

ITEM 26 - NON-WAIVER ............................................................................................................................................. 22 

ITEM 27 - INDEPENDENCE OF GRANTEE ............................................................................................................. 22 

ITEM 28 - LABOR LAW COMPLIANCE ................................................................................................................... 22 

ITEM 29 - CIVIL RIGHTS ............................................................................................................................................ 24 

ITEM 30 - SEVERABILITY .......................................................................................................................................... 28 

ITEM 31 - INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY .................................................................................................................. 29 

ITEM 32 - AMENDMENT ............................................................................................................................................. 30 

ITEM 33 - SCHOOL BUS AND CHARTER SERVICES OPERATIONS ................................................................ 31 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  3 

ITEM 34 - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS .............................................................................................................. 31 

ITEM 35 - LABOR PROVISION .................................................................................................................................. 32 

ITEM 36 - SUBSTANCE ABUSE/DRUG FREE WORKPLACE ACT ..................................................................... 39 

ITEM 38 - PRIVACY ...................................................................................................................................................... 41 

ITEM 39 – PROTECTION OF SENSITIVE SECURITY INFORMATION ............................................................ 42 

ITEM 40 – DISPUTES, BREACHES, DEFAULTS, OR OTHER LITIGATION .................................................... 42 

ITEM 41 - TITLES .......................................................................................................................................................... 42 

ITEM 42 - TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER ............................................................................................ 42 

ITEM 43 – ARRA ............................................................................................................................................................ 42 

ITEM 44 - TIGGER ........................................................................................................................................................ 43 

 
 
 
Exhibit A, entitled “Grantee’s Application” (on file with the Department) 
 
Exhibit B, entitled “Approved Project Budget” 
 
Exhibit C, entitled “IDOT & FTA Assistance Programs Certifications and Assurances” (on file with the 

Department) 
 
Exhibit D, entitled “Grantee’s Board Resolution” (on file with the Department) 
 
Exhibit E, entitled “U.S. DOL Transit Employee Protective Requirements Certification” (on file with the 
Department) 
 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  4 

This Contract No. 3936 (hereinafter referred to as "Agreement") is made by and between the Illinois 
Department of Transportation, Division of Public and Intermodal Transportation, (hereinafter referred to 
as the "State" or "Department") and the City of Mattoon, (hereinafter referred to as the "Grantee," which 
term shall include its successors and assigns). 
 
WHEREAS, the State has received a Federal Transit Administration mass transportation capital Section 
5311 grant, for Project No. IL-86-X001  for the purpose of partially funding eligible capital grant projects, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee is undertaking a  mass transportation capital project (the "Project") as 
described in the Grantee’s final approved application which is incorporated herein by reference as 
Exhibit “A” hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee is an eligible grant recipient and the Project is an eligible mass transportation 
project under the provisions of the Civil Administrative Code of Illinois (20 ILCS 2705, et seq.), and the 
General Obligation Bond Act (30 ILCS 330/1 et seq.) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Acts"); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee has made application to the Department for federal or state and federal aid for 
the Project in accordance with one or both of the Acts and pursuant to procedures established by the 
Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee's final application, including subsequent submittals, information, and 
documentation as provided by the Grantee in support thereof, has been approved by the Department; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties agree that 
the above recitals are made a part of this Agreement, that this Agreement is made to provide 
federal or state and federal financial assistance to the Grantee in the form of a capital grant (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Grant"), to set forth the terms and conditions upon which the Grant will be made and 
to set forth the agreement of the Parties as to the manner in which the Project will be undertaken, 
completed and used.  The parties further agree as follows: 

ITEM 1 - DEFINITIONS 

 
As used in this Agreement: 
 
A. “Mass Transportation Service” means general or special transportation service provided to the 

public (but not school bus, charter, sightseeing service, intercity bus transportation or intercity 
passenger rail transportation) on a regular and continuing basis, in the service area described in 
the Grantee's final approved application.  The term “Mass Transportation Service” also includes 
“public transportation” and “transit.” 

 
B. “Net Project Cost” means the sum of the eligible costs incurred in performing the work on the 

Project, including work done by the Grantee, less proceeds from sale of scrap and replaced 
facilities. 

 
C. “Project” means the mass transportation capital project for which grant funds are to be used by the 

Grantee pursuant to this Agreement, as described in the Grantee’s final approved application. 
 
D. “Project Facilities” means any facilities, equipment or real property purchased, acquired, 

constructed, improved, renovated or refurbished as part of the Project. 
 
E. "FTA" means the Federal Transit Administration of the United States Department of 

Transportation. 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  5 

 
F. “FHWA” means the Federal Highway Administration of the United States Department of 

Transportation. 
 
G. “Government” means both the United States federal government and the State of Illinois state 

government or any of its federal or state agencies. 
 
H. "Contractor” or “Third Party Contractor” means a vendor or contractor of the Grantee, paid or 

financed in whole or in part with federal or state assistance. 

ITEM 2 - THE PROJECT 

 
The Grantee agrees to undertake and complete the Project and to provide for the use of Project 
Facilities, in the manner set forth in the Grantee's final application that has been approved by the 
Department, for the amounts set forth in the Approved Project Budget, a copy of which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”, and in accordance with the requirements of this 
Agreement and all applicable laws and regulations.  The Project, which is more particularly described in 
the plans, specifications and schedules set forth in the Grantee's final approved application, is generally 
described as follows: 
 
 

12.23.03 Platform Renovation 
 
 

ITEM 3 - AMOUNT OF GRANT 

 
The estimated Net Project Cost is $385,000.  The Department agrees to make a grant reimbursing the 
Grantee in an amount equal to 100 percent of the actual Net Project Cost, as determined by the 
Department upon completion of the Project, in an amount  not to exceed $385,000.  However, the 
Department (at its sole discretion) may agree to increase the amount of the Grant in excess of the 
amount specified herein but in no event shall the total amount provided by the Department under this 
Agreement or any subsequent Amendment to this Agreement exceed 100 percent of the actual Net 
Project Cost.  The Project will be funded with 100% federal funds. 
 

   
 
No liability shall be incurred by the State in excess of the aforementioned amount(s) of the Grant. 
 
The Grantee agrees that it will provide, or cause to be provided from sources other than (a) State funds, 
(b) federal funds, (c) receipts from the use of Project Facilities, or (d) operating revenues of the public 
transportation system, funds in an amount equal to the actual Net Project Cost less the amount of the 
federal funds actually paid to the Grantee in connection with this Agreement and less the amount of the 
state funds actually paid to the Grantee in connection with this Agreement.  With the express prior 
written approval of the Department, all or part of this local share to be contributed by the Grantee may be 
provided by the Grantee in the form of contributions of professional, technical, or other services. 
 

ITEM 4 - THE PROJECT BUDGET 

 
The Approved Project Budget is set forth in Exhibit “B” hereto.  The Grantee shall carry out the Project 

and shall incur obligations against and make disbursements of project funds only in conformity with the 
latest Approved Project Budget (except as expressly provided in ITEM 11(c)).  The Approved Project 
Budget may be revised from time to time upon approval by authorized Department personnel, but no 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  6 

Budget or revision thereof shall be effective unless and until the Department shall have approved the 
same in writing.  However, any amendment to the Approved Project Budget should be in accordance 
with the provisions of ITEM 32. 

ITEM 5 - DOCUMENTS FORMING THIS AGREEMENT 

 
The Parties agree that this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties hereto, that 
there are no agreements or understandings, implied or expressed, except as specifically set forth in this 
Agreement, and that all prior arrangements and understandings related hereto are merged into or 
superseded by this Agreement. 
 
The Parties hereto further agree that this Agreement consists of this State/Federal Capital Assistance 
Grant Agreement; together with Exhibit “A” entitled "Grantee's Application" (on file with the Department); 
Exhibit “B” entitled "Approved Project Budget"; Exhibit “C” entitled "IDOT & FTA Assistance Programs 
Certifications and Assurances" (on file with the Department); Exhibit “D” entitled “Grantee’s Board 

Resolution"(on file with the Department); and Exhibit “E” entitled “U.S. Department of Labor Transit 

Employee Protective Requirements Certification" (on file with the Department), all of which are, by this 
reference, specifically incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

ITEM 6 – REVERSION OF GRANT FUNDS 

 
A. Illinois Grant Funds Recovery Act - This Grant is subject to the Illinois Grant Funds Recovery Act, 

30 ILCS 705/1.  This Grant is valid until September 30, 2020, and grant funds are available to the 
Grantee and may be expended by the Grantee until said date unless the Department, at its 
discretion, grants an extension of time.  Any grant funds which are not expended or legally 
obligated by the Grantee at the end of the Grant Agreement or by the expiration of the period of 
time grant funds are available for expenditure or obligation, whichever is earlier, shall be returned 
to the Department within 45 days.  Project close-out shall be in accordance with the Project 
Settlement & Close-Out ITEM of this Agreement.  This date is subject to further revision at the sole 
determination and discretion of the Department 

 
B. Failure to Appropriate Funds - This Grant, and the processing of any requisitions and the payment 

of any funds under this Agreement is contingent upon the availability of sufficient funds 
appropriated to the Department by the Illinois General Assembly. The Grantee understands and 
agrees that the obligations of the Department to make any grants or payments under this 
Agreement are conditional upon funds being appropriated therefore by the General Assembly, and 
the Grantee shall not hold the Department liable for failure by the General Assembly to appropriate 
sufficient funds for this Project. 

 
C. This Grant and the processing of any requisitions from the Grantee and the payment of any funds 

to the Grantee is contingent upon this Project and the Grantee meeting all federal and state 
requirements, and is further contingent upon the Department’s receipt of the federal funds for this 
Project. 

 

ITEM 7 - ACCOMPLISHMENT OF THE PROJECT 

 
A. General Requirements - The Grantee shall commence, carry out, and complete the Project with all 

practicable dispatch, in a sound, economical, and efficient manner, and in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement, including all documents listed in ITEM 5 above, and in compliance 
with all applicable laws and Department guidelines, as from time to time adopted. 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  7 

B. Pursuant to Federal, State, and Local Law - In the performance of its obligations pursuant to this 
Agreement, the Grantee and its contractors shall comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 
state and local law, including the applicable grant provisions of the current Master Agreement 
between the Department and FTA.  All limits and standards set forth in this Agreement to be 
observed in the performance of the Project are minimum requirements and shall not affect the 
application to the performance of the Project of more restrictive local standards that are not 
inconsistent with the limits and standards of this Agreement. 

 
 The Grantee agrees that the most recent of such state and federal requirements, in effect at any 

particular time, will govern the administration of this Agreement except if there is sufficient 
evidence in the Agreement of a contrary intent.  Such contrary intent might be evidenced by a 
letter signed by the Department, the language of which modifies or otherwise conditions the text of 
a particular provision of this Agreement.  Likewise, new state and federal laws, regulations, 
policies and administrative practices may be established after the date the Agreement has been 
executed that may apply to this Agreement.  To achieve compliance with changing Government 
requirements, the Grantee agrees to include in all sub-grantee agreements and third party 
contracts, financed in whole or in part with Government assistance, specific notice that 
Government requirements may change and such changed requirements will apply to the Project.  
The Grantee and such contractors further agree to administer the Project in accordance with the 
applicable federal and state provisions, including all applicable FTA Circulars and 49 CFR 
Parts 18 & 19. 

 
C. Funds of the Grantee - The Grantee shall initiate and prosecute to completion all proceedings 

necessary to enable the Grantee to provide its share of the Project costs at or prior to the time that 
such funds are needed to meet Project costs. 

 
D. Changed Conditions Affecting Performance  (i.e., Disputes, Breaches, Defaults, or Litigation) - The 

Grantee shall immediately notify the Department of any change in conditions or local law, or of any 
other event which may significantly affect its ability to perform the Project in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
E. No Government Obligations to Third Parties - The Department and FTA shall not be subject to any 

obligations or liabilities by, through, or to contractors of the Grantee or their subcontractors, or to 
any other person not a party to this Agreement, in connection with the performance of this Project, 
without its express written consent, notwithstanding its concurrence in or approval of the award by 
the Department or FTA of any contract or subcontract or the solicitation thereof.  The Grantee 
agrees to include this clause in each contract and subcontract financed in whole or in part with 
federal and/or state assistance. 

 
F. Illinois Law - Notwithstanding federal preemption, this Agreement shall be construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. 
 
G. Grantee’s Responsibility for Compliance - Irrespective of the participation of other parties or third 

party contractors in connection with the Project, the Grantee shall continue to have primary 
responsibility to the Department and FTA for compliance with all applicable federal and state 
requirements, statutes, regulations, executive orders, and/or the Master Agreements between the 
Department and FTA (a copy of which is incorporated herein by reference) or the Grant 
Agreement for this Project. 

ITEM 8 - CONTINUANCE OF SERVICE 

 
The Grantee agrees to use its best efforts to continue to provide, either directly, through a service 
agreement, or by contract, as the case may be, the service(s) for which these Project Facilities are being 
acquired or constructed, as such service(s) is described in the Grantee's final, approved application.  No 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  8 

reduction or termination of such service shall be made without compliance with all applicable statutory 
and regulatory provisions.  At least thirty (30) days prior to (a) any reduction or termination of such 
service or (b) the filing of a request for such reduction or termination with the appropriate regulatory 
agency, whichever comes first, the Grantee shall give written notice of the proposed action (or shall 
require the operator of such service to give such notice) to the Department and all units of local 
government within the Grantee's service area. 

ITEM 9 – REAL PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 

 
The Grantee acknowledges that the federal government retains an interest in the Project 
Facilities until, and to the extent, that the federal government relinquishes its interest in such 
Project Facilities.  Unless otherwise approved by the Department, the following conditions apply 
to Project Facilities financed under this Agreement: 
 
A. Use of Project Facilities - The Grantee agrees that the Project Facilities will be used for the 

provision of mass transportation service within the Grantee's service area substantially in the 
manner described in the Grantee's final, approved application.  Project Facilities may be used for 
incidental charter or sight-seeing services when not needed for mass transportation service 
operations.  Such Project Facilities shall be used for (a) a period of twenty (20) years from the 
completion of the Project, or (b) the period of the useful life of such Project Facilities as determined 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and Department guidelines, 
whichever period of time is less (provided, however, real property acquired with federal funds shall 
be used for the originally authorized purposes of this Agreement for such longer period as may be 
required pursuant to 49 CFR Part 18.31 or other federal law).  If, during such period, such Project 
Facilities are not used for the Project as required by the terms of this Agreement, or are sold or 
otherwise disposed of, or are withdrawn from mass transportation service at the initiative of the 
Grantee, the Grantee shall immediately notify the Department, and shall at the Department's 
discretion, and as provided in Department guidelines, remit to the State a proportional amount of 
the fair market value, if any, of such Project Facilities. 

 
If the Project Facilities include commuter parking, the Parties agree that users of the commuter 
parking facilities funded by this Grant may be charged a fee for the use of such facilities, but the 
amount of such fee shall be so established to meet reasonable maintenance and operating 
expenses, and to establish a sinking fund to cover major rehabilitation, or for other mass 
transportation related purposes as approved by the Department in writing.  The Project Facilities 
shall be equally available for use by all commuters regardless of the place of residence, and there 
shall be no difference in the amount of fees charged to users of such commuter parking facilities 
based on place of residence. 
 
The Grantee shall keep satisfactory records with regard to the use of the Project Facilities and 
shall submit to the Department upon request such information as the Department may require in 
order to assure compliance with this ITEM, and the Grantee shall immediately notify the 
Department in all cases where Project Facilities are used in a manner substantially different from 
that described in the Grantee’s final, approved application.  The Grantee shall maintain in 

amount(s) and form satisfactory to the Department, such insurance or self-insurance as will be 
adequate to protect Project Facilities throughout the period of required use.  The cost of such 
insurance shall not be an item of allowable cost under this Agreement.  The Grantee shall also 
submit, from time to time, to the Department upon request, a certification that the Project Facilities 
are still being used in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and further certify that no part 
of the local contribution to the cost of the Project has been refunded or reduced. 
 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  9 

B. Maintenance - The Grantee agrees to maintain any Project Facilities at a high level of cleanliness, 
safety, and mechanical soundness and in accordance with any guidelines, directives, or 
regulations that the Department, FTA, manufacturer, or contractor may issue (the stricter standard 
to apply unless expressly excused by the Department), including 49 CFR Parts 18.31 - 18.34 and 
19.30 - 19.37.  For vehicles, the manufacturer’s suggested maintenance and inspection schedule 

will be considered the minimum maintenance standard that must be adhered to.  For vehicles, the 
Grantee must establish and follow a written maintenance plan which includes pre-trip inspections, 
a preventive maintenance program, and documentation of repairs.  The Department and/or FTA 
shall have the right to conduct periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper 
maintenance pursuant to this Section. The Department reserves the right to require the Grantee to 
restore, repair or replace Project Facilities or pay for damage as a result of abuse, neglect, or 
misuse of such Project Facilities. 

 
If, at any time during the useful life of the Project Facilities, any of the Project Facilities are not 
used for the purposes specified in this Agreement, whether by planned withdrawal, misuse or 
casualty loss, the Grantee shall immediately notify and receive approval from the Department prior 
to disposing of such Project Facilities.  Any such disposition shall be in accordance with 
Department procedures and this Agreement. 

 
C. Transfer of Project Property 
 

1. Grantee Request - The Grantee may transfer Project Facilities financed in whole or in part 
by the Government to an eligible recipient to be used for any public or specialized purpose 
with no further obligation to the Government, provided that the transfer is authorized by the 
Department, and FTA, if necessary, and conforms with the applicable requirements of 
49 U.S.C. § 5334(h)(1) through 5334(h)(3). 

 
2. Government Direction - The Grantee agrees that the Government may require the Grantee 

to transfer title to any Project Facilities financed with federal and/or state assistance made 
available by this Agreement to the State or others.  The Grantee also agrees that the 
Government may direct the disposition of Project Facilities financed with federal and/or state 
assistance funds made available under this Agreement, or otherwise account for Project 
Facilities, as set forth by 49 CFR Parts 18.31 and 18.32. 

 
 
 
D. Withdrawn Property 
 

If any Project Facilities are not used in mass transportation service for the duration of their useful 
life as determined by the Department, whether by planned withdrawal, misuse or casualty loss, the 
Grantee agrees to notify the Department thereof within thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date of 
disposition. 

 
1. Federal and/or State Interest in Property - Unless otherwise approved by the Government, 

the Grantee agrees to remit to the Department the Government interest in the fair market 
value of any of the Project Facilities whose unit value exceeds $5,000, or the Project 
Facility, at the option of the Department.  The portion of that interest shall be determined on 
the basis of the ratio of the assistance provided by the Government for the particular Project 
Facility to the actual cost of the Project.  In the event the Project Facility is prematurely 
destroyed by fire, casualty, or natural disaster, the Grantee may, alternatively, fulfill its 
responsibilities with respect to the damaged facilities by investing an amount equal to the 
value of the remaining Government interest in like-kind facilities that are eligible for 
assistance within the scope of the Project. 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  10 

2. Fair Market Value - The following requirements apply to the calculation of fair market value: 
 

a. Project Facilities - Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Department, the fair 
market value of any of the Project Facilities to be withdrawn will be the value at the 
time immediately before the occurrence that prompted the withdrawal of the Project 
Facilities from mass transportation use.  The fair market value shall be calculated by 
one of the following: (1) appraised value consistent with state standards and federal 
standards, 49 CFR Part 24; (2) on a straight line depreciation of the Project Facilities, 
based on a useful life approved by the Department irrespective of the reason for 
withdrawal of Project Facilities from  mass transportation use; or (3) the actual 
proceeds from the public sale of such property, whichever method is approved by the 
Department with an objective to obtain the highest fair market value.  Any appraiser 
employed for such purposes shall have experience in appraising similar project 
equipment and facilities in accordance with state and federal standards.  The fair 
market value of any of the Project Facilities lost or damaged by casualty or fire will be 
calculated on the basis of the condition of such property immediately before the 
casualty or fire, irrespective of the extent of insurance coverage. 

 
b. Exceptional Circumstances - The Government, however, reserves the right to require 

another method of valuation to be used if determined to be in the best interest of the 
Government.  In unusual circumstances, the Grantee may request that the 
Government approve the use of another reasonable method of determining fair market 
value, including but not limited to accelerated depreciation, comparable sales, or 
estimated market values.  In determining whether to approve an alternate method, the 
Government may consider any action taken, omission made, or unfortunate 
occurrence suffered by the Grantee with respect to the preservation or conservation of 
the value of the particular item of property that, for any reason, has been withdrawn 
from service. 

 
E. Disposition of Property - After the end of its useful life, if any fixed facility (in whole or in part) or 

revenue service vehicle funded through this Agreement is planned to be disposed of, the Grantee 
shall notify the Department thereof not later than thirty (30) days prior to planned disposition. 

 
F. Misused or Damaged Property - If damage to any of the Project Facilities results from abuse, 

neglect, or misuse that has taken place with the Grantee’s knowledge and consent, the Grantee 

agrees that the Government may require the Grantee to restore the Project Facilities to their 
original condition at the Grantee’s sole expense, or refund the fair market value of the Government 

interest in such damaged Project Facilities. 
 
G. Obligations After Project Close-Out - A Grantee that is a governmental entity agrees that project 

close-out will not alter its property management obligations set forth in this Agreement and as 
required by 49 CFR Parts 18.31 and 18.32. 

 
H. Encumbrance of Project Property - Unless expressly authorized in writing by the Government, the 

Grantee agrees to refrain from: 
 

1. Executing any transfer of title, lease, lien, pledge, mortgage, encumbrance, contract, grant 
anticipation note, alienation, or other obligation that in any way would affect the Government 
interest in any of the Project Facilities; or 

 
2. Obligating itself in any manner to any third party which could result in an encumbrance of any 

of the Project Facilities. 
 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  11 

I. Insurance Proceeds - If the Grantee receives insurance proceeds as a result of damage or 
destruction to the Project Facilities, the Grantee agrees to (i) apply those insurance proceeds to 
the cost of replacing the damaged or destroyed Project Facilities, or (ii) return to the Department 
an amount equal to the remaining Government interest in the damaged or destroyed Project 
Facilities. 

ITEM 10 - ETHICS 

 
A. Code of Conduct 
 

1. Personal Conflict of Interest - The Grantee shall maintain a written code or standard of 
conduct which shall govern the performance of its employees, officers, board members or 
agents engaged in the award and administration of contracts supported by federal or state 
funds.  Such code shall provide that no employee, officer, board member, or agent of the 
Grantee may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by 
federal or state funds if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved.  Such a 
conflict would arise when any of the parties set forth below has a financial or other interest in 
the firm selected for award: 

 
a. The employee, officer, board member, or agent; 
 
b. Any member of his or her immediate family; 
 
c. His or her partner; or 
 
d. An organization that employs, or is about to employ, any of the above. 

 
The conflict of interest restriction for former employees, officers, board members and agents 
shall apply for one year. 

 
The code shall also provide that the Grantee's employees, officers, board members or 
agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from 
contractors, potential contractors, or parties to sub-agreements. The Department may waive 
the prohibition contained in this subsection, provided that any such present employee, 
officer, board member, or agent shall not participate in any action by the Grantee or the 
locality relating to such contract, subcontract, or arrangement. 
 
The code shall also prohibit the officers, employees, board members, or agents of the 
Grantee from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance 
of personal or organizational conflict of interest or personal gain, 

 
2. Organizational Conflict of Interest - The Grantee will also prevent any real or apparent 

organizational conflict of interest.  An organizational conflict of interest exists when the 
nature of the work to be performed under a proposed third party contract or subcontract 
may, without some restriction on future activities, result in an unfair competitive advantage to 
the third party contractor or the Grantee or impair the objectivity in performing the contract 
work. 

 
B. Interest of Members of or Delegates to Congress - No member of or delegate to the Congress of 

the United States shall be admitted to any share or part of this Project or any benefit therefrom. 
 
C. Bonus or Commission - The Grantee warrants that no person or selling agency has been 

employed or retained to solicit or secure this Grant or Agreement, upon an agreement or 
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. The State shall have 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  12 

the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or at its discretion to deduct such commission or 
fee.  No State officer or employee, or member of the State General Assembly or of any unit of 
local government who or which contributes to the Project Funds shall be allowed to share in any 
part of this Agreement or to any benefits arising therefrom. 

 
D. False or Fraudulent Statements or Claims - The Grantee acknowledges that if it makes a false, 

fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Government in 
connection with this Project, the Government reserves the right to impose on the Grantee the 
penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001;  49 U.S.C. § 5307; The Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 
as amended,  31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 et seq.; and U.S. DOT regulations, “Program Fraud Civil 

Remedies”, 49 CFR Part 31, as the Government may deem appropriate.  The Grantee agrees to 
include this clause in all state and federal assisted contracts and subcontracts. 

 
E. Lobbying - The Grantee agrees that it will not use federal assistance to support federal or state 

lobbying, and will not use federal funds to support activities designed to influence U.S. Congress 
or the state legislature.  The Grantee certifies that it has complied with 31 U.S.C § 1352, as 
amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 and 49 CFR Part 20.  The Grantee has signed 
the attached Lobbying Certification (as part of Exhibit C) and will incorporate it in its applicable 
third party contracts and require a comparable certification from its contractors or subcontractors. 

 
F. Debarment - The Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of Executive Order No. 12549 

and 12689, “Debarment and Suspension,” 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, and U.S. Department of 
Transportation regulations, “Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” 2 CFR Part 1200, 
which adopts and supplements the provisions of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
“Guidelines to Agencies on Governmental Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” 2 CFR 
Part 180.  The Grantee also agrees to obtain certifications on Debarment and Suspension from its 
third party contractors and subcontracts and otherwise comply with Government regulations.  The 
Grantee has signed the attached Debarment Certification (as part of Exhibit C). 

 
G. Bribery - Nongovernmental grantees and third party contractors shall certify that they have not 

been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe an officer or employee of the State of Illinois or 
local government, nor has the Grantee made an admission of guilt of such conduct which is a 
matter of record, nor has an official, agent or employee of such grantees or third party contractors 
committed bribery or attempted bribery on behalf of the firm and pursuant to the direction or 
authorization of a responsible official of the Grantee.  Such grantees and third party contractors 
shall further certify that they have not been barred from contracting with a unit of the State or local 
government as a result of a violation of Section 33E-3 or 33E-4 of the Illinois Criminal Code. 

 
H. Trafficking in Persons - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to comply with, and assures 

the compliance of its contractors and subcontractors with, the requirements of the subsection 
106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000, as amended, 22 U.S.C.§ 7104(g), and 
with “Trafficking Persons: Grants and Cooperative Agreements”, 2 CFR Part 175. 

ITEM 11 – ACCOUNTING, RECORDS, AND ACCESS 

 
A. Project Accounts - The Grantee shall establish and maintain, as a separate set of accounts or as 

an integral but identifiable part of its current accounting scheme, accounts for the Project (“Project 

Account”) in conformity with requirements established by the Government. 
 
B. Funds Received or Made Available for the Project – The Grantee shall appropriately record in the 

Project Account, and deposit in a federally insured bank or trust company, all Grant payments 
received by it from the Department pursuant to this Agreement and all other funds provided for, 
accruing to, or otherwise received on account of the Project, which Department payments and 
other funds are herein collectively referred to as "Project Funds". 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  13 

 
The Grantee shall require the depositories of Project Funds to secure continuously and fully all 
Project Funds in excess of the amounts insured under federal plans, or under state plans which 
have been approved for the deposit of the Project Funds by the Department, by the deposit or 
setting aside of collateral of the types and in the manner as described by state law for the security 
of public funds or as approved by FTA. 

 
The Grantee agrees to report to the Department, at such other times as the Department may 
prescribe in writing, the amounts recorded, as required above, in the Project Account. 

 
All Project Funds held by the Grantee over one (1) month shall draw interest and the amount of 
such interest earned shall be reported to the Department in the quarterly Project Account report.  
Such interest shall be applied to the Net Project Cost as directed by the Department. 

 
C. Eligible Costs - Expenditures made by the Grantee shall be reimbursable as eligible costs to the 

extent they meet all of the requirements set forth below.  They must: 
 

1. be made in conformance with the Grantee’s final approved application and the Approved 

Project Budget and all other provisions of this Agreement; 
 
2. be necessary in order to accomplish the Project; 
 
3. be reasonable in amount for the goods or services purchased; 
 
4. be actual net costs to the Grantee (i.e., the price paid minus any refunds, rebates, or other 

items of value received by the Grantee that have the effect of reducing the cost actually 
incurred); 

 
5. be incurred (and be for work performed) after the date of this Agreement, unless specific 

authorization from the Department to the contrary is received in writing; 
 
6. be in conformance with the standards for allowability of costs established by the 

Department; 
 
7. be satisfactorily documented; 

 
8. be treated uniformly and consistently under accounting principles and procedures approved 

or prescribed by the Department for the Grantee; and those approved or prescribed by the 
Grantee for its contractors; 

 
9. be eligible support and supervisory costs, but only for grantees for whom the Department 

has approved such costs.  Such support and supervisory costs mean those supervisory 
costs allocated to the capital project based on an approved cost allocation plan, and support 
services costs.  Provided however, that the Department will not consider for approval a cost 
allocation plan that has not been approved by either the FTA or the Grantee’s cognizant 

federal agency; and, provided further, that the support costs shall not exceed two (2) percent 
of the amount of any grant for the purchase of rolling stock and six (6) percent of the amount 
of any grant for all other types of capital projects; and 

 
10. not be expenditures incurred by the Grantee which exceed the amount budgeted for a 

specific project line item (i.e. project element, job order or item) unless, at the time of 
completion of the project line item, those expenditures meet all of the following 
requirements: 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  14 

a. Justification, satisfactory to the Department, is provided to explain the reason for the 
overexpenditure and why that overexpenditure was not anticipated prior to exceeding 
the budget for the project line item; 

 
b. The budget for the project line item covers the full scope of the project line item, i.e., 

the budget of the project line item is intended to be adequate for the completion of the 
project line item (including, but not limited to, all engineering, material procurement, or 
construction); 

 
c. The amount by which the expenditures exceed the budget for the project line item is 

less than $10,000 or five percent of the approved budget of the project line item, 
whichever is less; 

 
d. There are sufficient unspent funds in Contingencies which may be reallocated to the 

budget of the project line item; 
 
e. The funds remaining in Contingencies after reallocation of the funds to the budget of 

the project line item are sufficient, as determined by the Department,  to provide for 
the uncompleted portions of all project line items described in the Agreement; and 

 
f.  The increased expenditure will not cause the allowable Grant for the Project to be 

exceeded. 
 

However, in the event that it may be impractical to determine exact costs of indirect or service 
functions, eligible costs will include such allowances for these costs as may be approved by the 
Department. 

 
D. Documentation of Project Costs - All costs charged to the Project, including any approved services 

contributed by the Grantee or others, shall be supported by properly executed payrolls, time 
records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers evidencing in detail the nature and propriety of the 
charges, in form and  content satisfactory to the Department. 

 
E. Checks, Orders, and Vouchers - Any check or order drawn by the Grantee with respect to any item 

which is or will be chargeable against the Project Account will be drawn only in accordance with a 
properly signed voucher then on file in the office of the Grantee stating in proper detail the purpose 
of which such check or order is drawn.  All checks, payrolls, invoices, contracts, vouchers, orders, 
or other accounting documents pertaining in whole or in part to the Project shall be clearly 
identified, readily accessible, and, to the extent feasible, kept separate and apart from all other 
documents. 

 
F. Record Retention - The Grantee  shall maintain (and shall cause its contractors and 

subcontractors to maintain), for a minimum of three (3) years after the completion of the 
Agreement, (which shall occur after the completion of settlement of audit findings), all books, 
records, and supporting documents to verify the amounts, receipts, disbursements, names of  
recipients, and uses of all funds passing in conjunction with the Agreement; the Agreement and all 
books, records, and supporting documents related to the Agreement shall be available for review 
and audit by the Auditor General, the Department, or FTA (hereinafter "Auditing Parties"); and the 
Grantee agrees to cooperate fully with any audit conducted by the Auditing Parties and to provide 
full access to all relevant materials.  Failure to maintain the books, records, and supporting 
documents required by this section shall establish a presumption in favor of the Government for 
the recovery of any funds paid by the Department under the Agreement for which adequate books, 
records, and supporting documentation are not available to support their purported disbursement. 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  15 

G. General Audit and Inspection - Pursuant to all applicable Office of Management & Budget 
Circulars, the Grantee shall permit, and shall require its contractors to permit, the Department or 
any other state or federal agency authorized to perform audits and inspections, to inspect all work, 
work sites, materials, payrolls, and other data and records, with regard to the Project, and to audit 
the books records and accounts of the Grantee and its contractors with regard to the Project as 
required by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(g).  The Department may also require the Grantee to furnish at any 
time prior to close-out of the Project, audit reports prepared according to generally accepted 
accounting principles.  The Grantee agrees to comply promptly with recommendations contained 
in the Department's final audit report. 

 
H. Unused Funds - The Grantee agrees that upon completion of the Project, and after payment or 

provision for payment or reimbursement of all eligible costs, the Grantee shall refund to the 
Department any unexpended balance of the Grant.  Prior to close-out, however, the Department 
reserves the right to deobligate unspent funds. 

 
I. Access to Records of Grantees - The Grantee agrees to permit the U.S. Secretary of 

Transportation, the Comptroller General of the United States, and to the extent appropriate, the 
State, or their authorized representatives, upon their request to inspect all Project work, materials, 
payrolls, and other data, and to audit the books, records, and accounts of the Grantee pertaining 
to the Project, as required by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(g).  The Grantee further agrees to provide, at as 
many tiers of the Project as required, sufficient access to records as needed for compliance with 
federal regulations or to assure proper Project management as determined by the Government. 

ITEM 12 - REQUISITIONS AND PAYMENTS 

 
A. Requests for Payment by the Grantee - The Grantee must submit written requisitions for 

reimbursement of eligible costs, and the Department will honor any properly submitted requests in 
the manner set forth in this ITEM.  In order to receive grant payments pursuant to this Agreement, 
the Grantee must: 

 
1. complete, execute and submit to the Department requisition forms supplied by the 

Department in accordance with the instructions contained therein; 
 
2. submit to the Department an explanation of the purposes for which costs have been incurred 

to date or are reasonably expected to be incurred within the requisition period (not more 
than thirty (30) days after the date of submission or as otherwise authorized by the 
Department) and any vouchers, invoices, or other documentation, satisfactory to the 
Department to substantiate these costs; 

 
3. where local funds are required, demonstrate or certify that the Grantee has supplied local 

funds adequate, when combined with the state and federal payments, to cover all costs to 
be incurred through the end of the requisition period; 

 
4. have submitted all financial and progress reports currently required by the Department; and 
 
5. have received approval by the Department for all budget revisions required to cover all costs 

to be incurred through the end of the requisition period. 
 
B. Payment by the Department - Only costs incurred in accordance with the terms and conditions of 

this Agreement shall be reimbursable.  Upon receipt of the requisition form and the accompanying 
information, in form satisfactory to the Department, the Department will process the requisition, 
provided that the Grantee is not in violation of any of the terms of this Agreement, has satisfied the 
Department of its need for the funds requested during the requisition period, and is making 
progress, satisfactory to the Department, towards the timely completion of the Project.  If all of 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  16 

these circumstances are found to exist, the Department will reimburse apparent allowable costs 
incurred (or to be incurred during the requisition period) by the Grantee, from time to time, but not 
in excess of the maximum amount of the Grant therefore as shown in the Approved Project 
Budget.  Requisitions may not be submitted more frequently than monthly.  Reimbursement of any 
cost pursuant to this Agreement shall not constitute a final determination by the Department of the 
allowability of such cost, and such payment shall not constitute a waiver of any violation of the 
terms of this Agreement committed by the Grantee.  The Department will make a final 
determination as to allowability of any payments made to the Grantee only after a final audit of the 
Project has been concluded. 

 
In the event the Department determines that the Grantee is not currently eligible to receive any or 
all of the funds requested, it shall promptly notify the Grantee stating the reasons for such 
determination. 

 
C. Disallowed Costs - In determining the amount of the Grant, the Department will exclude: (i) all 

Project costs incurred by the Grantee prior to the date of this Agreement, or other date specifically 
established by the Department, whichever is earlier; (ii) costs incurred by the Grantee which are 
not provided for in the latest Approved Project Budget; and (iii) except as otherwise provided in 
Department guidelines, costs attributable to goods or services received under a contract or other 
arrangement which has not been concurred in or approved in writing by the Department.  Costs of 
construction performed by employees of the Grantee will also be disallowed as eligible Project 
costs unless the use of such employees is specifically approved in advance by the Department. 

 
D. Excluded Costs – Upon notification to the Grantee that specific amounts are owed to the 

Government, whether for federal claims or state claims for funds recovered from a third party or 
elsewhere, for excess payments, or for disallowed costs, the Grantee agrees to remit to the 
Government promptly the amount owed, including any interest due. 

 
 The Grantee agrees that the amount of interest due depends on whether or not the principal 

portion of the dept is treated as a Government claim or is treated as a debt owed to the 
Government.  Thus, the Grantee agrees to remit interest to the Government in accordance with 
the following: 

 
1. For claims pursuant to the Debt Collection Act of 1982, as amended, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3701 et 

seq., the Grantee agrees that the interest will be calculated in accordance with the 
provisions of joint U.S. Treasury/U.S. DOJ regulations, “Standards for the Administrative 

Collection of Claims”, at 31 CFR Parts 901.9(a)-(g). 
 

2. For excess payments made by the Government to the Grantee that do not qualify as a 
“claim” for purposes of the Debt Collection Act of 1982, as amended, the Grantee agrees 

that the amount of interest depends on whether the Grantee is a state instrumentality or not. 
 

A Grantee that is a state instrumentality agrees that interest will be calculated as provided by U.S. 
Treasury regulations, “Rules and Procedures for Efficient Federal-State Funds Transfers’, 31 CFR 
Part 205. 

 
A Grantee that is not a state instrumentality agrees that common law interest will be calculated as 
permitted by joint U.S. Treasury and U.S. Department of Justice regulations, “Standards for the 

Administrative Collection of Claims”, at 31 CFR Part 901.9(i). 
 
All grants, payments, and obligations of the State under this Agreement are subject to the receipt of 
funds by the State from FTA and/or the "Acts."  The State shall not be liable to the Grantee for any 
failure or delay in performance of its obligations to the Grantee, including but not limited to delays in 
making payments to the Grantee.  No debt, payment or obligation of the State or FTA to the Grantee 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  17 

under this Agreement shall be a general obligation of the Government, but shall be payable, if at all, only 
from funds received by the State from FTA and from the "Acts." 

ITEM 13 - RIGHT OF DEPARTMENT TO TERMINATE 

 
Upon written notice to the Grantee, the Department reserves the right to suspend or terminate all or part 
of the financial assistance herein provided for (i) when the Grantee is or has been in violation of the 
terms of this Agreement, (ii) for Department convenience, or (iii) when the Department determines, in its 
sole discretion, that the purposes of the Acts authorizing the Grant would not be adequately served by 
continuation of Government financial assistance to the Project.  Termination of any part of the Grant will 
not invalidate obligations properly incurred by the Grantee and concurred in by the Department prior to 
the date of termination, to the extent they are non-cancelable.  Neither the acceptance of a remittance by 
the Department of any or all Project Funds from the Grantee nor the closing out of Government financial 
participation in the Project shall constitute a waiver of any claim which the Government may otherwise 
have arising out of this Agreement. 
 
Upon the occurrence of any condition or conditions listed in this ITEM for termination or suspension, the 
Parties agree that the Government, by written notice to the Grantee, may elect to withhold or delay 
payment as provided in the Approved Project Budget, or any portion thereof; or, if payment or payments 
have already been made pursuant hereto, to recall such payment or payments or any portion thereof.  
The Grantee agrees that upon receipt of such notice of recall, the Grantee shall immediately return such 
Grant payment or payments, or any portion thereof, which the Grantee has received pursuant hereto. 
 
The foregoing remedies shall become available to the Department if the Grantee violates the terms of 
this Agreement and/or if one or more of the following occurs: 
 
A. There is any misrepresentation of a material nature in the Grantee's Application, or amendment 

thereof, or otherwise in respect to this Agreement or in any document or data furnished pursuant 
hereto, or in any other submission of the Grantee to the Department in connection with the Grant; 

 
B. There is pending litigation which, in the opinion of the Secretary of the Department, may 

jeopardize the Grant or the carrying out of this Agreement; 
 
C. There has been, in connection with the Grant, any violation of the state or federal regulations, 

ordinances or statutes applicable to the Grantee, its officers or employees which, in the opinion of 
the Department, affects this Agreement; 

 
D. Any funds provided by the Department pursuant to this Agreement are used for an ineligible 

purpose; 
 

E. The Grantee is unable to substantiate the proper use of the Grant provided pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

 
F. The Grantee is in default under any of the provisions of this Agreement; 
 
G. There is a failure to make progress which, in the judgment of the Department, significantly 

endangers substantial completion of performance of the Project within a reasonable time; 
 
H. The Grantee has failed to maintain the Project Facilities as required by this Agreement; 
 
I. The Department determines that the purposes of the Acts would not be adequately served by 

continuation of state or federal assistance to the Project; or 
 
J. The State Legislature fails to make sufficient appropriations for this Grant. 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  18 

 
The Grantee shall include similar provisions for suspension or termination in its third party contracts.  
Such contracts shall also describe conditions under which the contract may be terminated for default and 
for circumstances beyond the control of the contractor or subcontractor. 

ITEM 14 - PROJECT SETTLEMENT AND CLOSE-OUT 

 
Upon receipt of notice of successful completion of the Project or upon termination by the Department, 
the Department shall perform a final audit of the Project to determine the allowability of costs incurred, 
and shall make a final determination of amounts due to the Grantee under this Agreement.  If the 
Department has made payment to the Grantee in excess of the total amount of such Grant, as 
determined by final audit, the Grantee shall promptly remit such excess to the Department.  The Project 
close-out occurs when the Department notifies the Grantee that the Project is closed-out and forwards 
the final Grant payment, as determined by final audit, to the Grantee, or when an appropriate refund of 
state and federal Grant funds, as determined by final audit, has been received from the Grantee and 
acknowledged by the Department.  Close-out shall be subject to any continuing obligations imposed on 
the Grantee by this Agreement or contained in the final notification or acknowledgment from the 
Department. 

ITEM 15 - GRANTEE'S WARRANTIES 

 
The Grantee represents that it has lawfully entered into this Agreement.  The Grantee further agrees to 
initiate and consummate any and all other actions that may later be necessary to make this a legal and 
binding obligation and agreement of the Grantee.  The Grantee warrants that there is no provision of its 
charter or by-laws, or any rules, regulations, or legislation which prohibits, voids, or otherwise renders 
unenforceable against the Grantee any provision or any clause of this Agreement or any law referred to 
in this Agreement.  The Grantee warrants further (i) that it has paid all federal, state and local taxes 
levied or imposed and will continue to do so, excepting only those which may be contested in good faith, 
(ii) that the Grantee has or will obtain all licenses, permits or other authorizations required to meet the 
obligations assumed hereunder and (iii) that the Grantee will comply with all lawful statutes, ordinances, 
rules, and regulations as may apply to the obligations assumed hereunder.  The Grantee agrees that, 
prior to Department execution of this Agreement, the Grantee will provide to the Department: 

 
A. An opinion of counsel, acceptable to the Department, that the Grantee is an eligible participant in 

the Project, that the Grantee has complied fully with the pertinent requirements of state and federal 
law, its charter, bylaws and internal procedures in entering into this Agreement; that there is no 
pending litigation concerning the authority of the Grantee to enter into and carry out this 
Agreement, and that this Agreement is legally binding upon the Grantee; 

 
B. A certified copy of the resolution of the Grantee’s governing board authorizing and approving 

execution of this Agreement; and 
 
C. An executed copy of the “IDOT & FTA Standard Certifications and Assurances for Grantees” 

which is referenced as Exhibit C (on file with the Department). 

ITEM 16 - CONTRACTS OF THE GRANTEE 

 
The Grantee shall not execute any contract or obligate itself in any other manner with any third party with 
respect to the Project, without the prior written approval by an authorized representative of the 
Department except where expressly provided otherwise in Department guidelines, or where specifically 
approved in writing by the Department.  Each contract entered into by the Grantee must be approved by 
the Department prior to the Grantee executing such contract, except as provided in Department 
guidelines. 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  19 

 
The Grantee shall include a requirement in all Grantee contracts with third parties that the contractor 
complies with the requirements of this Agreement in performing such contract, and that the contract be 
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

ITEM 17 - PROCUREMENT 

 
A. Contracts - All contracts for goods, property and services exceeding $10,000 must be approved by 

the Department prior to the Grantee executing or obligating itself to such contracts, unless 
otherwise specifically agreed to by the Department in writing.  Any such contract or subcontract 
approved by the Department shall contain all of the contract clauses provided pursuant to this 
Agreement, and to conform to the requirements of FTA Circular 4220.1E, “Third Party Contracting 
Requirements” November 1, 2008 and any later revisions thereto, and 49 CFR § 18.36 or at 
49 CFR §§ 19.40 through 19.48, and other applicable federal regulations pertaining to third party 
procurements and subsequent amendments thereto. The Grantee shall follow state and federal 
law and procedures (and local policies not inconsistent therewith) when awarding and 
administering contracts.  The Grantee agrees to give full opportunity for free, open and competitive 
procurement for each contract as required by state and federal law. 

 
B. Exclusionary or Discriminatory Specifications - Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by 

federal and state law, the Grantee agrees and shall require all of its contractors for the Project to 
agree that no federal or state funds shall be used to support procurement utilizing exclusionary or 
discriminatory specifications and it will comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5323(h). 

 
C. Award to Other Than the Lowest Bidder - In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5325(c), the Grantee 

may award a third party contract to other than the lowest bidder in connection with a procurement, 
only when such award furthers an objective (such as improved long-term operating efficiency and 
lower costs) consistent with the purposes of 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, and any implementing 
regulations that FTA may issue.    

 
D. Force Account - FTA and the Department reserve the right to refuse or limit their participation in 

force account costs. 
 
E. Capital Leases - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to comply with FTA regulations, 

“Capital Leases,” 49 CFR Part 639, and any revision thereto and state capital leasing guidelines. 
 
F. Buy America - Each third party contract (valued at more than $100,000 for Construction and 

Acquisition of Goods or Rolling Stock) utilizing FTA assistance must conform with 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5323(j), and FTA regulations, "Buy America Requirements,” 49 CFR Part 661 and any later 
amendments thereto.  The Grantee will include the applicable Buy America Certifications (as part 
of Exhibit C) and will incorporate its provisions as a part of every relevant third-party contract. 

 
G. Cargo Preference - Use of United States Flag Vessels - To the extent applicable, the Grantee 

agrees to comply with 46 CFR Part 381 and to insert the substance of those regulations in all 
applicable subcontracts issued pursuant to this Agreement.. 

 
H. Preference for Recycled Products - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to give 

preference to the purchase of recycled products for use in this Project pursuant to the various U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) guidelines, “Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines for 
Products Containing Recovered Materials,” 40 CFR Part 247, which implements Section 6002 of 
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6962.. 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  20 

I. Bus Testing - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of 
49 U.S.C. § 5318(e) and FTA regulations, "Bus Testing," 49 CFR Part 665, and any amendments 
to those regulations that may be promulgated. 

 
J. Geographic Restrictions - The Grantee and its contractors agree to refrain from using state or local 

geographic preferences, except those expressly mandated or encouraged by federal statute, and 
as permitted by the Department and FTA. 

 
K. Third Party Disputes or Breaches - The Grantee agrees to pursue all legal rights available to it in 

the enforcement or defense of any third party contract, and FTA and the Department reserve the 
right to concur in any compromise or settlement of any third party contract claim involving the 
Grantee.  The Grantee will notify FTA and the Department of any current or prospective major 
dispute pertaining to any third party contract.  If the Grantee seeks to name the Government as a 
party to the litigation, the Grantee agrees to inform both FTA and the Department before doing so.  
The Government retains a right to a proportionate share of any proceeds derived from any third 
party recovery.  Unless permitted otherwise by the Government, the Grantee will credit the Project 
Account with any liquidated damages recovered.  Nothing herein is intended to nor shall it waive 
FTA’s or the Department’s immunity to suit. 

 
L. Fly America - The Grantee will comply with the requirements of the International Air Transportation 

Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974, as amended, 49 U.S.C. § 40118, and with U.S. GSA 
regulations “Use of United States Flag Air Carriers,” 41 CFR Parts 301-10.131 through 301-
10.143. 

 
M. Relocation & Land Acquisition - The Grantee agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5324(a), which 

requires compliance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970, as amended,  42 U.S.C. §§ 4601 et seq., and U.S. DOT regulations  “Uniform 

Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for Federal and Federally Assisted 
Programs,” 49 CFR Part 24.  

 
N. Steel Products - The Grantee shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Steel Products Act, 

30 ILCS 565, when procuring such products for construction projects funded by state funds. 
 
O. National Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Architecture and Standards - To the extent 

applicable, the Grantee shall comply with the National Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS)  
Architecture and Standards  as required by the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU), as amended by the SAFETEA-LU 
Technical Corrections Act of  2008, Pub. L. No. 110-244, June 6, 2008, § 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. § 512 
note, and the provisions of FTA Notice “FTA National ITS Architecture Policy on Transit Projects,” 

66 Fed. Reg. 1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and any subsequent further implementing directives. 

ITEM 18 - THIRD PARTY CONTRACT CHANGES 

 
After approval thereof by the Department, no change or modification of the scope of the work or cost 
thereof shall be made to any contract of the Grantee, and no work shall commence and no costs or 
obligations incurred in consequence of such change or modification except as provided in Department 
guidelines, unless such change or modification is specifically approved in writing by the Department, 
and, where the budget is affected, until the Approved Project Budget has been amended by the 
Department as may be necessary to accommodate such change or modification. 

ITEM 19 - PRE-BID REVIEW 

 
Except as otherwise provided in Department guidelines or as otherwise specifically approved in writing 
by the Department, the Grantee agrees that, prior to advertising for any bids for any work to be 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  21 

performed, the Grantee shall submit one copy each of the proposed contract, plans and specifications, 
proposed advertisement for bids, and all related bidding documents, to the Department for approval.  
The bid invitation or advertisement shall include a statement that the contract to be let is subject to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement between the Grantee and the State. 

ITEM 20 - PRE-AWARD REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CONTRACTS AND APPROVAL OF 
EMINENT DOMAIN PROCEEDINGS 

 
Except as otherwise provided in Department guidelines or as otherwise specifically approved in writing 
by the Department, the Grantee agrees to obtain Department approval (i) prior to making any award to 
other than the low bidder, including but not limited to instances in which the Grantee determines that the 
low bid is not responsive or that the low bidder is not responsible or should be disqualified for other 
reasons; (ii) prior to award of any contract valued at $100,000 or more; and (iii) prior to award of any 
contract not competitively bid.  In addition, the Grantee shall obtain Department approval prior to 
instituting eminent domain proceedings. 

ITEM 21 - POST-AWARD REQUIREMENTS 

 
Within thirty (30) days after award of any third-party contract, the Grantee shall submit a copy of the 
executed contract and related documents as required by Department guidelines or when otherwise 
requested by the Department. 

ITEM 22 - ASSIGNMENT 

 
The Grantee agrees that this Agreement shall not be assigned, transferred, conveyed, sublet or 
otherwise disposed of without the prior written consent of the Department which consent may be 
withheld. 
 
The Grantee agrees that no contract for construction work or professional or consulting services of any 
kind in connection with the Project shall be assigned, transferred, conveyed, sublet or otherwise 
disposed of without the prior written consent of the Department. 

 

ITEM 23 - BONDING REQUIREMENTS 

 
The Grantee agrees that each contractor and subcontractor will comply with the applicable bonding 
requirements established by state and federal guidelines for various contracts and subcontracts for the 
type of work involved in this Agreement.  Such bonding requirements may include bonds for bids, 
performance, payment, advance payment, patent infringement, warranty of work, or maintenance bonds 
for both construction or non-construction contracts. 

ITEM 24 - COOPERATION IN CONNECTION WITH INSPECTION 

 
In connection with any inspection on behalf of the Department under this Agreement, the Grantee 
agrees to cooperate fully by making available to the Department reports of all prior inspections (including 
quality control and safety) and by performing such analyses and tests and furnishing of reports thereof 
as may be reasonably requested by the Department, and by allowing Department representatives to 
carry out any and all physical inspections of Project Facilities and examinations of Project records 
thereof, as may be requested, from time to time, by the Department.  All such inspections shall be 
performed with minimum disruption or interference with the service provided or supported by this 
Agreement.  The results or conclusions of such inspections, tests, and reports shall not be construed as 
altering in any way the Grantee's responsibility to conform its work to this Agreement to maintain and 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  22 

repair Project Facilities, maintain its work schedule, and to meet any other obligation assumed by the 
Grantee hereunder. 

ITEM 25 - INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

 
The Grantee agrees to save harmless and indemnify the Government, and its officials, employees and 
agents, from any and all losses, expenses, damages (including loss of use), suits, demands and claims 
and shall defend any suit or action, whether at law or in equity, brought based on any alleged injury 
(including death) or damage arising from the actions or inactions of the Grantee, and/or the Grantee’s 

employees, officials, agents, contractors and subcontractors, and shall pay all damages, judgments, 
costs,  expenses, and fees, including attorney's fees, incurred by the Government and its officials, 
employees and agents in connection therewith. 
 
The Grantee agrees that it will maintain or cause to be maintained, for the duration of the Project, such 
self-insurance or policies of insurance as will protect the Grantee from any or all claims for damages to 
property (including applicable flood insurance) or for bodily injury (including death), which may arise from 
or in connection with the operations, actions, or inactions hereunder by the Grantee, or by anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by or associated with it, and the Grantee shall at all times during the 
Project maintain and furnish the Department with current certificate(s) evidencing all such required 
insurance coverage with the Government named as an additional insured and protected party where 
appropriate.  The cost of such insurance carried by the Grantee shall not be an item of eligible Project 
Cost. 

ITEM 26 - NON-WAIVER 

 
The Grantee agrees that in no event shall any action or inaction on behalf of or by the Department, 
including the making by the Department of any payment under this Agreement, constitute or be 
construed as a waiver by the Department of any breach by the Grantee of any terms of this Agreement  
or any default on the part of the Grantee which may then exist; and any action, including the making of a 
payment by the Department, while any such breach or default shall exist, shall in no way impair or 
prejudice any right or remedy available to the Department in respect to such breach or default.  The 
remedies available to the Department under this Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive.  The 
waiver or exercise of any remedy shall not be construed as a waiver of any other remedy available 
hereunder or under general principles of law or equity. 

ITEM 27 - INDEPENDENCE OF GRANTEE 

 
In no event shall the Grantee or any of its employees, agents, contractors or subcontractors be 
considered agents or employees of the Government.  Furthermore, the Grantee agrees that none of its 
employees, agents, contractors or subcontractors will hold themselves out as, or claim to be, agents, 
officers or employees of the Government and will not by reason of any relationship with the Grant make 
any claim, demand or application to or for any right or privilege applicable to an agent, officer or 
employee of the Government including but not limited to, rights and privileges concerning worker's 
compensation and occupational diseases coverage, unemployment compensation benefits, Social 
Security coverage or retirement membership or credit. 

ITEM 28 - LABOR LAW COMPLIANCE 

 
A. General Labor Compliance - If applicable and except in a construction contract of $2,000 or less, 

and except in a third party contract for supplies, materials or articles ordinarily available on the 
open market, the Grantee agrees to comply with the Labor Law Compliance provisions of the 
current Federal Capital Grant Master Agreement pertaining to the Project, if any, and all applicable 
state and federal laws and regulations including, but not limited to, the following: laws and 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  23 

regulations relating to minimum wages to be paid to employees, limitations upon the employment 
of minors, minimum fair wage standards for minors, payment of wages due employees, and health 
and safety of employees.  The Grantee also agrees to require every contractor doing construction 
work or performing professional or consulting services in connection with the Project to agree to 
such compliance, including compliance with the statutory requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act, 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, and Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act. 

 
B. Standard Public Transportation Employee Protective Arrangements - To the extent that FTA 

determines that public transportation operations are involved, the Grantee agrees to carry out the 
public transportation operations work on the underlying contract in compliance with terms and 
conditions determined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to be fair and equitable to protect the 
interests of employees employed under this Grant and to meet the employee protective 
requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), and U.S. DOL guidelines, “Section 5333(b), Federal Transit 
Law,” 29 CFR Part 215, and any amendments thereto.  These terms and conditions are identified 
in the letter of certification from the U.S. DOL to FTA applicable to the FTA Grantee’s Project from 

which federal assistance is provided to support work on the underlying contract.  The Grantee 
agrees to carry out that work in compliance with the conditions stated in the U.S. DOL’s 

certification. The requirements of this subsection, however, do not apply to any agreement 
financed with federal assistance provided by FTA either for projects for elderly individuals and 
individuals with disabilities authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2) or subsection 3012(b) of 
SAFETEA-LU, for projects for nonurbanized areas authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311, or projects for 
the over-the-road bus accessibility program authorized by § 3038 of the Transportation Equity Act 
for the 21st Century (TEA-21), Pub. L. 105-178, June 9, 1998, as amended, and as amended by 
§ 3039 of SAFETEA-LU, 49 U.S.C. Section 5310 note.  Alternative provisions for those projects 
are set forth below. 

 
C. Public Transportation Employee Protective Arrangements for Elderly Individuals and Individuals 

with Disabilities  Formula Program and Pilot Program - To the extent that the U.S. Secretary of 
Transportation determines that employee protective arrangements required by 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for the Grantee participating in a project authorized by 
49 U.S.C. Section 5310(b)(2) or subsection 3012(b) of SAFETEA-LU, 49 U.S.C. Section 5310 
note, the Grantee agrees to carry out the Project in compliance with the terms and conditions of 
49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), in accordance with U.S. DOL guidelines, “Section 5333(b), Federal Transit 
Law,” 29 CFR Part 215 and any amendments thereto. 

 
 
D. Public Transportation Employee Protective Arrangements for Projects in Nonurbanized Areas - If 

the grant involves transit  operations financed in whole or in part with 49 U.S.C. § 5311 federal  
assistance, the Grantee agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of the most current  
Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized Area Program agreed to by the U.S. Secretaries of 
Transportation and Labor and the procedures implemented by U.S. DOL Guidelines in accordance 
with “Section 5333(b), Federal Transit Law,” 29 CFR Part 215, or any revisions thereto.  

 
E. Employee Protective Arrangements for Projects Financed by Over-the-Road Bus Accessibility 

Program - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of 
the most current Special Warranty for the Over-the-Road Buss Accessibility Program agreed to by 
the U.S. Secretary of Transportation and Labor, and with the U.S. DOT guidelines, 
“Section 5333(b), Federal Transit Law,” 29 CFR Part 215 and any revisions thereto. 

 
F. Third Party Contracts - The Grantee agrees to include any applicable requirements of this ITEM in 

each contract and subcontract involving transit operations financed in whole or in part with federal 
assistance provided by FTA. 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  24 

G. The Grantee agrees to comply with the specific U.S. Department of Labor Transit Employee 
Protective Requirements referenced as Exhibit E (on file with the Department). 

ITEM 29 - CIVIL RIGHTS 

 
A. Federal Nondiscrimination - The Grantee agrees to comply with, and assure the compliance by its 

third party contractors and subcontractors under this Project, with all requirements of Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.; Section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 
1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101; Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 
42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.; Federal Transit Law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332;  U.S. DOT regulations, 
"Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation -- 
Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act”, 49 CFR Part 21; and FTA Circular 4702.1A, “Title VI 
and Title VI – Dependent Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients”, May 13, 2007. 

 
B. Federal Equal Employment Opportunity - The following requirements apply to the Project and the 

Grantee agrees to include these requirements in each contract and subcontract financed in whole 
or in part with federal assistance provided by FTA:  

 
1. General Requirement:  The Grantee agrees as follows: 
 

a. Discrimination Prohibited - In accordance with 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, 49 U.S.C. § 5332, 
the Grantee agrees comply with any applicable federal statutes, executive orders, 
regulations, and federal policies including the U.S. Department of Labor regulations, 
“Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, 
Department of Labor,” 41 CFR Part 60 et seq., (which implement E.O. No. 11246, 
“Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by E.O. No. 11375, “Amending E.O. 

11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,”) that may in the future affect 

construction activities undertaken in the course of this Project.  The Grantee agrees to 
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are 
treated during their employment, without regard to race, color, creed, sex, age or 
national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, 
layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for 
training, including apprenticeship.  In addition, the Grantee agrees to comply with any 
implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

 
b. EEO Program Incorporated by Reference - If the Grantee is required to submit and 

obtain approval of its EEO program, that EEO program approved by the Government 
is incorporated by reference and made part of this Agreement.  Failure by the Grantee 
to carry out the terms of that EEO program shall be treated as a violation of this 
Agreement.  Upon notification of its failure to carry out the approved EEO program, 
the Government may impose such remedies as it considers appropriate, including 
termination of financial assistance, or other measures that may affect the Grantee’s 

eligibility to obtain future financial assistance in transportation projects.  
 

2.   Age - In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Grantee agrees to refrain from 
discrimination against present and prospective employees for reasons of age.  The Grantee 
further agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of 
1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq., with U.S. Health and Human Services 
regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving 

Financial Assistance, “ 45 CFR Part 90, and with The Age Discrimination in Employment Act 
(ADEA), 29 U.S.C. Sections 621 through 634 and with U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission regulations, “Age Discrimination in Employment Act,” 29 CFR Part 1625. 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  25 

3.   Disabilities - In accordance with 42 U.S.C. § 12101, the Grantee agrees that it will comply 
with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 1630, pertaining to the employment of persons with 
disabilities.  In addition, the Grantee agrees to comply with any implementing regulations 
FTA may issue. 

 
4.   Sex - In accordance with Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, as amended, 

20 U.S.C. §§ 1681 et seq., and with implementing federal regulations that prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of sex that may be applicable, the Grantee agrees to comply with 
prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of sex, and any federal requirements that 
may be promulgated. 

 
5.   Language Proficiency - In accordance with Executive Order No. 13166, the Grantee agrees 

to comply with the applicable provisions of said Executive Order “Improving Access to 
Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,”  42 U.S.C. Section 2000d-1 note and 
with the provisions of U.S. DOT Notice, “DOT Policy Guidance Concerning Recipient’s 

Responsibilities to Limited English Proficiency  Persons,” 70 Fed. Reg. 74087. 
December 14, 2005 

 
C. Illinois Human Rights Act - The Grantee shall comply with the "Equal Employment Opportunity 

Clause" required by the Illinois Department of Human Rights.  It is understood that the term 
“contractor” shall also mean “Grantee.”  The Equal Employment Opportunity Clause reads as 
follows and shall apply to the Project: 

 
In the event of the Grantee’s non-compliance with any provisions of the Illinois 
Equal Employment Opportunity Clause, the Illinois Human Rights Act Rules 
and Regulations of the Illinois Department of Human Rights (hereinafter 
“Department” for this subsection only), the Grantee may be declared ineligible 
for future contracts or subcontracts with the State of Illinois or any of its political 
subdivisions or municipal corporations, and the Agreement may be canceled or 
voided in whole or in part, and such other sanctions or penalties may be 
imposed or remedies invoked as provided by statute or regulation.  During the 
performance of this Agreement, the Grantee agrees as follows: 

 
1. That it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 
ancestry, age, physical or mental handicap unrelated to ability, or an 
unfavorable discharge from military service; and further that it will 
examine all job classifications to determine if minority persons or 
women are underutilized and will take appropriate affirmative action to 
rectify any such underutilization. 

 
2. That, if it hires additional employees in order to perform this contract or 

any portion thereof, it will determine the availability (in accordance with 
the Department’s Rules and Regulations) of minorities and women in 
the area(s) from which it may reasonably recruit and it will hire for each 
job classification for which employees are hired in such a way that 
minorities and women are not underutilized. 

 
3. That, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it or 

on its behalf, it will state that all applicants will be afforded equal 
opportunity without discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin or ancestry, physical or mental handicap unrelated to 
ability, or an unfavorable discharge from military service. 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  26 

4. That it will send to each labor organization or representative of workers 
with which it has or is bound by a collective bargaining or other 
agreement or understanding, a notice advising such labor 
organizations or representative of the Grantee's obligations under the 
Illinois Human Rights Act and the Department’s Rules and 

Regulations.  If any such labor organization or representative fails or 
refuses to cooperate with the Grantee in its efforts to comply with such 
Act and Rules and Regulations, the Grantee will promptly notify the 
Department and the contracting agency and will recruit employees 
from other sources when necessary to fulfill its obligations thereunder. 

 
5. That it will submit reports as required by the Department’s Rules and 

Regulations, furnish all relevant information as may from time to time 
be requested by the Department or the contracting agency, and in all 
respects comply with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the 
Department’s Rules and Regulations. 

 
6. That it will permit access to all relevant books, records, accounts, and 

work sites by personnel of the contracting agency and the Department 
for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the Illinois 
Human Rights Act and the Department’s Rules and Regulations. 

 
7. That it will include verbatim or by reference the provisions of this ITEM 

in every contract and subcontract it awards under which any portion of 
the contract obligations are undertaken or assumed, so that such 
provisions will be binding upon such subcontractor.  In the same 
manner as with other provisions of this Agreement, the Grantee will be 
liable for compliance with applicable provisions of this clause by such 
contractors and subcontractors; and further it will promptly notify the 
contracting agency and the Department in the event any contractor or 
subcontractor fails or refuses to comply therewith.  In addition, the 
Grantee will not utilize any contractor or subcontractor declared by the 
Illinois Human Rights Commission to be ineligible for contracts or 
subcontracts with the State of Illinois or any of its political subdivisions 
or municipal corporations. 

 
D. Sexual Harassment - The Grantee will have written sexual harassment policies that shall include, 

at a minimum, the following information: (i) the illegality of sexual harassment; (ii) the definition of 
sexual harassment, under state law; (iii) a description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples; 
(iv) the Grantee's internal complaint process including penalties; (v) the legal recourse, 
investigative, and complaint process available through the Department of Human Rights and the 
Human Rights Commission; (vi) directions on how to contact the Department and Commission; 
and (vii) protection against retaliation as provided by Section 6-101 of the Illinois Human Rights 
Act, 775 ILCS 5 et seq.  A copy of the policies shall be provided to the Department upon request. 

 
E. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) - To the extent required by federal law, regulation, or 

directive, the Department encourages all of its Grantees to make a good-faith effort to contract 
with DBEs.  Grantees who receive more than the minimal federal assistance threshold (currently 
$250,000 in FTA capital and operating funds, exclusive of funds for  transit vehicle purchases, see 
49 CFR Part 26.67 or $100,000 in planning funds) agree to facilitate participation of 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) as follows: 

 
1. The Grantee agrees to comply with Section 1101(b) of SAFETEA-LU, 23 U.S.C. § 101 note, 

and U.S. DOT regulations, “Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  27 

Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs,” 49 CFR Part 26, including 
any amendments thereto. 

 
2. The Grantee agrees that it shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, 

or sex in the award and performance of any U.S. DOT assisted contract.  The Grantee 
agrees to take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure that 
eligible DBEs have the maximum feasible opportunity to participate in U.S. DOT assisted 
contracts.  The Grantee DBE program, if required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by 
U.S. DOT is incorporated by reference in this Agreement.  Implementation of this program is 
a legal obligation, and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this 
Agreement.  Upon notification to the Grantee of its failure to carry out its approved program, 
U.S. DOT may impose sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR Part 26 and may, in 
appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. § 1001, and/or the 
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 et seq. 

 
3. The Grantee agrees to include the following clauses in all agreements between the Grantee 

and in all third party contracts funded in whole or in part with Government assistance: 
 

a. “The Grantee or subcontractor, shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the performance of this (contract or agreement).  The 
contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and 
administration of US DOT assisted (contracts or agreements).  Failure by the 
(contractor, or subcontractor) to carry out these requirements is a material breach of 
the (contract or agreement), that may result in the termination of this (contract or 
agreement) or such other remedy as the Department deems appropriate.” 

 
b. “The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for 

satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 60 days from the receipt of each 
payment the prime contractor receives from (the Grantee).  The prime contractor 
agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within 60 days after 
the subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed.  Any delay or postponement of 

payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause 
following written approval of (the Grantee).” 

 
F. Disabilities 

 
1. Americans with Disability Act (ADA) - The Grantee shall comply with all applicable state and 

federal requirements under the ADA. 
 
2. Access Requirements for Individuals with Disabilities - The Grantee agrees to comply with 

49 U.S.C. § 5301(d); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 
et seq.; § 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794; the 
Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq.; and the following 
regulations and any amendments thereto: 

 
a. U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities 

(ADA)," 49 CFR Part 37. 
 
b. U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs 

and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance," 49 CFR 
Part 27; 

 
c. U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility 

Specifications for Transportation Vehicles." 36 CFR Part 1192, and 49 CFR Part 38; 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  28 

 
d. U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of 

Disability in State and Local Government Services," 28 CFR Part 35; 
 
e. U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public 

Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 CFR Part 36; 
 
f. U.S. General Services Administration regulations, "Accommodations for the Physically 

Handicapped," 41 CFR Subpart 101-19; 
 
g. U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) “Regulations to Implement 

the Equal Employment Provisions of the ADA,” 29 CFR Part 1630; 
 
h. U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, "Telecommunications Relay 

Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech 
Disabled," 47 CFR Part 64, Subpart F; 

 
i. FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons," 49 CFR 

Part 609. 
 
j. U.S. ATBCB regulations, “Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility 

Standards,” 36 CFR Part 1194. 
 

3. Over-the-Road Bus Accessibility Program (OTRB) - The Grantee agrees to comply with 
§ 3038 of TEA-21, as amended by § 3039 of SAFETEA-LU, 49 U.S.C. § 5310 note.  The 
Grantee also agrees to comply with U.S. DOT regulations, “Transportation Services for 

Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” 49 CFR Part 37, Subpart H, and with joint U.S. 
ATBCB/U.S. DOT regulations, “Americans with Disabilities Accessibility Specifications for 

Transportation Vehicles,” 35 CFR Part 1192 and 49 CFR Part 38. 
 

G. Confidentiality - Drug or Alcohol Abuse - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to comply 
with the confidentiality and other Civil Rights provisions of the Drug Abuse Office And Treatment 
Act of 1972, as amended, 21 U.S.C. §§ 1101 et seq., the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse And 
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment, And Rehabilitation Act of 1970, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 
§§ 4541 et seq., and with the Public Health Service Act of 1912, 42 U.S.C. §§ 201 et seq. and any 
amendments thereto. 

 
H. Seat Belt Use - The Grantee shall encourage on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its 

employees in accordance with U.S. Executive Order No. 13043, ”Increasing Seat Belt Use in the 

United States,” April 16, 1997, 23 U.S.C. § 402 note. 
 
The Grantee also agrees to include the requirements of this ITEM in each applicable contract or 
subcontract financed in whole or in part with federal assistance. 

ITEM 30 - SEVERABILITY 

 
The Parties agree that if any provision of this Agreement is held invalid for any reason whatsoever, the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby if such remainder would then continue to conform to 
the purposes, terms and requirements of applicable law. 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  29 

 

 

ITEM 31 - INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

 
A. Patent Rights 

 
1. In accordance with 37 CFR Part 401, if any invention, improvement, or discovery of the 

Grantee or any of its third party contractors is conceived or first actually reduced to practice 
in the course of or under this Project, and that invention, improvement, or discovery is 
patentable under the laws of the United States of America or any foreign country, the 
Grantee agrees to notify the Department and FTA immediately and provide a detailed report.  
The rights and responsibilities of the Grantee, third party contractors and the Government 
with respect to such invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance 
with applicable state and federal laws, regulations, policies, and any waiver thereof. 

 
2. The Grantee agrees to include this ITEM in its third party contracts for planning, research, 

studies, development, or demonstration under this Project. 
 

B. Rights in Data and Copyrights 
 

1. The term "subject data" used in this section means recorded information, whether or not 
copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered under this Agreement.  The term 
includes graphic or pictorial delineation in media such as drawings or photographs; text in 
specifications or related performance or design-type documents; machine forms such as 
punched cards, magnetic tape, or computer memory printouts; and information retained in 
computer memory.  Examples include, but are not limited to: computer software, engineering 
drawings and associated lists, specifications, standards, process sheets, manuals, technical 
reports, catalog item identifications, and related information.  The term does not include 
financial reports, cost analyses, and similar information incidental to project administration. 

 
2. The following federal restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance 

of this Agreement: 
 

a. Except for its own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce subject data 
in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to 
do so, without the written consent of the Government, until such time as the 
Government may have either released or approved the release of such data to the 
public; this restriction on publication, however, does not apply to agreements with 
academic institutions. 

 
b. As authorized by 49 CFR Part 18.34 and 49 CFR Part 19.36, the Government 

reserves a royalty-free non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or 
otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for “federal and state government 
purposes:” 

i. Any subject data developed under a grant, cooperative agreement, subgrant, sub-
agreement, or third party contract, irrespective of whether or not a copyright has 
been obtained; and  

 
ii. Any rights of copyright to which a Grantee, or a third party contractor purchases 

ownership with federal or state assistance. 
 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  30 

3. When the Government provides assistance to a Grantee for a Project involving planning, 
research, development, or a demonstration, it is generally FTA’s and the Department’s intent 

to increase the body of public transportation knowledge, rather than to limit the benefits of 
the Project to those parties that have participated therein.  Therefore, unless FTA or the 
Department determines otherwise, the Grantee of Government assistance to support 
planning, research, or development or a demonstration project financed under the Acts, as 
amended, understands and agrees that, in addition to the rights set forth in subparagraph 
(B)(2) of this ITEM, the Government may make available to the Grantee and/or any third 
party contractor or third party subcontractor, either Government’s license in the copyright to 

the subject data derived under this Agreement or a copy of the subject data first produced 
under this Agreement.  In the event that such a Project, which is the subject of this 
Agreement, is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under that 
Project shall become data as defined in subparagraph (B)(1) of this ITEM and shall be 
delivered as the Government may direct.  This subsection, however, does not apply to 
adaptations of automatic data processing equipment or programs for the Grantee's use, 
which costs are financed in whole or in part with Government assistance for transportation 
capital projects. 

 
4. Unless prohibited by state law, the Grantee agrees to indemnify, save and hold harmless the 

State of Illinois and FTA, their officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of 
their official duties, against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any 
willful or intentional violation by the Grantee of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of 
privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition 
of any data furnished under this Agreement.  However, the Grantee shall not be required to 
indemnify the State of Illinois and FTA for any such liability arising out of the wrongful acts of 
employees or agents of the Government. 

 
5. Nothing contained in this ITEM pertaining to rights in data shall imply a license to the 

Government under any patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other 
right otherwise granted to the Department and FTA under any patent. 

 
6. The requirements of subparagraphs (B)(2), (3), and (4) of this ITEM do not apply to material 

furnished to the Grantee by the Government and incorporated in the work carried out under 
the Agreement; provided that such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the 
time of delivery of such work. 

 
7. Unless the Government determines otherwise, the Grantee agrees to include the 

requirements of subparagraphs (B)(1) through (B)(6) of this ITEM in its third party contracts 
for planning, research, studies, development, or demonstration under this Project. 

 
8. The Grantee understands and agrees that data and information submitted to the Government 

may be required to be made available under the Freedom of Information Act or other federal 
statutes in accordance with 49 CFR Part 19.36(d), or by subsequent laws or regulations. 

 
C. Export Control 

 
The Grantee agrees that it will not export any technical information to any countries or foreign 
persons without first obtaining the necessary licenses as required by export control regulations. 

 

ITEM 32 - AMENDMENT 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  31 

The Parties agree that no amendment to this Agreement, or any Exhibits or Attachments hereto, shall be 
of any force or effect unless the amendment is dated, reduced to writing, executed by both parties, and 
attached to and made a part of this Agreement.  No work shall be commenced and no costs or 
obligations shall be incurred in consequence of any amendment to this Agreement or any attachments 
hereto unless and until such amendment has been executed and made a part of this Agreement and the 
Approved Project Budget has been amended to conform thereto. 

ITEM 33 - SCHOOL BUS AND CHARTER SERVICES OPERATIONS 

 
A. School Bus Operations - Pursuant to 20 ILCS 2705/2705-305(f), 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), as 

applicable, and FTA regulations, “School Bus Operations,” 49 CFR Part 605,,  and as a condition 
of receiving grant monies from the Department, the Grantee certifies, by signing this Agreement, 
that it is not engaged in school bus operations exclusively for the transportation of students and 
school bus personnel in competition with private school bus operators where such private school 
bus operators are available to provide adequate transportation at reasonable rates in conformance 
with applicable safety standards.  If the Grantee does engage in school bus operations exclusively 
for the transportation of students and school bus personnel as described above, then the Grantee 
certifies that it operates a school system in the area to be served thereby and operates a separate 
and exclusive school bus program for the school system.  The Grantee also certifies that the 
Project is not financed under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 or under 23 U.S.C. §§ 133 or 142. The 
Grantee further agrees and certifies that it shall immediately notify the Department in writing of its 
involvement in or its intention to become involved in any school bus operation prohibited by  
Section 2705-305(f)after the date of this certification and this Agreement. 

 
B. Charter Bus Operations - Neither the Grantee nor any transit operator performing work in 

connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 or under 23 U.S.C. §§ 133 or 142 
will engage in charter service operations, except as permitted by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(d) and FTA 
regulations "Charter Service," 49 CFR Part 604, and any subsequent Charter Service regulations 
or federal directives that may be issued, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in 
writing.  Any charter service agreement entered into under these regulations is incorporated into 
this Agreement by reference. 

 
The Grantee agrees not to engage in either school bus or charter operations, and has further signed the 
certification referenced hereto as part of Exhibit C.  If the Grantee or any operator violates the charter or 
school bus agreement required by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(f), the violator will be barred from receiving federal 
transit assistance in an amount to be determined by FTA or U.S. DOT. 

 

ITEM 34 - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

 
If construction contracts are to be implemented using assistance from this Agreement, the following 
additional provisions apply to the Grantee and the Grantee’s third party construction contracts:  
 
A. Seismic Requirements - The Grantee agrees to comply with the Earthquake Hazards Reduction 

Act of 1977, as amended, 42  U.S.C. §§ 7701 et seq., Executive Order No. 12699, “Seismic 

Safety of Federal and Federally-Assisted or Regulated New Building Construction,” 42 U.S.C. 
§§ 7704 note, and with DOT regulations, “Seismic Safety,” 49 CFR Part 41, during the 
construction of new buildings or additions to existing buildings. 

 
B. Contract Security - The Grantee agrees to follow the requirements of 49 CFR Part 18.36(h), and 

FTA guidelines with regard to bid guarantees and bonding requirements. 
 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  32 

C. Liquidated Damages - If appropriate, the Grantee agrees to include a clause providing for 
liquidated damages for delay in its third party contracts for construction.  Liquidated damages 
clauses are appropriate if the parties may be reasonably expected to suffer damages (such as 
increased costs of the Project involved) from the late completion of the construction and the extent 
or amount of such damages would be difficult or impossible to determine.  The assessment for 
damages shall be at a specific rate per day for each day of overrun in contract time, and the rate 
must be specified in the third party contract.  Any liquidated damages recovered shall be credited 
to the Project account involved unless the Government expressly agrees otherwise.  The Grantee 
agrees that proportionate shares of all liquidated damages assessed under this Agreement shall 
be credited to the state and federal governments in amounts equivalent to the percentages of the 
Project funded by each, and the Grantee shall be credited a proportionate share of the liquidated 
damages in an amount equivalent to the percentage of the Project funded by the Grantee. 

 
D. Safety Standards - Pursuant to Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 

and Department of Labor regulations, "Safety and Health Regulations for Construction" 29 CFR 
Part 1926, no laborer or mechanic working on a construction contract shall be required to work in 
surroundings or under working conditions that are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his or 
her health and safety as determined under construction and health standards promulgated by the 
Secretary of Labor. 

 
E. Signs - The Grantee agrees to cause to be erected at the site of construction, and to maintain 

during construction, signs satisfactory to FTA identifying the Project and indicating that the 
Government is participating in the development of the Project. 

 
 In the event that the Project is funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 

2009, Pub. L. No. 111-5, February 17, 2009, the Grantee agrees to cause to be erected or placed 
on the Project a sign identifying the Project as funded by ARRA.  The Grantee shall follow the 
Department’s guidelines and ensure that the sign is satisfactory to the Department, including but 
not limited, to placing the sign for maximum public identification of the Project, maintaining the 
sign in good condition until completion of the Project, and removing the sign upon completion of 
the Project. 

 
F. Project Management for Major Capital Projects - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to 

comply with FTA regulations, “Project Management Oversight,” 49 CFR Part 633, and any 
amendments thereto and with FTA Circular 5800.1, “Safety and Security Management Guidance 

for Major Capital Projects”, August 1, 2007. 

ITEM 35 - LABOR PROVISION 

 
A. Construction Contracts - Pursuant to Department of Labor regulations, "Labor Standards 

Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also 
Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 CFR Part 5, the following provisions shall be incorporated in 
each construction contract of $2,000 or more let by the Grantee in carrying out the Project: 

 
1. Minimum Wages 

a All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under 
the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the 
construction or development of the Project), will be paid unconditionally and not less 
often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account 
(except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the 
Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act, 29 CFR Part 3), the full amount of wages 
and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at the time of payment 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  33 

computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the 
Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any 
contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and 
such laborers and mechanics. 

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under 
Section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are 
considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 
29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more 
than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or 
programs that cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively 
made or incurred during such weekly period.  Such laborers and mechanics shall be 
paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed without regard to skill, except as provided at 
29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4).  Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one 
classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the 
time actually worked therein;  provided that the employer's payroll records accurately 
set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed.  The wage 
determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 
29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321)) shall be posted at 
all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent 
and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers. 

b Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed into the contract for a class of laborers 
or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the 
contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay 
another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 

c If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the 
contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount 
of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan 
or program, provided, that the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request 
of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met.  
The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account 
assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. 

 
d i. The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics that is 

not listed in the wage determination and that is to be employed under the contract 
shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination.  The contracting 
officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits 
therefor only when the following criteria have been met: 

 
A. The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed 

by a classification in the wage determination; and  
 
B. The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 
 
C. The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a 

reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage 
determination. 

 
ii. If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the 

classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree 
on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  34 

benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the 
contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, 
Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, 
D.C. 20210.  The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, 
modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within thirty (30) days 
of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer 
within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. 

 
iii. In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the 

classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on 
the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for 
fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the 
questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of 
the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination.  The Administrator, 
or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within thirty (30) days of 
receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer 
within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. 

 
iv. The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant 

to 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(1)(ii)(B) or 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(1)(ii)(C), shall be paid to all 
workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day 
on which work is performed in the classification. 

 
2. Withholding - The Grantee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 

representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the 
contractor, under this Agreement or any other federal contract with the same Grantee or any 
other federally assigned contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, 
which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances 
as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, 
trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of 
wages required by the contract.  In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, 
including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or 
under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the 
construction or development of the FTA assisted Project), all or part of the wages required 
by the contract, the Grantee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or 
owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. 

 
3. Payrolls and Basic Records 

 
a. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor 

during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for 
all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States 
Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or 
development of the FTA assisted Project).  Such records shall contain the name, 
address, and social security number of each worker, his or her correct classification, 
hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for 
bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in 
Section 1(b)(1)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours 
worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.  Whenever the Secretary of Labor 
has found under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic 
include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a 
plan or program described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor 
shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  35 

enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or 
program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and 
records which show the costs anticipated or the actual costs incurred in providing such 
benefits.  Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs 
shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and 
certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and 
the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. 

 
b. i. The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is 

performed a copy of all payrolls to FTA if FTA is a party to the contract, but if FTA 
is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant, 
sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to FTA.  The payrolls 
submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to 
be maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(i).  This information may be submitted 
in any form desired.  Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may 
be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal Stock No. 
029-005-00014-1), U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402.  
The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all 
subcontractors. 

 
ii. Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," 

signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or 
supervised the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall 
certify the following: 

 
A. That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be 

maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(i) and that such information is 
correct and complete. 

 
B. That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and 

trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid 
the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, 
and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the 
full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth at 29 CFR 
Part 3. 

 
C. That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable 

wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of 
work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination 
incorporated into the contract. 

 
iii. The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse 

side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the 
"Statement of Compliance" required by 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(ii)(B). 

 
iv. The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or 

subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 
31 U.S.C § 231. 

 
c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under 29 CFR 

Part 5.5(a)(3)(i) available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized 
representatives of FTA or the Department of Labor and shall permit such 
representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job.  If the 
contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  36 

available, FTA may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, 
take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds.  Furthermore, failure to submit the required 
records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for 
debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR Part 5.12. 

 
4. Apprentices and Trainees 

 
a. Apprentices - Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate 

for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually 
registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department 
of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and 
Training, or with a state apprenticeship agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a 
person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an 
apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the 
program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or 
a state apprenticeship agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary 
employment as an apprentice.  The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on 
the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the 
contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program.  Any worker listed 
on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed 
as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any 
apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the 
registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the work actually performed.  Where a contractor is performing 
construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, 
the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) 
specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed.  
Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered 
program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the 
journeyman’s hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.  Apprentices 

shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship 
program.  If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices 
must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the 
applicable classification.  If the Administrator determines that a different practice 
prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringe benefits shall be paid in 
accordance with that determination.  In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and 
Training, or a state apprenticeship agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws 
approval of any apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to 
utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work 
performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

 
b. Trainees - Except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to 

work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are 
employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received 
prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, 
Employment and Training Administration.  The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the 
job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the 
Employment and Training Administration.  Every trainee must be paid at not less than 
the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, 
expressed as a percentage of the journeyman’s hourly rate specified in the applicable 

wage determination.  Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the 
provisions of the trainee program.  If the trainee program does not mention fringe 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  37 

benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage 
determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that 
there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman’s 

wage rate on the wage determination that provides for less than full fringe benefits for 
apprentices.  Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered 
and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training 
Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any trainee 
performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered 
program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the work actually performed.  In the event the Employment and 
Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will 
no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined 
rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

 
c. Equal Employment Opportunity - The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and 

journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall be in conformance with the equal employment 
opportunity requirements of Executive Order No. 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR 
Part 30. 

 
5. Compliance with Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act Requirements - The contractor shall comply 

with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
6. Contract Termination: Debarment - A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5 may 

be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a 
subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.12. 

 
7. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements - All rulings and 

interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and related acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3 and 5 are 
incorporated herein by reference. 

 
8. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards - Disputes arising out of the labor standards 

provisions of this Agreement shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this 
Agreement.  Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the 
Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7.  Disputes within the meaning of 
this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the 
contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their 
representatives. 

 
9. Certification of Eligibility 

 
a. By entering into a third party contract financed under this Agreement, the contractor 

certifies that neither it (nor he nor she) nor any person or firm that has an interest in 
the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded government contracts 
by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR Part 5.12(a)(1). 

 
b. No part of this third party contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm 

ineligible for award of a government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-
Bacon Act, 29 CFR Part 5.12(a)(1). 

 
c. The penalty for making false statement is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 

18. U.S.C. § 1001. 
 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  38 

10. Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act – The Grantee shall require contractor to 
comply with the applicable provisions of 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 et seq., and 29 CFR Part 5. 

 
11. Subcontracts - The contractor shall insert into any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this 

SUB-ITEM (A)(1)-(10) of this agreement and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to 
include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  The prime contractor shall be 
responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses 
set forth in this SUB-ITEM (A)(1)-(10) of this Agreement. 

 
B. Nonconstruction Contracts - Pursuant to Department of Labor regulations, "Labor Standards 

Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also 
Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 CFR Part 5, the following provisions shall be incorporated in 
all nonconstruction contracts of $2,500 or more let by the Grantee in carrying out the Project: 

 
1. Nonconstruction Contracts - The requirements of the clauses contained in 

29 CFR Part 5.5(b) are applicable to any contract subject to the overtime provisions of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 et seq., 
and not to any of the other statutes cited in 29 CFR Part 5.1.  The contractor or 
subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the course of the work 
and shall preserve them for a period of three years from the completion of the contract for all 
laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract.  Such 
records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, 
correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours 
worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid.  The records to be maintained under this 
clause shall be made available by the contractor or subcontractor for inspection, copying, or 
transcription by authorized representatives of the FTA, U.S. Department of Transportation, 
or the Department of Labor, and the contractor or subcontractor will permit such 
representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. 

 
 2. Nonconstruction Subcontracts - The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any 

subcontract the clauses set forth in 29 CFR Part 5.5(b), and also a clause requiring the 
subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  The prime contractor 
shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the 
clauses set forth in 29 CFR Part 5.5(b) involving overtime pay, unpaid wages and 
withholding for unpaid wages. 

 
C. State and Local Government Employees - The provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 

29 U.S.C. §§ 201 et seq., as amended, apply to state and local government employees 
participating in the FTA assisted Project with the Grantee. 

 
D. Illinois Public Works Preference Act - To the extent applicable and consistent with federal law, the 

Grantee shall include in all third party contracts the applicable provisions of the Illinois Public 
Works Preference Act, 30 ILCS 560. 

 
E. Employment of Illinois Workers - To the extent applicable and consistent with federal law, the 

Grantee agrees to include in all third party contracts the applicable provisions of the Employment 
of Illinois Workers on Public Works Act, 30 ILCS 570. 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  39 

 

 

ITEM 36 - SUBSTANCE ABUSE/DRUG FREE WORKPLACE ACT 

 
The Grantee agrees to comply with the Illinois Drug Free Workplace Act, 30 ILCS 580, and U.S. DOT 
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 41 U.S.C. §§ 701 et seq., and U.S. DOT regulations, 
"Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial Assistance)," 49 CFR Part 32, and 
with  FTA regulations, “Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations,” 
49 CFR Part 655, that implement 49 U.S.C. § 5331 and any other guidance pertaining to substance 
abuse (drugs and alcohol) that may be promulgated, and the Grantee has signed the Drug Free 
Workplace Certification referenced in this Agreement (as part of Exhibit C). 
 
If applicable, the Grantee also agrees to comply with all aspects of the anti-drug program outlined in the 
“Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations" regulation, 49 CFR 
Part 655, that implement 49 U.S.C. § 5331, and to require contractors and subcontractors, when 
applicable, to do the same. 
 
ITEM 37 - ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
The Grantee recognizes that many federal and state statutes imposing environmental, resource 
conservation, and energy requirements may apply to the Project including:  the National Environmental 
Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 through 4335; the Clean Air Act (CAA), as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 through 7671q and scattered sections of Title 29 United States Code; the 
Clean Water Act (CWA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 through 6992k; the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 
through 9675, as well as environmental provisions within Title 23, United States Code, and 49 U.S.C. 
Chapter 53. 
 
Accordingly, the Grantee agrees to adhere to, and agrees to impose on its third party contractors, any 
such federal and state requirements as the Government may now or in the future promulgate.  The 
Grantee expressly understands that the following list may not set forth all federal environmental 
requirements applicable to the Grantee and the Project, however the Grantee agrees, minimally, as 
follows:. 
 
A. Environmental Protection - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to comply with: he 

National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 et seq.; Section 14 of 
the Federal Transit Act, as amended, 49 U.S.C. app. § 1610; the Council on Environmental 
Quality regulations, 40 CFR Part 1500 et seq.; and the joint FHWA/FTA regulations, 
"Environmental Impact and Related Procedures," 23 CFR Part 771 and 49 CFR Part 622, and 
subsequent federal environmental protection regulations that may be promulgated.  As a result of 
enactment of 23 U.S.C. §§ 139 and 326, as well as to amendments to 23 U.S.C. § 138, 
environmental decision-making requirements imposed on FTA projects to be implemented 
consistent with the joint FHWA/FTA document, “Interim Guidance for Implementing Key 

SAFETEA-LU Provisions on Planning, Environment, and Air Quality for Joint FHWA/FTA 
Authorities,” dated September 2, 2005, and any subsequent applicable federal directives that may 
be issued, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. 

 
B. Air Quality - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable federal 

laws, regulations, and directives implementing the Clean Air Act (CAA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. 
§§ 7401 through 7671q, and: 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  40 

1. The Grantee agrees to comply with applicable requirements of section 176(c) of the CAA, 
42 U.S.C. § 7506(c), consistent with the joint FHWA/FTA document, “Interim Guidance for 

Implementing Key SAFETEA-LU Provisions on Planning, Environment, and Air Quality for 
Joint FHWA/FTA Authorities,” dated September 2, 2005, and any subsequent applicable 
federal directives that may be issued; with U.S. EPA regulations, “Conformity to State or 

Federal Implementation Plans of Transportation Plans, Programs, and Projects Developed, 
Funded or Approved Under Title 23 U.S.C. or the Federal Transit Act,” 40 CFR Part 51, 
Subpart T; and “Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or Federal 

Implementation Plans, “ 40 CFR Part 93, and any subsequent federal conformity regulations 
that may be promulgated.  To support the requisite air quality conformity finding for the 
Project, the Grantee agrees to implement each air quality mitigation or control measure 
incorporated in the Project.  The Grantee further agrees that any Project identified in an 
applicable State Implementation Plan (SIP) as a Transportation Control Measure will be 
wholly consistent with the design concept and scope of the Project described in the SIP.  

 
2. In the event the Grantee is an operator of large public transportation bus fleets, then the 

Grantee agrees to comply with the following U.S. EPA regulations to the extent they apply to 
the Project: "Control of Air Pollution from Mobile Sources," 40 CFR Part 85; "Control of Air 
Pollution from New and In-Use Motor Vehicles and New and In-Use Motor Vehicle Engines," 
40 CFR Part 86, and "Fuel Economy of Motor Vehicles," 40 CFR Part 600. 

 
3. The Grantee also agrees to comply with the notification of violating facilities provisions of 

Executive Order No. 11738, “Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water 

Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans,” 42 U.S.C. § 7606 
note. 

 
C. Use of Public Lands - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees that in implementing its 

Project, it will not use any publicly owned land from a park, recreation area, or wildlife or waterfowl 
refuge of national, state, or local significance as determined by the federal, state, or local officials 
having jurisdiction thereof, or any land from an historic site of national, state, or local significance 
may be used for the Project, unless the federal Government makes the findings required by 
49 U.S.C. § 303(b) and 303(c).  The Grantee also agrees to comply with joint FHWA/FTA 
regulations, “Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and Waterfowl Refuges, and Historic Sites,” 

23 CFR Part 774, and referenced in 49 CFR Part 622. 
 
D. Wild and Scenic Rivers - To the extent applicable, the Grantee and its contractors and 

subcontractors shall comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 
§§ 1271  through 1287., relating to protecting components of the national wild and scenic rivers 
system; and to the extent applicable, to comply with U.S. Forest Service regulations, “Wild and 

Scenic Rivers,” 36 CFR Part 297, and with U.S. Bureau of Land Management regulations, 
“Management Areas,” 43 CFR Part 8350.  

 
E. Coastal Zone Management - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to assure Project 

consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone 
Management Act of 1972, as amended, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1451 et seq. 

 
F. Wetlands - To the extent applicable, the Grantee and its contractors and subcontractors shall 

comply with the protections for wetlands in accordance with Executive Order No. 11990, as 
amended, “Protection of Wetlands,” 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note. 

 
G. Floodplains - To the extent applicable, the Grantee and its contractors and subcontractors shall 

comply with the flood hazards protections in floodplains in accordance with Executive Order No. 
11988, as amended, “Floodplain Management” 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note. 

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  41 

H. Endangered Species and Fisheries Conservation - To the extent applicable, the Grantee and its 
contractors and subcontractors shall comply with the protections for endangered species in 
accordance with the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1531 through 
1544, and the Magnuson Stevens Fisheries Conservation Act, as amended, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1801 et 

seq. 

 
I. Historic Preservation - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to assist the Government to 

comply with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, 16 U.S.C. § 470f. Executive 
Order No. 11593, “Protection and Enhancement of the Cultural Environment,” 16 U.S.C. § 470 
note; and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974, as amended, 16 U.S.C. 
§§ 469a through 469c, involving historic and archaeological preservation. 

 
J. Mitigation of Adverse Environmental Effects - Should the proposed Project cause adverse 

environmental effects, the Grantee agrees to take all reasonable steps to minimize such effects 
pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 5324(b), all other applicable statutes, and the procedures set forth in 
23 CFR Part 771 and 49 CFR Part 622. 

 
K. Energy Conservation - To the extent applicable, the Grantee and its third party contractors at all 

tiers shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency that are 
contained in applicable state energy conservation plans issued in compliance with the Energy 
Policy and Conservation Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6321 et seq.  In addition, to the extent applicable, the 
Grantee agrees to perform an energy assessment for any building constructed, reconstructed or 
modified with federal funds, as provided in “Requirements for Energy Assessments,” 49 CFR 
Part 622, Subpart C. 

 
L. Clean Water and Safe Drinking Water - For all contracts and subcontracts exceeding $100,000, 

the Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant 
to the Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 et seq.  The Grantee also agrees to protect 
underground sources of drinking water, as provided in the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 300f through 300j-6. 

 
M. Environmental Justice - To the extent applicable, the Grantee and its contractors and 

subcontractors shall comply with the policies of Executive Order No. 12898, “Federal Actions to 
Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations”, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 4321 note. 
 

N. Clean Fuels - To the extent applicable, the Grantee and its contractors and subcontractors, agree 
to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5308, and with the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 530.7 
and with FTA regulations, “Clean Fuels Grant Program”, 49 CFR Part 624.   
 

O. Indian Sacred Sites - To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to facilitate compliance with the 
preservation of places and objects of religious importance to American Indians, Eskimos, Aleuts, 
and Native Hawaiians, in compliance with the American Indian Religious Freedom Act, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 1996, and with Executive Order No. 13007, “Indian Sacred Sites,” 42 U.S.C. § 1996 note. 
 

P. Job Access and Reverse Commute Formula Grant Program - To the extent applicable, the 
Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5316, and applicable provisions of 
49 U.S.C. § 5307, and FTA Circular 9050.1, “The Job Access and Reverse Commute Program 
Guidance and Applications Instructions,” including any revisions thereto. 

ITEM 38 - PRIVACY 

 
Should the Grantee, or any of its third party contractors, or their employees, administer or control any 
system of records on behalf of the Government, the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a) and the Data 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  42 

Processing Confidentiality Act (30 ILCS 585) imposes information restrictions on the party managing the 
system of records, and the Grantee and its third party contractors shall protect said information in 
accordance with the requirements of these Acts. 

ITEM 39 – PROTECTION OF SENSITIVE SECURITY INFORMATION 

 
To the extent applicable, the Grantee agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 40119(b), with implementing 
“Protection of Sensitive Security Information’, 49 CFR Part 15, with 49 U.S.C. § 114(S) and “Protection 

of Sensitive Security Information”, 49 CFR Part 1520, and any other implementing regulations, 
requirements or guidelines that the federal government may issue. 

ITEM 40 – DISPUTES, BREACHES, DEFAULTS, OR OTHER LITIGATION 

 
The Grantee shall immediately notify the Department of any current or prospective major dispute, 
breach, default, or litigation that may affect the Government’s interest in the Project Facilities or the 

Government’s administration or enforcement of federal or state laws or regulations.  The Grantee agrees 
to inform the Department before naming the Government as a party to litigation for any reason in any 
forum. 

ITEM 41 - TITLES 

 
The Parties agree that the titles of the items of this Agreement, hereinabove set forth, are inserted for 
convenience of identification only and shall not be considered for any other purpose. 

ITEM 42 - TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

 
The Grantee certifies that 376000648 is its correct Federal Taxpayer Identification Number.  The entity is 
doing business as a governmental entity. 

ITEM 43 – ARRA 

 
In the event that the Project is funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), 
Pub. L. No. 111-5, February 17, 2009, the Grantee agrees to comply with the following requirements:  
 
A. Authority of the U.S. Comptroller General - The Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of 

Section 902 of ARRA, Pub. L. No. 111-5, February 17, 2009, whereby the U.S. Comptroller 
General and any of his representatives has the authority to examine any record of the Grantee, its 
contractor or subcontractor, as well as the authority to interview any officer or employee of the 
Grantee, its contractor or subcontractor with respect to any project awarded using ARRA funds.  
The Grantee shall include a similar provision in its third party contracts. 

 
B. Authority of the Inspector General - The Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of 

Section 1515 of ARRA, Pub. L. No. 111-5, February 17, 2009, whereby the Inspector General and 
any of his representatives has the authority to examine any record of the Grantee, its contractor or 
subcontractor, as well as the authority to interview any officer or employee of the Grantee, its 
contractor or subcontractor, with respect to any project awarded using ARRA funds.  The Grantee 
shall include a similar provision in its third party contracts. 

 
C. Reports – The Grantee agrees to submit to the Department on a quarterly basis the data required 

by Section 1512 of ARRA, Pub. L. No. 111-5, February 17, 2009 and on a monthly basis the 
employment reporting requirements set forth by the Department. The Grantee shall include a 
similar provision regarding the monthly employment reporting requirements in its third party 
contracts.  

 



CAP-10-941-ARRA, Contract No. 3936 

 

 

 State/Federal Capital Grant Page  43 

D. Identify ARRA Funds – The Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 176.210. 
 

E. Registration – The Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of 74 Fed. Reg. 52527-01 
(Oct. 13, 2009), whereby the Grantee maintains a Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering 
System (DUNS) Number at all times during which it has active federal awards funded with ARRA 
funds.  The Grantee shall include a similar provision in its third party contracts. 

 
F. Violations of Law – The Grantee agrees that it shall report to the U.S. DOT Inspector General or 

other appropriate Inspector General any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, 
contractor, subcontractor, or other person has submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 
31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 et seq., or has committed a criminal or civil violation of law pertaining to fraud, 
conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving ARRA funds. 

 
G. Integrity – The Grantee agrees that all data it submits to the Department in compliance with ARRA 

requirements will be accurate, objective, and of the highest integrity. 
 
H. Further Requirements - The Grantee agrees to comply with applicable future federal requirements 

that may be imposed on the use of ARRA funds. 

ITEM 44 - TIGGER 

 
In the event that the Project is funded by a Transit Investments for Greenhouse Gas and Energy 
Reduction (TIGGER) grant, the Grantee agrees to the following: 
 
A. The Grantee shall assist the Department in its compliance with the reporting requirements of 74 

Fed. Reg. 52527-01 (Oct. 13, 2009), whereby the Grantee provides the required information 
annually and at the time of grant close-out. 

 
B. The Grantee shall notify the Department in a timely manner of any schedule, funding, or other 

Project issues.  The Department reserves the right to redirect Project activities. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be made effective and have 
executed this              day of                                 , 20       , by their duly authorized officials. 
 
 
Accepted on behalf of the City of Mattoon: 
 
 

_________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative   Type or Print Name of Authorized Representative 

 
_____________________    _________________________________________ 
  Date        Type or Print Title of Authorized Representative 

 
 
 
Accepted on behalf of the State of Illinois, Department of Transportation: 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
Gary Hannig, Secretary of Transportation 

 
 
By: _____________________________________      _________________ 
 Joseph E. Shacter, Director                 Date 
         Division of Public and Intermodal Transportation         



  

 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2010-2810 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING CONTRIBUTIONS REQUIRED OF EMPLOYEES 

AND RETIREES WHO ELECT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CITY OF MATTOON’S 
GROUP HEALTH, DENTAL AND LIFE INSURANCE PLANS 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon is subject to three collective bargaining agreements which 
prescribe that employees shall pay 15% of the cost of the health insurance plan by payroll 
deduction beginning with the first paycheck of May after the cost for the preceding calendar year 
are disclosed by the Employer’s health insurance administrator; and 
 
WHEREAS, actual costs for stop loss insurance, fees, medical, prescription and dental claim 
expenditures for calendar year 2009 were $414.86 per month for single coverage and $843.75 per 
month for family coverage, as reported by PersonalCare of Illinois and Delta Dental of Illinois, 
the Employer’s health and dental insurance plan administrators; and 
 
WHEREAS, State statutes do not presently require a municipality to pay any portion of the cost 
of post employment benefits for retired employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City began to require retired employees, whose pensions are more than $1,625 
per month, to contribute a higher share of the cost of the health insurance plan by Resolution 
2004-2548 adopted April 6, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, group life insurance and coverage was bound by a continuation, Fort Dearborn Life 
Insurance Company for a two-year term effective May 1, 2010; and  
 
WHEREAS, the time is now appropriate to prescribe contributions required of employees and 
retirees for the health and life insurance plans for the 2010/2011 fiscal year.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The following tables prescribe contributions required of eligible employees and 
retirees who elect to participate in the City of Mattoon’s group health insurance plan.  
 

Eligible Employees and Retirees Whose Pensions Are Less Than $1,625 Per Month 
 

 

 Total Monthly 
Cost 

Employer Share 
85% 

Employee Share 
15% 

    

Single Coverage $  414.86 $  352.62 $  62.24 

Family Coverage $  843.75 $  717.19  $ 126.56 

 



  

Eligible Retirees Whose Pensions Are More Than $1,625 Per Month 
 

 Total Monthly 
Cost 

Employer Share 
67.50% 

Retiree Share 
32.50% 

    

Single Coverage $  414.86 $  280.03  $  134.83    

Family Coverage $  843.75 $  569.53  $  274.22  

 
Section 2. Retirees, who are currently enrolled, may participate in the City of Mattoon’s group 
term life insurance plan by monthly withholdings from pensions, whether paid by the Illinois 
Municipal Retirement Fund, the Firefighters Pension Fund or the Police Pension Fund. The 
retiree contribution for life insurance shall be $13.86 per month for retirees under 70.  For retirees 
age 70 or over, the retiree contribution for life insurance shall be $6.93 per month. 
 
Section 3. Employee and retiree contributions adopted by this resolution shall become effective 
May 1, 2010.  

Section 4. All contributions for payment of health and life insurance shall be deducted directly on 
a monthly basis from the pension benefits received by the retiree. The only exception to the direct 
deduction rule shall be when the IMRF rules and regulations do not allow for said direct 
deduction.  

Upon motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________________, adopted 
this    day of __________________, 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
   __________________________________________ 
NAYS (Names):  __________________________________________ 
ABSENT (Names): __________________________________________ 
      
Approved this    day of    , 2010. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________   _______________________________ 
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney 
 
 
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on _________________________, 2010. 



  

CITY OF MATTOON     

HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN     

                 

                 

Fixed Costs Actual  Actual  Actual Actual  Actual Actual  Actual  Actual  Actual Actual  

   12/31/00  12/31/01  12/31/02 12/31/03  12/31/2004 12/31/2005  12/31/2006  12/31/2007  12/31/2008 12/31/2009  

                            

Specific S/L $213,681.00 $162,219.00  $140,424.39 $164,947.76  $117,206.56 $124,336.22  $125,424.00  $99,382.00   $111,893.00 $131,568.00  

                             

Aggregate S/L $18,123.00 $16,794.00  $26,376.24 $19,589.32  $14,007.29 $12,983.56  $10,566.00  $12,752.00   $12,488.00 $12,209.00  

                             

*Fees (including run 
out) $55,256.00 $62,182.00  $62,954.25 $83,150.25  $168,175.59 $157,039.90  $157,860.00  $137,161.20  $139,340.79 $133,206.50 

 

                             

Total Fixed Cost $287,060.00 $241,195.00  $229,754.88 $267,687.33  $299,389.44 $294,359.68  $293,850.00  $249,295.20   $263,721.79 $276,983.50  

                             

Claims                            

Medical $1,193,514.00 $1,237,977.00  $1,148,034.63 $1,298,244.62  $1,094,717.77 $968,683.00  $1,026,728.00  $1,135,285.00   $1,386,208.32 $1,455,122.00  

Dental $47,497.00 $70,416.00  $78,577.66 $65,308.34  $81,628.81 $75,757.88  $80,189.23  $79,559.91   $89,900.53 $94,426.97  

RX $300,438.00 $411,473.00  $475,519.44 $515,577.45  $479,091.91 $444,576.00  $458,610.00  $447,051.00   $471,217.20 $511,092.00  

E.C.(extra contractual) $22,863.00 $4,009.00  $1,681.41 $2,669.80  $0.00 $0.00  $0.00  $0.00   $0.00 $0.00  

                             

Total Paid $1,564,312.00 $1,723,875.00  $1,703,813.14 $1,881,800.21  $1,655,438.49 $1,489,016.88  $1,565,527.23  $1,661,895.91   $1,947,326.05 $2,060,640.97  

                             

Over Specific $25,312.00 $0.00  -$2,523.22 $0.00  $0.00 $18,703.00  $0.00  $0.00   $0.00 $0.00  

                             

Net Paid $1,539,000.00 $1,723,875.00  $1,701,289.92 $1,881,800.21  $1,655,438.49 $1,507,719.88  $1,565,527.23  $1,661,895.91   $1,947,326.05 $2,060,640.97  

                             

Total Cost $1,826,060.00 $1,965,070.00  $1,933,568.02 $2,149,487.54  $1,954,827.93 $1,802,079.56  $1,859,377.23  $1,911,191.11   $2,211,047.84 $2,337,624.47  

                             

Average monthly                            

cost per EE $574.23 $593.32  $596.78 $670.88  $590.23 $544.11  $547.52  $556.87   $674.92 $724.17  

       (Single) $248.58 $263.70  $260.60 $290.42  $311.69 $449.31  $385.47  $323.47   $443.68 $414.86  

       (Family) $720.88 $764.73  $755.74 $842.22  $714.61 $586.29  $619.45  $657.24   $767.42 $843.75  

                             

Enrollment                            

       (Single) 82 94  85 82  85 85  87  86   78 75  

       (Family) 183 182  180 185  191 191  196  200   195 194  

  265 276  265 267  276 276  283  286   273 269  

                 

* Includes Medical Claims Fee, PPO, UR and Annual Administrative Fee         

**Specific coverage was $100,000 for 2006             

***Specific coverage was $125,000 for 2007             
 



 

Coles County Courthouse · 651 Jackson, Room 309 · Charleston, Illinois 61920 
Phone: 217.348.0521   Fax: 217.348.7343 

TO:                         Mattoon IL City Council 
 
FROM:                  Rob Farmer – Assistant Community Planner 
 
DATE:                    April 13, 2010 
 
SUBJECT:             City of Mattoon IL 2010-2012 HOME-SFOOR Rehab Grant Agreement (HO-50220) 
 
 
We just received the above referenced City of Mattoon Grant.  Execution of this Agreement will formally 
obligate $ 337,000 of State/Federal “HOME-Single Family Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (SFOOR) grant 
funds to undertake much needed home repairs for eight (8) homes owned by lower income residents. 
 
In this regard, please find attached the resolution which authorizes the Mayor to sign the grant agreement, 
Certificate of Incumbency, and three original Grant Agreements.  Please don’t hesitate to contact me should you 
have any questions on the above or attached.  In closing, we’re looking forward to working with the City to 
implement still another successful housing rehabilitation program for the City of Mattoon. 
 
 
Rob Farmer 

 
Assistant Community Planner 
Coles County Regional Planning & 
Development Commission 
rfarmer@co.coles.il.us 
 
 



 
 

 
   
  
 

 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-2811  
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A TWO YEAR $337,000 GRANT OF HOME 
SINGLE FAMILY HOUSING REHABILITATION FUNDS AND AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS INCIDENTAL 

TO IMPLEMENTATION OF THE GRANT PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon (hereinafter “SPONSOR”), applied to the State of 
Illinois for HOME Single Family Owner Occupied Rehabilitation Program grant funds 
administered by the Illinois Housing Development Authority (“IHDA”), and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sponsor has been awarded a grant (“Grant”) from the IHDA, program 
administrator of the HOME Investment Partnership Program (“HOME Program”) for 
the State of Illinois, in the amount of Three Hundred Thirty-Seven Thousand and no/100 
dollars ($337,000) under the IHDA’s Single Family Owner Occupied Rehabilitation 
Program (“SFOOR”), and in order to receive such a Grant, the Sponsor must formally 
accept the terms and conditions of the Grant, including but not limited to the Grant 
Agreement, and authorize certain of its officials to execute the appropriate documents 
required in connection with the Grant, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the City Council to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to 
sign documents as required by the Illinois Housing Development Authority in connection 
with said HOME funds.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 
RESOLVED that the Grant Agreement and the documents identified in the Grant 
Agreement, drafts of which have been presented to the City Council of the Sponsor, be, 
and hereby are, approved. 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Delegation Agreement by and among the Sponsor and 
Coles County Regional Planning & Development Commission, and the documents 
identified therein, drafts of which have been presented to the City Council of the Sponsor, 
be, and hereby are, approved. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that either the Mayor or City Clerk is hereby authorized and 
empowered to execute and deliver in the name of or on behalf of the Sponsor the Grant 
Agreement and any and all amendments, modifications and supplements thereto, and to 
execute and deliver such additional documents, instruments and certificates as may be 
necessary or desirable for the Sponsor to perform its obligations under the Grant 
Agreement. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED that either the Mayor or City Clerk be and is hereby authorized 
and directed to take such additional actions, to make further determinations, to pay such 
costs and to execute and deliver such additional instruments (including any amendments, 
Grant Agreements or supplements) as he or she deems necessary or appropriate to carry 



 
 

 
   
  
 

into effect the foregoing resolutions. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the acts of the Sponsor and the Mayor or City Clerk in 
negotiating the Grant Agreement, including those acts taken prior to the date hereof, be, 
and the same hereby are, in all respects, ratified, confirmed and approved. 
 
Upon motion by    , seconded by      
adopted this    day of   , 2010, by a roll call vote, as follows: 
 
AYES (Names):          

       
       

NAYS (Names):         
ABSENT (Names):        
      
Approved this    day of   , 2010.  
 
             
      David W. Cline, Mayor 
      City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
  
            
Susan J. O’Brien, City Clerk    J. Preston Owen, City Attorney  
  
Recorded in the Municipality’s Records on   , 2010.  
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate is executed and delivered as of   
  , 2010. 
 
       

Printed Name: Susan J. O’Brien 
  

The undersigned Mayor of the Sponsor certifies that the person named above is 
the duly appointed City Clerk of the Sponsor and that the signature set forth immediately 

above is her genuine signature. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate is executed and delivered as of  
  , 2010. 
 
        
 Printed Name:  David W. Cline 
 
 
  



 HO-50220 

CITY OF MATTOON 

Single Family Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation (“SFOOR”) 

 
 

SFOOR PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 

This SFOOR PROGRAM AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into as 

of the 2
nd

 day of April, 2010 by and between  CITY OF MATTOON, an Illinois unit of local 

government ("State Recipient"), and the ILLINOIS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY (“Authority”), a body politic and corporate of the State of Illinois (the “State”) 

established pursuant to the Illinois Housing Development Act, 20 ILCS 3805/1 et seq., as 

amended from time to time (the “IHDA Act”). 

 

RECITALS 

A. The Authority has been designated the program administrator of the HOME 

Investment Partnerships Program ("HOME Program") for the State of Illinois, as authorized by 

Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-165) ("HOME Act"), the 

regulations promulgated thereunder and codified at 24 CFR, Part 92 ("HOME Regulations"), and 

the Authority's rules for the HOME Program, codified at 47 Ill. Adm. Code, Part 371 ("IHDA 

Rules") all as may be amended and supplemented from time to time.  The Authority receives 

funding for the HOME Program from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

(“HUD”), CFDA number 14.239.  The IHDA Rules and HOME Regulations are incorporated 

herein by this reference and made a part hereof.  All capitalized terms not defined in this 

Agreement shall have the meanings established in the HOME Act, and if not defined there, the 

meanings established in the HOME Regulations, and if not defined there, the meanings established 

in the IHDA Rules.  Appendix A attached hereto contains the text and a summary of the sections of 

HOME Regulations that are referenced in this Agreement. 

B. The State Recipient has applied to the HOME Program for funding ("Funding"), 

the proceeds of which will be used for the rehabilitation ("Rehabilitation Program") of 

approximately eight (8) single-family, owner-occupied residences (each, a "Residence," and 

collectively, the "Residences"), to be identified at a later date, which are located in City of 

Mattoon, Illinois.  The rehabilitation of a Residence shall hereinafter be referred to as a "Project."  

Approximately two (2) of the Residences shall be owner-occupied dwelling units for Low-Income 

Households, approximately three (3) of the Residences shall be owner-occupied dwelling units for 

Very Low-Income Households, and approximately three (3) of the Residences shall be owner-

occupied dwelling units for Extremely Low-Income Households. 

C. It is a condition of the Authority's making the Funding that the State Recipient  

enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 



2  

AGREEMENTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and other good and 

valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. INCORPORATION.  The foregoing recitals are made a part of this 

Agreement. 

2. CONTINGENCIES.  The Authority agrees to make the Funding to the 

State Recipient , contingent on the following: 

(a) the Illinois General Assembly, HUD, or other federal funding source 

making a sufficient appropriation of funds for the HOME Program; 

(b) the Illinois General Assembly, HUD, or other federal funding 

source making a sufficient appropriation or grant of funds for the Rehabilitation Program 

to permit the State Recipient to operate the Rehabilitation Program as required and to fulfill 

its obligations under this Agreement; 

(c) funds that have been appropriated or granted by the Illinois General 

Assembly, HUD, or other federal funding source for the HOME Program or the 

Rehabilitation Program are not de-appropriated or allocated for another purpose; 

(d) funds necessary for the Authority, in the Authority’s sole discretion, 

to operate the HOME Program are insufficient for any reason; 

(e) the State Recipient’s fulfillment of each and every other term and 

condition set forth in this Agreement to the Authority’s sole satisfaction, including, without 

limitation, closing of the transaction contemplated hereunder on or before the Effective 

Date (as hereinafter defined); and 

(f) the Authority's determination, in its sole discretion, that (i) on each 

date upon which funds from the Funding are to be disbursed to the State Recipient for a 

Project,  Funding funds to be disbursed, together with other sources of funding, will be 

sufficient to complete the Project; and (ii) such Project is otherwise satisfactory. 

3. GENERAL CONDITIONS.  This Agreement and the Funding shall be 

subject to the terms and conditions of the HOME Act, the HOME Regulations, the IHDA Act 

and the IHDA Rules, all as they may be amended and supplemented from time to time. 

4. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE FUNDING.  The Funding shall 

be subject to the following terms and conditions: 

(a) Amount.  The Funding shall be in the maximum amount of Three 

Hundred Thirty-Seven Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($337,000.00). 

. 



3  

(b) Use.  The proceeds of the Funding shall be used by the State 

Recipient to make Loans to Households for the Rehabilitation Program and to reimburse 

the State Recipient for certain administrative costs (“Administrative Costs”) (as defined in 

the 24 CFR §92.207 and Project Delivery Costs as defined by the Authority), all as more 

fully described in Paragraph 8 hereof.  The proceeds of the Funding shall be extended in 

accordance with the Project Schedule set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto, time being of 

the essence with respect to such expenditures. 

(c) Project Requirements.  All activities undertaken by the State 

Recipient in connection with the Rehabilitation Program must comply with Subpart F of 

the HOME Regulation regarding Project Requirements, as applicable to the type of project 

assisted.  State Recipient must carry out each activity in connection with the Rehabilitation 

Program in accordance with Subpart H of the HOME Regulations, regarding other Federal 

Requirements, as applicable, except for Section 92.352 and 92.357 of the HOME 

Regulations. 

(d) Term and Funding Proceeds Availability.  The commitment of 

the Authority to make proceeds of the Funding available for Loans to Recipients shall be 

for a period of twenty-four (24) months from the Effective Date.    

(e) Professional Services Delegation Agreement. On or prior to the 

Effective Date, State Recipient shall enter into a Professional Services Delegation 

Agreement ("Service Agreement"), in form and substance satisfactory to the Authority in 

its sole discretion, with Doug McDermand d/b/a Coles County Regional Planning and 

Development Commission ("Administrator"). The Service Agreement shall set forth 

certain administrative responsibilities for the Local Program to be delegated to the 

Administrator.  Notwithstanding such Service Agreement, State Recipient agrees and 

acknowledges that State Recipient is solely responsible to the Authority for the 

administration of the Funding and the Local Program, and compliance with the terms of 

this Agreement, the other Funding (as hereinafter defined), and the IHDA Rules and 

HOME Regulations. 

5. EFFECTIVE DATE.  The consummation of the transactions 

contemplated herein shall occur on or before May 1, 2010 ("Effective Date"), unless otherwise 

agreed in writing by the parties.  STATE RECIPIENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT TIME IS OF 

THE ESSENCE WITH RESPECT TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE AND THAT IN NO EVENT 

SHALL THE AUTHORITY BE UNDER ANY OBLIGATION TO EXTEND THE EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

6. FUNDING DOCUMENTS.  Prior to or on the Effective Date, the State 

Recipient  shall deliver to the Authority (i) three (3) original copies of this Agreement, (ii) three 

(3) original copies of the Service Agreement and (iii) such other documents as the Authority in 

its sole discretion may require, all executed in the manner indicated therein, and in form and 

substance acceptable to the Authority in its sole discretion (collectively, "Funding 

Documents"). 

7. REHABILITATION PROGRAM. 



4  

(a) Program Manual.  The State Recipient acknowledges that it has 

received, reviewed and understands the HOME Program requirements set forth in the 

Authority's HOME Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Program Manual (as amended and 

supplemented by the Authority from time to time, "Program Manual").  The State 

Recipient agrees that, in addition to the provisions of this Agreement, it shall at all times 

comply with the requirements of the Program Manual with respect to the Funding and the 

Rehabilitation Program.  The Program Manual is incorporated in this Agreement by this 

reference. 

(b) Eligibility.  The State Recipient agrees to make Loans only to 

Households for the rehabilitation of Projects that meet the following eligibility 

requirements: 

(i) Household.  A Household is eligible to participate in the 

Rehabilitation Program if: 

A. For a Low-Income Household, it has adjusted gross 

annual income (as such term is defined for purpose of reporting under 

Internal Revenue Service form 1040), adjusted for family size, less than or 

equal to eighty percent (80%) of the median income for the metropolitan 

statistical area ("MSA") or county in which the Residence is located, as 

determined by HUD; and for a Very Low-Income Household, it has a gross 

annual income, adjusted for family size, less than or equal to fifty percent 

(50%) of the median income for the MSA or county in which the Residence 

is located, as determined by HUD; and for an Extremely Low-Income 

Household it has a gross annual income, adjusted for family size, less than 

or equal to thirty percent (30%) of the median income for the MSA or 

county in which the Residence is located, as determined by HUD; 

B. A member of the Household holds fee simple title, or 

such other form of ownership as may be approved by the Authority, to the 

Residence; and 

C. It resides in the Residence as its principal residence. 

(ii) Project. As permitted under Section 92.254(a)(2)(iii) of the 

HOME Regulations, the appraised value of each Residence after completion of the 

Rehabilitation shall not exceed Two Hundred Thousand One Hundred Sixty and 

No/100 Dollars ($200,160.00) for Coles County, as amended from time to time by 

HUD, or such other amount as may be required by HUD.  If at any time after the 

date of this Agreement, HUD requires such appraised after rehabilitation value be 

modified, the Authority will notify the State Recipient of such amount in writing. 

(iii) Eligible Project Costs.  The State Recipient shall use the 

Funding proceeds to pay only the Eligible Project Costs (as defined in Section 

92.206 of the HOME Regulations) of each Project (including Administrative 

Costs and Project Delivery Costs that are Eligible Project Costs).   



5  

(c) Conditions.  Each Loan shall be for the term of the applicable 

Repayment Period (as hereinafter defined), shall bear no interest, shall be repayable to the 

Authority in accordance with the Repayment Agreement (as defined below), shall be in an 

amount not to exceed the Eligible Project Costs of the Project, and shall have an original 

principal amount not less than Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000) and not more than Forty 

Thousand Dollars ($40,000).   

(d) Repayment Agreement.  Each Household receiving a Loan shall 

enter into a Repayment Agreement in favor of the Authority (“Repayment Agreement”) 

in the form attached as Exhibit A to the Rehabilitation Program Agreement (defined 

below).  

(e) Rehabilitation Program Agreement.  Prior to receiving a Loan, 

each Household participating in the Rehabilitation Program shall enter into: (i) a 

rehabilitation program agreement ("Rehabilitation Program Agreement") with the State 

Recipient in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, (ii) a promissory note ("Note"), (iii) a 

repayment agreement ("Repayment Agreement") and (iv) a [second] mortgage 

("[Second] Mortgage") each in the form attached to the Rehabilitation Program 

Agreement.  The Repayment Agreement and the [Second] Mortgage shall be recorded in 

the recorder's office of the county in which the Residence is located.  The State Recipient 

understands that any declaration of default by it under a Rehabilitation Program Agreement 

will constitute a violation of this Agreement, as provided in Paragraph 12 hereof. 

(f) Project Set-Ups.  The State Recipient shall provide the Authority 

with a set up form for each Project in HUD's Integrated Disbursement Information System 

(“IDIS”) prior to the commencement of rehabilitation of such Project. 

(g) State Recipient's Eligible Fees.  The State Recipient may retain, as 

Project Delivery Costs, up to fifteen percent (15%) of the HOME Program funds expended 

for hard costs and soft costs (as described in 24 CFR §92.206) budgeted for each Project, 

provided that such Project Delivery Costs are documented Eligible Project Costs specific to 

such Project.  The State Recipient also may retain up to Seventeen Thousand and No/100 

Dollars ($17,000.00) of the Funding amount for reimbursement of Administrative Costs of 

the Rehabilitation Program, provided that such Administrative Costs are Eligible Project 

Costs. 

(h) Previously Incurred Administrative Costs.  Administrative Costs 

incurred by the State Recipient for the Project prior to the Effective Date shall be 

reimbursed up to One Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) based upon invoices and 

paid receipts satisfactory to the Authority.   

(i) Disbursement. 

(i) General.  The State Recipient shall request disbursements 

of Funding proceeds from the Authority in connection with the rehabilitation of 

each Project (including Administrative Costs) when funds are needed for payment 

of the Eligible Project Costs of such Project.  The total amount of each 



6  

disbursement request shall be limited to the amount of the Eligible Project Costs 

of the Project. 

(ii) Termination.  The Authority shall not be obligated to 

disburse Funding proceeds in connection with any Project after the date that is 

twenty-four (24) months after the Effective Date. 

(iii) Authorization.  The Authority shall authorize the 

disbursement of Funding proceeds to the State Recipient for a Project only upon 

delivery of the following documents, acceptable to the Authority in its sole 

discretion: 

A. A copy of all HUD IDIS set-up forms and revisions, 

if applicable, of those forms; 

B. The required environmental review forms, in the 

form set forth in the Program Manual; 

C. The Authority's HOME Program Disbursement 

Request Form executed by the State Recipient; and 

D. Any and all other documents and showings requested 

by the Authority or its counsel. 

Within ten (10) business days from receipt of these documents, the 

Authority shall approve or reject the request for disbursement.  If the request for 

disbursement is approved, the Authority shall notify the State Recipient and shall 

endeavor to disburse the appropriate amount to the State Recipient within thirty 

(30) business days from the date of its approval.  If the request for disbursement is 

rejected, the Authority shall give its reasons for such rejection in writing to the 

State Recipient. 

(iv) Payments.  Within five (5) business days from receipt of 

the Funding proceeds in connection with a Project, the State Recipient shall pay 

all contractors for all work performed on such Project; provided, however, that all 

such contractors have provided the State Recipient with partial or final lien 

waivers, as applicable, for such work. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the State Recipient is unable or 

unwilling to pay the contractors by the date identified in the preceding paragraph, 

the State Recipient shall immediately remit any unpaid funds to the Authority.  The 

State Recipient agrees that any monies received from the Authority and awaiting 

disbursement to contractors shall be deposited and held in a non-interest bearing, 

FDIC-insured bank account. 

 (v) Records.  The State Recipient shall obtain for its files the 

original of the Rehabilitation Program Agreement, a file-stamped copy of the 

Repayment Agreement, the original Note (as defined in the Rehabilitation 



7  

Program Agreement), originals of the other Loan Documents (as defined in the 

Rehabilitation Program Agreement).  The State Recipient shall record or cause to 

be recorded the Repayment Agreement and the [Second] Mortgage, upon closing 

(j) Project Completion.  Within sixty (60) days after receiving the 

final disbursement for a Project, the State Recipient shall file a HUD Project Completion 

Report with the Authority. 

(k) Governmental Approvals.  The State Recipient shall require that, 

for each Project, the Household and any contractors shall obtain and comply with all 

Federal, State and local governmental approvals required by law. 

(l) Property Standards.  The State Recipient shall require of each 

Household receiving a Loan that their Project be conducted in compliance with all local 

codes, ordinances, zoning ordinances and that their Residence shall, at a minimum, meet 

the property standards set forth in Section 92.251(a)(1) of the HOME Regulations and the 

Authority's Property Standards for Rehabilitated Units. 

(m) Certification of Income.  Prior to the making of a Loan to a 

Household, the State Recipient shall obtain an Income Certification Form, set forth in the 

Program Manual, completed and executed by the Household receiving the Loan.  In the 

manner prescribed by the Authority, the State Recipient shall obtain written evidence 

substantiating the information given on such Income Certifications and shall retain such 

evidence in its files for five (5) years after the year to which such evidence pertains. 

(n) Repayment of Funding Monies.  The State Recipient agrees to 

repay to the Authority any Funding proceeds used for a Project if the Project fails to meet 

the affordability restrictions set forth in the HOME Regulations and in the Repayment 

Agreement, or if the proceeds are used to pay for costs other than Eligible Project Costs.  

This obligation to repay Funding proceeds shall continue for each Project until the 

expiration (without default) of the Repayment Period (as defined in the Rehabilitation 

Program Agreement) for such Project. 

(o) Expiration of Agreement Remaining Monies.  Upon the 

expiration of this Agreement, any Funding proceeds not used by the State Recipient and 

any accounts receivable of the State Recipient attributable to the use of HOME funds shall 

be returned immediately to the Authority. 

(p) Prohibited Transfer; Subordination Policy.  The State Recipient 

shall require the Owner of each Residence to acknowledge that, without the prior written 

consent of the Authority, such owner shall not effect, suffer or permit any conveyance, sale, 

assignment, transfer, lien, pledge, mortgage, security interest or other encumbrance or 

alienation (or any agreement to do any of the foregoing) of the Residence (each a 

“Prohibited Transfer”) not in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Repayment 

Agreement.  A Prohibited Transfer shall include without limitation, any re-subordination of 

a Loan by the owner of a Residence without the prior written consent of the Authority, 

which may be granted or withheld in the Authority’s sole discretion. 



8  

(q) Program Income. At no time shall the State Recipient cause the 

generation of any income as a result of or related to the Program (“Program Income”).  In 

the event that there is Program Income, the State Recipient shall remit all such Program 

Income to the Authority prior to the State Recipient making any disbursement requests of 

the Authority. 

 

8. OTHER HOME PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS. 

(a) Equal Employment Opportunity.  The State Recipient shall 

require that the Households execute the Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Contract in the 

form attached to the Rehabilitation Program Agreement as Exhibit E thereto (“Construction 

Contract”), including without limitation the incorporation of the equal opportunity clause 

contained in Exhibit B attached to and incorporated into the Construction Contract.  The 

State Recipient further agrees that it will (1) assist and cooperate actively with the 

Authority and the United States Secretary of Labor ("Secretary") in obtaining the 

compliance of all contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the 

rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary, (2) furnish the Authority and the 

Secretary such information as they may require for their supervision of such compliance 

and (3) otherwise assist the Authority in the discharge of the State Recipient's primary 

responsibility for securing compliance.  The State Recipient further agrees that it will not 

enter into any contract or contract modification with a contractor who has been excluded 

(“debarred”) from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and 

Federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965 ("Executive Order"), and will carry out such sanctions and penalties 

for any violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and 

subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary pursuant to Part II, Subpart D 

of the Executive Order.  In addition, the State Recipient agrees that if it fails or refuses to 

comply with these undertakings, the Authority may terminate this Agreement and pursue 

its remedies hereunder and/or refer the case to the United States Department of Justice for 

appropriate action. 

(b) Local Preference.  The State Recipient shall require that 

Households participating in the Rehabilitation Program meet the rehabilitation 

requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 

1701u), as amended, that to the greatest extent feasible, (i) opportunities for training and 

employment shall be given to lower income residents located in the MSA or county in 

which the Residence is located; and (ii) contracts for construction work in connection with 

the Project shall be awarded to business concerns engaged in the business of construction 

that are located in, or owned in substantial part by, persons residing in the MSA or county 

in which the Residence is located.  The State Recipient shall require that the Households 

include the provisions of this Paragraph 9(b) in any construction contract with a general 

contractor for a Project. 

(c) Minority Business Enterprises.  The State Recipient shall make 

efforts to encourage the use of minority and women's business enterprises in connection 



9  

with the rehabilitation of each Project, as provided in Executive Orders 11625, 12432 and 

12138. 

(d) Lead-Based Paint.  The State Recipient shall provide each 

Household applying to participate in the Rehabilitation Program with the Lead-Based Paint 

Notification contained in the Program Manual.  The State Recipient shall evaluate the 

Residence to determine whether there is the presence of lead-based paint or lead-based 

paint hazards, and shall require, as part of the Project, that the Owner comply with the 

Lead-Based Paint Poison Prevention Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 4821 et seq.,) and the 

Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. 4851 et seq.,) and 

the Lead-Based Paint HOME Regulations codified at 24 CFR Part 35.  The State 

Recipient] shall also require that all construction contracts and subcontracts provide that 

lead-based paint not be used in the Project.  Construction contracts must also include all 

requirements (i) for the use of applicable safe work practices and (ii) that all contractors 

and their employees, and subcontractors and their employees, have been properly trained 

and possess proper qualifications or certifications as applicable to carry out the work.   

(e) Environmental Review.  Each activity carried out with Funding 

proceeds must be assessed by the State Recipient, for the benefit of the Authority, in 

accordance with the provisions of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 and the 

related authorities listed in the implementing regulations at 24 CFR, parts 50 and 58, as set 

forth in Section 92.352 of the HOME Regulations.    The State Recipient shall submit each 

Project assessment to the Authority with each project set up days prior to the initial closing.  

State Recipient may not expend any funds for activities until the Authority has notified 

State Recipient in writing that the environmental review is complete.   

(f) Flood Insurance.  No portion of the Funding proceeds may be used 

for acquisition or construction (including rehabilitation) of a Project located in an area 

identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency as having special flood hazards 

unless flood insurance is obtained, as provided in 24 CFR 58.6. 

(g) Uniform Administrative Requirements.  The State Recipient  

shall comply with applicable uniform administrative requirements pursuant to 

Section 92.505 of the HOME Regulations. 

(h) Residence Value.  As permitted under Section 92.254(a)(2)(iii) of 

the HOME Regulations, the appraised value of each Residence after completion of the 

rehabilitation shall not exceed Two Hundred Thousand One Hundred Sixty and No/100 

Dollars ($200,160.00) for Coles County, as amended from time to time by HUD, or such 

other amount as may be required by HUD.  If at any time after the date of this Agreement, 

HUD requires such appraised value be modified, the Authority will notify the State 

Recipient of such amount in writing.   

(i) Debarment.  The State Recipient shall (i) certify that the State 

Recipient has not been debarred from any governmental contracts, including but not 

limited to the form of Debarment Certificate attached hereto and made a part hereof as 

Exhibit D, and (ii) maintain evidence satisfactory to the Authority that no contractors 



10  

involved in the rehabilitation of a Projects has been debarred from any governmental 

contracts during their involvement with a Project. 

(j) No Defaults.  The State Recipient by this Agreement certifies that 

as of the date hereof, and at all times hereafter, State Recipient has satisfied and shall 

continue to satisfy all terms, conditions, and covenants of, and has not suffered or will 

suffer any event of default of any agreement, contract or requirement of the Authority, 

HUD, the State of Illinois, or any political subdivision thereof. 

9. PARTICIPANT SELECTION PLAN; NON-DISCRIMINATION. 

(a) Participant Selection Plan.  In the selection of Households for 

participation in the Rehabilitation Program, the State Recipient agrees to abide by its 

Participant Selection Plan, as approved by the Authority. 

(b) Non-Discrimination. 

(i) The State Recipient shall not, in the selection of 

Households for participation in the Rehabilitation Program, in the provision of 

services in connection therewith, or in any other manner discriminate against any 

person on the grounds of race, color, creed, religion, sex, age, handicap, national 

origin, familial or marital status, ancestry, or unfavorable military discharge. 

(ii) The State Recipient shall comply with all of the provisions 

of Paragraph 313 of the HOME Act, and all provisions of Federal, State and local 

laws relating to non-discrimination as applicable, including, but not limited to, 

(1) the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-20) and the implementing regulations; 

(2) Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259 and the 

implementing regulations; (3) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the 

implementing regulations; (4) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 

6101-07) and the implementing regulations; (5) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 

Act of 1973 and the implementing regulations; (6) the requirements of Executive 

Order 11246 and the implementing regulations; and (7) the Illinois Human Rights 

Act (775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq. (1992)); all as they may be subsequently amended 

and supplemented. 

10. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.    The State Recipient shall comply with the 

conflicts of interest provisions in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR 84.42 respectively.  In all cases not 

governed by 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR 84.42 the State Recipient shall comply with the 

prohibitions on conflicts of interest set forth in Section 92.356 of the HOME Regulations, as the 

same may be modified, amended or supplemented from time to time, and with the prohibitions on 

conflicts of interest otherwise adopted by the HOME Program from time to time.  Among other 

things, (i) no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer or elected or appointed 

official of the State Recipient may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a HOME Program-

assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect 

thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, during their tenure or for one year thereafter, and (ii) in 

addition to, and not in limitation of, clause (i) above, no person who is an employee, agent, 



11  

consultant, officer or elected or appointed official of the State Recipient and who exercises or has 

exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with HOME 

Program funds, or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside 

information with regard to such activities, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a 

HOME Program-assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement 

with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or for those with whom 

they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.  The State 

Recipient shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that the provisions of this Paragraph 10 are 

adhered to and observed, including, but not limited to, requiring that all contracts and 

subcontracts in connection with any Project contain language prohibiting such conflicts of 

interest. 

11. RECORDS. 

(a) Audits.  The plans, specifications, books, contracts, records and 

documents relating to the Rehabilitation Program shall at all times be maintained by the 

State Recipient in accordance with Section 92.508 of the HOME Regulations and 

otherwise in reasonable condition for proper audit, and shall be subject to examination, 

inspection and copying by the Authority or its agent or representative at any time as the 

Authority reasonably requires. 

(b) Financial Report.  The State Recipient shall furnish the Authority 

with a compliance audit, prepared in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR Part 85, 

OMB Circular A-133 (Audits of State and Local Governments) and OMB Circular A-110, 

as applicable, and certified to the Authority by the State Recipient and an Illinois-licensed 

certified public accountant.  The audit of State Recipient shall be completed and submitted 

within the earlier of thirty (30) days after receipt by State Recipient of the auditor’s reports, 

or nine (9) months after the end of the State Recipient audit period.  The Authority reserves 

the right to require such additional reports as necessary. 

(c) Project Files.  The State Recipient shall maintain files, in a manner 

acceptable to the Authority, for each Household participating in the Rehabilitation Program 

evidencing that the State Recipient has met all requirements of the Rehabilitation Program, 

the IHDA Rules and the HOME Regulations.  In addition, the State Recipient shall 

maintain all documents delivered to the Authority and listed on the Homeowner 

Rehabilitation Monitoring Checklist in the Program Manual. 

(d) Furnishing Information.  At the request of the Authority, the State 

Recipient shall furnish such reports, budgets, certifications and other documents required 

pursuant to the IHDA Rules and the HOME Regulations, or other applicable Federal or 

State statutes or requirements, and shall give specific answers to questions from the 

Authority, from time to time, relative to the State Recipient's contracts and operations in 

connection with the Rehabilitation Program and the Projects.   

(e) Reporting Compliance with Program Provisions.  The State 

Recipient and Household receiving a Loan shall have mutual obligations of reporting 

compliance with the conditions contained in the Rehabilitation Program Agreement from 



12  

the date the Project has been identified as “completed” in IDIS until the Loan has been 

forgiven in full (whether five years or ten years, as the case may be), along with a 

requirement that the State Recipient and the Household receiving the Loan shall promptly 

notify the Authority in the event that the Residence is no longer owner-occupied.   

12. DEFAULT; REMEDIES.  The occurrence of any one or more violations 

of the provisions of this Agreement by the State Recipient shall constitute an “Event of Default” 

hereunder.  Upon an Event of Default, the Authority shall give written notice thereof to the State 

Recipient, as provided in Paragraph 16 hereof.  If (i) such Event of Default is not cured to the 

satisfaction of the Authority within thirty (30) days after the date such notice is given, or within 

such further time as the Authority in its sole discretion permits (but if such violation is of a 

nature that it cannot be cured within such thirty (30) day period, then so long as the State 

Recipient commences to cure within such thirty (30) day period and diligently pursues such cure 

to completion within a reasonable period not to exceed one hundred twenty (120) days from the 

date of such notice, it shall not be considered to be an Event of Default), or (ii) if there exists any 

default under any Rehabilitation Program Agreement or any Loan Document (as defined 

therein), then the Authority may declare a default (“Default”) under this Agreement, effective on 

the date of declaration of Default and notice thereof to the State Recipient, and upon such 

Default the Authority shall act in accordance with 24 CFR 85.43 and may: 

(a) Take one or more of the following actions, as appropriate in the 

circumstances: (1) temporarily withhold cash payment pending correction of the 

deficiency by the State Recipient or more severe enforcement action by the Authority, (2) 

disallow (that is deny both use of funds and matching credit for) all or part of the cost of 

the activity or action not in compliance, (3) wholly or partly suspend or terminate the 

current award for the Rehabilitation Program or (4) withhold awards for the 

Rehabilitation Program;  

(b) Recover any unexpended proceeds of the Funding and recover as 

damages any amounts that the Authority may be required to return to HUD pursuant to the 

HOME Program as a consequence of the Default; 

(c) Apply to any court, State or Federal, for an injunction against any 

Default, or for such other relief as may be appropriate.  The State Recipient acknowledges 

and agrees that, because the injury to the Authority arising from a Default would be 

irreparable and the amount of damages would be difficult to ascertain, the Authority's 

remedies at law, in the event of a violation of this Agreement, would be inadequate to 

assure the Authority's public purpose under the IHDA Act and the HOME Act; and 

(d) Exercise such other rights or remedies as may be available to the 

Authority hereunder, at law or in equity. 

The Authority's remedies are cumulative, and the exercise of one remedy shall not be 

deemed an election of remedies, nor foreclose the exercise of any other remedy by the Authority.  

No waiver of any breach of this Agreement by the Authority shall be deemed to be a waiver of 

any other breach or a subsequent breach.  If the Authority fails to exercise, or delays in 



13  

exercising, any right under this Agreement, such failure or delay shall not be deemed a waiver of 

such right or any other right. 

13. NO PERSONAL LIABILITY.  No member, officer, agent or employee 

of the Authority, or their successors and assigns, shall be liable personally concerning any 

matters arising out of or in relation to the undertakings or obligations set forth in this Agreement. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION.  

(a) The State Recipient shall indemnify the Authority and the 

Authority's officers, agents, employees, or servants against, and hold them harmless from, 

liabilities, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to, legal defense 

costs, attorneys' fees, and settlements or judgments, in any claim or lawsuit arising out of 

the State Recipient's performance hereunder or any actions of any Household in connection 

with any Project brought against the Authority or the Authority's officers, agents, 

employees or servants. 

(b) If a claim or suit is brought against the Authority or the Authority's 

officers, agents, employees or servants for which the State Recipient is responsible 

pursuant to subparagraph (a) of this Paragraph 15, the State Recipient shall defend the 

Authority, at the State Recipient's cost and expense, and will pay any resulting claims, 

judgments, damages, losses, expenses or settlements against the Authority or the 

Authority's officers, agents, employees or servants, including, but not limited to, attorneys' 

fees. 

15. AMENDMENT.  This Agreement shall not be altered or amended except 

in a writing signed by the parties hereto. 

16. NOTICES.  Any notices, demand, request or other communication which 

any party may desire or may be required to give to any other party hereunder shall be given in 

writing at the addresses set forth below, by any of the following means:  (a) personal service; 

(b) overnight courier; or (c) registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid, return 

receipt requested. 

 

The State Recipient:  City of Mattoon 

c/o Doug McDermand 

Coles County Regional Planning 

And Development Commission 

Coles County Courthouse 

651 Jackson Street 

Room 309 

Charleston, Illinois 61920 

 

 

 

 

 



14  

The Authority:  Illinois Housing Development Authority 

401 N. Michigan, Suite 700 

Chicago, Illinois 60611 

Attn:  Legal Department 

 

   

 

Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other party given in the same manner as 

herein provided.  Any notice, demand, request or other communication sent pursuant to 

subsection (a) hereof shall be served and effective upon such personal service.  Any notice, 

demand, request or other communication sent pursuant to subsection (b) shall be served and 

effective one (1) business day after deposit with the overnight courier.  Any notice, demand, 

request or other communication sent pursuant to subsection (c) shall be served and effective three 

(3) business days after proper deposit with the United States Postal Service.     

17. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall bind, and the benefits shall inure 

to, the parties hereto, their legal representatives, successors in office or interest and assigns, 

provided that the State Recipient may not assign this Agreement or any of its obligations, or 

delegate any of its duties, hereunder without the prior written approval of the Authority. 

18. PUBLICITY.  The Authority reserves the right to publicize the execution 

of this Agreement and the making of the Funding.  The State Recipient shall notify the Authority 

immediately of any formal publicity in connection with the Rehabilitation Program or any 

Project that is arranged or promoted by the State Recipient or any other party participating in the 

financing or development of any Project.  Formal publicity includes, but is not limited to, 

participation in news conferences and similar media events. The use of the Authority's name in 

any signage is subject to the Authority's prior written consent. 

19. SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS.  The State Recipient's obligations, as 

set forth in this Agreement, shall survive the Effective Date and the State Recipient shall 

continue to cooperate with the Authority and furnish any documents, exhibits or showings 

required hereunder. 

20. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT. 

(a) Partial Invalidity.  If any term, covenant, condition or provision of 

this Agreement, or the application thereof to any circumstance, shall, at any time or to any 

extent, be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, 

the remainder of this Agreement, or the application thereof to circumstances other than 

those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each 

term, covenant, condition and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to 

the fullest extent permitted by law. 

(b) Gender.  The use of the plural in this Agreement shall include the 

singular, the singular shall include the plural, and the use of any gender shall be deemed to 

include all genders. 



15  

(c) Captions.  The captions used in this Agreement are inserted only as 

a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope 

of the intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

(d) Construction.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. 

(e) Exhibits.  The Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein and 

made a part of this Agreement. 

21. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  THE PARTIES WAIVE TRIAL BY 

JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY 

EITHER OF THE PARTIES HERETO AGAINST THE OTHER ON ANY MATTER 

WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THE 

REHABILITATION PROGRAM OR THIS AGREEMENT. 

  23. JURISDICTION.  TO INDUCE THE AUTHORITY TO ACCEPT 

THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, STATE RECIPIENT IRREVOCABLY AGREES 

THAT, SUBJECT TO THE AUTHORITY'S SOLE AND ABSOLUTE ELECTION, ALL 

ACTIONS OR PROCEEDINGS IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO 

THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE LITIGATED IN COURTS HAVING SITUS IN 

CHICAGO, ILLINOIS.  STATE RECIPIENT HEREBY CONSENTS AND SUBMITS TO 

THE JURISDICTION OF ANY COURT LOCATED WITHIN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS, 

WAIVES PERSONAL SERVICE OF PROCESS UPON STATE RECIPIENT, AND 

AGREES THAT ALL SUCH SERVICE OF PROCESS MAY BE MADE BY 

REGISTERED MAIL DIRECTED TO STATE RECIPIENT AT THE ADDRESS 

STATED HEREIN AND SERVICE SO MADE WILL BE DEEMED TO BE 

COMPLETED UPON ACTUAL RECEIPT. 
 

24. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, all of which shall be taken to be one and the same instrument, for the same effect as 

if all parties hereto had signed the same signature page.   

25. LIABILITY OF THE AUTHORITY.  In no event shall the Authority be 

liable to the State Recipient for consequential or incidental damages, including, without 

limitation, lost profits, whatever the nature of the breach by the Authority of its obligations under 

this Agreement or the Funding Documents or in connection herewith and the State Recipient 

waives all claims for consequential and incidental damages and for all damages described in 

Paragraph 26 below. 

26. FUNDING.  The parties acknowledge that the Funding is to be funded 

with monies provided by HUD, and that the Authority is under no obligation to request such 

funds for any disbursement of proceeds of the Funding unless and until all necessary 

preconditions to disbursement set forth herein and in the other Funding Documents shall have 

been satisfied to the Authority's satisfaction, and that significant time delays might result from 

the funding of such monies by HUD.  Without limiting the generality of Paragraph 25 above, in 



16  

no event shall the Authority be liable to the State Recipient for any damages whatsoever which 

might result in whole or in part from any delays in funding any proceeds of the Funding. 

27. THE AUTHORITY’S RIGHT TO TERMINATE.  In addition to any 

other rights granted to the Authority herein, the Authority reserves the right to terminate this 

Agreement for convenience, in accordance with 24 CFR 85.44. 

28. ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION.  Pursuant to the requirements in 

24 CFR 91.225, State Recipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by 

or on behalf of State Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to 

influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer 

or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 

with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the 

making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and 

the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 

contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid 

or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 

or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, State Recipient shall 

complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report 

Lobbying,” (“Lobbying Disclosure Certificate”, attached hereto as Exhibit E) in 

accordance with its instructions. 

 

(c) State Recipient shall require that the language of this certification 

be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including 

subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 

agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 

 This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance 

was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this 

certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed 

by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 

certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 

more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 

 29. PRIVACY ACT CERTIFICATION.  

State Recipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that the undersigned 

has adopted and implemented and will enforce an Information Security Policy (“Privacy Policy”) 

that: (a) complies with the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the “GLB Act”); (b) complies with the 

Federal Trade Commission’s established policies and procedures for safeguarding information for 

applicants’ and individual participants (“Participants”) of the Rehabilitation Program (the 



17  

“Safeguard Rule”); (c) includes appropriate measures to dispose of applicants’ and Participants’ 

information in compliance with the foregoing (the “Disposal Rule”); and (d) complies with the 

Personal Information Act (the “PIP Act”) (the GLB Act, the Safeguard Rule, the Disposal Rule and 

the PIP Act shall be collectively referred to herein as the “Privacy Legislation”. 

State Recipient additionally certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that the 

undersigned’s Privacy Policy: (a) creates a form of privacy notice that is in compliance with the 

Privacy Legislation (“Privacy Notice); (b) requires that the Privacy Notice be delivered to all 

individuals prior to a relationship being established with and prior to the applicant disclosing any 

nonpublic personal information to the State Recipient regardless of whether or not a loan is 

extended to this individual; (c)  directs that the Privacy Notice be sent by mail to the last known 

address or delivered in person to all of the existing Participants under the Rehabilitation Program 

and yearly thereafter for the duration of the relationship with the Participants; (d) provides that if 

the State Recipient changes its Privacy Policy that the State Recipient will need to provide a new,  

revised Privacy Notice reflecting the changes to the Privacy Policy to the Participants; and (e) 

complies with all of the requirements set forth in that certain Notice Regarding Privacy Act 

delivered to the State Recipient by the Authority.  

State Recipient acknowledges that this certification is a material representation of fact 

upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of 

this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction. 

  

 
 

[Signatures on Next Page] 



18  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement to be 

effective as of the date first written above. 

 

STATE RECIPIENT: 

 

CITY OF MATTOON, 

an Illinois unit of local government 

 

By:        

Name: ____________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________________ 

 

AUTHORITY: 

 

ILLINOIS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

By:       

    Gloria L. Materre, Executive Director 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

By:       

       Robert W. Kugel, Chief Financial Officer 

 

By:       

       Mary R. Kenney, General Counsel 

 

Exhibits: 

  A: Rehabilitation Program Agreement 

Exhibits: 

  A: Repayment Agreement  

  A.1: Repayment Agreement Amendment 

  B: Promissory Note 

  C: [Second] Mortgage 

  D: Contractor’s Payment Request 

  E: Certificate of Completion 

  F: Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Construction Contract 

  G: Rehabilitation Work List 

  H: Right to Rescind 

  B: Intentionally Omitted 

  C: Projected Payout Schedule 

  D: Debarment Certification 

  E: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Certification 

 

Appendices:  

A: Summary and Text of Applicable HOME Regulations



A-1 

EXHIBIT A TO SFOOR PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

HO-50220 

         CITY OF MATTOON 

SFOOR 

 

REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 

This Rehabilitation Program Agreement ("Agreement"), made as of this ____ day of  

  ,  , by and between                                      

(“Owner"), who reside(s) at      ("Property"), and City of Mattoon, an 

Illinois unit of local government ("State Recipient"), having its principal offices at Coles 

County Courthouse, 651 Jackson Street, Room 309, Charleston, Illinois 61920. 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 

WHEREAS, the State Recipient has applied for funds from the Illinois Housing 

Development Authority ("Authority"), as administrator of the HOME Investment Partnerships 

Program ("HOME Program"), as authorized by Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act 

of 1990 (P.L. 101-165) ("HOME Act"), the regulations promulgated thereunder and codified at 

24 CFR, Part 92 ("HOME Regulations"), and the Authority's rules for the HOME Program, 

codified at 47 Ill. Adm. Code, Part 371 ("IHDA Rules"), all as may be amended and 

supplemented from time to time.  The Authority receives funding for this program from the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”), CFDA number 14.239; and 

WHEREAS, the State Recipient has entered into a SFOOR Program Agreement 

("SFOOR Program Agreement") with the Authority, dated as of ___________, pursuant to 

which the Authority has agreed to make funds available to the State Recipient, the proceeds of 

which are to be used to make forgivable loans (each a "Loan") to eligible property owners for 

the rehabilitation of eligible single-family residences under the State Recipient's owner-occupied 

rehabilitation program ("Rehabilitation Program"); and 

WHEREAS, the Owner is the fee simple owner of record of the Property and has applied 

to the State Recipient for a Loan from the State Recipient for the rehabilitation of the Property 

(“Rehabilitation”); and 

WHEREAS, it is a condition of the State Recipient making of the Loan to the Owner that 

the Owner enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 

In consideration of the recitals set forth above and other good and valuable consideration, 

the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. RECITALS.  The foregoing recitals are made a part of this Agreement. 

2. GENERAL CONDITIONS.  This Agreement and the Loan shall be subject to the 

terms and conditions of the HOME Act, the HOME Regulations, the Illinois Housing 

Development Act, 20 ILCS 3805/1 et seq. (“IHDA Act”), and the IHDA Rules. 



A-2  

3. OWNER REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.  The Owner represents 

and warrants to the State Recipient as follows: 

(a) The Owner's Household has a gross annual income, as adjusted for family 

size, that is less than or equal to ______________________ [eighty percent (80%)/fifty 

percent (50%)/thirty percent (30%)] of the median income for the metropolitan statistical 

area in which the Property is located, as determined by the United States Department of 

Housing and Urban Development. 

(b) The Owner shall provide income eligible verification to the State Recipient  

to determine annual income as provided in Section 92.203 of the HOME Regulations. 

(c)  The Owner holds fee simple title to, or has ownership or membership in a 

cooperative corporation owning the Property. 

(d) The Property is the principal residence of the Owner, and will not include 

rental components. 

(e) Loan proceeds shall be used to pay only Eligible Project Costs (as that term 

is defined in Section 92.206 of the HOME Regulations) of the Rehabilitation. 

(f) As permitted under Section 92.254(a)(2)(iii) of the HOME Regulations the 

appraised value of the Property after completion of the Rehabilitation shall not exceed 

_______________ and NO/100 Dollars ($__________), as amended from time to time by 

HUD, or such other amount as may be required by HUD.  If at any time after the date of 

this Agreement, HUD requires such appraised after rehabilitation value be modified, the 

Authority will notify the State Recipient of such amount in writing.   

4. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE LOAN.  The Loan shall be subject to the 

following terms and conditions: 

(a) Amount, Interest, Term and Security.  The Loan shall (i) be in the amount 

of _____________________________and ___/100 Dollars ($__________), (ii) bear no 

interest, (iii) be for a term of [five (5)] [ten (10)] years and (iv) be governed by the 

Repayment Agreement, as provided in Paragraph 4(c) hereof. 

(b) Use.  The proceeds of the Loan shall be used to rehabilitate the Property, as 

more fully described herein in the Rehabilitation Work List attached hereto as Exhibit G. 

(c) Repayment Agreement.  The Owner shall enter into a repayment agreement 

with the Authority in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A ("Repayment Agreement").  

Based on completed rehabilitation value or estimate of completed rehabilitation value, and 

as calculated using the Repayment Worksheet, Owner shall execute a Repayment 

Agreement Amendment in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.1.  Promptly after 

execution, the Repayment Agreement Amendment shall be recorded in the county in which 

the Property is located. 



A-3  

(d) Loan Documents.  Upon State Recipient 's approval of the Rehabilitation, 

the Owner shall deliver to the State Recipient  (in the number of copies set forth below) the 

following executed documents, and such other documents as the State Recipient  may 

require, in its sole discretion, all executed in the manner indicated therein, and in form and 

substance acceptable to the State Recipient  (collectively, including this Agreement, "Loan 

Documents"): 

(i) A promissory note (“Note”) in the amount of the Loan in favor of 

the Authority in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B; 

(ii) Two (2) executed copies of the Repayment Agreement by Owner in 

favor of the Authority to be recorded in the county in which the Property is located;  

(iii) Two (2) executed [second] mortgages from the Owner in favor of 

the Authority in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C (“[Second] Mortgage”), 

that shall be recorded in the county in which the Property is located; and 

(iv) Any and all other documents and showings requested by the State 

Recipient . 

The Loan Documents shall constitute separate and distinct contractual obligations 

of the parties thereto and shall not be solely considered as exhibits to this Agreement. 

(e) Payment.  If a portion of the rehabilitation of the Property has been 

completed and funds are needed for payment of Eligible Project Costs, the Owner shall 

notify the State Recipient and submit to the State Recipient a Contractor Payment Request, 

in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D, executed by the Owner and the contractor.  No 

more than ten (10) business days after the State Recipient receives the Contractor Payment 

Request, the State Recipient or its agent shall inspect the Property and approve or reject the 

Contractor Payment Request.  If the State Recipient approves the Contractor Payment 

Request, the disbursement shall be made directly to the contractor and any subcontractors 

who worked on the Rehabilitation, as reflected on the Contractor Payment Request, within 

forty-five (45) business days of such approval, provided that the State Recipient has 

received funds for the disbursement from the Authority.  The State Recipient shall not 

make a disbursement until it has received partial or final lien waivers for the work that is 

the subject of the Contractor from all such contractors and subcontractors and the 

Repayment Agreement has been properly recorded.  If the State Recipient approves the 

Contractor Payment Request, it shall execute the Contractor Payment Request.  If the State 

Recipient rejects the Contractor Payment Request, it shall give its reasons for such rejection 

in writing to the Owner and the contractor. 

Upon completion of the Rehabilitation, the Owner shall notify the State Recipient  

and submit a final Contractor Payment Request, executed by the Owner and the Contractor.  

No more than ten (10) business days after the State Recipient receives the final Contractor 

Payment Request, the State Recipient or its agent, and the Owner, shall inspect the Property 

and approve or reject the final Contractor Payment Request.  If the State Recipient  

approves the final Contractor Payment Request, the disbursement shall be made directly to 



A-4  

the Contractor and any subcontractors who worked on the Rehabilitation, as reflected on 

the final Contractor Payment Request, within forty-five (45) business days of such 

approval, provided that the State Recipient  has received funds for the disbursement from 

the Authority.  The State Recipient shall not make a final disbursement until (i) it has 

received final lien waivers from all such contractors and subcontractors, (ii) the contractor, 

Owner and State Recipient have executed a Certificate of Completion, in the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit E, and (iii) the Repayment Agreement has been properly recorded.  The 

final disbursement for the Rehabilitation shall not be made until the rehabilitation of the 

Property is completed and funds are needed for payment of Eligible Project Costs.  If the 

State Recipient approves the final Contractor Payment Request, it shall execute the final 

Contractor Payment Request.  If the State Recipient rejects the final Contractor Payment 

Request, it shall give its reasons for such rejection in writing to the Owner and the 

contractor.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the State Recipient  cannot obtain the 

Owner’s signature on Exhibit E due to a dispute by the Owner about whether the 

rehabilitation work has been properly completed, the State Recipient  may accept a 

Certificate of Completion signed by all applicable signatories other than the Owner if the 

State Recipient  attaches an explanation in writing signed by the appropriate officials of the 

State Recipient  and specifying the nature of the dispute, the measures taken by the State 

Recipient  to resolve the dispute and the State Recipient ’s reasons for deciding that the 

rehabilitation was properly completed. 

5. REHABILITATION PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS. 

(a) Governmental Approvals.  The Owner shall obtain or cause to be obtained 

all Federal, State and local governmental approvals required by law for the Rehabilitation. 

(b) Compliance with Laws.  The Owner shall cause the Rehabilitation to 

comply with all state, federal and local codes, ordinances, zoning ordinances, including but 

not limited to, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821 et seq.,), 

the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. 4851 et seq.,), 

the Lead-Based Paint Exposure Reduction Act, 15 U.S.C. 2601 et seq., and 24 C.F.R. 35, 

each as respectively amended from time to time, the Authority's rehabilitation standards 

and the property standards set forth in the SFOOR Program Agreement and the HOME 

Regulations at Section 92.251(a)(1). 

(c) Scope of Work.  The State Recipient and the HOME Owner agree that the 

only rehabilitation to be done in connection with the Rehabilitation (“Scope of Work”), 

subject to written change orders ("Change Orders"), is listed in Exhibit A attached to the 

construction contract (the "Construction Contract") to be entered into by the Owner and 

any contractor in the form attached hereto as Exhibit F.  All Change Orders must be in 

writing and approved by the State Recipient and the Owner before deletions, modifications 

or additions can be made to the Scope of Work.  The State Recipient shall authorize only 

those Change Orders necessary for the correction of building code violations identified 

during the course of the Rehabilitation or for changes necessary to complete the 

Rehabilitation in a workmanlike manner.  THE OWNER UNDERSTANDS AND 

AGREES THAT IF IT REQUESTS A CONTRACTOR TO PERFORM WORK NOT 

LISTED IN THE SCOPE OF WORK OR ON ANY APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS, 



A-5  

THE OWNER IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PAYMENT FOR SUCH 

ADDITIONAL WORK.  OWNER FURTHER UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT 

ANY WORK REQUESTED OR PERFORMED OUTSIDE OF THE SCOPE OF WORK 

OR CHANGE ORDERS WILL CONSTITUTE A DEFAULT UNDER THIS 

AGREEMENT AND UNDER THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT. 

(d) Inspection.  The State Recipient and the Authority each shall have the right 

to inspect the Property during the course of the Rehabilitation. 

(e) Construction Contracts.  Neither the State Recipient nor the Authority shall 

be responsible for (i) construction means, methods, techniques, or sequences of 

construction, (ii) procedures for safety precautions in connection with the Rehabilitation, 

(iii) the contractor's work, or (iv) the contractor's failure to carry out the Rehabilitation in 

accordance with Construction Contract.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, State Recipient  

acknowledges and agrees that it is responsible for compliance of the work covered by the 

Scope of Work and any Change Orders with the rehabilitation and property standards 

contained in the HOME Regulations.  The State Recipient shall be the interpreter of the 

requirements of the Construction Contract and shall make decisions on all claims and 

disputes in connection with the Rehabilitation between the Owner and the contractor, 

which shall be final and binding on all parties thereto.  The Owner shall not terminate a 

Construction Contract without the prior written approval of the State Recipient. 

(f) Insurance.  If the Owner receives insurance proceeds for any damage or 

destruction to the Property occurring during the course of the Rehabilitation, the Owner 

shall apply such proceeds to the repair of such damage or destruction, if practicable.  If not 

practicable, the damage or destruction shall be deemed a Repayment Event and the Owner 

shall repay the Loan in accordance with Section 4(c) above. 

(g) Cooperation.  The Owner understands and agrees that the Owner shall 

cooperate at all times with the State Recipient and the Owner's contractor(s) and will do all 

acts necessary to facilitate the Rehabilitation. 

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  The Owner shall incorporate into all Construction 

Contracts language prohibiting any employee, agent, consultant, officer or elected or appointed 

official of the State Recipient , or, in some circumstances, business associates or members of the 

family of such individuals, from having an interest in this Agreement, any Construction Contract or 

any other contract or subcontract, or the proceeds of any such Construction Contract or other 

contract or subcontract, entered into in connection with this Agreement.  The State Recipient shall 

comply with the conflicts of interest provisions in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR 84.42 respectively.  

In all cases not governed by 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR 84.42 the State Recipient shall comply 

with the prohibitions on conflicts of interest set forth in Section 92.356 of the HOME Regulations, 

as the same may be modified, amended or supplemented from time to time, and with the 

prohibitions on conflicts of interest otherwise adopted by the HOME Program from time to time.    

7. RECORDS.  At the request of the State Recipient, the Owner shall furnish such 

reports, records and information in connection with the Rehabilitation required by the State 

Recipient, and shall give specific answers to questions from the State Recipient from time to time 



A-6  

relative to the Owner's income, assets, liabilities, or contracts, all relating to the Rehabilitation, and 

the maintenance, occupancy, and physical condition of the Property.  The State Recipient  and 

Owner shall have mutual obligations of reporting to the Authority, compliance with the conditions 

contained in this Agreement from the date the Rehabilitation has been identified as “completed” in 

IDIS until the Loan has been forgiven in full (whether five years or ten years, as the case may be), 

along with a requirement that the State Recipient  and the Owner shall promptly notify the 

Authority in the event that the Property is no longer owner-occupied 

8. INDEMNIFICATION. 

(a) The Owner shall indemnify the State Recipient , the Authority and the State 

Recipient 's and the Authority's respective officers, agents, employees or servants against, 

and hold them harmless from, liabilities, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, 

but not limited to, legal defense costs, attorneys' fees, settlements or judgments, whether by 

direct suit or from third parties, arising out of the Owner's performance under this 

Agreement or the work performed by a contractor in connection with the Rehabilitation, in 

any claim or suit brought by a person or third party against the State Recipient , the 

Authority or the State Recipient 's or the Authority's respective officers, agents, employees 

or servants. 

(b) If a claim or suit is brought against the State Recipient , the Authority or the 

State Recipient 's or the Authority's respective officers, agents, employees or servants, for 

which the Owner is responsible pursuant to subparagraph (a) of this Paragraph 8, the 

Owner shall defend, at the Owner's cost and expense, any suit or claim, and shall pay any 

resulting claims judgments, damages, losses, costs, expenses or settlements against the 

State Recipient , the Authority and the State Recipient 's or the Authority's respective 

officers, agents, employees or servants. 

9. DEFAULT.  A violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement by the Owner 

shall be an “Event of Default” hereunder.  The State Recipient shall give written notice of the 

Event of Default to the Owner, as provided in Paragraph 12 hereof.  If the Event of Default is not 

cured to the satisfaction of the State Recipient  within thirty (30) days after the date such notice is 

given, or within such further time as the State Recipient  in its sole discretion permits (but if such 

violation is of a nature that it cannot be cured within such thirty (30) day period, then so long as the 

Owner commences to cure within such thirty (30) day period and diligently pursues such cure to 

completion within a reasonable period not to exceed one hundred twenty (120) days from the date 

of such notice, it shall not be considered an Event of Default), the State Recipient  may declare a 

default (“Default”) under this Agreement, effective on the date of such declaration of Default and 

notice of the Default to the Owner, and upon such Default the State Recipient  may: 

(a) Terminate this Agreement; 

(b) Exercise any rights it may have under the Loan Documents; and 

(c) Exercise such other rights or remedies as may be available at law or in 

equity. 



A-7  

These remedies are cumulative, and the exercise of one remedy shall not be deemed an 

election of remedies, nor foreclose the exercise of any other remedy.  No waiver by the Authority 

of an Event of Default by the Owner shall be deemed to be a waiver of any other Event of Default 

or a subsequent Event of Default.  Failure to exercise, or delays in exercising, any right under this 

Agreement, shall not be deemed a waiver of such right or any other right. 

10. NO PERSONAL LIABILITY.  No member, officer, agent or employee of the 

Authority, or their successors and assigns, shall be liable personally concerning any matters 

arising out of or in relation to the undertakings or obligations set forth in this Agreement. 

11. AMENDMENT.  This Agreement shall not be altered or amended except in a 

writing signed by the parties hereto. 

12. NOTICES.  Any notices, demand, request or other communication which any 

party may desire or may be required to give to any other party hereunder shall be given in 

writing at the addresses set forth below, by any of the following means:  (a) personal service; 

(b) overnight courier; or (c) registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid, return 

receipt requested. 

 

The State Recipient :  City of Mattoon 

c/o Doug McDermand 

Coles County Regional Planning 

And Development Commission 

Coles County Courthouse 

651 Jackson Street 

Room 309 

Charleston, Illinois 61920 

 

 

The Authority:  Illinois Housing Development Authority 

401 N. Michigan, Suite 700 

Chicago, Illinois 60611 

Attn:  Legal Department 

 

   

Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other party given in the same manner as 

herein provided.  Any notice, demand, request or other communication sent pursuant to 

subsection (a) hereof shall be served and effective upon such personal service.  Any notice, 

demand, request or other communication sent pursuant to subsection (b) shall be served and 

effective one (1) business day after deposit with the overnight courier.  Any notice, demand, 

request or other communication sent pursuant to subsection (c) shall be served and effective three 

(3) business days after proper deposit with the United States Postal Service. 

13. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall bind, and the benefits shall incur to, the 

parties hereto, their legal representatives, successors in office or interest and assigns, provided that 



A-8  

the Owner may not assign this Agreement, its right to the Loan proceeds or any of its obligations 

hereunder without the prior written approval of the State Recipient . 

14. SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS.  The Owner's obligations, as set forth in this 

Agreement, shall survive the disbursement of the Loan, and the Owner shall continue to cooperate 

with the State Recipient  and furnish any documents, exhibits or showings required. 

15. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: 

(a) Partial Invalidity.  If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this 

Agreement, or the application thereof to any circumstance, shall, at any time or to any 

extent, be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, 

the remainder of this Agreement, or the application thereof to circumstances other than 

those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each 

term, covenant, condition and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to 

the fullest extent permitted by law. 

(b) Gender.  The use of the plural in this Agreement shall include the singular, 

the singular shall include the plural, and the use of any gender shall be deemed to include 

all genders. 

(c) Captions.  The captions used in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter 

of convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope of the 

intent of any provision of the Agreement. 

(d) Construction.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. 

(e) Exhibits.  The Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein and made a 

part of  this Agreement. 

16. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and each 

counterpart shall, for all purposes for which an original of this Agreement must be produced or 

exhibited, be the Agreement, but all such counterparts shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

17. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  THE PARTIES WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN 

ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THE 

PARTIES HERETO AGAINST THE OTHER ON ANY MATTER WHATSOEVER 

ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THE REHABILITATION 

PROGRAM OR THIS AGREEMENT. 

17. LIABILITY OF THE State Recipient  AND THE AUTHORITY.  In no event 

shall the Authority or the State Recipient be liable to the Owner for consequential or incidental 

damages, including, without limitation, lost profits, whatever the nature of the breach by the 

Authority or the State Recipient  of any obligations under this Agreement or in connection 

herewith, and the Owner waives all claims for consequential and incidental damages and for all 

damages described in Section 18 below. 



A-9  

18. FUNDING.  The parties acknowledge that the Loan is to be funded with monies 

provided by HUD, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the SFOOR Program Agreement, and 

that disbursement of Loan proceeds shall not occur unless and until all necessary preconditions to 

disbursement set forth in the SFOOR Program Agreement and under the requirements of HUD and 

the State of Illinois shall have been satisfied to the Authority's, HUD's and the State's satisfaction, 

and that significant time delays might result from the funding of such monies by HUD and the 

State.  Without limiting the generality of Section 17 above, in no event shall the State Recipient  or 

the Authority be liable to the Owner for any damages whatsoever which might result in whole or in 

part from any delays in funding any proceeds of the Loan. 

19. RIGHT TO RESCIND.  Owner may cancel the Loan on the terms set forth and 

using the form attached hereto as Exhibit H. 

 

 

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 



A-10  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 

on the date first above written. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 OWNER: 

 

  

Printed Name:  

 

 

  

Printed Name:  

 

 

  STATE RECIPIENT : 

 

CITY OF MATTOON, 

an Illinois unit of local government 

 

By:  

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

 

   

 

 
 

 

Exhibits: 

A: Repayment Agreement  

A.1: Repayment Agreement Amendment 

B: Promissory Note 

C: [Second] Mortgage 

D: Contractor’s Payment Request 

E: Certificate of Completion 

F: Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Construction Contract 

G: Rehabilitation Work List 

H: Right to Rescind 

 



A-A-1 

EXHIBIT A TO REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
This document was prepared by:  

Tracy Shine, Esq. 

and after recording should be returned to:  

Illinois Housing Development Authority 

401 N. Michigan, Suite 700 

Chicago, Illinois  60611 

Attn: Homeownership Dept. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HO- 50220      (The above Space For Recorder's Use Only) 

 

 

 

REPAYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS REPAYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), dated as of the   day of   

   , 2010, by and between         [and  

   ] ("Owner"), whose address is   , in favor of the ILLINOIS 

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (the "Authority"), a body politic and corporate of 

the State of Illinois (“State”), created and existing pursuant to the Illinois Housing Development 

Act, 20 ILCS 3805/1 et seq. (1994) ("Act"), having its principal office at 401 N. Michigan Avenue, 

Suite 700, Chicago, Illinois 60611. 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owner is or will be the holder of legal title to certain real estate on which 

a single family residence ("Property") is located, commonly known as 

____________________________, Illinois.  The real estate is legally described on Exhibit A 

attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Rehabilitation Program Agreement of even date 

hereof between the Owner and City of Mattoon, an Illinois unit of local government (“State 

Recipient ”), having its principal office at 108 N. 19
th

 Street, Mattoon, Illinois 62938,   

("Rehabilitation Program Agreement”), the Authority has agreed to make funding available to 

the Owner in the amount of _________________ Dollars ($______________) (“Loan”), as 

evidenced by that certain promissory note in the amount of the Loan (“Note”) and a [Second] 

Mortgage (“Mortgage”) from Owner to the Authority to be used with such other monies as Owner 

may provide, if any, for the rehabilitation of the Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, as an inducement to the Authority to make the Loan, the Owner has agreed to 

enter into this Agreement in accordance with the terms, conditions and covenants set forth below. 

 



A-A-2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation.  The foregoing recitals are made a part of this Agreement as fully 

and with the same force and effect as repeated herein at length.  Terms not otherwise defined 

herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Rehabilitation Program Agreement. 

2. Restrictions.  As a condition of the provision of the Loan, the Owner agrees to 

repay to the Authority the Repayment Amount (as hereinafter defined) upon the earliest to occur, 

within the Repayment Period (as hereinafter defined), of any Repayment Event (as hereinafter 

defined).  For purposes of this paragraph, the "Repayment Period" shall mean [five (5) if the 

direct subsidy to the homeowner is valued at less than $15,000 or ten (10) if the Loan is $15,000 or 

more] years from the date that the Property has been deemed “completed” in the United States 

Department of Housing and Urban Development’s ("HUD") Integrated Disbursement Information 

System (“IDIS”).  For purposes hereof, a repayment event shall occur upon any one or more of the 

following (each, a "Repayment Event"): 

(a) the Property is no longer the Owner’s principal residence; or 

(b) a Default by the Owner, beyond any applicable cure period, under the 

Rehabilitation Program Agreement or any other document evidencing or securing the 

Loan; or 

(c) a refinancing (a “Refinance”) of the first mortgage loan other than a Permitted 

Refinancing (as hereinafter defined); 

(d) foreclosure 

Without limiting the foregoing, the occurrence of any one or more of the following 

events within the Repayment Period shall not be deemed a Repayment Event for purpose of 

this Agreement (each a “Permitted Transfer”): 

(i) a transfer by will or by operation of law upon the death of a joint tenant Owner 

or either of husband or wife as tenants by the entirety Owner; 

(ii) a transfer to a spouse as a result of a dissolution of marriage;  

(iii) a Refinance that lowers the interest rate, decreases the loan term or lowers the 

monthly payment of the first mortgage loan (“Permitted Refinancing”); or 

(iv) death 

If a Repayment Event occurs, the Owner must repay to the Authority an amount (the 

“Repayment Amount”) equal to the unforgiven portion of the Loan, but only from the Net 

Proceeds (as defined below), if any, resulting from such Repayment Event.  If the 

Repayment Amount is greater than the Net Proceeds, the Owner must only pay to the 

Authority the Net Proceeds; and the amount of the Repayment Amount in excess of the Net 

Proceeds shall be forgiven.  For purposes of this subparagraph, “Net Proceeds” means the 

proceeds of sale, conveyance or other transfer, less: 



A-A-3 

 (a) ordinary and customary closing costs not to exceed seven percent (7%) of the 

gross sales price of the Property; 

(b) the amount of documented capital improvement costs incurred by the Owner; 

and 

(c) the amount of superior liens against the Property. 

The actual Repayment Amount due from an Owner in the event of a Repayment Event shall be 

calculated based on completed rehabilitation value or estimate of completed rehabilitation value 

pursuant to the Repayment Worksheet.  In the event the actual Repayment Amount changes after 

the completion of the rehabilitation, the Repayment Amount shall be recalculated to reflect the 

final Repayment Amount and memorialized in the Repayment Agreement Amendment, in the form 

attached to the Rehabilitation Program Agreement as Exhibit A.1. 

 3. Repayment Amount.  Except as set forth in Paragraph 4 below, if the Loan is less 

than Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000), then the outstanding balance shall be reduced by one-

sixtieth (1/60
th

) of the original balance at the end of each full month of the Loan.  Except as set 

forth in Paragraph 4 below, if the Loan has an original amount of Fifteen Thousand Dollars 

($15,000) or more, then one-one hundred twentieth (1/120
th

) of the Loan shall be forgiven at the 

end of each full month of the Loan. 

4.  Forgiveness. If no Repayment Event occurs prior to the expiration of the 

Repayment Period, the Loan shall be forgiven in its entirety, If there is any sale, conveyance or 

transfer of the Property during the Repayment Period, the Loan will be forgiven monthly as stated 

in Paragraph 3 above and will be repaid out of Net Proceeds.  In the event of a Repayment Event 

described in Paragraph 2 above which does not trigger a Net Proceeds calculation, the Loan shall 

not be forgiven in whole or in part. Rather, in such event, the Owner shall be responsible for 

repayment of the full Loan amount. 

5. Prohibited Transfer.  Without the prior written consent of the Authority, the 

Owner shall not effect, suffer or permit any conveyance, sale, assignment, transfer, lien, pledge, 

mortgage, security interest or other encumbrance or alienation (or any agreement to do any of the 

foregoing) of the Property (each a “Prohibited Transfer”) not in compliance with the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement.  A Prohibited Transfer shall include without limitation, any re-

subordination of a Loan by Owner without the prior written consent of the Authority, which may 

be granted or withheld in the Authority’s sole discretion. 

6. No Defaults.  Owner certifies that as of the date hereof, and at all times hereafter, 

Owner has satisfied and shall continue to satisfy all terms, conditions, and covenants of, and has 

not suffered or will suffer any event of default of any agreement, contract or requirement of the 

Authority, HUD, the State of Illinois, or any political subdivision thereof.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Owner's failure to make any payment due under this 

Agreement shall be an “Event of Default” hereunder. The Authority shall give written notice of an 

Event of Default, as provided in Paragraph 12 of the Rehabilitation Program Agreement.  If (i) the 

Event of Default is not cured within such further time as the Authority in its sole discretion 

permits, but in no event more than thirty (30) days after notice, or (ii) if there exists any Default 



A-A-4 

under any other Loan Document, the Authority may declare a Default (“Default”) under this 

Agreement effective on the date of such declaration of Default and notice thereof to the Owner, 

and upon such Default the Authority may: 

a. Declare the unforgiven portion of the Repayment Amount immediately due and 

payable; and/or 

b. Exercise such other rights or remedies as may be available to the Authority 

hereunder, at law or in equity. 

The Authority's remedies are cumulative and the exercise of one shall not be deemed an election of 

remedies, nor foreclose the exercise of the Authority's other remedies.  

7. Amendment.  This Agreement shall not be altered or amended except in a writing 

signed by the parties hereto. 

8. Partial Invalidity.  The invalidity of any clause, part or provision of this Agreement 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 

9. Gender.  The use of the plural in this Agreement shall include the singular; the 

singular shall include the plural; and the use of any gender shall be deemed to include all genders. 

10. Captions.  The captions used in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of 

convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or the intent of the 

agreement. 

11. Option of Authority to Subordinate.  At the option of the Authority, this Agreement 

shall be subject and subordinate, in whole or in part to any Prohibited Transfer approved in writing 

by the Authority upon the execution by the Authority of a unilateral declaration to that effect and 

the recording thereof in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for the county wherein the 

Property is situated 

12. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  THE PARTIES WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN 

ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THE 

PARTIES HERETO AGAINST THE OTHER ON ANY MATTER WHATSOEVER 

ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THE LOAN OR THIS 

AGREEMENT. 

 

 

 

(Signature Page Follows) 



A-A-5 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 

on the day and year above first written. 

 

 OWNER: 

 

 

 

  

                            [Name of Owner] 

 

  

                            [Name of Owner] 

 

  

 

 

Exhibits: 

  A: Legal Description 



A-A-6 

STATE OF ILLINOIS   ) 

  ) SS 

COUNTY OF _____  ) 

 

 I,      , a Notary Public in and for said county and state, do 

hereby certify that _________________, personally known to me to be the same person whose 

name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as _________ of the Illinois Housing Development 

Authority, appeared before me this day in person, and acknowledged that ____________ signed 

and delivered the said instrument as the free and voluntary act of the _____ of ______________, 

and as the free and voluntary act of the Illinois Housing Development Authority, for the uses and 

purposes therein set forth. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this    day of    ,  . 

 

My commission expires:      

 

 

              

   Notary Public 

 

 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS   ) 

  ) SS 

COUNTY OF _____________)  

 

 I,      , a Notary Public in and for said county and state, do 

hereby certify that       , personally known to me to be the 

same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in 

person, and acknowledged that       signed and delivered the said instrument as           free and 

voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this    day of    ,  . 

 

My commission expires:      

 

 

              

   Notary Public 

 



A-A-A-1 

HO – 50220 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Common Address: 

  

  

 

Permanent Index No.: 

  

 

 

________________________________________ 



A-A.1-1 

EXHIBIT A.1 TO REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 

 
This document was prepared by:  

Tracy Shine, Esq. 

and after recording should be returned to:  

Illinois Housing Development Authority 

401 N. Michigan, Suite 700 

Chicago, Illinois  60611 

Attn: Homeownership Dept. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HO- 50220      (The above Space For Recorder's Use Only) 

 

 

REPAYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMENDMENT 
 

 THIS REPAYMENT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT ("Amendment"), dated as of the 

  day of      , 20__, by and between     

    [and     ] ("Owner"), whose address is   , in 

favor of the ILLINOIS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (the "Authority"), a body 

politic and corporate of the State of Illinois (“State”), created and existing pursuant to the Illinois 

Housing Development Act, 20 ILCS 3805/1 et seq. (1994) ("Act"), having its principal office at 

401 N. Michigan Avenue, Suite 700, Chicago, Illinois 60611. 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owner is the holder of legal title to certain real estate on which a single 

family residence ("Property") is located, commonly known as ____________________________, 

Illinois.  The real estate is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference 

made a part hereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Rehabilitation Program Agreement between the 

Owner and City of Mattoon, an Illinois unit of local government (“State Recipient”), having its 

principal office at 108 N. 19
th

 Street, Mattoon, Illinois 62938, ("Rehabilitation Program 

Agreement”), the Authority agreed to make funding available to the Owner in the amount of 

_________________ Dollars ($______________) (“Loan”), as evidenced by that certain 

promissory note in the amount of the Loan (“Note”) from Owner to the Authority to be used with 

such other monies as Owner may provide, if any, for the rehabilitation of the Property dated as of 

_____________, 20__. To secure, among other things, the Owner entered into a Repayment 

Agreement ("Repayment Agreement") dated as of ________________________, 200___ and 

recorded in the __________________ County Recorder's Office on _____________________, 



A-A.1-2 

200___ as Document Number ______________________, and a [Second] Mortgage 

("Mortgage") dated as of ________________________, 200___ and recorded in the 

__________________ County Recorder's Office on _____________________ , 200___ as 

Document Number ______________________.  The Mortgage, the Note and the Repayment 

Agreement are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Rehabilitation Program 

Documents"; and 

 

WHEREAS, the rehabilitation of the Property was completed on     ______      , 200___ 

(the "Completion Date") with a final post-rehabilitation value of the Property of 

___________________ and No/100 ($______________), which is less than the original Loan 

amount as set forth in the Repayment Agreement. 

 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to memorialize the Completion Date and the reduced Loan 

amount, in accordance with the terms set forth below. 

 

AGREEMENTS 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals set forth above and other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 

parties agree as follows: 

 

1. The foregoing are hereby made a part of this Amendment. 

 

2. The Loan amount shall be reduced to $                , and the Rehabilitation Program 

Documents are hereby amended to reflect the new Loan amount. 

 

3. The "Repayment Period" (as defined in the Rehabilitation Program Documents) 

shall be (a) five (5) years from the Completion Date set forth or (b) ten (10) years from the 

Completion Date set forth [CHOOSE (a) IF AMENDED REPAYMENT AMOUNT IS LESS 

THAN $15,000, OR CHOOSE (b) IF AMENDED REPAYMENT AMOUNT IS $15,000 

OR MORE; DELETE "(a)" OR "(b)"]. 

 

4. Except as provided in this Amendment, the Rehabilitation Program Documents 

shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be 

executed as of the date first above written. 

  

 

 (Signature Page Follows) 



A-A.1-3 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 

on the day and year above first written. 

 

 OWNER: 

 

 

 

  

                            [Name of Owner] 

 

  

                            [Name of Owner] 

 

  

 

 

Exhibits: 

  A: Legal Description



A-A.1-4 

STATE OF ILLINOIS   ) 

  ) SS 

COUNTY OF _____  ) 

 

 I,      , a Notary Public in and for said county and state, do 

hereby certify that _________________, personally known to me to be the same person whose 

name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as _________ of the Illinois Housing Development 

Authority, appeared before me this day in person, and acknowledged that ____________ signed 

and delivered the said instrument as the free and voluntary act of the _____ of ______________, 

and as the free and voluntary act of the Illinois Housing Development Authority, for the uses and 

purposes therein set forth. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this    day of    ,  . 

 

My commission expires:      

 

 

              

   Notary Public 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS   ) 

  ) SS 

COUNTY OF _____________)  

 

 I,      , a Notary Public in and for said county and state, do 

hereby certify that       , personally known to me to be the 

same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in 

person, and acknowledged that       signed and delivered the said instrument as           free and 

voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this    day of    ,  . 

 

My commission expires:      

 

 

              

   Notary Public 

 



 

A-A.1-A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

HO–50220  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Common Address: 

  

  

 

Permanent Index No.: 

  

 

 

________________________________________ 



 

A-B-1 

EXHIBIT B TO REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

HO-50220 

SFOOR 

PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

U.S. $_____________________ ___________, _____ 

 

 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned (“Maker”) covenant and promise(s) to 

pay to the order of the Illinois Housing Development Authority (“Payee”), the principal sum of 

  _______ Dollars ($_______) (“Loan”).  Absent the occurrence of Repayment Events 

set forth in Paragraph 2 of that certain Repayment Agreement dated   ,     between 

Maker and Payee and incorporated herein by this reference (“Repayment Agreement”), no principal 

payments shall be due or payable.  Except as set forth in Paragraph 4 of the Repayment Agreement 

requiring repayment of the full Loan amount in certain circumstances, after each full month from the 

date hereof until the [fifth (5th) [tenth (10th)] anniversary of the date the date the Project has been 

identified as “completed” in HUD’s Integrated Disbursement Information System (“IDIS”), Payee 

shall forgive [one-sixtieth (1/60th)] [one-one hundred twentieth (1/120th)] of the original principal 

balance. 

If a Repayment Event occurs, and Maker fails to make the repayment required pursuant to 

Paragraph 2 of the Repayment Agreement after notice from Payee as provided in Paragraph 3 of 

the Repayment Agreement, then the entire unforgiven portion of the principal amount outstanding 

shall at once become due and payable at the option of the Payee.  The Payee may exercise such 

option to accelerate, regardless of any prior forbearance.  If suit is brought to collect the sums due 

under this Note, the noteholder shall be entitled to collect all reasonable costs and expenses of suit, 

including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

Presentment, notice of dishonor, and protest are hereby waived by all makers, sureties, 

guarantors and endorsers hereof.  This Note shall be the joint and several obligation of all makers, 

sureties, guarantors and endorsers, and shall be binding upon them and their successors and assigns. 

This Note is governed by the Repayment Agreement and by a [Second] Mortgage and 

evidences money borrowed by Maker for the rehabilitation of the property described in the 

Repayment Agreement. 

Time is of the essence hereof. 

  

 , Illinois 

Property address 

   

[signature of homeowner] 

 

 

    

[signature of homeowner] 

 



 

A-C-1 

EXHIBIT C TO REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

HO-50220 

SFOOR 

 
This document was prepared by:  

Tracy Shine, Esq.  

and after recording should be returned to: 

Illinois Housing Development Authority 

401 N. Michigan Avenue, Suite 700 

Chicago, Illinois  60611 

Attention: Homeownership Dept. 

 

 

       (The above Space For Recorder's Use Only) 

 

 

[SECOND] MORTGAGE 

 

 THIS [SECOND] MORTGAGE ("Mortgage") is given on   ,  , by [and  

   ] ("Borrower") to the ILLINOIS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY (the "Authority"), a body politic and corporate of the State of Illinois (“State”), 

created and existing pursuant to the Illinois Housing Development Act, 20 ILCS 3805/1 et seq. 

(1994) ("IHDA Act"), having its principal office at 401 N. Michigan Avenue, Suite 700, Chicago, 

Illinois 60611.  Borrower conditionally owes the Authority the original principal amount of 

________________ Dollars ($   ).  This debt is evidenced by Borrower's 

promissory note of even date hereof ("Note"), which provides for a ___ (__) year term 

commencing on the date of project completion (as defined in the Rehabilitation Program 

Agreement as defined below); provided, however, that so long as no Repayment Event (as defined 

in the Rehabilitation Program Agreement) has occurred, no principal payments shall be shall be 

due or payable.  The actual amount of any repayment due from Borrower shall be calculated 

pursuant to the terms of the Repayment Agreement. 

 

 This Mortgage secures to the Authority: (a) all repayment of the debt evidenced by the 

Note, and all renewals, extensions and modifications thereof; (b) the payment of all other sums 

advanced by the Authority pursuant to Paragraph 7 of this Mortgage to protect the security of this 

Mortgage; and (c) the performance of Borrower's covenants and agreements under this Mortgage, 

the Rehabilitation Program Agreement between Borrower and City of Mattoon, an Illinois unit of 

local government (“State Recipient”) dated as of the date hereof ("Rehabilitation Program  

Agreement"), the Repayment Agreement by  Borrower for the benefit of the Authority dated as of 

the date hereof ("Repayment Agreement") and the Note.  Terms not otherwise defined herein 

shall have the meanings given therein in the Rehabilitation Program Agreement or the Repayment 

Agreement, as applicable. 

 

 For these purposes, Borrower hereby mortgages, grants and conveys to the Authority, its 

successors and assigns, the real property described on Exhibit A hereto located in the County of 

__________, State of Illinois, and commonly known as       

  , Illinois      ("Property"), together with (a) all the 

improvements now or hereafter erected on the Property and all easements, rights and 

appurtenances thereto; (b) the interest of the Borrower in all leases and licenses with respect to the 



 

A-C-2 

Property; (c) all rents, revenues, issues, income, accounts, royalties and profits thereof; and (d) all 

fixtures and items of personal property now or hereafter in or on the Property.  All replacements, 

additions and proceeds of the following shall also be covered by this Mortgage.  The Property and 

all of the foregoing property are referred to collectively in this Mortgage as the "Project." 

 

 Borrower covenants that Borrower is the lawful owner of the Project conveyed by this 

Mortgage and has the full right and power to mortgage, grant and convey the Project and that the 

Project is unencumbered, except for [a first mortgage to      ("First 

Mortgage") and] any [other] encumbrances of record accepted by the State Recipient in writing 

(collectively, "Permitted Encumbrances"). Borrower warrants and will defend generally the title 

to the Project against all claims and demands, subject to any Permitted Encumbrances. 

 

 Borrower covenants to the Authority as follows: 

1. Payment under the Note.  Borrower agreed to promptly pay when due any amounts 

required to be paid under the Note. 

2. Application of Payments.  Unless applicable law provides otherwise, all payments 

received by the Authority under Paragraph 1 will be applied to principal due under the Note. 

3. Charges and Liens.  Borrower will pay all taxes, assessments, charges and fines 

attributable to the Project which may attain priority over this Mortgage.  Borrower will pay these 

obligations on time directly to the person to whom payment is owed.  Borrower will promptly 

furnish to the State Recipient all notices of amounts required to be paid under this paragraph.  After 

making such payments, Borrower will promptly furnish to the State Recipient receipts evidencing 

the payments. 

Borrower will promptly discharge any lien [(other than the First Mortgage)] which has 

priority over this Mortgage unless Borrower: (a) agrees in writing to pay the obligation secured by 

the lien in a manner acceptable to the Authority; (b) contests in good faith the lien by, or defends 

against enforcement of the lien in, legal proceedings which, in the Authority’s opinion, operate to 

prevent the enforcement of the lien or forfeiture of any part of the Project; or (c) secures from the 

holder of the lien an agreement satisfactory to the Authority subordinating the lien to this 

Mortgage.  If the Authority determines that any part of the Project is subject to a lien, [other than 

the First Mortgage,] which may attain priority over this Mortgage, the Authority or the State 

Recipient may give Borrower a notice identifying the lien.  Borrower will satisfy the lien or take 

one or more of the actions set forth above within 10 days of the giving of such notice. 

4. Hazard Insurance.  Borrower will keep the improvements now existing or hereafter 

erected on the Project insured against loss by fire, hazards included within the term "extended 

coverage," and any other hazards for which the Authority requires insurance.  All policies of 

insurance hereunder will be from such companies and in such form and amounts as may be 

satisfactory to the Authority, will name the Authority as a loss payee and will include a provision 

requiring 30 days advance written notice to the Authority prior to the termination or modification 

of such policy. 



 

A-C-3 

All insurance policies and renewals must be acceptable to the Authority and must include a 

standard mortgage clause.  The Authority may hold the policies and renewals and, if the Authority 

requires, Borrower will promptly give to the Authority all receipts of paid premiums and renewal 

notices.  Upon the occurrence of a loss covered by insurance, Borrower will give prompt notice to 

the insurance carrier and the Authority.  The Authority may make proof of loss if not made 

promptly by Borrower. 

Insurance proceeds will be applied to restoration or repair of the Project damaged if the 

State Recipient determines that the restoration or repair is economically feasible and the 

Authority’s security is not lessened by such restoration or repair.  In such event, the Authority has 

the right to collect and hold the insurance proceeds and make the proceeds available to Borrower 

from time to time for the payment of the cost and expense of repair and restoration upon receipt of 

satisfactory evidence that such cost or expense has been incurred.  If the Authority determines that 

the restoration or repair is not economically feasible or the Authority's security would be lessened, 

the insurance proceeds shall be applied to the sums secured by this Mortgage, whether or not then 

due, with any excess paid to Borrower.  If Borrower abandons the Project or does not answer 

within 30 days a notice from the Authority that the insurance carrier has offered to settle a claim, 

then the Authority may settle the claim with the insurance carrier and collect the insurance 

proceeds from the insurance carrier and may use the proceeds to repair or restore the Project or to 

pay sums secured by this Mortgage, whether or not then due. 

If under Paragraph 19 the Project is acquired by the Authority, Borrower's right to any 

insurance policies and all insurance proceeds resulting from damage to the Project prior to the 

Authority's acquisition shall pass to the Authority to the extent of the sums secured by this 

Mortgage immediately prior to such acquisition. 

5. Preservation and Maintenance of Project.   Borrower shall not destroy, damage or 

substantially change the Project, allow the Project to deteriorate, or commit waste.  Borrower shall 

cause the Project to comply with all local codes, ordinances, zoning ordinances, the Property 

Standards For Rehabilitated Housing Units promulgated by the Authority, and the Section 8 

Housing Quality Standards promulgated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban 

Development ("HUD"), as set forth in Section 371.601 of the IHDA Rules (as defined in the 

Rehabilitation Program Agreement). 

6. Transfer Restrictions.  Borrower covenants and agrees to comply with all 

provisions of the Repayment Agreement, the terms and conditions of which are incorporated 

herein by this reference, including without limitation the provisions of Paragraph 2 of the 

Repayment Agreement relating to transfer restrictions at the Project. 

7. Protection of the Authority's Rights in the Project; Mortgage Insurance.  If 

Borrower fails to perform the covenants and agreements contained in this Mortgage or there is a 

legal proceeding that may significantly affect the Authority's rights in the Project (such as a 

proceeding in bankruptcy, probate, for condemnation or to enforce laws or regulations), then the 

Authority may do and pay for whatever is necessary to protect the value of the Project and the 

Authority's rights in the Project.  The Authority's actions may include paying any sums secured by 

a lien which has priority over this Mortgage, appearing in court, paying reasonable attorneys' fees 

and entering on the Project to make repairs.  Although the Authority may take action under this 



 

A-C-4 

Paragraph 7, the Authority does not have to do so.  Any amount disbursed by the Authority under 

this Paragraph 7 shall become additional debt of Borrower secured by this Mortgage. 

8. Inspection.  The State Recipient, the Authority or their respective agents may make 

reasonable entries upon and inspections of the Project.  Except after the occurrence of an Event of 

Default (after which no notice shall be required) the State Recipient or the Authority, as the case 

may be, shall give Borrower notice prior to the time of an inspection specifying reasonable cause 

for the inspection. 

9. Condemnation.  The proceeds of any award or claim for damages, direct or 

consequential, in connection with any condemnation or other taking of any part of the Project or 

for conveyance in lieu of condemnation are hereby assigned and shall be paid to the Authority and 

shall be applied to the sums secured by this Mortgage as if the Note had been prepaid on the date 

the condemnation award is approved, whether or not then due, with any excess paid to Borrower.  

If the Project is abandoned by Borrower or if, after notice by the Authority to Borrower that the 

condemnor offers to make an award or settle a claim for damages, Borrower fails to respond to the 

Authority within 30 days after the date the notice is given, the Authority is authorized to accept 

such award or settlement and to collect and apply the proceeds, at its option, either to restoration or 

repair of the Project or to the sums secured by this Mortgage, whether or not then due. 

10. Borrower Not Released; Forbearance Not A Waiver.  Extension of the time for 

payment or modification of payment of the sums secured by this Mortgage granted by the 

Authority to any successor in interest of Borrower shall not operate to release the liability of the 

original Borrower or Borrower's successors in interest.  The Authority shall not be required to 

commence proceedings against any successor in interest and may refuse to extend time for 

payment or otherwise modify payment of the sums secured by this Mortgage by reason of any 

demand made by the original Borrower or Borrower's successors in interest.  Any forbearance by 

the Authority in exercising any right or remedy shall not be a waiver of or preclude the exercise of 

any right or remedy. 

11. Successors and Assigns Bound.  The covenants and agreements of this Mortgage 

shall bind and benefit the successors and assigns of the Authority and Borrower and shall be 

covenants running with, binding and burdening the Project, subject to the provisions of 

Paragraphs 17 and 21. 

12. Loan Charges.  If the loan secured by this Mortgage is subject to a law which sets 

maximum loan charges, and that law is finally interpreted so that the loan charges collected or to 

be collected in connection with the loan exceed the permitted limits, then: (a) any such loan charge 

shall be reduced by the amount necessary to reduce the charge to the permitted limit; and (b) any 

sums already collected from Borrower which exceeded permitted limits will be refunded to 

Borrower.  The Authority may choose to make this refund by reducing the principal owed under 

the Note or by making a direct payment to Borrower.  If a refund reduces principal, the reduction 

will be treated as a partial prepayment without any prepayment charge under the Note.  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Paragraph 12, no interest or prepayment 

charge is payable under the Note. 



 

A-C-5 

13. Legislation Affecting the Authority's Rights.  If enactment or expiration of 

applicable laws has the effect of rendering any provision of the Note or this Mortgage 

unenforceable according to its terms, the Authority, at its option, may require immediate payment 

in full of all sums secured by this Mortgage and may invoke any remedies permitted by 

Paragraph 19.  If the Authority exercises this option, the Authority shall take the steps specified in 

Paragraph 19. 

14. Notices.  Any notices, demand, request or other communication that any party may 

desire or may be required to give to any other party hereunder shall be given in writing (at the 

addresses set forth below) by any of the following means: (a) personal service; (b) overnight 

courier; or (c) registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. 

 

 

The Borrower: 

  

  

  

Attn:  

 

 

 

State Recipient: City of Mattoon 

c/o Doug McDermand 

Coles County Regional Planning 

And Development Commission 

Coles County Courthouse 

651 Jackson Street 

Room 309 

Charleston, Illinois 61920 
 

 

 

The Authority: 

 

 

Illinois Housing Development Authority 

401 N. Michigan Avenue, Suite 700 

Chicago, Illinois 60611 

Attn:  Legal Department 
 

 Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other party given in the same manner as 

herein provided.  Any notice, demand, request or other communication sent pursuant to 

subsection (a) hereof shall be served and effective upon such personal service or upon confirmation 

of transmission by such electronic means.  Any notice, demand, request or other communication 

sent pursuant to subsection (b) shall be served and effective one (1) business day after deposit with 

the overnight courier.  Any notice, demand, request or other communication sent pursuant to 

subsection (c) shall be served and effective three (3) business days after proper deposit with the 

United States Postal Service. 



 

A-C-6 

15. Governing Law; Severability.  This Mortgage shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of Illinois (without giving effect to Illinois choice of law principles).  In the event that any 

provision or clause of this Mortgage, the Agreement or the Note conflicts with applicable law, such 

conflict shall not affect other provisions of this Mortgage, the Agreement or the Note, as the case 

may be, which can be given effect without the conflicting provision.  To this end the provisions of 

this Mortgage, the Agreement and the Note are declared to be severable. 

16. Borrower's Copy.  Borrower shall be given one conformed copy of the Note, the 

Agreement and this Mortgage. 

17. Certain Defaults; Transfer of the Project.  The occurrence of (a) a Default by 

Borrower, beyond any applicable cure period, of its obligations under the SFOOR Program 

Agreement, the Repayment Agreement, the Note or a violation of any of the terms and conditions 

of this Mortgage, or (b) a Repayment Event shall be a “Default” hereunder and Borrower shall 

repay to the Authority the principal balance of the Loan, or such portion of the Loan as may be due 

and payable under the terms of the Note and SFOOR Program Agreement. 

 Upon the occurrence of a Default hereunder, the Authority shall give Borrower 

notice thereof.  This notice shall provide a period of not less than 30 days from the date the notice 

is given within which Borrower must pay all sums required by this Paragraph 17.  If Borrower 

fails to pay these sums prior to the expiration of this period, the Authority may invoke any 

remedies permitted by this Mortgage without further notice or demand on Borrower. 

18. Borrower's Right to Reinstate.  If Borrower meets certain conditions, Borrower will 

have the right to have enforcement of a Default hereunder discontinued at any time prior to the 

earlier of: (a) five days (or such other period as applicable law may specify for reinstatement) 

before sale of the Project pursuant to any power of sale contained in this Mortgage; or (b) entry of 

a judgment enforcing this Mortgage. Those conditions are that Borrower: (w) pays the Authority 

all sums which then would be due under this Mortgage and the Note had no acceleration occurred; 

(x) cures any default of any other covenants or agreements; (y) pays all expenses incurred in 

enforcing this Mortgage, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees; and (z) takes such 

action as the Authority may reasonably require to assure that the lien of this Mortgage, the 

Authority's rights in the Project and Borrower's obligations to pay the sums secured by this 

Mortgage shall continue unchanged.  Upon reinstatement by Borrower, this Mortgage and the 

obligations secured hereby shall remain fully effective as if no acceleration had occurred.  

However, this right to reinstate shall not be invoked more than once in any five (5) year period, and 

shall not apply at all in the case of acceleration under Paragraphs 13 or 17(b). 

19. Acceleration; Remedies.  Prior to any acceleration of the amounts owed to the 

Authority under the Note or this Mortgage (other than an acceleration under Paragraphs 13 and 

17(b) unless applicable law provides otherwise) the Authority shall give notice to Borrower 

following a Default.  The notice shall specify: (a) the nature of the Default; (b) the action required 

to cure the Default; (c) a date, not less than 30 days from the date the notice is given to Borrower, 

by which the Default must be cured; and (d) that failure to cure the Default on or before the date 

specified in the notice may result in acceleration of the sums secured by this Mortgage, foreclosure 

by judicial proceeding and sale of the Project.  The notice shall further inform Borrower of the 

right to reinstate after acceleration and the right to assert in the foreclosure proceeding the non-



 

A-C-7 

existence of a default or any other defense of Borrower to acceleration and foreclosure.  If the 

Default is not cured on or before the date specified in the notice, the Authority at its option may 

require immediate payment in full of all sums secured by this Mortgage without further demand 

and may foreclose this Mortgage by judicial proceeding.  The Authority shall be entitled to collect 

all expenses incurred in pursuing the remedies provided in this Paragraph 19, including, but not 

limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of title evidence, and such sums shall be 

immediately due and payable and shall be secured by this Mortgage.  Upon any sale of the Project 

made by virtue of judicial proceedings or a decree of foreclosure and sale, the Authority may bid 

for and acquire the Project and in lieu of paying cash therefore may make settlement for the 

purchase price by crediting upon Borrower's indebtedness secured by this Mortgage, the sale price, 

after first deducting from the sale price the expenses of the sale and the cost of the foreclosure.  

The proceeds of any foreclosure sale of the Project shall be distributed and applied in the following 

order of priority: first, on account of all costs and expenses of the foreclosure proceedings; second, 

to repayment of the indebtedness of Borrower secured by this Mortgage; and third, any excess to 

Borrower, its successors and assigns. 

20. Possession.  Upon acceleration under Paragraphs 13, 17(b) or 19 or abandonment 

of the Project and at any time prior to the expiration of any period of redemption following judicial 

sale, the Authority (in person, by agent or by judicially appointed receiver) shall be entitled to enter 

upon, take possession of and manage the Project and to collect the rents of the Project, if any, 

including those past due.  Any rents collected by the Authority or the receiver shall be applied first 

to payment of the costs of management of the Project and collection of rents, including, but not 

limited to, receiver's fees, premiums on receiver's bonds and reasonable attorneys' fees, and then to 

the sums secured by this Mortgage. 

21. Release.  Upon the satisfaction of the Note, the Authority shall release this 

Mortgage without charge to Borrower.  Borrower shall pay any recordation costs.   

22. Waiver of Homestead.  Borrower waives all right of homestead exemption in the 

Project. 

23. Filing and Recording Fees.  Borrower shall pay all title insurance premiums, 

escrow charges, filing, registration or recording fees, and all expenses incident to the execution and 

acknowledgment of this Mortgage and all federal, state, county and municipal taxes and other 

taxes, duties, imposts, assessments and charges arising out of or in connection with the execution, 

delivery and performance of this Mortgage. 

24. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  BORROWER WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN 

ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY EITHER 

BORROWER OR THE AUTHORITY, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, ON ANY 

MATTER WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH 

THE PROJECT OR THIS MORTGAGE, AND ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT 

THIS PROVISION IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR THE AUTHORITY TO 

MAKE THE LOAN EVIDENCED BY THE NOTE AND TO ACCEPT THIS 

MORTGAGE. 

 

(Signature page follows.) 



 

A-C-8 

 



 

A-C-9 

 

  By signing below, Borrower accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and 

covenants in this Mortgage. 

  

 

  

Borrower 

 

  

Borrower 

 

 



 

A-C-10 

 

State of Illinois  ) 

 ) ss 

  County  ) 

 

 I,      , a Notary Public in and for said county and state, do 

hereby certify that         personally known to me to be 

the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this 

day in person, and acknowledged that     signed and delivered the said 

instrument as ___  free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this    day of __________, _____. 

 

My commission expires:      

 

              

   Notary Public 

 

    

 

 

 

State of Illinois  ) 

 ) ss 

  County  ) 

 

 I,      , a Notary Public in and for said county and state, do 

hereby certify that         personally known to me to be 

the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this 

day in person, and acknowledged that     signed and delivered the said 

instrument as ___  free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this    day of __________, _____. 

 

My commission expires:      

 

              

   Notary Public 

 

    

 



 

A-C-1 

EXHIBIT A TO [SECOND] MORTGAGE 

 

Legal Description 

 

           HO-50220 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Common Address: 

  

  

 

Permanent Index No.: 

  

 

 

 

 



 

A-D-1 

EXHIBIT D TO REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

HO-50220 

SFOOR 

CONTRACTOR PAYMENT REQUEST 
 

Homeowner:      Date:       

Address:      Contract Amount: $     

 

Contractor:      

Address:      

       

 

Type of Payment:  Progress  Final 

  

 

Contractor: I hereby request an inspection to receive payment #_____________ for the amount of 

$_____________.  I certify that I have satisfactorily completed the necessary work to 

justify this request and that all bills incurred for labor used and material furnished in 

making said repairs and improvements have been paid in full to this date.  See attached 

cost breakdown. 

 

Contractor's Signature:      Date:     

  

 

Homeowner: I/We hereby agree that the work stated by the contractor has been completed and 

approve payment to the contractor in accordance with the Agreement and contingent 

upon inspection and concurrence by the Construction Advisor.  It is understood that the 

actual amount disbursed will be based on the findings of that inspection. 

 

Owner's Signature:       Date:     

 

Owner's Signature:       Date:     

  

 

Construction Advisor: I hereby certify that all work is completed as indicated on the contractor's 

payment request.  I hereby request approval of the payment to the 

contractor in the amount of $_______________. 

 

Construction Advisor:       Date:     

  

 

If applicable, Housing Rehabilitation Programs Manager: 

 

 I hereby approve the payment to the contractor in the amount of $___________. 

 

Housing Rehabilitation Programs Manager:___________________________ 

 

Date:____________________ 



 

A-E-1 

EXHIBIT E TO REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 

Certificate of Completion (For Contractors and Subcontractors) 
 
State Recipient: City of Mattoon         HOME Program No. HO-50220 (SFOOR) 
 
House Address:       HUD Project No:     
 
Contractor:   
 

I hereby certify that I have completed 100% of the work in accordance with the Rehabilitation Contract 
and request final payment of $                     which includes payment for all Change Orders of $                  
 
       
Authorized Agent for Contractor    Date 
 
Prior to receiving final payment, properly completed and notarized Lien Waivers, local county or city inspection 
certificates, and warranties must be presented to the State Recipient . 
 
*Homeowner Approval: 
 

I hereby accept all work completed by the contractor listed above and authorize payment of the 
amount specified in accordance with the above-referenced Rehabilitation Contract, as due and payable to the 
contractor, from the proceeds of my loan. 
 
Homeowner Name:  
 
        
Homeowner Signature:      Date 

 
*Inspector's Approval: 
 

I certify that all work authorized by the Rehabilitation Contract has been satisfactorily completed and 
that the house conforms to IHDA Property Standards for Rehabilitated Housing Units and HUD Section 8 
Housing Quality Standards. 
 
 
Inspector Name    Company    Position 
 
     
Inspector Signature   Date  
 
*Risk Assessor’s Approval (check one, fill out, and sign below): 

_____  1)I hereby certify that this home was built before 1978 and a lead risk assessment was done on 

_________ __________, 200_ . The items have been addressed and the State Recipient  has received notice from the lab 

that the clearance test performed on ________________________, 200_, passed the clearance levels required. 

OR 

_____   2) I hereby certify that this home was built after 1978 when lead paint was banned for residential use. 

        
Risk Assessor Name   Company    Position 
 
 

Risk Assessor Signature  Date     License#/Expire Date



 

A-F-1 

EXHIBIT F TO REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

HO-50220 

SFOOR 

OWNER-OCCUPIED 

REHABILITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

 

 

This Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Construction Contract ("Contract") made as of this 

____ day of _________, ____ by and between ____________________________ [and 

_______________] ("Owner") and ________________________ a(n) 

________________________________ ("Contractor"); 

 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of a single-family residential structure located at 

________________________________ Illinois ("Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Owner wishes to rehabilitate the Property ("Project") with the proceeds 

of a forgivable loan ("Loan") provided by City of Mattoon, an Illinois unit of local government 

("State Recipient "), through the State Recipient 's owner-occupied rehabilitation program 

(“Local Program”), which is funded by funds from the HOME Investment Partnerships 

Program (the "HOME Program"), as administered by the Illinois Housing Development 

Authority (the "Authority") and authorized by Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act 

of 1990 (P.L. 101-165) ("HOME Act"), the regulations promulgated thereunder and codified at 

24 CFR, Part 92 ("HOME Regulations"), and the Authority's rules for the HOME Program, 

codified at 47 Ill. Adm. Code, Part 371 ("IHDA Rules"), all as may be amended and 

supplemented from time to time.  The Authority receives funding for this program from the 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”), CFDA number 14.239; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner wishes to engage the Contractor to undertake the Project and the 

Contractor wishes to perform the Project for the Owner; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner and the Contractor recognize that the receipt and use of proceeds 

from the Loan obligates them to comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations, circulars, and executive orders applicable to the Project. 

In consideration of the recitals set forth above and other good and valuable consideration, 

the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by this reference. 

2. Contract.  This Contract shall consist of the Contract and the description of the 

scope of work attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof ("Scope of Work").  The 

Owner agrees to employ the Contractor to perform the services and to supply the materials set forth 

in the Scope of Work.  The Contractor agrees to perform, or cause to be performed, all of the 

services and to supply all of the materials necessary to make the improvements and repairs 



 

A-F-2 

described in the Scope of Work in order to complete the Project (collectively, "Work") for the 

Owner. 

3. Intentionally Omitted.   

4. Contract Price; Payment; Acceptance of Work. 

a. The Contractor shall be paid for the performance of the Work, subject to 

additions and deductions as a result of any Change Order (as hereinafter defined), the sum 

of _______________________________________ Dollars ($_____) ("Contract Price"). 

b. As of the date of completion of the Project, all materials and labor used in 

connection with the Project must be in place. 

c. No payment shall be made for materials stored and not used in connection 

with the Project. 

d. Payments otherwise due to the Contractor hereunder may be withheld by 

the State Recipient , in the State Recipient ’s sole discretion, on account of defective Work 

not corrected to the Owner's and the State Recipient 's satisfaction; use of unsatisfactory 

materials or use of substituted materials, which substitution has not been consented to in 

writing by the Owner and the State Recipient ; liens filed against the Property; claims made 

against the Owner by third parties in relation to the Work and not resolved by the 

Contractor to the Owner's satisfaction; or failure to make payments properly to agents or 

subcontractors for materials or labor. 

e. No payment shall be due under the contract until the Contractor has 

completed the Work in a satisfactory manner, as determined by the Owner and the State 

Recipient, and has delivered to the Owner and the State Recipient a complete release of 

all liens arising out of the Work.  In the event of any conflict between the Owner and the 

State Recipient about whether the Work has been satisfactorily completed, the decision of 

the State Recipient shall govern and control. 

f. The making and acceptance of payment for the Work shall constitute a 

waiver of all claims made by (i) the Owner, other than those arising from unsettled liens or 

from faulty or defective Work appearing after such payment, and (ii) the Contractor, which 

occurred prior to the acceptance of such payment. 

5. Change Orders.  Changes to the Scope of Work requested by either the Owner or 

the Contractor may be incorporated into the Work only in the event of one or more of the 

following circumstances: 

a. Changes to correct building code violations that were not discovered by a 

reasonable inspection prior to the time of the execution of this Contract and that first appear 

and are made known to the Owner, the Contractor and the State Recipient , or any of them, 

after the Work has been started; 



 

A-F-3 

b. Changes in materials when such changes are necessary to complete the 

Work in a workmanlike manner; or 

c. Changes needed to comply with rehabilitation standards of the Authority. 

Proposed changes to the Scope of Work shall be set forth in writing (“Change Order”) 

signed by the Owner and the Contractor and sent to State Recipient for approval.  Only after 

written approval by the State Recipient of the Change Order shall the changes set forth in a Change 

Order be acceptable changes to the Scope of Work. 

6. Term of Contract.  The Contractor shall begin the Work within ten (10) business 

days after the date hereof.  The Contractor shall complete the Work within _________ (__) days of 

the date hereof ("Termination Date"), unless Contractor has requested in writing an extension of 

the Contract to a date certain beyond the Termination Date (“Extension Date”) for good cause and 

the Owner and the State Recipient  have consented in writing to such Extension Date, which 

consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

7. Time of the Essence; Extensions; Exceptions.  It is agreed that time is of the 

essence under this Contract.  There shall be deducted from the Contract Price Twenty-Five 

($25.00) for each day that the completion of the Project extends beyond the Termination Date or 

the Extension Date, as applicable, and, at the election of State Recipient , any such savings shall 

result in a reduction of the Contract Price disbursed to Contractor.  The Contractor shall not be 

liable, however, for excusable delays, which include, but are not limited to: 

a. Acts of a government restricting labor, equipment or materials by reason of 

a declared emergency; 

b. Causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the 

Contractor, including, but not limited to, acts of God, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine 

restrictions, strikes, lockouts, freight embargoes, weather conditions of unusual severity, 

unavoidable delay in transportation, and unusual casualties; or 

c. Changes ordered in the Work pursuant to any Change Orders. 

8. Permits; Licenses; Bonds; Inspection Fees; Taxes. The Contractor shall obtain 

all required permits and licenses, post all bonds and pay all taxes required by law or ordinance in 

connection with the Project.  The Contractor shall, where required by law or ordinance, use only 

licensed employees and subcontractors, and, where required by law or ordinance, require any 

subcontractors to use only licensed employees and subcontractors. 

9. Codes.  The Contractor shall follow all building, plumbing, electrical, mechanical, 

life safety, zoning, fire and other codes and ordinances applicable to the Project, and shall insure 

that all Work, including any portion thereof performed by any and all subcontractors, complies 

with such codes and ordinances. 

10. Law and HOME Regulations; Enforcement by State Recipient .  Both the 

Owner and the Contractor shall comply with all laws, rules, regulations, and executive orders 

applicable to this Contract and the Authority, including, without limitation, all laws, rules, 



 

A-F-4 

regulations, executive orders and licensing and certification requirements applicable to lead-based 

paint identification, removal and disclosure, including but not limited to, the Lead-Based Paint 

Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821 et seq.,), the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard 

Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. 4851 et seq.,), the Lead-Based Paint Exposure Reduction Act, 

15 U.S.C. 2601 et seq., and 24 C.F.R. 35, each as respectively amended from time to time.  The 

Owner and Contractor agree that the State Recipient  has authority to, and may, in its discretion, 

enforce in any manner available under law, this provision for violations by the Owner or 

Contractor of such laws, rules, regulations, or executive orders. 

11. Non-Discrimination.  The Contractor shall comply with all of the provisions of 

Paragraph 313 of the HOME Act, and all provisions of Federal, State and local laws relating to 

nondiscrimination, as applicable. 

12. Other HOME Program Requirements. 

a. Equal Employment Opportunity.  The equal opportunity clause 

contained in Exhibit B attached hereto is incorporated herein by this reference. 

b. Debarment.  The Contractor shall certify, in the form attached hereto as 

Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference, that it is not debarred, suspended, 

proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from Federal contracts 

and Federally assisted construction contracts. 

c. Conflicts.  The Contractor acknowledges that HOME Program prohibits 

certain conflicts of interest.  Among other things applicable to this Contract, (i) no person 

who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer or elected or appointed official of the State 

Recipient  may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a HOME Program-assisted 

activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, 

or the proceeds thereunder, during their tenure or for one year thereafter, and (ii) in addition 

to, and not in limitation of, clause (i) above, no person who is an employee, agent, 

consultant, officer or elected or appointed official of the State Recipient  and who exercises 

or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with 

HOME Program funds, or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process 

or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a financial interest or 

benefit from a HOME Program-assisted activity, or have an interest in any contract, 

subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for 

themselves or for those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or 

for one year thereafter. 

13. Subcontracting. 

a. The Contractor shall not be required to employ a subcontractor against 

whom the Contractor has a reasonable objection.  The Contractor agrees that the Contractor 

is fully responsible to the Owner for (i) the acts and omissions of Contractor's officers, 

agents, employees, or servants employed or used by the Contractor; and (ii) the acts and 

omissions of any subcontractors and their officers, agents, employees, or servants, whether 

directly or indirectly employed or used by a subcontractor.  Nothing contained in this 



 

A-F-5 

Contract shall create any contractual relationship between the Owner, the State Recipient  

and any subcontractor. 

b. All subcontracts entered into by Contractor shall incorporate therein the 

terms of this Contract. 

c. Local Preference.  Any subcontracts in connection with the Work shall be 

subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 

1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u), as amended, that to the greatest extent feasible, (i) opportunities 

for training and employment shall be given to lower income residents of the unit of local 

government, metropolitan area or non-metropolitan county (as determined by the Secretary 

of HUD) in which the Property is located; and (ii) contracts in connection with the Work 

shall be awarded to business concerns engaged in the business of construction that are 

located in, or owned in substantial part by, persons residing in the same unit of local 

government, metropolitan area or non-metropolitan county as the Property. 

d. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to use minority and women's 

business enterprises for any Work subcontracted in connection with the Project, as 

provided in Executive Orders 11625, 12432 and 12138. 

e. The Contractor shall not, in connection with the Project, enter into any 

contract with any member, officer, employee, representative or agent of the Authority, or in 

which members of the immediate family of such individuals have an interest. 

14. Assignment.  This Contract shall not be assigned to another contractor without the 

prior written approval of the Owner and the State Recipient, which approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld.  Any approved assignment shall be made subject to all the provisions of 

this Contract. 

15. Conduct of Work. 

a. All Work performed by the Contractor and any subcontractors shall be 

performed in a workmanlike manner to the reasonable satisfaction of the Owner and the 

State Recipient .  All Work shall be performed by mechanics skilled in their respective 

trades in accordance with the best practices of such trades, and the Contractor or 

subcontractors shall not employ any person to perform any portion of the Work who is 

unfit or without sufficient skills to perform the job for which such persons are employed.  If 

the Work fails to meet these standards, the Contractor shall have the Work redone at the 

Contractor's expense.  Further, the Contractor shall maintain strict discipline on the 

Property or the Work site at all times.  In the event of any conflict between the Owner and 

the State Recipient about whether the Work conforms to the requirements of this Contract 

(including without limitation this Paragraph 15), the decision of the State Recipient shall 

govern and control. 

b. The Contractor and any and all subcontractors shall keep the premises clean 

and orderly during the course of the Project.  The Contractor and all subcontractors shall 

remove all rubbish, refuse, debris, garbage, or litter from the Property at the end of each 

work day.  The Contractor shall also remove all equipment and unused materials from the 



 

A-F-6 

Property and street immediately at the completion of the Project.  All removals required by 

this subparagraph shall be at the Contractor's expense.  The unused materials shall belong 

to the Contractor, unless paid for by the Owner or otherwise stipulated to by the Owner and 

the Contractor in writing. 

c. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all construction under this 

Contract, including the techniques, sequences, procedures, means and coordination of all 

Work; for the proper fitting of all Work; and for the condition of the operations of all 

trades, subcontractors or material suppliers engaged in connection with the Project.  The 

Contractor shall provide to each subcontractor and materialman, and shall guarantee the 

accuracy of, the locations and measurements which they may require for the proper fitting 

of their portion of the Work to all surrounding Work. The Contractor shall supervise and 

direct the Work to the best of its ability, giving all attention necessary for the proper 

coordination, cooperation, supervision and direction of the Work. 

d. In occupied areas of the Property, the Contractor shall cover all carpets and 

furniture in the Work area with drop cloths, shall keep passageways and hallways free of 

debris, lumber and equipment, and shall perform the Work during reasonable working 

hours, unless otherwise agreed to by the Owner.  Bulk materials shall not be stored on the 

Property. 

e. The Contractor may store non-hazardous materials in unoccupied areas of 

the Property, as directed by the Owner; provided, however, the Contractor stores such 

materials at the Contractor's risk. 

f. The Contractor shall make repairs to all surfaces damaged by the Contractor 

or any and all subcontractors resulting from their Work, acts or omissions.  These repairs 

shall be made at no additional cost to the Owner. 

g. Where "repair of the Property" is called for under this Contract, the feature 

of the Property to be repaired, excluding ornamentation, shall be placed in "equal to new 

condition", either by patching or replacement, taking into account the fact that existing 

structures cannot be made "as new" and that some lines and surfaces may remain irregular, 

or slightly out of level or plumb.  All damaged, loosened, or rotted parts of wood, metal or 

plaster shall be removed and replaced and the finished Work shall match adjacent areas of 

the Property in design and dimension.  Such patching and replacement shall be made to 

blend with existing areas of the Property so that the portion of the Work consisting of the 

patching or replacement will be inconspicuous. 

h. All Work materials must be incorporated in the Property in accordance with 

the applicable manufacturer's last instructions or applicable codes, whichever are more 

stringent.  The Contractor must obtain the Owner's and the State Recipient 's written 

consent to vary the application from such instructions or codes, as applicable. 

i. The Contractor shall not use lead-based paint in the Project, and if the 

Scope of Work requires the removal of lead-based paint, it shall be removed in accordance 

with Federal regulations. 



 

A-F-7 

j. The Contractor shall provide for and oversee all safety orders, precautions 

and programs necessary to the reasonable safety of the Work. The Contractor shall take 

reasonable precautions for the safety of all subcontractors, agents and employees and the 

persons whom the Work might affect, all Work and materials included in the Project, and 

all property and improvements on the Property and adjacent thereto, complying with all 

applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders. 

k. The Contractor shall furnish all cartage, labor, equipment, and other items 

necessary for the Project, at the Contractor's expense. 

l. The Contractor shall exercise proper precautions at all times for the 

protection of persons and property and shall be responsible for all property damage and 

personal injury, either on or off the Property, which may occur as the result of the Work. 

16. Materials Quality; Substitution; Replacement.  All materials provided by the 

Contractor, any and all subcontractors and material suppliers engaged by the Contractor pursuant 

to this Contract, shall be new, and of the same grade, quality, dimensions and design as that 

originally installed in the Property, unless otherwise specified in this Contract.  The Contractor 

shall not, and shall not allow any subcontractor to, substitute materials from those listed in this 

Contract without the written consent of the Owner and the State Recipient.  If the materials used in 

the Project fail to meet these standards, fail to conform to the specifications or have been 

substituted without the Owner's and the State Recipient's written consent, the Contractor shall 

replace and reinstall the materials at the Contractor's expense. 

17. Guarantees.  The Contractor shall guarantee and redo, repair or replace any 

materials or Work that fail to conform to the requirements of this Contract, if such failure appears 

during the progress of the Work.  The Contractor shall further guarantee and shall remedy any 

defects due to faulty materials or workmanship which appear within one (1) year from the date of 

final acceptance of the Work performed under this Contract.  The Contractor shall furnish the 

Owner with all manufacturers' and suppliers' written guarantees and warranties covering materials 

and equipment furnished under this Contract. The Contractor shall insure that this provision shall 

also apply to the Work and materials supplied by any subcontractor in connection with this 

Contract. 

18. Utilities.  The Owner shall provide the Contractor with utilities at no charge.  The 

Owner shall provide and maintain adequate heat at the Property during cold weather. 

19. Owner Cooperation.  The Owner shall cooperate with the Contractor to facilitate 

the performance of the Work, including providing access to the Property and the Work areas 

therein and removing and replacing rugs, coverings and furniture, as necessary.  The Owner shall 

not do anything that causes substantial delay of the Project, or makes it practically impossible for 

the Contractor to perform. 

20. Owner's Responsibilities. 

a. The Owner shall, at the appropriate stage after the execution of this 

Contract, but prior to the initiation of the Work, make color choices and other discretionary 

selection of materials.  Subsequent to such choices and selections, there shall be no change 



 

A-F-8 

in such selections that would materially alter or interfere with the progress of Work by the 

Contractor. 

b. The Owner shall not assume the role of inspector and shall report all 

complaints or problems to the Contractor and, if appropriate, report them to any 

subcontractor or other workers performing Work on the Property. 

c. The Owner shall notify the State Recipient and the Contractor in writing of 

all breaches of the Contract by the Contractor, any subcontractor or other workers. 

d. The Owner shall authorize Change Orders only as provided in Paragraph 5 

hereof. 

e. The Owner shall notify the Contractor, prior to the commencement of the 

Project, of any items scheduled for removal that the Owner wishes to salvage for personal 

use.  The Owner shall take appropriate measures to store or otherwise dispose of such 

items. 

21. Insurance. 

a. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall include: 

1. Worker's Compensation & Employer's Liability - worker's 

compensation of not less than the statutory amount, and employer's liability of not 

less than $100,000 per person; 

2. Automobile - minimum combined single limit of not less than 

$500,000 for injuries, including accidental death, or damages caused by the 

contractor's vehicles on the job site; 

3. Comprehensive Public Liability - not less than $500,000 for 

accidents or injuries, including accidental death, for each occurrence, and not less 

than $1,000,000 in the aggregate for the policy term; 

4. Such other insurance and in amounts required by the State Recipient  

or Owner. 

b. The Contractor shall provide satisfactory certificates of insurance 

evidencing the required insurance coverage, which certificates shall name the Owner, the 

State Recipient  and the Authority as additional insureds. 

c. The Owner agrees to maintain in force the owner's own property damage 

and liability insurance on the Property, to its full insurable value, against fire, vandalism 

and other perils ordinarily included in extended coverage for the duration of the Project, 

and reserves the right to purchase such additional insurance as in the Owner's opinion is 

necessary to protect the Owner against claims arising out of the Contractor's operation, 

without diminishing the Contractor's obligation to carry the insurance specified in this 

Paragraph 21.  The Owner shall obtain certificates of insurance evidencing the required 



 

A-F-9 

insurance coverage, which certificates shall name the State Recipient  and the Authority as 

additional insureds and loss payees. 

22. Indemnification. 

a. The Contractor shall indemnify the Owner, the State Recipient , and the 

State Recipient 's officers, agents, employees, or servants, against and hold them harmless 

from liabilities, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to, legal 

defense costs, attorneys' fees, settlements or judgments, whether by direct suit or from third 

parties, arising out of any acts or omissions of the Contractor or any and all subcontractors, 

material suppliers, tradesmen or mechanics, or the officers, agents, employees, or servants 

of any of them, in a claim or suit brought by any person or third party against the Owner, 

the State Recipient  or the State Recipient 's officers, agents, employees, or servants. 

b. If a claim or suit is brought against the Owner in connection with the Work, 

the State Recipient  or the State Recipient 's officers, agents, employees, or servants, for 

which the Contractor is responsible pursuant to Paragraph 22(a), the Contractor shall 

defend, at the Contractor's cost and expense, any suit or claim and shall pay any resulting 

claims, judgments, damages, losses, expenses, or settlements against the Owner, the State 

Recipient or the State Recipient's officers, agents, employees, or servants. 

c. The indemnification under this Paragraph 22 shall not be limited in any 

way by the limitations in the amount or types of damages, compensation or benefits 

payable by or for Contractor under any law or by limitations on the amount of insurance 

held by the Contractor. 

23. Mediation.  The State Recipient shall be the interpreter of the requirements in 

connection with the Work and shall mediate all claims and disputes between the Owner and the 

Contractor regarding the Work.  The State Recipient's decisions shall be final and binding.  The 

State Recipient shall issue a written decision within five (5) days of the written notification by 

either the Owner or the Contractor of any dispute.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, State Recipient, 

Owner and Contractor acknowledge and agree that the State Recipient may adopt a written 

mediation program, the terms, conditions and procedures of which, upon adoption by State 

Recipient and written notice to Owner and Contractor by State Recipient, shall govern the 

resolution of any claims and disputes between the Owner and the Contractor regarding the Work.  

The Owner and Contractor agree that upon receipt of notice from State Recipient of the adoption 

of State Recipient’s written mediation program they will be bound by such written mediation 

program without the need to affirmatively supplement or amend this Contract. 

24. Termination of Contract; Finishing Project. 

a. The Owner or the State Recipient, upon ten (10) business days' written 

notice to the Contractor, may terminate this Contract prior to the completion of the Project 

and without prejudice to any other remedy that the Owner or the State Recipient may have, 

upon the occurrence of (i) a violation of any of the terms of this Contract by the Contractor 

or (ii) upon the bankruptcy or insolvency of the Contractor (each an “Event of Default”).  



 

A-F-10 

The notice of Event of Default shall be served personally or by certified mail, return receipt 

requested and shall state: 

1. the nature of the Event of Default causing the termination; 

2. that the Contractor has ten (10) business days from the receipt of 

the notice to cure the Event of Default stated in the notice; and 

3. that the failure to cure such Event of Default will cause the Contract 

to be terminated after the tenth (10th) business day from the receipt of such notice, 

unless the time for cure is extended, by the Owner or the State Recipient, in their 

sole discretion. 

b. The Contractor may, upon ten (10) business days' written notice to the 

Owner, terminate this Contract prior to the completion of the Project upon a violation of 

this Contract by the Owner (“Owner Default”). The notice of Owner Default shall be 

served personally or by certified mail, return receipt requested and shall state: 

1. the nature of the Owner Default causing the termination; 

2. that the Owner has ten (10) business days from the receipt of the 

notice to cure the Owner Default stated in the notice; and 

3. that the failure to cure such Owner Default will cause the Contract 

to be terminated on the tenth (10th) business day, unless the time for cure is 

extended, in the Contractor's sole discretion. 

c. If the Contract is terminated pursuant to this Paragraph 24, the Contractor 

shall be paid only for that portion of the Work completed in a satisfactory manner, as 

determined by the Owner and the State Recipient and for which Contractor has delivered 

lien waivers to Owner. 

25. Termination of the Contract by the State Recipient.  The Owner and the 

Contractor agree that, upon five (5) business days' written notice, the Project may be suspended or 

terminated in whole or in part by the State Recipient for an Owner Default or in the event of a 

Default of the Rehabilitation Program Agreement between the Owner and the State Recipient.  The 

Contractor further agrees that the Contractor shall receive payment only for the Work performed 

by the Contractor through the date of termination or suspension if the Project is suspended or 

terminated pursuant to this Paragraph 25 and for which Contractor has delivered lien waivers to 

Owner.  

26. Changes to Scope of Work.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 

in Paragraph 5, the Owner and the Contractor agree that no changes, modifications, additions or 

deletions to the Scope of Work shall be made without prior written approval of the State Recipient 

.  THE OWNER AGREES AND UNDERSTANDS THAT IF IT REQUESTS THE 

CONTRACTOR TO PERFORM WORK NOT LISTED IN THE SCOPE OF WORK OR 

CHANGE ORDERS, THE OWNER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PAYMENT FOR SUCH 

ADDITIONAL WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR AGREES AND UNDERSTANDS THAT IF IT 



 

A-F-11 

PERFORMS WORK NOT LISTED IN THE SCOPE OF WORK OR APPROVED CHANGE 

ORDERS, AND THE OWNER HAS NOT REQUESTED SUCH WORK, THE CONTRACTOR 

IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PAYMENT FOR SUCH ADDITIONAL WORK.  OWNER AND 

CONTRACTOR FURTHER UNDERSTAND AND AGREE THAT ANY WORK REQUESTED 

OR PERFORMED OUTSIDE OF THE SCOPE OF WORK OR CHANGE ORDERS WILL 

CONSTITUTE A DEFAULT UNDER THIS CONTRACT. 

27. Notices.  Any Notice required by this Contract shall be sent to the following 

addresses: 

 

To the Owner:    

  

  

 

 

 

To the Contractor:    

  

  

 

 

 

Copies of all notices required by this Contract shall be sent to the State Recipient at the following 

address: 

 

To the State Recipient:  City of Mattoon 

c/o Doug McDermand 

Coles County Regional Planning 

and Development Commission 

Coles County Courthouse 

651 Jackson Street 

Room 309 

Charleston, Illinois 61920 

 

28. State Recipient Not A Party.  The Owner and the Contractor agree that the State 

Recipient, as State Recipient, is not a party to this Contract.  The State Recipient, as State 

Recipient, is signing this Contract solely to ratify the rights, obligations and responsibilities 

assigned to it, as State Recipient, in this Contract, including, but not limited to, the responsibilities 

set forth in Paragraphs 4, 5, 10, 14, 15, 20 and 22-26 hereof. 

29. Applicable Law.  This Contract shall be construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Illinois. 

30. Partial Invalidity.  If any of the provisions of the Contract shall contravene, or be 

invalid under, the laws of the State of Illinois, such contravention or invalidity shall not invalidate 

the entire Contract, but it shall be construed as if not containing the particular provisions or 



 

A-F-12 

provisions held to be invalid, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and 

enforced accordingly. 

31. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  THE PARTIES WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN 

ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THE 

PARTIES HERETO AGAINST THE OTHER ON ANY MATTER WHATSOEVER 

ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THIS CONTRACT. 
 

 

 

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 



 

A-F-13 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed 

and attested by their authorized representatives. 

 

OWNER: 

 

__________________________________ 

 

Printed Name:  

 

 

  

Printed Name:  

 

 

 CONTRACTOR: 

 

___________________________________ 

 

By:  

Its:  

 

STATE RECIPIENT: 

 

CITY OF MATTOON, 

an Illinois unit of local government 

 

By:  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Exhibits: 

A: Scope of Work 

B: Equal Opportunity Provisions 

C: Contractor Debarment Certification



 

A-F-A-1 

EXHIBIT A TO OWNER-OCCUPIED REHABILITATION  

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

HO-50220 

SFOOR 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 



 

A-F-B-1 

EXHIBIT B TO OWNER-OCCUPIED REHABILITATION  

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

 

Equal Opportunity Provisions 

 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 

A. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The contractor will take 

affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 

employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national origin.  Such action shall 

include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 

recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 

compensation; and selection for training including apprenticeship.  The contractor agrees to post in 

conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment notices to be provided 

setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

B. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by 

or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for 

employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

C. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with 

which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice to be 

provided advising such labor union or workers representatives of the contractor's commitments 

hereunder, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 

applicants for employment. 

D. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965 and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

E. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 

11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, and 

will permit access to its books, records, and accounts by the Secretary of Labor for purposes of 

investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

F. The contractor shall assist and cooperate actively with the Authority and the 

Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of all contractors and subcontractors involved in 

construction of a Project with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant 

orders of the Secretary of Labor, will furnish the Authority and the Secretary of Labor with such 

information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and will otherwise assist 

the Authority in the discharge of the Authority's primary responsibility for securing such 

compliance.  The contractor shall refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification 

that is subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965 with a contractor debarred from, or 

who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and Federally assisted construction 

contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and will carry out such 

sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon 



 

A-F-B-2 

contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency of the Secretary of Labor pursuant to 

Part II, Subpart D of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965. 

G. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses 

of this Contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, 

terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for 

further Government contracts or Federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with 

procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions 

may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 

1965, or by rule, regulations or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

H. The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding 

paragraph A and the provisions of paragraph A through G in every subcontract or purchase 

order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to 

Section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965 so that such provisions will be 

binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The contractor will take such action with respect to 

any subcontract or purchase order as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the 

Secretary of Labor may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for 

noncompliance.  Provided, however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is 

threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the 

Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor, the contractor may 

request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 



 

A-F-C-1 

EXHIBIT C TO OWNER-OCCUPIED REHABILITATION 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  

HO-50220 

SFOOR 

CONTRACTOR DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is 

providing the certification set out below. 

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which 

reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into.  If it is later determined that the 

prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to 

other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this 

transaction originated may pursue all available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the 

entity to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns 

that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 

circumstances. 

4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered 

transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily 

excluded, as used in this clause, have the meanings set forth in the Definitions and Coverage 

sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549.  You may contact the entity to which 

this Contract is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees that, by submitting this proposal, 

should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower 

tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the 

department or agency with which this transaction originated. 

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal 

that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 

and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier 

covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective 

participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is 

erroneous.  A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the 

eligibility of its principals.  Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement 

List. 

8. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 

records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause.  The knowledge 

and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a 

prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 



 

A-F-C-2 

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a 

participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 

person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or 

agency with which this transaction originated may pursue all available remedies, including 

suspension and/or debarment. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-

Lower Tier Covered Transactions 

 

 (1) The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that 

neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department 

or agency. 

 

 (2) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the 

statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this 

proposal. 

 

Executed this ____ day of _________, ____ 

 

  

 

 

By:  

Its:  

 

  



 

A-G-1 

EXHIBIT G TO REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

               HO-50220 

 

Rehabilitation Work List 

 



 

A-H-1 

EXHIBIT H TO REHABILITATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 

          HO-50220 

Right to Rescind 

 

 

You, the Owner, may cancel this transaction at any time prior to midnight of the third 

business day after the date of this transaction of documents. 

 

Notice of Cancellation 

 

__________________________________ 

(enter date of transaction) 

 

You may cancel this transaction, without any penalty or obligation, within three business 

days from the above date. 

 

If you cancel, any property traded in, any payments made by you under this contract or 

sale, and any negotiable instrument executed by you will be returned within 10 days following 

receipt by the seller of your cancellation notice, and any security interest arising out of the 

transaction will be canceled. 

 

To cancel this transaction, mail or deliver a signed and dated copy of this cancellation 

notice, or any other written notice to: 

 

City of Mattoon 

(State Recipient) 

 

at c/o Doug McDermand, Coles County Regional Planning and Development Commission, 

Coles County Courthouse, 651 Jackson Street, Room 309, Charleston, Illinois 61920 

(address of State Recipient place of business) 

 

not later than midnight of: ________________ 

 (date) 

 

I hereby cancel this transaction 

 

_____________________________ 

(date) 

 

_____________________________ 

(Owner’s signature)



 

B-1 

EXHIBIT B TO SFOOR PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 

Intentionally omitted. 
 

 



 

C-1 

EXHIBIT C TO SFOOR PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

HO-50220 

 

PROJECTED PAYOUT SCHEDULE 

 

 

Projected Payout Schedule % of Funds 

Expenditure of Funds by 6/30/10 50% 

Expenditure of Funds by 6/30/11 75% 

Expenditure of Funds by 5/1/12 100% 



 

D-1 

EXHIBIT D TO SFOOR PROGRAM AGREEMENT  

 HO-50220 

 

 DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 
 

 1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the undersigned is providing the 

certification set out below. 

 

 2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which 

reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into.  If it is later determined that the 

undersigned knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 

available to the Authority, HUD, or the department or agency with which this transaction 

originated may pursue all available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

 

 3. The undersigned shall provide immediate written notice to the entity to which this 

proposal is submitted if at any time the undersigned learns that its certification was erroneous 

when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 

 4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier 

covered transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, 

and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meanings set forth in the Definitions 

and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549, 51 F.R. 6370, February 

18, 1986. 

 

 5. The undersigned certifies that it has not been debarred, suspended, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction. 

 

 6. The undersigned agrees that, by submitting this proposal, should the proposed 

covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 

excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or 

agency with which this transaction originated. 

 

 7. The undersigned further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this 

clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 

Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered 

transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

 

 8. The undersigned must establish a “system of records,” including but not limited to 

the information contained at http://epls.arnet.gov/ in order to determine whether any prospective 

participant in a lower tier covered transaction is debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily 

excluded from the covered transaction. 

 

 9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a 

contractor in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 

person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

http://epls.arnet.gov/


 

D-2 

transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, HUD, the 

Authority, or the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue all 

available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

 

 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 

 and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions 

 

 (1) The undersigned certifies by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its 

principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

 

 (2) Where the undersigned is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 

certification, the undersigned shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

 

STATE RECIPIENT: 
 

CITY OF MATTOON, 

an Illinois unit of local government 

 

By: _____________________ 

Its ___________________________  

 

 

 



 

E-1 

 

EXHIBIT E TO SFOOR PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 

 



 

Appendix A-1 

APPENDIX A SFOOR PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 

APPLICABLE PART 24 CFR SECTIONS TEXT AND SUMMARY 

 

 

SECTION INDEX 

 

58.6 Flood Insurance – only applicable if property is in FEMA identified special 

flood hazard area 

 

84.42 Conflicts of Interest – written standards of conduct required 

 

85.26 Audit – grantees must obtain audits 

 

85.36 Conflicts of Interest – identification of potential conflicts in procurement  

 

85.43 Enforcement – remedies for non-compliance with terms of funding 

 

85.44  Termination for Convenience – right granted 

 

92.203(b) Income Determination – calculation of “annual income” 

 

92.206 Eligible Project Costs – definition of term and description of eligible costs, 

includes hard costs and soft costs 

 

92.207 Administrative Costs – definition of term and description of eligible costs 

 

 

Subpart F (applicable sections) 

92.250 Maximum Per-Unit Subsidy 

 

92.251 Property Standards – lists standards and codes with which property must 

comply, includes zoning, safety, energy, housing quality, accessibility 

requirements 

 

92.254 Affordability Requirements – sets out requirements for acquisition with or 

without rehabilitation 

 

92.257 Faith-based Activities – grantee restrictions on engaging in religious activity and 

prohibition on discrimination on the basis of faith 

 

 

Subpart H (applicable sections) 

92.350 Applicability of Federal Requirements in 24 CFR Part 5, Subpart A 

 

5.100  Definitions 



 

Appendix A-2 

5.105  Other Federal requirements 

5.107  Audit requirements for non-profit organizations 

5.108 Preservation of Open Competition and Government Neutrality 

Towards Government Contractors' Labor Relations on Federally 

Funded Construction Projects 

5.109 Equal Participation of Religious Organizations in HUD Programs 

and Activities 

5.110  Waivers 

 

92.351 Affirmative Marketing – Authority requirements 

 

92.352 Environmental Review – compliance requirements described and restriction 

against disbursing funds until environmental review and approval completed 

 

92.354 Labor – requirement for Davis-Bacon Act wage standards compliance and 

exceptions to compliance requirement 

 

92.355 Lead-based Paint – must follow 24 CFR 35 Subparts J and K as applicable for 

type of work, methods and qualified contractors to carry out the work  

 

92.356 Conflicts of Interest – description of potential conflicts and prohibition against 

conflicts of interest 

 

92.358 Consultant Activities – requirement of fair rate of compensation for personal 

services 

 

 

 

92.505  Applicability of Uniform Administrative Requirements  

 

92.508 Recordkeeping – provides for record retention periods and subsection (b) 

provides which requirements apply to state recipients  

 

 

 



 
 

 
   
  
 

RET-50220 
City of Mattoon  
 

Certificate of Incumbency 
 

 
 I, _________________, ________________ for City of Mattoon, certify as 
follows: 
 

1. I am the keeper of the books and records of the City of Mattoon and I am 
knowledgeable as to the matters contained in the Certificate. 

 
2. The following person holds the office set forth after his name. The signature 

set forth after his name is a specimen of his genuine signature. 
 

Name    Office   Specimen Signature 
 

 
David W. Cline  Mayor    __________________ 
 
Susan J. O’Brien  City Clerk  __________________ 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ____ day of _____, 
2010. 
 
 
      ________________________ 
       



 
 

 
   
  
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/20/2010    CDR NO: 2010-1074  
 
 SUBJECT:   Appointing Kenny Coffey to Sewer Lead Worker 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  4/13/2010 
 
SUBMITTED BY: David Wortman, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED FOR  Sue McLaughlin _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator  Date 

 
EXHIBITS: N/A 

 

EXPENDITURE 
ESTIMATE: 

AMOUNT 
BUDGETED: 

FUNDS 
REMAINING: 

CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING: 

$79,359.80 $79,359.80 $3,052.30 $N/a 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to approve the promotion of Kenny Coffey to Lead Maintenance Worker - 
Sewer Collection in the Public Works Department.    

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
This position became vacant with the retirement of David Warrem on March 31, 2010.  
This job opening was posted for bidding by City employees on March 12, 2010.  Kenny 
was one of four Public Works employees to submit an application. 
 
Kenny began his employment with the City at the Sewer Department where he worked 
for his first eleven years.  Since moving into Public works, he has worked on various 
crews and has displayed an ability to lead crews when given the opportunity.  During his 
time in Public Works he has gained a great deal of knowledge of proper maintenance and 
construction procedures and materials, as well as the City’s sewer system.  
 
Public Works Commissioner Randy Ervin, Public Works Superintendent Tim Daily and I 
have discussed the vacant Lead Worker position and all concur that Kenny Coffey should 
be awarded the position. 
 
The promotion shall be as of April 21, 2010 and the rate of pay shall be as set be the 
union contract with an hourly base salary of $23.31. 
 
 



 
 

 
   
  
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:  04-20-10     CDR NO: 2010-1075              
 
SUBJECT:    Bagelfest Grant 

   
SUBMITTAL DATE:  4-14-10 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Angelia Burgett, Tourism Coordinator 
 
APPROVED FOR  Sue McLaughlin _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator  Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Grant Application 
            

EXPENDITURE 
ESTIMATE: 

AMOUNT 
BUDGETED: 

FUNDS 
REMAINING: 

CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING: 

$3,000 $3,000 $26,400.00 $0.00 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 
I move to approve this grant recommended by the Tourism Committee from Hotel and 
Motel Taxes: 
 

• $3,000.00 to Mattoon Area Family YMCA for the July 17th 2010 YMCA Run 
for the Bagel. 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
This application was considered and approved by the Tourism Advisory Committee at a 
meeting held April 14th, 2010. 















 
 

 
   
  
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/20/10   CDR NO: 2010-1076   
 
SUBJECT:  Authorizing an agreement with Don Hance for architectural 

services with regard to the flooring for the depot project.  
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  4/16/10 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Preston Owen, City Attorney & Treasurer 
 
APPROVED FOR  Sue McLaughlin _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator  Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Don Hance Proposal 

  

EXPENDITURE 
ESTIMATE: 

AMOUNT 
BUDGETED: 

FUNDS 
REMAINING: 

CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING: 

$7,200.00 $2.73M $346,830.80 $0.00 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 
“I recommend authorizing the Mayor to accept a proposal from Don Hance for his work 
on design and architectural services for the flooring on the depot project in the amount 

of Seven Thousand Two Hundred Dollars ($7,200).” 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 

Due to the bankruptcy filing by Hance, Utz and Associates, PC (of which Don Hance was not an 
owner) the City filled the position for construction management for the remaining three months of 
the project with a contract with Don Hance, AIA.  The flooring portion of the original contract 
was removed by a change order shortly after the project was awarded last year.  It is now time for 
the redesign and bidding of the flooring portion of the project.  Don Hance has proposed to do the 
work for a lump sum total of $7,200.  The project is still under budget and the rebidding of the 
flooring will allow the project to be completed on time and under budget.  





 
 

 
   
  
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE: 4/20/2010       CDR NO: 2010-1077    
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Change Orders #25, 27, 29, 30 to the Depot 

Project 
 
SUBMITTAL DATE:  4/16/2010 
 
SUBMITTED BY: J. Preston Owen, City Attorney & Treasurer 

 
APPROVED FOR  Sue McLaughlin _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator  Date 

 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Exhibit A: Change Orders #25, 27, 29, 30 

 

EXPENDITURE 
ESTIMATE: 

AMOUNT 
BUDGETED: 

FUNDS 
REMAINING: 

CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING: 

$19,500.82 $2,730,000 $346,830.80 $0.00 

  
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to authorize the mayor to sign change orders  #25, 27, 29 & 30 with Grunloh 
 Construction in the total amount of $19,500.82 for the Depot Project.” 

 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
Change Order 25 is for the replacement of the north doors on the first floor. The doors 
were scheduled to be refinished and reused but are in too bad of shape to be saved. 
 
Change Order 27 is to furnish and install a new deck coating system over the front 
concrete slab. Once this project started it was discovered this slab was leaking into the 
mezzanine level. This coating will seal and refinish the concrete in the front of the 
building. 
 
Change Order 29 is to furnish and install drywall to the north and east walls in the gift 
shop.  
 
Change Order 30 is to move a soffit and all mechanical systems in the gift shop.  
 
Change Order History: 
 
#10 Addition $1,423.13 To remove and dispose of plaster ceiling and ceiling 

joist in Upper Mezzanine No. 201.  
#11 Addition $2,248.56 To install Z furring and drywall pn both sides of the 

wall between Museum #B06 and Storage 
#12 Addition $   162.00 One additional floor drain and deduct one hose bib.  
#13 Deduction $3,651.04 Removal of Gas meter move. 
#14 Deduction $1,760.00 Move cooling tower closer to building. 



 
 

 
   
  
 

#15 Addition $   684.00 Add metal mullions to doors B09, B10, B16 & 
B106.  

#16 Addition $   539.38 Add weather stripping to doors B117 & B118.  
#17 Addition $1,628.83 Concrete Patch in East Lobby  
#18 Addition $   344.34 Add tempered glass to existing door #112. 
#19 Addition $   108.00 Bore hose bib in east entry  
#20 Addition $   321.60 Install flooring in elevator 
#21 Addition $   428.22 Additional concrete installation 
#22 Addition $   301.72 Additional rough-in for push button at east door 
#23 Addition $   557.28 Additional wall women’s restroom 
#24 Addition $   542.78 Disconnect for elevator per inspection  
#26 Addition $   823.46 6 new door astragals 
#28 Addition $   870.91 Furnish and install of rubber base in mezzanine. 
 











 
 

 
   
  
 

City of Mattoon 
Council Decision Request 

MEETING DATE:  04-20-10     CDR NO: 2010-1078              
 
SUBJECT:    Police Chief Appointment 

   
SUBMITTAL DATE:  4-15-10 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Sue McLaughlin, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED FOR  Sue McLaughlin _________________ 
COUNCIL AGENDA: City Administrator  Date 
 
EXHIBITS (If applicable): Grant Application 
            

EXPENDITURE 
ESTIMATE: 

AMOUNT 
BUDGETED: 

FUNDS 
REMAINING: 

CONTINGENCY 
FUNDING: 

$ $82,136 $3,159.08 $0.00 

 
IF IT IS THE WISH OF THE COUNCIL TO SUPPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT, THE FOLLOWING MOTION IS SUGGESTED: 
 

“I move to approve the appointment of     to Police Chief, 
effective April 24, 2010 and upon the ratification of an employment 

contract, due to the retirement of Police Chief David L. Griffith.” 
 
SUMMARY OF THE TOPIC FOR WHICH A COUNCIL DECISION IS REQUESTED: 
 
Due to the upcoming retirement of Police Chief David Griffith, the City Council 
determined to open the employment search to include external candidates.  Upon 
advertising the position through various professional means, the City had received 15 
applications for the position (6 internal and 9 external).  After selecting four qualified 
candidates, personal interviews were held.  With the selection reduced to two finalists, 
the Council will determine the Police Chief at this meeting.  An employment agreement 
will be ratified at the May 4, 2010 Council meeting. 
 


	Council Agenda - April 20, 2010
	Minutes April 6, 2010
	Fire Department Report March 2010
	Bills & Payroll
	Ordinance 2010-5295 Annexation - Haslett
	Ordinance 2010-5296 Annexation - Cline
	Ordinance 2010-5297 Annexation - Koelling
	Ordinance 2010-5298 Annexation - Becker
	Ordinance 2010-5299 Annexation - Molzen
	Ordinance 2010-5300 Water & Sewer Rates
	Water Rate Study
	Waste Water Rate Study
	Addendum to Waste Water Rate Study
	Special Ordinance 2010-1387 Budget 2010-2011
	Budget 2010 - 2011
	Resolution 2010-2809 Capital Assistance Grant
	Resolution 2010-2810 Employees' Health Insurance Premium Rates
	Resolution 2010-2811 HOME Rehab Grant
	CDR 2010-1074  Promotion - Coffey
	CDR 2010-1075 Tourism Grant - YMCA Run for the Bagel
	CDR 2010-1076 Hance Contract for Depot Flooring
	CDR 2010-1077 Change Orders for Depot w/ Grunloh Construction
	CDR 2010-1078 Police Chief Appointment



